
 City Council 

Agenda
City Hall 

225 Fifth Street 

Springfield, Oregon 97477 

541.726.3700 

Online at www.springfield-or.gov 

The meeting location is wheelchair-accessible.  For the hearing-impaired, an interpreter can be provided with 48 

hours notice prior to the meeting.  For meetings in the Council Meeting Room, a “Personal PA Receiver” for the 

hearing impaired is available.  To arrange for these services, call 541.726.3700.   

Meetings will end prior to 10:00 p.m. unless extended by a vote of the Council. 

All proceedings before the City Council are recorded. 

March 21, 2016

AMENDED
 ____________________________

_ 
6:00 p.m. Work Session 

Jesse Maine Room 

_____________________________ 

(Council work sessions are reserved for discussion between Council, staff and consultants; 

 therefore, Council will not receive public input during work sessions.  

Opportunities for public input are given during all regular Council meetings) 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___, 

Woodrow ___, and Pishioneri ___. 

1. NEDCO Update and Discover Downtown Springfield.

[Courtney Griesel] (45 Minutes) 

ADJOURNMENT 

____________________________ 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 

Council Meeting Room 

_____________________________ 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___, 

Woodrow ___, and Pishioneri ___. 

City Manager: 

Gino Grimaldi 

City Recorder: 

Amy Sowa 541.726.3700 

Mayor 
Christine Lundberg

City Council
Sean VanGordon, Ward 1 
Hillary Wylie, Ward 2 
Sheri Moore, Ward 3 
Dave Ralston, Ward 4 
Marilee Woodrow, Ward 5 
Joe Pishioneri, Ward 6 



Council Agenda 

March 21, 2016 

Page 2 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Claims

a. Approval of February 2016, Disbursements for Approval.

2. Minutes

a. February 8, 2016 – Work Session

b. February 16, 2016 – Work Session

3. Resolutions

4. Ordinances

a. ORDINANCE NO. 1 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE

SECTION 5.300 REGARDING SALE AND DISTRIBUTION OF TOBACCO, TOBACCO PRODUCTS,

AND INHALANT DELIVERY SYSTEMS TO MINORS.

b. ORDINANCE NO. 2 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE

SECTION 7.450 and 7.452 REGARDING TOBACCO AND INHALANT DELIVERY SYSTEM

VENDING.

c. ORDINANCE NO. 3 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 5, “PUBLIC PROTECTION”

SECTION 5.104 “MISDEMEANORS AND VIOLATIONS – STATE STATUTES ADOPTED” OF THE

SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE (SMC) TO ADOPT BY REFERENCE, OREGON REVISED

STATUTES (ORS) CHAPTERS 161, 162, 163, 164, 165, 166, 167, 181, 471, 475 AND ORS 480.110 TO

480.160 THEREBY ADOPTING STATE ORS CRIMINAL STATUTES.

d. ORDINANCE NO. 4 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2, “GOVERNMENT AND

ADMINISTRATION” SECTION 2.005 “TERRITORY - WARDS” OF THE SPRINGFIELD

MUNICIPAL CODE (SMC) TO ADOPT LEGISLATIVE CHANGES REGARDING SIZE OF

PRECINCTS

5. Other Routine Matters

a. Allow Construction Activities Outside of the Hours of 7am and 6pm, in Order to Complete Construction

Activities in Association with the Repair of a Leaking Water Service at 3693 East Game Farm Road.

b. Approve the Amendments to the Budget Committee Bylaws.

MOTION: APPROVE/REJECT THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 



Council Agenda 

March 21, 2016 

Page 3 

PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request to speak cards are available at both 

entrances.  Please present cards to City Recorder.  Speakers may not yield their time 

to others. 

1. Amend the Springfield Development Code to Regulate the Time, Place and Manner by Which Land and

Buildings may be Used to Produce, Process, Sell Wholesale and Sell Retail Recreational Marijuana and

Recreational Marijuana Products.

[Jim Donovan]         (30 Minutes)

ORDINANCE NO. 5 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE 

SECTION 3.2-310 AND 3.2-410 ADDING VARIOUS RECREATONAL MARIJUANA BUSINESSES TO 

SPECIFIC COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICTS; SECTION 4.7-177 ADDING 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA BUSINESSES; AND 

SECTIONS 3.2-210, 3.2-415, 3.2-610, AND 3.4-255 PROHIBITING RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA 

BUSINESSES; ADOPTING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

(FIRST READING) 

NO ACTION REQUESTED. FIRST READING ONLY. 

2. Business License Regulations for Recreational Marijuana Businesses.

[Mary Bridget Smith] (10 Minutes) 

ORDINANCE NO. 6 – AN ORDINANCE ADDING SECTIONS 7.1100-7.1104 TO CHAPTER 7 OF THE 

SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL REGARDING RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA BUSINESSES (FIRST 

READING) 

NO ACTION REQUESTED. FIRST READING ONLY. 

3. Amendments to Medical Marijuana Business Regulations.

[Mary Bridget Smith] (15 Minutes) 

ORDINANCE NO. 7 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 

SECTION 7.601, DEFINITIONS, AND 7.603, OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS, REGARDING 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

MOTION:  ADOPT/NOT ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 7. 

4. Master Fees and Charges Schedule – Spring 2016 Update.

[Bob Duey] (10 Minutes) 

RESOLUTION NO. 1 – A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SPRINGFIELD ADOPTING A  MASTER FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE FOR FEES, CHARGES,  

RATES, PERMITS AND LICENSES AS ESTABLISHED BY THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE, 

FIRE CODE, AND BUILDING CODE. 

MOTION:  ADOPT/NOT ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 1. 



Council Agenda 

March 21, 2016 

Page 4 

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE - Limited to 20 minutes.  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request 

to Speak cards are available at both entrances.  Please present cards 

to City Recorder. Speakers may not yield their time to others. 

COUNCIL RESPONSE 

CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS 

BIDS 

ORDINANCES 

1. An Ordinance Amending Chapter 6, Vehicles and Traffic, Adding Section 6.112 to the Springfield Municipal

Code, Unlawful Transfer on Vehicular Portion of the Right-of-Way.

[Tim Doney/Mary Bridget Smith]       (15 Minutes)

ORDINANCE NO. 8 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 6, VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, 

ADDING SECTION 6.112 TO THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE, UNLAWFUL TRANSFER ON 

VEHICULAR PORTION OF THE RIGHT-OFWAY (FIRST READING)  

NO ACTION REQUESTED. FIRST READING ONLY. 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL 

1. Committee Appointments

a. Budget Committee Appointments.

[Paula Davis] (05 Minutes) 

MOTION:  APPOINT/NOT APPOINT NATHAN MISCHEL TO SERVE A 1-YEAR TERM ON 

THE BUDGET COMMITTEE FOR WARD 3 WITH A TERM TO EXPIRE DECEMBER 31, 

2016. 

MOTION:  APPOINT/NOT APPOINT VICTORIA DOYLE TO SERVE A 3-YEAR TERM ON 

THE BUDGET COMMITTEE FOR WARD 5 WITH A TERM TO EXPIRE DECEMBER 31, 

2018. 

MOTION:  APPOINT/NOT APPOINT DIANA ALLDREDGE TO SERVE A 3-YEAR TERM 

ON THE BUDGET COMMITTEE FOR WARD 6 WITH A TERM TO EXPIRE DECEMBER 

31, 2018. 

b. Historic Commission Appointments.

[Mark McCaffery] (05 Minutes) 

MOTION:  APPOINT/NOT APPOINT KRISTINA KOENIG TO THE HISTORIC 

COMMISSION TO SERVE THE UNEXPIRED PORTION OF COMMISSIONER VINCENT 

MARTORELLO’S TERM, WHICH EXPIRES FEBRUARY 2, 2018.   



Council Agenda 

March 21, 2016 

Page 5 

 
 

MOTION:  APPOINT/NOT APPOINT MACKENZIE KARP AND JONATHAN SIEGLE TO 

THE HISTORIC COMMISSION FOR FOUR-YEAR TERMS EXPIRING ON MARCH 20, 

2020.   

 

2. Business from Council 

 

a. Committee Reports 

 

b. Other Business 

 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 

 

1. Approval to Lease/Purchase One (1) Fire Pumper. 

[Randall Groves]         (05 Minutes) 

 

MOTION:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN A CONTRACT TO LEASE PURCHASE 

ONE (1) FIRE PUMPER FROM PIERCE MANUFACTURING, INC. FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED $593,108.00. 

 

MOTION:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 5-YEAR, TAX EXEMPT, 

LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE TO FINANCE THE 

PUMPER.  

 

2. Other Business 

 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Work Session 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Courtney Griesel, Economic 

Development 
 Staff Phone No: 736-7132 
 Estimated Time: 45 minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Community and Economic 
Development and 
Revitalization 

 
ITEM TITLE: NEDCO UPDATE AND DISCOVER DOWNTOWN SPRINGFIELD  

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Provide feedback on NEDCO staff presentation of organizational goals and focus 
moving forward. 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Neighborhood Economic Development Corporation (NEDCO) staff will present a 
detailed discussion of the recent transitions impacting the Neighborhood Economic 
Development Corporation (NEDCO), the future direction of the organization and 
upcoming opportunities in the Downtown Springfield area.  This memo will cover; 

• Existing Project and Program Partnerships Between the City of Springfield and 
NEDCO 

• Goals Moving Forward for NEDCO  
ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1 – State of Neighborhood Economic Development Corporation 

Attachment 2 – NEDCO/City Partnership Funding Overview  
Attachment 3 – Springfield Mobile Food Vending Program Update 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The City of Springfield has been in an ongoing, substantial, partnership with NEDCO 
for nearly ten years in several key areas; 

• Community Economic Development; includes SPROUT!, Main Street 
Program Management, Nonprofit business incubator, Springfield Farmers 
Market and Springfield Mobile Food Vending Program management. 

• Personal Asset Building; includes affordable home ownership development 
and microenterprise business support.  

Over the course of the partnership, these projects have utilized Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds and SEDA Downtown Urban Renewal funds.  
Currently, there are no ongoing SEDA funded partnerships with NEDCO.  
NEDCO has experienced substantial change and growth in recent years, notably the last 
year as Emily Reiman has assumed the role of Executive Director. These changes and 
growth have redirected past NEDCO priority initiatives to key focus areas for the 
future. Significant changes, which will be presented and discussed among others, 
include: 

• The recent withdrawal of NEDCO resources to support the Discover 
Downtown program – While NEDCO is no longer managing the Discover 
Downtown (MainStreet) program, City staff is currently working with 
businesses to organize and implement a ‘signature’ spring-time downtown 
event as well as an ongoing business-to-business consulting program.  NEDCO 
is no longer receiving funds from SEDA for this program. 

• The City proposes to partner with NEDCO to develop a two-year program plan 
for the Mobile Food Vending Program.  This would include developing a 
recommendation for long-term oversight of the program and exploring impacts 
of transitioning management from NEDCO to the City.  Staff proposes to bring 
this issue and any recommendations for program changes, to Council for 
discussion in June.  It should be noted this program does not currently, and has 
not historically, received funds for ongoing program management. 

This item is intended to provide an update on these past activities and their current 
status and to discuss the directions and goals for the NEDCO in the future with a focus 
on City partnership areas. 



 

  

 
 
 

March 21, 2016 

To:  Mayor Lundberg and the Springfield City Council 

From:  Emily Reiman, Executive Director, NEDCO 

Re:  Overall NEDCO Organizational Update and Status Report on City of Springfield Partnership 

 
Dear Mayor Lundberg and Councilors, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to delve this deeply into NEDCO, the work we do, and our transitions over 
the past year. We are grateful for our partnership with the City of Springfield, and it is our sincere hope 
that this partnership becomes stronger in the years ahead.  
 
This update comes as I approach my one year anniversary as Executive Director, and it has been a year 
of significant transition and realignment as an organization. NEDCO experienced incredible growth in the 
five years from 2010-2014. In many ways, that growth changed the face of NEDCO - increasing our 
breadth of programming, geographic reach, and organizational structure. Much of the growth was 
positive, addressing very real community needs and contributing to incredible impacts. But it was not 
without serious challenges. We struggled to build capacity fast enough to fulfill new obligations; secure 
revenue streams to support multiple new program areas; retain staff in an ever-changing and always 
fast-paced environment; and most of all, understand our strengths and limits as an organization. It’s 
these challenges that the board, management team, and I have focused on in the last year.  
 
I want to openly acknowledge the fact that, unfortunately, the area in which we struggled the most – 
Community Economic Development – was the very area in which we work most closely with the City of 
Springfield. As a result, that CED partnership experienced more than its fair share of bumps and 
disappointments. (And much of our other work in Springfield has been overshadowed by these areas.) It 
has been - and remains - a high priority for me to change that dynamic and ensure that NEDCO is a full 
and valuable partner for the City and this community.  
 
We have worked hard over the last year to communicate regularly with city staff and key community 
partners, honestly evaluate our capacity and priorities, and make the changes (including difficult budget 
decisions) necessary to ensure that NEDCO is a stronger, more financially sustainable, cohesive, and 
highly effective organization moving forward.  
 
My goal for this presentation is to give the Council a complete overview of NEDCO’s programs and 
services (including a bit of historical context), explain the transitions we have made in the last year, 
highlight our impact on the Springfield community, and introduce our plans for the next few years.  This 
packet provides initial information, and I will provide more detail and in-depth analysis on the 21st. I also 
look forward to a collaborative conversation about the ways in which the City and NEDCO can partner in 
the years to come. We’re excited to be a key partner on signature events, including Fresh Hops Fest and 
Harvest Fest; to work with other downtown businesses to create special promotions around holidays; to 
participate in community initiatives around housing, business development, and education partnerships; 
and many other activities rooted in making Springfield and even stronger community.  

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 8 
 



 

  

MISSION: To collaboratively build human and capital assets to strengthen neighborhoods and broaden 
participation in community ownership and governance 
 
GEOGRAPHIC REACH: Lane, Marion, Clackamas Counties 
 
KEY PROGRAM AREAS: 

• Personal Asset Building 
• Community Economic Development 
• Property Development (primarily acquisition, rehab, management; limited new construction) 
• Community Development Lending (consumer and micro/small business) 

KEY HISTORY: 
1979 – 1990: NEDCO was founded by residents of the Whiteaker neighborhood. Early work established 
roots in both housing and commercial revitalization: acquiring dilapidated single family housing and 
converting into co-ops or land trusts; purchasing commercial buildings and recruiting local businesses; 
bringing a grocery store back to the neighborhood; etc.  
 
1990 – 2008: Shift in focus to affordable homeownership as a long term asset building strategy for low 
income families. Initial focus on building affordable single family homes (scattered site and small 
neighborhood developments), with expansion into financial literacy and homebuyer education and 
coaching for families interested in purchasing NEDCO homes. Generally 3-5 staff members. 
 
2008 – 2014: Housing crisis and funding realities make single family development more difficult. Shift 
back toward community economic development (CED), first with Springfield Farmer’s Market and 
relocation to downtown Springfield. New Executive Director, Claire Seguin, hired in 2010, builds on CED 
efforts with Main Street, Sprout, and microenterprise services. NEDCO founds Community 
LendingWorks as an affiliate nonprofit to provide consumer and small business lending services. 
Homeownership counseling expands rapidly during crisis to include foreclosure prevention counseling. 
2008 expansion to Marion County (request of peer affordable housing agencies for 
homeownership/foreclosure services). 2012 expansion to Clackamas (request of state for foreclosure 
services). Financial literacy becomes standalone service, not just for homeownership candidates. 
Increase from 5 to 40 staff, primarily during two-year rapid expansion in 2011-12.  
 
2014 – 2015: Change in leadership as both Claire Seguin and Sarai Johnson (Assistant Director) leave in 
2014. Organization running at an operating deficit, led by Sprout and other CED programs as loss 
leaders. Board and management team undertake strategic downsizing to eliminate/modify several 
financially unviable programs and reduce staff to reach better sustainability point. Sprout programs, 
slow to get up and running, take off in 2015. Community LendingWorks begins rapid growth. 
Foreclosure prevention and Asset Building programs continue at a steady pace. First multi-family rental 
project of 12-unit complex for young adults aging out of foster care. 28-30 staff 
 
GUIDING PRINCIPLES LOOKING FORWARD: 
Prioritize areas of expertise, strength, and stable funding; focus efforts on fewer projects and services; 
integrate our programs to leverage impact; increase collaborative projects with community partners.     

NEDCO ORGANIZATIONAL SUMMARY 
 

Attachment 1, Page 2 of 8 
 



 

  

 
 
  

NEDCO HISTORICAL GROWTH SNAPSHOTS 
 

2009-10 
Annual Expenses: $770,000 Staff: 7 

Homeownership 
Centers $366,000 

Prop Dev 
$207,000 

Com 
Econ 
Dev O

th
er

 

2014-15 
Annual Expenses: $3.7 million Staff: 38 Counties: Lane/Marion/Clackamas 

Personal Asset Building 
Expenses: $2 million 

Community Econ Dev 
Expenses: $1.3 million 

Prop Dev 
$255,000 

Le
nd

in
g 

Foreclosure Prevention 

Ho
m

eo
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
Li

te
ra

cy
 

ID
As

 

Sprout! 
 

M
ic

ro
en

te
rp

ris
e 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 

Bu
s 

Co
ns

um
 

2016-17 
Annual Budget: $2.9 million Staff: 29 Counties: Lane/Marion/Clackamas 

Personal Asset Building 
Budget: $1.4 million 

Econ Dev 
$500,000 

Prop Dev 
$420,000 

Lending 
$560,000 

Foreclosure 
Prevention 

Ho
m

eo
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l L
it 

ID
As

 

Sprout 

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 

 S
m

al
l B

us
in

es
s 

Co
ns

um
er

 

M
ic

ro
en

te
rp

ris
e 

Fu
nd

ra
is

in
g 

Attachment 1, Page 3 of 8 
 



 

  PROGRAM OVERVIEW - PERSONAL ASSET BUILDING 
 

 
DEPARTMENT GOALS:  
To help low income individuals and families  

• Reach financial stability  
• Build economic opportunity 
• Gain and preserve assets.  

GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS: 
Lane, Marion, Clackamas Counties 
 
MAJOR PROGRAMS: 
Foreclosure Prevention  
Services:   Education, counseling, mediation, mortgage payment assistance 
Funding sources:  State and federal fee-for-service contracts 
Budget bottom line:  Break even 
Outlook:  Finally scaling down; probably 2 year time horizon 
 
Financial Literacy 
Services:  Entry and intermediate classes, one-on-one coaching, workplace and social 

service partner programs 
Funding sources:  United Way, private grants, fee-for-service 
Budget bottom line:  Requires subsidy (sources: grant funding generally available) 
Outlook:  Area of increasing need and interest; ability to scale up according to funding 
 
First Time Homeownership  
Services:   Classes, one-on-one coaching, down payment assistance 
Funding sources:  Oregon Housing and Community Services grants, HUD grants 
Budget bottom line:  Break even 
Outlook:  Will remain a small service area, to stay within available funding sources 
 
Microenterprise Business Support (moved from Community Economic Development) 
Services:   Classes, one-on-one coaching 
Funding sources:  Eugene and Springfield CDBG grants 
Budget bottom line:  Requires subsidy (sources: no clear path…ongoing effort) 
Outlook: Funding sources declining and increasingly difficult to use; ability to maintain 

probably linked to Community LendingWorks expansion 
 
Individual Development Accounts 
Services:  Matched savings program (3:1) for low income clients saving toward first home, 

business, car, or higher education 
Funding sources:  State IDA network (funded through state tax credit) 
Budget bottom line:  Break even 
Outlook:  Stable at current size; demand far outstrips resources, but limited by funding 
 
PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT AREAS:   

• Expand workplace-based financial literacy programs delivered as an employee benefit 
• Develop new program area around financing college with minimal student debt  

Attachment 1, Page 4 of 8 
 



 

  

DEPARTMENT GOALS:  
To help low income neighborhoods and communities  

• Build economic opportunity and vibrant sense of community 
• Support locally owned and emerging businesses, especially in the food/beverage sector 

GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS: 
Lane County (Focus Community: Downtown Springfield) 
 
MAJOR PROGRAMS: 
Sprout  
Services:  Commercial kitchen, food business incubation program, indoor farmer’s market, 

locally-owned anchor food/beverage businesses, event space, office space 
Funding sources:  Space rent, event rentals, program fees 
Budget bottom line:  Requires substantial subsidy  
 Original business plan estimated five-year investment period prior to break even. 

Currently in 4th year.  
Outlook: Significant progress in the last year, but income-generating potential limited by 

mission to support community and low-income/start-up businesses. Will not 
likely reach self-sufficiency; will probably require ongoing subsidy.   

 
Springfield Farmers Market 
Services:  Management and space for year-round farmer’s market 
Funding sources:  Booth fees 
Budget bottom line:  Requires subsidy (sources: NEDCO general operations, occasional small grants) 
Outlook: Exploring ways to minimize costs to make more sustainable; interest in moving 

to outdoor market during summer months. 
 
RECENTLY RETIRED PROGRAMS: 
Main Street  
Services:   Main street coordinator position; façade improvement grant coordination 
Funding sources:  City of Springfield  
Budget bottom line:  Required subsidy (sources: NEDCO general operations) 
Outlook: Unable to spin off as independent non-profit; would have required sustained 

subsidy. City will take the lead in future, and NEDCO will participate as partner.  
 
Nonprofit Business Incubator 
Services:   Classes, one-on-one coaching 
Funding sources:  Eugene and Springfield CDBG grants 
Budget bottom line:  Required subsidy (none identified, program closed) 
Outlook: Program initially launched without viable ongoing funding sources; potential 

interest in reviving in future, if funding available.  
 
PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT AREAS:   

• Continued effort to reach funding sustainability at Sprout! Top priority for NEDCO Board.  
• Better alignment of Community Economic Development program with Property Development 

and Community LendingWorks, to leverage multiple resources on behalf of targeted projects 
• Longer term: Identify second Focus Community in either Marion or Clackamas County 

PROGRAM OVERVIEW - COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
  

Attachment 1, Page 5 of 8 
 



 

  

 
DEPARTMENT GOALS:  

• Create safe, affordable, high quality housing for low income individuals and families 
• Rehabilitate and repurpose commercial real estate to promote vibrant businesses and activity 

in underserved and low income neighborhoods 

GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS: 
Lane County 
 
MAJOR PROGRAMS: 
Small-scale Multi-Family Rental 
Services:  Acquisition and rehab of small, older market-rate apartment complexes; 

targeted at underserved populations (former foster youth, etc.) 
Funding sources:  HOME, CDBG, private loans and grants, possibility of state tax credits / bonds 
Budget bottom line:  Income generating (developer fees, rents) 
Outlook: Good niche for NEDCO: can utilize funding that is difficult for larger projects; 

serve smaller special-needs populations.  
 
Single Family Rental 
Services:  Acquisition and rehab of abandoned/REO properties during the foreclosure 

crisis; targeted as housing for families displaced by foreclosure or short sale.  
Funding sources:  HOME, CDBG, private loans, possibility of federal Hardest Hit Funding 
Budget bottom line:  Income generating (developer fees, rents) 
Outlook: Probably 2-3 more years as a focus (similar sunset to foreclosure counseling 

program); could have occasional project after that. 
 
Commercial Development 
Services:   Acquisition and rehab of vacant or underutilized commercial buildings 
Funding sources:  CDBG, government grants, private grants, social investments, private loans, 

possibility of New Market Tax Credits 
Budget bottom line:  Break even (develop fees and rents) 
Outlook: Significant interest in expanding this area once Sprout finishes development 

phase;   
 
PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT AREAS:   

• Expanded commercial development, especially in focus communities of our CED work 
• Return to affordable homeownership development through “cottage home” clusters 
• Small multi-family projects in rural Marion County, in partnership with Housing Authority 

  

PROGRAM OVERVIEW - PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 
 

Attachment 1, Page 6 of 8 
 



 

  PROGRAM OVERVIEW - COMMUNITY LENDINGWORKS 
 DEPARTMENT1 GOALS:  

• Enable low income individuals and micro/small businesses to build economic opportunity 
through access to safe, affordable credit  

GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS: 
Official CDFI2 Target Markets: Lane, Linn, Marion Counties 
Current Expansion: Clackamas County and Southern Oregon 
 
MAJOR PROGRAMS: 
Consumer Lending 
Loan Products:  Credit-builder, personal, auto, energy efficiency, deposit assistance loans 
Funding sources:  CDFI grants, private and public investments 
Budget bottom line:  Break even (fees and interest) 
Outlook: Our primary mission-driven loan area – only 30% by dollar, but more than half 

by number of loans. Growing, but on a slower curve than business loans.    
 
Micro/Small Business Lending 
Loan Products:  Business loans up to $50,000; target populations include artisan/farmer’s 

market vendors, low income, minority, and woman-owned businesses 
Funding sources:  CDFI grants, private and public investments (USDA, Oregon Growth Board), 

private grants 
Budget bottom line:  Income generating  
Outlook: Fastest growing product line at CLW – currently 70% of loan by dollar.  Likely to 

triple in volume in the next 1-2 years.  
 
Business Technical Assistance / Referral 
Services:  Consultation and assistance for businesses interested in applying for a loan. Can 

include informal advice, business plan assistance, referral (and facilitated 
application) to other loan programs 

Funding sources:  CDFI grants, government grants (typically matched with loan for capital) 
Budget bottom line:  Break even 
Outlook: Probably the future direction on most of our microenterprise technical 

assistance programming.  
 
PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT AREAS:   

• Significant expansion of capital base and lending volume (current portfolio is just $1 million; 
anticipated portfolio of $3 million within 18 months) 

• Current geographic expansion to Clackamas County and Southern Oregon underway 
• Potential for additional loan products in response to community needs 

 
  

1 CLW is actually an independent nonprofit, with its own 501(c)3 status, but is formally affiliated with NEDCO 
through our bylaws and a management agreement. In business lingo, it’s a wholly-owned subsidiary of NEDCO.  
2 CLW is a certified Community Development Financial Institution (CDFI) through the US Treasury Department. 

Attachment 1, Page 7 of 8 
 

                                                           



 

  SPRINGFIELD-SPECIFIC IMPACT REPORT (2011-2015) 
 

 
PERSONAL ASSET BUILDING  

• 442 Homeowners at risk of foreclosure received education, counseling, and/or support in the 
state’s foreclosure mediation program 

• 296 Homeowners received Mortgage Payment Assistance (MPA) totaling $3.04 million in 
direct assistance  

o 95% of MPA recipients statewide are still in their homes 
• 249 Low income families received one-on-one coaching about first time homeownership;  

o 119 bought their first home 
• 372 Low income families received financial literacy education 
• 64 Low income residents are saving to buy an asset using an Individual Development Accounts 

(IDAs), and will earn $398,700 in match when they graduate.  
o 11 additional residents are approved to open accounts in the next funding round 

COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT / SPROUT 

• 80 Community events were held at Sprout in 2015, bringing more than 6200 people to 
downtown Springfield 

• 5 retail food and beverage businesses operate permanently from Sprout! 
• 50 food and beverage businesses utilized the commercial kitchen at Sprout! in 2015 

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

• 5 formerly foreclosed homes were rehabbed and are now affordable rentals for families 
displaced during the foreclosure crisis 

• 8 Businesses are now located upstairs at Sprout! 
• 12 Businesses are now located at the remodeled 405 A St building (formerly vacant) across the 

street from Sprout 
o 8 of those businesses are new to Springfield 

COMMUNITY LENDINGWORKS  

• 81 Consumer loans were made to residents, for a total of $142,942 
• 47 Business loans were made to Springfield entrepreneurs, for a total of $467,845 

 

Attachment 1, Page 8 of 8 
 



 

NEDCO & CITY PARTNERSHIP FUNDING OVERVIEW; 
Outstanding and Past/Closed 

 

The below listed projects are a snapshot of current and past funding partnerships and obligations 
between the City of Springfield and the Neighborhood Economic Development Corporation 
(NEDCO).  Current/outstanding funding partnerships are monitored and managed by City Housing 
staff.  
 
Outstanding CDBG funding: 
 

Year 
funded 

Recipient Project Award Amount Status of funds 

2013 
2014 

NEDCO Hatch Microenterprise 
Business Incubator 
Program 

$30,000 grant 
$66,879 grant 
(CDBG) 

$30,000 and 
$66,879 remaining 
to be drawn. 

 
Update:     NEDCO has declined the 2013 Hatch Microenterprise grant of $30,000, which allows the 
City to reallocate these funds toward other CDBG-eligible projects. Per HUD’s requirement, City 
staff is currently working with NEDCO to amend the 2014 contract to reflect a new rate model for 
invoicing. Once that contract is amended, NEDCO will bill for expenses incurred this past year. 
 

Year 
funded 

Recipient Project Award Amount Status of funds 

2012 NEDCO Façade Improvement 
Program 

$25,000 grant 
(CDBG) 

$12,500 
remaining to be 
drawn down. 

 
Update:     The grant to NEDCO for this project stipulated that half of the award ($12,500) would be 
put toward offering loans to businesses. As of now, NEDCO has not been able to find any businesses 
willing to take on a loan. City staff is working with NEDCO to close out this project by providing the 
funds back to the City for reallocation of the $12,500 to other CDBG-eligible projects.  
 

Year 
funded 

Recipient Project Award Amount Status of funds 

2015 NEDCO Sprout! Code 
improvements  

$100,000 grant 
(CDBG) 

$100,000 
remaining to be 
drawn. 

 
Update:      NEDCO identified the Sprout! building occupancy use as a violation of fire code, and 
would need significant code improvements to be used as an event space. In May 2015, NEDCO was 
awarded a $100,000 CDBG grant to put toward the project. NEDCO estimated the total cost of the 
rehabilitation to be $190,000. Staff completed the environmental review of the project in the Fall, 
allowing NEDCO to start incurring costs toward the project as of December 1, 2015. NEDCO 
reported they are currently finalizing the plans for the renovation work with the architect. 
 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 2 
 



 Page 2 

 
 
Closed CDBG funding: 
 

Year 
funded 

Recipient Project Award Amount Status of funds 

2012 
 

NEDCO Hatch MicroEnterprise 
Mobile Food Vendor 
Program Development 

$23,033 
(CDBG) 

Fully Expended by 
2013 

 
Overview:  In 2012 NEDCO partnered with Springfield Housing staff to develop guidelines for the 
Springfield Mobile Food Vending Program. Funds were allocated from CDBG specifically for the 
staffing of program development, resulting in the creation of a final outline of rules and a handbook 
to be approved by City Council.  The program was reviewed and approved by Council in 2013 and 
adjusted to further encourage vendor participation in 2014. NEDCO currently funds the management 
of the program with funds collected from program fees. There are no additional CDBG, City or 
SEDA funds allocated to this program. 
 
Retired Urban Renewal funding: 

 

Overview:  In 2010, NEDCO approached the City of Springfield to partner in designating Downtown 
Springfield as a Main Street program area.  Main Street is a national organization promoting ‘grass-
roots’ redevelopment of downtown areas.  The designation includes the adoption of an organizational 
structure which includes a Main Street Coordinator/Manager.  The City and Springfield Economic 
Development Agency approved the funding request of $25,000 annually to support the staffing of a 
Downtown Manager to be hired and managed by NEDCO.  This position was funded with Downtown 
Urban Renewal funds from 2012 to 2015, when the Main Street manager position was eliminated by 
direction of the NEDCO Board of Directors.  No further funds have been requested by NEDCO for 
this work and in February 2016, NEDCO officially withdrew formal partnership as the Downtown 
Springfield Main Street Program parent organization.   
 

Year 
funded 

Recipient Project Award Amount Status of funds 

2012 
 

NEDCO Discover Downtown 
(Main Street) Program 
Manager  

$25,000 
(SEDA, Downtown 
Urban Renewal) 

Not Funded.   
Last funded FY 
2015 

 
         
 
 



SPRINGFIELD MOBILE FOOD VENDING PROGRAM UPDATE 
2016 

Program Startup (2013) 

In 2013, Council adopted Ordinance 6298 which authorized a Food Cart Program on City-owned streets, 
sidewalks, rights-of-way and public open spaces in the downtown core. The City Manager was made the 
administrator of the program with the power to delegate the administration to another agency.  With 
the assistance of a CDBG allocation, the Neighborhood Economic Development Corporation (NEDCO) 
partnered with the City to draft program guidelines and administer the program.    

The program guidelines are framed around several key areas: 
• Streamlining the process for vending truck/cart to vend in the right of way in downtown

Springfield
• Being mindful to existing brick and mortar businesses in Downtown
• Promoting aesthetic, safety, and public access considerations

Vendors through the City program are required to: 
• Carry liability insurance naming the City and program administration organization as additional

insured
• Be licensed; valid Oregon Food Handlers card, possess Lane County Environmental Health

Mobile Food Unit License
• Be at least 16 years old
• Serve from a mobile, on wheels at all times, unit
• Be operational without hard-wired electrical or piped connection to waster service
• Display signage clearly identifying business name
• Provide a complete accounting of intended products to be sold
• Keep areas around their business clean and tidy
• Display permits at all time

Program Adjustments (2014) 

After piloting the program for the first year, and with feedback from vendors and Council, staff directed 
NEDCO to adjust several program guidelines.  These adjustments are reflected below. 

Initial Rules Adjusted Rules 
Monthly Rental Fees Spring/Summer: $200  

Autumn/Winter: $150 
Flat $150 monthly rental fee 

Power Source Non-generator only: temporary plugin No restriction 
Hours of Operation 3-5 Hours p/day 

5 Days p/week 
20 Days p/month minimum 

No minimum operation 
requirement 

ATTACHMENT 3, PAGE 1 OF 3 



Program Progress and Current Lessons Learned (2015 to Current) 

Since guideline drafting and program implementation and program adjustments, two cart businesses 
and one food truck have submitted applications to participate in the program.  All were approved. 

Based on the limited implementation window and mobile food vendor business interactions, we have 
identified several keys to successful vending in a downtown or community area.  Additionally, we 
understand better the costs and barriers associated with mobile food vending. 

Keys to Start-up: 

- High demand/area clientele base – The high concentration of employment and daily foot traffic 
within an identified clientele base is critical for a successful mobile food vendor business.  In 
remaining consistent with a truly mobile vending model, it is important that the vendor travel to 
the client base opposed to expecting clients to travel long distances to them.  This client base is 
likely to be a vibrant mix of shoppers and employees and possibly residents, located in a 
concentrated area.   

- Low food and labor costs – Low food and labor costs is not about cheap food and labor, rather 
efficient purchasing and utilization of product and effective training of quality employment.   

- Owner is operator, does not require high salary - In many cases, food vendors are unable to hire 
staff during initial start-up years, instead paying themselves minimal salaries.  This commitment 
to owning and operating their own business not only generates labor savings, but also provides 
an opportunity for the building of consistent product. 

- City has minimal requirements – Entry into a city must be made clear and include an easy to 
navigate, streamlined, process. Vending in the public right of way has generated a mix of 
support and opposition from the community.  While excitement around the positive activity has 
been widely expressed, concern around public liability, fairness and safety has also been 
expressed.  For this reason, even with a goal for a streamlined and easy to access program, 
requirements ensuring safety in the ROW are an important regulation. 

Summary  

Staff believe due to low client traffic volumes in downtown Springfield, the Springfield Mobile Food 
Vendor Program has struggled to take-off and thrive.  Initial start-up costs for equipment purchases and 
product development are, while in some place less expensive than a ‘brick and mortar’ establishment, 
expensive often barriers to entry into an unknown or untested market like Springfield.  Within the 
region, the often popular vending model results in the food truck or cart operator locating a ‘plug-in 
ready’ site which allows the truck or cart to remain in place for an indefinite amount of time at a low 
monthly rent rate.  While this is often a highly successful, and even desirable, model it is not a true 
‘Mobile’ Food Vending Program, as the Springfield ordinance and Program was written.   

 

 

ATTACHMENT 3, PAGE 2 OF 3 



EXAMPLE START-UP AND OPERATIONAL COSTS OF  
MOBILE FOOD VENDING 

 

 

ANNUAL COSTS OF FOOD CARTS/TRUCKS 
 Actual Daily $ % sales NOTES 
Starting Daily Sales $312  2 customers/10 minutes @ 6.50 

p/customer w/4 hour day 
- Raw Food Costs $120 38% Higher than restaurant 
- Packaging/Paper $19 6% Higher than restaurant 

Gross Profit $173   
    

- Labor $86   9 Hours of Daily Minimum Wage 
- Fuel $15   
- Maintenance/Cleaning $10 3%  
- Admin Overhead $6 2%  

 
Net Daily Profit $56   
 

TYPICAL DAY (Single Mealtime Service) 
Load truck/drive/set-up 2 Hours 
Service 4 Hours 
Takedown/drive/unload/next morning prep /clean-up 3 Hours 

TOTAL 9 Hour Day 
 

FOOD CART START-UP ESTIMATES OF FOOD CARTS/TRUCKS 
 LOW HIGH NOTES 
Cost of Truck/Cart 
w/large Equipment 

$50,000 $125,000 Lower than restaurant ownership 

Small Wares $1,200 $6,000 Similar to restaurant of scale 
License Fees $200 $1,500 Comparable to business license of 

restaurant 
Insurance $2,500 $2,500 Higher than restaurant 
Training $800 $800 Similar to restaurant 
Rent $1,200 $7,500 Lower than restaurant 
Other $7,500 $25,000 Legal, Branding, etc. 
 
Total $63,400 $168,300 Lower than brick & mortar restaurant 

start-up costs 

ATTACHMENT 3, PAGE 3 OF 3 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Bob Duey 
 Staff Phone No: (541) 726-3740 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: FEBRUARY 2016, DISBURSEMENTS FOR APPROVAL 

 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Approval of the following motion to: 
Approve the FEBRUARY 2016 Disbursements for Approval 
 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The FEBRUARY 2016 Disbursements for Approval is attached for your review and 
approval. 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: A. FEBRUARY 2016 Disbursements for Approval 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

Checks totaling $3,960,277.22 were issued in FEBRUARY 2016. Documentation 
supporting these payments has been reviewed. 
 
 
 

 



Mar/03/2016Run Date

1Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Valley Credit Service, Inc02/02/16Paid136542

Garnishment w/h 1/29/16  461.81

 461.81

Chapter 13 Trustee02/02/16Paid136543

Garnishment w/h 1/28/16  365.08

 365.08

Elgin Ambulance Service02/02/16Paid136544

AMBULANCE REVENUE  1,586.64

 1,586.64

City of Oakridge02/02/16Paid136545

AMBULANCE REVENUE  18,529.73

 18,529.73

PARKDALE FIRE DEPARTMENT02/02/16Paid136546

AMBULANCE REVENUE  22,377.86

 22,377.86

City of Union02/02/16Paid136547

AMBULANCE REVENUE  1,939.23

 1,939.23

WAMIC RFPD02/02/16Paid136548

AMBULANCE REVENUE  1,519.21

 1,519.21

Western Lane Ambulance District02/02/16Paid136549

AMBULANCE REVENUE  13,215.62

 13,215.62

Professional Credit Service02/02/16Paid136550

Garnishment w/h 1/29/16  273.75

 273.75

SEXTON,ANNABELLE02/05/16Paid136551

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-45428  92.21

 92.21

Trillium Community Health Plan, Inc.02/05/16Paid136552

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-1706  43.85

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-30  43.85

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-38  43.85

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-47  43.85

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-64  103.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-76  43.85

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-18134  336.70

 659.87

Trillium Community Health Plan, Inc.02/05/16Paid136553

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-1812  43.85

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-1818  46.85

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-266  120.45

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-271  126.41

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-330  103.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-611  43.85

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-618  43.85

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-619  103.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-743  43.85

 676.95

Attachment A, Page 1 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

2Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Trillium Community Health Plan, Inc.02/05/16Paid136554

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-17294  336.70

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-25954  420.62

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-27386  139.87

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-34127  336.70

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-34834  28.98

 1,262.87

Trillium Community Health Plan, Inc.02/05/16Paid136555

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-31327  411.21

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-44290  351.49

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-48325  510.78

 1,273.48

Trillium Community Health Plan, Inc.02/05/16Paid136556

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-28845  361.99

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-37902  420.62

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-44290  81.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-49729  22.50

 887.03

WPS Tricare For Life02/05/16Paid136557

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-40588  89.74

 89.74

United Healthcare-Refunds02/05/16Paid136558

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-36997  84.21

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-9445  1,495.23

 1,579.44

United Healthcare-Refunds02/05/16Paid136559

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-12296  1,305.78

 1,305.78

United Healthcare-Refunds02/05/16Paid136560

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-48851  141.07

 141.07

Blue Cross Of Oregon02/05/16Paid136561

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-13676  591.90

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-38291  1,267.32

 1,859.22

HealthNet Medicare Advantage02/05/16Paid136562

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-48527  48.84

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-54224  24.16

 73.00

DMAP-REFUND02/05/16Paid136563

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-44913  83.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-49212  83.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-52958  83.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-53499  34.40

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-54359  83.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-54596  34.40

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-5977  429.62

 834.10

HEALTH EQUITY02/05/16Paid136564

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-51615  83.06

 83.06

Attachment A, Page 2 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

3Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

UA LOCAL #29002/05/16Paid136565

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-29235  121.86

 121.86

TRUSTEED PLANS SERVICES CORP02/05/16Paid136566

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-47964  1,974.00

 1,974.00

CAMERON,FLORENCE02/05/16Paid136567

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-33815  90.03

 90.03

HENDRICKS,MICHAEL02/05/16Paid136568

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-46249  410.34

 410.34

STERN,ANITA02/05/16Paid136569

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-48593  499.57

 499.57

WINBIGLER,THOMAS02/05/16Paid136570

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-47807  31.92

 31.92

INTERCOMMUNITY Health Network-Refunds02/05/16Paid136571

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-34256  311.42

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-37240  144.91

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-37853  420.62

 876.95

Tricare NW - Refunds02/05/16Paid136572

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-40189  275.36

 275.36

Government Employees Health Association02/05/16Paid136573

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-44903  997.41

 997.41

Department of Veterans Affairs02/05/16Paid136574

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-27891  486.19

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-30644  334.43

 820.62

Aetna-Refunds02/05/16Paid136575

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-31948  97.88

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-32100  1,733.92

 1,831.80

TURNER,GAYLE02/05/16Paid136576

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-25728  790.56

 790.56

SVINGEN,ARLENE02/05/16Paid136577

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-35219  50.00

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-3020  50.00

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-5469  50.00

 150.00

SORBY, ERIC A02/05/16Paid136578

Fall 2015 Tuition Reimb #2  1,356.00

 1,356.00

Lane County Circuit Court02/05/16Paid136579

Forfeiture: Case# 15-5796  1,042.48

 1,042.48

Attachment A, Page 3 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

4Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Cintas02/05/16Paid136580

Meds Restocked/Cabinets organi  350.11

Meds Restocked/Organized  153.17

 503.28

Wilcox, Sharon Jean02/05/16Paid136581

BAIL REFUND 1510333  637.00

 637.00

Professional Credit Service02/05/16Paid136582

BAIL REF - #1511692 TO 060030  109.00

BAIL REFUND  124.00

BAIL REFUND 1504379  715.00

Collection Fees 1/11/16  1,721.67

Collection Fees 1/18/16  2,796.92

Collection Fees 1/25/2016  3,022.83

 8,489.42

DENNYS02/05/16Paid136583

VIC REST - DOCKET #1507940  86.66

 86.66

KIM MICHELLE CRESPO02/05/16Paid136584

BAIL REFUND - DOCKET #1508550  264.00

 264.00

SupplyWorks02/05/16Paid136585

PD-Bath Tissue  76.26

 76.26

Superior Tree Service Inc02/05/16Paid136586

TREE TRIMMING & REMOVAL  2,950.00

 2,950.00

GUERRERORODRIGUEZ, JUAN CARLOS02/05/16Paid136587

BAIL REFUND 1505760  637.00

 637.00

EC Power Systems, Inc.02/05/16Paid136588

JC: ER GENERATOR TESTING & SVC  3,143.42

 3,143.42

Huntons Surecrop Farm Services Inc02/05/16Paid136589

FREEZGARD & FREIGHT  1,117.50

 1,117.50

Tyler Technologies, Inc02/05/16Paid136590

Insite Transaction Fees  394.50

 394.50

LUCASON, PATRICK LAWRENCE02/05/16Paid136591

RESTITUTION 1206842  32.00

 32.00

JAQUES, ZACHARY BLAIR02/05/16Paid136592

RESTITUTION 1307990  75.00

 75.00

WILCO FARM STORE02/05/16Paid136593

RESTITUTION 1502806  50.00

 50.00

Smith,Donald02/05/16Paid136594

RESTITUTION 1305078  50.00

 50.00

Attachment A, Page 4 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

5Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

HALL, HEIDI02/05/16Paid136595

BAIL REFUND  210.00

 210.00

Aramark Uniform Services, Inc.02/05/16Paid136596

CH: MAT CLEANING SVC  50.45

LAUNDRY SERVICE & SUPPLIES  60.00

MAINT LUNCHRM MATS CLEANED  65.95

 176.40

Grainger, Inc.02/05/16Paid136597

BI-LEVEL BRUSH & 60IN HANDLE  48.96

NONMETALLIC ENCLOSURE  146.84

 195.80

River Roofing, Inc.02/05/16Paid136598

CH:  ROOF REPAIR  185.00

 185.00

Zumar Industries, Inc.02/05/16Paid136599

TRAFFIC SUPPLIES  1,620.00

 1,620.00

JOYCE A. PURVIS02/05/16Paid136600

BAIL REFUND - DOCKET #1510209  394.00

 394.00

SHAWN ELTON LEWIS02/05/16Paid136601

BAIL REFUND - DOCKET #1508639  500.00

 500.00

GONZALEZGONZALEZ, RUSBIN RUBELINO02/05/16Paid136602

BAIL REFUND  1,000.00

 1,000.00

Language Line Services, Inc.02/05/16Paid136603

Dec 2015 Translation Svs  17.55

 17.55

LAREW, KATHLEEN02/05/16Paid136604

BAIL REFUND 1500110  127.00

 127.00

Hill, Denise02/05/16Paid136605

BAIL REFUND 1506894  637.00

 637.00

YOLANDA KUNTZ02/05/16Paid136606

BAIL REFUND - DOCKET #1502178  220.00

 220.00

JONI GRIFFIN02/05/16Paid136607

BAIL REF-1509082$660/8419 $267  927.00

 927.00

Attachment A, Page 5 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

6Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

City of Eugene02/05/16Paid136608

Dec 2015-2016 Calendars  17.17

Dec 2015-Cleaning Supplies  253.87

Dec 2015-FMW Eugene  5,983.46

Dec 2015-Fire Station Maint  497.52

Dec 2015-Medical Supplies  4,781.54

Dec 2015-Medical Supplies  11,313.21

Dec 2015-O2 Fills  366.75

Dec 2015-SCBA Maint  200.99

Dec 2015-TO Repairs/Boots  2,722.16

Dec 2015-Vehicles  196.12

 26,332.79

Springfield Utility Board02/05/16Paid136609

725 S 57TH 12/9/15-1/8/16  100.83

RESTITUTION 1212625  150.00

SUB BILLING WK 1-FEB  4,685.82

 4,936.65

Office Imaging, Inc.02/05/16Paid136610

Jail Printer Service/Repair  158.66

Lanier Cyan Toner Ink  169.00

 327.66

Emergency Veterinary Hospital02/05/16Paid136611

Vet Care/Dog hit by Vehicle  171.00

 171.00

iSecure Information Security02/05/16Paid136612

FLS Shredding-1/11/16  33.00

 33.00

Omlid & Swinney Fire Protection &02/05/16Paid136613

FS14:  FIRE ALARM REPAIR  220.00

 220.00

AT&T Mobility02/05/16Paid136614

DPW Cell Charges  95.34

Fire Cell Charges  96.68

Maint Cell Charges  244.96

Prod & Test Db Server  31.83

 468.81

OfficeMax North America Inc02/05/16Paid136615

Stams/Storage Boxes/Pads  102.59

 102.59

Lane County Public Works Department02/05/16Paid136616

GUARDRAIL REPAIR-42ND ST  1,039.42

GUARDRAIL REPAIR-THURSTN/WEAVR  3,041.56

P21086 MAT TEST/LAB FEE NOV 15  92.00

Support for CAHOOTS Program  395.51

Support for CAHOOTS Program  1,769.27

 6,337.76

Ricoh USA,  Inc02/05/16Paid136617

Addt'l Images 10/16-1/15  196.01

Addt'l Images 12/24-1/23  29.84

Addt'l Images: 12/24-1/23  139.70

 365.55

Attachment A, Page 6 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

7Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Ricoh USA,  Inc02/05/16Paid136618

HR Copier Lease: 2/6-3/5  109.31

 109.31

Washington State Correctional Industries02/05/16Paid136619

Inmate Meals  3,026.42

 3,026.42

Barrister's Aide, Incorporated02/05/16Paid136620

Jan 2016 Courier Svs  93.15

 93.15

Feynman Group, Inc02/05/16Paid136621

Update FireMed Web Wording  31.25

 31.25

Clay's Refrigeration02/05/16Paid136622

FS16:  REFRIGERATOR REPAIR  135.50

 135.50

Guard Publishing Company02/05/16Paid136623

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE  440.00

 440.00

CenturyLink02/05/16Paid136624

Monthly Phone Charges (Jan 16)  3,724.94

 3,724.94

CenturyLink02/05/16Paid136625

Monthly Phone Charges-Jan 16  232.00

 232.00

Commercial Fitness Equipment02/05/16Paid136626

FITNESS EQUIPMENT REPAIRS  337.50

 337.50

Phil's Rooter Service, LLC02/05/16Paid136627

REFUND 80% ST SRCHRGE/WTR LINE  80.64

 80.64

Lundberg,Christine Louise02/05/16Paid136628

Feb 2016 Cell/Internet Reimb  85.00

 85.00

Ralston,Dave02/05/16Paid136629

Feb 2016 Cell/Internet Reimb  85.00

 85.00

Wylie,Hillary02/05/16Paid136630

Feb 2016 Cell/Internet Reimb  85.00

 85.00

Joe Pishioneri02/05/16Paid136631

Feb 2016 Cell/Internet Reimb  85.00

 85.00

AICPA02/05/16Paid136632

CPE Direct Renewal-S. McKay  189.00

 189.00

Robertson Sherwood Architects PC02/05/16Paid136633

CH:  WELLNESS CTR DESIGN PMT 3  5,079.75

 5,079.75

Six Robblees, Inc.02/05/16Paid136634

5 - 18 GOODYEAR  21.70

 21.70

Attachment A, Page 7 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

8Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

AT&T02/05/16Paid136635

Monthly One-Net Services  23.19

 23.19

Barriga, Jennifer Darlene02/05/16Paid136636

BAIL REFUND 1500040  365.00

 365.00

Liebau, Anthony Leo02/05/16Paid136637

BAIL REFUND 1407956  915.00

 915.00

Moon, Matthew Ryan02/05/16Paid136638

BAIL REFUND 1409197  165.00

 165.00

Gunderson, Joshua Lee02/05/16Paid136639

BAIL REFUND 1410056  1,500.00

 1,500.00

Oregon Municipal Judges Association02/05/16Paid136640

2016 OR Judicial Edu Conf  150.00

 150.00

VANHOUCK,JOHNNY L.02/05/16Paid136641

BAIL REFUND  1,500.00

 1,500.00

Prince, John Noble02/05/16Paid136642

BAIL REFUND 1500123  1,010.00

 1,010.00

Chittim, Brian James02/05/16Paid136643

BAIL REFUND 1410088  260.00

 260.00

Clark, Alexandra Lee02/05/16Paid136644

BAIL REFUND 1410161  985.00

 985.00

Bailey, Karen Margaret02/05/16Paid136645

BAIL REFUND 1410315  1,010.00

 1,010.00

Eugene Lock & Safe Company02/05/16Paid136646

(10) Key Copies-Ford  40.00

(2) New Ford Keys  10.00

 50.00

Brattain International Trucks,  Inc.02/05/16Paid136647

VEH.7066;  BELTS-V RIBBED  104.68

 104.68

Parsons, Robert R02/05/16Paid136648

BAIL REFUND 1410285  1,010.00

 1,010.00

Pape' Machinery02/05/16Paid136649

VEH.7054;  SPRINGS/BUSHINGS  297.12

 297.12

Feenaughty Machinery Co.02/05/16Paid136650

THERMO SWITCH  58.74

 58.74

Tamara Meadow02/05/16Paid136651

1081 55TH PL-PLUMBING REIMBURS  715.00

 715.00

Attachment A, Page 8 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

9Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Marlene Adelhart02/05/16Paid136652

PLUMBING REIMB-1183 FAIRVIEW  675.00

 675.00

Lane Council of Governments02/05/16Paid136653

Mayors OMPOC Qtrly Meeting Reg  30.00

REG FIB CONSORT-2NDQTR FY16  7,518.31

 7,548.31

EVERETT, FORREST KENDALL02/05/16Paid136654

BAIL REFUND 1600138  60.00

 60.00

NORBURY, BRITTNEY CHEYANNE02/05/16Paid136655

BAIL REFUND 1600084  22.00

 22.00

KOHLI AMANDEEP SINGH02/05/16Paid136656

BAIL REFUND 1600250  60.00

 60.00

JEROME & SHERELYN ERNST02/05/16Paid136657

BAIL REFUND - DOCKET #1510523  244.00

 244.00

HERRAN,FERNANDO G02/05/16Paid136658

Translation Svs 1/27/2016  80.00

 80.00

Dearth, David W02/05/16Paid136659

Witness Fee: 1/25/16  5.00

 5.00

Wal*Mart02/05/16Paid136660

RESTITUTION 1405246  50.00

RESTITUTION 1405253  60.00

 110.00

JENNIFER ENME02/05/16Paid136661

RESTITUTION 1208147  25.00

 25.00

Kohls02/05/16Paid136662

RESTITUTION 1212445  80.00

 80.00

Albertson's, Incorporated02/05/16Paid136663

RESTITUTION 1313332  135.00

 135.00

Ingram Library Services02/05/16Paid136664

ADULT NONFICTION  38.03

ADULT NONFICTION  105.21

JR BOOKS  7.33

JR BOOKS  23.14

 173.71

Riley,Laura C02/05/16Paid136665

Peer Support Conf-Per Diem  142.60

 142.60

Bevers, Linda02/05/16Paid136666

Peer Support Conf-Per Diem  142.60

 142.60

OHALLORAN,STEVEN02/12/16Paid136667

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-13209  1,631.50

 1,631.50

Attachment A, Page 9 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

10Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

CONFEDERATED TRIBES OF COOS BAY02/12/16Paid136668

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-31602  100.00

 100.00

DMAP-REFUND02/12/16Paid136669

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-38515  82.56

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-12048  84.74

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-18778  36.69

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-18779  36.69

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-19156  21.38

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-20819  37.50

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-32744  84.74

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-46407  83.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-50066  83.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-55554  31.68

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-55917  34.40

 618.22

Medicare Refunds - OR02/12/16Paid136670

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-33652  562.70

 562.70

KIESLER,CARLA02/12/16Paid136671

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-43633  100.00

 100.00

Wordcrafters02/12/16Paid136672

WRITING WORKSHOP 2/22/16  50.00

 50.00

Cure, Kristen02/12/16Paid136673

REFRESHMENTS 1/25/16  6.70

 6.70

Neuharth,Mary F.02/12/16Paid136674

ENGRAVED PLATE & FLOWERS REIMB  62.50

 62.50

Secretary of State02/12/16Paid136675

CAFR-MWMC 2015  350.00

CITY CAFR 2014  400.00

Regional Fiber-CAFR 2015  40.00

SEDA CAFR 2015  200.00

 990.00

BTTS Construction, LLC02/12/16Paid136676

CAULKED BEDRM WINDOW/STRIPPING  60.00

SEALED TUB/REMOVE WETPAD & REP  133.00

 193.00

OCLC, Inc.02/12/16Paid136677

CATALOGING/RESOURCE SHARING  1,266.82

 1,266.82

Central Print & Reprographics02/12/16Paid136678

(500) Officer Ride Along Forms  98.00

PLOTTER INK-NW QUAD  518.15

 616.15

Les Schwab Tire Center, Inc.02/12/16Paid136679

596/M4: Replace LRO Tire  440.45

 440.45

Attachment A, Page 10 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

11Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

SupplyWorks02/12/16Paid136680

Jail Paper Products  582.92

 582.92

City of Eugene02/12/16Paid136681

Admin/Training Exp-Nov 2015  639.02

 639.02

City County Insurance Services02/12/16Paid136682

2013-2014 Claims Expense  4,516.78

2014-2015 Claim Expenses  46,030.88

2014-2015 Claims Expense  64,997.81

2015-2016 Claims Expense  1,387.99

2015-2016 Claims Expense  11,971.19

 128,904.65

Sirennet.com02/12/16Paid136683

AMBER 500 SERIES OPTIC LENS  23.08

 23.08

A+ Express Towing, Inc.02/12/16Paid136684

SPD Cruiser Tow-2012 Chevy  100.00

 100.00

Aramark Uniform Services, Inc.02/12/16Paid136685

LAUNDRY SERVICE & SUPPLIES  59.40

MAINT LUNCHRM MATS CLEANED  65.95

 125.35

Willamalane02/12/16Paid136686

SDC FOR DECEMBER 2015  10,488.52

 10,488.52

Blue Heron Farms02/12/16Paid136687

1 OCT GLORY & 4 RED ROCKET  760.00

 760.00

Baker's Shoes and Clothing02/12/16Paid136688

UNIFORMS  20.00

 20.00

Dell02/12/16Paid136689

425 Windows/Office Renewals  63,499.25

 63,499.25

iSecure Information Security02/12/16Paid136690

FLS Shredding-1/19/16  33.00

 33.00

Auto Additions02/12/16Paid136691

2015 Ford Transport Van Insert  19,195.11

 19,195.11

OfficeMax North America Inc02/12/16Paid136692

Print Carterage/Advil  168.33

Wipes  9.82

 178.15

League Of Oregon Cities02/12/16Paid136693

Comprehensive Plan Mgr Posting  20.00

 20.00

Day Wireless Systems02/12/16Paid136694

Quarry Hill Rent-Feb 2016  496.43

Quarry Hill: Jan-March Rent  3,029.31

 3,525.74

Attachment A, Page 11 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

12Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Wordcrafters02/12/16Paid136695

WRITING WORKSHOP 1/25/16  50.00

 50.00

SirsiDynix Corporation02/12/16Paid136696

SIRSI ANNUAL SUBSCRIP FY16  21,875.00

 21,875.00

Estes, Matthew Franklin02/12/16Paid136697

BAIL REFUND 1408709  1,915.00

 1,915.00

Brown, Douglas Arron02/12/16Paid136698

BAIL REFUND 1408726  1,000.00

 1,000.00

Glander, Allen Jeffrey02/12/16Paid136699

BAIL REFUND 1410057  1,985.00

 1,985.00

Chapman, Robin Lee02/12/16Paid136700

BAIL REFUND 1600260  1,500.00

 1,500.00

Springfield Public Schools02/12/16Paid136701

3 FIELD TRIPS - CWU  118.23

500 Business Cards-Records  49.01

BOOK SALE SIGN  40.80

UNLEADED FUEL:  10,001 GALS  13,574.36

 13,782.40

Morrell, John McEachren02/12/16Paid136702

Translation Services: 1/31/16  80.00

 80.00

Lane County Regional Information System02/12/16Paid136703

Dec 2015 RIS Charges  10,703.00

Help Desk Services  2,300.00

 13,003.00

Ben Farrell02/12/16Paid136704

MUSICAL PERF 2/12/16  100.00

 100.00

Ricoh USA,  Inc02/12/16Paid136705

Addt'l Images 10/22/15-1/21/16  39.71

 39.71

FedEx Corporation02/12/16Paid136706

Testing Supplies Shipping  28.45

 28.45

Lane County Finance Operations02/12/16Paid136707

County Bail-Jan 2016 Admin Fee -704.83

County Bail: January 2016  4,698.89

 3,994.06

Law Enforcement Psychological Serv. Inc02/12/16Paid136708

Post-Offer Psy Assess-PD  1,125.00

 1,125.00

Washington State Correctional Industries02/12/16Paid136709

Inmate Meals  1,169.92

 1,169.92

Attachment A, Page 12 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

13Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Springfield Utility Board02/12/16Paid136710

RFF UTILITIES:12/22/15-1/22/16  270.08

SUB BILLING WK 2-FEB  25,703.65

 25,973.73

Kilbourne & Kilbourne02/12/16Paid136711

Years of Service Pins  118.75

 118.75

ID Plus, Inc.02/12/16Paid136712

(2) ID Badges  15.00

 15.00

Costco Wholesale02/12/16Paid136713

STAFF YR BEGINNING CELEBR-CAKE  38.55

 38.55

Howard, Marla02/12/16Paid136714

BAIL REFUND 1510609, 1510610  2,550.00

 2,550.00

Emerald Fruit & Produce, Inc02/12/16Paid136715

(4) Cases Apples  107.00

(4) Cases-Apples  99.00

(6) Cases Apples  160.50

 366.50

Roto Rooter Eugene/Bend Oregon02/12/16Paid136716

157 12TH ST #73-WTR DMG REPRS  1,050.53

5418 A ST-REP WAX TOILET RING  195.00

 1,245.53

Lane Community College02/12/16Paid136717

Envelopes  294.30

 294.30

Armstrong, Patricia02/12/16Paid136718

RESTITUTION  100.00

 100.00

Wal*Mart02/12/16Paid136719

RESTITUTION  14.44

RESTITUTION  50.00

RESTITUTION 1508899  70.00

 134.44

HAKEIM AVONTI PEARSON02/12/16Paid136720

RESTITUTION  94.34

 94.34

EDMS Inc02/12/16Paid136721

JANUARY 2016 PRESORT  3,337.40

 3,337.40

MCMANN RENEE02/12/16Paid136722

RESTITUTION  5.66

 5.66

BURGANS, PENNY ANGELA02/12/16Paid136723

BAIL REFUND  25.00

 25.00

Guillen,Vicky02/12/16Paid136724

Translation Svs 1-7-16  50.00

 50.00

Attachment A, Page 13 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

14Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Oregon Department of Revenue02/12/16Paid136725

Bail Assessment-January 2016  22,570.99

County Bail-Jan 2016 Admin Fee -58.96

Dept of Rev Cnty Bail-Jan 2016  393.08

 22,905.11

Professional Credit Service02/12/16Paid136726

BAIL REF. DOCKET #065148  81.00

BAIL REFTO 1501317 FRM 1510943  70.80

 151.80

JOHN SAYLOR02/12/16Paid136727

BAIL REF. 1510943&1510947  1,403.20

 1,403.20

LITHIA DODGE02/12/16Paid136728

RESTITUTION 1600010  23.00

 23.00

Kocer Crane & Training LLC02/12/16Paid136729

ANNUAL CRANE INSPECTION  580.00

 580.00

Karp, Joy Marie02/12/16Paid136730

RESTITUTION 1410689  50.00

 50.00

STEVEN LOUIS KREMERS02/12/16Paid136731

BAIL REF. - #1511805  1,854.00

 1,854.00

LUCASON, PATRICK LAWRENCE02/12/16Paid136732

RESTITUTION 1206842  168.43

 168.43

JAQUES, ZACHARY BLAIR02/12/16Paid136733

RESTITUTION 1307990  150.00

 150.00

ALEX M. MAGALYUK02/12/16Paid136734

BAIL REF. DOCKET #1508738  263.00

 263.00

HOWARD HU02/12/16Paid136735

BAIL REF #1508738 & 1508739  2,012.00

 2,012.00

RUSSELL, PHYLLIS02/12/16Paid136736

RESTITUTION 1410703  100.00

 100.00

Shellar, Barbara L02/12/16Paid136737

RESTITUTION 1400534  265.00

 265.00

RANDY MCPHERSON02/12/16Paid136738

BAIL REF. - DOCKET #1511422  381.00

 381.00

KNOPSNYDER, NIKKI02/12/16Paid136739

RESTITUTION - DOCKET #1214115  75.00

 75.00

MARKS, CHARLOTTE LYNN02/12/16Paid136740

RESTITUTION 1410714  318.63

 318.63

Attachment A, Page 14 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

15Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Gateway Village Apartments02/12/16Paid136741

RESTITUTION - DOCKET #1408657  100.00

 100.00

Safeway Inc02/12/16Paid136742

RESTITUTION 1410714  21.37

 21.37

Mason, Dodd Eugene02/12/16Paid136743

RESTITUTION - DOCKET #1508544  20.00

 20.00

SEAN CRAIG PHILLIPS02/12/16Paid136744

RESTITUTION - DOCKET #1510542  500.00

 500.00

JOSIAH BENJAMIN GREGG02/12/16Paid136745

RESTITUTION - DOCKET #1509271  60.00

 60.00

Smith,Donald02/12/16Paid136746

RESTITUTION - DOCKET #1305076  50.00

 50.00

SHONNA LYNN HILL02/12/16Paid136747

RESTITUTION - DOCKET #1407838  1,000.00

 1,000.00

CalvoNavarro, Isaul02/12/16Paid136748

BAIL REFUND 1409086  1,915.00

 1,915.00

JAMES DOBBIN02/12/16Paid136749

RESTITUTION - DOCKET 1503202  100.00

 100.00

WRIGHT, DARRELL SINTELL02/12/16Paid136750

RESTITUTION DOCKET #1409677  40.00

 40.00

UMPQUA BANK02/12/16Paid136751

RESTITUTION - DOCKET #1510334  75.00

RESTITUTION - DOCKET #1510334  75.00

 150.00

PATTEN,RANDALL02/19/16Paid136752

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-30528  60.00

 60.00

The ODS Companies02/19/16Paid136753

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-40386  120.59

 120.59

Medicare Refunds - OR02/19/16Paid136754

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-33882  285.00

 285.00

Providence Health Plans02/19/16Paid136755

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-40386  683.34

 683.34

UMR HEALTH INSURANCE02/19/16Paid136756

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-37377  398.67

 398.67

Miyata,Keith L.02/19/16Paid136757

APWA SPRING SCHL MEALS-MIYATA  166.75

 166.75

Attachment A, Page 15 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

16Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Riley,Laura C02/19/16Paid136758

2016 Peer Support Mileage  82.80

 82.80

Mugleston, Tom02/19/16Paid136759

2016 CIS Conf Per Diem  51.50

 51.50

Eric L. Purvis02/19/16Paid136760

Forfeiture-Case# 14-5468  500.00

 500.00

Naiemah I. Gayle02/19/16Paid136761

Forfeiture-Case# 14-5468  441.00

 441.00

Milliman, Inc.02/19/16Paid136762

Benefits Calculations  1,500.00

Edits-CAFR Disclosures  447.10

 1,947.10

City of Eugene02/19/16Paid136763

PUMP STATIONS COST OCT-DEC 15  73,589.87

Radio Svs/Equip Move-Quarry Hi  1,086.73

 74,676.60

SupplyWorks02/19/16Paid136764

CH:  CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES  491.76

PD-Paper Products (Bathroom)  143.32

 635.08

Westcoast Precast Inc02/19/16Paid136765

3-2 1/2 A CURB INLETS W/BOLTS  1,200.00

 1,200.00

Aramark Uniform Services, Inc.02/19/16Paid136766

CH: MAT CLEANING SVC  50.45

LAUNDRY SERVICE & SUPPLIES  58.50

MAINT LUNCHRM MATS CLEANED  65.95

 174.90

My-Comm, Inc.02/19/16Paid136767

537/E-14: Replace Headsets/Lab  511.85

C3/R16: Install Com Equip/Beac  2,777.05

Mic/Cable/FireCom Repair  339.22

 3,628.12

Small World Auto Center, Inc.02/19/16Paid136768

1 ACD 78DTPG BATTERY  109.95

VEH.7030; POWER STEERING (RET) -20.14

VEH.7078;  BATTERY - ACD 78PS  193.90

VEH.7078;BATTERY-ACD 78PS-CORE -30.00

 253.71

Office Imaging, Inc.02/19/16Paid136769

Toner: 2 Black and 2 Color  943.22

Toner: Black/Yellow/Cyan  454.51

 1,397.73

OfficeMax North America Inc02/19/16Paid136770

White Address Labels  5.74

 5.74

Motorola Solutions Inc02/19/16Paid136771

Final 50%-Console Upgrade  156,109.50

 156,109.50

Attachment A, Page 16 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

17Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

ID Plus, Inc.02/19/16Paid136772

(2) ID Badges  15.00

 15.00

Lane Council of Governments02/19/16Paid136773

GISCPA: Q3 FY16  16,046.75

Oct-Dec 15: Sungard CAD/RMS  4,641.70

PAN: Oct-Dec 2015  789.90

SPR Telecom-Q1&Q2FY16  7,085.50

 28,563.85

Schmunks' Tire Center02/19/16Paid136774

VEH.7034;8 MT/DISMT & FLAT REP  8.00

 8.00

Owen Equipment Company02/19/16Paid136775

12 - TERMINAL BX  49.81

2015 ELGIN BROOM BEAR  211,992.00

2015 ELGIN BROOM BEAR  211,992.00

 424,033.81

Springfield Utility Board02/19/16Paid136776

307 S 5TH ST 12/28/15-1/27/16  2,015.20

BK# 113 12/28/15-1/27/16  109.72

BK# 155 12/28/15-1/27/16  59.63

BK#145 12/28/15-1/27/16  209.94

BOILER RM 12/28/15-1/27/16  212.53

CAR HIT POLE; 42ND ST & JASPER  1,228.13

DEPOT 12/28/15-1/27/16  397.33

OFF COMPLEX 12/28/15-1/27/16  2,216.64

RESTITUTION - #1407694  1,636.29

STREET LIGHT ELECTRIC  14,496.99

STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE  8,837.58

SUB BILLING WK 3-FEB  2,200.25

 33,620.23

Travel Lane County02/19/16Paid136777

SEDA Membership Renewal  165.00

 165.00

Wal*Mart02/19/16Paid136778

RESTITUTION - DOCKET #1407463  35.00

 35.00

Western Systems Inc02/19/16Paid136779

CONTROL CAB/AUDIBLE/LIGHTBAR  4,437.03

 4,437.03

Professional Credit Service02/19/16Paid136780

BAIL REF. #1507693 FOR 1507701  40.00

BAIL REFUND 1404503  40.00

BAIL REFUND 1507698  850.00

BAIL REFUND 1507941  150.00

BIAL REFUND  128.00

Collection Fees 2-1-16  1,904.01

Collection Fees 2/8/16  1,888.17

 5,000.18

Getchell, Van Verlin02/19/16Paid136781

RESTITUTION 1502755  50.00

 50.00

Attachment A, Page 17 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

18Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

PLYMELL, ALICE ATTNY AT LAW02/19/16Paid136782

BAIL REFUND 1511169  300.00

 300.00

BROWN, JOSHUA G02/19/16Paid136783

BAIL REFUND 1600350  750.00

 750.00

Safeway Inc02/19/16Paid136784

RESTITUTION - DOCKET #1509579  45.00

 45.00

MARY C. YANDELL02/19/16Paid136785

BAIL REFUND - DOCKET #1511791  539.00

 539.00

CALEB RANDALL YANDELL02/19/16Paid136786

BAIL REFUND - DOCKET #1510742  1,050.00

 1,050.00

Randal, Keith Brian02/19/16Paid136787

BAIL REFUND 1506922  1,500.00

 1,500.00

DEREK THOMAS HARRIS02/19/16Paid136788

BAIL REFUND - DOCKET #1510413  160.00

 160.00

CDW Government, Inc.02/19/16Paid136789

Neubrain Software Server  14,101.15

 14,101.15

Ricoh USA,  Inc02/19/16Paid136790

ADDITIONAL IMAGES  1,214.14

Addt'l Images 1/1-1/31  5.45

Addt'l Images 1/1-1/31  47.28

Addt'l Images 1/6-2/5  33.22

 1,300.09

FULLER, PEGGYANN02/19/16Paid136791

BOND REFUND 1600814  260.00

 260.00

Pape' Machinery02/19/16Paid136792

VEH.7053;  FUEL FILTER & ELEM  216.63

VEH.7053;  SERVICE  290.00

 506.63

TAYLOR III, WILLIAM EDWARD02/19/16Paid136793

BAIL REFUND 1510231 & 1510230  486.00

 486.00

MCBRAYER, BRENDA02/19/16Paid136794

BAIL REFUND 1510325  176.00

 176.00

Masters, Jesse Edward02/19/16Paid136795

BAIL REFUND 1500372  1,010.00

 1,010.00

CarrilloBocanegra, Juan Jose02/19/16Paid136796

BAIL REFUND 1409390  415.00

 415.00

GuzmanCortez, Abraham02/19/16Paid136797

BAIL REFUND 1406289  120.00

 120.00

Attachment A, Page 18 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

19Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

ROBLEROGAMBOA, ABIMAEL NOLBERTO02/19/16Paid136798

BAIL REFUND 1407663  1,184.00

 1,184.00

Department of Motor Vehicles02/19/16Paid136799

Court Ordered Prints  6.00

 6.00

Department of Motor Vehicles02/19/16Paid136800

Court Ordered Prints  11.50

 11.50

Lane Co. Health & Human Services02/19/16Paid136801

REIMB FOR COMM DEV BLOCK GRANT  4,093.12

REIMB FOR COMM DEV BLOCK GRANT  4,455.50

 8,548.62

FedEx Corporation02/19/16Paid136802

Shipping/Recruitment & Testing  24.30

 24.30

Costco Wholesale02/19/16Paid136803

Borer Training Refreshments  167.48

 167.48

United Parcel Service02/19/16Paid136804

Monthly Svs Charge: 1/9-2/6  125.00

 125.00

RHODEN, CRAIG ALAN02/19/16Paid136805

BAIL REFUND 1511760  150.00

 150.00

SUN, YIXIANG02/19/16Paid136806

BAIL REFUND 1600699  260.00

 260.00

ETS CORPORATION02/19/16Paid136807

Jan 2016 FANF Fee  8.27

Jan 2016 Merchant Fees  103.97

Jan 2016 Merchant Fees  849.43

Jan 2016-FANF Fee  8.73

 970.40

Oregon State Ambulance Association02/19/16Paid136808

Jan-March 2016 Dues-Evanoff  630.00

 630.00

Oregon Municipal Judges Association02/19/16Paid136809

2016 Annual Dues-J Strickland  100.00

2016 Annual Dues-John Kim  100.00

2016 Dues-P Williams  100.00

 300.00

Morrell, John McEachren02/19/16Paid136810

Translation Services 2/15/16  120.00

 120.00

Standard Insurance Company02/17/16Paid136811

PRE-RTMT Jan 2016  766.07

 766.07

Standard Insurance Company02/17/16Paid136812

Life & AD/D & STD  &LTD-Feb 16  25,797.21

 25,797.21

Attachment A, Page 19 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

20Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Standard Insurance Company02/17/16Paid136813

Sup. Life & AD/D-Feb 2016  4,637.00

 4,637.00

Union Security Insurance Company02/17/16Paid136814

Mandatory Life-Feb 2016  118.91

 118.91

Chapter 13 Trustee02/17/16Paid136815

Garnishment w/h 2/12/16  365.08

 365.08

Professional Credit Service02/17/16Paid136816

Garnishment w/h 2/12/16  230.63

 230.63

Valley Credit Service, Inc02/17/16Paid136817

Garnishment w/h 2/12/16  483.49

 483.49

City of Oakridge02/18/16Paid136818

AMBULANCE REVENUE - FEB 2016  12,514.13

 12,514.13

Western Lane Ambulance District02/18/16Paid136819

AMBULANCE REVENUE - FEB 2016  12,553.72

 12,553.72

United Healthcare-Refunds02/26/16Paid136820

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-51875  1,215.53

 1,215.53

United Healthcare-Refunds02/26/16Paid136821

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-42891  225.93

 225.93

HealthNet Medicare Advantage02/26/16Paid136822

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-35721  1,139.38

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-40030  192.02

 1,331.40

HealthNet-Refund02/26/16Paid136823

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-47358  49.39

 49.39

KAISER PERMANENTE02/26/16Paid136824

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-27015  259.59

 259.59

GEICO INSURANCE02/26/16Paid136825

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-30662  1,040.00

 1,040.00

EASTERN OREGON COMMUNITY CARE02/26/16Paid136826

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-37584  476.87

 476.87

BLUE CROSS FEDERAL02/26/16Paid136827

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-30546  1,655.18

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-41776  1,792.10

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-76  1,743.34

 5,190.62

Blue Cross Blue Shield of Illinois02/26/16Paid136828

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-15508  1,978.88

 1,978.88

Attachment A, Page 20 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

21Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Pacific Source Health Plans02/26/16Paid136829

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-23113  1,425.00

 1,425.00

Pacific Source Health Plans02/26/16Paid136830

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-25797  61.42

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-27445  61.42

 122.84

Pacific Source Health Plans02/26/16Paid136831

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-25787  170.62

 170.62

Aetna-Refunds02/26/16Paid136832

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-34685  1,350.79

 1,350.79

PACIFIC SOURCE MEDICARE02/26/16Paid136833

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-49219  1,233.62

 1,233.62

The ODS Companies02/26/16Paid136834

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-32831  24.15

 24.15

ODS COMMUNITY HEALTH02/26/16Paid136835

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-15102  1,760.83

 1,760.83

Trillium Community Health Plan, Inc.02/26/16Paid136836

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-50832  26.46

 26.46

Providence Health Plans02/26/16Paid136837

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-27038  1,578.17

 1,578.17

ILWU-PMA Welfare Plan - Refunds02/26/16Paid136838

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-38521  50.04

 50.04

Blue Cross Of Oregon02/26/16Paid136839

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-33198  53.02

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:14-40293  1,178.49

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-17919  850.00

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-40327  940.25

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-42964  1,512.40

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-47654  22.08

 4,556.24

DMAP-REFUND02/26/16Paid136840

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-40923  13.35

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-52424  34.40

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-53507  83.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-53952  83.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-54430  83.92

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-56067  31.68

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-56099  84.74

 415.93

COLLINS,CHRISTY02/26/16Paid136841

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:13-25819  19.65

 19.65

Attachment A, Page 21 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

22Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

SANCHEZ-GUTIERREZ,ABRAHAM02/26/16Paid136842

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-43616  150.00

 150.00

Oregon, State of02/26/16Paid136843

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-46657  1,665.69

 1,665.69

Healthcare Management Administrators02/26/16Paid136844

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-45335  1,662.59

 1,662.59

CONFEDERATED TRIBES OF COOS BAY02/26/16Paid136845

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-39805  534.76

REFUND OVERPAYMENT:15-41959  534.76

 1,069.52

Amy Sowa or Amy Jo Ripka02/26/16Paid136846

Council Snacks  7.28

N. Laudati Uber Fare-Wash DC  14.29

N. Laudati Uber Fare-Wash DC  19.27

 40.84

Riley,Laura C02/26/16Paid136847

Reimb-Hotel During Training  539.00

 539.00

Oregon Assoc/Property & Evidence02/26/16Paid136848

OPOA Training Registration  80.00

 80.00

Ryan Stone02/26/16Paid136849

2016 DUII Conference Per Diem  69.00

 69.00

Bohman,Mathew E.02/26/16Paid136850

2016 DUII Conference Per Diem  69.00

 69.00

Gudmundsen, Tina02/26/16Paid136851

2016 CIT Conf-Per Diem  198.95

 198.95

City of Eugene02/26/16Paid136852

Jan 2016 FireMed Revenue  4,600.00

 4,600.00

Keith Miyata or Linda Kurtz02/26/16Paid136853

CAREER FAIR SUPPLIES  13.27

REGISTRATION:  2 NEW SWEEPERS  235.00

 248.27

Tyler Technologies, Inc02/26/16Paid136854

Feb 2016-Web Hosting/Maint  300.00

 300.00

Guard Publishing Company02/26/16Paid136855

INDUSTRIAL WW PRETREAT STAND  132.50

P80083; REQUEST FOR BIDS  157.50

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE  347.50

 637.50

Springfield Public Schools02/26/16Paid136856

250 Bus Cards-Councilor Moore  24.50

CANINES FOR CLN WTR BROCHURE  193.98

 218.48

Attachment A, Page 22 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

23Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Office Imaging, Inc.02/26/16Paid136857

Lanier Toner (Court)  54.96

Repair Fuser Web/Clean Optics  119.00

Repair of Trays 2&3/Cleaned  229.35

Replace Tray/Clean Machine  230.55

 633.86

Stanley Convergent Security02/26/16Paid136858

MONITORING CHGS:3/1-3/31/16  333.35

OPS:  FIRE SYSTEM SERVICE  242.00

OPS:  FIRE SYSTEM SERVICE  242.00

 817.35

SupplyWorks02/26/16Paid136859

CH:  CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES  46.50

PD Paper Products  449.50

 496.00

ESIS, Inc.02/26/16Paid136860

WC Claim Costs  11.55

 11.55

Klarquist,Sparkman,Campbell,02/26/16Paid136861

Spfld Flame Legal Fees  1,455.00

 1,455.00

Gresham Ford02/26/16Paid136862

2016 Red Ford Fusion Sedan  17,890.91

 17,890.91

Feynman Group, Inc02/26/16Paid136863

Website-Online Orders/Repair  250.00

 250.00

Emergency Veterinary Hospital02/26/16Paid136864

Care for stray cat hit by car  83.34

 83.34

E&S Hardware And Supply, Inc.02/26/16Paid136865

JC:  DISPATCH DOOR  23.16

 23.16

Omlid & Swinney Fire Protection &02/26/16Paid136866

After-Hrs Broken Head/Spares  1,001.00

FS4:  SMOKE DETECTOR REPAIR  352.00

 1,353.00

The Indoor Garden02/26/16Paid136867

JC-February 2016 Plant Care  65.00

 65.00

State of Oregon02/26/16Paid136868

FIRING RANGE REMED PROJ - DEC  120.65

STORMWATER;  NPDES PERMIT  980.00

 1,100.65

Aramark Uniform Services, Inc.02/26/16Paid136869

LAUNDRY SERVICE & SUPPLIES  58.50

MAINT LUNCHRM MATS CLEANED  65.95

 124.45

Glimling.com LLC02/26/16Paid136870

PEDESTRIAN REFLECTORS  1,120.00

 1,120.00

Attachment A, Page 23 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

24Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Language Line Services, Inc.02/26/16Paid136871

Over-the-Phone Interpretation  372.45

 372.45

Airgas USA, LLC02/26/16Paid136872

FS16-Oxygen  87.28

FS16-Rent Cyl Med Lg Oxygen  84.63

FS3-Rent Cyl Ind Lg Acetylene  5.81

FS3-Rent Cyl Med Lg Oxygen  46.48

FS4-(4) Oxygen  193.63

FS4-Rent Cyl Ind Small Oxygen  13.61

FS4-Rent Cyl Med Lg Oxygen  17.43

FS5-Oxygen  54.71

FS5-Rent Cyl Ind Lg Acetylene  5.81

FS5-Rent Cyl Ind Small Oxygen  8.64

FS5-Rent Cyl Med Lg Oxygen  52.29

FS5-Rent Cyl Med Xs Oxygen  5.46

 575.78

Ingram Library Services02/26/16Paid136873

ADULT FICTION  4.79

ADULT FICTION  14.68

ADULT FICTION  15.26

ADULT NONFICTION  15.79

ADULT NONFICTION  29.36

ADULT PAPERBACKS  4.79

G & M ADULT FICTION  149.67

JR BOOKS  3.59

JR BOOKS  9.03

JR BOOKS  10.33

JR BOOKS  23.96

JR BOOKS  39.52

JR BOOKS  45.18

 365.95

Ingram Library Services02/26/16Overflow136874

ADULT FICTION  9.60

ADULT NONFICTION  8.97

ADULT NONFICTION  14.97

ADULT NONFICTION  35.60

ADULT NONFICTION  38.99

G & M ADULT FICTION  1,031.42

JR BOOKS  11.96

JR BOOKS  17.49

JR BOOKS  40.93

JR BOOKS  290.59

YA BOOKS  8.40

YA BOOKS  31.05

 1,539.97

Attachment A, Page 24 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

25Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Ingram Library Services02/26/16Overflow136875

ADULT AV  206.17

ADULT FICTION  14.69

ADULT FICTION  16.36

ADULT NONFICTION  14.10

ADULT NONFICTION  192.88

ADULT NONFICTION  481.60

ADULT PAPERBACKS  4.79

JR BOOKS  7.79

JR BOOKS  10.16

JR BOOKS  24.84

JR BOOKS  26.60

JR BOOKS  49.69

YA BOOKS  12.58

 1,062.25

Ingram Library Services02/26/16Overflow136876

ADULT FICTION  312.46

ADULT NONFICTION  13.28

ADULT NONFICTION  14.69

ADULT NONFICTION  16.16

ADULT NONFICTION  19.78

ADULT NONFICTION  23.40

ADULT NONFICTION  35.99

ADULT NONFICTION  43.48

ADULT NONFICTION  64.53

ADULT NONFICTION  240.31

JR BOOKS  9.58

JR BOOKS  14.94

 808.60

Ingram Library Services02/26/16Overflow136877

ADULT FICTION  11.69

ADULT FICTION  12.11

ADULT FICTION  69.60

ADULT FICTION  181.12

ADULT FICTION  1,504.46

ADULT NONFICTION  15.79

ADULT NONFICTION  18.52

ADULT NONFICTION  23.41

ADULT NONFICTION  60.20

ADULT NONFICTION  74.62

ADULT NONFICTION  153.83

JR BOOKS  18.86

JR BOOKS  27.02

 2,171.23

Attachment A, Page 25 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

26Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Ingram Library Services02/26/16Overflow136878

ADULT FICTION  11.40

ADULT FICTION  15.26

ADULT FICTION  73.16

ADULT FICTION  83.66

ADULT FICTION  136.06

ADULT NONFICTION  16.36

JR BOOKS  2.99

JR BOOKS  8.99

JR BOOKS  10.16

JR BOOKS  19.20

JR BOOKS  25.15

JR BOOKS  52.48

 454.87

Ingram Library Services02/26/16Overflow136879

ADULT FICTION  8.99

ADULT FICTION  14.69

ADULT FICTION  55.32

ADULT FICTION  736.83

ADULT NONFICTION  16.19

ADULT NONFICTION  27.00

JR BOOKS  8.99

JR BOOKS  9.03

JR BOOKS  9.60

JR BOOKS  9.60

JR BOOKS  10.16

JR BOOKS  15.81

JR BOOKS  57.57

 979.78

Ingram Library Services02/26/16Overflow136880

ADULT FICTION  7.14

ADULT FICTION  10.20

ADULT FICTION  14.69

ADULT FICTION  26.95

ADULT FICTION  31.79

ADULT FICTION  50.04

ADULT FICTION  61.59

ADULT FICTION  74.16

ADULT FICTION  85.29

ADULT FICTION  98.20

ADULT NONFICTION  65.00

JR BOOKS  3.59

 528.64

Ingram Library Services02/26/16Overflow136881

ADULT FICTION  24.85

ADULT NONFICTION  17.36

ADULT NONFICTION  697.62

 739.83

Department of Motor Vehicles02/26/16Paid136882

RECORD SALES FOR JANUARY  28.00

 28.00

Attachment A, Page 26 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

27Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Ricoh USA,  Inc02/26/16Paid136883

ADDITIONAL IMAGES-1/1-1/31/16  223.58

ASD Addt'l Images 1/10-2/9  55.46

Addt'l Images 1/1-1/31  17.18

 296.22

The Freshwater Trust02/26/16Paid136884

P80080-PROF SVCS JUN-DEC 2015  47,669.69

 47,669.69

TriZetto Provider Solutions02/26/16Paid136885

Feb 2016 PT Statements  2,119.58

 2,119.58

Grove, Mueller & Swank, P.C., Inc.02/26/16Paid136886

Fin Audit-FY15 (Final Billing)  8,000.00

 8,000.00

Costco Wholesale02/26/16Paid136887

SAFETY RECOGNITION PROGRAM  289.23

 289.23

Eugene Springfield Art Project02/26/16Paid136888

ARTS COMM-2ND FRIDAY ARTWALK  1,200.00

 1,200.00

Pegasus Press, Inc02/26/16Paid136889

G & M JR BOOKS  585.50

 585.50

OfficeMax North America Inc02/26/16Paid136890

(2) Scissors  8.52

Toner/ & Labels  181.95

 190.47

The Bank of America02/26/16Paid136891

FS16 Annual Loan Pymt  115,190.00

 115,190.00

Access Information Management02/26/16Paid136892

Court Monthly Shredding  190.32

Jan 2016 Shredding Svs  190.32

Jan 2016-ASD Shredding  66.09

Jan 2016-Pros Shredding  71.16

 517.89

DAVIDSON, SCOTT02/26/16Paid136893

BAIL REFUND  964.00

 964.00

Agnes Stewart Middle School02/26/16Paid136894

RESTITUTION  425.00

 425.00

YOUNG, ANNE02/26/16Paid136895

FM REFUND:YOUNG, A  32.00

 32.00

Storm, Michael Monroe02/26/16Paid136896

BAIL REFUND 1405789  925.00

 925.00

Central Print & Reprographics02/26/16Paid136897

BURN SCANS TO CD-SITE PLANS  115.00

 115.00

Attachment A, Page 27 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

28Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Washington State Correctional Industries02/26/16Paid136898

Inmate Meals  2,707.15

 2,707.15

International Public Management02/26/16Paid136899

Class & Comp Reg-Rich  249.00

Class & Comp Reg-Steffen  249.00

 498.00

Ashland Fire & Rescue02/26/16Paid136900

Jan 2016 Revenue  144.00

 144.00

MERCY FLIGHTS ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE02/26/16Paid136901

Jan 2016 Mercy Flights Revenue  494.00

 494.00

Crabtree Publishing Company02/26/16Paid136902

G & M JR N/F BOOKS  19.95

 19.95

Lane Transit District02/26/16Paid136903

3 MONTH ADULT BUS PASSES  81.00

 81.00

Oregon Association of Water Utilities02/26/16Paid136904

MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 2016-2017  75.00

 75.00

River Roofing, Inc.02/26/16Paid136905

CH:  ROOF REPAIR  290.00

 290.00

Spok02/26/16Paid136906

PAGER SVC 2/8-3/7/16  15.26

 15.26

Lane County Waste Management02/26/16Paid136907

DUMP FEES ENDING 1/31/16  2,300.79

 2,300.79

Comcast02/26/16Paid136908

FS3 HS Internet: 2/24-3/23  114.90

 114.90

THOMAS, JONATHAN02/26/16Paid136909

$2.00 OVER PAYMENT 1600423  2.00

 2.00

ROPER, DARIA02/26/16Paid136910

BAIL REFUND 1601030  287.00

 287.00

Springfield Utility Board02/26/16Paid136911

SUB BILLING WK 4-FEB  1,888.62

 1,888.62

NORDQUIST, KATHLEEN02/26/16Paid136912

BAIL REFUND 1601031, 1601032  924.00

 924.00

Empire Concrete Cutting, Inc.02/26/16Paid136913

68TH & D ST-CURB & GUTTER  375.00

 375.00

Bainbridge Associates, Inc.02/26/16Paid136914

FLOTOTE III SENSOR W/CABLE  1,538.39

 1,538.39

Attachment A, Page 28 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

29Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Barrister's Aide, Incorporated02/26/16Paid136915

Feb 2016 Courier Svs  93.15

 93.15

HERRAN,FERNANDO G02/26/16Paid136916

Translation Svs 2/16/16  80.00

Translation Svs 2/19/16  80.00

 160.00

Joe Pishioneri02/26/16Paid136917

December 2015 Mileage  25.07

January 2016 Mileage  102.89

 127.96

Willamette Valley Awards, Inc.02/04/16Paid994387

NAME PLATE FOR NEIL OBRINGER  8.95

 8.95

Ashpaugh & Sculco, CPAs, PLC02/04/16Paid994388

Prof Srv-LITIGATION ASSIST-NOV  12,470.63

 12,470.63

Keefe Commissary Supply Company02/04/16Paid994389

Indigent Kits  118.00

Inmate Commissary  24.78

Inmate Commissary  87.87

Inmate Commissary  106.15

 336.80

Oslund Design, Inc.02/04/16Paid994390

Gateway Flame/Dec 2015 Svs  1,410.00

Kesey Mural Plaque Production  378.00

 1,788.00

AMEC Environmental & Infrastructure, Inc02/04/16Paid994391

P21052; PROF SVC THRU 12/31/15  91.44

P21052; PROF SVC THRU 12/31/15  1,591.91

P21052; PROF SVC THRU 12/31/15  3,510.34

 5,193.69

911 Supply02/04/16Paid994392

(2) Shirts/Nametags  163.98

 163.98

Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc.02/04/16Paid994393

593/M36: Spot on Chain Wheels  112.01

 112.01

TransFirst Health02/04/16Paid994394

Dec 2015 CC Transaction Fee  5,458.41

Dec 2015-CC Transaction Fees  631.83

 6,090.24

ES & A Sign & Awning Co.02/04/16Paid994395

Vinal Vehicle Graphics  195.00

 195.00

Cascade Health Solutions02/04/16Paid994396

DOT/Drug Screenings  419.00

Dec 2015-Direction EAP Svs  2,173.50

Employee Flu Vaccines  4,774.00

Jail MedExpress/AH Drugscreen  220.00

SPD PrePlacement/Annual Exams  448.50

SPD-MedExpress/Sharps  500.00

 8,535.00

Attachment A, Page 29 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

30Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Coburg Road Quarry, LLC02/04/16Paid994397

3/4" MINUS  131.20

 131.20

Kendall Chevrolet02/04/16Paid994398

VEH.6028;  N-LOCK  64.48

VEH.6043;  SL-N-CONNECTOR  19.49

 83.97

Mora,Linda02/04/16Paid994399

Translation Svs 1/14/16  80.00

Translation Svs-1/25/16  160.00

 240.00

PacificSource Administrators02/04/16Paid994400

HRA Claim Activity-Dec 2015  49,359.15

 49,359.15

Copy Rite Corporation02/04/16Paid994401

Notary Stamp/Hollenbeck  28.15

 28.15

Kendall Ford, Inc.02/04/16Paid994402

BUMPER ASY/FR REINFORC/BRACKET  648.08

VEH.7030;  HOSE ASY  88.00

 736.08

Public Works Supply, Inc02/04/16Paid994403

REPLCMNT ARROW BOARD-VACTOR  943.52

 943.52

Automation Plus02/04/16Paid994404

Excel Level 1 Class  80.00

 80.00

Comfort Flow Heating02/04/16Paid994405

SHOP:  HVAC REPAIR  645.83

SHOP:  HVAC SERVICE  260.24

 906.07

Legacy Health02/04/16Paid994406

Prisoner MD Exp: 12/3&12/15  62.08

 62.08

Moore, Sheri02/04/16Paid994407

Feb 2016 Cell/Internet Reimb  85.00

 85.00

Woodrow, Marilee02/04/16Paid994408

December 2015 Mileage  48.79

Feb 2016 Cell/Internet Reimb  85.00

January 2016 Mileage  80.36

 214.15

Pacific Source Health Plans02/04/16Paid994409

Med Claims Ending 12/31/15  347,905.96

 347,905.96

Kendall Subaru/Suzuki02/04/16Paid994410

VEH.7105;  REAR VIEW MIRROR  235.96

 235.96

Beery Elsner & Hammond, LLP02/04/16Paid994411

RISK MANAGEMENT/LITIGATION-DEC  23,328.09

 23,328.09

Attachment A, Page 30 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

31Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

City of Ashland02/04/16Paid994412

AMBULANCE REVENUE  21,468.85

BAD DEBT RECOVERY  194.75

 21,663.60

City of Cascade Locks02/04/16Paid994413

AMBULANCE REVENUE  3,925.91

 3,925.91

Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue02/04/16Paid994414

AMBULANCE REVENUE  14,380.46

BAD DEBT RECOVERY  294.00

 14,674.46

Crooked River Ranch RFPD02/04/16Paid994415

AMBULANCE REVENUE  6,894.91

BAD DEBT RECOVERY  150.00

 7,044.91

DUFUR AMBULANCE02/04/16Paid994416

AMBULANCE REVENUE  2,713.52

 2,713.52

CITY OF HOOD RIVER02/04/16Paid994417

AMBULANCE REVENUE  37,756.75

BAD DEBT RECOVERY  308.31

 38,065.06

City of La Grande Ambulance02/04/16Paid994418

AMBULANCE REVENUE  29,732.96

 29,732.96

LANE FIRE AUTHORITY02/04/16Paid994419

AMBULANCE REVENUE  140,768.79

BAD DEBT RECOVERY  1,097.64

 141,866.43

Mid-Columbia Fire and Rescue02/04/16Paid994420

AMBULANCE REVENUE  2,000.00

 2,000.00

CITY OF NEWBERG02/04/16Paid994421

AMBULANCE REVENUE  103,934.63

BAD DEBT RECOVERY  2,461.83

 106,396.46

North Douglas County Fire & EMS02/04/16Paid994422

AMBULANCE REVENUE  11,149.97

 11,149.97

Polk County Fire District No. 102/04/16Paid994423

AMBULANCE REVENUE  53,636.16

BAD DEBT RECOVERY  804.28

 54,440.44

SHERMAN COUNTY AMBULANCE02/04/16Paid994424

AMBULANCE REVENUE  6,182.77

BAD DEBT RECOVERY  75.00

 6,257.77

Sunriver Service District02/04/16Paid994425

AMBULANCE REVENUE  8,511.65

 8,511.65

Umatilla Tribal Fire & Ambulance02/04/16Paid994426

AMBULANCE REVENUE  11,197.52

 11,197.52

Attachment A, Page 31 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

32Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

SO. WASCO CO. AMBULANCE SERV INC02/04/16Paid994427

AMBULANCE REVENUE  1,419.71

 1,419.71

Antone, Brian J02/04/16Paid994428

2016 IPTM Mileage  79.92

 79.92

Wehrman, Jacob D02/11/16Paid994429

Spirit of Springfield Video  1,497.95

 1,497.95

Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc.02/11/16Paid994430

536/E-5: Buckle&Seatbelt  793.26

536/E-5: King pins/Bulbs/Ties  3,695.40

536/E-5: PM Service  1,110.45

593/M36: PM Service  635.59

 6,234.70

Delta Sand & Gravel, Inc.02/11/16Paid994431

DIRT/ROCK  14.70

 14.70

Jessica Gee02/11/16Paid994432

STRETCHING PROGRAM:  5 HOURS  375.00

 375.00

911 Supply02/11/16Paid994433

(2) Pair of Trousers  169.98

 169.98

Coburg Road Quarry, LLC02/11/16Paid994434

1-1/2" MINUS  66.60

1-1/2" MINUS  904.90

 971.50

Holiday Laundromat, LLC02/11/16Paid994435

OPS & CH LAUNDRY SVC 12/2015  875.25

 875.25

Enviro-Clean Equipment, Inc.02/11/16Paid994436

FLAP SET - STANDARD HEAD  402.52

T HANDLE LATCH WITH LOCK  75.52

 478.04

McKenzie Roofing & Gutter, Inc.02/11/16Paid994437

BK:  ROOF  24,845.00

 24,845.00

Murray, Smith & Associates Inc02/11/16Paid994438

P21080;  ENGNRNG THRU 12/31/15  2,308.00

 2,308.00

L. R. Brabham, Inc.02/11/16Paid994439

MODIFY LIGHTING ON FRANKLIN  6,040.00

 6,040.00

HRA VEBA Trust02/11/16Paid994440

Feb 2016 VEBA/Retiree  260.68

Feb 2016 VEBA/Retiree  5,520.19

 5,780.87

Simplex Grinnell LP02/11/16Paid994441

Alarm/Detection & Parts  1,800.00

 1,800.00

Attachment A, Page 32 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

33Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Emerald People's Utility District02/11/16Paid994442

STREET LIGHT ELECTRIC  211.60

 211.60

Kendall Ford, Inc.02/11/16Paid994443

RETURN CK4Z 17757 AA -75.00

VEH.6053;  DEFLECTOR ASY  193.10

VEH.6053;  MEMBER-SLIDE FL  209.30

 327.40

Metro Planning Inc.02/11/16Paid994444

Feb 2016 MapSpring Hosting  250.00

 250.00

Jerry Brown Co., Inc.02/11/16Paid994445

Cahoots Fuel-1/16-1/31  88.24

Motorcycle Fuel-1/16-1/31  54.72

 142.96

Nation's Mini Mix, Inc.02/11/16Paid994446

.50 YARDS - P.S.I. 3500  142.00

3/4 YARDS - P.S.I. 3500  172.00

 314.00

NW Natural02/11/16Paid994447

CH GENERATOR; 12/29-1/29/16  23.06

FLEET SHOP;  12/31-2/1/16  305.56

FS16 Gas: 12/30/15-2/1/16  970.93

FS3 Gas: 12/30/15-2/1/16  136.39

Gas-FS5 12/29-1/29  690.22

Gas: FS14 12/30/15-2/1/16  327.65

JC Gas: 12/29/15-1/29/16  5,384.58

WR;  12/31/15-2/1/16  50.65

 7,889.04

European Motorcycles of Western Oregon02/11/16Paid994448

Bulb-Motorcycle  3.33

Longlife Bulb-Motorcycle  4.71

 8.04

Cunningham, Laura Marie02/11/16Paid994449

Feb 2016 Uniform Alterations  105.00

 105.00

Sierra Springs02/11/16Paid994450

WATER SERVICE - TRAFFIC  37.20

 37.20

Mora,Linda02/11/16Paid994451

Translation Services 2/4/16  80.00

 80.00

Pacific Source Health Plans02/11/16Paid994452

Med Admin Fee Feb 2016  71,752.66

Med Claims Ending 1/15/16  172,901.17

Med Claims Ending 1/31/16  243,218.09

 487,871.92

MODA02/11/16Paid994453

Dent Admin Fee January 2016  2,916.16

Dental Claims Paid-Jan 2016  58,895.65

 61,811.81

Attachment A, Page 33 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

34Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Ron Tonkin Dodge02/11/16Paid994454

2016 Dodge Charger RWD  24,528.00

 24,528.00

C&K Petro Equipment Company02/11/16Paid994455

REPL ON/OFF SWITCH ON PUMP #8  211.50

 211.50

Friends of the Springfield Library02/18/16Paid994456

FSPL SALES  57.75

FSPL SALES  70.50

FSPL SALES  83.00

FSPL SALES  84.75

FSPL SALES  99.00

FSPL SALES  99.75

FSPL SALES  119.50

 614.25

Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc.02/18/16Paid994457

535/E25: Cushion/Light Tower  934.21

537/E-14: PM Service  803.46

593//M36: Door Repair/Coolant  1,266.75

 3,004.42

Keefe Commissary Supply Company02/18/16Paid994458

Inmate Commissary  117.78

Inmate Commissary  129.31

Starter/Admission Kits  150.00

 397.09

Cities Digital02/18/16Paid994459

LF Rio Import Agent/Annnual  1,674.90

 1,674.90

McKenzie By Sew On02/18/16Paid994460

Records Clothing Embroidery  418.00

 418.00

Coburg Road Quarry, LLC02/18/16Paid994461

1-1/2" MINUS  258.60

3/4" MINUS  137.10

 395.70

Kendall Chevrolet02/18/16Paid994462

VEH.6027;  N-LATCH  123.51

VEH.6027; SWITCH & LATCH  123.42

 246.93

Enviro-Clean Equipment, Inc.02/18/16Paid994463

BELT  338.40

 338.40

McKenzie Roofing & Gutter, Inc.02/18/16Paid994464

BK SUITE 140:  ROOF REPAIR  185.00

 185.00

Bullard Smith Jernstedt Wilson PC02/18/16Paid994465

Interest Arbitration-Dec 2015  907.49

 907.49

Attachment A, Page 34 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

35Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

NW Natural02/18/16Paid994466

101 S A ST- 12/29-1/29/16  119.11

220 N 5TH STREET -2/29-1/29/16  604.30

303 S 5TH ST #155 -12/29-1/29  153.33

725 S 57TH STREET -12/30-2/1  96.72

 973.46

Public Works Supply, Inc02/18/16Paid994467

EXTENSIONS FOR ARROW BOARD  177.88

 177.88

Delta Construction Company02/18/16Paid994468

P21052-5 PROGRESS PMT 1/31/16  147,291.51

 147,291.51

Cascade Health Solutions02/18/16Paid994469

Jan 2016 Correctional Clinic  21,218.82

Jan 2016 Wellness Staff Hrs  12,536.67

 33,755.49

Legacy Health02/18/16Paid994470

Inmate Md Care-in custody  188.17

 188.17

Debby Laimon02/18/16Paid994471

SENSORY STORYTIME2/4 & 2/18/16  100.00

 100.00

Advanced Traffic Products, Inc.02/18/16Paid994472

ACH Test Transfer  .01

 0.01

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.02/18/16Paid994473

ACH Test Transfer  .01

 0.01

City of Ashland02/18/16Paid994474

AMBULANCE REVENUE  21,182.63

 21,182.63

Attachment A, Page 35 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

36Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

The Bank of America02/19/16Paid994475

1 ACC 15B Veh. Insp.  2.99PACIFIC TRUCK CENTERS

1 Battery tender mgmt.sys.  145.99Amazon.com

1 SK-7000  58.99SPRINGFIELD AUTO & TRU

1 Year Survey Subscription  228.00SURVEYMONKEY.COM

1 filler cap  6.95ROBERTS SUPPLY CO INC

1 key copy  4.00HEYMANS ENTERPRISES LT

1 pre-pd. yard card  40.00LANE FOREST PRODUC

1 quilted bib overall:W.Long  87.99COASTAL FARM & RANCH E

1/20/16 IES seminar  30.00IES PORTLAND, OREGON

1/20/16 IES seminar (ref.) -30.00IES PORTLAND, OREGON

12 - 12V lead  299.00BATTERIES PLUS # 2

12 pairs gloves  23.76THE MALLORY CO

12 rolls butyl tape  117.00MCKENZIE GLASS

12V lead  121.90BATTERIES PLUS # 2

2 - 12V lead  299.00BATTERIES PLUS # 2

2 - 12V lead  299.00BATTERIES PLUS # 2

2 - 2016 Diaries for WR  38.90OFFICEMAX CT IN#792664

2 - 205/75R15 primewell 40k  149.36SCHMUNKS TIRE CENTER

2 - 4" binders for MWMC  31.22OFFICEMAX CT IN#792744

2 - 4" binders for MWMC  67.00OFFICEMAX CT IN#745414

2 12V and 72 D batteries  355.88BATTERIES PLUS # 2

2 Cublets Cubes  57.90MODULAR ROBOTICS

2 Date Stampers - Ind.Pretreat  152.70OFFICEMAX CT IN#820958

2 Exact fit bla  17.98KNECHT'S Q STREET

2 Lever binders (ret.)  40.68ROBERTS SUPPLY CO INC

2 Retirement Cards  6.98FRED-MEYER #0328

2 Wonder Packs and Batteries  571.85AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

2 cases of 20 minute flares -  270.00BROOKS AUTO PARTS

2 class textbooks  174.65LANE COMMUNITY COLLEGE

2 pre-pd.yard cards  80.00LANE FOREST PRODUC

2 tires:Fuzion Tour 50k  137.46SCHMUNKS TIRE CENTER

2015-12 FM PAYPAL SERVICE  30.00PAYFLOW/PAYPAL

24 pr. gloves  65.28NORWEST SAFETY

24" pushbroom  29.99WILCO SPRINGFIELD-523

3 Samsung Galaxy Tablets  449.97BEST BUY      00006007

3 concrete screws  29.97JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

3 key copies  7.50HEYMANS ENTERPRISES LT

3 key copies (ret.) -7.50HEYMANS ENTERPRISES LT

3 monitor stands for DPW SE fr  65.97AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

32 Watt Bulbs for hallway  107.73JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

4 - 4x2 channel grate  59.96JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

4 Lunches - MWMC Exec. Mtg.  56.65STEELHEAD BREWERY

4 concrete bits  15.96JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

4 keyboards for dispatch  217.44AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

4-50# bags concrete  20.80JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

48"x72" rubber mat  38.00PACIFIC RUBBER AND SUP

6 hard drive for ISB computer  587.40AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

8 padlocks/8 cores  480.12ADVANCED LOCKING SOLUT

8 pleated filters  39.52THERMAL SUPPLY 31

8-Defibrillation pads/6-batter  1,462.00AED SUPERSTORE

96 pr.gloves/1 safety vest  261.69THE MALLORY CO

A&S Storytime & TinkerTech Tra  27.06FRED-MEYER #0328

Attachment A, Page 36 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

37Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

AA batteries for ISB  6.43OFFICE DEPOT #1078

ACT Cameo Management S - Train  675.00ACT Cameo Management S

ADOBE  CREATIVE CLOUD - Purcha  79.98ADOBE  CREATIVE CLOUD

ADOBE  CREATIVE CLOUD - Purcha  119.97ADOBE  CREATIVE CLOUD

ALICE TRAINING INSTITU - Train  595.00ALICE TRAINING INSTITU

AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BI - Credi -4.00AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BI

AMERICAN PLANNING ASSO - Train  735.00AMERICAN PLANNING ASSO

APL  ITUNES.COM/BILL - Program  9.99APL  ITUNES.COM/BILL

ASD Group Switches - IT - NETW  6,723.06CDW GOVERNMENT

ASD:Toilet rpr.parts  67.32FERGUSON ENT# 3004

Adult AV  8.88AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Adult AV  12.92AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Adult AV  22.19Amazon.com

Adult AV  24.99Amazon.com

Adult AV  27.08AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Adult AV  29.48Amazon.com

Adult AV  67.15AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BI

Adult AV  79.05AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Adult AV  152.48AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Adult AV  195.80Amazon.com

Adult AV  235.56Amazon.com

Adult Nonfiction  112.96Amazon.com

Advertising (2015-27)  15.00CRAIGSLIST.ORG

Advertising (2015-28)  15.00CRAIGSLIST.ORG

Advertising (2015-29)  15.00CRAIGSLIST.ORG

Advertising - Jan 14 '16 to Fe  87.44LOOPNET INC

Advertising 1/19/16 to 2/18/20  99.95COSTAR GROUP INC

Airtime for witness - Case #11  41.42TRACFONE     AIRTIME

Airtime for witness on case #1  41.42TRACFONE     AIRTIME

Alphabetic label kit for SMJ  259.99OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Amazon.com -iPad case for Ben  55.52Amazon.com

Applesauce for inmates  20.88WAL-MART #3239

Awards for the State of the Ci  142.00WVAWARDSINC

BK: paint supplies  10.29SHERWIN WILLIAMS #8126

Ballast at man door  110.00ROCKLIN THORNTON

Bamboo stylus solo  19.99BEST BUY      00006007

Bar oil: 2 gals.  25.70ROBERTS SUPPLY CO INC

Bark-o-mulch  6.00LANE FOREST PRODUC

Batteries: D/AAA  36.97JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Batteries:brdg.insp.camera  4.97WM SUPERCENTER #3239

Beds and treats for AC Vehicle  148.93MINI PET MART 12

Black toner for SMJ printer  111.33OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Board OS Licenses - Finance  1,813.38CDW GOVERNMENT

Book Tape  190.91DEMCO INC

Booking fee for J Towery IMCA  7.00EXPEDIA 1125171034092

CAMERA CARD  29.99THE SHUTTERBUG-003

CB: 11 key copies  31.40HEYMANS ENTERPRISES LT

CB: Custodial supplies  34.73SUPPLYWORKS  CORP

CB: lightbulbs  5.14PLATT ELECTRIC 080

CCNT Book - IT - Kenworthy  28.64Amazon.com

CD covers/Sharpie pens for ISB  12.95OFFICE DEPOT #1078

CD-R Recordable media for ISB  49.28OFFICE DEPOT #1078

CD-R/Pens/paperclips  60.28OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Attachment A, Page 37 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

38Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

CINEMARK THEATRES - DPW Custom  160.00CINEMARK THEATRES 235

CIT Membership for Seulement  25.00PAYPAL  CITINTERNAT

CIT membership for T. Gudmunds  25.00PAYPAL  CITINTERNAT

CITY COUNTY INSURANCE - Purcha  125.00CITY COUNTY INSURANCE

CITY OF EUGENE 47-53 - Purchas  2.00CITY OF EUGENE 47-53

CMO/DPW Ext. DVD Burner Newegg  33.99WWW.NEWEGG.COM

COFFEEMAKER - ADMIN  600.00CURTIS RESTAURANT EQUI

COmet/Krazy glue/wipes/neutral  41.22WAL-MART #3239

Cable Ties for Ancillary  27.96JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Cancelled Room -102.00SUNRIVER RESORT LODGE

Car Wash Supplies for Voluntee  13.98KNECHT'S Q STREET

Car Wash Supplies for Voluntee  63.99KNECHT'S Q STREET

Carthart jacket  50.00THE MALLORY CO

Case #112233  23.53FRED-MEYER #0355

Cash Box for Records  26.22AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Catering services for the Stat  600.00THE WASHBURNE CAFE

Cleaning for patrol uniforms  19.20SKOPILS CLEANERS

Coffee Meeting with Commission  2.10STARBUCKS #02976 SPRIN

Coffee for CLT Meeting  29.90STARBUCKS #02976 SPRIN

Compost Container  61.83JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Computer Editing Program  49.99ADOBE  CREATIVE CLOUD

Concrete: 4 bags  20.80JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Conf 2016  425.00PROFESSIONAL LAND S

Correction Tape  21.88WAL-MART #3239

Council Snacks  46.81FRED-MEYER #0328

Crime Scene evidence box seali  35.82AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Criminal forfeitures  577.52SPRINGFIELD TIMES

Custodial supplies  13.38SUPPLYWORKS  CORP

Custodial supplies  201.02SUPPLYWORKS  CORP

Custodial supplies  462.00SUPPLYWORKS  CORP

Custom Frames for Employee Rec  450.00SQ  DUCKO'S CUSTOM FRA

DPW / Ben Gibson / Monitor  438.74CDW GOVERNMENT

DPW / Ben Gibson / PC Purchase  960.73CDW GOVERNMENT

DPW / Ben Gibson iPad  598.60CDW GOVERNMENT

DPW / KKruger / New PC  2,118.64CDW GOVERNMENT

DPW / PVRotz PC Purchase  960.73CDW GOVERNMENT

DPW / Todd Miller / DVI Extens  17.03MONOPRICE COM

DPW Map Room PC  960.73CDW GOVERNMENT

DPW Ops / Map Room Monitor  438.74CDW GOVERNMENT

DPW Ops Main Office PC Purchas  1,515.34CDW GOVERNMENT

DPW Planner Laptop  1,515.34CDW GOVERNMENT

DPW Rm616 Laptop  1,515.34CDW GOVERNMENT

DPW Year Beginning Celeb.  2.39FRED-MEYER #0328

DPW Year Beginning Celeb.  10.00DOLRTREE 1470 00014704

December 2015 Charge  34.25TLO TRANSUNION

Deposit for catering the State  500.00THE WASHBURNE CAFE

Doney Car  6.00THURSTON CAR WASH

Doney car wash  7.00THURSTON CAR WASH

Doney car wash  7.00THURSTON CAR WASH

Drill bit set/Impact chuck  89.97JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Drinking water  10.00ALBERTSONS #570

Drinking water  16.98DARI MART # 38

Dual USB Charger - ISB  6.99ROSS STORES #1835

Attachment A, Page 38 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

39Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Dumpster lock  30.30HEYMANS ENTERPRISES LT

E-Edition 12/29/15-01/28/16  7.96REGISTER GUARD

Earpiece for SWAT  114.44IN  THE EARPHONE CONNE

Electrical supplies  127.68PLATT ELECTRIC 080

Embrodery Hoops for Wind Tunne  8.37MICHAELS STORES 8831

Employee of the Year Plaque- R  103.00WVAWARDSINC

Ergonomic Keyboard  46.59OFFICE DEPOT #1078

FBINAA Renewal Fee  90.00FBI NATIONAL ACADEMY A

FIRE INVESTIGATION SUPPLIES  133.92LOWES #02940

FS16: lightbulbs  21.26PLATT ELECTRIC 080

FS16:lighting rpr/rplcmt.  978.49ROCKLIN THORNTON

FS3: 24 pleated filters  88.80THERMAL SUPPLY 31

FS3: bathroom window rpr.  226.50MCKENZIE GLASS

FS4: 4" vent hood  12.97JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

FS5: Torsion spring  150.00OVERHEAD DOOR CO - EUG

Face tissue/urine removal/dish  24.76WM SUPERCENTER #3239

Facebook ad for Christmas Para  16.20FACEBOOK T2KES8JJC2

Fibre Channel Switch - IT - NE  5,822.39CDW GOVERNMENT

Fire Switch Optics - IT - NETW  240.21CDW GOVERNMENT

Fire Switch Optics - IT - NETW  400.35CDW GOVERNMENT

Flag holder for Lt. Rappe' Off  47.95AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Food for Training/Awards  234.90FRED-MEYER #0328

Food for training/awards  29.58FRED-MEYER #0328

Food for training/awards  57.76WAL-MART #2538

Fraud  11.98BOUDIN 470 ALMADEN

Fraud  100.00RED MANGO YOGURT & SMO

Fraud  100.00RED MANGO YOGURT & SMO

Fraud  107.22VICTORIA'S SECRET #118

Fraud  109.39VICTORIA'S SECRET #118

Fraud  117.62VICTORIA'S SECRET #118

Fraud  135.66VICTORIA'S SECRET #118

Fraud  143.10EXPRESS#0502

Fraud  143.99SEPHORA 116

Fraud  150.00SEPHORA 116

Fraud  163.91EXPRESS#0502

Fraud  170.59EXPRESS#0502

Fraud  172.79EXPRESS#0502

Fraud  194.68EXPRESS#0502

Fraud  200.00VICTORIA'S SECRET #118

Fraud  200.00VICTORIA'S SECRET #118

Fraud  268.98JCPENNEY 1923

Fraud  326.34ROSS STORES #154

Fraud Credit -170.59CLAIM ADJ/EXPRESS#0502

Fraud Credit -143.10CLAIM ADJ/EXPRESS#0502

Fraud Credit -100.00CLAIM ADJ/RED MANGO YOGUR

Fraud credit -326.34CLAIM ADJ/ROSS STORES #15

Fraud credit -200.00CLAIM ADJ/VICTORIA'S SECR

Fraud credit -200.00CLAIM ADJ/VICTORIA'S SECR

Fraud credit -194.68CLAIM ADJ/EXPRESS#0502

Fraud credit -172.79CLAIM ADJ/EXPRESS#0502

Fraud credit -163.91CLAIM ADJ/EXPRESS#0502

Fraud credit -150.00CLAIM ADJ/SEPHORA 116

Fraud credit -143.99CLAIM ADJ/SEPHORA 116

Attachment A, Page 39 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

40Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Fraud credit -135.66CLAIM ADJ/VICTORIA'S SECR

Fraud credit -117.62CLAIM ADJ/VICTORIA'S SECR

Fraud credit -109.39CLAIM ADJ/VICTORIA'S SECR

Fraud credit -107.22CLAIM ADJ/VICTORIA'S SECR

Fraud credit -100.00CLAIM ADJ/RED MANGO YOGUR

Fraud credit -11.98CLAIM ADJ/BOUDIN 470 ALMA

Fuel for witness-Saint Helens  25.00SHELL OIL 574415452QPS

Fuel pump mech.  21.78KNECHT'S SPRINGFIELD

Fuel pump mech. (ret.) -18.99KNECHT'S SPRINGFIELD

GIS / CAD Workstation  4,235.87CDW GOVERNMENT

Galaxy Tab Cases &USB Adapters  51.98AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

General Office Supplies  94.04STAPLES DIRECT

GoMeeting Monthly Renewal - Ja  69.00GOTOCITRIX.COM

Gotomeeting Monthly Renewal -  69.00GOTOCITRIX.COM

GregP./MistyS:Class regist.  78.00EWING IRRIGATION PRD#1

Group Switches Fire Stations -  9,875.61CDW GOVERNMENT

Gunvault - For motor team's de  153.19AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Guy wire  291.38PLATT ELECTRIC 080

HEADSET BATTERY  15.99BATTERIES PLUS # 2

Hammer, etc.  37.78JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Hanging File Holders-3 pk  14.07OFFICEMAX CT IN#785180

Hardware  30.23JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Hardware  104.61EUGENE FASTENER & SUPP

Hemlock board/drill bit/sink r  40.63THE HOME DEPOT 4003

Hood for raincoat  16.99COASTAL FARM & RANCH E

Hotel Deposit for SRO Training  208.26DISNEY RESORT-DISNE

Hotel in Salem for case #11223  130.90THE GRAND HOTEL SALEM

IACP Membership for Chief Done  150.00IACP

IMSA memb.  75.00INTERNATIONAL MUNICIPA

IMSA memb.:S.Scott  85.00INTERNATIONAL MUNICIPA

INK2GO - SOFTWARE  19.90PAYPAL  EYEPOWER

INT'L CODE COUNCIL INC - Renew  90.00INT'L CODE COUNCIL INC

INVESTIGATIONS CAMERAS  877.95THE SHUTTERBUG-003

ISB Computer Forensic - Barrac  104.99BEST BUY      00006007

IT Dymo Labels  101.09WWW.NEWEGG.COM

ITE memb: B.Barnett  304.28INST OF TRANSP ENG

Instructor Kit for first aid t  64.60RED CROSS STORE

Interior spare tire mount/Lock  180.00CASCADE TRUCK BODY

Interview Committee Lunches  57.50TERESES PLACE

Inv # 487282-00 -Sprayer hook/  63.50CURTIS RESTAURANT EQUI

Inv #12226-2013 BMW-brake pads  720.60POWER SPORT DYNAMIC IN

Inv #38760 - Hats fro K9 fund  364.80SATIN STITCH INC

Inv#000410246 - Disposable Raz  248.36BOB BARKER COMPANY INC

Inv#12227-Rear brake rotors an  542.80POWER SPORT DYNAMIC IN

J Tamulonis Registration for C  60.00SPRINGFIELD AREA CHAMB

JC: 36yds tape  19.50MC PLASTICS INC

JC: AA batteries/supplies  37.92JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

JC: Lightbulbs (ret.) -24.22PLATT ELECTRIC 080

JC: Nitrile gloves/tape  13.91JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

JC: install new ballasts  162.50ROCKLIN THORNTON

JC:Anchor/recip.torch/glue  49.97JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Jail: light switches  202.91IMPERIAL MANUFACTURING

Jail: repair parts  52.23FERGUSON ENT# 3004

Attachment A, Page 40 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

41Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Jeff Towery IMCA Annual Member  1,058.00ICMA ONLINE  PURCHASES

KKrueger Monitor  179.45CDW GOVERNMENT

Keyboards for records  73.45AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Kleenex for SMJ  59.85OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Knee Boot - Water Resources  115.00DANNER-LACROSSE

L3 Switch Stack Cables - IT -  130.00CDW GOVERNMENT

LCOG Dinner  140.00LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERN

LERA Seminar  25.00PAYPAL  OREGONLERAC

LUCC lunch: 3 staff  35.94SIZZLER RESTAURANTS

Labels / Comm Radios / Newegg.  79.98WWW.NEWEGG.COM

Labels for Crime Prevention  26.52WAL-MART #3239

Latino Celebration - Food on 1  60.00LAURA AND DAISYS BAKER

Latino Celebration Pizza plus  269.35ROARING RAPIDS PIZZA

Latino Celebration Supplies -  11.00DOLRTREE 1470 00014704

Layer 3 Switch  3,681.20CDW GOVERNMENT

Layer 3 Switche - IT - NETWORK  4,454.70CDW GOVERNMENT

Legislative Update Meeting on  11.00EB LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

Lens Cleaner for Modular  26.08OFFICEMAX CT IN#784953

Lib Fire Group Swithces - IT -  8,351.58CDW GOVERNMENT

Library:100' phone cable  17.99RADIOSHACK COR00133132

Lidar batteries  23.04BATTERIES PLUS # 2

Lightbulbs  10.44PLATT ELECTRIC 080

Lightbulbs  111.38PLATT ELECTRIC 080

Lightbulbs  118.83PLATT ELECTRIC 080

Lightbulbs  218.54PLATT ELECTRIC 080

Liner for scabbard  89.97SHERRILLTRE

Lodging:IMSA Traf.Sig.trng.  152.80CLACKAMAS INNSUITES

Lodging:IMSA Traf.Sig.trng.  152.80CLACKAMAS INNSUITES

Lodging:IMSA Traf.Sig.trng.  229.20CLACKAMAS INNSUITES

Low Impact Dev. Training  40.00OREGON ENV COUNCIL

Lt. Rappe Printer  239.98BEST BUY      00006007

Lterary Marketplace  404.53INFORMATION TODAY

Lunch - Chamber Gateway Develo  12.00HILTON GARDEN INNS F&B

Lunch - with prospective appli  14.38MEZZA LUNA

Lunch for Case #112233-Out of  14.98DOMINO'S 7208

Lunch for St. Helen's trip Cas  35.00TIGA SUSHI

Lunch for travel on case #1122  38.00MANANITAS MEXICAN FOOD

Lunch in Saint Helens - Case 1  15.50MCDONALD'S F14197

Lunch with R Lewis during depo  21.85THE CANNERY

MAIT training for B.Antone - R  950.00INST. OF POLICE TECH &

MDF Cable Management - IT - NE  223.24CDW GOVERNMENT

MDF Cable Management - IT - NE  444.16CDW GOVERNMENT

MDF UPS - IT - NETWORK REPAIR  1,485.60CDW GOVERNMENT

ME AD Self Server Annual Maint  896.00ZOHO CORPORATION

MWMC Mtg Refreshments  32.63FRED-MEYER #0328

Mag chloride cover  1,015.58WEST COAST METAL BUILD

Magna Tiles  720.00AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Magnifier  7.95OFFICEMAX CT IN#712743

Maintenance ASD Switches - IT  747.00CDW GOVERNMENT

Maintenance Fibre Switches - I  620.94CDW GOVERNMENT

Maintenance Fire Switches - IT  1,097.10CDW GOVERNMENT

Maintenance L3 Switches - IT -  1,180.80CDW GOVERNMENT

Maintenance Lib Fire Switches  927.90CDW GOVERNMENT

Attachment A, Page 41 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

42Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Maintenance Ops Switch - IT -  373.50CDW GOVERNMENT

Maintenance PD Switches - IT -  1,674.90CDW GOVERNMENT

Mayors parking during Eugene S  4.00HILTON EUGENE PARKING

Meeting Snacks - For the Frank  18.00TERESES PLACE

Memb.renewal:B.Barnett  170.00ILLUMINATING ENGINEERI

Membership Access to Court Ele  25.30PACER800-676-6856IR

Membership Renemwal-Oregon Ass  125.00OREGON ASSOCIATION CHI

Membership renewal for the Ame  250.00AMER SOC CIVIL ENGINEE

Micro cleaning kit/wet dry vac  42.98JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Monthly Fee-Bus Lic Processing  20.00AUTHORIZENET

NAME BADGE  5.58OFFICE DEPOT #920

NW Quad Office Supplies  8.37OFFICEMAX CT IN#013892

NW Quad Office Supplies  32.19OFFICEMAX CT IN#000079

NW Quad Office Supplies  57.49OFFICEMAX CT IN#712705

NW Quad Supplies  8.58ALBERTSONS #572

NW Quad Tools-Hammer/plier  15.73FRED-MEYER #0328

Nails and funtak for photo pro  3.64WM SUPERCENTER #3239

Nails and screws  16.27JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Name Badges for Latino Event -  15.98STAPLES       00114538

Name plate  8.95WVAWARDSINC

Nero Burning ROM / Police Reco  49.99CBI CLEVERBRIDGE INC

Nero Burning ROM / Police Reco  49.99CBI CLEVERBRIDGE INC

Network Repair Proj / Cisco Bl  130.00CDW GOVERNMENT

Network Repair Proj / Cisco Sm  207.60CDW GOVERNMENT

Network Repair Proj / Cisco Sm  554.40CDW GOVERNMENT

Network Repair Proj / Cisco Sm  747.00CDW GOVERNMENT

Network Repair Proj / IT / Swi  4,990.05CDW GOVERNMENT

Network Repair Proj / IT / Swi  8,276.56CDW GOVERNMENT

New outlet for CTP  765.07ROCKLIN THORNTON

Ninite Software Updater  95.00NINITE.COM

Notary for Ransom,Ward and Bev  120.00SOS OR COMM REGISTRY

OBOA - Witner Quarterly Meetin  45.00OBOA

OFFICEMAX CT IN#794426 - Offic  11.34OFFICEMAX CT IN#794426

OFFICEMAX CT IN#847520 - Offic  57.78OFFICEMAX CT IN#847520

OPS Trfc: lightbulbs  35.98PLATT ELECTRIC 080

OTC Diag:12 mo.sub.  695.00BOSCH AUTOSVCSOLUTI

OTCDC Salem mtg.-meal  12.50SQ  ALLANN BROS BEANER

Office Supplies  92.21STAPLES       00114538

Office Supplies for DPW SE Qua  71.56OFFICEMAX CT IN#973605

Office supplies  5.59AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Office supplies  7.50AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Office supplies  9.04AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Office supplies  13.30Amazon.com

Office supplies  18.09AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BI

Office supplies  37.65AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Ops Group Switch - IT - NETWOR  3,361.53CDW GOVERNMENT

Oregon Assoc. of Chief's membe  250.00OREGON ASSOCIATION CHI

Oregon League of Cities Land U  150.00PAYPAL  JMARKS

Oregon Solutions Manf Home Par  135.00CAFE MADEIRA

Oregon library Assocation Dues  120.00OREGON LIBRARY ASSOCIA

PARKING FOR CAD MEETING-LIBRAR  2.00CITY OF EUGENE 47-54

PD Group Switches - IT - NETWO  16,628.14CDW GOVERNMENT

PD Switch Optics - IT - NETWOR  86.03CDW GOVERNMENT

Attachment A, Page 42 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

43Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

PD Switch Optics - IT - NETWOR  155.70CDW GOVERNMENT

PD Switch Optics - IT - NETWOR  430.19CDW GOVERNMENT

PICTURE HOOKS  39.64LOWES #02940

PLA Registration for Taylor Wo  475.00AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSN

PNY Turbo USB Flash Drive- Cas  319.30AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BI

PRSA Luncheon  20.00GREATER OR CHAPTER PRS

PVonRotz Monitor  179.45CDW GOVERNMENT

Painting supplies  54.66SHERWIN WILLIAMS #8126

Palstic Sheet for Wind Tunnel  47.50MC PLASTICS INC

Parking - Governor's Transport  4.25CITY OF EUGENE PARKING

Parking - IT - Melick  2.00CITY OF EUGENE 47-53

Parking - IT - Melick  3.00CITY OF EUGENE 47-54

Parking - IT - Melick  3.00CITY OF EUGENE 47-53

Parking - P2P Strategic Meetin  1.50CITY OF EUGENE 47-59

Parking-All Daly Training  6.00CITY OF EUGENE 47-59

Parking-All day training  6.00CITY OF EUGENE 47-59

Patch Cables - IT - NETWORK RE  103.80MONOPRICE COM

Pens for patrol-records  55.18OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Pens/Tape/Envelopes/Pads-FIN  52.41OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Perma Patch  32.0012 MASONS SUPPLY CO

Perma Patch  800.0012 MASONS SUPPLY CO

Personal Use on accident  11.70Amazon.com

Pipe/coupling/slip  5.41JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Pizza for informant case #1122  21.55DOMINO'S 7209

Plaza deck: hardware  92.07JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Plaza deck:stakes/anchors  24.47JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Pliers/wrench/ratchet/AA batte  70.96JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Police / Dispatch Video Extens  21.96MONOPRICE COM

Police Recruitment Testing- NT  500.00NATIONAL TESTING NETWO

Pop lights & Magna Tiles Book  80.39AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Power supply bundle  134.86FINELITE ONLINE

Pretreat Supplies  19.99JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Primer/cement/adapter,etc.  15.70WILCO SPRINGFIELD-523

Prof.Engr.License Renewal  150.00OSBEELS

Program Support (01/26-02/25/2  243.00VOLGISTICS INC

Propane and torch light  38.90JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Public Safety Training Guides  300.40COPY RITE PRINTING

R.Weaver Cell phone training i  742.53UNITED    01624760873024

R2R P&L Center furniture  555.00COMMUNITY PLAYTHINGS

R2R Theme Kit Toys  29.97IKEA HOME SHOPPING

REGISTER GUARD - Monthly Renew  11.96REGISTER GUARD

RSA SecurID Appliance - IT - C  8,370.45CDW GOVERNMENT

Rack PDUs - IT - NETWORK REPAI  248.82CDW GOVERNMENT

Rear tire/install battery for  202.94POWER SPORT DYNAMIC IN

Recruiting Materials  3.97ECONO SALES

Recruitment Advertising (2015-  15.00CRAIGSLIST.ORG

Recruitment Advertising (2015-  25.00DIRECT EMPLOYERS/JOB C

Recruitment Advertising (2015-  108.90REGISTER GUARD

Recruitment Advertising (2015-  149.95PLANETIZEN-URBAN INSIG

Recruitment Advertising (2015-  213.48REGISTER GUARD

Recruitment System Maintenance  525.00IN  PROJECT A, INC.

Recycled index cards 6x9 tray  135.24OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Regional Pretreat Mtg  6.78FRED-MEYER #0328

Attachment A, Page 43 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

44Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Register Guard- Monthly Renewa  11.96REGISTER GUARD

Registration for Conference-T.  350.00PAYPAL  CITINTERNAT

Registration for OAMR Mid Year  155.25PAYPAL  OREGONASSOC

Renewal for Kristi Kruegers me  304.28INST OF TRANSP ENG

Repair of Motor trailer  30.78RAMSEY WAITE

Retirement party suppl.  22.74ALBERTSONS #570

Retirement party supplies  18.57MARKET OF CHOICE #6

Retirement party supplies  74.99MARKET OF CHOICE #6

Returned 2 binders -31.06OFFICEMAX CT IN#797271

Ronald Farley - CHETT  61.870418 - MOTEL 6

Rotary Lunches for Rob Everett  72.50HOLIDAY INN RESTAURANT

Routing Slips-Engineers  25.74PAYPAL  ICESKATINGA

Rplcmt.outer knives  78.90LLOYD`S OF INDIANA INC

Rpr.parts: shut-off valve  18.98JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

SD Cards for Patrol - As per S  330.16AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

SEQ Group Switches - IT - NETW  12,414.84CDW GOVERNMENT

SHOPKO 98     00400986 - New C  15.99SHOPKO 98     00400986

SHRM Membership  190.00SHRM MEMBER600456526

SJC Replacement Racks - IT - N  2,550.72CDW GOVERNMENT

SPD#15-3479 Transport of Teen  18.25SUBWAY        03328200

ST OF OREGON-DCBS - Charged tw -80.00ST OF OREGON-DCBS

ST OF OREGON-DCBS - Inspector  750.00ST OF OREGON-DCBS

ST OF OREGON-DCBS -December 20  12,301.14ST OF OREGON-DCBS

STN14:POWER STRIP/OVEN THERMOM  37.96BI-MART

STN14:SHOWER CURTAIN  14.99BI-MART

STN14:TRAINING MATS  79.98BIG 5 SPORTING GOODS 2

Safety Recogntn.-P7001  24.97JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Safety Recogntn.-P7001  50.00FRED-MEYER #0328

Safety Recogntn.-P7001  90.00CABELAS RETAIL SPRINGF

Safety Recogntn.-P7001  100.00CABELAS RETAIL SPRINGF

Safety Recogntn.-P7001  150.00BI-MART

Safety Vest  24.74SUMMIT SIGN AND SAFETY

Safety glasses: 2 pr.  16.48JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Safety recogntn-P7001  29.99JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Safety recogntn-P7001  40.00BI-MART

Safety recogntn.-P7001  2.99HOBBY-LOBBY #659

Safety recogntn.-P7001  10.00JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Safety recogntn.-P7001  20.00REI 43 EUGENE

Safety recogntn.-P7001  30.00FRED-MEYER #0328

Safety recogntn.-P7001  40.00REI 43 EUGENE

Safety recogntn.-P7001  45.99FRED-MEYER #0328

Safety vest  11.50NORWEST SAFETY

Screwdrvr set/pliers  180.98MAC TOOLS - SPRINGFIEL

Security Tags  225.89VERNON LIBRARY SUPPLIE

Self-Inking Bank Stamp  29.99OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Semi-Annual Renewal Dues-R. Du  110.00SPFLD TWIN RVRS ROTARY

Shipping for United Front Item  59.04THE UPS STORE 2576

Shop: Lightbulbs  12.76PLATT ELECTRIC 080

Shop: Lightbulbs  29.94PLATT ELECTRIC 080

Socket set and pliers  68.98MAC TOOLS - SPRINGFIEL

Sorter for Lt. Rappe desk  15.49OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Stacking Hardware SEQ - IT - N  390.00CDW GOVERNMENT

Stakes for locates  15.50BULLFROG ENTERPRISES

Attachment A, Page 44 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

45Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Stamp for records  37.99OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Storage Bins for TinkerTech  3.94WAL-MART #2538

Storage Bins for TinkleTech  91.31WAL-MART #3239

Storage Boxes for TinkleTech K  24.14WAL-MART #2538

Storage files for Lt. Rappe/Or  36.04OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Stretchg.incentives:tickets  12.88WAL-MART #3239

SunGard Freedom meeting-parkin  2.50CITY OF EUGENE 47-54

Supervisor Training  179.00SKILLPATH NATIONAL

Supplies and decor for State o  10.17HOBBY-LOBBY #659

Supply Order Credit -10.00OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Surveyor Conf 2016  425.00PROFESSIONAL LAND S

Switch Maintenance SEQ - IT -  1,120.50CDW GOVERNMENT

Switch Optics Fire - IT - NETW  306.90CDW GOVERNMENT

Switch Optics and Cables PD -  285.70CDW GOVERNMENT

T. Doney subscription  7.96REGISTER GUARD

Table Sponsorship at Chamber A  500.00SPRINGFIELD AREA CHAMB

Tape/Pens/Pads-Court  88.22OFFICE DEPOT #1078

Tee,couplings,sewer pipe  320.48HD FOWLER CO EUGENE

Textbooks  33.34LINN BENTON BOOKSTORE

Ticket for State of the City o  11.00EB STATE OF THE CITY

Tools/Supplies  74.83JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Towel/oven mitt/machine cleane  139.20CURTIS RESTAURANT EQUI

Towels for SMJ  321.97BOB BARKER COMPANY INC

Towery Travel for West Coast I  272.20ALASKA A  02777440240190

Towery lodging for NW Regional  175.81SKAMANIA LODGE

Towerys annual membership Loca  30.00PAYPAL  OREGON ELGL

Towerys seat at Economic Forec  400.00EUGENE CHAMBER OF COMM

Tracfone for Informant/Witness  50.75WALMART.COM

Traffic supplies  54.87OREGON ELECTRONICS LLC

Training for B. Austin- Train  250.00AMERICAN RED CROSS

Training for Motor Team - Bohm  150.00123SIGNUP

Training for Motor Team - Mass  150.00123SIGNUP

Training for T. Gudmundsen  222.60ALASKA A  02777464625342

Training for T. Gundmundsen  250.60UNITED    01677464610441

Training for motor team - Spel  150.00123SIGNUP

Training registration for D.Ha  390.00EB 30TH ANNUAL TRAINI

Transport chain  23.75ROBERTS SUPPLY CO INC

Travel for J Towery IMCA Board  175.60UNITED    01677429394690

Travel for J Towery IMCA Board  248.60DELTA     00677429466140

Trfc. Engr. brkfst  14.28BUDDYS DINER

UPS Rails - IT - Network Repai  283.24CDW GOVERNMENT

UPS shipping for SMJ  3.54USPS 40795204734006049

USB car charger  34.99BEST BUY      00006007

USB for ISB computer  22.37AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

USb/plunger clip/USB connector  21.94OREGON ELECTRONICS LLC

Uniform Cleaning - Patrol  10.80SKOPILS CLEANERS

Uniforms for patrol  998.75INT 911 SUPPLY

United Front Frame for Rep DeF  45.94AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

VMHosts and Storage - IT - NET  57,316.64CDW GOVERNMENT

Vancouver mtg: lunch  11.65ICHI TERIYAKI 27

Veh.6005:thrust alignmt  51.95SPRINGFIELD TIRE F

Veh.6011:thrust alignmt.  51.95SPRINGFIELD TIRE F

Veh.6042:4 tires 245/70 R17  560.00AMERICAS-TIRE-CO ORP-0

Attachment A, Page 45 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

46Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Veh.7013: audio supplies  69.99CRUTCHFIELD.COM

Veh.7030: 2 tires  270.00SCHMUNKS TIRE CENTER

Veh.7034: lubricant  4.59CARQUEST 3340

Veh.7034:4 couplers/4 nipples  107.31MFCP   EUGENE

Veh.7036:brake light switch  38.06BOYCE EQUIPMENT & PART

Veh.7038: 1 ratchet  18.39CARQUEST 3340

Veh.7040:supplies  13.86MYRMO & SONS INC

Veh.7054:Check alternator  32.75ZILKOSKI AUTO ELECTRIC

Veh.7054:tire repair  48.00SCHMUNKS TIRE CENTER

Veh.7065:Hose and fitting  93.82MYRMO & SONS INC

Veh.7065:sensor LCL 5V AC  82.52PACIFIC TRUCK CENTERS

Veh.7065:tubing/o-ring,etc.  61.50PACIFIC RUBBER AND SUP

Veh.7090: binders/chains  406.78ROBERTS SUPPLY CO INC

Veh.7106: car wash  8.00THURSTON CAR WASH

Vet bill for Dago - DelCastill  923.00OREGON VET REFERRAL AS

WELCOA Membership  365.00WELCOA ONLINE

WHITEBOARD/DRY ERASE MARKERS  37.28STAPLES       00114538

WR5:ONBOARD CHARGER  116.99Amazon.com

Wash rack soap  64.95UNITED INDUSTRIAL EQUI

Waterproof notebook  12.99WILCO SPRINGFIELD-523

Webinar at LCC: meal  10.15STARBUCKS #03416 EUGEN

Webinar eNATOA on "Small Cell  45.00NATOA

Welcome sign:Rpr.grnd.flor.  366.53ROCKLIN THORNTON

Wheeled Cart for Wind Tunnel  24.99OFFICE DEPOT #920

White paint  10.04ROBERTS SUPPLY CO INC

Witness Lodging in Salem - Cas  86.90LA QUINTA INNSUITES

Witness lodging in Salem-Case#  86.90LA QUINTA INNSUITES

Wonder Pack and Batteries  287.70AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

Wood and nails  25.94JERRYS HOME-SPRINGFIEL

Work gloves  5.09WILCO SPRINGFIELD-523

Work gloves: 12 pr.  218.30NORWEST SAFETY

Work jacket:brown Carhart  129.86THE MALLORY CO

Workboots:S.Edmonds  291.96Amazon.com

YA AV  13.00AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BI

YA AV  16.99AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BI

YA AV  42.99Amazon.com

YA Books  16.18AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS

YA SRP Books  75.66BOOKOUTLET

YA SRP Books  79.62BOOKOUTLET

YA SRP Books  80.59BOOKOUTLET

YA SRP Books  83.47BOOKOUTLET

YA SRP Books  85.10BOOKOUTLET

YA SRP Books  109.05BOOKOUTLET

Yard debris dump  4.00LANE FOREST PRODUC

batteries for patrol  39.88WAL-MART #3239

e-Edition  7.96REGISTER GUARD

fraud credit -268.98CLAIM ADJ/JCPENNEY 1923

gasoline for case #112233  35.83CHEVRON 0092601

laser Mount and brake pads on  70.95POWER SPORT DYNAMIC IN

mens crew socks for SMJ inmate  91.64WALMART.COM

 257,470.10

Attachment A, Page 46 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

47Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Oil Re-Refining, Co.02/25/16Paid994476

OIL FILTERS/ANTIFREEZE RECYCLE  92.50

 92.50

Jessica Gee02/25/16Paid994477

STRETCHING PROGRAM:  5 HOURS  375.00

 375.00

Garten Services, Inc02/25/16Paid994478

BK:  CUSTODIAL SERVICES  49.08

CB:  CUSTODIAL SERVICES  94.40

Credit-Dec 2015 EMX Landscape -1,681.22

SHOP:  CUSTODIAL SERVICES  1,719.77

 182.03

Comfort Flow Heating02/25/16Paid994479

CB:  HVAC REPAIRS  85.00

CH:  HVAC ISSUE  2,097.00

CH:  HVAC REPAIRS  407.75

FS3:  HVAC REPAIRS  1,882.00

 4,471.75

Coburg Road Quarry, LLC02/25/16Paid994480

1-1/2" MINUS  401.10

3/4" MINUS & 1-1/2" MINUS  198.10

 599.20

Enviro-Clean Equipment, Inc.02/25/16Paid994481

VEH.7066;  INTAKE SEAL  126.07

 126.07

L. R. Brabham, Inc.02/25/16Paid994482

OCO 138:MAIN LIGHT INSTALLATN  599.58

 599.58

Greenhill Humane Society02/25/16Paid994483

Feb 2016 Sheltering Svs  3,416.67

 3,416.67

Schirmer Satre Group02/25/16Paid994484

Review Parking Plan/Concept  2,543.75

 2,543.75

Kendall Chevrolet02/25/16Paid994485

CONNECTOR & HOSE  34.95

 34.95

Lenny Borer02/25/16Paid994486

Comm Skills/Team Build: Feb 16  6,139.46

 6,139.46

Delta Sand & Gravel, Inc.02/25/16Paid994487

STUMPS/DITCHING  45.86

 45.86

Sunset Auto Parts, Inc.02/25/16Paid994488

MISC AUTO PARTS  4,278.74

 4,278.74

McKenzie Defense Consortium LLC02/25/16Paid994489

Jan 2016 Indigent Represent  22,644.58

 22,644.58

Wehrman, Jacob D02/25/16Paid994490

P80089;VIDEO SERIES-JAN 2016  389.09

 389.09

Attachment A, Page 47 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

48Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

R&S Industrial Supplies, Inc.02/25/16Paid994491

HARDWARE  7.56

 7.56

Thorp, Purdy, Jewett,Urness02/25/16Paid994492

MWMC LEGAL SERVICE- JAN 2016  7,593.80

 7,593.80

Neighborhood Economic Development Corp02/25/16Paid994493

Sprout Trees/Xmas Lights  800.00

 800.00

PEACEHEALTH02/25/16Paid994494

Jan 2016 Pharmacy Meds  1,125.58

Jan 2016 Phyxis Charge  200.00

 1,325.58

Republic Parking Northwest Inc02/25/16Paid994495

Jan 2016 Monthly Park Enforce  7,017.85

 7,017.85

Drew Campbell02/25/16Paid994496

CH:  JAN PIGEON TRAP & REMOVL  200.00

 200.00

Cascade Health Solutions02/25/16Paid994497

Jan 2016 SWC Supplies  1,919.58

 1,919.58

MODA02/25/16Paid994498

Dent Admin Fee February 2016  2,902.14

 2,902.14

Speldrich, Tom02/25/16Paid994499

2016 DUII Conference Per Diem  69.00

 69.00

Beery Elsner & Hammond, LLP02/25/16Paid994500

RISK MANAGEMENT/LITIGATION-JAN  13,165.80

 13,165.80

Jerry Brown Co., Inc.02/25/16Paid994501

Cahoots Fuel-2/1-2/15  116.19

Fuel Purchases/FLS: 2/1-2/15  37.35

Motorcycle Fuel-2/1-2/15  106.41

 259.95

Puddle Jumper Towing LLC02/25/16Paid994502

SPD Tow-Case# 16-438  120.00

 120.00

Pacific Source Health Plans02/25/16Paid994503

Med Claims Ending 2/15/16  91,767.30

 91,767.30

LANE FIRE AUTHORITY02/25/16Paid994504

Jan 2016 FireMed Revenue  1,430.00

 1,430.00

Life Flight Network, LLC02/25/16Paid994505

Jan 2016 Life Flight Revenue  2,565.00

 2,565.00

Ensign Unlimited LLC02/25/16Paid994506

FS3:  OHD REPAIRS  187.00

FS5:  OHD REPAIR  254.00

 441.00

Attachment A, Page 48 of 49



Mar/03/2016Run Date

49Page No.

SPRA109-Report ID:

City of Springfield

Run Time 10:04:29 AM
Disbursement for Approvals

For 02/01/2016 Thru 02/29/2016

Check Number Check Date PaymentVendor Name Line Description Pay Status

Nation's Mini Mix, Inc.02/25/16Paid994507

.50 YARDS - P.S.I. 3500  147.00

3/4 YARDS - P.S.I. 3500  171.00

 318.00

Sierra Springs02/25/16Paid994508

WATER SVC:  EXERCISE ROOM  216.94

 216.94

Sunshine Plant Care02/25/16Paid994509

CH:  PLANT SVC: JANUARY 2016  125.00

 125.00

Leahy, Van Vactor, Cox, & Melendy LLP02/25/16Paid994510

Feb 2016 Prosecution Svs  17,846.16

February 2016 Retainer  21,730.64

 39,576.80

SRG Partnership, Inc.02/25/16Paid994511

Glnwd-Conceptual Design Analys  79,237.95

 79,237.95

Grand Total:  3,960,277.22

Attachment A, Page 49 of 49



AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Amy Sowa 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3700 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE:  

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

 
By motion, approval of the attached minutes. 
 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

 
The attached minutes are submitted for Council approval. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Minutes: 

a. February 8, 2016 – Work Session 
b. February 16, 2016 – Work Session 

 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

 
None. 
 
 

 
 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

MONDAY FEBRUARY 8, 2016 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Jesse Maine Meeting Room, 225 Fifth 
Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Monday February 8, 2016 at 5:30 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg 
presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Wylie, Moore, Woodrow and Pishioneri. 
Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City Attorney 
Mary Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
Councilor Ralston was absent (excused). 
 
1. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Strategies. 
 
Erin Fifield, Community Development Analyst, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
The purpose of this annual action plan is to indicate how the City intends to use Federal Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds to fulfill the goals established in the Eugene-Springfield 
Consolidated Plan.  Identifying strategies is one of the first steps to creating the One Year Action Plan.  
 
Each spring, the City Council approves funding allocations for use of CDBG funds for the next fiscal 
year.  The proposed uses of funds are described and submitted to Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) each year in a document called the One-Year Action Plan.  The Action Plan must be submitted 
to HUD by May 15, 2016.  The proposed uses of funding must align with allowed uses of funds and 
with the local community needs and strategic plan identified in the 2015 Eugene-Springfield 
Consolidated Plan. 
 
The City’s CDBG program currently is undergoing transition, and has many pending past projects. 
HUD is concerned that the City is not drawing down funds and completing projects in a timely 
manner. The Council Briefing Memo includes a draft proposal for CDBG funding strategies which 
holds the Council’s current CDBG priorities constant, while providing options which address HUD’s 
concerns.  
 
The Draft Springfield CDBG One Year Action Plan section will be published for public comment in 
March 2016 and the Community Development Advisory Committee (CDAC) will hold a public 
hearing on the Draft.  Following the public hearing, the CDAC will recommend to Council 2016/17 
CDBG funding allocations.  Council’s approval for funding allocations for the CDBG One Year 
Action Plan section is planned for May 2, 2016.  
 
Ms. Fifield said staff reviewed past allocations to find a pattern of how the Council prioritizes. She 
referred to the Council Briefing Memorandum and noted that they believe the City will receive about 
$450,000. Prior year funds to carry over are about $100,000, giving the City a total of $550,000. She 
noted the chart outlining the current programs the City has funded. All of those projects totaled about 
$390,000 which left a balance of $160,000 of unallocated funds. She described the options staff 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 8, 2016 
Page 2 
 
drafted for Council consideration for those funds. Each option has pros and cons associated with them. 
HUD will need to be consulted to determine if these options are feasible. Staff is recommending 
Option 3 to provide more time for the City to decide how to focus those funds. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said there have been prior discussions about the amount that goes into Administrative 
costs. They are working on reducing that amount from the CDBG funds, and taking it from the 
General Fund. Options for doing that would be presented during the budget process. He noted that the 
staffing would remain the same and is appropriate. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri said he was fine with the actual staff costs being captured and paid out of CDBG 
funds as long as they are transparent and accurate. If they can’t show the cost is warranted, he’s not 
supportive. He would like to see where in the General Fund those funds would be taken before he 
could support that. He confirmed the $160,000 was money rolled over, and not lost.  
 
Ms. Fifield said the funds could be used for land or building acquisition or street improvements. Any 
of the projects would be for low-income neighborhoods. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri said that should be identified in the option. 
 
Councilor Woodrow asked if they could have an Option 4 and allocate the funds now. 
 
Ms. Fifield said the first two options are possible ways to allocate those funds. If there is a change in 
the allocation, there is a process through HUD. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said in looking at the past projects, the environmental review was missing. She 
asked for clarification. 
 
Ms. Fifield said the environmental review is a HUD requirement as part of the process. Council 
allocates funds to a project, and before they are to begin the project, the City needs to do an 
environmental review to determine if there is a negative impact to the environment. There are 15-20 
specific questions for this review. If after this review, staff determines there are no negative impacts, 
they can move forward. It was hard to say if those reviews were missed in the past, or if the 
documentation was misfiled. 
 
Councilor Moore said she is interested in the City purchasing land in the future for low-income 
housing. She is not sure putting in sidewalks is the best use of funds. She liked the idea of coming up 
with other projects for the surplus funds. One idea she would like Council to consider is a no-interest 
fund for low-income families for home repairs. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said if they chose Option 3, they could make the allocation in August or later. 
That is his preference so they could take some time to think about how to spend those funds. 
 
Councilor Wylie said she likes Option 3 and looking at other strategies to meet the needs. She is 
alarmed at the amount of staffing costs. Normally it is about 10%, but this is nearly half. You have to 
match the hours people are spending on projects to the cost. She wants the money to go to the actual 
projects. 
 
Councilor Moore said she knows how much time staff time is needed for the paperwork for Federal 
funds, although if we can cut costs, she would be supportive. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 8, 2016 
Page 3 
 
Mayor Lundberg said many Federal programs are not efficient. Congressman Peter DeFazio said he is 
taking on the Flagstone issue and is not happy with HUD. With those rules, we do environmental 
assessments (EAs) all the time, so a huge amount of money goes towards those EAs. Staff time is 
needed to follow-up on those that didn’t get done as well as the projects that aren’t done. SPROUT 
received funds for a sprinkler system that they have not installed yet. There are enough projects out 
there that need work, so it makes sense to keep those funds to give staff the opportunity to take care of 
those issues. She spoke regarding crosswalks and sidewalks. One of the techniques for the M Street 
project was to improve the streets and sidewalks by providing CDBG funds for those that didn’t have 
the funds to pay for their improvement. It makes a difference to how a neighborhood looks and how 
children feel about their neighborhood. She is not opposed to spending funds on those types of 
projects. She is a proponent of holding onto the funds for now. Staff has enough to do with the 
projects that aren’t completed. She would like to give staff time to clean up the books and work on the 
HOME funds.  
 
The rest of the Council was fine holding those funds. 
 
Ms. Fifield said they will come back in April. She will also talk to HUD to see what it means to hold 
back the funds. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said we have had held back funds in the past. 
 
2. Review and Discuss Proposal from Development Advisory Committee to Streamline 

Development Reviews. 
 
Anette Spickard, Development and Public Works Director, and Mary Bridget Smith, City Attorney, 
presented the staff report on this item. She noted that several of the DAC members were in the 
audience. These people had spent substantial amount of their own time to work on this committee. 
 
The DAC was charged by Council to examine the Development Code and make recommendations to 
Council regarding modifications that could enhance the City’s competitiveness for new development 
investment. The DAC has developed two concepts that would streamline the review process. Certain 
policy issues have been identified that require Council discussion and direction to the DAC to help 
shape the final form of their proposals. The policy issues are discussed in further detail in Attachment 
1.  

1) The role of public involvement in development applications 
2) Applicability and competitiveness of development review process 
3) Timing, cost, and coordination of a Development Code amendment to create proposed process 

 
The DAC has two proposed concepts for streamlining the development approval process.  Both 
methods could improve the City’s competitive position in the local market and provide security to 
developers, however there is a significant difference in the timing, cost and applicability of the two 
approaches.  The simplest improvement the DAC recommends expands upon the City’s existing 
ministerial building permit and site plan review procedures by expanding the definition of what 
applications can qualify for the Minimum Development Standards based upon the size of the footprint 
involved. If Council agrees with the approach, staff is prepared to move this recommendation forward 
for implementation. 
 
The second proposal of the DAC is the creation of a new application process in the Development Code 
that would create a “ministerial review” that would require the City to approve development 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 8, 2016 
Page 4 
 
applications that meet all of the criteria contained in a checklist. The City Attorney’s office has 
analyzed this proposal and has highlighted a number of issues that Council needs to be aware of and 
understand the implications of before instructing the City to create this new process in the 
Development Code.  This proposal will require a substantial investment by the City to create the code 
amendments and process through the Planning Commission, Council and through the state for 
approvals. 
 
Ms. Spickard said the City Attorney’s office has evaluated the proposals and prepared a memo 
regarding several issues to be considered as Council moves forward. They would like to discuss the 
policy decisions and process with the Council. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said it would be helpful for staff to walk through the two proposals. There have 
been a lot of great things that have come from the DAC. This is the hardest thing the committee has 
tackled and has risen to the point where Council input is needed regarding policy.  
 
Mayor Lundberg thanked the DAC for their work. This committee started in 2011 so they have put in 
a lot of hours and it means a lot to our growth and our community. 
 
Councilor Moore said she recalls that they had turned over some of the application process and plan 
reviews to the Planning Commission that had formerly come to the City Council. She asked if that 
related to what they would be discussing tonight. 
 
Ms. Spickard said the first proposal is to take the minimum development standards and expand the 
definition of who would qualify to use those processes. A chart with the process is included in the 
agenda packet. The first three have already been simplified. The second proposal is to develop a new 
process called a ministerial review which would be between a simplified review and a regular site plan 
review. That would be a new process and would involve code and process changes which would be 
vetted through the Planning Commission. With the ministerial review, if a commercial development 
that’s already zoned appropriately that does not require a plan amendment, came in with all of the 
documentation that met a specified checklist, it could be approved. The checklist would have to be 
drafted so staff would not have to make any assessment of the items. 
 
City Attorney Mary Bridget Smith said currently a Type II review process would mean that the 
applicant/developer would come in to make an application with their site plan review, notice would be 
given to surrounding property owners with the nature of the development. It would then go to the 
Planning Commission and the City Council, and then the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) if 
needed. Some of the issues with site plan are the application fees and the discretionary standards that 
are used in a Type II application. Those discretionary standards might require an exercise of judgment, 
which provides some flexibility. The DAC is suggesting an idea of having less flexibility, but more 
certainty, which could mean less cost.  It would mean making the standards more straight forward. If it 
was a ministerial process and there was no notice posted or sent to property owners, they would be 
appealed through the Circuit Court. They would not be considered land use decisions. They could still 
have some ministerial standards that are developed for the site plan tract and still do notice, which 
could protect the developers in some situations. A ministerial process is more straightforward, with 
less process and less risk of getting into an appeal situation.  
 
Councilor Wylie asked if there was a waiver process for the ministerial review. 
 
Ms. Smith said part of this was based on the process that occurs at the City of Eugene. Staff can look 
at pulling out a standard that does have some discretion, which is known as ‘adjustment review’.  That 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 8, 2016 
Page 5 
 
could be pulled out as a Type II process with notice, etc. The intake would be different, but we could 
offer the adjustment review or variance for access. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said in looking at the ministerial review, the Council needs to weigh being 
accommodating to the development community because it is good for the community as a whole, with 
the desire for neighboring properties to have the ability to provide input on how it impacts them. He 
noted the example of the cell tower near the Relief Nursery. 
 
Councilor Moore said this could also take less staff time if it is just a checklist. 
 
Mr. Spickard said they would still need to go through the full application and review it. If there is 
something, they could pull it for an adjustment review to go through the full process. There would still 
be staff time in processing the applications. Currently, they have a Development Issues meeting with 
the developer and representatives to go through all of the questions to determine the best way to get 
the application through the process. That meeting would not occur with the ministerial review. There 
would also be no cost to provide the notice to neighbors. 
 
Councilor Moore asked if there was a cost savings for the developer. 
 
Ms. Smith said it is not only the idea of saving themselves from an appeal, but also the certainty to the 
developer and more efficiency. There would be public input if the ministerial review went forward 
because it would include code changes. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said the DAC feels it is important to send public notice, but is more interested 
in looking at the order the work gets done, certainty and time saved. It would be appealing as a 
developer to have a checklist to review to know they had what they needed to move forward. We are a 
community of 60,000, and we don’t have a lot of development. He feels the DAC needs to do some 
more work about where in the City this is the most applicable, and how many actual developments 
would use this process. That would help them determine the time and energy they would spend on 
City resources to move this forward, the legal issues, and weigh those against any benefit. 
Determining where in the City this would be useful, the easiest way to capture a straightforward 
process for as many developments as possible, is the direction he would like to go. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said there will be certain projects that will fall under different parts of this 
process. She asked if it would be five or six years before we could implement something like this due 
to the process. She asked what type of projects this would apply to. 
 
Ms. Spickard said as a reference, in 2014 and 2015 they processed 85 projects through the minimum 
design standard (MDS) minor, major and site plan review. All were done in less than five weeks. Of 
those in site plan review, they identified two of the eight site plan reviews that could have gone 
through the ministerial process. The Swanson Mill was done as a Type I process and staff was able to 
work with them very quickly which gave them certainty in their decision to rebuild in Springfield. 
They try very hard to apply the tools available with the developers.  It is hard to know how many in 
the future would fit into this process. 
 
Councilor Wylie asked how the cost to the developer figured in with the different processes. 
 
Ms. Spickard said they have not yet set up a fee for the ministerial process. Currently, they charge 
about half of what it costs in staff time for planning fees. This would be a separate fee. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 8, 2016 
Page 6 
 
Councilor Wylie asked if the ministerial would be less cost than either the minor or major. 
 
Ms. Spickard said they had not yet talked about that so could not say. 
 
Councilor VanGordon agreed that it would only be a guess at this time. 
 
Councilor Wylie said she would like to know how hard it will be to accomplish. It may be a wonderful 
tool, but if it is going to be a burden on the City, they would need to reconsider. The gains need to be 
weighed against the costs. 
 
Ms. Spickard said the department does not have money budgeted for this project. They would need to 
identify General Fund resources to figure out how to create this process. 
 
Councilor Wylie asked if there are other communities that have done the ministerial process. 
 
Ms. Smith said the City of Eugene currently does this process. She will find out information from 
them on the cost. 
 
Councilor Moore said 5 weeks seems reasonable and quick. She is not sure how much time this would 
save. It sounds like it would put a strain on staff and the benefits may not outweigh the cost. She 
would like to hear more about that. If they wanted to make it a long range process, that would be fine. 
 
Councilor VanGordon asked if the two projects that could have gone through the ministerial review 
would fall under an expanded MDS minor process. 
 
Mr. Ruettgers said it is likely they would not. 
 
Councilor Woodrow asked what the factor about the ministerial review that makes it more 
competitive. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said it could be time, but could also provide certainty and reliability. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said the City is frequently competing against other jurisdictions when it comes to 
economic development. If we don’t have land that is ready to go and there is any uncertainty, the 
developer will go where there is certainty. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said the complaint is that there is some uncertainty. In the past, they had talked about 
having a master developer category which is where the ministerial review could go. The developers 
hire their own architect, engineers and planners and come in having done their homework. They don’t 
like to come in with no certainty. She referred to examples where things could have gone smoother. 
Their goal should be to be as competitive as anyone else out there and the developers should have 
certainty. She doesn’t want to overhaul the Code, but wants to be priced competitively and provide 
some certainty. If that is the master developer category, then that is what should be considered. The 
developers that have all of their information and homework done should be able to go through the 
system more quickly. We need more information to make a decision. 
 
Ms. Spickard said she had taken notes on what the Council wants: cost benefit analysis, master 
developer concept, and trade-offs in doing the ministerial review.  She asked if they wanted the DAC 
to look at those issues. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 8, 2016 
Page 7 
 
Councilor Wylie said they want the nuts and bolts look at what this is going to take in terms of staff 
time and effort to put this process in place.  
 
Mr. Grimaldi said it sounds like Council wants more information about the ministerial process. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she thought the master developer category was being examined and would be 
tied in with the ministerial review. She asked if the Council can allow for an expedited process without 
changes to the Code. She would like to move farther ahead than they are now. 
 
Councilor Moore asked if they could take what we already have and make it more efficient. 
 
Ms. Smith said that is what the expanded MDS was trying to accomplish. 
 
Ms. Spickard said they could move forward with implementation of the expanded MDS to see what 
kind of impact it creates. We have the expedited process already in place, but staff could look in terms 
of a master developer. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said it sounds like there is concern that people wouldn’t be notified and there would 
be an appeal.  Five weeks may seem like a long time to the developer if they have already been doing 
pre-work.  The master developer category is a way to recognize established developers. She would like 
to see if we can get there without doing a full Code amendment and get the message to developers 
about any changes that would help the process. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 
 
 
 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

TUESDAY FEBRUARY 16, 2016 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Jesse Maine Meeting Room, 225 Fifth 
Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Tuesday, February 16, 2016 at 6:30 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg 
presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Wylie, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and 
Pishioneri. Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City 
Attorney Mary Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
1. An Ordinance Amending Chapter 6, Vehicles and Traffic, Adding Section 6.112 to the Springfield 

Municipal Code, Unlawful Transfer on Vehicular Portion of the Right-of-Way. 
 
Chief of Police, Tim Doney, presented the staff report on this item. The proposed amendment would 
prohibit motor vehicles from stopping in the roadway for the purpose of transferring property to 
pedestrians, and would prohibit pedestrians from accepting property from drivers or passengers of 
vehicles unless those vehicles are legally parked.   
 
Staff is requesting that Council discuss the potential for such an Ordinance in Springfield; and to 
provide direction to staff to continue or not continue development of such an ordinance. 
 
Chief Doney said this is not a panhandling ordinance, but rather a safety and traffic flow issue. This 
moves the activity onto private property with the permission of the property owner, or to a legal 
parking area. There are a number of other cities that have enacted a similar ordinance. With this 
ordinance, those engaging in a transfer of property would be fined up to $50. He noted charitable 
organizations that collect funds from drivers at intersections. There is a process for those groups to file 
appropriate paperwork through the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) to allow those 
activities. This ordinance moves that activity out of the roadway and onto safe areas. He had witnessed 
times when people soliciting money had stepped into traffic and vehicles had stopped suddenly.  
 
Chief Doney said if something like this was enacted, staff would put up signs to alert people to the 
ordinance. When he was employed in Medford, a similar ordinance was enacted. They noticed that 
once the signs went up, the activity went down. Cottage Grove has issued no citations, and issued 
several warnings. Medford, with a population of about 80,000, has issued 6 citations. Staff would 
promote the education to the citizenry.  
 
Councilor Pishioneri said this would not apply if a person stops to assist someone that is broken down 
and off the road. Those people could still help out with gas money or fuel because they are not in the 
roadway. 
 
Chief Doney said that is correct. It would not be a violation. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri noted several charitable organizations who would not be affected. He noted that 
last week when at the intersection of Highway 126 to Main Street, a young teen was sent out of her car 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 16, 2016 
Page 2 
 
to give someone money along the side of the road as the light turned green. This was definitely safety 
related. He understands people want to show compassion, so he feels the way it is written is fair and 
includes the ability to allow that. This tries to create a safe situation. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said there is a lot of concern in seeing people in traffic transferring money while 
lights are changing to green and causing traffic delays. It is a safety issue for drivers, pedestrians and 
those receiving the funds. She asked how the minimal amount of fines issued was determined. 
 
Chief Doney said in his experience, there was a lot of education that went out and there was a lot of 
value in the signage. That would be something staff would look at for heavily trafficked areas. 
 
Councilor Moore addressed a concern from a caller and asked if this would prohibit someone from 
giving to those in need publicly. 
 
Chief Doney said it would not. It was modeled after an ordinance that was drafted down south and 
related to traffic and safety, and not the right to give funds or services to others. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said safety along our roadways is an important issue in our community. He is 
very interested in hearing public comment and hearing what they have to say. 
 
Councilor Wylie said sometimes when handing out funds, it takes time to come up to get the funds, 
and some people hold onto the giver. She hopes people support agencies that assist. There is an 
unintended consequence that they may receive less funds. Overall she’s supportive of the safety 
features. 
 
Chief Doney said at a particular intersection in Medford, the activity was moved to a shopping 
complex with the approval of the property owner, allowing the activity to continue. 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked if the fine would heard at the Municipal Court.   
 
Chief Doney said it would be heard at Municipal Court and is not a jailable offense. He didn’t 
anticipate this being a heavy handed approach, but more a public education campaign. Last year, they 
did have a lot of pedestrian fatalities. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said people looking for and distributing cash could also be considered distracted 
driving. She agrees they should move forward.  
 
Mr. Grimaldi said if Council wants to move forward, they will schedule a public hearing on this 
ordinance before Council makes a decision. 
 
Council agreed with that course of action. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 16, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 



  
  

 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Mary Bridget Smith, 

City Attorney’s Office 
 Staff Phone No: 541.746.9621 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Promote and Enhance 
our Hometown Feel 
while Focusing on 
Livability and 
Environmental Quality 

 
ITEM TITLE: PROPOSED CHANGES TO SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 5.300 AND 

7.450-452 TO ADDRESS RECENT CHANGES IN STATE LAW REGARDING 
E-CIGARETTES. 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Adopt/not adopt the following ordinances: 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 
SECTION 5.300 REGARDING SALE AND DISTRIBUTION OF TOBACCO, 
TOBACCO PRODUCTS, AND INHALANT DELIVERY SYSTEMS TO 
MINORS. 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 
SECTION 7.450 and 7.452 REGARDING TOBACCO AND INHALANT 
DELIVERY SYSTEM VENDING. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Update the Municipal Code to reflect state changes in regulating nicotine products 
and e-cigarettes, specifically by amending SMC 5.300 and SMC 7.450-452 to 
define “inhalant delivery systems” and regulate them in the same manner as 
tobacco products. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1 – Council Briefing Memo 
Attachment 2 – Proposed Ordinance amending SMC 5.300 
Attachment 3 – Proposed Ordinance amending SMC 7.450-452 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

Changes SMC 5.300 to include “inhalant delivery products” and updates the 
definition of “tobacco products”; changes SMC 7.450-452 to include “inhalant 
delivery products. 
 
The proposed ordinances close the loophole that currently does not require e-
cigarette vendors to obtain a city business license or pay a license fee.  It is 
unknown how many e-cigarette retailers and e-cigarette vending machine operators 
would be required to obtain a license. 
  

 



M E M O R A N D U M                                                                    City of Springfield 3/17/2016Page 1 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                    City of Springfield 

Date: 3/10/2016  

To: Gino Grimaldi COUNCIL 

From: Mary Bridget Smith 
Kristina Kraaz 

BRIEFING 

Subject: Proposed Code Changes to Address E-Cigarettes MEMORANDUM 

ISSUE: Update the Municipal Code to reflect state changes in regulating nicotine products and 
e-cigarettes? The purpose of the change would be to regulate e-cigarettes (inhalant delivery 
devices that deliver nicotine) in the same way that the City regulates traditional tobacco 
products. 

 

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Promote and Enhance our Hometown Feel While Focusing on Livability and Environmental 
Quality 
 

BACKGROUND: During the 2015 Regular Session, the Oregon Legislature passed HB 2546, 
which effectively equates regulation of e-cigarettes (“inhalant delivery systems”) with regulation 
of tobacco.  HB 2546 amended the existing Indoor Clean Air Act (ICCA) to include e-cigarettes.  
The legislation added a definition for “inhalant delivery system,” which includes devices and 
products intended to deliver nicotine or cannabinoids to an individual through “vaping.”  The 
new law allows the state to prohibit use of e-cigarettes and “vaping” in the same places that it 
prohibits traditional smoking and other tobacco use.  The state is responsible for charging and 
prosecuting violations of the ICAA.    

Currently, the Oregon Health Authority is developing administrative rules that are meant to 
reduce tobacco and e-cigarette sales to minors related to child resistant packaging, packaging 
that is not attractive to minors, and labeling requirements.  A separate rule advisory committee is 
addressing e-cigarettes and the Indoor Clean Air Act (ICAA).  These rules will focus on keeping 
workplaces and other public areas smoke free, including vapor from e-cigarettes. 

Lane County has proposed significant changes to its tobacco retailer code, and is encouraging 
cities in the county to follow its lead by adopting similar regulations because the county code 
provisions only apply to the unincorporated areas of the County.  For example, Lane County is 
prohibiting any new tobacco retailers from obtaining a county operating license for tobacco or e-
cigarette sales within 1,000 feet of a school.  Additionally, the County’s new code provisions 
allow Lane County Health and Human Services to seize and destroy tobacco products offered 
for sale without a license.   

Eugene has not yet adopted any changes to its current tobacco code to include e-cigarettes or 
non-traditional nicotine products. But, Eugene does have a license requirement for tobacco 
retailers and an administrative enforcement process for violations. 

CURRENT SPRINGFIELD CODE: 
There are two existing Code sections that address tobacco sales: SMC 5.300 – Sale and 
Distribution of Tobacco and Tobacco Products to Minors, and SMC 7.450-452 – Tobacco 
Vending.  The definition of “tobacco products” is found in SMC 5.300(1).  The current 
definition does not currently include any language that encompasses e-cigarettes. In addition, 
SMC 7.450-452 currently only extends to “tobacco” as defined in SMC 5.300 and also does not 

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 3 



MEMORANDUM 3/17/2016 Page 2 

include e-cigarettes.  Because e-cigarettes are not considered tobacco, vendors of e-cigarettes are 
currently not regulated by the City in the way that traditional tobacco retailers are regulated.   

PROPOSED ORDINANCES: 
Attached are two proposed ordinances drafted in response to the recent state legislation.  The 
first ordinance adopts the state’s definition of “inhalant delivery system” and includes this 
definition in SMC 5.300 – Sale and Distribution of Tobacco and Tobacco Products to Minors. 
The proposed ordinance also updates the definition of “tobacco products” to mirror the current 
definition under state law, which is more explicit about the types of products that are covered.   

The second ordinance adds “inhalant delivery system” to SMC 7.450-452, the city’s regulations 
regarding tobacco vending machines. By adding those provisions, the City will be able to 
regulate the use and sale of e-cigarettes in the same way it regulates the sale of tobacco products. 

Changing the municipal code to include e-cigarettes means that e-cigarette retailers would be 
required to obtain a license from the city and pay the license fee.  In addition, local law 
enforcement would be able to enforce the municipal code provisions that prohibit tobacco sales 
to minors against retailers of e-cigarettes.  The proposed ordinances are consistent with the new 
changes in state law.  The code changes close existing loopholes that allow e-cigarette vendors 
to operate in the City without the same protections required of traditional tobacco retailers. 

ENFORCEMENT AND PREVENTING SALES TO MINORS: 
Currently, SMC 5.300(3) prohibits sales of tobacco products to minors.  SMC 5.300(8)-(12) 
provide a civil enforcement mechanism to prosecute violations, including civil penalties and 
forfeitures.  The proposed ordinance includes e-cigarettes in the prohibition of sales to minors 
and enables the City to prosecute e-cigarette retailers who sell to minors for municipal code 
violations. 

In addition, the state currently runs two inspection programs for preventing tobacco sales to 
minors that are “decoy” programs using minors and retired state police officers.  OHA conducts 
random, unannounced annual enforcement inspections through its Tobacco Retailer Compliance 
Program.  OHA predicts that it will conduct approximately 1,500 of these inspections out of 
around 3,000 tobacco retailers statewide.  These inspections are funded through the state general 
fund and through the beer and wine tax revenue.  In addition, OHA conducts random inspections 
through the Synar Program purely for data collection and reporting requirements; the results of 
the survey are reported as Oregon’s Retailer Violation Rate annually by the federal Substance 
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. Under the new changes to state law, these 
two state inspection programs will include e-cigarette retailers. 

The FDA also conducts inspections of tobacco retailers.  FDA records show 76 inspections 
conducted in Springfield since March 2015, all of which involved minors attempting to purchase 
tobacco products (9 inspections resulted in a warning letter).   Currently, however, these 
inspections extend only to retailers of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco products; e-cigarettes 
retailers are not subject to inspections by the FDA.   

FISCAL IMPACTS: 
Currently, e-cigarette retailers who do not also sell traditional tobacco products do not have to 
obtain a City business license or pay the license fee.  The proposed ordinances close that 
loophole, and would require vendors of both traditional tobacco products and e-cigarettes to 
obtain a business license and pay the license fee.  The fee is currently $88.20 per year for initial 
tobacco retail licenses and $57.75 for renewal, and $35.70 per year for tobacco vending licenses.  
It is unknown how many e-cigarette retailers or vending machine operators would be required to 
obtain licenses under the ordinance. 

Attachment 1, Page 2 of 3 



MEMORANDUM 3/17/2016 Page 3 

 

Also, please note that the City currently receives a portion state tobacco and cigarette tax 
revenues that are put into the general fund.  In FY 15 the City received $80,139.  The amount 
that the City receives is partially based upon the taxes collected in Lane County and partially 
based upon the Springfield’s population.  E-cigarettes are not currently taxed by the state, but 
there were several bills introduced in the 2015 legislature that would have taxed e-cigarettes. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt the two proposed ordinances that amend the Springfield 
Municipal Code 5.300 and 7.450-452 to include “inhalant delivery systems” and to be consistent 
with state law. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 3 of 3 



Attachment 2, Page 1 of 5



Attachment 2, Page 2 of 5



Attachment 2, Page 3 of 5



Attachment 2, Page 4 of 5



Attachment 2, Page 5 of 5



Attachment 3, Page 1 of 2



Attachment 3, Page 2 of 2



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Mary Bridget Smith/ 

City Attorney’s Office 
 Staff Phone No: 541-746-9621 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: UPDATE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 5.104 

“MISDEMEANORS AND VIOLATIONS –STATE STATUTES ADOPTED”. 
 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Adopt/not adopt the following ordinance: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
CHAPTER 5, “PUBLIC PROTECTION” SECTION 5.104 “MISDEMEANORS 
AND VIOLATIONS – STATE STATUTES ADOPTED” OF THE SPRINGFIELD 
MUNICIPAL CODE (SMC) TO ADOPT BY REFERENCE, OREGON REVISED 
STATUTES (ORS) CHAPTERS 161, 162, 163, 164, 165, 166, 167, 181, 471, 475 
AND ORS 480.110 TO 480.160 THEREBY ADOPTING STATE ORS 
CRIMINAL STATUTES. 
 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The purpose of this amended Ordinance is to include any changes in the statutes 
listed in SMC, Section 5.104 that occurred in the last legislative session. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1:  Ordinance 
 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

No financial impact.  SMC Section 5.104 adopts by reference and makes state 
misdemeanor and violation crimes an offense against the City of Springfield so they 
may be prosecuted in Springfield Municipal Court.  This Section is updated on an 
annual basis to capture any changes that have occurred in the incorporated statutes 
during the most recent legislative session. 
 
 
 

 



Attachment 1, Page 1 of 2



Attachment 1, Page 2 of 2



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Amy Sowa/CMO 
 Staff Phone No: 541.726.4666 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: AMEND SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 2.005 

 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Adopt/not adopt the following ordinance: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 
2, “GOVERNMENT AND ADMINISTRATION” SECTION 2.005 “TERRITORY - 
WARDS” OF THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE (SMC) TO ADOPT 
LEGISLATIVE CHANGES TO SIZE OF PRECINCTS 
 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Following new legislation, the Springfield Municipal Code needs to be amended to 
reflect new precinct assignments. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1:  Proposed Ordinance 
 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

In the 2015 legislative session, HB 2177 changed the maximum precinct size from 
5,000 to 10,000 electors.  As a result of the change in ORS 246.410, the following 
precincts have been combined with the highlighted number as the one retained: 
 
4 Springfield precincts: 

• 2234 and 2236 
• 2340 and 2342 
• 2562 and 2564 
• 2676 and 2678 

 
Registered voters whose precinct number changed were mailed a new Voter 
Notification Card in early February to reflect their updated precinct number.  
 
The change will result in the following precinct assignments by ward: 

Ward 1 Precinct 2122 

Ward 2 Precincts 2234, 2236,(now combined into 2234), 2238 

Ward 3 Precincts 2340, 2342,(now combined into 2340), 2344 

Ward 4 Precinct 2456 

Ward 5 Precincts 2562, 2564 (now combined into 2562) 
Ward 6 Precincts 2676, 2678(now combined into 2676) 

 
Council is asked to adopt the ordinance to amend Section 2.005, implementing 
these changes. 
 

 





 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Matthew Ruettgers/DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-736-1035 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Maintain and Improve 
Infrastructure and 
Facilities 

 
ITEM TITLE: REQUEST FOR SPRINGIELD UTILITY BOARD (SUB) AND OTHER UTILITY 

COMPANIES, ALONG WITH THEIR CONTRACTORS TO WORK OUTSIDE THE 
HOURS OF 7 AM AND 6 PM, FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES. 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Approval of following motion:   
 
ALLOW CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES OUTSIDE OF THE HOURS OF 7 AM AND 6 
PM, IN ORDER TO COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES IN ASSOCIATION 
WITH THE REPAIR OF A LEAKING WATER SERVICE AT 3693 EAST GAME FARM 
ROAD. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Section 5.220(c) of the Springfield Municipal Code restricts the hours that construction 
activities may occur to between 7 am and 6 pm. In order to complete repairs to a leaking 
water service at 3693 East Game Farm Road, in a timely manner, and reduce the project’s 
impact on traffic, it is necessary to periodically close lanes on East Game Farm Road 
approximately 100 feet east of the intersection with Gateway Street.  The request indicates 
the work is to be completed as soon as possible, pending approval of night work, however 
tentatively scheduled for the week of March 28th, 2016. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1.   Noise Variance Request from Springfield Utility Board. 
2.   Traffic Control and Work Area Plan. 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

Due to the location of the work in the roadway near a high volume intersection, night work 
is required to maintain safe and efficient traffic flows, as well as minimize impacts to 
Springfield businesses and residents. 
 
Possible sounds that could be emitted include engine noise, back-up beeper, excavating, 
hauling and loading, air compressors, cutting equipment, hammering, voices and other 
general noises associated with construction.  The noise associated with this construction will 
be minimized to the maximum extent possible. Because of the distance to residential 
properties, we expect no significant residential impact. 
  
Staff is seeking approval of a noise variance to allow utility work that will require lane 
closures and intersection traffic control while performing work.  
 

 



Attachment 1, Page 1 of 1



Attachment 2, Page 1 of 1



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Bob Duey, Finance 
 Staff Phone No: X3740 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Provide Financially 
Responsible and 
Innovative Government 
Services 

 
 
ITEM TITLE: 

 
BUDGET COMMITTEE BYLAWS 
 

 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

 
By motion, approval of Budget Committee bylaws. 
 

 
ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

 
Bylaws set forth the structure of the committee in the organization.  They state what 
rights the members have within the organization and what limits of power are put 
on boards and officers.  Approval will update the City of Springfield Budget 
Committee bylaws to include a provision for the removal of a Budget Committee 
member.  
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
1.  Budget Committee Bylaws 
 

 
DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 
 

 
By request of Council and pursuant to the attendance policy that matches the 
language in the Council Operating Policies and Procedures document; Finance is 
requesting the Council to review and approve the updated bylaws for the Budget 
Committee. 
 
 

 



Budget Committee Bylaws Attachment 1 Page 1 of 2 

City of Springfield 
Budget Committee Bylaws 
 
ARTICLE I.  Establishment 

The Budget Committee is established pursuant to ORS 294.414 in accordance with Local 
Budget Law. 
 

ARTICLE II.  Purpose and Objectives 
The Budget Committee shall acts as a fiscal policy and budget review committee for the 
City of Springfield and as such shallas follows: 

a) Conducts a review of the City mManager’s proposed budget and makes a 
recommendation to City Council regarding the proposed funding, and service 
level, and configuration. 

b) Reviews the Capital Improvement Program and forwards comments to the City 
Council. 

c) Responds to ad hoc requests by the City Council. 
 
ARTICLE III.  Membership, Terms of Office and Voting. 

Section 1.  The Budget Committee shall consists of all members of the City Council and a 
like number of electors electors citizensof the city, totaling 12 members. Each member 
has an equal vote. 
Section 2. Lay Citizen members of the Budget Committee shall be are appointed in the 
following manneras follows: 

a) IOn or before March of any each year, City Council appoints citizen members to 
fill vacancies  in the office of appointive membership of the Budget Committee 
shall be filled by appointment by the City Council. 

b) Appointive members of the Budget Committee shall be appointed forserve 
three-year terms of three years.  The terms shall be are staggered so such that 
one -third of the terms of the appointive members’ appointments ends each 
year.  Vacancies in the appointive membership of the Budget Committee shall 
be filled in the same manner as the original appointments. 

c) Any appointive member may be reappointed for an additional terms with no 
individual allowed to be appointed to more than two consecutive full terms. 
One may re-apply after being off the Budget Committee for one year. 

Section 3.  Budget Committee Ddecisions of the Budget Committee shall beare made by 
an affirmative vote of a majority of the membership of the cCommittee members. 
Section 4.  Committee members shall do not receive no compensation, but shall may be 
reimbursed for duly authorized expenditures. 

 
ARTICLE IV.  Officers’ Duties 

Section 1.  The Budget Committee elects two officers at the first meeting: officers of the 
Budget Committee shall be a Chairperson and a Vice-Chairperson.  



Budget Committee Bylaws Attachment 1 Page 2 of 2 

Section 2. The officers shall be elected serve a for one -year terms and shall be elected 
at the first meeting. 
Section 32.  The Chairperson shall presides at all meetings and is eligible to vote on all 
matters. 
Section 34.  The Vice-Chairperson shall performs all the duties of the Chairperson in the 
event the Chairperson’s is absentce. 
Section 45.  The Ccommittee shall be staffed by the City Manager or his/her designee. 
 

ARTICLE V.  Meetings of Committee 
Section 1.  The Chairperson calls the Budget Committee Mmeetings to order. of the 
Budget Committee shall be called by the Committee Chairperson. 
Section 2.  A majority of the sitting present Committee members shall constitutes a 
quorum. 
Section 3.  Budget Committee members shall are expected to attend all regular 
meetings and standing subcommittee meetings.  If a member is unable to attend a 
meeting, said member is expected to notify Budget Office staff. A position shall be 
vacated by the Council when the appointee has two or more consecutive unexcused 
absences. 
 The Chairperson, in consultation with City sStaff, may recommend to the Council that a 
member be removed from the Committee if said member is found not to meet the 
Guidelines. Two consecutive unexcused absences constitute a resignation and City 
Council will appoint a new citizen member to fill the vacancy. 
Section 4.  All appointees of the Budget Committee serve at the pleasure of the Council 
and are expected to abide by the City of Springfield BCC Guidelines for Meeting 
Conduct.  A position shall be vacated by the Council when the Budget Committee 
member has two or more consecutive unexcused absences from the committee 
meetings in any twelve consecutive month periods. personthat saidGuidelines 
 
Section 45.  All Budget Committee members shall be are given at least 24 hours’ notice 
of any meeting called.  Study materials and agenda will be delivered at least 24 hours 
prior to a meeting. 
 

ARTICLE VI.  Subcommittees 
Section 1.  The Chairperson shall appoint subcommittees as needed. 
Section 2.  The Chairperson of the Budget Committee may appoint a Cchairperson for 
each subcommittee. 
 

ARTICLE VII.  Amendment of the Bylaws 
These bylaws may be amended by an affirmative vote of a majority of the membership 
of a majority of the membership of the Budget Committee at any regular meeting., 
providing Prior notice of such amendment must beis given at a preceding regular 
meeting, or in an agenda packet, or unless all Committee members committee are 
present. 



Budget Committee Bylaws Attachment 1 Page 3 of 2 

 
Adopted by City Council on__________________________ 
 
________________________________________________ 
Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________________ 
City Recorder 
 
Last Revised: February 20, 2015March 15, 2016. 

 
 



AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Greg Mott, DPW 

Jim Donovan, DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3774 
 Estimated Time: 30 Minutes  
S P R I N G F I E L D 
CITY COUNCIL  

Council Goals: Provide Financially 
Responsible and 
Innovative Government 
Services 

 
ITEM TITLE:  AMEND THE SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE TO REGULATE THE 

TIME, PLACE AND MANNER BY WHICH LAND AND BUILDINGS MAY BE 
USED TO PRODUCE, PROCESS, SELL WHOLESALE AND SELL RETAIL 
RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA AND RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA 
PRODUCTS.  

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 
 

Conduct a public hearing and first reading of the following ordinance: AN 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE 
SECTION 3.2-310 AND 3.2-410 ADDING VARIOUS RECREATONAL 
MARIJUANA BUSINESSES TO SPECIFIC COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL 
ZONING DISTRICTS; SECTION 4.7-177 ADDING DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA BUSINESSES  
AND SECTIONS 3.2-210, 3.2-415, 3.2-610, AND 3.4-255 PROHIBITING 
RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA BUSINESSES; ADOPTING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The proposed amendments to the Springfield Development Code found in 
Attachment 2 are the result of 3 work sessions and a single public hearing of the 
Planning Commission.  These proposals regulate the time; place; and manner by 
which land and buildings may be used and occupied for purposes of producing, 
processing, selling wholesale and selling retail recreational marijuana and 
recreational marijuana products. These regulations include relevant statutory 
requirements for setbacks from schools and other licensed marijuana businesses; 
identify specific zoning districts where these various uses are permitted; and 
identify specific zoning districts or locations where these various uses are 
prohibited. 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1:  Planning Commission Briefing Memorandum  
Attachment #2:  Staff Report, Code Amendments, Maps and Criteria of Approval  
Attachment #3:  Planning Commission Recommendation Memo 
Attachment #4:  Public Comments Submitted Prior to Council Hearing 
Attachment #5:  Ordinance  
 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 

The Springfield City Council conducted a work session on 11/9/15 to begin 
consideration of new land use regulations for state licensed medical and 
recreational marijuana business activities. Council directed staff to work with the 
Planning Commission to research the zoning issues and recommend a package of 
code revisions for Council review and adoption.  The attached code proposal was 
developed with Planning Commission, industry and public input prior to the 
Planning Commission recommendation of approval to City Council. The City 
Council may approve, amend or extend review of the recommended code 
amendments prior to adoption scheduled for April 4, 2016.    
 
  

 



Attachment 1, Page 1 of 2



Attachment 1, Page 2 of 2



 
 

STAFF REPORT AND PROPOSED SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE (SDC) AMENDMENTS  
TO ALLOW MEDICAL AND RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA FACILITIES 

IN CERTAIN ZONING DISTRICTS (3/1/16 PC & 3/21/16 CC) 

 
 
This proposed action amends the following Sections of the Springfield Development Code:   
 
1) Subsection 3.2-200 Residential Zoning Districts; Subsection 3.2-210 Schedule of Use Categories; 
Subsection 3.2-300. Commercial Zoning Districts; Subsection 3.2-310 Schedule of Uses Categories; 
Subsection 3.2-400 Industrial Zoning Districts; 3.2-410 Schedule of Use Categories; Subsection 3.2-415 
Schedule of Campus Industrial Use Categories; Subsection 3.2-600 Mixed Use Zoning Districts; 
Subsection 3.2-610 Schedule of Use Categories; Subsection 3.4-200 Glenwood Riverfront Mixed Use Plan 
District; Subsection 3.4-255 Prohibited Uses; Subsection 4.7-177 Marijuana Uses; Subsection 6.1-110 
Meaning of Specific Words and Terms.  These amendments will allow medical and recreational 
marijuana retail sales in the Community Commercial and Major Retail Commercial Zoning Districts; will 
allow marijuana production, processing and wholesale sales in the Light Medium, Heavy and Special 
Heavy Industrial Zoning Districts; will establish Subsection 4.7-177 describing specific development 
standards for each licensed use in each affected zoning district; and will add definitions consistent with 
state statutes.   
 
I. The use tables of the Springfield Development Code are proposed to be amended as follows: 
 
3.2-300 Commercial Zoning Districts  

Commentary. Marijuana retail sales are proposed to be permitted in the Community Commercial (CC) 
and Major Retail Commercial (MRC) Zoning Districts under Special Use standards as noted below and 
detailed under Special Use Standards section.  
 
Marijuana retail sales are proposed to be prohibited in the Neighborhood Commercial (NC) and General 
Office Zoning Districts for the following reasons:  
 
1) The NC (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District, while listed under “Commercial Districts”, is 
discussed under the Metro Plan Residential Designation where “neighborhood commercial services” are 
allowed as auxiliary uses.   The SDC limits the NC Zoning District to not more than 3 acres in size 
consisting of a neighborhood market, hair salon, etc. serving the neighborhood and it is typically 
surrounded by residential zoning districts. The proposed separation and buffer restrictions proposed in 
Subsection 4.7-177 below either would be difficult to, or cannot be met.   
2) The GO (General Office) Zoning District, which is considered a buffer between more intense 
commercial uses and residential uses does allow retail uses as a secondary use. However, retail uses are 
limited to no more than 10 percent of the gross floor area of the office building in which they are sited 
and are typically serving the primary office uses. If retail sales are to be buffered from residential 
districts, any separation standards would be virtually impossible to meet. For these reasons, staff 
proposes that marijuana retail outlets should not be permitted in the GO Zoning District.  
3) After PC discussion of zoning principles and the lack of crime statistics to support safety concerns, 
state licensed commercial daycare businesses are not buffered in this proposal.        
 
Proposed text is underlined and highlighted in yellow.  
 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 22



 
 

 
3.2-310 Schedule of Use Categories 

  Commercial Districts 
Categories/Uses NC CC MRC GO 

Marijuana Business   (Section 4.7-177)         
Marijuana Retail Outlet  (Recreational or Medical) N S* S* N 

Note: S* refers to a use that is permitted subject to Special Use Standards, an asterisk denotes site plan 
review. 
 

 ******************* 
 
Section 3.2-400 Industrial Zoning Districts  

Commentary.  This section addresses several issues identified with production of marijuana, processing 
of marijuana products or wholesaling of marijuana. Staff research of other jurisdictions, state statutes 
and code structure leads to the proposal not to permit marijuana dispensaries or retail outlets within 
industrial zoning districts as a primary or secondary use. The LMI (Light Medium Industrial) and HI 
(Heavy Industrial Zoning) Districts do not permit retail uses as a primary use, which includes, but is not 
limited to: manufacturing; warehousing; and research, development and testing laboratories. While 
these zoning districts do allow secondary uses serving or related to the primary industrial uses, they are 
limited to those serving the employees of the primary industrial use. There are no secondary retail uses 
in these zoning districts.  In addition, the SHI (Special Heavy Industrial) Zoning District is located outside 
of the Springfield city limits and is therefore not eligible for marijuana dispensaries, which are required 
to be located only within Springfield’s city limits due to the operational requirements contained in the 
Springfield Municipal Code Chapter 7. The Springfield Municipal Code does not apply outside of the city 
limits. 
 
3.2-410 Schedule of Use Categories 
 

  Industrial Districts 
Use Categories/Uses LMI HI SHI 

Marijuana Business   (Special Use Standards Section 4.7-177)       
Production Facilities  

Indoor/Outdoor, Tier I-II Canopy Regulations-  

     N S* S* 

Processing Facilities 

 

S* S* N 

Wholesale Facilities 

 

S* S* N 

Marijuana Retail Outlets or Sales, as a primary or secondary use.   N N N 

Note: S* refers to a use that is permitted subject to Special Use Standards, an asterisk denotes site plan 
review. 

Attachment 2, Page 2 of 22



 
 

 
 
3.2-415 Schedule of Campus Industrial Use Categories 
 
Commentary. While the CI (Campus Industrial) Zoning District does allow certain retail uses, these uses 
are also intended to be secondary to the permitted primary Campus Industrial uses.  The purpose of 
these permitted secondary retail uses is to serve the employees of the CI Zoning District.  A retail use 
will serve customers from all over the metropolitan area and, therefore, is not considered secondary to 
permitted primary uses specified in SDC Subsection 3.2-415. All other marijuana uses will not meet 
operational or other standards of the district.  
 
Staff proposes adding marijuana dispensaries to the CI prohibited use list:  
 
Prohibited Uses   
Marijuana Business  N 
             

****************** 
 
 
3.4-200 Glenwood Riverfront Mixed-Use Plan District  
 
Commentary. Springfield has two sets of mixed-use zoning district. One applies to Glenwood Phase 1 
only; the other to the rest of the City. This section addresses the Glenwood Riverfront Mixed-Use Plan 
Districts.  
 
All the zoning in Glenwood Riverfront Mixed-Use Plan District is either Employment Mixed-Use, 
Commercial Mixed-Use, Office Mixed-Use or Employment Mixed-Use.  Any permitted primary uses in 
these zoning districts were limited to prevent conflicts with retail uses in downtown Springfield or other 
commercial areas and purposefully create a distinct business environment. Additionally, the purpose of 
permitted secondary retail uses in Glenwood is to serve either the residents or employees of a building, 
not the general public. Therefore, marijuana uses would not be allowed as a primary or secondary use in 
these zoning districts.  
 
3.4-255 Prohibited Uses  
 
The following uses are similar in nature to other prohibited retail and industrial uses and shall be added 
to the list of prohibited uses within the Glenwood Riverfront Mixed-Use Plan District: 
Marijuana Business.  
 
 
Section 3.2-600 Mixed Use Zoning Districts  

Commentary.  These mixed use zoning districts are distinct from Glenwood districts, and differ in 
permitted uses, notably residential uses are allowed under all three districts. Therefore it would be very 
difficult to regulate any separation between retail or any other marijuana uses and the desired 
residential uses. For these reasons staff recommends no marijuana uses be permitted in any mixed use 
district having a residential district.  

Attachment 2, Page 3 of 22



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
3.2-610 Schedule of Use Categories 
 
 

  Districts 
Categories/Uses MUC MUE MUR 

Marijuana Business          
Production, Processing, Wholesaling, Retail  N N N 

 
************* 

 
 
 
Section 3.2-200 Residential Zoning Districts  

Commentary.  Marijuana businesses are prohibited in all standard residential districts by state statute, 
and verified for local compliance prior to the issuance of a license.  This code section is intended to be 
consistent with those statutes.  
 
3.2-210 Schedule of Use Categories 
 
 
  Districts 

Categories/Uses LDR SLR MDR HDR 
Marijuana Business  (4.7-177)         
Production, Processing, Wholesaling, Retail N N N N 
 
 
 
II.  The following new Special Use Standards are proposed to be added to Code Section 4.7 as 

indicated by asterisk in the permitted use tables above:  
 
 
Section 4.7-177 Marijuana Uses    
 
Commentary. SDC 4.7-100 currently contains “special use” standards for a number of permitted uses in 
various zoning districts. These “special use” standards typically involve specific standards designed to 
control location or mitigate impacts of a use on surrounding properties. The following proposed 
Subsection provides specific standards for permitting marijuana uses consistent with statutory 
regulations, Springfield Municipal Code and as recommended or requested for consideration by City 
Council or the Planning Commission.   
 
 

Attachment 2, Page 4 of 22



 
 

A.  Marijuana Retail Outlets shall be: 
 

1. Licensed or registered and operated in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes and 
applicable Oregon Administrative Rules.    

 
2. Licensed and regulated as specified in Chapter 7 of the Springfield Municipal Code;  
 
3. Located on and take access from an arterial or collector street; and[jpd1] 
 
4. Fully contained in a permanent building in the Community Commercial or Major Retail 

Commercial Zoning Districts.  
 
5.  Prohibited in any district except CC and MRC.  
 

 
B. Where permitted by this Code, Marijuana Retail Outlets shall not be located: 
 
 
Commentary. The following section is designed to be consistent with state statutes and 
recommendations or requests for consideration by the Planning Commission or City Council.   
 
 

1. At the same address as another licensed or registered marijuana business; 
 
2. Within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public or private elementary, 

secondary or career school attended primarily by minors (“within 1,000 feet” means a 
straight line measurement in a radius extending for 1,000 feet or less in every direction 
from any point on the boundary line of the real property comprising an existing public or 
private elementary, secondary or career school primarily attended by minors);   

 
3. Within 1,000 feet of another l Marijuana Retail Outlet (“within 1,000 feet” means a 

straight line measurement in a radius extending for 1,000 feet or less in every direction 
from any point on the boundary line of the real property compromising a retail outlet);  

 
Commentary. The following proposed standards are not listed in statute; the intent was to provide 
additional protection of children. See the Cole Memorandum1. Staff reviewed adopted or proposed 
medical marijuana dispensary zoning regulations from Ashland, Beaverton and Salem and found that 
                                                           
1 In a memorandum to all United States Attorneys dated August 29, 2013, James M. Cole, Deputy Attorney General distributed 
information on Guidance Regarding Marijuana Enforcement. The memorandum states in part: “…the Department (Justice 
Department) in recent years has focused its efforts on certain enforcement priorities that are particularly important to the 
federal government…. Preventing the distribution of marijuana to minors…. The Department’s guidance in this memorandum 
rests on tis expectation that states and local governments that have enacted [and/or are proposing to] laws authorizing 
marijuana-related conduct will implement strong and effective regulatory and enforcement systems that will address the threat 
those state laws could pose to public safety, public health, and other law enforcement interests….”    The Oregon Legislature has 
adopted Medical Marijuana regulations enacted by Senate Bill 1531 (2014) which grants Springfield the authority to adopt 
ordinances within the city limits that impose reasonable regulations on the operation of medical marijuana facilities registered 
under ORS 475.314 that are consistent with the latest directive.   

Attachment 2, Page 5 of 22



 
 

they addressed parks, pre-schools and certified day care facilities. See Medical Marijuana Dispensaries – 
Other City Comparisons. Staff originally proposed 1,000 feet of separation between parks, pre-schools 
and certified day care centers. However, based upon input from the marijuana industry representatives 
(250 foot from parks) and the 100O foot buffer initially discussed, the 500 foot proposal represents a 
compromise of buffering.  Pre-schools and day care facilities located in residential zoning districts will be 
addressed in the proposed residential setback locational standard below.   

 
4. Within 500 feet of parks where minors congregate (“within 500 feet” means a straight 

line measurement in a radius extending for 500 feet or less in every direction from any 
point on the boundary line of the real property compromising a  Marijuana Retail 
Outlet[jpd2]).   

 
 

Commentary. Setbacks from residential zoning districts. These standards are not listed in statute; the 
intent is to provide additional protection of children. This topic was initially discussed with City Council 
during review of regulations amending the Springfield Municipal Code to regulate licensing medical 
marijuana dispensaries in the City. A number of options were mentioned from 1,000 feet to 100 feet 
and possible distances in between. Staff reviewed adopted, or soon to be adopted, medical marijuana 
dispensary zoning regulations from Ashland, Beaverton and Salem regarding setbacks from residential 
zoning districts. Staff found Ashland proposed a 200 foot setback, Salem proposed a 100 foot setback 
and Beaverton has no setback. Please note that when zoning was first applied along Main Street, 
commercial zoning included a 200 foot-wide swath that created a number of lots that were split zoned 
Community Commercial and residential. The linear pattern of Main Street also would prohibit the 
establishment of any medical marijuana dispensaries in this area if a 1,000 or even 200 foot setback was 
to be imposed. Staff prepared maps showing a proposed 50 foot and 100 foot setback from residential 
properties along Main Street and in other areas of Springfield where Community Commercial and Major 
Retail Commercial zoning occurs for review of Council and Planning Commission. Based upon input from 
Council, the Commission and initial feedback from marijuana industry representatives, a 50 foot setback 
was proposed. The 50 foot option should cover all residential pre-schools and day care facilities in the 
residential zoning districts and ensure that no retail outlet is located immediately adjacent to a 
residential zone. No separate setback for commercial day care facilities is proposed.  

 
5. Within 50 feet of any residential zoning district (“within 50 feet” means a straight line 

measurement in a radius extending for 50 feet, including public right-of-way,  in every 
direction from any point of the property containing a  Marijuana Retail Outlet 

 
 
 
C.  Additional  Marijuana Retail Outlet Regulations. A  Marijuana Retail Outlet shall: 

1. Not have a drive-up window; 
2. Not operate from any temporary facility in any zone. 
3. Provide for secure disposal of marijuana remnants or by-products, which shall not be 

placed[jpd3] within the businesses storage of exterior refuse containers. 
4.           Not include outdoor storage of merchandise, raw materials, or any other material 

associated with retail sales. 
5.  Preclude any use of products on site unless expressly exempted by state statute. 

                                                                                                                                                                                           
 

Attachment 2, Page 6 of 22



 
 

6. Not be allowed as a home occupation in any zone. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commentary:  The following proposed Subsection provides specific standards for permitting production, 
processing or wholesale marijuana uses consistent with statutory regulations, Springfield Municipal 
Code and as recommended or requested for consideration by City Council or the Planning Commission.   
 
 
D.  Industrial Uses 
 
Commentary: Discussions with the Planning Commission of characteristics related to production 
identified a need for reasonable operating and location conditions designed to mitigate olfactory 
impacts related to outdoor and indoor grow operations. The state defines two tiers of canopy sizes for 
indoor and outdoor grows under Production licenses:  
  

Indoor Production   Outdoor Production   
Tier 1- Up to 5,000 square feet Tier 1- up to 20,000 square feet 
Tier II- 5001-10,000 square feet Tier II- 20,001-40,000 square feet 

 
Considering the potential olfactory impacts related to both indoor and outdoor production and other 
site design characteristics required for site plan and MDS approval the following special standards are 
proposed by staff for production within the Heavy Industrial District: 
 

Production Facilities  
 

1.  Indoor Production Facilities licensed by the State of Oregon as a Tier 1 operation shall be 
located within a permanent structure on a lot no smaller than 1 acre in size, shall not be 
located within 500 feet of any zoning district allowing residential use, and shall provide 
a controlled exhaust system with filters designed to significantly reduce or eliminate 
odors at the property line. 

 
2.  Indoor Production Facilities licensed by the State of Oregon as a Tier II operation shall be 

located within a permanent structure on a lot no smaller than 5 acres in size, shall not 
be located within 1000 feet of any zoning district allowing residential use, and shall 
provide a controlled exhaust system with filters designed to significantly reduce or 
eliminate odors at the property line. 

 
3. Outdoor Production Facilities licensed by the State of Oregon as a Tier I operation shall 

be located on a lot no smaller than 5 acres in size, shall not be located within 1000 feet 
of any zoning district allowing residential use, and shall be screened or secured in 
accordance with state statutes and this code for outdoor storage. Any structure on site 
used for production purposes shall provide a controlled exhaust system with filters 
designed to significantly reduce or eliminate odors at the property line. 

Attachment 2, Page 7 of 22



 
 

 
4. Outdoor Production Facilities licensed by the State of Oregon as a Tier II operation shall 

be located on a lot no smaller than 10 acres in size, shall not be located within 1000 feet 
of any zoning district allowing residential use and shall be screened or secured in 
accordance with state statutes and this code for outdoor storage. Any structure on site 
used for production purposes shall provide a controlled exhaust system with filters 
designed to significantly reduce or eliminate odors at the property line. 

 
 
 
 

Commentary: Discussions with the Planning Commission of the known characteristics related to 
processing identified a need for reasonable operating conditions designed to mitigate impacts related to 
the most intense processing operations, notably extraction with butane or other chemicals. 

 
Processing Facilities 
 
  
1. Processing Facilities performing testing, including marijuana testing laboratories, 

processing, or manufacture of edibles or concentrates shall be located within LMI or HI 
Districts and be completely enclosed within a permanent structure provide with a 
controlled exhaust system with filters designed to significantly reduce or eliminate 
odors at the property line.  

 
2. Processing Facilities processing cannabinoid extracts shall be located within HI Districts, 

shall be located 500 feet from any district allowing residential use and be completely 
enclosed within a permanent structure provide with a controlled exhaust system with 
filters designed to significantly reduce or eliminate odors at the property line and shall 
be subject to Type II Site Plan Review.  

 
3. Licensed or registered and operated in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes and 

applicable Oregon Administrative Rules.    
 
4. Licensed and regulated as specified in Chapter 7 of the Springfield Municipal Code;  
 
5. Located on and take access from an arterial or collector street; and 
 
 

Commentary: Discussions with the Planning Commission of the known characteristics related to 
production identified a need for reasonable operating conditions designed to mitigate olfactory impacts 
related to outdoor and indoor grow operations. 

 
Wholesale Facilities 
 
1. Licensed or registered and operated in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes and 

applicable Oregon Administrative Rules.   
  
2. Licensed and regulated as specified in Chapter 7 of the Springfield Municipal Code. 

Attachment 2, Page 8 of 22



 
 

  
3. Located on and take access from an arterial or collector street. 
 
4.           Within 50 feet of any residential zoning district (“within 50 feet” means a straight line 

measurement in a radius extending for 50 feet, including public right-of-way,  in every 
direction from any point of the property containing a  Marijuana Retail Outlet. 

 
5.  No retail sales shall be permitted from any wholesale marijuana distribution facility. 
 
6. No outdoor storage of any marijuana items shall occur at a wholesale marijuana  

distribution facility. 
Commentary. The intent of the Subsection below is to not penalize existing marijuana dispensaries that 
have been: 1) approved prior to these proposed amendments; or 2) if a school, park or another 
protected use locates within a proposed locational standard area after a marijuana business has been 
approved under these proposed regulations.  
 
E.  The siting of a future school, daycare or park use that affects a licensed marijuana business 

existing at the time of the siting, shall not make the existing marijuana business in violation of 
the locational standards specified in this Code, nor shall it be grounds to refuse to renew a 
license.  
  

F. In the event that a licensed or registered marijuana business is existing on [INSERT EFFECTIVE 
DATE OF ORDINANCE HERE], that existing use is allowed to continue as approved. In the event a 
marijuana business  is unoccupied, discontinued or unlicensed for 6 months or more after the 
above date, it shall be subject to the non-conforming use standards of Section 5.8-100 of this 
code.     

 
 
Commentary. In addition to meeting the proposed locational standards, establishment of marijuana 
businesses will require the following applicable planning review process.  All marijuana businesses are 
required to be located on properties annexed to the City of Springfield to allow enforcement and 
licensing as prescribed by the Springfield Municipal Code, and all businesses permitted under this code 
are considered urban uses and are not permitted in the UF/10 Overlay District.   
 
G. Planning Review. 
 

1. When the proposed marijuana business is a change of use in an existing building, 
Minimum Development Standards (MDS) as specified in Section 5.15-100 will apply.  

 
2. When the proposed marijuana business is to be located in a new building, Site Plan 

Review standards as specified in Section 5.17-100 will apply.  
 
3. MDS or Site Plan Review approval by the Director will require, in addition to any other 

conditions of approval, a copy of the state license or registration and a copy of the City 
of Springfield marijuana  business license pursuant to Chapter 7 of the Springfield 
Municipal Code. These documents shall be required prior to occupancy. 

 

Attachment 2, Page 9 of 22



 
 

4. All marijuana businesses allowed under this code shall occur on properties inside city 
limits. 

 
Commentary. The statutory definitions of medical and recreational uses consistent with Chapter 7 of 
the Springfield Municipal Code will be inserted prior to public review. 
 
Section 6.1-110 Meaning of Specific Words and Terms 
 

Cannabinoid means any of the chemical compounds that are the active constituents of marijuana. 
 

Cannabinoid concentrate means a substance obtained by separating cannabinoids from 
marijuana by: 
(a) A mechanical extraction process; or 
(b) A chemical extraction process using a nonhydrocarbon-based or other solvent, such as water, 
vegetable glycerin, vegetable oils, animal fats, isopropyl alcohol or ethanol. 

 
Cannabinoid edible means food or potable liquid into which a cannabinoid concentrate, cannabinoid 
extract or dried marijuana leaves or flowers have been incorporated. 

 
Cannabinoid extract means a substance obtained by separating cannabinoids from marijuana by: 
(a) A chemical extraction process using a hydrocarbon-based solvent, such as butane, hexane or 
propane; 
(b) A chemical extraction process using the hydrocarbon-based solvent carbon dioxide, if the process 
uses heat or pressure; or 
(c) Any other process identified by the commission, in consultation with the authority, by rule. 

 
Cannabinoid product means a cannabinoid edible and any other product intended for human 
consumption or use, including a product intended to be applied to the skin or hair that contains 
cannabinoids or dried marijuana leaves or flowers. 

 
Cultivation or cultivate means: all phases of growth of marijuana from seed to harvest.  

 
 

Marijuana means the plant Cannabis family Cannabaceae, any part of the plant of the Cannabis 
family Cannabaceae and the seeds of the plant Cannabis family Cannabaceae. “Marijuana” does not 
include industrial hemp, as defined in ORS 571.300. 

 
Marijuana business means any person or entity appropriately licensed by the Oregon Health 
Authority or the Oregon Liquor Control Commission that sells, produces, cultivates, grows, 
wholesales, processes, researches, develops or tests medical marijuana or recreational adult use 
marijuana within the City of Springfield. 
Marijuana grow sites means a specific location registered by the Oregon Health Authority and used 
by the grower to produce marijuana for medical use by a specific patient.  

 
Marijuana items means marijuana, cannabinoid products, cannabinoid concentrates and cannabinoid 
extracts. 

 
Marijuana processing means the preparing, compounding, testing or conversion of marijuana into 

Attachment 2, Page 10 of 22



 
 

cannabinoid products, cannabinoid concentrates, and cannabinoid extracts for medical or 
recreational purposes. 

 
Marijuana production  means  the  manufacture,  planting,  cultivation,  growing,  or harvesting of  
marijuana as licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission or Oregon Health Authority. 

 
Marijuana retailer means a person or entity licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission or 
Oregon Health Authority to sell marijuana items to a consumer in this state.  
 
Marijuana Retail Outlet means a business location that sells marijuana items to a consumer or 
patient.  

 
Marijuana  testing  laboratory  means  a  laboratory  that  tests  marijuana  items  for producer, 
processor, wholesaler or retail outlets. 

 
Marijuana wholesaler means a person or entity that purchases marijuana items in this state for 
resale to a person other than a consumer. 

 
Medical marijuana dispensary means a medical marijuana facility or entity registered with the 
Oregon Health Authority under ORS 475.300.  

 
 

Recreational marijuana means any marijuana intended for recreational use which meets all 
requirements for recreational marijuana contained in this chapter, Oregon state law, and any other 
applicable law. 

 
School means a building where individuals gather to receive educational instruction, either public 
or private, except as otherwise specifically defined in this code. School does not include a child 
care facility as defined in this Chapter. 

 
  

NOTE: This package of specific code amendment language is supported by the accompanying Staff 
Report and Findings document containing findings and conclusions in compliance with the standards of 
the Springfield Development Code for proposed amendments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 2, Page 11 of 22



 
 

TYP414-0003 
Springfield Development Code 

Amendment  
Staff Report and Findings  

 
Procedural Findings 
 
Finding: This Development Code Amendment was initiated by the Director in accordance with 
SDC 5.6-105A.   
 
Finding: Timely and sufficient notice of the public hearings was provided pursuant to SDC:   
 

• Notice of the proposed amendments was provided to the Department of Land 
Conservation and Development (DLCD) on February 12, 2016.    

• The City of Springfield published a notice of the Planning Commission and City 
Council public hearings for the proposed Development Code text amendments in the 
Register Guard Newspaper on February 16, 2016.   

• The City of Springfield sent additional notice to known existing marijuana business owners 
and affected parties that have participated or requested notice on February 19, 2016.  

 
Finding: The Planning Commission held work sessions on December 15, 2015; December 
22, 2015; and January 20, 2016 and a public hearing on March 1, 2016 and recommended 
approval of the proposed amendments to the Springfield City Council.  
 
Finding: The City Council will hold a public hearing and first reading of the ordinance on March 21, 
2016. On Monday, April 4, 2016, the Council will consider a second reading and emergency 
adoption of the amendments.   
 
Précis of the Proposal 
 
These proposed amendments to the Springfield Development Code are intended to provide 
regulatory control of the production, processing, wholesaling and retailing of recreational 
marijuana as these uses and activities are undertaken in compliance with the rules of the 
Oregon Liquor Control Commission as promulgated in Oregon Administrative Rule 845, 
Division 25 and in Chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, and medical marijuana as these uses and 
activities are undertaken in compliance with the rules of the Oregon Health Authority as 
promulgated in Oregon Administrative Rule 333, Division 8 and in Chapter 614, Oregon Laws 
2015.    
 
 
This proposed action amends the following Sections of the Springfield Development Code:   
 
1) Subsection 3.2-200 Residential Zoning Districts; Subsection 3.2-210 Schedule of Use 
Categories; Subsection 3.2-300. Commercial Zoning Districts; Subsection 3.2-310 Schedule of 
Uses Categories; Subsection 3.2-400 Industrial Zoning Districts; 3.2-410 Schedule of Use 
Categories; Subsection 3.2-415 Schedule of Campus Industrial Use Categories; Subsection 
3.2-600 Mixed Use Zoning Districts; Subsection 3.2-610 Schedule of Use Categories; 
Subsection 3.4-200 Glenwood Riverfront Mixed Use Plan District; Subsection 3.4-255 
Prohibited Uses; Subsection 4.7-177 Marijuana Uses; Subsection 6.1-110 Meaning of Specific 
Words and Terms.  These amendments will allow medical and recreational marijuana retail 

Attachment 2, Page 12 of 22



 
 

sales in the Community Commercial and Major Retail Commercial Zoning Districts; will allow 
marijuana production, processing and wholesale sales in the Light Medium, Heavy, and Special 
Heavy Industrial Zoning Districts; will establish Subsection 4.7-177 describing specific 
development standards for each licensed use in each affected zoning district; and will add 
definitions consistent with state statutes.   
 
Criteria of Approval 

 
SDC 5.6—115 A.  In reaching a decision on the adoption or amendment of refinement plans 
and this Code’s text, the City Council shall adopt findings that demonstrate conformance to the 
following: 

  1. The Metro Plan; 

2. Applicable State statutes; and 
  

3. Applicable State-wide Planning Goals and Administrative Rules. 
  

 
1.  The Metro Plan  
 
The Metro Plan does not contain policies that go to the matter of this proposal per se; that is, in 
contemplation of the myriad of land uses and collateral impacts of those uses, the Metro Plan 
does not precisely envision a specific activity or set aside land or infrastructure as a safeguard 
against an unknown and unpredictable future.  The Metro Plan assumes an effective 
relationship between traditional implementation tools, i.e. zoning, development regulations, 
annexation, etc. and the promulgation of new laws and new rules, or decisions of the courts in 
the normal occurrence of legal adjudication of disputes or interpretations of the law.  It is often 
the case that state legislation is best implemented at the local level by amendments, when 
called for, to the comprehensive plan or development regulations even when those documents 
provide no indication that this legislation was expected or is derived from actions of the 
Department of Land Conservation and Development or the Land Conservation and 
Development Commission. In the present circumstances the action to amend the Development 
Code is a response to the results of a statewide vote on the question of legalizing marijuana for 
recreational purposes.  This is neither a deliberate action to address a land use deficiency, nor 
is it the typical process that is employed to promote or enact changes in the state’s land use 
program.  The principle objective was/is the legalization of marijuana for personal consumption; 
the methodology to enable this objective is only coincidentally a planning, land use, or 
development consideration and therefore subject to this obligation of plan consistency.    
 
In a general, fundamental construct, the Metro Plan provides guidance for all or most all matters 
of an urban nature. As a subordinate element of the Metro Plan, the Development Code 
provides the structure and quantitative measures by which the actual use of land is regulated. In 
this case of immediate interest, that means implementing Ballot Measure 91’s interpretative 
legislation contained in SB 3400.  SB3400 regulates certain aspects of the production, 
processing, wholesaling and retailing of recreational marijuana, primarily via licensing 
authorized by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission and as found in OAR 845-25. The Metro 
Plan requires new land use regulations, clearly a component of SB3400, to be consistent with 

Attachment 2, Page 13 of 22



 
 

the policies of the Metro Plan, and that any new regulations that are inconsistent with the Metro 
Plan either not be adopted or require amendment of the Metro Plan to achieve consistency 
between the code and the plan. The Springfield Development Code is premised upon an 
ongoing relationship of consistency with the Metro Plan.  Chapter 1 of the SDC contains a 
synopsis explaining the relationship of the Code to the Statewide Planning Goals and the Metro 
Plan; Chapter 2 of the SDC contains general provisions including the following purpose 
statement: “The regulations contained in this Code are intended to ensure that development is:  
Sited on property zoned in accordance with the applicable Metro Plan diagram and/or applicable 
Refinement Plan diagram.”  The amendments included with this proposal will be based on the 
appropriate zoning for each new use.  This question of appropriateness is answered by 
application of the purpose and intent of individual zoning districts using the most fundamental, 
traditional zoning methodology of separating incompatible uses and co-mingling compatible and 
similar uses.  For example, these amendments propose to limit retail sales of recreational 
marijuana to retail zoning districts; to limit production and processing of marijuana to industrial 
districts; establish setbacks or separation from residential uses (in many cases as specified by 
statute); require mechanical collection and dispersal of odors generated by marijuana 
undergoing these various processes and actions; and, prohibit some or all of these activities in 
most residential districts and anywhere outside the city limits.  The use of the Development 
Code to regulate time, place, and intensity of uses is consistent with the original and continuing 
purpose and intent of zoning and development regulations, both of which are fundamental to 
implementing Plan policy and providing a consistent structure within which it is possible to affix 
the ongoing objective of Plan compliance, notwithstanding the specific nature of the use or its 
relationship with each of the applicable statewide land use goals.  
 
Finding:  This broader understanding of planning policy and implementation techniques is 
acknowledged in Chapter I General Findings, page I-8: “The development and implementation 
of planning policies have social and economic impacts;”  
 
Finding:  The relationship between the Metro Plan and other plans, policies and reports is 
described in Chapter I, page I-6:    “The Metro Plan is the basic guiding land use policy 
document, but it is not the only such document.  As indicated in the Purpose section, above, the 
Metro Plan is a framework plan, and it is important that it be supplemented by more detailed 
refinement plans, programs, and policies;”  
 
Finding:  The Metro Plan anticipates that application of the goals, objectives and policies will not 
always occur in a predictable way nor will events unfold in a preferred sequence; in these 
circumstances each governing body will exercise its authority and discretion in selecting the 
proper  tools and applicable policies in pursuit of maintaining Metro Plan compliance as 
described under  “Use of the Metro Plan” in Chapter I, page I-4: “The revised goals, objectives, 
and policies contained in this Metro Plan are not presented in any particular order of 
importance.  The respective jurisdictions recognize that there are apparent conflicts and 
inconsistencies between and among some goals and policies.  When making decisions based 
on the Metro Plan, not all of the goals and polices can be met to the same degree in every 
instance. Use of the Metro Plan requires a balancing of its various components on a case-by-
case basis, as well as a selection of those goals, objectives, and policies most pertinent to the 
issue at hand.”  
 
Finding:  The text found under the Purpose section, page I-1, is thorough in its description of the 
planning process; how the various policies of the Plan establish the basis for most local land 

Attachment 2, Page 14 of 22



 
 

use decisions; how the public is included in these decisions; the need for coordination among 
the governments and service agencies; and the advisability of using more precise planning 
studies to assist with the application of general policy language at the local level:  “Guides all 
governments and agencies in the metropolitan area in developing and implementing their own 
activities which relate to the public planning process; Establishes the policy basis for a general, 
coordinated, long-range approach among affected agencies for the provision of the facilities and 
services needed in the metropolitan area; Provides the public with general guidelines for 
individual planning decisions.  Reference to supplemental planning documents of a more 
localized scope, including neighborhood refinement plans, is advisable when applying the Metro 
Plan to specific parcels of land or individual tax lots; Provides continuity in the planning process 
over an extended period of time; Establishes a means for consistent and coordinated planning 
decisions by all public agencies and across jurisdictional lines;”  
 
Finding:   Fundamental Principle #5, page II-A-1, Chapter II states:  “The zoning process shall 
be monitored and adjusted to meet current urban land use demands through the planning 
period for all land use categories.”  

         
Finding: The “goals” established in the Metro plan express the desires of the residents of 
Springfield. The “goals” are generally carried out through “policies,” which are 
statements of public policy. 
 
Finding:  The goals and policies of the Metro Plan do not regulate legal business 
activities at the granular level. The addition of permitted uses and development 
standards in the Springfield Development Code in response to state statutes is a 
standard function of the adopted implementing ordinance at a structural level and does 
not materially affect any existing Commercial, Industrial or Economic elements of the 
Metro Plan.   

 
Conclusion: The above recitation and citations from the Metro Plan generally speak to 
the relationship between plan policies and support documents such as zoning or 
development regulation.  This relationship exists regardless of the specific subject of this 
attraction or its place of origin; this includes the results of a popular vote legalizing a 
leisure activity, but with specific strings attached. In this regard, the foregoing 
demonstrates that the proposed code amendments are in conformance with the 
applicable policies of the Metro Plan.  

 
2.  Applicable State Statutes  
 
Marijuana Statutes 
 
 
Finding: Oregon voters approved Ballot Measure 67, the Oregon Medical Marijuana Act, in 
November 1998.  The Oregon legislature has amended the Oregon Medical Marijuana Act 
and the Act authorizes local government to adopt reasonable regulations related to the hours 
of operation, location and manner in which medical marijuana dispensaries are regulated. Cities 
have home rule authority to adopt regulations that are not unconstitutional or preempted by 
federal or state law. 
 
Finding: Oregon voters approved Ballot Measure 91 in November 2014, legalizing the personal 
use and possession of adult recreational marijuana on July 1, 2015, with certain limitations, 

Attachment 2, Page 15 of 22



 
 

including restrictions on use in public, no growing in public view, a restriction on minors 
attempting to buy or entering licensed premises, prohibiting the sale or use by persons under 
21, and imposing licensing and other requirements on marijuana cultivation, processing and 
dispensing facilities.  The measure, as amended by the Oregon State Legislature in 2015 (HB 
3400 A, Section 33), authorizes reasonable conditions on the manner in which licensed 
retailers, processors, producers, wholesalers may sell marijuana; reasonable limitations on the 
hours during which a licensed marijuana facility may sell marijuana items; reasonable 
requirements related to a public’s access to a licensed premises; reasonable distance between 
facilities (no more than 1000 feet); and reasonable limitations on where a licensed premises 
may be located. Such regulations must be consistent with the City’s comprehensive plan, 
development code and public health and safety laws. 
 
Finding: Senate Bill 460 allows medical marijuana retailers to sell limited amounts of adult 
recreational marijuana beginning October 1, 2015. This provision sunsets on December 
31, 2016. 
 
Finding: These regulations are also adopted in furtherance and protection of the health, 
safety and welfare of the citizens of Springfield, including under the broad home rule authority 
of the City of Springfield municipal charter.  
 
Finding: In determining what is “reasonable,” the City has reviewed existing precedents across 
the state of Oregon, as well as Colorado and Washington states. 
 
Finding: The City Council, in adopting this ordinance, is concerned with fairness, neighborhood 
compatibility, respecting the will of the voters, protecting youth and minors, crime and nuisance 
issues, a cooperative and balanced approach and allowing new businesses to emerge and 
grow.  
 
Finding: Adverse effects of marijuana facilities to the community, addressed through 
reasonable time, place and manner restrictions, such as the ones adopted by this ordinance, 
include: 
 

1. Exposure of minors to the use and commercial aspects of marijuana; 
2. Offensive odors from marijuana cultivation, production and storage; and 
3. Incompatible development in residential areas. 

 
Finding: State statutes continued to develop during the 2015 legislative session for adoption by 
the implementing agencies, the Oregon Health Authority (OHA) and the Oregon Liquor Control 
Commission (OLCC).  Subsequently, the OLCC published several versions of draft rules, and 
then comprehensive final temporary rules. OHA has also published additional draft rules on 
the medical marijuana dispensary program, labeling, concentration and serving size and 
testing. Measure 91, HB 3400, other applicable statutes and the various rules are all available 
for public review. 
 
Finding:  The SDC zoning rules under consideration herein are designed to establish and 
regulate state licensed and legal marijuana rules in accordance with all applicable state 
statutes.  
 
 

Attachment 2, Page 16 of 22



 
 

Finding: When a development application includes a proposed comprehensive plan 
amendment or land use district change, or both, the proposal shall be reviewed to determine 
whether it significantly affects a transportation facility, in accordance with Oregon 
Administrative Rule (OAR) 660-012-0060. 
 
Finding:  The new text amends the SDC, an implementation ordinance and functional 
component of the Metro Plan, and is an amendment to a land use regulation as noted in OAR 
660-012-0060.  The proposed amendments are not site specific and do not affect the 
functional classification of any street. The proposed amendments will have no measurable 
impacts on the amount of traffic on the existing transportation system; the proposed amendments 
will allow uses within specific zoning districts that will not generate more individual vehicle trips, materials 
deliveries, or other freight purposes than would existing permitted uses within these zoning districts 
affected by these amendments; therefore the proposed text amendments do not cause a 
“significant effect” under ORS 660-012-0060. 
 
 
State Land Use Statutes  

Finding: State statutes which apply to this request include those statutes requiring compliance 
to Statewide Planning Goals.  The statute requiring compliance is ORS 197.250.  This 
application can be deemed in compliance by adoption of findings relating how the application 
conforms to each of the Statewide Goals, as outlined in the following section.   

Conclusion: The above recitations, citations and conclusions demonstrate that the proposed 
amendments are in conformance with the applicable state statutes for new marijuana uses.  
 
 
 
3.  Applicable State-wide Planning Goals and Administrative Rules.  
 
Finding: The proposed amendments are consistent with the applicable State land use law.  In 
particular, they satisfy Goal 1: Citizen Involvement, Goal 2: Land Use Planning, and Goal 9: 
Economic Development. 

 
Goal 1, Citizen Involvement  
 
This Goal is satisfied through following the City’s acknowledged text amendment process that 
includes a Planning Commission public hearing, followed by a City Council public hearing on 
the proposed land use code amendments. In addition, the City has met and notified known 
marijuana business owners.  See also the dates and substance of notices announcing public meetings 
to discuss these proposed amendments under the procedural requirements on page 1 of this 
document. 

 
Goal 2, Land Use Planning 
 
This Goal requires a land use planning process and policy framework as a basis for all 
decision and actions related to use of land and to assure an adequate factual base for such 
decisions and actions.  The Goal is met because the City followed the land use planning 
process and policy framework established in the City’s acknowledged Comprehensive Plan 
(Metro Plan) and Development Code as a basis for the decisions and actions related to the 

Attachment 2, Page 17 of 22



 
 

new regulations regarding the use of land and to assure an adequate factual base for these 
decisions and actions.  The proposed amendments will be adopted by the City Council after a 
public hearing.   Multiple opportunities were provided for review and comment by citizens and 
affected governmental units during the preparation of this ordinance. 

 
Goal 2 specifically states that minor plan changes such as the marijuana business 
regulations, should be based on special studies or other information which will serve as the 
factual basis to support the change. The public need and justification for the particular change 
should be established. The City rules proposed reflect the input of knowledgeable members 
of the industry, marijuana law, the Willamalane Parks and Recreation District, and the 
community at large. Staff and Planning Commission studied several maps with buffers around 
various uses including schools, childcare facilities, parks and also between marijuana facilities. 
The proposed amendments include buffers around schools and residential districts in order to 
balance a strong and heartfelt desire to balance protection of children from drug use while still 
allowing marijuana uses to locate in the City and to serve legitimate medical needs and also 
to allow marijuana retail to develop their legal businesses for adults. 
 
Goal 3 – Agricultural Land 
 
All land in the City’s urban transition area carries City, urban zoning.  An exception to this goal 
was taken in 1982 when the comprehensive plan was acknowledged. Goal 3 does not apply to 
land within the jurisdiction of the City of Springfield. 
 
Goal 4 – Forest Land 
 
All land in the City’s urban transition area carries City zoning.  An exception to this goal was 
taken in 1982 when the comprehensive plan was acknowledged. 
Goal 5 – Open Spaces, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Natural Resources 
 
The proposed amendments do not provide an alternative approach to development review for 
these activities.  These proposed new uses will be subject to the same rules and standards 
regarding development within or adjacent to inventoried Goal 5 resources that apply to all 
existing permitted uses.  No change to the City’s Goal 5 inventory or Goal 5 protection 
measures is proposed.  The City’s long standing acknowledgment of compliance with Goal 5 
is unaffected by these proposed amendments.  
 
 Goal 6 – Air, Water and Land Resources Quality 
 
The addition of these new uses in the use lists in the CC, MRC, LMI, HI and SHI zoning district 
has no effect on the City’s long standing acknowledgment of compliance with Goal 6.   
 
 Goal 7 – Areas Subject to Natural Disasters and Hazards 
 
 The addition of these new uses as permitted uses within the city limits does not relieve the 
developer from compliance with the city’s development review standards as they are applied 
within areas designated for consideration under Goal 7, nor are any of these uses more 
susceptible to the potential effects of these naturally occurring phenomena than are existing 
uses permitted within these areas, therefore the City’s long standing acknowledgment of 
compliance with Goal 7 is maintained. 
 
 

Attachment 2, Page 18 of 22



 
 

Goal 8 – Recreational Needs 
 
The Willamalane Park and Recreation Plan constitutes the City’s efforts and commitments to 
compliance with Goal 8.  Among other elements of the park plan is a map showing all existing 
parks, both improved and undeveloped, in Willamalane’s inventory.  Most of these parks are 
located within residential plan designations, but several of them, Willamalane Park for 
instance, are near or are adjacent to commercial or industrial designations. This is of interest 
because one of the components of the proposed Code amendments recommends two 
commercial zones (CC, MRC) and three industrial zones (LMI, HI, SHI) as suitable for 
licensed activities, while at the same time recommending a minimum separation of 500 feet 
between any of the licensed activities and any park. The statute has no such standard for 
separation from parks, but it does require 1,000 feet of separation between all licensed 
activities and all K-12 public and private schools; this separation is included in the proposed 
amendments.  These proposed Code amendments do not influence the ability of Willamalane 
to achieve its long range plan for the provision of park and recreation sites because the 
separation limitation is imposed on licensed sites, not on parks, therefore the Park District can 
make improvements to undeveloped parks, and could acquire land for new park development 
regardless of the location of any existing licensed activity therefore the City’s long standing 
acknowledgment of compliance with Goal 8 is maintained.    
 
Goal 9, Economic Development  
 
This Goal is implemented through Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) Division 9 which is 
intended to ensure that each jurisdiction maintain an adequate land supply for economic 
development and employment growth. The proposed amendments establish regulations that 
are consistent with addressing these same concerns (distance from residential uses; 
mitigation of obnoxious odors at the property line) that existing uses must satisfy; such an 
approach reasonably accommodates existing and new marijuana businesses, allowing them 
to emerge and grow, thereby diversifying the local economy.  Additionally, the language of the 
statute makes it clear that the state’s interest is in maintaining an adequate supply of product 
without artificially influencing demand or supply in such a way as to encourage the incursion of 
the black market.  Staff evaluated the effect of required separation distances, location of 
commercial and industrial sites, and sites meeting minimum size requirements for production 
licensing; there were a sufficient number of properties satisfying these standards to preclude 
the artificial or unsought effect of limiting the supply of sites; therefore the City’s long standing 
acknowledgement of compliance with Goal 9 is maintained.  
 
Goal 10 – Housing 
 
The proposed amendments prohibit any of these licensed activities in residential zoning 
districts; require a minimum separation of 50 feet from retail and wholesale uses; and 500 or 
1,000 feet from production (grow) or processing.  These proposed amendments will not 
reduce residential inventories as these uses are not allowed in residential zones; will not 
impact residential inventories as manufacturing or processing activities must be 500 or 1,000 
feet from the nearest property that allows residential use; therefore the City’s long standing 
acknowledgment of compliance with Goal 10 is maintained. 
 
 Goal 11 – Public Facilities and Services 
 
The proposed amendments do not result in the need to adjust or amend existing policies or 
projects included in the City’s adopted Public Facilities and Services Plan through introduction 

Attachment 2, Page 19 of 22



 
 

of uses that will generate more demand than existing, permitted uses in these same zoning 
districts proposed for these licensed activities; therefore the City’s long standing 
acknowledgment of compliance with Goal 11 is maintained. 
 
Goal 12 – Transportation 
 
Finding: When a development application includes a proposed comprehensive plan 
amendment or land use district change, or both, the proposal shall be reviewed to determine 
whether it significantly affects a transportation facility, in accordance with Oregon 
Administrative Rule (OAR) 660-012-0060. 
 
Finding:  The new text amends the SDC, an implementation ordinance and functional 
component of the Metro Plan, and is an amendment to a land use regulation as noted in OAR 
660-012-0060.  The proposed amendments are not site specific and therefore do not affect the 
functional classification of any street. The proposed amendments will have no measurable 
impacts on the amount of traffic on the existing transportation system; the proposed 
amendments will allow uses within specific zoning districts that will not generate more 
individual vehicle trips, materials deliveries, or other freight purposes than would existing 
permitted uses within these zoning therefore the proposed text amendments do not cause a 
“significant effect” under ORS 660-012-0060. 
 
Section 660-012-0060 of the Transportation Planning Rules requires evaluation of a 
comprehensive plan or land use regulation amendment to determine if the amendment 
significantly affects a transportation facility.  The proposed SDC amendment does not:  
change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility; change 
standards implementing a functional classification system; allow types of levels of use which 
would result in levels of travel or access which are inconsistent with the functional 
classification of a transportation facility; or reduce the level of service of a facility below the 
minimum acceptable level identified in the Metropolitan Area Transportation Plan (TransPlan). 
 
The proposed amendment will not affect a transportation facility and will not affect compliance 
with policies or projects contained in TransPlan, a functional refinement to the Metro Plan, 
acknowledged as complying with the requirements of Goal 12; therefore the City’s long 
standing acknowledgment of compliance with Goal 12 is maintained.  
Goal 13 – Energy Conservation 
 
The proposed amendments do not require the provision of any form of energy, or at higher 
levels, than current, existing uses demand; these proposed amendments do not enable urban 
uses to consume or dispense any form of energy in excess of the demands and discharge of 
current, existing uses; therefore the City’s long standing acknowledgment of compliance with 
Goal 13 is maintained. 
 
 
Goal 14 – Urbanization 
 
This goal is concerned with the management of land within the urban growth boundary so that 
future growth occurs in a compact form, without leap-frogging or reflecting a pattern of sprawl, 
and that high quality farm and forest land is protected for those activities.  These proposed 
amendments do not encourage sprawl or lower than targeted densities, or uncoordinated 
development.  All of the new uses proposed in these amendments are equal to existing uses 
in terms of land needs, utilities, infrastructure; they are no more likely to encourage scattered 

Attachment 2, Page 20 of 22



 
 

development than existing permitted uses, and they are no more likely to deplete commercial 
and industrial inventories than any of the existing, permitted uses.  The management of the 
City’s land use inventories is unaffected by these proposed amendments therefore the City’s 
long standing acknowledgment of compliance with Goal 14 is maintained.     
 
Goal 15 – Willamette River Greenway 
 
The City’s obligation and requirements to protect and enhance the Willamette River Greenway 
is unaffected by these proposed amendments; all residential zones within the Greenway is 
unchanged by this proposal inasmuch as these uses are prohibited in residential zones; the 
Glenwood Riverfront is zoned Mixed Use, either residential, commercial, or employment, and 
in all cases none of the proposed use additions are permitted in mixed use zones; therefore 
the City’s long standing acknowledgment of compliance with Goal 15 is maintained.    
 
Goals 16 through 19 – Estuarine Resources, Coastal Shorelands, Beaches and Dunes, and 
Ocean Resources 
 
There are no coastal, ocean, estuarine, or beach and dune resources within the City’s 
jurisdiction.  These goals do not apply in Springfield. 
 
 
Conclusion and Recommendation 
 
The City of Springfield recognizes the importance of a diverse economy that supports a mix of 
uses. The proposed amendments address compatibility concerns raised by members of the 
public; however, they are not overly regulatory and therefore allow new businesses to emerge 
and grow, thereby diversifying the local economy.  The proposed regulations provide clear 
standards and specify under what circumstances these licensed activities will be allowed.  
Such specificity is useful to all parties interested in these activities, including elected and 
appointed officials, City staff and the general public. 
 
The preceding findings demonstrate that the proposed amendments are consistent with the 
criteria of Section 5 of the Springfield Development Code, the Metro Plan, applicable statewide 
planning goals, and applicable administrative rules. Staff recommends the Planning 
Commission forward a motion to the City Council recommending adoption of these Code 
amendments. 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
  

 
  

 

Attachment 2, Page 21 of 22



Exhibit A-1

Attachment 2, Page 22 of 22



Attachment 3, Page 1 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 2 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 3 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 4 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 5 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 6 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 7 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 8 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 9 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 10 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 11 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 12 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 13 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 14 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 15 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 16 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 17 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 18 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 19 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 20 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 21 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 22 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 23 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 24 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 25 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 26 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 27 of 28



Attachment 3, Page 28 of 28



 Oregon Retailers of Cannabis Association 
www.oregoncannabisretailers.com 

541-632-4442 
	
 
 
 
 
March 1st, 2016 
 

To:       The Members of the Planning Commission, the Mayor, 
and Members of the City Council for the city of Springfield, OR 

Re: Proposed Code Amendments for the City of Springfield 
regarding regulations on new and existing cannabis businesses 

 
 

My name is Casey Houlihan and I am the Executive Director of the Oregon Retailers of Cannabis Association 
(ORCA).  The Oregon Retailers of Cannabis Association is a nonprofit trade association of retail cannabis 
businesses located all across the state of Oregon.  We are committed to helping to craft sensible retail cannabis 
policy at the state and municipal level that prioritizes public safety, while allowing this new industry to thrive.   
 
This testimony has been developed based on feedback from and conversations with our member-businesses in the 
City of Springfield, and it is consistent with our statewide policy goals for a fair retail business environment. 
 
We are largely supportive of the Proposed Code Amendments submitted and recommended by the city’s Planning 
Commission.  The proposed changes address many of the key concerns of most of our members, chief among them 
their ability to continue operating their businesses without fear of being displaced, or fear of moneyed out-of-state 
interests opening up stores on every corner and tripling the number of retail stores located in Springfield overnight. 
 
As you know, the Oregon Legislature and the OLCC failed to include the 1000ft buffer between adult-use retail 
facilities that has been in effect for years for existing OHA dispensaries.  This would attract large-scale retail 
operations from other states, as they could open a new store almost anywhere, regardless of where existing facilities 
are located.  The result is local businesses are forced out, and profits are leaving the community rather than staying. 
 
The proposed code amendments to extend this 1000ft buffer zone to apply to areas between any retail businesses 
adequately addresses this concern, and we appreciate the city’s willingness to address this problem proactively. 
 
The most important piece of the proposed changes that we support is the portion that grants non-conforming use 
status to existing businesses currently operating within the scope of the law.  Several of our members in the city of 
Springfield would not be able to open a new retail business at their current location based on some of the allowable 
zoning criteria outlined in the proposed code amendments – we have a retailer within 50ft of residential zoning, a 
retailer in a mixed-use zoning, and a retailer in the Glenwood district, all of whom would otherwise be denied. 
 
Our members feel that the restrictions on new retail facilities are reasonable for preserving the character of our 
community, while leaving room for our industry to continue it’s growth.  We support these proposed changes, so 
long as it’s certain that the businesses that are currently operating and licensed by the OHA may continue operating. 
 
It is also crucial that these businesses be allowed to continue operating in the event that a school, park, or other 
building that would impact the ability to license a cannabis business moves within their area.  This is consistent 
with grandfathering guidelines established by the Oregon legislature in HB3400 during last year’s session. 
 
 

Attachment 4, Page 1 of 2



 Oregon Retailers of Cannabis Association 
www.oregoncannabisretailers.com 

541-632-4442 
	
 
 
 
 
Another piece of the proposed changes that we supported was the prohibition on delivery sales of cannabis by 
businesses that are not licensed to operate in the city of Springfield.  Many of our members expressed concerns 
about a ‘race-to-the-bottom’ with larger businesses in Eugene who could afford to continually undercut others. 
 
Some of the policy recommendations that we feel the city would stand to benefit by adopting include: 

• Collocation of other businesses – The proposed code amendments would prohibit collocating cannabis 
businesses at the same address.  We feel that the city should amend this language to allow for businesses to 
be licensed at the same address so long as there are adequate separations in place.  This is consistent with 
what is allowed by the OLCC – a grow site, for instance, could also be used for extraction so long as they 
are separated properly and in accordance with public safety standards for each type of use. 
 

• Off-site Waste Removal – One portion of the proposed code amendment seems onerous for retail 
businesses in that they are required to dispose of trash containing marijuana off-site.  To our knowledge, no 
retailers in Oregon have experienced any problems with folks obtaining marijuana by sifting through the 
trash outside of dispensaries.  We recognize the city’s desire to ensure public safety here, but we would 
instead urge the city to instead require that businesses make the product ‘unusable’ prior to disposing of it 
[mixing with coffee grounds, etc], similar to the proper disposal of prescription medications.  We feel that 
this accomplished the same public safety goal, but without the added cost to local businesses. 
 

• Clarity on Production and Processing Guidelines – It wasn’t clear to our members whether the 
grandfathering provision for existing businesses would apply to current OHA grow sites or processors in 
areas that do not conform to the proposed set of zoning standards for cannabis production.  If the proposed 
code amendments do not extend this protection to growers, processors, and wholesalers, this could apply 
artificial constraints on the supply of available business space, which could undermine the industry.  

We propose that the city loosen some of the language surrounding allowable zoning types for production, 
processing, and wholesaling to include more commercial and industrial zoning types such that the list more 
closely resembles the broader range of allowable zoning types in the OLCC’s guidelines.  To our 
knowledge, other communities haven’t experienced problems or nuisances from production facilities – 
often indistinguishable on the exterior from other commercial or industrial uses – near schools or parks. 

If these concerns were addressed adequately, then we can say that we strongly support the full set of proposed code 
amendments as written and urge their passage and adoption.  Otherwise, we feel that the framework submitted by 
the Planning Commission is sound and solves most of the urgent problems facing the local cannabis industry. 

We want to thank you very much for the opportunity to provide input on these proposed changes, and we look 
forward to speaking with you about them further in the near future.  Please don’t hesitate to reach out to us for more 
information about our policy recommendations, or any issues where we may be helpful as they arise in the future. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Casey Houlihan  
Executive Director 
Oregon Retailers of Cannabis Association 
541-632-4442, 
casey@oregoncannabisretailers.com 
www.oregoncannabisretailers.com 

Attachment 4, Page 2 of 2



 
 

  Ordinance No. _________________________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE SECTION 3.2-310 AND 3.2-410 ADDING 
VARIOUS RECREATONAL MARIJUANA BUSINESSES TO SPECIFIC COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL ZONING 
DISTRICTS; SECTION 4.7-177 ADDING DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA 
BUSINESSES; AND SECTIONS 3.2-210, 3.2-415, 3.2-610, AND 3.4-255 PROHIBITING RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA 
BUSINESSES; ADOPTING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 
The City Council of the City of Springfield finds that: 
 

WHEREAS, on November 9, 2015, the Springfield City Council directed the Springfield Planning 
Commission to undertake a review of recently enacted state law and administrative rules regulating the 
production, processing, wholesale and retail sales of recreational marijuana, and upon the conclusion of this 
review, prepare recommended amendments to the Springfield Development Code (SDC) and conduct an initial 
public hearing of these proposed amendments in preparation of City Council consideration of these proposals; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held work sessions on December 15, 2015; December 22, 2015; 
and January 20, 2016; and,   

 
WHEREAS, notice of the proposed SDC amendments was provided to the Department of Land 

Conservation and Development (DLCD) on February 12, 2016; and,  
 
WHEREAS, published notice of the Planning Commission and City Council public hearings for the 

proposed Development Code text amendments appeared in the Register Guard Newspaper on February 16, 
2016; and, 

 
WHEREAS, additional notice to known existing marijuana business owners and affected parties having 

participated in previous City sanctioned activities on these proposed text amendments was provided on 
February 19, 2016; and,  

 
WHEREAS, these proposed amendments to the Springfield Development Code are intended to provide 

regulatory control of the production, processing, wholesaling and retailing of recreational marijuana as these 
uses and activities are undertaken in compliance with the rules of the Oregon Liquor Control Commission as 
promulgated in Oregon Administrative Rule 845, Division 25 and in Chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, and medical 
marijuana as these uses and activities are undertaken in compliance with the rules of the Oregon Health 
Authority as promulgated in Oregon Administrative Rule 333, Division 8 and in Chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, Section 5.6-100 of the SDC sets forth procedures for the amendment of the Springfield 

Development Code; and     
   
WHEREAS, the Springfield Planning Commission conducted a public hearing concerning the proposed 

amendments to SDC Sections 3.2-210, 3.2-310, 3.2-410, 3.2-415, 3.2-610, 3.4-255 and 4.7-177 on March 1, 2016 
and recommended approval of the proposed SDC amendments to the Springfield City Council.  The Planning 
Commission recommendation to the Council is based upon the findings set forth in the Staff Report and on the 
evidence and testimony in the record; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a first reading and public hearing concerning the proposed 

amendments to SDC Sections 3.2-210, 3.2-310, 3.2-410, 3.2-415, 3.2-610, 3.4-255 and 4.7-177 on March 21, 
2016; and 

Attachment 5, Page 1 of 8



 
 

WHEREAS, on April 4, 2016, the City Council conducted a second reading of the ordinance and is now 
ready to take action on this application based upon findings in support of adoption of these SDC amendments as 
set forth in the aforementioned Staff Report incorporated herein by as Exhibit A and the evidence and 
testimony already in the record as well as the evidence and testimony presented at this public hearing held in 
the matter of adopting this Ordinance.  

 
WHEREAS, these regulations are adopted through the City of Springfield’s broad home rule authority 

under the Chapter II of Springfield City Charter which provides the following:  

Section 4. Powers of the City.  The City has all powers that the constitutions, statutes and common law 
of the United States and of the State of Oregon now or hereafter expressly or impliedly granted or 
allowed the City, as fully as though this Charter specifically enumerated each of those powers. 

 

Section 5. Construction of Powers.  In this Charter no specification of power is exclusive or restricts 
authority that the City would have if the power were not specified. The Charter shall be liberally 
construed, so that the City may exercise as fully as possible all powers possible for it under this Charter 
and under United States and Oregon law. A power of the City continues unless the grant of the power 
clearly indicates the contrary. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, based on the foregoing recitals, the City Council of the City of Springfield does ordain 

as follows:  
 
Section 1.  Springfield Development Code Sections 3.2-210, 3.2-310, 3.2-410, 3.2-415, 3.2-610, 3.4-255 and 4.7-
177 are amended to read as follows:  
 
3.2-300 Commercial Zoning Districts  

 
3.2-310 Schedule of Use Categories 

  Commercial Districts 
Categories/Uses NC CC MRC GO 

Marijuana Business   (Section 4.7-177)         
Marijuana Retail Outlet  (Recreational or Medical) N S* S* N 
 
 
Section 3.2-400 Industrial Zoning Districts  

  
3.2-410 Schedule of Use Categories 
 

  Industrial Districts 
Use Categories/Uses LMI HI SHI 

Marijuana Business   (Special Use Standards Section 4.7-177)       
Production Facilities  

Indoor/Outdoor, Tier I-II Canopy Regulations-  

     N S* S* 

Attachment 5, Page 2 of 8



 
 

  Industrial Districts 
Use Categories/Uses LMI HI SHI 

Processing Facilities 

 

S* S* N 

Wholesale Facilities 

 

S* S* N 

Marijuana Retail Outlets or Sales, as a primary or secondary use.   N N N 

 
3.2-415 Schedule of Campus Industrial Use Categories 
  

Prohibited Uses   
Marijuana Business  N 
             

3.4-200 Glenwood Riverfront Mixed-Use Plan District  
  
3.4-255 Prohibited Uses  
  
Marijuana Business.  
 
Section 3.2-600 Mixed Use Zoning Districts  

  
3.2-610 Schedule of Use Categories 
 

  Districts 
Categories/Uses MUC MUE MUR 

Marijuana Business          
Production, Processing, Wholesaling, Retail  N N N 

 
Section 3.2-200 Residential Zoning Districts  

  
3.2-210 Schedule of Use Categories 
 
  Districts 

Categories/Uses LDR SLR MDR HDR 
Marijuana Business  (4.7-177)         
Production, Processing, Wholesaling, Retail N N N N 
 
Section 4.7-177 Marijuana Uses    
 
A. Marijuana Retail Outlets shall be: 
 

Attachment 5, Page 3 of 8



 
 

1. Licensed or registered and operated in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes and applicable 
Oregon Administrative Rules.    

 
2. Licensed and regulated as specified in Chapter 7 of the Springfield Municipal Code;  
 
3. Fully contained in a permanent building in the Community Commercial or Major Retail 

Commercial Zoning Districts.  
 
4.  Prohibited in any district except CC and MRC.  
 

 
B. Where permitted by this Code, Marijuana Retail Outlets shall not be located: 
 

1. At the same address as another licensed or registered marijuana business; 
 
2. Within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public or private elementary, secondary or 

career school attended primarily by minors (“within 1,000 feet” means a straight line 
measurement in a radius extending for 1,000 feet or less in every direction from any point on 
the boundary line of the real property comprising an existing public or private elementary, 
secondary or career school primarily attended by minors);   

 
3. Within 1,000 feet of another l Marijuana Retail Outlet (“within 1,000 feet” means a straight line 

measurement in a radius extending for 1,000 feet or less in every direction from any point on 
the boundary line of the real property compromising a retail outlet);  

  
4. Within 500 feet of parks where minors congregate (“within 500 feet” means a straight line 

measurement in a radius extending for 500 feet or less in every direction from any point on the 
boundary line of the real property compromising a l Marijuana Retail Outlet).   

  
5. Within 50 feet of any residential zoning district (“within 50 feet” means a straight line 

measurement in a radius extending for 50 feet, including public right-of-way,  in every direction 
from any point of the property containing a  Marijuana Retail Outlet 

 
C.  Additional  Marijuana Retail Outlet Regulations. A  Marijuana Retail Outlet shall: 

1. Not have a drive-up window; 
2. Not operate from any temporary facility in any zone. 
3. Provide for secure storage of exterior refuse containers. 
4.           Not include outdoor storage of merchandise, raw materials, or any other material associated 

with retail sales. 
5.  Preclude any use of products on site unless expressly exempted by state statute. 
6. Not be allowed as a home occupation in any zone. 

 
D.  Industrial Uses 
  

Indoor Production   Outdoor Production   
Tier 1- Up to 5,000 square feet Tier 1- up to 20,000 square feet 
Tier II- 5001-10,000 square feet Tier II- 20,001-40,000 square feet 

 
 
  

Attachment 5, Page 4 of 8



 
 

Production Facilities  
 

1.  Indoor Production Facilities licensed by the State of Oregon as a Tier 1 operation shall be located 
within a permanent structure on a lot no smaller than 1 acre in size, shall not be located within 
500 feet of any zoning district allowing residential use, and shall provide a controlled exhaust 
system with filters designed to significantly reduce or eliminate odors at the property line. 

 
2.  Indoor Production Facilities licensed by the State of Oregon as a Tier II operation shall be located 

within a permanent structure on a lot no smaller than 5 acres in size, shall not be located within 
1000 feet of any zoning district allowing residential use, and shall provide a controlled exhaust 
system with filters designed to significantly reduce or eliminate odors at the property line. 

 
3. Outdoor Production Facilities licensed by the State of Oregon as a Tier I operation shall be 

located on a lot no smaller than 5 acres in size, shall not be located within 1000 feet of any 
zoning district allowing residential use, and shall be screened or secured in accordance with 
state statutes and this code for outdoor storage. Any structure on site used for production 
purposes shall provide a controlled exhaust system with filters designed to significantly reduce 
or eliminate odors at the property line. 

 
4. Outdoor Production Facilities licensed by the State of Oregon as a Tier II operation shall be 

located on a lot no smaller than 10 acres in size, shall not be located within 1000 feet of any 
zoning district allowing residential use and shall be screened or secured in accordance with state 
statutes and this code for outdoor storage. Any structure on site used for production purposes 
shall provide a controlled exhaust system with filters designed to significantly reduce or 
eliminate odors at the property line. 

 
Processing Facilities 
  
1. Processing Facilities performing testing, including marijuana testing laboratories, processing, or 

manufacture of edibles or concentrates shall be located within LMI or HI Districts and be 
completely enclosed within a permanent structure provide with a controlled exhaust system 
with filters designed to significantly reduce or eliminate odors at the property line.  

 
2. Processing Facilities processing cannabinoid extracts shall be located within HI Districts, shall be 

located 500 feet from any district allowing residential use and be completely enclosed within a 
permanent structure provide with a controlled exhaust system with filters designed to 
significantly reduce or eliminate odors at the property line and shall be subject to Type II Site 
Plan Review.  

 
3. Licensed or registered and operated in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes and applicable 

Oregon Administrative Rules.    
 
4. Licensed and regulated as specified in Chapter 7 of the Springfield Municipal Code;  
 
5. Located on and take access from an arterial or collector street; and 
  
Wholesale Facilities 
 
1. Licensed or registered and operated in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes and applicable 

Oregon Administrative Rules.   

Attachment 5, Page 5 of 8



 
 

  
2. Licensed and regulated as specified in Chapter 7 of the Springfield Municipal Code. 
  
3. Located on and take access from an arterial or collector street. 
 
4.           Within 50 feet of any residential zoning district (“within 50 feet” means a straight line 

measurement in a radius extending for 50 feet, including public right-of-way,  in every direction 
from any point of the property containing a  Marijuana Retail Outlet. 

 
5.  No retail sales shall be permitted from any wholesale marijuana distribution facility. 
 
6. No outdoor storage of any marijuana items shall occur at a wholesale marijuana    distribution 

facility. 
  
E.  The siting of a future school, daycare or park use that affects a licensed marijuana business existing at 

the time of the siting, shall not make the existing marijuana business in violation of the locational 
standards specified in this Code, nor shall it be grounds to refuse to renew a license.  
  

F. In the event that a licensed or registered marijuana business is existing on [INSERT EFFECTIVE DATE OF 
ORDINANCE HERE], that existing use is allowed to continue as approved. In the event a marijuana 
business  is unoccupied, discontinued or unlicensed for 6 months or more after the above date, it shall 
be subject to the non-conforming use standards of Section 5.8-100 of this code.     

 
G. Planning Review. 
 

1. When the proposed marijuana business is a change of use in an existing building, Minimum 
Development Standards (MDS) as specified in Section 5.15-100 will apply.  

 
2. When the proposed marijuana business is to be located in a new building, Site Plan Review 

standards as specified in Section 5.17-100 will apply.  
 
3. MDS or Site Plan Review approval by the Director will require, in addition to any other 

conditions of approval, a copy of the state license or registration and a copy of the City of 
Springfield marijuana  business license pursuant to Chapter 7 of the Springfield Municipal Code. 
These documents shall be required prior to occupancy. 

 
4. All marijuana businesses allowed under this code shall occur on properties inside city limits. 

  
Section 6.1-110 Meaning of Specific Words and Terms 
 

Cannabinoid means any of the chemical compounds that are the active constituents of marijuana. 
 

Cannabinoid concentrate means a substance obtained by separating cannabinoids from marijuana by: 
(a) A mechanical extraction process; or 
(b) A chemical extraction process using a nonhydrocarbon-based or other solvent, such as water, vegetable 
glycerin, vegetable oils, animal fats, isopropyl alcohol or ethanol. 

 
Cannabinoid edible means food or potable liquid into which a cannabinoid concentrate, cannabinoid extract 
or dried marijuana leaves or flowers have been incorporated. 

 

Attachment 5, Page 6 of 8



 
 

Cannabinoid extract means a substance obtained by separating cannabinoids from marijuana by: 
(a) A chemical extraction process using a hydrocarbon-based solvent, such as butane, hexane or propane; 
(b) A chemical extraction process using the hydrocarbon-based solvent carbon dioxide, if the process uses 
heat or pressure; or 
(c) Any other process identified by the commission, in consultation with the authority, by rule. 

 
Cannabinoid product means a cannabinoid edible and any other product intended for human consumption or 
use, including a product intended to be applied to the skin or hair that contains cannabinoids or dried 
marijuana leaves or flowers. 

 
Cultivation or cultivate means: all phases of growth of marijuana from seed to harvest.  
 
Marijuana means the plant Cannabis family Cannabaceae, any part of the plant of the Cannabis family 
Cannabaceae and the seeds of the plant Cannabis family Cannabaceae. “Marijuana” does not include industrial 
hemp, as defined in ORS 571.300. 

 
Marijuana business means any person or entity appropriately licensed by the Oregon Health Authority or the 
Oregon Liquor Control Commission that sells, produces, cultivates, grows, wholesales, processes, researches, 
develops or tests medical marijuana or recreational adult use marijuana within the City of Springfield. 
Marijuana grow sites means a specific location registered by the Oregon Health Authority and used by the 
grower to produce marijuana for medical use by a specific patient.  

 
Marijuana items means marijuana, cannabinoid products, cannabinoid concentrates and cannabinoid extracts. 

 
Marijuana processing means the preparing, compounding, testing or conversion of marijuana into 
cannabinoid products, cannabinoid concentrates, and cannabinoid extracts for medical or recreational 
purposes. 

 
Marijuana production  means  the  manufacture,  planting,  cultivation,  growing,  or harvesting of  
marijuana as licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission or Oregon Health Authority. 
 
Marijuana retailer means a person or entity licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission or Oregon 
Health Authority to sell marijuana items to a consumer in this state.  
 
Marijuana Retail Outlet means a business location that sells marijuana items to a consumer or patient.  

 
Marijuana  testing  laboratory  means  a  laboratory  that  tests  marijuana  items  for producer, processor, 
wholesaler or retail outlets. 

 
Marijuana wholesaler means a person or entity that purchases marijuana items in this state for resale to a 
person other than a consumer. 
Medical marijuana dispensary means a medical marijuana facility or entity registered with the Oregon 
Health Authority under ORS 475.300.  

 
Recreational marijuana means any marijuana intended for recreational use which meets all requirements for 
recreational marijuana contained in this chapter, Oregon state law, and any other applicable law. 

 
School means a building where individuals gather to receive educational instruction, either public or 
private, except as otherwise specifically defined in this code. School does not include a child care facility 
as defined in this Chapter. 

Attachment 5, Page 7 of 8



 
 

 
Section 2:  Severability Clause.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and individual provision and such holding shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield by a vote of ______ for and ______ against, 
this ______ day of ____________, 2016 
 
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Springfield this ________ day of ____________________, 2016. 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Mayor 
 
__________________________________ 
City Recorder 

 
  

Attachment 5, Page 8 of 8



 

 

 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 

 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Mary Bridget Smith, 

CAO 

 Staff Phone No: 541-746-9621 

 Estimated Time: 10 Minutes 

S P R I N G F I E L D 

C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Enhance Public Safety 

 

ITEM TITLE: BUSINESS LICENSE REGULATIONS FOR RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA 

BUSINESSES 

 

ACTION 

REQUESTED: 

Conduct a public hearing and first reading on the following ordinance: AN 

ORDINANCE ADDING SECTIONS 7.1100-7.1104 TO CHAPTER 7 OF THE 

SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL REGARDING RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA 

BUSINESSES. 
 

ISSUE 

STATEMENT: 

Under House Bill 3400 (2015), local governments may pass ordinances relating to 

and governing the production, use, sale, and licensing of recreational marijuana.  

The city seeks to adopt reasonable regulations governing recreational marijuana 

businesses in the City of Springfield. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1 – Proposed Ordinance 

Attachment 2 – Attachment 1 to the Proposed Ordinance (proposed code language 

for SMC 7.1100-7.1104) 

 

DISCUSSION/ 

FINANCIAL 

IMPACT: 

Council is in the process of considering development code amendments adopting 

land use regulations for medical and recreational marijuana businesses.  Medical 

marijuana dispensaries are currently required to obtain a business license from the 

City under SMC 7.600 et seq, but there is no such requirement for recreational 

marijuana businesses.  City staff recommends that recreational marijuana business 

regulations be adopted at the same time as the associated land use regulations in 

order to prevent a gap during which these businesses are allowed under the 

development code but not regulated by the municipal code.   

 

The attached ordinance is modeled after the medical marijuana dispensary 

regulations, with modifications as appropriate under state law for recreational 

marijuana businesses. The ordinance accomplishes the following:  

 

 Creates definitions for regulation 

 Requires recreational marijuana businesses to obtain a business license, pay 

a fee and abide by adopted regulations; creates separate licenses and fees 

for retail and non-retail businesses (i.e. processors, producers, wholesalers). 

 Requires all employees to undergo a background check  

 New recreational marijuana businesses shall locate in accordance with state 

regulations and local zoning regulations  

 Precludes minors on site except where allowed under state regulations. 

 Requires compliance with the City sign ordinance 

 Requires compliance with the City alarm code (alarm systems are required 

under OLCC regulation) 

 Sets hours of operation (consistent with OLCC regulations for retail sales). 

 Precludes free distribution 

 Precludes public consumption on site. 

These regulations will become effective immediately if adopted under emergency 

procedures.  

 



ORDINANCE NO. _______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADDING SECTIONS 7.1100-7.1104 TO CHAPTER 7 OF THE 
SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL REGARDING RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA 

BUSINESSES 
 
The City Council of the City of Springfield finds that: 
 
WHEREAS, in 2014, Oregon voters passed Ballot Measure 91, which allowed adults 21 
and older to use, grow, process, and sell limited amounts of marijuana for recreational 
purposes; 
 
WHEREAS, in 2015, the Oregon Legislature passed House Bill 3400, which created a 
regulatory and licensing scheme for the licensing, production, processing, and sale of 
recreational marijuana and cannabinoid products; 
 
WHEREAS, under House Bill 3400, the City of Springfield may pass ordinances relating 
to and governing the production, use, sale and licensing of recreational marijuana 
pursuant to state law; 
 
WHEREAS, these regulations are adopted through the City of Springfield’s broad home 
rule authority under the Chapter II of Springfield City Charter which provides the 
following:  
 

Section 4. Powers of the City.  The City has all powers that the constitutions, 
statutes and common law of the United States and of the State of Oregon now 
or hereafter expressly or impliedly granted or allowed the City, as fully as though 
this Charter specifically enumerated each of those powers. 

 

Section 5. Construction of Powers.  In this Charter no specification of power 
is exclusive or restricts authority that the City would have if the power were not 
specified. The Charter shall be liberally construed, so that the City may exercise 
as fully as possible all powers possible for it under this Charter and under United 
States and Oregon law. A power of the City continues unless the grant of the 
power clearly indicates the contrary. 

  
WHEREAS, recreational marijuana is a new industry and the City of Springfield seeks to 
develop local regulations that will protect public health and safety; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to regulate recreational marijuana facilities to ensure 
that such businesses are compatible with existing businesses and neighborhoods, and 
that they operate in a manner that considers the potential impacts on law enforcement, 
other businesses, and livability in the community, while simultaneously allowing 
legitimate business practices in accordance with the will of City residents and voters. 
 
 

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 2



 
NOW THEREFORE THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  Chapter 7 BUSINESS of the Springfield Municipal Code is hereby 
amended to include Sections 7.1100 through 7.1104 addressing recreational marijuana 
facilities as more particularly described and set forth in Attachment 1 attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 Section 2.  Except as specifically amended herein, Chapter 7 shall continue in full 
force and effect. 
 
 Section 3.  Section 7.1104 provides for a retail and non-retail business licenses 
with fees to be set by Council resolution. 
 

Section 4.  Severability Clause.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
phrase or portion of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 
individual provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion 
hereof. 
 
 Section 5.  Effective Date of Ordinance.  This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days 
after its adoption by the Council and approval by the Mayor. 
 
 ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield this ______ day of 
March, 2016, by a vote of ______ for and ______ against. 
 
 APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Springfield this ______ day of March, 
2016. 
 
 
 
            
      _______________________________ 
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Recorder 
 

Attachment 1, Page 2 of 2



  
 

7.1100 Purpose. 
 
To protect the public from unlawful use and sale of recreational marijuana.  All recreational 
marijuana sales shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of HB 3400, ORS 
Chapter 475, and all applicable Oregon Administrative Regulations.  Registration or licensing by 
the Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) is not a guarantee that any recreational 
marijuana business will be permitted to operate in the City of Springfield.  
 
These regulations set forth by the Springfield Municipal Code provide reasonable regulations to 
supplement the rules promulgated by OLCC. These regulations are intended to address solely 
the issue of producing, processing, transporting, selling, testing, or delivering marijuana for 
commercial recreational use. These regulations do not address and shall not be applied to any 
medical or other use of marijuana that does not relate to the authorized use under Oregon’s 
existing Medical Marijuana Act. 
 
7. 1101 Definitions 
 
Cannabinoid means any of the chemical compounds that are the active constituents of 
marijuana. 
 
Cannabinoid concentrate means a substance obtained by separating cannabinoids from 
marijuana by: (a) a mechanical extraction process; (b) a chemical extraction process using a 
nonhydrocarbon-based or other solvent, such as water, vegetable glycerin, vegetable oils, 
animal fats, isopropyl alcohol or ethanol; or (c) A chemical extraction process using the 
hydrocarbon-based solvent carbon dioxide, provided that the process does not involve the use 
of high heat or pressure. 
 
Cannabinoid edible means food or potable liquid into which a cannabinoid concentrate, 
cannabinoid extract or dried marijuana leaves or flowers have been incorporated. 
 
Cannabinoid extract means a substance obtained by separating cannabinoids from marijuana 
by: (a) a chemical extraction process using a hydrocarbon-based solvent, such as butane, 
hexane or propane; (b) a chemical extraction process using the hydrocarbon-based solvent 
carbon dioxide, if the process uses high heat or pressure; or (c) any other process identified by 
law. 
 
Cannabinoid product means a cannabinoid edible and any other product intended for human 
consumption or use, including a product intended to be applied to the skin or hair, that contains 
cannabinoids or dried marijuana leaves or flowers. “Cannabinoid product” does not include (a) 
usable marijuana by itself; (b) a cannabinoid concentrate by itself; (c) a cannabinoid extract by 
itself; or (d) industrial hemp, as defined in ORS 571.300. 
 
Consumer means a person who purchases, acquires, owns, holds, or uses marijuana items 
other than for the purpose of resale. 
 
License means a license issued pursuant to Springfield Municipal Code sections 7.000 to 7.006. 
 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 5



  
 

Marijuana means all parts of the plant of the Cannabis genera of the family Cannabaceae, 
whether growing or not; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, 
manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant or its resin, as may be 
defined by Oregon law. It does not include the mature stalks of the plant, fiber produced from 
the stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds of the plant, any other compound, manufacture, 
salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the mature stalks (except the resin extracted 
therefrom), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seed of the plant which is incapable of 
germination. The definition of marijuana includes but is not limited to all marijuana-infused 
products and marijuana extract. 
 
Marijuana items means marijuana, cannabinoid products, cannabinoid concentrates, and 
cannabinoid extra. 
 
Processes means the processing, compounding, or conversion of marijuana into cannabinoid 
products, cannabinoid concentrates, or cannabinoid extracts. 
 
Produces means the manufacturing, planning, cultivating, growing, or harvesting of marijuana.   
 
Retail sale means the transfer of marijuana or marijuana items in exchange for any valuable 
consideration to a consumer.  
 
Retail recreational marijuana business means any person or entity that is engaged in the retail 
sale of marijuana or marijuana items for commercial recreational use within the city.  
Recreational marijuana business does not include medical marijuana dispensaries as defined in 
section 7.601 of this code. 
 
Non-retail recreational marijuana business means any person or entity, other than a retail 
recreational marijuana business, that processes, produces, transports, sells, tests, or delivers 
marijuana or marijuana items for commercial recreational use within the city.  Recreational 
marijuana business does not include medical marijuana dispensaries as defined in section 7.601 
of this code. 
 
7.1102 License Required. 
 

(1) No person shall establish, maintain, or operate a business that is engaged in the retail 
sale of marijuana or marijuana items for commercial recreational use within the city 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a 
recreational marijuana business engaged in retail sales is carried on, whether for profit 
or not, shall be deemed a retail recreational marijuana business subject to the provisions 
of sections 7.1100 to 7.1104. Each licensee shall meet the requirements set forth in 
sections 7.000 to 7.006. 
 

(2) No person shall establish, maintain, or operate a business that produces, processes, 
transports, sells, tests, or delivers marijuana or marijuana items for commercial 
recreational use other than retail sale within the city unless a license for that use is 
obtained from the city. Every place or building where a non-retail recreational marijuana 

Attachment 2, Page 2 of 5



  
 

business is carried on, whether for profit or not, shall be deemed a non-retail 
recreational marijuana business subject to the provisions of sections 7.1100 to 7.1104. 
Each licensee shall meet the requirements set forth in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 

 
(3) A license issued under this section may be suspended, terminated, or revoked if the 

standards are not met or if the business is sold or otherwise transferred as defined in 
this section.  No person may engage in retail or non-retail recreational marijuana 
business without the appropriate license as defined in this chapter. 

 

(4) No license will be issued without proof of registration to operate a retail or non-retail 
recreational marijuana business issued by the state of Oregon. 

 

(5) The city may deny a license if any owner, manager, operator, employee, agent, or 
volunteer has been convicted of violating a general or local law of this state or another 
state, or of violating a federal law, if the conviction is substantially related to the fitness 
and ability of the applicant to lawfully carry out activities under the license; provided 
however that the city may not consider the prior conviction of the applicant or any 
owner, director, officer, manager, employee, agent, or other representative of the 
applicant for: 
 

(a) The manufacture of marijuana, if the date of the conviction is more than five 
years before the date of the application to the city and the person has not 
been convicted more than once for the manufacture or delivery of marijuana; 

(b) The delivery of marijuana to a person 21 years of age or older, if the date of 
the conviction is more than five years before the date of the application to 
the city, and the person has not been convicted more than once for the 
manufacture or delivery of marijuana; or 

(c) The possession of marijuana. 
 

(6) Application for a license must include the information necessary for background checks 
of a criminal record of any owner, manager, operator, employee, agent, or volunteer. 
The City of Springfield will conduct all necessary background checks. 
 

(7) No license shall be issued until after a background check of the criminal record by the 
police department of the applicant and all individuals employed or volunteering with the 
retail or non-retail recreational marijuana business. 

 
(8) The licensee must notify the city and submit necessary information for background 

checks of a criminal record of any new owner, manager, operator, employee, agent, or 
volunteer. 
 

(9) The requirements of sections 7.1100 to 7.1104 shall apply to the owners, managers, 
operators, employees, agents, and volunteers of the licensee’s business 

 

Comment [KSK1]: Requirements copied 
from 2015 Or Laws Ch 1, section 29(2)(b)(D) 
and (3).  There are many other criteria listed, 
but they are more subjective and not related 
to background checks.  Other requirements 
would be imposed by OLCC in order to get a 
state license, which is a precursor to a city 
license.  We would probably need an appeal 
process if a license was denied for any of the 
other, more subjective requirements in 2015 
Or Laws Ch 1, sec 29. 

Attachment 2, Page 3 of 5



  
 

(10) The licenses authorized by the city shall be displayed in the window such that it 
is clearly visible from the nearest public right-of-way. The sign shall be no less than 
eight inches by 11 inches in size. 

 
7.1103. Operational Requirements 

(1) No person shall operate a retail or non-retail recreational marijuana business without a 
valid business license issued by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission. 

 
(2) All recreational marijuana businesses must abide by the applicable regulations governing 

recreational marijuana producers, retailers, processors, wholesalers, and testing 
laboratories, as those terms are defined in in Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 845, 
Division 25, and all other applicable regulations. 
 

(3) All recreational marijuana businesses must be located in accordance with Oregon 
Administrative Rules Chapter 845, Division 25, and the Springfield Development Code. 
 

(4) No minors shall be permitted on the premises of any recreational marijuana business 
except as described in 7.1103(4)(a) and 7.1103(4)(b). 

(a) A minor, other than an employee of a marijuana business, may be on the 
premises of a marijuana business for a limited period of time in order to 
accomplish a legitimate business purpose, including but not limited to, a minor 
plumber being on the premises in order to make a plumbing repair. 

(b) A minor who resides on the tax lot or parcel where a marijuana producer is 
licensed may be present on those portions of the premises that do not contain 
usable marijuana or cut and drying marijuana plants. 
 

(5) Sign Code. All recreational marijuana businesses shall be subject to the requirements of 
sections 8.200 through 8.268, the Springfield Sign Code. 

 
(6) Alarm Business License.  All recreational marijuana businesses, including recreational 

marijuana businesses that are required by law to have an alarm system, must comply 
with the requirements of sections 7.010 to 7.026 of this code. 

 
(7) Gross receipts tax. All recreational marijuana businesses shall comply with the 

requirements of sections 7.1000 to 7.1014 of this code. 
 
(8) Hours of Operation. No sale or other distribution of marijuana shall occur upon the 

premises or via delivery between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 
 
(9) Giveaways. Recreational marijuana businesses shall not distribute marijuana or 

marijuana-infused products free of charge to consumers. 
 
(10) Consumption on Premises Prohibited. Consumption, ingestion, inhalation, or topical 

application of usable marijuana, marijuana items, alcohol, or other intoxicants 

Comment [KSK2]: Text adapted from OAR 
845-025-1230(6)-(7) – these are OLCC rules 

Comment [KSK3]: Taken from OLCC reg 
845-025-2820 that limits retail sales to 
consumers to 7am -10 pm.  This code 
provision would apply to more than just retail 
sales, but it makes sense to also ban non-retail 
(i.e. wholesale) sales of marijuana between 10 
pm and 7 pm. 

Attachment 2, Page 4 of 5



  
 

anywhere on the premises of the recreational marijuana business shall be prohibited; 
except as allowed under OAR 333-008-1200.  

7.1104. License Fee 

Each licensee shall be required to pay the applicable license fee as set by council resolution.  
The license fees for retail recreational marijuana businesses and non-retail recreational 
marijuana businesses need not be the same. 

 
 

 

Attachment 2, Page 5 of 5



 

 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 

 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Mary Bridget Smith, 

CAO 

 Staff Phone No: 541-746-9621 

 Estimated Time: 15 Minutes 

S P R I N G F I E L D 

C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Enhance Public Safety 

 

ITEM TITLE: AMENDMENTS TO MEDICAL MARIJUANA BUSINESS REGULATIONS 

 

ACTION 

REQUESTED: 

Conduct a public hearing and adopt/amend/not adopt the following ordinance:  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 

SECTION 7.601, DEFINITIONS, AND 7.603, OPERATIONAL 

REQUIREMENTS, REGARDING MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES, 

AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 
 

ISSUE 

STATEMENT: 

Under SB 1531 (2014) local governments may impose “reasonable regulations” on 

dispensaries.  The City has determined that current state regulation of dispensaries 

under HB 3400 (2015) is consistent with City policy.  The City seeks to amend its 

medical marijuana regulations to be consistent with state regulation of the 

packaging and labeling of marijuana, conditions under which minors are allowed in 

dispensaries, and the definitions of marijuana under state law.    

 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1 – Proposed Ordinance 

 

DISCUSSION/ 

FINANCIAL 

IMPACT: 

HB 3400 (2015) mandates that the state adopt labeling regulations and regulations 

requiring child-resistant safety packaging for marijuana and marijuana items.  Due 

to these new state labeling and packaging regulations, municipal regulation of 

packaging and labeling is no longer necessary to enforce City policy. Under OAR 

333-008-1220, adopted pursuant to HB 3400 (2015), all useable marijuana and 

marijuana items must be labeled with the following information: 

 The amount of THC and CBD potency 

 The weight of flowers or plant material, or weight or volume of usable 

marijuana in the packaged finished product for marijuana items 

 Test batch number and date tested 

 Who performed the testing 

 A label for flowers or useable plant material describing the strain 

 A warning label for edibles which states: “WARNING: MEDICINAL 

PRODUCT – KEEP OUT OF REACH OF CHILDREN” in bold font 

and a size that is larger than the font size of the other printing on the label. 

 

After HB 3400 passed, medical marijuana statutes were renumbered.  Accordingly, 

references to ORS chapter 475 need to be updated to the new statute numbers in 

chapter 475B.  In addition, HB 3400 corrected an error in the definition of 

“marijuana” that previously miscategorized the plant family of Cannabis, and the 

correct definition should be incorporated into the municipal code. 

 

The proposed ordinance also repeals the prohibition against minors entering any 

portion of a dispensary, as result of feedback to City from dispensary stakeholders.  

Areas where usable marijuana is located would remain off-limits to minors by OHA 

regulations; this ordinance would not affect minors in recreational retail businesses. 

 

These regulations will become effective immediately if adopted under emergency 

procedures.  

 









 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Bob Duey 
 Staff Phone No: 726-3740 
 Estimated Time: 10 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Provide Financially 
Responsible and 
Innovative Government 
Services 

 
ITEM TITLE:  

MASTER FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE –SPRING 2016 UPDATE 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

 
Conduct a public hearing and adopt/not adopt the following resolution:  A 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGFIELD ADOPTING A  MASTER FEES AND CHARGES 
SCHEDULE FOR FEES, CHARGES,  RATES, PERMITS AND LICENSES 
AS ESTABLISHED BY THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE, FIRE 
CODE, AND BUILDING CODE. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

 
Each year, Council and staff review existing fees and charges for appropriateness of 
rates for meeting cost recovery targets as well as reviewing for areas where new or 
additional fees should be considered.  This spring of 2016 review will focus on 
updates for annual impacts of inflation, new fees and omissions as directed by 
Council. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Council Briefing Memorandum 
2. Resolution 
3. Master Fees and Charges Schedule 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

 
See Council Briefing Memorandum 
 

 



 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: 3/15/2016  

To: Gino Grimaldi COUNCIL 

From: Bob Duey, Finance Director BRIEFING 

Subject: Master Fees and Charges Update MEMORANDUM 

ISSUE:  
Each year, Council and staff review existing fees and charges for appropriateness of rates for 
meeting cost recovery targets as well as reviewing for areas where new or additional fees should 
be considered.  This spring of 2016 review will focus on updates for annual impacts of inflation, 
new fees and omissions as directed by Council. 

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Provide Financially Responsible and Innovative Government Services 
Adopted City policies recognize that the funding sources for different services vary greatly from 
full cost recovery to full tax subsidy, from outside grants to a combination of many different 
sources.  Review of rates, sources, and cost recovery models on a regular basis is important to 
ensure that citizens are able to receive maximum service for the resources available. 

BACKGROUND:  
The City’s schedule of fees and charges are established by Council action.  The work in the 
spring of 2013 by the Council and staff consolidated past documents describing the City’s 
various fees and the method for making changes into a single document titled Master Fees and 
Charges schedule.  This document provides an easy reference for citizens, Councilors, and staff 
to identify the current fees authorized to be levied and collected by the City.  
 
Changes to the City of Springfield’s fees and charges can be modified through action by the 
Council or staff.  The most common of actions by the Council is by simple resolution.  The 
authorization to levy the fee may be contained in the municipal, building, development, or fire 
codes, but the actual amount of the fee itself is established by resolution.  These most commonly 
are brought to the Council with a public hearing and are adopted at that time.  
 
Other fees may be authorized by the municipal, building, development, or fire codes and the 
specific amount of the fee is also contained within that same code.  In those cases, the respective 
code itself must be amended and most commonly requires a public hearing, a first reading and a 
second reading prior to adoption. 
 
In this review, the following changes in the Master Fees and Charges Schedule are being 
considered: 
 
All fees and charges are examined by City staff to evaluate if a yearly adjustment should be 
considered.  In Attachment 2, all changes are reflected with Track Changes.  Most changes being 
identified are increases for a 2% Cost-of-Living-Adjustment (COLA) and/or minor changes in 
descriptions.  However, for the proceeding fees and charges, either changes are being 
recommended above a 2% COLA, there are new fees, or there are significant changes in 
descriptions.  Please note, the City Attorney’s Office is working on the Recreational Marijuana 
and Growers/Processors fee, which will be effective this year.  An Emergency Ordinance will be 

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 5 
 



MEMORANDUM 3/17/2016 Page 2 

applied for to establish the municipal code and corresponding fees, so those fees are not 
reflected in this update. 
 
Section 1: General 
 
Page 3, Manufactured Dwelling Park License 
(SMC 7.312, 7.314) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a manufactured dwelling park within 
the City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a 
manufactured dwelling park is offered, whether for hire or not, shall be considered a manufactured 
dwelling park subject to the provisions of sections 7.310 to 7.314. 
 Up to 25 spaces per year $2928.00 
 26-50 spaces per year $5655.00  
 51-75 spaces per year $8179.00 
 76-100 spaces per year $104109.00 
 Over 100 spaces per year $1.20 per space109 + .57 
 
Explanation:  Over years of COLA adjustments and rounding, the effective “per unit” rate was 
inconsistent among the different levels.  The new flat-rate model reflects an effective “per unit” 
rate, applied to the maximum spaces per level (which will be easier to apply a COLA adjustment 
to in future years).  The reflected levels are: (1) Up to 25 - $1.16/unit; (2) 50 spaces - $1.12; (3) 
75 spaces - $1.08; (4) 100 spaces - $1.04; (5) over 100 - $1.20.  The per unit rates were 
calculated to closely reflect prior years’ flat rates. 
 
Page 5, Sound Truck/Car License 
 Per day $7.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Explanation:  Currently, this license has a per year charge.  The per day option was inadvertently 
left out in the past.  
 
Page 6, GIS Rates 
Planimetrics Hourly rate (1 hour minimum) $68.00 
Planimetrics Hourly rate (1 hour minimum) $7273.00 
 
Explanation:  A duplicate charge was inadvertently left in prior versions and did not reflect 
COLA adjustments, while the other charge did reflect adjustments.  The out-of-date duplicate 
charge is being removed. 
 
Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety 
Fire and Life Safety use a Commercial Plan Check Fee in City of Eugene to help cover the costs 
of reviewing commercial development plans for Fire Code compliance.  They are introducing 
that fee to City of Springfield to further coordinate Fire and Life Safety processes in the jointly-
managed department. 
 
Page 10, Commercial Plan Check Fee 
Fire Code plan review associated with Building and Mechanical permits fee. 
   15% of Building permit fees 
 If no building permit 15% of Mechanical permit fees     
 
Explanation:  This is a new fee that matches the exact fee we charge in Eugene for Fire Code 
plan check related to new construction.  In Springfield, this plan check has been done at no 
charge to commercial developers (it has been fully subsidized by taxpayers).  The fee will 
support the efforts to comply with ORS 455.148(8) and to shift part of the costs away from 
taxpayers and to the developers. 
 



MEMORANDUM 3/17/2016 Page 3 

Page 12, Photocopy Charges 
 Thereafter $0.1015 per page 
 
Explanation:  The charge was changed to reflect other City departments’ charge for photocopies.  
It is a larger than 2% increase. 
 
Section 3:  Library Services 
Substantial changes were made to the layout of the Library Services section to make more 
logical order and group like fees. 
 
Page 13, Replacement Library Card $2.00 
 
Explanation:  Charge was inadvertently left off of the previous version. 
 
 
Page 13, Processing Fee 
Processing Fee   May be charged $5 processing fee for lost or damaged items 
 
Explanation: New fee suggested to cover the cost of processing lost or damaged items. 
 
Section 4:  Municipal Court 

Page 15, Probation Court Supervision 
Per month fee for probation supervision and monitoring of probation casesFee per case$5100.00 

Explanation: This fee was changed in order to comply with ORS 137.540(7) which states that 
the “defendant shall pay a fee of $100 to the court” for probation supervised by the Court. 

Section 5:  Police 
 
Page 17, CAD Reports  Each Report $5.00 
 
Explanation:  CAD Reports is a new category.  Although they are akin to a police report in 
retrieval and processing, CAD reports have been billed as miscellaneous photocopies because 
they did not fall under a more appropriate category.  Since most CAD reports are fewer than five 
pages, they have been free of charge under the miscellaneous photocopy rule.  CAD reports 
require more processing than miscellaneous photocopying and should be charged at a different 
rate.  Police reviewed fees from Lane County ($10 per CAD report) and Eugene Police 
Department ($5 per CAD report) to determine a reasonable rate for processing these requests. 
 
Page 17, Misc. Photocopies 
  6 pages and more, plus research time $0.10 15 per page 
 
Explanation:  The charge was changed to reflect other City departments’ charge for photocopies.  
It is larger than 2% increase. 
 
Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 
Explanation:  Upon providing a draft of the revised Building and Safety Fees to the State of 
Oregon Building Code Division, we were found non-compliant.  A number of additional charges 
were added to bring us into compliance.  Fees were established based on local market rates. 
 
Page 21, Solar Permits 

Solar Permits 
 Installations in compliance with section 305.4 of the Oregon Solar Installation 

Specialty Code $160.00 
 All other installations based on valuation of the structural elements for the solar 



MEMORANDUM 3/17/2016 Page 4 

panels, including racking, mounting elements, rails, and the cost of labor to install 
use Table 3-A 

 
Page 21, Renewable Energy Systems 

Renewable Energy Systems 
 5 KVA or Less $115.00 
 5.01 to 15 KVA $150.00 
 15.01 to 25 KVA $190.00 
 Over 25 KVA: 
 Solar Generation Systems $190.00 + $10 for each additional KVA 
  Not to exceed $940.00 
 Wind Generation Systems:  
 25.01 to 50 KVA  $240.00 
  50.01 to 100 KVA $480.00 
  Over 100 KVA Calculated based on Service or 

Feeder sizes and Branch 
Circuits 

 
Page 23, Medical Gas 

Medical Gas 
Permit fee based on the valuation of installation costs 
and the system equipment:  Use Table 3-A  

 
Page 25, Phased Permits 

Phased Permits $290.00 + 10% of the total building permit fee 
for each phase of work not to exceed $1,500 for 
each phase. 

Page 25, Deferred Permits 
Deferred Permits 65% of Bldg Permit Fee calculated using the 

valuation of the deferred portion of the project, 
with a minimum fee of $95.00 

 
Section 7:  Engineering 
 

Only COLA adjustments. 

 
Section 8:  Planning Services 
 
Only COLA adjustments. 
 
Section 9:  Utilities 
 
Page 50, OAR 340-045-0075 Permit Fee Schedule 
Table 70E Annual Pretreatment Fee 
   Significant Industrial User$ 637569 per industry 
 
Explanation:  Fee from the State of Oregon, changed every January.  
 



MEMORANDUM 3/17/2016 Page 5 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Staff is recommending that Council adopt the resolution adopting the Master Fees and Charges 
Schedule.  Adoption of any fees and charges would be effective April 1, 2016. 

 









City of Springfield, Oregon 

Springfield is a family-friendly community where a healthy economy and numerous historical 
aspects of Oregon’s past have blended into a vibrant place to call home.  Springfield is adjacent 
to I-5 and nestled between two rivers.  The McKenzie River is world-famous for fly fishing and 
summer steelhead.  The Willamette River also boasts excellent fishing and is popular for 
whitewater rafting. 

This Master Fees and Charges Schedule consolidates all City of Springfield (“City”) fees and 
charges, adopted by City Council resolutions, for the various services that the City provides.  It is 
scheduled to be updated semi-annually and reflects all fee resolutions passed by Council during 
the year.   

Fee Variance and Waiver Statement 

Based upon an unusual circumstance or event, past practices, demonstrated hardship, or public 
benefit, the City Manager is authorized to waive or decrease fees or charges in a particular 
matter, or establish a fee not yet authorized in this resolution.  When a new fee is established by 
the City Manager, it may be incorporated into this resolution.  It shall be communicated to 
Council in writing to allow opportunity for comment. 

The request for a waiver or reduction may be in writing.  If the City Manager or his designee 
agrees to said waiver or reduction, he/she may inform the City Council of the request and 
his/her decision in writing, except in minor matters. 

The City of Springfield has three types of fees and charges, with different methodologies for 
changing them: 

• Master Schedule of Fees and Charges Established by the Municipal Code 
The Municipal Code provides the right for the City to establish a fee or charge against 
the cost of providing a particular service.  If the specific amount of the fee itself is 
contained in the municipal code, it takes the passage of an ordinance by the Council to 
change the actual fee.  Examples of fees that are included in this category are business 
license, sanitary and stormwater rates, technology fees, and SaniPac franchise fees. 

• Master Schedule of Miscellaneous Fees and Charges Authorized within the Municipal 
Code, Development Code, or Fire Code 
The Municipal, Development, and Fire Codes provide the right for the City to establish a 
fee or charge against the cost of providing a particular service.  In these cases, the 
respective codes do not contain the specific amount of the fee, only the authorization to 
levy the fee.  It then takes the passage of a resolution by the Council to change the 
actual fee.  Examples of major fees included in this category are the City’s planning fees, 
ambulance transport fees, system development charges, and hazardous material 
inspection and storage fees.   



• Master Schedule of Fees and Charges Established by the Building Code 
The Building Code provides the right for the City to establish a fee or charge against the 
cost of providing a particular service.  In the Building Code, the specific amount of the 
fee is contained within the Code.  In these cases, it takes the passage of an ordinance by 
the Council to change the actual fee.  Prior to the passage by Council, any building fees 
that are regulated by the State Building Code must first be presented to the State and 
follow a specific public hearing notice schedule.  Examples of major fees that are 
included in this category are the City’s building permits, plumbing inspection fees, and 
electrical inspection fees. 

  



Table of Contents 

Definitions & Acronyms ................................................................................................................... iv 

Section 1:  General .......................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety ........................................................................................................ 9 

Section 3:  Library Services ............................................................................................................ 13 

Section 4:  Municipal Court ........................................................................................................... 14 

Section 5:  Police............................................................................................................................ 17 

Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees .............................................................................................. 20 

Section 7:  Engineering .................................................................................................................. 28 

Section 8:  Planning Services ......................................................................................................... 36 

Section 9:  Utilities ......................................................................................................................... 48 

Section 10:  System Development Charges ................................................................................... 66 

Exhibits .......................................................................................................................................... 69 

 

  



Definitions & Acronyms 

ORS:  Oregon Revised Statutes, effective as of 2013 

SMC: Springfield Municipal Code, current through Ordinance 6340 and the September 2015 
code supplement 

  



  Section 1:  General Fees 

Section 1:  General 
The following fees shall be charged for the general activities of the City: 

(ORS 192.440 (4)) 
The Oregon Revised Statutes authorize the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated to 
reimburse it for its actual costs in making public records available, including costs for summarizing, 
compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request. 
 
Business License 
(SMC 7.000) Only specific businesses are required to obtain a business license (see below). All business 
license applications shall be made to the City manager. If a proposed business requires a business license, 
the application and approval of the license shall occur prior to operation of any business requiring a 
business license. Each licensee shall meet the standards as described in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 
See SMC 7.000 for conditions of a license 
 
Applicable to Licenses 
(SMC 7.005) Delinquent License Fees. A penalty of $10.00 or ten percent of the license fee, whichever is 
greater, shall accrue for each month a business has operated without obtaining a business license. 
 
 Late Fee/Penalty Fee 10% or $10.00 per month whichever is greater 
 Duplicate License (per duplicate copy) $5.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Alarm System (Business) License 
(SMC 7.012, 7.024) No person shall establish, maintain or operate an alarm system, alarm business or 
alarm agent within the City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every alarm system, 
alarm business or alarm agent, whether for hire or not, shall be subject to the provisions of this chapter. 
Fire alarms are exempt from licensing requirements.  
 Alarm System Initial fee $5655.00 
 Alarm System Renewal fee, per year $20.00 
 Alarm Agent Per two-year cycle $3837.00 
 Alarm Business Per year $8987.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Antique/Secondhand Dealer License 
(SMC 7.100, 7.102) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a used merchandise dealer business 
within the City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a used 
merchandise dealer carries on, shall be deemed a used merchandise dealer subject to the provisions of 
sections 7.100 to 7.112.  
  Per year  $146143.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Auctioneer License 
(SMC 7.122, 7.126) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as an auctioneer within the City unless 
a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where an auctioneer is engaged in 
auctioneering, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed an auctioneer subject to sections 7.120 to 7.126.  
 Per year  $167164.00 
  Per day  $6665.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 1 



Section 1:  General Fees   

Auto-Wrecker License 
(SMC 7.132, 7.134) No person shall establish, maintain or operate an auto wrecking business within the 
City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where auto wrecking is 
carried on, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed an auto wrecker subject to the provisions of sections 
7.130 to 7.134. 
  Per year  $6665.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Carnival/Circus License 
(SMC 7.140, 7.146) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a carnival or circus within the City 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a carnival or circus is 
offered, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a carnival or circus subject to the provisions of sections 
7.140 to 7.146. 
 Per day $347340.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Christmas Tree Sales Lot/Firework Sales Lot 
(SMC 7.152, 7.156) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a fireworks sales lot or a Christmas tree 
sales lot within the City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every fireworks sales lot 
and Christmas tree sales lot, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a fireworks sales lot or Christmas 
tree sales lot subject to the provisions of sections 7.150 to 7.156. 
   Per year  $4645.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Dance Hall License 
(SMC 7.162, 7.168) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a dance hall within the City unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a dance hall is carried on, 
whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a dance hall subject to the provisions of sections 7.160 to 7.168. 
 Initial  $167164.00  
 Renewal  $8583.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Detective Agency License 
(SMC 7.172, 7.180) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a detective within the City unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the City. Every private detective, whether for hire or not, is 
considered a private detective subject to the provisions of sections 7.170 to 7.180. 
 3 or more employees  per year $335328.00 
 Less than 3 employees  per year $236231.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Door-to-Door Solicitor License 
(SMC 7.202, 7.216) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a door-to-door solicitor within the 
City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every door-to-door solicitor, whether for hire 
or not, shall be deemed a door-to-door solicitor subject to the provisions of sections 7.200 to 7.216. 
  Per year  $4847.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Page 2 of 80 
 



  Section 1:  General Fees 

Electrical Products License 
(SMC 7.222, 7.226) No person shall offer for sale electrical products within the City unless a license for 
that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where electrical products are for sale shall be 
subject to the provisions of sections 7.220 to 7.226.   
  Per year  $35.0050 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
First-Aid Operator License 
(SMC 7.242, 7.258) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a first-aid vehicle business within the 
City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every first-aid vehicle business, whether for 
hire or not, is considered a first-aid vehicle business subject to the provisions of sections 7.240 to 7.258. 
  Per year $223219.00 
  And per vehicle  $5655.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Garage Sales License 
(SMC 7.262, 7.268) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a garage sale within the City unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a garage sale is held shall be 
considered a garage sale subject to the provisions of sections 7.260 to 7.268.  
   No charge 
 
Liquor License 
(SMC 7.300, 7.304) The Oregon Liquor Control Commission requires every applicant for a license to sell 
spirits, wines, beers, and other alcoholic liquors to obtain a recommendation in writing from the City 
Council. 
 Initial  $100102.00 
 Change  $7577.00 
 Renewal $35.0050 
 Special Liquor $25.0050/daily 
 
Sale and Distribution of Tobacco and Tobacco Products to Minors-License Fees 
(SMC 5.300(2)) No tobacco retailer’s license shall be issued or continue to be valid unless the holder has 
paid the fees as required by this section. 
 First License and/or change of ownership $8684.00 
 Annual Renewal $5655.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Manufactured Dwelling Park License 
(SMC 7.312, 7.314) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a manufactured dwelling park within 
the City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a 
manufactured dwelling park is offered, whether for hire or not, shall be considered a manufactured 
dwelling park subject to the provisions of sections 7.310 to 7.314. 
 Up to 25 spaces per year $2928.00 
 26-50 spaces per year $5655.00  
 51-75 spaces per year $8179.00 
 76-100 spaces per year $104109.00 
 Over 100 spaces per year $1.20 per space109 + .57 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 3 



Section 1:  General Fees   

Medical Marijuana Dispensaries 
(SMC 7.602) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a dispensary within the City unless a license 
for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a dispensary is carried on, whether 
for profit or not, shall be deemed a dispensary subject to the provisions of sections 7.600 to 7.603.  
  Initial $1,0401,020.00 
  Renewal $1,0401,020.00 
  Change of Ownership $1,0401,020.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Pool/Billiard Room License 
(SMC 7.322, 7.326) No person shall establish, maintain or operate pool rooms and billiard rooms within 
the City unless a license for that use obtained from the City. Every place or building where pool rooms and 
billiard rooms are offered, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a pool room or billiard room subject 
to the provisions of sections 7.320 to 7.326. 
 Base fee per year $5556.00 
 Plus: First table  per year $55.00 + $25.0050 
 Second table  per year $22.0050 
 Third table  per year $17.0050 
 Fourth table  per year $12.0020 
 Each table thereafter per year $6.0010 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Public Passenger License (Issued by City of Eugene) 
(SMC 7.332) No person or business may operate a public passenger vehicle company without a public 
passenger vehicle company license; however, an unlicensed public passenger vehicle operating outside 
the jurisdictional limits of Eugene and Springfield may deliver a fare from outside those limits to a location 
within the limits, if the vehicle waits for the person and retrieves the person for the return trip back 
outside the jurisdictional limits. No unlicensed public passenger vehicle company may solicit or accept any 
passenger within the City limits except as provided in this subsection. 
 
Rentals License 
(SMC 7.342, 7.344) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a rental property within the City unless 
a license for that use is obtained. Every place or building where rentals are offered, whether for hire or 
not, shall be deemed a rental property subject to the provisions of sections 7.340 to 7.346. 
 Starts at four-plex and above per unit $17.0050 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Shooting Area License 
(SMC 7.352, 7.358) An applicant for a shooting area business license shall apply to the Development and 
Public Works Department prior to opening a shooting area facility. See sections 7.350 to 7.358 for 
conditions of operation. 
 Per year $135132.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sidewalk Café Permit 
(Resolution 05-13, SMC 7.900-7.908) In the downtown district only, the City Manager, or the City 
Manager’s designee, may issue a revocable permit for an outdoor café allowing for the service of food 
and beverages at facilities placed on sidewalks within the public right-of-way abutting an existing eating 
establishment.  See sections 7.900 to 7.908 for conditions of operation. 
  Per Permit $27.0050 

Attachment 3, Page 4 of 80 
 



  Section 1:  General Fees 

Social Games 
(SMC 5.254) (1) Social Games Prohibited/Exception. “Social games,” as defined in ORS 167.117 are 
prohibited within the corporate limits of the City of Springfield, except: 
  (a) Social games between players in private homes or social games conducted by charitable, 
fraternal, religious or non-profit organizations where no house player, house bank or house odds exist and 
there is no house income; and 
  (b) Pursuant to SMC section 5.258, The Springfield Social Gaming Code/Texas Holdem Poker 
Card Tournament. 
 (2) “Non-Profit Organization” Defined. For the purpose of this section, “non-profit organization” 
means any person organized and existing for charitable, benevolent, eleemosynary, humane, 
philanthropic, educational, civic or other non-profit purposes. The fact that an organization does qualify 
for charitable deduction for tax purposes or that organization is otherwise exempted from payment of 
federal income taxes pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended, constitutes prima facie 
evidence that the organization is a non-profit organization. 
 (3) “House” Defined. Includes owner of business, private club, or place of public accommodation, 
and owner’s spouse, children of owner or spouse, owner’s brothers, sisters, or parents, or a business in 
which one of the foregoing named individual is associated. A license for the house is required by section 
5.258(3) of this code. 
 (4) “Tournament Organizer” Defined. A person other than the house who organizes the tournament, 
including but not limited to provision of poker chips and playing cards. A license for the tournament 
organizer is required by section 5.258(3) of this code. 
 (5) The offenses specified in subsections (1), (2), (3) and (4) are punishable as violations and may 
include a fine not exceeding $720.00 pursuant to SMC section 1.205. 
 Per year $111109.00 
 Renewal $111109.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sound Truck/Car License 
(SMC 7.362, 7.364) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a sound truck or car within the City 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every vehicle used as a sound truck or car, whether 
for hire or not, is considered a sound truck or car subject to the provisions of sections 7.360 to 7.364. 
 Per year $5655.00 
 Per day $7.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Special Event License 
(SMC 7.402, 7.404) (1) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a special event within the City unless 
a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a special event is held, 
whether for hire or not, is considered a special event subject to the provisions of sections 7.400 to 7.422. 
 (2) If the special event is to include a parade, as that term is defined in section 6.505, then a parade 
permit shall also be obtained from the Springfield Police Department. The City may require other licenses 
or permits if the special event will include other activities requiring permits or licenses under the 
applicable sections of the Springfield code. The need for other permits shall be determined by the City 
during the departmental review process under section 7.406. 
 (3) The granting of a special event license shall not relieve any person of the responsibility to satisfy 
all code requirements respecting the manner in which the special event is conducted. 
  Per application $143140.00 
 Event with liquor$143140.00 (plus tech fee) + $+$25.00 (no tech fee)  
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected, but does not apply to 
the liquor fee. 
 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 5 



Section 1:  General Fees   

Tobacco Vending License 
(SMC 7.452, 7.454) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a tobacco vending machine within the 
City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a tobacco 
vending machine is offered, whether for hire or not, is considered a tobacco vending machine subject to 
the provisions of sections 7.450 to 7.454. 
 Per year $34.0050 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Transient Merchant License 
(SMC 7.472, 7.476) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a transient merchant within the City 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every transient merchant, whether for hire or not, 
is considered a transient merchant subject to the provisions of sections 7.470 to 7.476. 
 Per day $17.0050 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Transient Merchant Food Cart License 
(SMC 7.474, 7.810) Transient merchants operating food carts, also known as “mobile units” as defined by 
ORS 624.310(8), may be allowed only on property that is zoned CC – Community Commercial, MRC – 
Major Retail Commercial, MUC – Mixed Used Commercial, MUE - Mixed Use Employment, HI - Heavy 
Industrial, LMI - Light/Medium Industrial, CI – Campus Industrial and PLO – Public Land and Open Space.  
 Per year  $36.0050* 
 
*Fees for the Downtown Food Court Program shall be as set by the City Manager or his/her designee in 
accordance with SMC 7.810. [Section 7.810 amended by Ordinance No. 6298, enacted July 22, 2013.]  
 
Vending on City Streets  
(SMC 7.802, 7.808) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a vendor within the City unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the City. Every person operating as a vendor shall be deemed a 
vendor on City streets subject to the provisions of sections 7.800 to 7.808. 
 No charge. 
 
Other General Fees 
GIS Rates (Standard) 
(Intergovernmental Agreement with Lane Council of Governments per ORS 190.050 providing 
authorization to impose and collect reasonable fees based on market prices or competitive bids for 
geographic data that have commercial value and are an entire formula, pattern, compilation, program, 
device, method, technique, process, database or system developed with a significant expenditure of public 
funds.) 
 
Planimetrics Hourly rate (1 hour minimum) $68.00 
Planimetrics Hourly rate (1 hour minimum) $7273.00 
 Up to 50 acres $99101.00 
 Charge per additional acre above 50 $2.040 
 Charge per map sheet (approx. 138 acres) $301307.00 
 Charge per square mile (640 acres) $13961,424.00 
 Plus time in excess of 1 hour  $6566.00/per hour 
Half foot Orthophotography  Hourly rate $7273.00 
  One image $4445.00 
  Charge per additional image $4445.00 
  Plus hourly rate  $6566.00 

Attachment 3, Page 6 of 80 
 



  Section 1:  General Fees 

Plot Requests  Standard City Maps (without Orthos) $5455.00 
  Standard City Maps (with Orthos) $6061.00 
 Custom Plot Request: Plot Compilation and Plotting Charge/per hour $7273.00 
 Custom Plot Request: Copy of a Completed Plot/per linear foot $7.0010 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Technology Fee 
(Resolution 11-24) The Technology Fee is applied to the specific charges and fees identified in the above-
named fee schedules when collected or imposed. 
Five percent of specific development-related charges and fees in the Building Safety Code Fee 
Schedule, the Master Schedule of Rates, Permits, Licenses and Other Fees and Charges in the 
Municipal Code, and the Master Schedule of Miscellaneous Fees and Charges, Rates and 
Licenses. 
 
City Hall Meeting Room Rates (Standard) 
The City of Springfield City Hall public meeting rooms (City Hall Lobby, Library Meeting Room, Jesse Maine 
Room and Meeting Room 3) are available for the community to use. However, to ensure availability of the 
rooms for City business, room usage shall be prioritized as follows: 

1. City Council meeting or functions 
2. Other City departments, including City Council advisory committees 
3. Other public agencies 
4. Other community organizations and groups 
5. Special events 

All meetings conducted in the meeting rooms must be open to the public. Priority categories 1, 2 and 3 
may be subject to the requirements of the Oregon Public Meeting Law, ORS 192.610 - 192.690 and may 
bump lower category events. All priority categories are available without regard to any distinction, 
discrimination, or restriction on account of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, marital 
status, disability, or national origin. No fees, dues or donations may be charged or solicited for any 
program or meeting held at City Hall. Rooms may be scheduled by the public if not in use for one of these 
other priority functions. 

Springfield’s Administrative Regulation #2 - City Hall Building Policy requires: “A fee for City Hall security 
shall be charged for the time a meeting or event extends beyond normally scheduled business hours 
(prior approval is required).” This fee covers staffing expenses related to keeping the building open and 
secure outside of normal operating hours. 

 Room usage during operating hours  Per hour $0.00 
 Room usage outside of operating hours Per hour $45.00 
 
Downtown Parking Program 
(Resolution 2015-13) 
 
Lot Name ASSET TYPE MONTHLY PER UNIT RATE/FEE 
City Hall North Premium Permit Parking Lot $30.00 
City Hall South Premium Permit Parking Lot $30.00 
Main Street Premium Permit Parking Lot $30.00 
7th Street Pocket Non-Premium Permit Parking Lot $15.00 
Justice Non-Premium Permit Parking Lot $15.00 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 7 



Section 1:  General Fees   

Pioneer East Non-Premium Permit Parking Lot $15.00 
Zone B On-Street On-Street Permit Zone $10.00 

Lot Name ASSET TYPE ANNUALLY PER UNIT RATE/FEE 
Residential Permit Residential Permit Zone, Zone A & B $20.00 
Violation of Posted Parking Restrictions  
Per Citation $ 16.00 
 
Public Records Fees 
(ORS 192.440(4))  
Oregon Revised Statutes authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated to reimburse it 
for its actual costs in making public records available, including costs for summarizing, compiling or 
tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request. 
 
Photocopy Charge Citywide  
(noted exceptions are Development and Public Works, Fire and Life Safety, Library, Police reports.) 

No charge for first 5 pages or first half-hour of research time. 
 Thereafter $0.15/page 

 Plus actual cost of City staff time and materials required to 
complete the request. 

 
 
  

Attachment 3, Page 8 of 80 
 



  Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety 

Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety 
The following fees shall be charged for the Fire & Life Safety activities of the City: 

Ambulance & Emergency Services User Fees  
(Fire Code and City of Springfield resolutions) 
 
Emergency and Non-Emergency Transport Rates 

 Base Rate  $1,770735.00 
 Base Rate (non-resident)* $1,980940.00 
*Live outside the Springfield Fire & Life Safety first-in response area 
 Mileage Rate (per patient mile)** $22.0321.60 
**Pro-rated for multiple patients transported in same medic unit. 
 

Sit-Up Patients 
 Base Rate $885868.00 

 Base Rate (non-resident) $990.00 
 Mileage Rate (per patient mile) $22.0321.60 

 
Aid Call 

 Base Rate $885868.00 
 Base Rate (non-resident) $990.00 
 

Helicopter Calls 
Helicopter Transport    Actual Vendor Charge 

In addition to helicopter and pilot direct vendor charges, base rate and mileage charges will 
apply if transported by paramedic ambulance to helicopter location for further transport. 
 

Other EMS Fees 
 Waiting Time (first ½ hour) No Charge 
 Waiting Time (per ½ hour, after first ½ hour) $6562.00 
 Extra Attendant $8077.00 
 Ambulance Stand-by (per hour; 2 hour minimum) $160155.00 

 Stand-by On Scene Coordinator (per hour) $6562.00 
 
FireMed Memberships 
 Regular membership, per household, per year $65.00 
 Job Care membership, per household, per year $60.00 
 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 9 



Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety  

Fire Marshal’s Office Fees 
(Springfield Fire Code) 
Commercial Plan Check Fee  
Fire Code plan review associated with Building and Mechanical permits fee. 
  15% of Building permit fees 
 If no building permit 15% of Mechanical permit fees 
 
Fire Protection and Life Safety System Construction Permits  

 Permit Fee  $125.00 minimum 
Permit cost is 3% of valuation of work to be performed for the system, up to a system’s contract 
value of $50,000; then $3.00 for each additional valuation of $1,000 or portion thereof. 
This formula will be applied to calculate fees for permits adopted in the City of Springfield Fire 
Code: 

105.7.1  Automatic fire extinguishing systems and appurtenances 
105.7.1.1  Fire Suppression Sprinkler systems 
105.7.1.2  Commercial kitchen hood suppression systems 
105.7.2  Battery Systems 
105.7.3  Compressed gases 
105.7.3.1  Detection systems, liquid and gas leak systems. 
105.7.4  Fire alarm and detection systems and related equipment. 
105.7.5  Fire pumps and related equipment.  
105.7.6  Flammable and combustible liquids.  
105.7.7  Hazardous materials.  
105.7.9  Private water mains and hydrant systems. 
105.7.10  Private fire hydrants 
105.7.11  Spraying or dipping. 
105.7.12.1 Standpipe systems. 

 
 Additional Staff Time (in excess of 2 hours) $16.5000 per 15 minutes 
Fees will be collected by the Development and Public Works Department at issuance of the 
building permit as an additional fee. 
 
Fire Department New Construction Square Footage Fees  

  Residential Square Footage $0.0605/per sq. ft. 
  Commercial Square Footage $0.1110/per sq. ft. 

Applies to each square foot created requiring a building permit. Example: 1,5501550 sq. 
ft. house x $0.06 = $93.0005 = $77.50.  

Fees will be collected by the Development and Public Works department at issuance of the 
building permit as an additional fee. 
 

Attachment 3, Page 10 of 80 
 



  Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety 

Fire Safety Inspections (non-construction) 
 Initial inspection No Charge 

 1st re-inspection No Charge 
 2nd re-inspection $27.50 
 
Operational Permit Fees 
Fee for occupancies requiring:  
 Operational Permits (annual) $419$411.00 per permit 
 Operational Permits (other than annual) $419411.00 per permit 

The following exceptions shall apply: 
105.6.9  Covered and Open Mall Buildings $187183.00 per permit 
105.6.26  Liquid or Gas-Fueled Vehicles or Equipment 
  in Assembly Buildings  $187183.00 per permit 
105.6.3  Places of Temporary Assembly $187183.00 per permit 
105.6.43  Temporary Membrane Structures and Tents $187183.00 per permit 
105.6.48  Performances with Fire $187183.00 per permit 

Operational permits may require additional processing and inspection time. An hourly rate of 
$9997.00 per hour will be assessed if additional time is necessary to achieve compliance with 
permit requirements. 

 
Licensed Facility Inspection Fees 
Fire Code compliance inspections are required as a condition of State licensing for various types of 
licensed facilities. Fees will be charged based on occupancy type as follows: 

Flat Rate 
Occupancy Type Inspection Per hour after 2 hrs 1st Re-inspection 2nd Re-inspection OT Rate per hour 

B, E $187183 $9997 Included $9997 $115113 
I $398390 $9997 Included $9997 $115113 

SR $398390 $9997 Included $9997 $115113 
 

General Fees 
First Response Fees 
Fee applies when a fire engine company responds to a motor vehicle accident involving medical or rescue 
response. Only applies to residents outside the Springfield Fire & Life Safety First-In Response Area. 
FireMed eligible. 
 Fire engine company response to motor-vehicle accident $479$470.00 

 
Classes 
 CPR Training (non-FireMed member) $2827.00 
 CPR Training (FireMed member) $1211.00 

 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 11 



Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety  

Photocopy Charges 
(ORS 192.563) Oregon Revised Statutes authorize a healthcare provider that receives authorization to 
disclose protected health information (PHI) to be reimbursed according to the statute’s fee schedule. 
Therefore, the following photocopy charges apply: 
 Up to 10 pages  $12.2500 
 Pages 11-50 $0.50 per page 
 Each page over 50 pages $0.25 per page 
 Postage costs to mail PHI Actual cost 
 Preparation of summary of PHI (requested by individual) Actual cost 
 
(ORS 192.440(4)) Oregon Revised Statutes authorize the public body to establish fees reasonably 
calculated to reimburse it for its actual costs in making such records available, including costs for 
summarizing, compiling or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s 
request. The following charges apply: 
 Fire Reports $10.00 per report 
 Other Reports or Documents No Charge for first 5 pages 
 Thereafter $0.15 per 10/page 
Plus actual cost of City staff time and materials required to complete the request. 

  

Attachment 3, Page 12 of 80 
 



  Section 3: Library 

Section 3:  Library Services 
The following fees shall be charged for the Library services of the City. 

General Fees  
(ORS 357.490 & 192.440) 
(SMC 2.462) Any and all fines and penalties received by the library in pursuance of the rules and 
regulations to be reviewed and recommended by the library board shall be collected by the library 
director and delivered to the City finance director at reasonable intervals. 
 
Non-Resident Fee for Library Card  $85.00 per year 

  $50.00 per six months 
  $25.00 per three months 

 
Replacement Library Card  $2.00 
 
Overdue Item Fee 
 DVDsVideos   $0.50 per day per item, 
   maximum of $5.00 per item 
 
 All other items  $0.25 per day per item, 
   maximum of $5.00 per item 
 
   
  
Replacement Fee Replacement of lost or damaged item – list price of item 
 
Processing Fee   May be charged $5 processing fee for lost or damaged items 
 
Interlibrary Loans  $3.00 per item 
 
Re-Shelving Fee 
 Unclaimed Hold $1.00 each 
 Unclaimed Interlibrary Loan $1.00 each 
 
Photocopy Charge $0.15 per copy (coin operated) 
 
Printing Fee $0.15 per page from public computers 
  

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 13 



Section 4:  Municipal Court 

Section 4:  Municipal Court 
The following fees shall be charged for the Municipal Court activities of the City. 

General Fees 

Copy Fee 
 Case File (current) $5.00 
 Case File (archived) $10.00 
 Miscellaneous: $0.15/page 
 
Certified Copies 
ORS 192.440(4) authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated to reimburse it for its 
actual costs in making public records available, including costs for summarizing, compiling, or tailoring 
such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request.  ORS 194.400 establishes the 
authority to charge notary fees. 
 Case file $16.00 
 Miscellaneous - first 4 pages  $16.00 
  Each page thereafter $0.501.00 

 

Collection Fees 
ORS 137.118 provides the authority to charge and stipulates the maximum fee allowed to be 25% but not 
to exceed $250.00.  A municipal, justice, district, circuit court may recoup the cost of collection action 
made necessary by the failure of judgment debtors in criminal actions to pay timely deferred payment 
agreements. Fee is to be assessed when payment is delinquent.  Fee assessment is not dependent upon 
assignment to a collection agency. 
 25% but not to exceed  $250.00 
 

Conviction Fee 
City Council Resolution.  Whenever the court forfeits money or imposes a sentence of a fine, including a 
sentence imposed and thereafter suspended, excluding parking violations, a fee in addition to such 
sentence shall be collected.  The fee is not part of the penalty or in lieu of any part thereof but is included 
in the monetary judgment. The court is not required to impose the fee if it finds that the defendant is 
indigent or that imposition of the assessment would constitute an undue hardship.  Payment to the court 
shall not be credited to the fee pursuant to ORS 137.295 until after crediting payments to statutorily 
mandated fees. 
 Fee per case  $2526.00 
 
Court Appointed Attorney Fee 
ORS 151.505 and ORS 161.665 provide the authority to collect fees covering the cost of appointing, 
financial processing, and actual attorney cost. 
 Fee per case  $95.00 
 
Deferred Prosecution Diversion Fee (non-DUII) 
ORS 135.881 and ORS 161.665.  Determined by the Judge and/or City Prosecutor on a case by case basis, 
but generally: 
 Fee per misdemeanor case $256.00 
 Fee per violation case $61.00 
 

Attachment 3, Page 14 of 80 
 



  Section 4:  Municipal Court 

Distribution Fee 
ORS 137.309 (7) (b)  
 15% administrative fee for collection of county assessment 
 
DUII Diversion Agreement Administrative Fee 
ORS 813.240 (b) provides the authority to collect and pay. 
 Fee per Case: $200.00 
 
Inmate Housing Fee 
(Determined by sentencing judge, Resolution 09-15, ORS 169.151, ORS 137 540(1)) 
  Per Case, Per Day Up to $60.00 
 
Non-Sufficient Funds Fee   
  Fee per case/check $26.00 
 
Payment Agreement Fee 
(ORS 1.202) Authorizes fee for establishing and administering account for judgment that includes 
monetary obligation; fee for judgment.   
 For revision to existing violation or misdemeanor 

payment agreement  $2526.00 
   
 Each payment agreement re-issued as a result 

of delinquent action of any kind  $5355.00 
 
Phone Notification Fee  
Cost recovery fee for automated phone notification; generally on case(s) to warn of pending formal non-
compliance court action. 
  Fee per automated call launched $32.00 
 
Probation Court Supervision 
(ORS 137.540) The court may sentence the defendant to probation, which shall be subject to the following 
general conditions unless specifically deleted by the court. The probationer shall pay supervision fees, 
fines, restitution or other fees ordered by the court. Does not apply to DUII or Deferred Prosecution 
Diversion cases. 
  Per month fee for probation supervision and 

monitoring of probation casesFee per case $5100.00 
 
Probation Violation Fee 
(ORS 137.540)  The court may sentence the defendant to probation, which shall be subject to the 
following general conditions unless specifically deleted by the court. The probationer shall:  (a) pay 
supervision fees, fines, restitution or other fees ordered by the court. Fee will apply on any DUII Diversion 
or Deferred Prosecution Diversion cases.  Fee may be waived at the discretion of the Judge. 
 Show Cause: one issue only or first proceedings $25.00 

Show Cause; multiple issues or prior probation violation proceeding 
 Per Order $50.00 

 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 15 



Section 4:  Municipal Court 

Re-Open Fee 
Fee to reopen a case; to include costs to retrieve case, process documents for DMV to recall abstracts or 
retrieve disposition sheets. 
  Fee per case $3132.00 
Security Releases 
(ORS 135.265) Oregon Revised Statute sets the fee at 15% of security release amount. 
  Of fee 15% 
  But not less than  $5.00 
  Or more than  $200.00 
 
Special Computer Reports 
(ORS 192.440) Oregon Revised Statute authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated 
to reimburse it for its actual costs in making public records available including costs for summarizing, 
compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request.  
 Fee per hour general reports (with minimum of $30.00)  $3031.00 
 Special programming or customized reports  $3031.00 
 
Suspension Fee 
(ORS 809.267) Fee for any case where the Court gives notice to DOT of the suspension or restriction of a 
defendant’s driving privileges. 
  Fee per case $15.00 
 
Warrant Fee 
(ORS 161.665) Fee for costs specially incurred in prosecuting a defendant for whom the Court enters a 
judgment of conviction. 
  Fee per case $5557.00 

 
 

  

Attachment 3, Page 16 of 80 
 



  Section 5:  Police 

Section 5:  Police  
The following fees shall be charged for the Police activities of the City: 

Police Reports 
Photocopies 
  First 4 pages $10.00 
  Each page thereafter $1.00 
 
CAD Reports Each report $5.00 
 
Certified Copies 
  First 4 pages $15.00 
  Each page thereafter $1.00 
 
Criminal History Requests 
  One original $10.00 
  For first 4 $5.00 
  Plus each additional $0.75 
  Notarized original $15.00 
  Each additional original $1.00 
 
False Alarm Fee 
(SMC 7.026) Three or more false alarms, within a 365-day period, whether the result of equipment 
malfunction or user error, shall constitute an infraction in the municipal court. If convicted by a 
preponderance of the evidence, the court may impose a fine not to exceed $500. 
 Per third false alarm  $500.00 
 Per alarm after within 365 days $500.00 
 
Military Police Record Checks 
   No charge 
 
Microfilm Reports 
  First 4 pages  $15.00 
  Each page thereafter $1.00 
 
Non-Sufficient Funds Fee  $2526.00 
 
Photographs  Actual cost with $5.00 minimum 
 
Special Computer Reports  
  Per hour  $30.00, with $20.00 minimum 
 
Video/Telephone/Radio Tapes    $25.00 per hour with $25.00 minimum 
 
Misc. Photocopies  
  First 5 pages  No charge 
  6 pages and more, plus research time $0.10 15 per page 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 17 



Section 5:  Police 

 
Vehicle Impound Recovery  $1275.00$125.00 
 
Warrant Fee 
(Criminal Code 161.665)  $50.00 
 
Dog Licenses  
(SMC 5.426 (3)) Fees. Dog license fees are due and payable upon the issuance of licenses. Fees shall be 
determined by Council resolution. The types of licenses/fees required to be paid under the provisions of 
this code shall be as follows: 

 (a) Dog License Fee—General. 
 (b) Dog License Fee—Neutered. Dog keepers applying for this reduced fee must present a 

certificate from a licensed veterinarian stating that the dog to be licensed has been neutered. 
 (c) Dog License Fee—Keepers, 60 Years of Age or Older. Dog owners applying for this reduced fee 

must present proper proof of age as well as proof of rabies vaccination for the dog to be 
licensed. 

 (d) Duplicate License. 
 (e) Commercial Kennel. 
 (f) Impoundment. 
 (g) Daily Care. 
 (h) Watchdog. 
 (i) Permits.  

    

 
1 yr 2yr 3yr 

Unaltered Dog $365 $565 $710 
Neutered Dog $15 $265 $365 
Sr. Citizen(60+) Unaltered Dog $365 $565 $710 
Sr. Citizen Neutered Dog $10 $17 $265 
Non-Commercial Kennel $2550 

  Watchdog $265 + above license fee 
 
 

Continued on Next Page  
  

Attachment 3, Page 18 of 80 
 



  Section 5:  Police 

License Vietnamese Pig 
(SMC 5.426 (6))  
(a) Every keeper of a Vietnamese Pig as set forth in section 5.416 shall obtain a license for the pig. In 

order to obtain the license, the owner or keeper shall submit to the City the veterinarian’s certificate 
specified in section 5.416(2)(b). The license fee shall be the same as a license fee for a dog as 
specified in subsection (3). 

(b) Licenses shall be valid for one year from the date of issuance or until the sale or gift of the pig, 
whichever first occurs. 

(c) Pig keepers shall renew the pig license before it becomes delinquent for as long as they keep or 
harbor the pig. 

(d) A license tag issued to a pig keeper shall be attached securely to a collar or harness of the pig for 
which it was issued. In addition to a collar or license, a microchip identification shall be utilized. If a 
license tag is lost, the keeper may obtain a duplicate license tag upon satisfactory proof of loss and 
payment of the required fee. 

(e) Failure to comply with any term or requirement of section 5.416 or this section by a pig keeper is 
punishable as a violation and may include a fine not exceeding $720.00 pursuant to SMC section 
1.205. 

(f) In the event that the keeper or the individual designated in section 5.416(2)(e) is unavailable and 
short term housing for the pig is required, the keeper shall be responsible for such short term housing 
and food costs and shall reimburse the City or City’s designee for all costs expended. [Section 5.426 
amended by Ordinance No. 5902, enacted December 7, 1998; further amended by Ordinance No. 
6169, enacted May 15, 2006; further amended by Ordinance No. 6271, enacted July 18, 2011.] 

 
     1 yr 2yr 3yr 
Unaltered $365 $565 $710 
Neutered $15 $265 $365 
Sr. Citizen(62+) Unaltered  $365 $565 $710 
Sr. Citizen Neutered $10 $17 $265 
  

  

  

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 19 



Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 

Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 
The following fees shall be charged for the Building and Safety activities of the City: 
 
Technology Fee: All applications/permits/fees will be assessed a 5% technology fee. 
 
Site Plan Review 
Reduction in fee, Resolution 10-51 
To the following fees, please add a $2.50 Continuing Education Fee. 
 
Building Permits 
(ORS 455.447) 
 
Structural, Commercial, Mechanical and Plumbing Permit Fees (where applicable) 
Table No. 3-A 

 
TOTAL VALUE  Fee 
$1.00 - $2,000  $8987.00 
$2,001 - $25,000 for the first $2,000 in value $8987.00 
 plus for each additional $1000 or fraction thereof. $11.3013 
$25,001 - $50,000 for the first $25,000 in value  $350343.00 
 plus for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof $8.6048 
$50,001 - $100,000 for the first $50,000 in value  $566555.00 
 plus  for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof $5.5042 
$100,001 and Up for the first $100,000 in value  $843826.00 
 plus for each additional $1,000 or portion thereof $5.004.64 

 
In addition to the Building Permit Fee, the Plan Check Fee shall be 65% of the Building Permit 
fee. 
 
For the purpose of defraying the cost of applying regulations as provided in ORS 455.447, a 
surcharge of 1% to the total fees collected for essential, hazardous, major and special occupancy 
structures shall be collected. 

 
To the above fees, please add 12% State Surcharge and a $2.50 Continuing Education Fee. 

 
Electrical Permits 
Table No. 3-B 

 
Description  Fee 
Residence wiring less than 1,000 square feet $163160.00 
Each additional 500 sq.ft. or portion thereof $3130.00 
Manufactured Home or Modular Dwelling (Service or Feeder)  $7775.00 
Temporary Power – 200 amps or less $7775.00 
Temporary Power – 201 to 400 amps $106104.00 
Temporary Power – 401 to 600 amps $154151.00 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 200 amps or less $9896.00 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 201 to 400 amps $114112.00 

Attachment 3, Page 20 of 80 
 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

Permanent Service or Feeder – 401 to 600 amps $193189.00 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 601 to 999 amps $249244.00 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 1000 amps or volts $570559.00 
Electrical Service Reconnection with no changes to existing service size $7775.00 
One new/alteration/extension of circuit $7766.00 
Each Additional Circuit $7.00 
Each Irrigation Pump $7775.00 
Each Electrical Sign or Outline Lighting $7775.00 
Each Signal Panel $7775.00 
Limited Energy – Residential $3938.00 
Limited Energy – Commercial/Multi-Family $8987.00 
Inspections not covered by this schedule minimum 1 hour $8987.00 
Re-inspection Fee $8987.00 
Partial Inspection $8987.00 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours $105103.00 
Minimum Permit Fee $8987.00 
Investigation Fee $8987.00 
Inspections For Which No Fee is Specifically Indicated $8987.00 
Electrical Quick Permits (sold in 10 only) No longer in Use $-0 
Building Without Permit Penalty $ Permit Fee 
Electrical Plan Review 25% of Permit Fee 
Solar Permits 
 Installations in compliance with section 305.4 of the Oregon Solar Installation 

Specialty Code $160.00 
 All other installations based on valuation of the structural elements for the solar 

panels, including racking, mounting elements, rails, and the cost of labor to install 
use Table 3-A 

Renewable Energy Systems 
 5 KVA or Less $115.00 
 5.01 to 15 KVA $150.00 
 15.01 to 25 KVA $190.00 
 Over 25 KVA: 
 Solar Generation Systems $190.00 + $10 for each additional KVA 
  Not to exceed $940.00 
 Wind Generation Systems:  
 25.01 to 50 KVA  $240.00 
  50.01 to 100 KVA $480.00 
  Over 100 KVA Calculated based on Service or 

Feeder sizes and Branch Circuits 
 
To the above fees, please add 12% State Surcharge and a $2.50 Continuing Education Fee. 
 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 21 



Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 

Mechanical Permits (Residential) 
Mechanical Permit Fees 
Table No. 3-D 

 
Description Fee 
First Appliance $8987.00 
HVAC 

Up to 100,000 BTU $20.00 
More than 100,000 BTU $23.00 
Unit Heater $20.00 

Boiler/Compressor 
Up to 100,000 BTU $20.00 
3-15 Horsepower or 100,001 – 500,000 BTU $3635.00 
Over 15 to 30 Horsepower or  500,001 – 999,000 BTU $5352.00 
Over 30 to 50 Horsepower or 1,000,000 – 1,750,000 BTU $6968.00 
Over 50 Horsepower or over 1,750,001 BTU $115113.00 

Air Handling Unit 
Up to 10,000 CFM $13.00 
10,001 CFM and over $23.00 
Evaporative Cooler/Fan $16.00 

Vents 
Hood and Exhaust $16.00 
Vent Fan to One Duct $11.00 
Appliance Vent $11.00 

Gas Piping 
Each Piping System 1-4 Outlets $8.00 
Each Outlet over 4 $5.00 

LP Gas Tank and Piping $20.00 
Miscellaneous 

Domestic Incinerator $23.00 
Commercial Incinerator $9189.00 
Wood/Pellet Stove $4746.00 
Heat Pump $20.00 

Preliminary Inspection $8987.00 
Each Appliance Not Listed on this Schedule $16.00 
Inspections Not Covered by this Schedule $8987.00 
Re-inspection Fee $8987.00 
Supplemental Mechanical Fee *Not In Use* $-0- 
Minimum Permit Fee $8987.00 
Partial Inspection $8987.00 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours $105103.00 
Investigation Fee $8987.00 
Building Without Permit Penalty $ Permit Fee 
Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Tables $8987.00 
Mechanical Plan Review Fee 25% of Permit Fee 
Commercial/Industrial/Public Mechanical System including installation costs Value based 
 

To the above fees, please add 12% State Surcharge and a $2.50 Continuing Education Fee. 

Attachment 3, Page 22 of 80 
 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

 
For the purpose of defraying the cost of applying regulations as provided in ORS 455.447, a 
surcharge of 1% to the total fees collected for essential, hazardous, major and special occupancy 
structures shall be collected. 
 
Plumbing Permits 
Plumbing Permit Fees 
Table No. 3-C 

 
Fees for the construction, alteration, or repair of plumbing on one- and two-family dwellings 
shall be calculated as described below. Fees include drain, waste and vent installation, water 
distribution piping, and the first 100 feet of water service. 

One- or two-family with one bath $290284.00 
One- or two-family with two bath $454445.00 
One- or two-family with three bath $534524.00 
Each Additional Bath $115113.00 
Each Additional Kitchen $115113.00 
Single Plumbing Fixture $22.00 
Sanitary Sewer: 

For the first 100 feet of line $9290.00 
Each additional 100 feet of line or portion $22.00 

Water Service: 
First 100 feet of line $9290.00 
Each additional 100 feet of line or portion $22.00 

Storm and Rain Drain: 
First 100 feet of line $9290.00 
Each additional 100 feet of line or portion  $22.00 

Sewage Ejector Pump $22.00 
Special Waste Connection $22.00 
Manufactured Home hook up on improved lot $8987.00 
Backflow Prevention Device $22.00 
Relocated Structure $8987.00 
Sanitary or Storm Sewer Cap $8987.00 
Any trap or waste not connected to a fixture $22.00 
Any plumbing installation not listed in this schedule with 

sanitary waste or portable water supply $22.00 
Minimum Plumbing Permit Fee $8987.00 
Partial Inspection fee  $8987.00 
Re-inspection Fee $8987.00 
Inspections Not Covered By Schedule $8987.00 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours $105103.00 
Investigation Fee $8987.00 
Building without Permit Penalty $ Permit Fee 
Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Table $8987.00 
Medical Gas 

Permit fee based on the valuation of installation costs 
and the system equipment:  Use Table 3-A  

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 23 



Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 

Plan Review Fee for Med Gas 30% of Permit Fee 
When plans are incomplete or substantially changed so 
as to require additional plan review, additional hourly 
plan review fees may be charged based on the 
additional time required. 

Plumbing Plan Review Fee 30% of Permit Fee 
Residential Fire Sprinklers 

1 – 2,000 sq. ft. $8987.00 
2,001 – 3,600 sq. ft. $142139.00 
3,601 – 7,200 sq. ft. $212208.00 
7,201 sq. ft. and greater $283277.00 

To the above fees, please add 12% State Surcharge and a $2.50 Continuing Education Fee. 
 
Additional Miscellaneous Fees 
Miscellaneous Building Fees 
Table No. 3-F 
 
Please add 12% State Surcharge (Where Applicable) 
 

Description Fee 
Master Permit Program $100.00 
Investigative Fee $8987.00 
Inspection for Which No Fee is Specifically Indicated $8987.00 
Moving a Building or Structure $354347.00 
Demolition of a Building or Structure $8987.00 
Mobile Home Accessory Structure Value 
Prefabricated Structures Value 
Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Table $8987.00 
Address Assignment, each new or change unless requested by city staff $4746.00 
Temporary Occupancy Permit Approval Shall Not Exceed 30 Days Without Renewal.  
Renewal Fee is the Same Fee As Original Temporary Occupancy Permit Fee: 

1 & 2 Family Dwellings $154151.00 
Triplex & 4-Plex $302296.00 
Apartment Buildings $302296.00 + $3736/unit 
Remodels Commercial/Industrial Buildings & Tenant Infill $154151.00 
Commercial/Industrial Buildings $454445.00+10% of Bldg Permit Fee 

Same As Plan Review Submittal $304298.00 
Building Without Permit Penalty Fee Cost of Bldg Permit 
Manufactured Home Placement $483474.00 
Fire & Life Safety Plan Review When Required 40% of Building Permit Fee 
Additional Plan Review Due To Changes In Plans $8987.00/hr  
Hazardous Technical Report with No Plan Review $8987.00/hr 
Site Investigation and Posting of NSF Check $8987.00 
Administrative Fee for Non-Sufficient Funds Check $154151.00 
Administrative Fee – Non Specialty Code Permits 10% 
Administrative Fee for Cash Deposits 10% 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours – 1 hour minimum $105103.00 
Re-inspection Fee $8987.00 

Attachment 3, Page 24 of 80 
 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

Quick Start $231226.00 
Phased Permits $290.00 + 10% of the total building permit fee 

for each phase of work not to exceed $1,500 for 
each phase. 

Deferred Permits 65% of Bldg Permit Fee calculated using the 
valuation of the deferred portion of the project, 
with a minimum fee of $95.00 

Research Requests 
Technical (15-30 minutes) $3130.00 
Technical (31-60 minutes) $6160.00 
Non-Technical (15-30 minutes) $20.00 
Non-Technical (31-60 minutes) $3837.00 
Any copy fee is in addition to research fees.  30 Minutes is minimum fee 

Posting Substandard Structures $8987.00 
Monthly Reports – Yearly “Mailing” List $7876.00/mailed 

 $4645.00/faxed 
Weekly Issued Reports – Yearly “Mailing” List $336329.00/mailed 

 $186182.00/faxed 
Addressing Information –Non-Agency-Government Yearly “Mailing” List  
  $7876.00/mailed 
  $4645.00/faxed 
Fire Department Process/Application Fee 10% of Fire fee 

 
Copying Costs 

 First 5 copies up to 11” x 17” size are free. 
 All additional copies  $.50 each 
 Large print copies -  $4.00 each 
 
 All special ordered maps are charged from the GIS price sheet. 
 
 Copying Fee: Staff charge rate  ½ hr. minimum 
 Technical Research Fee:  $8785.00/hr. 
 

Signs 
Sign Code Plan Review 
(SMC 8.218(1)) 
Permit Applications. Two complete sets of plans, engineering calculations, diagrams and other data shall 
be submitted with each application for a permit. The building official may require plans, computations 
and specifications to be prepared and designed by an engineer or architect. 
 (a) A scaled plot plan with building dimensions, setback and location of proposed signs shall be 
submitted with the sign permit application. A photograph of each facade of the building shall be 
submitted. 
 (b) A scaled elevation drawing shall be submitted in addition to the above requirements if a wall 
mounted sign will be erected. 
 (c) A description of materials, anchors, footings and attachment systems shall be provided. 
 (d) For all freestanding, pole or projecting signs over 20 feet in height, plans shall be submitted, 
drawn by a registered engineer. 
 (e) Each application shall include photographs of existing signage on the property associated with 
the business. 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 25 



Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 

 (f) If the application is for a billboard, the application must include an approved permit from the 
state of Oregon under the Oregon Motorists Information Act of 1971 (ORS 377.700 et seq.) prior to the 
erection of the billboard. 
 Per Sign $42.00 
 
Sign Permit Fees 
(SMC 8.218(2)) (2)  
Permit-Fees. Sign permit fees for permanent and temporary signs, excluding electrical, shall be set by 
resolution of the Council. Only one face of a double-faced sign will be used for calculation purposes. Each 
sign shall be considered separately when calculating plan review and sign permit charges. 
 0-35 square feet $80.00 
 36-to 60 square feet $110.00 
 61 to 100 square feet $140.00 
 101 to 150 square feet $160.00 
 151 to 200 square feet $200.00 
 201 to 300 square feet $250.00 
 301 to 400 square feet $300.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
10% Administrative Fee will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Temporary Sign Permit Fee 
(SMC 8.218 (4)(3))  
Temporary Sign Permit Fees. Four permits for each approved development area shall be permitted per 
calendar year. The fee for each permit shall be set by resolution by the Council. No temporary sign(s) shall 
be larger than 60 square feet and be erected for a maximum of 30 consecutive days per each permit. The 
temporary sign(s) shall be located completely on private property and shall be in compliance with the 
required setbacks as identified in Springfield Municipal Code. A security deposit is required when this 
permit is issued. If the applicant fails to remove the temporary sign(s) by the date specified on the permit, 
the deposit shall be forfeited and the City may remove the temporary sign(s). If any temporary signs are 
erected without first obtaining a permit, the permit fee shall be doubled. Temporary signs erected by or 
for the City for City-sponsored events, authorized by the City, or for the park district, utility company, or 
hospital for community events are exempt. 
 Per permit $100.00 
 Plus security deposit $100.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
10% Administrative Fee will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Modification Fee 
(SMC 8.238(2)) 
A modification is defined as a request for a sign that complies with the provisions of this sign code in all 
respects except size or height and the proposed request is not more than 15 percent greater than 
otherwise allowed. If the applicant chooses to apply for a modification to the sign code, they may apply 
through the development services department for a cost set by resolution of the council. This 
modification request will be reviewed, and a decision reached by the Development and Public Works 
Director within 30 days of the application, providing the application is complete. 
The following criteria must be met in order for a modification to be approved: 
 (a) Locational and/or dimensional problems have been identified; and 
 (b) The proposed adjustment will not cause any of the following adverse effects on neighboring 

properties: 
  (i) Creates a vision clearance hazard for pedestrians, motor vehicles or bicyclists; or 
  (ii) Creates a hazard for fire prevention or fire suppression; or 

Attachment 3, Page 26 of 80 
 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

  (iii) Public safety is compromised; and 
 (c) The hardship is not self-imposed. 
 Per application $200.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Appeal Fee (Building Board of Appeals) 
(SMC 8.238(5)) An applicant who is denied a modification request may appeal the decision of the 
Development and Public Works Department to the Building Board of Appeals for a cost set by resolution 
of the Council. The request will be reviewed by the Board and a decision reached within 30 days of the 
application date. 
 Per Application $150.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Appeal Fee (City Council Appeal) 
(SMC 8.238(6)) An applicant may appeal the decision of the Board of Appeals regarding an appeal of a 
modification or a variance to the City Council for a cost set by resolution of the Council. The City Council’s 
decision is final except that or a writ of review to Circuit Court is available to appeal the City Council’s 
decision pursuant to Oregon law. [Section 8.238 amended by Ordinance No. 6008, enacted March 18, 
2002.] 
 Per application $100.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Variance Fee  
(SMC 2.568(5)) Hear appeals from the sign code as provided in chapter 8, section 8.238 of the Springfield 
Municipal Code. 
 Per Application $300.00 
 

 

  

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 27 



Section 7:  Engineering 

Section 7:  Engineering  
The following fees shall be charged for the Engineering activities of the City: 
 
Land Drainage Alteration Permit  
(Resolution 11-23, SMC 8.332(1), 8.332(2)) 
 
Plan Checking Fee 
For excavation and fill on the same site, the fee shall be based on the volume of the excavation or fill, 
whichever is greater. Before accepting a set of plans and specifications for checking, the Development and 
Public Works Director shall collect a plan-checking fee. Where not covered by the approved improvement 
plans for the development, separate permits and fees may apply to retaining walls or major drainage 
structures in accordance with the State Building Code. There shall be no separate charge for standard 
terrace drains and similar facilities. The amount of the plan checking fee for grading plans shall be based 
on the average actual costs as set forth by resolution of the City Council. The rates and charges herein 
provided are for incurred costs based upon the use or availability for use of the public right-of-way and/or 
the storm sewer system, as well as for meeting the routine obligations of ownership, which is necessary 
for the regulation of and provision for public health, safety, and welfare. The charge is controlled by the 
user’s or potential user’s request and choice of the kind, nature and quantity of use. The plan-checking 
fee, for a grading permit authorizing additional work to a valid permit, shall be the difference between 
such fee paid for the original permit and the fee shown for the entire project. 
 
Grading Permit Fees 
A fee for each grading permit shall be paid to the Development and Public Works Director based on the 
average actual costs as set forth by resolution of the City Council. The rates and charges herein provided 
are for incurred costs based upon the use or availability for use of the public right-of-way and/or the 
storm sewer system, as well as for meeting the routine obligations of ownership, which is necessary for 
the regulation of and provision for public health, safety, and welfare. The charge is controlled by the 
user’s or potential user’s request and choice of the kind, nature, and quantity of use. The fee for grading 
permit authorizing additional work to that under a valid permit shall be the difference between the fee 
paid for the original permit and the fee shown for the entire project. 
 
Single Family/Duplex Residential 
“Short Form” fee (non-sensitive areas: i.e. lot slope less than 15%; no work in or near a 
drainageway or swale; no wetlands on site; not in a flood plain) 
 Flat fee $485475.00 
“LDAP” fee (work within sensitive areas: i.e. any of the following: lot slope equal to or greater 
than 15%; work in or near a drainageway or swale; wetlands on site; site in flood plain)  
 Flat fee $968949.00 
 
Commercial/Industrial/Multifamily/Other 
 1) Plan Check Fee $485475.00 
 2) Plus: Volume Fee Up to 100 cubic yards $242237.00 
  
 101 to 1,000 cubic yards $242237.00 
 Plus: Per 100 cubic yards over 100 $47.00 
  
 1,001 to 25,000 cubic yards $678665.00 
 Plus: Per 1,000 cubic yards over 1,000 $8179.00 
  

Attachment 3, Page 28 of 80 
 



  Section 7:  Engineering 

  Greater than 25,000 cubic yards: 
Actual recorded staff costs, overhead 

and project expenses 
 $2,743 minimum689minimum 

Plus: $4,500 deposit and additional 
deposits as required 

 
Plus Permit Administration/Inspection Fee 
 Up to 100 cubic yards $242237.00 
 
 101 to 1,000 cubic yards $242237.00 
 Plus: Per 100 cubic yards over 100 $8179.00 
 
 1,001 to 25,000 cubic yards $968949.00 
 Plus: Per 1,000 cubic yards over 1,000$161158.00 
 
 Greater than 25,000 cubic yards 

Actual recorded staff costs, overhead 
and project expenses 
$4,841746 minimum 

Plus $4,500 deposit and additional 
deposits as required 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Corrective LDAP 
Any LDAP processed after work is conducted without required City approvals is considered a 
corrective LDAP.  In addition to the normal LDAP fees, calculated based on an estimate of the 
work performed at the time of the corrective LDAP, the corrective LDAP shall also pay for actual 
recorded staff costs, overhead, and project expenses in the administration of the corrective 
LDAP.  The initial deposits for the corrective LDAP, in addition to the standard LDAP fees, shall 
be $3,000 for parcels less than one acre and $3,000 + $1,500 per acre for parcels more than one 
acre.  If the deposit is insufficient to cover City expenses for the project, additional deposits will 
be required.  
 
Re-Inspection Fee $9896.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Asphalt Damage Deposit  
(SMC 3.210(1)(a), 3.212(3)) Before the issuance of any permit under this article, the Development and 
Public Works Director shall require the applicant to deposit such reasonable security as the Director 
requires to comply with the provisions of this article and with the City’s specifications pertaining to the 
conduct of work. 
    $926908.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 29 



Section 7:  Engineering 

Comprehensive Fee for Use of Public Ways (Non-Utility) 
(SMC 3.224) No structure or device shall be placed in, upon, over or under the public way unless the 
owner of such structure or device shall have received a placement permit authorizing the placement of 
such structure or device. Any violation of this provision shall be an infraction within the meaning of 
Chapter 5 of this code. 
 Per foot-annual rental of City conduit $2.00 
 Per foot-annual placement fee for conduit four inches or less in diameter  $5.00 
 And for each inch of diameter in excess of four inches. $1.00 per foot 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Encroachment Permit 
(SMC 3.212(1)) Applications for the encroachment permit shall be on the form prescribed by the 
Development and Public Works Director, and accompanied by the fee therefore, in an amount fixed by 
the Council by resolution. 
    $301295.00 
   Re-inspection Fee $103101.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Permit Fee: Signs in the Public Right-of-Way (Banners) 
(SMC 3.223(1),(7)) Banner. Any non-rigid material such as canvas, vinyl or cloth, with no enclosing 
framework, which contains advertising copy. 
 

Over the Street Banner 
(SMC 3.223(1),(7)) Over the Street Banner. A banner that hangs between two poles that straddle the 
City street at locations designated by the City. 

 Per permit $150.00 
Open Banner 
(SMC 3.223(1),(7)) Open Banner. A double sided, embroidered banner displayed in the Downtown or 
Mohawk area that is attached to a pole, purchased and installed by the City, and advertises a 
business or organization. 

 Downtown Business District $110-150 
 Mohawk Business District $110-150 

Light Pole Banner 
(SMC 3.223 (1),(7)) Pole Banner.  A banner attached to City utility poles or traffic signal poles at 
designated areas throughout the City. 

 Per permit $100.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Comprehensive Telecommunication Placement Plan Review Fee 
(SMC 3.226(6)) At the election of the applicant, the applicant may file a comprehensive 
telecommunications placement plan which describes all facilities it presently intends to install. Such plan 
is subject to approval of the Development and Public Works Director and may be modified from time to 
time by the applicant with the approval of the Development and Public Works Director. The fee for review 
of such plan shall be fixed by the Council by resolution. 
    $757742.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Page 30 of 80 
 



  Section 7:  Engineering 

Curb Cut Fee 
(SMC 3.254, 3.256) In case the permit shall be granted, it shall be the duty of the applicant to pay a fee 
based on the average actual costs as set forth by resolution of the Council. The same fee shall be charged 
for new construction or repair. The rates and charges herein provided are incurred costs based upon the 
use or availability for use of the public right-of-way, the availability of which is necessary for the 
regulation of, and provision for, the public health, safety and welfare. The charge is controlled by the 
user’s (or potential user’s) request and choice of the kind, nature and quantity of use. 
   First curb cut $109107.00 
   Second curb cut $5857.00 
 Re-inspection fee Per re-inspection $103101.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Curb Cut Fee and Sidewalk Construction Permit: Multiple Permit Discount 
(SMC 3.250, 3.256, 3.300(1)) Before any sidewalk in a public right of way is started, a permit shall be 
obtained from the building official. At the time the permit is issued, the applicant shall pay a fee based on 
the average actual costs for permit administration and sidewalk inspection as set forth by resolution of 
the Council for the sidewalk, for either new construction or repair. These requirements do not apply, 
however, when such work is done under contract with the City or covered by a subdivision agreement 
with the City. The rates and charges herein provided are incurred costs based upon the use or availability 
for use of the public right-of-way, the availability of which is necessary for the regulation of, and provision 
for, the public health, safety and welfare. The charge is controlled by the user’s (or potential user’s) 
request and choice of the kind, nature and quantity of use. 
Discount when applicant obtains up to three Curb Cut or Sidewalk Construction Permits in same 
location.     $3736.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Placement Permit for Standard Mailbox - No Sidewalk Construction 
(SMC 3.226)     No fee 
 
Placement Permit 
(SMC 3.226 (2)) Prior to placing a structure or device in the right-of-way, the owner of such structure or 
device shall secure a placement permit, which permit shall also serve as an encroachment permit. 
    $301295.00 
  Per re-Inspection  $107101.00 
  Plus an Asphalt Damage Deposit (SMC 3.214(2)(b)) $926908.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sidewalk Construction Permit 
(SMC 3.300, 3.310(1)) Before any sidewalk in a public right-of-way is started, a permit shall be obtained 
from the building official. At the time the permit is issued, the applicant shall pay a fee based on the 
average actual costs for permit administration and sidewalk inspection as set forth by resolution of the 
Council for the sidewalk, for either new construction or repair. 
   For the first 90 feet of sidewalk $109107.00 
   Per square foot after $0.09 
   Re-inspection fee $103101.00 
   Sidewalk Repair Permit $20.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 31 



Section 7:  Engineering 

Sewer Connection Fee-Unassessed (Sewer In-Lieu-of-Assessment Fee) 
(SMC 3.356(3)) Upon making an application as herein provided, such person shall pay to the City an 
amount based upon the City’s established rate per square foot of benefited property. This rate is based on 
the average actual sewer construction costs per square foot of benefited property, as set by resolution of 
the Council. Any rate adjustment shall be determined by the previous year’s sewer construction costs and 
projected inflation to the next construction season. The depth of the benefited property shall not exceed 
150 feet from the street or 150 feet from the sanitary sewer line if the sewer line is not within the street 
right-of-way, except by special authorization by the Development and Public Works Director and based 
upon reasonable judgment, such as 
  a. The location of the building in relation to the referenced 150 foot line; 

b. The possibility of future development for the building sites beyond the 150 foot depth. 
Except as provided by (a) and (b) immediately preceding, a reduced charge will be charged for that area 
beyond the 150 foot line. The sum so paid may be deposited against any future sanitary sewer 
assessment which may be made against said property. In the event the sum paid exceeds the assessment 
any excess will be refunded to the property owner. 
 Per square foot for first 150 feet of depth $0.68 
 And per square foot thereafter $0.34 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected 
 
Unassessed Property along McVay Highway, Franklin Boulevard to Nugget Way 
(SMC 3.356(3)(c)) The City Council has determined that a special rate is appropriate for properties directly 
benefitted by the Franklin/McVay Sanitary Sewer Extension, City Project #21080, to provide a reasonable 
and just fee based upon the size and configuration of the benefitted properties. 
 Per square foot  $0.19 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sewer Construction Permit  
(SMC 3.358(4)) An application for a permit to construct a sanitary sewer shall be accompanied by a fee set 
by resolution of the Council. If more than 50 percent of an existing sewer line is to be reconstructed, then 
it shall be classed as new construction. 
    No charge 
 
Sewer Reconstruction Permit 
(SMC 3.358(5)) An application for a permit to reconstruct any sanitary sewer shall be accompanied by a 
fee set by resolution of the Council. If less than 50 percent of an existing sewer line is to be reconstructed, 
then it shall be classed as repairs. 
    No charge 
 
Temporary Storage Fee 
(SMC 3.214(2)(b)) Fee for the temporary storage of articles in the public right-of-way during construction 
as provided for in section 5.052(2)(a), if applicable: 
  Per square foot with a $275.00 minimum charge  $2.00 
  plus and Asphalt Damage Deposit (SMC 3.214(2)(b) $926908.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Page 32 of 80 
 



  Section 7:  Engineering 

General Engineering Fees 
Public Improvement Permit (PIP): Plan Approval and Deposits 
Schedule of deposits pertaining to PIP plan approval and permit 
(SMC 3.018 (1)) From time to time the Council shall, on recommendation of the City Engineer, by 
resolution, adopt a schedule of deposit amounts that shall categorize projects and the required deposit. In 
determining the recommended amount of a deposit, the City Engineer shall consider the actual costs of 
performing review for approval and preliminary testing, and the costs of inspection, testing, and other 
services provided to projects of similar cost of construction in the immediately preceding fiscal year, 
adjusted by the change in the Construction Cost Index during the past twelve months. 
(2) Such actual costs shall include the employee’s base salary; other direct project expenses, such as 
copies, project documentation, the use of consultants, the cost of materials testing and an allowance for 
indirect costs based on percentages determined by the Finance Director. Deposits shall be in accordance 
with such schedule except where the City Engineer determines, in writing, that unusual circumstances 
associated with the project require a deposit of a greater or lesser amount. 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Post-Monumentation Deposit for Subdivision and Partition 
(ORS 92.065(1)) Base deposit $2,800.00 
 Plus monument (each) $130$127.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Project Bid Books and Project Draft Plans 
(ORS 192.440(4)) Oregon Revised Statutes authorize the public body to establish fees reasonably 
calculated to reimburse it for its actual costs in making such records available including costs for 
summarizing, compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s 
request.  
 Minimum, varies by project $2827.00 
 Bid books on Compact disc $2827.00/per disc 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Real Property Compensation Application Fee 
(SMC 2.930(11)) A demand shall include payment of a fee in the amount established by separate 
resolution of the City Council to at least partially cover the City’s cost of processing the demand. The City 
manager may waive the fee if the owner is unable to pay the fee or for other purpose necessary for the 
public health, safety and welfare; 
 (b) The City Manager shall maintain a record of the City’s actual cost of processing the demand, 
including the cost of obtaining any information required by section 2.930 that the owner does not provide 
to the City; 
 (c) In the event the fee is not sufficient to cover all of the City’s costs, or in the event the owner fails 
to pay any fees not waived, the owner shall pay the fee or balance owed, if any, upon receipt of an 
appropriate billing statement from the City; 
 (d) If the fee paid is more than the amount of the City’s actual costs in processing the demand, then 
the excess shall be returned to the owner; 
 (e) In the event that the fee is not paid in full within 30 calendar days after receipt of billing, the City 
may take any enforcement actions provided by law to collect such fee, including but not limited to filing a 
lien on the property. 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 33 



Section 7:  Engineering 

 (f) If a demand is determined to be a valid demand the City shall reimburse the owner for any fee 
paid.  
 Per Application $538527.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Re-Apportionment Fee 
(SMC 3.154) Apportionment or reapportionment shall only be made upon the written request of the 
record owner of the tract or parcel of property involved directed to the finance director. The request shall 
be accompanied by a survey map of the parcels to receive the assessment liens as reapportioned, 
together with a legal description thereof. Apportionment or reapportionment shall only be made upon 
the written request of the record owner of the tract or parcel of property involved directed to the finance 
director. The request shall be accompanied by a survey map of the parcels to receive the assessment liens 
as reapportioned, together with a legal description thereof. 
  First two lots $2827.00 
  Extra per lot $10.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Standard Construction Specification or Engineering Design Standards and Procedures Books  
(ORS 192.440(4)) Oregon Revised Statutes authorize the public body to establish fees reasonably 
calculated to reimburse it for its actual costs in making such records available including costs for 
summarizing, compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s 
request.  
   $4342.00/each 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Other Engineering Fees 
Asphaltic Job Mix Testing Fee  
 Each Public Improvement Project using asphaltic paving $414406.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Local Improvement District Assessment Service Fee 
(SMC 3.072) An assessment service fee of 6.2 percent of the cost of direct construction, advertising, 
testing and engineering of local public improvement projects shall be added and included in the 
assessment made to each benefiting property owner in order to cover the origination, billing and 
collection cost on assessment. 
  Per Assessment 6.2% of Assessment 
 
Reimbursement District Application Fee 
(SMC 3.610 (1)) A person who is required to or chooses to finance some or all of the cost of an 
infrastructure improvement that will be available to provide service to property, other than property 
owned by the person, may, by written application filed with the Development and Public Works Director, 
request that the City establish a reimbursement district. The infrastructure improvements must be in 
addition to or in a size greater than those that would otherwise ordinarily be required in connection with 
the application for permit approval and must be available to provide service to property other than 
property owned by the applicant. Examples include, but shall not be limited to, intersections, full-street 
rather than half-street improvements, traffic signals, off-site sidewalks, connection of street sections for 
continuity, extension of water lines, and extension of sewer lines. The City may also initiate formation of a 
reimbursement district. The application shall be accompanied by a fee, as established by resolution, 
sufficient to cover the cost of administrative review and notice pursuant to this section. 
  Per Benefitted Parcel $500.00 Each 

Attachment 3, Page 34 of 80 
 



  Section 7:  Engineering 

Reimbursement District Administration Fee 
(SMC 316(2)) The City may charge a fee for administration of the agreement. The administration fee shall 
be fixed by the Council in the resolution approving and forming the reimbursement district. The 
administration fee is due and payable to the City at the time the agreement is signed (or, if specified as a 
percentage, shall be paid quarterly based upon the reimbursement fees paid during that quarter). 

For Reimbursement Districts with 10 or fewer Benefitted Parcels  
 $500.00 each 
For Reimbursement Districts with more than 10 Benefitted Parcels 

6.2% of the Reimbursement Fees 
collected from a District each quarter 

 
  

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 35 



Section 8:  Planning Services 

Section 8:  Planning Services 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Planning activities of the City: 
 
Development Code Application Fees 
(Resolution 10-51, Springfield Development Code 5.4-100) 
Any applications being processed before the Hearings Official (except an appeal) shall pay an 
additional deposit of $5,000 for the cost of the Hearings Official. Any amount not expended by 
the Hearings Official shall be returned to the applicant. Charges in excess of this additional fee 
shall be assessed to the applicant.  
Note: Low-Income Fee Reduction: any application fee related to the development of low-income 
housing or facilities may be reduced pursuant to the criteria of Section 1.070(4)of the Springfield 
Development Code. 
 
General Notes 
Expedited Processing Fee: Any request to prioritize and expedite the review of a particular 
application out of the order in which applications are received, shall be approved at the 
discretion of the Director and shall be charged a non-refundable fee of $11,000 or 3 times the 
application fee, whichever is greater; where the development area is greater than 10 acres an 
additional $550 per acre will be charged. 
 
Technology Fee: All applications will be assessed a 5% technology fee with the exception of Pre-
Submittal Meeting, Development Issues Meeting, Pre-Application Report, Appeal of Type II 
Director’s Decision, Appeal of Expedited Land Division, and certain required fees (ex: Postage/ 
Notification Fees). 
 
Copying Costs 
 Copying Fee: Staff Charge out rate ½ hour minimum  
 Plus: First 5 copies up to 11” x 17” No charge 
 All additional copies  $0.50 each 
 Large print copies  $4.00 each 
All special ordered maps are charged from the GIS price sheet. 
 
General Applications 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 
(SDC 5.5-100) 
 Type I City and Urban Growth Boundary:  $772757.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Amendment of Development Code Text 
(SDC 5.6-100) Ballot Measure 56 permits charging staff time for mailing, plus materials and postage. 
 Mailing & Postage Staff Time $75.00 
  Plus:  Materials and Postage 
 Type IV City $7,873719.00 
  UGB $11,878645.00 
  Plus: Postage $565554.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 

Attachment 3, Page 36 of 80 
 



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

Annexation 
(SDC 5.7-100) 
Annexation to the City of Springfield, UGB Only 

Type IV Single family dwellings on LDR property of less than 10,000 
square feet  $1,022.00 

  <1 acre   $2,278233.00 
  1 acre > 5 acres   $2,913856.00 
  5 acres > 10 acres  $3,888812.00 
  10 acres> 25 acres  $4,906810.00 
  25 acres > 50 acres  $6,0895,970.00 
  50 acres > 100 acres  $7,0096,872.00 
  100 acres or more $9,660471.00 
  Postage Fee for all Type IV $565554.00 
   Annexation Special District Boundary Adjustments/Withdrawals 

10% of the paid annexation fee 
(exclusive of postage). 

 UGB Only Comprehensive Planning Fee per acre $1,998.00959/acre 
  Concurrent Special District Boundary Adjustments and/or 

Withdrawals, including but not limited to: Park and Recreation 
Districts; Water Districts; Fire Districts; Library Districts, etc  

10% of applicable annexation fee  
(regardless of the number of Districts) 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Appeals 
(SDC 5.3-100) 
 Type III*  Appeal of Expedited Land Division $334327.00 
  Appeal of Type II Director's Decision (ORS 227.175) $255250.00 
 Type IV Appeal of Type III Decision to City Council 
   City $2,468420.00 
   UGB $3,724651.00 
*This fee is established by ORS 227.175. Council acknowledges Neighborhood Associations shall be 
charged a fee for an appeal. 
 
Note for all local appeals: If an appellant prevails at the hearing or subsequent hearing, the filing fee for 
the initial fee shall be refunded. This applies to local appeals only. The appellant prevails if the hearings 
body sustains one or more of the applicants allegations and amends, remands or reverses the land use 
decision. 
 
Conceptual Development Plan 
(SDC 3.4-315) 
  Type III City $14,450255.00 
   UGB $21,933503.00 
   Plus: Postage $401393.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 37 



Section 8:  Planning Services 

Conceptual Development Plan Amendments 
(SDC 3.4-315) 
  Type III City $5,632522.00 
   UGB $8,497330.00 
   Plus: Postage $401393.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Department of Motor Vehicle Licensing 
(Permit) 
  New City $748733.00 
   UGB $898880.00 
  Renewal City $299293.00 
   UGB $361354.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Determination of Non-Conforming Use Status 
(SDC 5.8-100) 
  Type I City  $113111.00 
   UGB $170167.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Development Issues Meeting 
(SDC 5.1-100(a)) 
  City & UGB  $554543.00 
 
Discretionary Use 
(SDC 5.9-100) 
  Type III City $4,0703,990.00 
   UGB $6,139019.00 
   Plus: Postage $401393.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Drinking Water Protection Overlay District 
(SDC 3.3-200) 
  Type I City & UGB $1,084063.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Expedited Land Division 
(SDC 5.1-145) 
Type II: The fee for an Expedited Land Division (ELD) shall be twice the fee calculated for a regular land 
division plus an appeal fee established in ORS 197.380 to defray costs in the event the decision is 
appealed. If the decision is not appealed, the appeal fee for ELD shall be refunded. A separate postage fee 
is required for an ELD. 
 
Final Site Plan Inspection for Occupancy/LUC/Change of Use 
(Permit) 
   City & UGB $299293.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Page 38 of 80 
 



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

Floodplain Development Base Fee 
(SDC 3.3-400)* 
 Type I Floodplain Base Fees 
   City $1,175152.00 
   UGB $1,773738.00 
  Plus: 
   Subdivision  $212208.00 per lot  
   Partitions and site plans  $425417.00 per acre  
 For all development areas >5 acres $14,514229.00 deposit is required** 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
*A Floodplain permit processed after land use activity is conducted without required City approvals shall 
be charged an additional fee of $500 per acre in addition to the regular application fee.  The City 
establishes these fees based on the average cost of providing programmatic service for activities 
conducted without permits. 
**The >5 acre deposit shall be refunded upon completion, inspection and final approval of work under 
the flood plain permit and associated applications. 
 
Formal Interpretation 
(SDC 5.11-100) 
  Type II City $1,881844.00 
   UGB $2,445397.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
 
Type IV * Ballot Measure 56 permits charging staff time for mailing and postage, plus materials and 
postage. 
 Mailing & Postage Staff Time $75.00 
  Plus:  Materials and Postage 
 
 Formal Interpretation Involving Policy 
   City $5,0424,943.00 
   UGB $7,606457.00 
   Plus: Postage $565554.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Hillside Overlay District (HD) 
(SDC 3.3-500) 
  Type II City & UGB $973954.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Historic 
(SDC 3.3-900) 
 Type III Demolition of Historic Landmark 
   City $3,691619.00 
   UGB $5,570461.00 
  Establishment of Historic Landmark Inventory 
   City & UGB $2,043003.00 
   Plus: Postage $401393.00 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 39 



Section 8:  Planning Services 

 Type I Historic Commission Review under Type I 
   City $6362.00 
   UGB $166163.00 
 Type II Historic Commission Review Under Type II 
   City $188184.00 
   UGB $497487.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Hospital Support Overlay District (HS) 
(SDC 3.3-1100) 
  Type II City Only $3,104043.00 
   Plus $622610.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Land Use Compatibility Statement/Zoning Verification Letter 
(SDC 3.1-100) 
  Permit City $299293.00 
   UGB $323317.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Manufactured Dwelling Park 
(SDC 3.2-235) 
  Type II City $10,492286.00 
   UGB $15,826516.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Manufactured Dwelling Park Space Line Adjustment 
(SDC 3.2-235) 
  Type I City $399391.00 
   UGB $1,057036.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Master Plan 
(SDC 5.13-100) 
Master Plan Approval Preliminary 
  Type II City $14,450255.00 
    Plus $674661.00/acre 
   UGB $21,933503.00 
    Plus $674661.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
 

Attachment 3, Page 40 of 80 
 



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

  Type III City $20,00519,613.00 
    Plus $674661.00/acre 
   UGB $30,11529,525.00 
    Plus $674661.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $401393.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Final Master Plan Approval 

Final Master Plan Approval fee is 10% of the paid master plan approval fee  
(exclusive of postage). 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Master Plan Modification 
  Type I City $2,798743.00 
   UGB $4,194.400112.00 
  Type II City $5,632522.00 
   UGB $8,497330.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
  Type III City $10,285083.00 
   UGB $15,03614,741.00 
   Plus: Postage $401393.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Metro Plan Amendment 
(SDC 5.14-100) Acre fee for diagram amendment 
  Type I, special instruction Type IV 
   City $23,13122,677.00 
    Plus $674661.00/acre 
   UGB $34,892208.00 
    Plus $674661.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $565554.00 
  Type II, special instruction Type IV 
   City $11,21710,997.00 
    Plus $674661.00/acre 
   UGB $14,388106.00 
    Plus $674661.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $565554.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Minimum Development Standards 
 Type I Minor City Only $772757.00  
  Major City Only $1,063042.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 41 



Section 8:  Planning Services 

Non-Conforming Use Expansion/Modification 
  Type II City $4,0703,990.00 
   UGB $6,139019.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Partitions 
(SDC 5.12-100) 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Tentative 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Plat 
Required prior to submittal of Partition - Tentative Plan and Partition – Plat applications. 
   City $368361.00 
   UGB $553542.00 
 
Partition Tentative Plan 
  Type II* City $5,180078.00 
   UGB $9,479293.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
 
Partition Plat 
A reconfiguration of lots or a decrease in the number of lots in a platted partition or subdivision shall be 
charged the tentative replat/replat plat fee for either subdivision or partition as appropriate.  An Increase 
in the number of lots in a platted partition or subdivision shall be charged either the partition tentative 
plan/partition plat or subdivision tentative/ subdivision plat. 
  Type I* City & UGB $2,847791.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Plan Review 
(SDC 2.1-115) 
  Minor City $123121.00 
   UGB $298292.00 
  Major City $219215.00 
   UGB $298292.00 
 
Pre-Application Report 
(SMC 5.1-100) 
   City & UGB $3,778704.00 
 
Pre-Submittal Meeting 
(SMC 5.1-100) 
   City $368361.00 
   UGB $553542.00 
 
Property Line Adjustment 
(SMC 5.16-100) 
  Type I City $663650.00 
   UGB $999979.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Page 42 of 80 
 



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

Property Line Adjustment-Serial 
  Type II City $1,323.96298.00 
   UGB $1,995956.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
 
Replat 
(SDC 5.12-100) 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Tentative 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Plat 
Required prior to submittal of Major Replat Tentative Plan and Major Replat Plat applications. 
   City $368361.00 
 
Minor Replat Tentative Plan 
  Type II City $3,315250.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Minor Replat Plat 
  Type I City $19491,911.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Major Replat Tentative Plan 
  Type II City $5,387281.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Major Replat Plat 
  Type I City $1,951913.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Refinement Plan Amendment 
(SDC 5.6-100) Acre fee for diagram amendment 
  Type IV City $11,21710,997.00 
    Plus $674661.00/acre 
   UGB $17,25916,921.00 
    Plus $674661.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $565554.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Site Plan Review 
(SDC 5.17-100) 
Pre-Submittal Meeting 
Required prior to submittal of Site Plan Review and Site Plan Review Modification – Major applications. 
   City $368.22361.00 
   UGB $553542.00 
 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 43 



Section 8:  Planning Services 

Site Plan Review 
 Type II <10,000 sq. ft. impervious surface 
   City & UGB $4,489401.00 
  10,000 sq. ft. or greater impervious surface 
   City & UGB $4,489401.00 
   Plus $5352.00/1,000 sq. ft. 
  Plus: Postage  $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Site Plan Review Modification-Major 
  Type II City & UGB $4,331.94247.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Site Plan Review Modification-Minor 
  Type I City $1,319293.00 
   UGB $1,991952.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Final Site Plan Equivalent 
  Type I City & UGB $3,999921.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Final Site Plan Review/Development Agreement 
(SMC 5.17-100) 

Type I - Final site plan and development agreement fee is 10% of the paid site plan fee 
(exclusive of postage). 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Solar Access Guarantee 
(SMC 5.18-100) 
  Type II City $830814.00 
   UGB $1,005985.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Street Name Change 
   City Only $5,0424,943.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Subdivisions 
(SDC 5.12-100) 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Tentative 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Plat 
Required prior to submittal of Subdivision – Tentative Plan and Subdivision – Plat Applications. 
   City Only $368361.00 
 

Attachment 3, Page 44 of 80 
 



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

Subdivision-LDR-Tentative Plan 
  Type II <2 acres $5,867.04752.00 
    Plus $252247.00/lot 
   2 acres to 5 acres $8,305142.00 
    Plus $415407.00/lot 
   5 acres to 10 acres $10,985.40770.00 
    Plus $660647.00/lot 
   10 acres to 20 acres $11,589.24362.00 
    Plus $672659.00/lot 
   Greater than 20 acres $12,19211,953.00 
    Plus $732718.00/lot 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Subdivision-LDR-Plat 
   Type I $811795.00 
   Plus $506496.00/lot 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Subdivision-Non-LDR-Tentative Plan 
   Type II $10,358155.00 
   Plus $622610.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Subdivision-Non-LDR-Plat 
   Type I $4,151070.00 
   Plus $674.00acre661.00/acre 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Temporary Use 
(SMC 5.10-100) Fee Waiver: The Director may reduce or waive the fee for Temporary Use-Emergency 
Medical Hardship upon verification of low-income status of the owner occupant. 
  Type II-Emergency Medical Hardship 
   City & UGB $294288.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
  Type I-Manufactured Dwelling-After a Disaster  
   City & UGB $395387.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Time Extension for Certain Improvements 
   City $342335.00 
   UGB $1,110088.00 
 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 45 



Section 8:  Planning Services 

Tree Felling Permit 
(SDC 5.19-100) Any Tree Felling processed after land use activity is conducted without required City 
approvals shall be charged an additional fee of $200 per tree in addition to the regular application fee.  
The City establishes these fees based on the average cost of providing programmatic service for activities 
conducted without permits. 
  Type II – City & UGB 
   Base Fee $1,048027.00 
   Less than five (5) trees No charge 
   6-10 Trees Base Fee Plus $5352.00/tree 
   >10 Trees Base Fee Plus $531521.00/acre 
   Filbert Orchards Base Fee Only 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Vacation 
(SDC 5.20-100) 
Public Easement- Type II City $1,318.86293.00 
   UGB $1,991952.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
ROW, Subdivision Plat and other public property- 
  Type IV City  $5,0424,943.00 
   UGB $7,606457.00 
   Plus: Postage $565554.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Variance 
(SDC 5.21-100) 
  Type II-Minor Variance (up to 30%) 
   City & UGB $2,587.74537.00 
   Plus: Postage $166163.00 
  Type III-Major Variance 
   City $6,751619.00 
   UGB $10,1849,984.00 
   Plus: Postage $401393.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Willamette Greenway 
(SMC 3.3-300) 
 Type III Greenway Setback Line Establishment without Development 
   City/UGB  $3,071011.00 
   Plus: Postage $401393.00  
 Type III-Greenway Setback Line already established 
   City $3,071011.00 
   UGB $6,501374.00 
   Plus: Postage $401393.00 

Attachment 3, Page 46 of 80 
 



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

 Type III-Greenway Setback Line not already established 
   City $6,137017.00 
    Plus $622610.00/acre 
   UGB $8,779607.00 
    Plus $622610.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $401393.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Zoning Map Amendment 
(SDC 5.22-100) The Development will process citizens-initiated zoning map amendments, for properties 
where the zoning and plan designation are in conflict, three times a year beginning in January.  There will 
be no application fee for applicants who choose to utilize this program, however a Type III notification fee 
will be required for each application. 
  Type III City $5,506398.00 
   UGB $10,797585.00 
   Plus: Postage $401393.00 
 

For a copy of the City Council Ordinances please contact the Current Development Division at (541)726-3753. 

  

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 47 



Section 9:  Utilities 

Section 9:  Utilities 
The following fees shall be charged for the Utilities activities of the City: 
 
User Fees 
 
Wastewater and Regional Wastewater (Sewer) Rates  
Resolution 2015-12 
Beginning with bills rendered on or after July 1, 2015 wastewater (sewer) charges shall be as 
follows:  

2.5% Local Wastewater Rate Increase 
2.0% Regional Wastewater Rate Increase 

 

 
Stormwater (Drainage) Rates  
Resolutions 2015-12 
Beginning with bills rendered on or after July 1, 2015 stormwater (drainage) charges shall be as 
follows: 

3.7% Local Stormwater Rate Increase 

Page 48   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 



  Section 9:  Utilities 

 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 49 



Section 9:  Utilities 

Industrial Pretreatment  
(SMC 4.020) (1)  
Purpose. It is the purpose of this section to reduce the City’s cost of implementation of the pretreatment 
program through a system of equitable charges or fees to be paid by the industrial users of the City 
sewerage system who are subject to this section for certain service. The applicable charges or fees shall 
be set forth on a schedule of fees adopted by resolution of the Council. 
 (2) Adoption. 
  (a) Setting up and operating the pretreatment program. 
  (b) Sampling, monitoring, inspections, and surveillance procedures. 
  (c) Reviewing accidental discharge procedures and construction. 
  (d) Reviewing and acting upon permit applications. 
  (e) Other services as the City manager may deem necessary to carry out the requirements 

contained herein. 
 
(SMC 4.008, 4.070) No industrial user shall discharge wastewater containing restricted substances into the 
City sewerage system, in excess of limitations specified by conditions of its discharge permit or published 
by the City manager. The City manager shall publish and revise from time to time rules which designate 
and establish limits for restricted substances. At all times, these rules shall cover and be at least as strict 
as those for pollutants as defined in state or federal regulations. Discharge limits or rules in effect and 
incorporated into any discharge permit shall remain in effect for that permit until it expires, except as 
modified pursuant to section 4.024. The City manager is authorized and directed to promulgate such rules 
and regulations as may be deemed necessary or proper to carry out the purposes or provisions of sections 
4.002 to 4.094. Nothing in these sections shall prevent the City manager from seeking judicial or 
governmental agency assistance to implement the purposes and provisions of this code. 
 
Annual Permit Fee 
Administrative Rule 4.0503 R4.0503-C (1) A nonrefundable annual permit fee in the amount listed in the 
most recent amendment of the Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 340-045-0075:  Permit Fee Schedule 
Table 70E (Annual Pretreatment Fees-Significant Industrial User) shall be paid to the City by each 
permitted Significant Industrial User(SIO).  The fee shall be due annually on August 1 and will be applied 
to each SIU specified in the City’s annual DEQ Pretreatment Report for the previous calendar year. 

 
OAR 340-045-0075 Permit Fee Schedule 
Table 70E Annual Pretreatment Fee 
   Significant Industrial User $ 637569 per industry 
 
Administrative Rule 4.0503, Appendix B 
Resample and Analytical Cost 
 Barometer Sample Type Cost 
 Metals1 (except Mercury) - Composite $118.00 
 Metals1  (except Mercury) - Grab $152.00 
 Mercury2 Composite $122.00 
 Mercury2 Grab $182.00 
 Silica Gel Treated Hexane Ext. Material - Grab $274.00 
 Cyanide Composite $148.00 

1 The above cost for metals includes the cost of analysis for one metal; each additional metal analysis 
would cost $14. 
2 Cost for mercury includes sampling.  If mercury is included with sampling for other metals, additional 
cost for mercury is $18. 

Attachment 3, Page 50 of 80 
 

                                                           



  Section 9:  Utilities 

 Cyanide Grab $182.00 
 pH Grab $149.00 
 Phenols Composite $146.00 
 Phenols Grab $181.00 
 Volatile Organics (EPA 624) - Grab $283.00 
 Semi-volatile Organics (EPA 625) - Grab $433.00 
 BTEX Grab $163.00 

The costs in the above table will be reviewed annually, and adjusted when necessary 

Administrative Rule 4.0503, Appendix A 
Enforcement Response Guide - Effluent Limitations or General Discharge Prohibitions (See Notes 2, 3, 4, 5, 
6. 7. 8. 11. 12) 
Nature of Violation 
 First month with violation(s) in a 12-month period 
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Second month with violation(s) in a 12-month period  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $100 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Third month with a violation(s) in a 12-month period 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $200 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Fourth month with violation(s) in a 12-month period 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $300 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Fifth month with violation(s) in a 12-month period 
  Response    Notice of Violation Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty   $500 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Sixth to twelfth month with violation(s) in a 12-month period 
  Response  Notice of Violation (Administrative Compliance Order remains in effect) 
  Penalty   $500 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any series of violations of effluent limitations which meet the definition of Significant 

Noncompliance  
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty   See Note 5 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any exceedance of effluent limitations which causes danger, interference, pass-through, 

or sludge contamination 
 Response  Administrative Compliance Order or civil 

litigation or terminate service 
  Penalty   $2,500 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 51 



Section 9:  Utilities 

Failure to Report Noncompliance 
(See Note 12) 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to immediately report any slug load, spill or discharge that could cause 

interference or pass-through, (no harm)  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to immediately report any spill, slug load, or discharge causing interference or 

pass-through, or other harm  
 Response   Administrative Compliance Order 

  Penalty   $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to report a violation of a permit effluent limitation within 24 hours  
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to report a violation of a permit effluent limitation within 3 days  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to provide a certified laboratory report and written report within 5 days of a 

permit effluent limitation violation 
  Response   Notice of Violation  
  Penalty   $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to provide a written report of an effluent limitation violation as required by a 

Notice of Violation  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $300 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any noncompliance report late by more than 30 days (SNC) 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty   $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 

Failure to Submit Other Required Reports 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to notify the City of a substantial change in volume or character of pollutants in 

discharge 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to notify the City of a batch discharge  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 

Attachment 3, Page 52 of 80 
 



  Section 9:  Utilities 

 Failure to report a slug discharge within 24 hours  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to notify the City of the disposal of over 500 gallons of wastewater to any other 

person in a period of 12 consecutive months 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to obtain prior written permission for discharge of any hazardous waste, subject 

to exemptions in City Code 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $1,000 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to report the discharge of any hazardous waste within 180 days, subject to 

exemptions in City Code  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Two or more failures to submit required reports or notifications in a 12-month period 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order (See Note 2) 
  Penalty  $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to report all monitoring data  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
General Reporting Requirements 
Nature of Violation 
 Any report (other than a noncompliance report) late by more than 5 days but less than 

15 days  
  Response   Telephone Call 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any report (other than a noncompliance report) late by 15 to 30 days 
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any report (other than a noncompliance report) late by more than 30 days (SNC)  
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any incomplete or inaccurate report, or any report improperly signed or certified 
  Response   Telephone Call 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 53 



Section 9:  Utilities 

 Any incomplete or inaccurate report, or any report improperly signed or certified after 
telephone notice by City 

  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $100 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Pollution Management Practices 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to implement required pollution management practices (first notice) 
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to implement required pollution management practices (second notice) 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 per month 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Record Keeping 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to maintain required records for three years 

Response  Notice of Violation 
  Penalty $200 
  Personnel  City Manager 
 
Monitoring 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to conduct self-monitoring as required in permit 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 per sample day and conduct monitoring 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Improper sampling or analytical procedures used, no intent 
  Response    Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Improper sampling or analytical procedures used, intent 
  Response  Administrative Compliance Order (See Note 10, Page 12) 
  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to install required monitoring equipment or facilities, delay less than 30 days  
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to install required monitoring equipment or facilities, delay more than 30 days 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 

Attachment 3, Page 54 of 80 
 



  Section 9:  Utilities 

 Failure to install required monitoring equipment or facilities, delay more than 90 days  
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Falsification 
Nature of Violation 
 Making any false statement, representation, or certification in any application, record, 

report, plan or other document; or falsifying, tampering with or rendering inaccurate 
any monitoring device 

  Response   Notice of Violation (See Note 9) 
  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Unpermitted Discharge 
Nature of Violation 
 Industrial User unaware of requirement; no harm   
  Response   Telephone call. Permit application sent 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Industrial User unaware of requirement; results in harm 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to apply for permit within 30 days after notice from City 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to apply for permit within 30 days after Notice of Violation 
  Response   Terminate Service 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Industrial User aware of requirement; no harm 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $300 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Industrial User aware of requirement, results in harm 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Permit Reissuance 
Nature of Violation 
 Application for permit reissuance late by more than 15 days (due 90 days prior to 

expiration date) 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $100 
  Personnel   City Manager 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 55 



Section 9:  Utilities 

Dilution 
Nature of Violation 
 Waste stream diluted in lieu of treatment; initial violation 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $300 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Waste stream diluted in lieu of treatment; recurring 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Entry Denial 
Nature of Violation 
 Entry to premises or access to sampling location denied 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel  City Manager 
 
Compliance Schedules 
Nature of Violation 
 Compliance date missed by less than 30 days  
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Compliance date missed by more than 30 days 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Compliance date missed by more than 90 days (SNC) 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to meet a compliance date listed in an Administrative Compliance Order 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order in effect 
  Penalty  $500 per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Mobile Waste Hauler 
(See Note 10) 
Nature of Violation 
 Discharge of wastes at unpermitted discharge point (first violation)  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $1,000 
  Personnel   City Manager 

Attachment 3, Page 56 of 80 
 



  Section 9:  Utilities 

 Discharge of wastes at unpermitted discharge point (second violation)  
  Response  Notice of Violation, Permit revoked; unauthorized 

   to discharge at WPCF; letter of notification to 
hauler; copy of letter to DEQ 

  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Discharge of wastes at unpermitted time (first violation in 12 months) 
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Discharge of wastes at unpermitted time (second and subsequent violations in 12 
months)  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to submit or properly complete manifest at time of disposal 
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to submit or properly complete manifest within 10 days of Notice of 
Noncompliance  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $50 per manifest 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to submit or properly complete manifest at time of disposal two or more times in 

one calendar month 
Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty  $200 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Discharge of other than domestic or septage wastes without prior approval 
Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty  $500 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Failure to supply copies of required documents to City by due date 
Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty  $200 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Failure to clean up spilled material at disposal site 
Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty   Twice cost to City of labor and materials to clean up site 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Mobile Waste Hauler discharging without a permit  
Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty   $1,000 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Failure to pay waste disposal charges within 30 days of mailing date 
Response   Letter regarding delinquent account with copy of billing 
Penalty  $5.00 or 5% of past due amount, whichever is greater 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 57 



Section 9:  Utilities 

Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to pay waste disposal charges within 60 days of mailing date  

Response  Certified letter, demanding payment within 10 days; cash, 
money order, cashier’s check only 

Penalty  $5.00 or 5% of past due amount, whichever is greater 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Failure to pay waste disposal charges within 10 days of mailing date of above certified 
demand letter 

Response Permit revoked, unauthorized to discharge at 
WPCF; letter of notification to hauler; copy of 
letter to DEQ 

Penalty  Unauthorized to discharge at WPCF (See Note 10) 
Personnel   City Manager 

 
Other Violations 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to comply with any other condition or requirement of a Wastewater Discharge 

Permit or Mobile Waste Hauler Permit not included above (no intent) 
Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
Penalty   None 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Failure to comply with any other condition or requirement of a Wastewater Discharge 
Permit or Mobile Waste Hauler Permit (intent) 

Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty  $200 
Personnel   City Manager 

 
NOTES:  Definitions (for other definitions see Springfield City Code 4.004), City Manager: City of Springfield 
City Manager, SNC: Significant Noncompliance (Springfield City Code 4.068), WPCF: Eugene/Springfield 
Water Pollution Control Facility, DEQ: Oregon Department of Environmental Quality, POTW: Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works 
 
Other Rates 
Solid Waste 
(SMC 4.408, Resolution 2014-)(1) Charges for the collection of garbage and refuse as established herein 
shall be payable monthly in advance. In the event that any person fails to pay the collector of garbage and 
refuse for the services rendered by the collector for a period of 45 days, then the collector may prepare a 
statement to that effect, and to the effect that he is terminating the service to such person and shall 
deliver a copy thereof to the City manager. The City shall thereupon have the burden of seeing to it that 
such person for whom the service is terminated disposes of his garbage in accordance with the terms of 
sections 4.400 to 4.430. The collector shall have no duty to commence serving such person again until the 
collector shall have been reimbursed for the delinquent payments. 

Attachment 3, Page 58 of 80 
 



  Section 9:  Utilities 

 
 

(11/01/2014)
PICKUPS PER WEEK

Number of Cans 1 2 3 4 5 6
1 Mini-Can (21-Gallon) 9.51 1 Mini-Can EOW (21-Gallon) 7.68
County User Fee 2.09 County User Fee 1.57
Total 11.60 Total 9.25

1 Can EOW (35-Gallon) 8.61
County User Fee 2.89

11.50

1 Can/Cart (35-Gallon) 12.71 25.42 38.13 50.84 63.55 76.26
County User Fee 3.84 7.68 11.52 15.36 19.20 23.04
Total 16.55 33.10 49.65 66.20 82.75 99.30

2 Cans 25.42 50.84 76.26 101.68 127.10 152.52
County User Fee 7.68 15.36 23.04 30.72 38.40 46.08
Total 33.10 66.20 99.30 132.40 165.50 198.60

3 Cans 38.13 76.26 114.39 152.52 190.65 228.78
County User Fee 11.52 23.04 34.56 46.08 57.60 69.12
Total 49.65 99.30 148.95 198.60 248.25 297.90

4 Cans 50.84 101.68 152.52 203.36 254.20 305.04
County User Fee 15.36 30.72 46.08 61.44 76.80 92.16
Total 66.20 132.40 198.60 264.80 331.00 397.20

5 Cans 63.55 127.10 190.65 254.20 317.75 381.30
County User Fee 19.20 38.40 57.60 76.80 96.00 115.20
Total 82.75 165.50 248.25 331.00 413.75 496.50

6 Cans 76.26 152.52 228.78 305.04 381.30 457.56
County User Fee 23.04 46.08 69.12 92.16 115.20 138.24
Total 99.30 198.60 297.90 397.20 496.50 595.80

65-Gallon Cart 17.54 35.08 52.62 70.16 87.70 105.24
County User Fee 6.56 13.12 19.68 26.24 32.80 39.36
Total 24.10 48.25 72.35 96.45 120.55 144.70

95-Gallon Cart 21.24 42.48 63.72 84.96 106.20 127.44
County User Fee 9.51 19.02 28.53 38.04 47.55 57.06
Total 30.75 61.50 92.25 123.05 153.80 184.55

1 Can/Cart - Premium 15.25 65-Premium 26.00 95-Premium 40.90
County User Fee 4.10 CUF 7.25 CUF 8.95
Total 19.35 Total 33.25 Total 49.85

Condo/MHP 35G 10.86 65-Condo 15.64 95-Condo 19.19
County User Fee 3.84 CUF 6.56 CUF 9.51
Total 14.70 Total 22.20 Total 28.70

SPRINGFIELD CAN/CART RATES

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 59 



Section 9:  Utilities 

 
  

(11/01/2014)          Pickups Per Week
Container Size 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
1.0 Yard 69.53$       135.71$     201.64$        265.27$      331.55$      394.53$      461.26$       
County User Fee 22.42$       44.84$      67.26$          89.68$        112.10$      134.52$      156.94$       
Total 91.95$       180.55$     268.90$        354.95$      443.65$      529.05$      618.20$       

Each Additional 83.40$       150.75$     223.10$        296.40$      368.50$      440.35$      513.15$       

E.O.W. 26.75$       + 20.40$      = 47.15$          

1.5 Yard 100.39$     191.23$     282.57$        373.71$      464.80$      555.74$      639.43$       
County User Fee 33.66$       67.32$      100.98$        134.64$      168.30$      201.96$      235.62$       
Total 134.05$     258.55$     383.55$        508.35$      633.10$      757.70$      875.05$       

Each Additional 121.45$     235.45$     361.95$        461.15$      577.40$      690.55$      844.95$       
E.O.W. 38.50$       + 30.20$      = 68.70$          

2.0 Yard 129.00$     246.45$     363.60$        480.95$      598.20$      715.50$      823.20$       
County User Fee 44.90$       89.75$      134.65$        179.50$      224.40$      269.30$      314.15$       
Total 173.90$     336.20$     498.25$        660.45$      822.60$      984.80$      1,137.35$    

Each Additional 157.95$     306.40$     462.55$        602.95$      751.30$      899.45$      1,045.95$    
E.O.W. 43.55$       + 40.00$      = 83.55$          

3.0 Yard 180.58$     345.36$     504.59$        674.22$      838.85$      1,003.23$    1,153.16$    
County User Fee 67.32$       134.64$     201.96$        269.23$      336.55$      403.87$      471.19$       
Total 247.90$     480.00$     706.55$        943.45$      1,175.40$    1,407.10$    1,624.35$    

Each Additional 226.10$     435.15$     645.65$        859.00$      1,077.95$    1,290.75$    1,500.05$    
E.O.W. 67.15$       + 59.65$      = 126.80$        

4.0 Yard 224.80$     431.20$     636.95$        842.80$      1,048.55$    1,254.40$    1,445.10$    
County User Fee 89.75$       179.50$     269.30$        359.05$      448.80$      538.55$      628.30$       
Total 314.55$     610.70$     906.25$        1,201.85$    1,497.35$    1,792.95$    2,073.40$    

Each Additional 288.15$     561.35$     833.80$        1,106.10$    1,387.95$    1,651.45$    1,921.00$    
E.O.W. 81.90$       + 79.00$      = 160.90$        

5.0 Yard 263.08$     505.61$     747.34$        967.92$      1,230.65$    1,472.48$    1,697.36$    
County User Fee 112.17$     224.39$     336.56$        448.78$      560.95$      673.17$      785.34$       
Total 375.25$     730.00$     1,083.90$     1,416.70$    1,791.60$    2,145.65$    2,482.70$    

Each Additional 241.50$     666.45$     990.80$        1,315.25$    1,639.50$    1,963.90$    2,287.25$    
E.O.W. 93.85$       + 98.05$      = 191.90$        

6.0 Yard 296.35$     570.15$     843.35$        1,116.45$    1,389.80$    1,662.95$    1,917.90$    
County User Fee 134.65$     269.30$     403.90$        538.55$      673.20$      807.85$      942.55$       
Total 431.00$     839.45$     1,247.25$     1,655.00$    2,063.00$    2,470.80$    2,860.45$    

Each Additional 414.70$     778.15$     1,133.05$     1,538.55$    1,915.45$    2,294.70$    2,670.35$    
E.O.W. 103.45$     + 116.90$     = 220.35$        

SPRINGFIELD CONTAINER RATES

Attachment 3, Page 60 of 80 
 



  Section 9:  Utilities 

 

 

(11/01/2014)
Compactor Size 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

2.0 Yard 247.80$     495.60$        743.35$        991.15$        1,238.95$     1,486.75$     1,734.50$     
County User Fee 103.05$     206.10$        309.15$        412.20$        515.25$        618.30$        721.35$        
Total 350.85$     701.70$        1,052.50$     1,403.35$     1,754.20$     2,105.05$     2,455.85$     

E.O.W. 86.05$       + 93.10$          = 179.15$        
On-Call 41.85$       + 47.85$          = 89.70$          

3.0 Yard 387.76$     775.52$        1,080.06$     1,439.41$     1,800.07$     2,160.12$     2,520.12$     
County User Fee 181.19$     362.38$        626.79$        836.39$        1,044.63$     1,253.58$     1,462.53$     
Total 568.95$     1,137.90$     1,706.85$     2,275.80$     2,844.70$     3,413.70$     3,982.65$     

E.O.W. 118.44$     + 151.66$        = 270.10$        
On-Call 62.84$       + 71.91$          = 134.75$        

4.0 Yard 518.21$     962.45$        1,443.65$     1,924.90$     2,406.10$     2,887.30$     3,368.55$     
County User Fee 241.59$     557.15$        835.75$        1,114.30$     1,392.90$     1,671.45$     1,950.05$     
Total 759.80$     1,519.60$     2,279.40$     3,039.20$     3,799.00$     4,558.75$     5,318.60$     

E.O.W. 158.80$     + 202.20$        = 361.00$        
On-Call 83.97$       + 95.88$          = 179.85$        

Pickups Per Week
SPRINGFIELD COMPACTING CONTAINER RATES

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 61 



Section 9:  Utilities 

  

(11/01/2014)
Extra or

Basic User Overflow On-Call
Container Size Charge Fee Charge Charge

1.0 Yard 12.62 9.98 22.60 22.60
1.5 Yard 18.10 14.85 32.95 32.95
2.0 Yard 20.45 19.60 40.05 40.05
3.0 Yard 31.55 29.20 60.75 60.75
4.0 Yard 38.33 38.72 77.05 77.05
5.0 Yard 43.76 48.04 91.80 91.80
6.0 Yard 48.09 57.26 105.35 105.35

Can Charges
1 Can 2.77 1.08 3.85
2 Cans 5.48 2.22 7.70
3 Cans 8.24 3.31 11.55
4 Cans 11.01 4.39 15.40
5 Cans 13.72 5.53 19.25

Major Appliances Stove - Refrigerator - Washer - Dryer - Hot Water Heater
Curbside 28.40 23.60 52.00
Backyard 38.40 23.60 62.00

Furniture Sofas - Chairs 
Curbside 15.40 10.60 26.00
Backyard 25.40 10.60 36.00

Mattress & Box Spring (regardless of size)
Each piece 10.00 15.00 25.00

Brush, Boxes, Demolition
Will be charged by volume and time.  Volume equated to 32 gallon cans
and time spent in loading.

SPRINGFIELD EXTRA CHARGE RATES

Attachment 3, Page 62 of 80 
 



  Section 9:  Utilities 

  

(11/01/2014)

Drop Box Size & Description Basic Charge User Fee

20 YD 124.00 75.55 per ton

30 YD 186.00 75.55 per ton

40 YD 248.00 75.55 per ton

Stationary Compactor
Charge Per Cubic Yard 6.19 75.55 per ton

Box Delivery Fee (Any Size) 24.30
Spotting Fee & Relocate Box 24.30

Demurrage Charge (Box Rental)
  Beginning after the seventh day 6.20 per day
  Excluding Sunday and Holidays

SPRINGFIELD DROP BOX CHARGES

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 63 



Section 9:  Utilities 

Fuel Tax 
Motor Vehicle Fuel Dealer’s Business License 
(SMC 7.504(b)) No dealer shall sell, use or distribute any motor vehicle fuel until he/she has secured a 
dealer’s license as required herein. [Section 7.506 added by Ordinance 6042, enacted March 10, 2003.] 
 Per gallon of such motor vehicle sold, used or distributed $0.03 
 
Failure to Secure (Motor Fuel Dealer’s Business) License 
(SMC 7.510(b))  If a dealer sells, distributes or uses any motor vehicle fuel without first filing the 
certificate and obtaining the license required by section 7.506 
   Amount of tax determined to be due plus a penalty of 100% of the tax. 
 
Payment of (Motor Fuel Dealer’s) Tax and Delinquency 
(SMC 7.518(2), 7.518 (3))  Except as provided in subsections (3) and (4) of this section, if payment of the 
license tax is not paid as required by subsection (1) of this section, a penalty of 1 percent of such license 
tax shall be assessed and be immediately due and payable. Except as provided in subsection (4) of this 
section, if the payment of the tax and penalty, if any, is not made on or before the 1st day of the next 
month following that month in which payment is due, a further penalty of 10 percent of the tax shall be 
assessed. Said penalty shall be in addition to the penalty provided for in subsection (2) of this section and 
shall be immediately due and payable. 
 
Failure to File (Motor Fuel Dealer’s) Monthly Statement 
(SMC 7.522) If a dealer fails to file any statement required by section 7.520, the tax administrator shall 
proceed forthwith to determine from as many available sources as the tax administrator determines 
reasonable the amount of motor vehicle fuel sold distributed or used by such dealer for the period 
unreported, and such determination shall in any proceeding be prima facie evidence of the amount of fuel 
sold, distributed or used. The tax administrator shall immediately assess the dealer for the license tax 
upon the amount determined, adding thereto a penalty of 10 percent of the tax. The penalty shall be 
cumulative to other penalties provided in this code 
 
Telecommunication Business License Tax, Fees, and Utility License 

Comprehensive Telecommunication Placement Plan Review Fees 
(SMC 3.266 (5)) At the election of the applicant, the applicant may file a comprehensive 
telecommunications placement plan which describes all facilities it presently intends to install. Such plan 
is subject to approval of the Public Works director and may be modified from time to time by the 
applicant with the approval of the Public Works director.  
 $704.00 
Telecommunication Business License Tax  
(SMC  4.707 (1) and (3) added by Ordinance No. 6323, enacted July 21, 2014 .  See also SMC 4.602 Utility 
License Required.)  
(1) All persons providing utility services in the City shall pay to the City of Springfield a utility tax in the 
amount of five percent of gross revenues, as herein defined, subject to limitations in other state or federal 
laws. 
  Gross revenue 5% 
(3) All utilities owned and operated by the City of Springfield, except a municipal utility as defined in ORS 
757.005(1), shall pay to the City of Springfield a utility tax fixed by resolution of the Council. (Fee set by 
Resolution 11-23, June 20, 2011, Resolution 1, Ordinance 4. April 1, 2013, Resolution 2013-15, November 
1, 2013). 
City of Springfield utilities   Gross Revenue 3% 

Attachment 3, Page 64 of 80 
 



  Section 9:  Utilities 

Compensation Fee for Use of Public Ways  
(SMC  4.706 (1) added by Ordinance No. 6311, enacted March 3, 2014; amended by Ordinance No. 6323, 
enacted July 21, 2014.See also SMC 4.602 Utility License Required.)  Fee set by Resolution 11-23, June 20, 
2011. 
All persons not parties to a franchise or public way use agreement, and occupying the public ways for 
placement of utility facilities but not providing utility service within the City shall pay a fee, in an amount 
fixed by resolution of the Council for each foot or portion thereof occupied, subject to limitations in other 
state or federal laws. 
 Per foot $4.00 

Telecommunication License Application Fee 
(SMC 4.702, Ordinance No. 5891, enacted May 18, 1998; amended by Ordinance No. 6203, enacted July 
16, 2007) 
Any applicant for a license, including a renewal or amendment of an existing license. An applicant whose 
license or franchise application has been withdrawn, abandoned or denied within 60 days of its 
application and review fee written request, shall be refunded the balance of its deposit under this section, 
less: 
  New and including renewal of existing License(s) $50.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Compensation for City Property 
(SMC 4.710 Ordinance No. 5891, enacted May 18, 1998; amended by Ordinance No. 6203, enacted July 16, 
2007) If the right is granted, by lease, license, franchise or other manner, to use and occupy City property 
other than the public ways for the installation of facilities. 
  Fee assessed per property 
  

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 65 



Section 10:  System Development Charges 

Section 10:  System Development Charges 
The System Development Charges are annually increased by an inflationary rate on July 1 of each 
year.  
The following fees shall be charged for the development activities of the City: 
 
Calculating the SDC 
The SDC charges for each development is calculated using the worksheet shown as Exhibit 2. 
 
The Storm Sewer SDC is based on square feet of impervious surface area. The Sanitary Sewer SDC is based 
on drainage fixture units as defined by the April 2000 Oregon Amendments to the 1997 Uniform Plumbing 
Code. The Transportation SDC is based on average weekday trip generation rates as published in the 
latest edition of the Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual. More detailed information on 
calculating the fees for each system is shown below: 
 
Storm Drainage 
The storm drainage SDC is paid by all new residential, commercial, and industrial development.  he charge 
is based on the square footage of the impervious surface area of the development. Impervious surfaces 
typically consist of concrete, asphalt, and roofing. The cost per square foot of impervious surface area is 
$0.63315. In applying the SDC, the cost per square foot is applied to the amount of impervious surface 
area measured at the time the building permit is issued. 
 

FORMULA: STORM DRAINAGE SDC = IMPERVIOUS SQUARE FEET x $0.633/SQUARE FOOT 
 
A 50% credit will be given for the portion of impervious area served by a drywell sized and 
constructed to City of Springfield Standard Construction Specifications. A SDC credit will also be 
given for peak ten-year runoff reduction based on documentation provided by the developer 
and approved by the City.  
 
Sanitary Sewer-City 
The charge is paid by all new commercial, industrial, and residential development. To calculate the impact 
of new development on the sanitary sewer system, the City uses the number of drainage fixture units 
(DFU) as the basis of the charge. 
 
Residential rate increases to $218.05 per DFU. 

FORMULA: Residential City sanitary sewer SDC = number of DFU x $218.05 
 

Commercial/Industrial is $218.05 per DFU. 
FORMULA: Commercial/industrial City sanitary sewer SDC = number of DFU x $218.05 

 
Drainage fixture unit (DFU) calculation table 

 Fixture type  Unit Equivalent 
 Bathtub  3 
 Drinking Fountain 1 
 Floor Drain, Floor Sink 3 
 Interceptors for Grease/Oil/Solids/etc. 3 
 Interceptors for Sand/Auto Wash/etc. 6 
 Laundry Tub 2 
 Clothes washer/Mop Sink 3 
 Clothes washer- 3 or more (each) 6 

Page 66   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 



  Section 10:  System Development Charges 

 Mobile Home Park trap (1 per trailer) 12 
 Receptor for Refrigerator 1 
 Receptor for Commercial sink/dishwasher/etc. 3 

 Shower, Single stall 2 
 Shower, Gang (number of heads) 2 
 Sink:  Commercial, Residential Kitchen 3 
 Sink: Commercial bar 2 
 Sink: Wash basin/Double lavatory 2 
 Sink: Single lavatory/Residential bar 1 
 Urinal, Stall/Wall 5 
 Toilet, Public installation 6 
 Toilet, Private installation 3 
 

Transportation  
This SDC is charged on new commercial, industrial, professional, and residential development or change 
of use. It helps support expansion of arterial and collector roads, traffic signals, and street lighting. The 
SDC is based on the trip rate of the specific type of development and the cost per trip.  The cost per trip is 
$340.38 for all use types. A new trip factor is applied to omit short pass-by trips, diverted trips, and other 
linked trips. Trip rates for developments are based on the current Institute for Transportation Engineers' 
(ITE's) Trip Generation Manual, or the developer can submit a trip generation study outlined and 
approved by the City of Springfield. A partial list of trip rates is in the Transportation Fee Schedule, Exhibit 
3. 
 

FORMULA: Number of Trips X Unit X $340.38 X New Trip Factor 
 
Sanitary Sewer (MWMC) 
The Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) Facility Equalization Charge is a 
reimbursement fee for the reserve capacity that was constructed to serve new growth. This fee is 
designed to reimburse the community for its equity in the treatment plant's reserve capacity.  Newly 
developed properties, change of use, or other properties that are connecting to the wastewater 
treatment system for the first time will pay the equalization charge. New development receives credit for 
past bond payments on existing debt and for contributions to qualified offsite public improvements. See 
Exhibit 4, Attachments C. The Flow Estimation Units (FEU) is used for the MWMC Facility Equalization 
Charge. 
 

Formula: NUMBER OF FEU x COST PER FEU + $10 ADMIN. FEE 
 
Administrative Cost 
The SDC legislation allows the City to recover its costs for complying with the required changes.  A five 
percent (5%) administrative fee will be added to cover the cost of developing the SDC, establishing 
accounting mechanisms and administering the ongoing program. 
 
Residential SDC Payment Deferral Program 
(SMC 3.412)(4) The purchaser of a home or multifamily dwelling may elect to finance system 
development charges over a period of 10 years, billed in equal semiannual installments, plus interest and 
fees. 
  Interest Rate –Unbonded Average City Earnings Rate plus 2% 
 Interest Rate – Bonded Bond Rate plus 1.5% 
 Deferral Administrative Fee $50.00 
 Installment Late Payment Fee 10% of Overdue Installment 

 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 67 



Section 10:  System Development Charges 

Short-Term SDC Payment Deferral Program 
(City Policy) Whenever the total SDC due for a Building Permit exceeds $10,000, the applicant may elect to 
enter into a short-term SDC Deferral Agreement.  The Agreement is in the form of a potential lien and 
must be signed prior to Building Permit issuance.  The SDC Deferral Agreement allows the applicant to pay 
a minimum of $10,000 toward the total SDC due prior to the City issuing the Building Permit.  The balance 
of the SDC due must be paid in full prior to the City issuing a Certificate of Occupancy for the building. 
  Initial SDC Payment $10,000.00 at Building Permit Issuance 
  Final SDC PaymentBalance of SDC Due prior to Certificate of Occupancy 
 
SDC Credit Certificate Administration Fees 
(SMC 3.417) (1)In the event a credit authorized under section 3.416(2) is greater than the amount of 
the charge due, the City shall upon request of the developer, issue to the developer a certificate, 
documenting the amount of the credit in excess of the charge. 
 (2) Such certificate may be redeemed by the developer and applied to future charges for 
that type of capital improvement, provided such redemption shall occur not later than 10 years after the 
date of issuance of the certificate. 
 (3) Any developer issued a certificate shall pay to the City, at the time of issuance, and 
annually thereafter until such certificate is redeemed, an administrative fee fixed by resolution of the 
Council. Failure to timely pay such annual fee shall not invalidate a certificate, but no certificate shall be 
transferred or redeemed until all annual fees shall have been paid. 
 (4) The certificate may be redeemed in whole or in parts. If the certificate is redeemed in 
part, the City shall, upon delivery of the certificate, issue a new certificate documenting the remaining 
credit available. Such reissued certificate shall expire 10 years after the date of the original certificate, and 
shall be considered a new certificate for purposes of the administrative fee. 
 (5) Such certificate may be transferred, in whole or in part, to another person, provided, 
however, that no such transfer shall be effective until the holder of the certificate shall surrender the 
same and a new certificate or certificates issued. 
  Initial SDC Credit Certificate Fee $250.00 
  Annual Certificate Maintenance Fee $250.00 
 

Attachment 3, Page 68 of 80 
 



Exhibits 

Exhibits 
Exhibit 1 page 1

 

JOURNAL OR JOB NUMBER
NAME OR COMPANY:

MAP & TAX LOT NUMBER:
DEVELOPMENT TYPE:  

NEW DEVELOPED AREA (S.F.): MWMC: 630 ITE: 630
EXISTING DEVELOPED AREA (S.F.): MWMC: 630 ITE: 630

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS SURFACE (S.F.): LOT SIZE (S.F.):  
1. STORM DRAINAGE
NEW IMPERVIOUS SQ. FT. 
A.  REIMBURSEMENT COST:
IMPERVIOUS SQ. FT. x 0.258$   PER SF $0.00
B.  IMPROVEMENT COST:
IMPERVIOUS SQ. FT. x 0.375$   PER SF $0.00

Cost per SF= 0.633$   TOTAL STORM DRAINAGE SDC: $0.00 1178
2. SANITARY SEWER-CITY (see reverse side)
A.  REIMBURSEMENT COST:

NUMBER OF DFU's x 146.53$     PER DFU $0.00 1183
B.  IMPROVEMENT COST:

NUMBER OF DFU's x 71.52$       PER DFU $0.00 1184
218.05$     

TOTAL LOCAL WASTEWATER SDC: -$                     $0.00
3. TRANSPORTATION
BLDG AREA TGSF x TRIP RATE x COST PER ADT x NEW TRIP FACTOR
NEW:
A.  REIMBURSEMENT COST:

0.00 x 31.45 x 16.14$   PER TRIP x 0.95 NTF $0.00
B.  IMPROVEMENT COST:

0.00 x 31.45 x 324.24$ PER TRIP x 0.95 NTF $0.00
EXISTING:
A.  REIMBURSEMENT COST:

0.00 x 31.45 x 16.14$   PER TRIP x 0.95 NTF $0.00
B.  IMPROVEMENT COST:

0.00 x 31.45 x 324.24$ PER TRIP x 0.95 NTF $0.00

340.38$ TOTAL TRANSPORTATION REIMBURSEMENT SDC: $0.00 1173
TOTAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT SDC: $0.00 1094

TOTAL TRANSPORTATION SDC: -$                     $0.00
4. SANITARY SEWER - MWMC
NEW:

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $100.49 PER FEU $0.00

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $1,263.95 PER FEU $0.00

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $19.35 PER FEU $0.00
EXISTING:

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $100.49 PER FEU $0.00

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $1,263.95 PER FEU $0.00

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $19.35 PER FEU $0.00
MWMC CREDIT IF APPLICABLE (SEE REVERSE) $0.00 1054

TOTAL MWMC REIMBURSEMENT FEE: $0.00 1186
TOTAL MWMC IMPROVEMENT FEE: $0.00 1187

TOTAL MWMC COMPLIANCE FEE: $0.00
MWMC ADMINISTRATIVE FEE: $0.00 1189

TOTAL MWMC SDC: -$                     $0.00
SUBTOTAL (ADD ITEMS 1, 2, 3, & 4) -$                     

5. ADMINISTRATIVE FEES:
BASE CHARGE (SUBTOTAL ABOVE) x 5% = $0.00

 STORM DRAINAGE ADMINISTRATION FEE: 0.00
 SEWER ADMINISTRATION FEE: 0.00 1079

 TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION FEE: 0.00 1078
LOCAL MWMC ADMINISTRATION FEE: 0.00  

TOTAL SDC CHARGES

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD SYSTEMS DEVELOPMENT CHARGE WORKSHEET

1/1/2015

A. REIMBURSEMENT COST:

LOCATION:

Re
gis

ter
 

Co
de

s

B. IMPROVEMENT COST:

-$                             

A. REIMBURSEMENT COST:

-                           

Of
fic

e 
Us

e 
On

ly 
Fe

e 
En

try

0

-                         

-                       

-                           

-                       

-                           

C. COMPLIANCE COST:

0

B. IMPROVEMENT COST:

-$                         

C. COMPLIANCE COST:

Page 69   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 



Exhibits 

Exhibit 1 page 2

Attachment 3, Page 70 of 80 
 



  Exhibits 

Exhibit 2 

  

PROJECT NUMBER AND TITL
TYPE OF IMPROVEMENT

DEVELOPER'S NAME
DEVELOPER'S ADDRESS

*

* A copy of the Engineer's project cost estimate must accompany project submission.

$3,000

Sub-total City Plan Examination Deposit
TECHNOLOGY FEE

Total City Plan Examination Deposits

SOIL BEARING TESTS 1/500 L.F. AT $350
SOIL DENSITIES 1/250 L.F. AT $350
CURB ROCK DENSITIES 1/150 L.F. AT $350
BASE ROCK DENSITIES 1/150 L.F. AT $350
CONCRETE CLY. AND SLUMP 1/100 C.Y. AT $250
A.C. EXTRACTIONS PER CLASS 1/500 TON AT $300
ASPHALTIC CONCRETE DENSITIES** 1/150 L.F. AT $300

**   EACH LIFT

Sub-total City Engineering, Inspection and Job Control Testing Fee/Deposit

Sub-total City Engineering, Inspection and Job Control Testing Fee/Deposit w/ Tech Fee
Combined Total Both Sections 1 and 2 - Total Deposit Due

ASPHALTIC JOB MIX TESTING FEE - $414 per project AT $414

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE

TOTAL DUE
PREVIOUS RECEIVED

Project Engineer Signature Date BALANCE DUE
AMOUNT RECEIVED
REMAINING BALANCE

Plans Submitted by:  Signature Date

Effective 04/01/16

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD - DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WORKS
CONSTRUCTION PERMIT DEPOSIT FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

CONTRACTOR
TOTAL COST OF PROJECT TOTAL STREET LENGTH

Section 1: CITY PLAN EXAMINATION DEPOSIT
ESTIMATED COST
$0 TO $100,000

$0 TO $100,000 $4,000

$100,001 AND OVER $3,000 + 1% OF PROJECT OVER $100,000

5% of Sub-total City Plan Examination Deposit

Section 2: CITY ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION DEPOSIT
ESTIMATED COST

$100,001 AND OVER $4,000 + 3% OF PROJECT OVER $100,000

JOB CONTROL TESTING FEES AND DEPOSITS
TESTS PER UNIT NUMBER TESTS

TECHNOLOGY FEE - 5% of Asphaltic Job Mix Testing Fee

TECHNOLOGY FEE - 5% of Sub-total City Engineering, Inspection and Job Control Testing

<                             >

WHEN ASPHALTIC PAVING IS USED THE JO B MIX TESTING FEE AND TECH FEE ARE NO N-REFUNDABLE

This form must be signed and dated by both parties below.

<                             >

FEES ARE A DEPOSIT AGAINST ACTUAL PROJECT COSTS AND ARE ONLY AN ESTIMATE.   ALL DIRECT CHARGES WILL BE PAID BY THE DEV ELOPER.
EXCESS DEPOSITS WILL BE REFUNDED, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE ASPHALTIC JOB MIX TESTING FEE AND ITS ASSOCIATED TECH FEE WHICH 

ARE NON-REFUNDABLE.   PAYMENT OF OV ERRUNS ARE DUE IMMEDIATELY UPON REQUEST OF THE CITY AND PRIOR TO PIP APPROV AL. 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 71 



Exhibits 

Exhibit 3 

 
  

Attachment 3, Page 72 of 80 
 

Code Land Use 
Trip        
Rate Unit

New Trip 
Factor (NTF)

0 0 0
30 TRUCK TERMINAL 81.90 ACRE 1
90 BUS PARK & RIDE 4.50 PARKING SPACE 1
110 GENERAL LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 6.97 TGSF 0.95
120 GENERAL HEAVY INDUSTRIAL 1.50 TGSF 1
130 INDUSTRIAL PARK 6.96 TGSF 1
140 MANUFACTURING 3.82 TGSF 0.95
150 WAREHOUSING 3.56 TGSF 0.95
151 MINI-WAREHOUSE 2.50 TGSF 0.95
170 UTILITIES BUILDING 2.50 TGSF 0.95
210 SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING / DUPLEX 9.57 DU 1
220 GROUND FLOOR APARTMENT 6.65 DU 1
221 LOW-RISE APARTMENT (2 FLOORS) 6.59 DU 1
222 HIGH-RISE APARTMENT (10 OR MORE FL) 4.20 DU 1
230 RES. CONDOMINIUM/TOWNHOUSE 5.81 DU 1
240 MOBILE HOME PARK 4.99 DU 1
251 ELDERLY HOUSING - DETACHED 3.71 DU 1
252 ELDERLY HOUSING - ATTACHED 3.48 DU 1
253 CONGREGATE ELDERLY CARE FACILITY 2.02 DU 1
254 ASSISTED LIVING 2.74 BEDS 1
310 HOTEL 8.17 ROOM 0.85
320 MOTEL 9.11 ROOM 1
411 CITY PARK 1.59 ACRE 1
412 COUNTY PARK 2.28 ACRE 1
430 GOLF COURSE 5.04 ACRE 1
435 MULTIPURPOSE RECREATION FACILITY 90.38 ACRE 1
437 BOWLING ALLEY 33.33 TGSF 1
440 ADULT CABARET * TGSF 1
441 LIVE THEATER * TGSF 1
443 MOVIE THEATER W/O MATINEE * SEAT 1
444 MOVIE THEATER W/MATINEE * MOVIE SCREEN 1
445 MULTIPLEX MOVIE THEATER * MOVIE SCREEN 1
488 SOCCER COMPLEX 71.33 FIELD 1
490 TENNIS COURT 31.04 COURT 0.85

Transportation Fee Schedule



  Exhibits 

 

Code Land Use 
Trip        
Rate Unit

New Trip 
Factor (NTF)

491 RACQUET CLUB 38.70 COURT 0.85
492 HEALTH/FITNESS CLUB 32.93 TGSF 0.85
495 RECREATIONAL COMMUNITY CENTER 22.88 TGSF 0.85
520 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1.29 STUDENT 0.85
522 MIDDLE SCHOOL 1.62 STUDENT 0.85
530 HIGH SCHOOL 1.71 STUDENT *
540 JUNIOR/COMM. COLLEGE 1.20 STUDENT *
560 CHURCH/SYNAGOGUE/MOSQUE 9.11 TGSF 1
565 DAY CARE FACILITY 79.26 TGSF 0.7
590 LIBRARY 56.24 TGSF 0.5
591 LODGE/FRATERNAL ORGANIZATION 46.90 TGSF 0.85
610 HOSPITAL 16.50 TGSF 0.85
620 NURSING HOME 2.37 BED 0.95
630 MED/DENTAL CLINIC 31.45 TGSF 0.95
710 GENERAL OFFICE BUILDING 11.01 TGSF 0.9
714 CORPERATE HEADQUARTERS BLDG 7.98 TGSF 0.9
715 SINGLE TENANT OFFICE BLDG 11.57 TGSF 0.9
720 MEDICAL/DENTAL, VET. OFFICE 36.13 TGSF 0.85
730 GOVERNMENT OFFICE BUILDING 68.93 TGSF 0.9
732 US POST OFFICE 108.19 TGSF 0.75
733 GOVERNMENT OFFICE COMPLEX 27.92 TGSF 0.9
750 OFFICE PARK 11.42 TGSF 0.9
770 BUSINESS PARK 12.76 TGSF 0.9
812 BLDG. MATERIALS & LUMBER 45.16 TGSF 0.75
813 DISCOUNT SUPERSTORE 53.13 TGSF 0.72
814 SPECIALTY RETAIL CENTER 44.32 TSFGLA 0.75
815 FREE STANDING DISCOUNT STORE 57.24 TGSF 0.65
816 HARDWARE/PAINT STORE 51.29 TGSF 0.65
817 NURSERY (GARDEN CENTER) 36.08 TGSF 0.75
818 NURSERY (WHOLESALE) 39.00 TGSF 0.75
820 SHOPPING CENTER <10TGSF 152.00 TGFGLA 0.35
821 SHOP.CNTR.<50TGSF 86.51 TSFGLA 0.35
822 SHOP.CNTR.<100TGSF 67.91 TSFGLA 0.45
823 SHOP.CNTR.<200TGSF 53.28 TSFGLA 0.5
824 SHOP.CNTR.<300TGSF 46.23 TSFGLA 0.55
825 SHOP.CNTR.<400TGSF 41.80 TSFGLA 0.6
826 SHOP.CNTR.<500TGSF 38.66 TSFGLA 0.6
827 SHOP.CNTR.<600TGSF 36.27 TSFGLA 0.65
828 SHOP.CNTR.<800TGSF 32.80 TSFGLA 0.65
829 SHOP.CNTR.<1.0MTGSF 30.33 TSFGLA 0.65
841 NEW CAR SALES 33.34 TGSF 0.85
843 AUTO PARTS SALES 61.91 TGSF 0.9
848 TIRE STORE 24.87 TGSF 0.5
850 SUPERMARKET 102.24 TGSF 0.48

Transportation Fee Schedule

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 73 



Exhibits 

 

  

Code Land Use 
Trip        
Rate Unit

New Trip 
Factor (NTF)

851 CONVENIENCE MARKET(Open 24 hours) 737.99 TGSF 0.3
852 CONVENIENCE MARKET(15-16 hours) * TGSF 0.38
853 CONVENIENCE MARKET with Gas pumps 542.60 VFP 0.38
870 APPAREL STORE 66.40 TGSF 0.55
880 PHARMACY W/O DRIVE-THRU 90.06 TGSF 0.75
881 PHARMACY W/ DRIVE-THRU 88.16 TGSF 0.75
890 FURNITURE STORE 5.06 TGSF 0.65
895 VIDEO ARCADE 106.40 TGSF 0.9
896 VIDEO RENTAL STORE 136.00 TGSF 0.85
897 ADULT VIDEO RENTAL 50.00 TGSF 0.85
911 WALK-IN BANK 156.48 TGSF 0.75
912 DRIVE-IN BANK 148.15 TGSF 0.55
931 QUALITY RESTAURANT 89.95 TGSF 0.8
932 HIGH TURNOVER (SITDOWN) REST 127.15 TGSF 0.8
933 FAST FOOD RESTAURANT- no drivethru 151.20 TGSF 0.5
934 FAST FOOD Rest. (or coffee cart)- with drivethru 496.12 TGSF 0.5
935 FAST FOOD with drivethru-no indoor seating 1400.00 TGSF 0.4
936 DRINKING PLACE 113.40 TGSF 0.5
941 QUICK LUBE SHOP 40.00 SVC POSIT 0.85
942 AUTO SERVICE 41.90 TGSF 0.9
944 SERVICE STATION 168.56 VFP 0.5
945 SERVICE STATION W/MARKET 162.78 VFP 0.5
946 SERV.STA.W/MARKET & CAR WASH 152.84 VFP 0.5
947 SELF SERVICE CAR WASH 108.00 STALL 0.65

*  Require Study from Applicant

DU Dwelling Unit VFP
TGSF Thousand Gross Square Footage SVC POSIT Service Position
TSFGLA Thousand Square Footage Gross Leasable Area 

ABBREVIATIONS                             

Vehicle Fueling Positions

Transportation Fee Schedule

Attachment 3, Page 74 of 80 
 



  Exhibits 

Exhibit 4 page 1 

 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 75 



Exhibits 

Exhibit 4 page 2 

 

Attachment 3, Page 76 of 80 
 



City of Springfield, Oregon 

Springfield is a family-friendly community where a healthy economy and numerous historical 

aspects of Oregon’s past have blended into a vibrant place to call home.  Springfield is adjacent 

to I-5 and nestled between two rivers.  The McKenzie River is world-famous for fly fishing and 

summer steelhead.  The Willamette River also boasts excellent fishing and is popular for 

whitewater rafting. 

This Master Fees and Charges Schedule consolidates all City of Springfield (“City”) fees and 

charges, adopted by City Council resolutions, for the various services that the City provides.  It is 

scheduled to be updated semi-annually and reflects all fee resolutions passed by Council during 

the year.   

Fee Variance and Waiver Statement 

Based upon an unusual circumstance or event, past practices, demonstrated hardship, or public 

benefit, the City Manager is authorized to waive or decrease fees or charges in a particular 

matter, or establish a fee not yet authorized in this resolution.  When a new fee is established by 

the City Manager, it may be incorporated into this resolution.  It shall be communicated to 

Council in writing to allow opportunity for comment. 

The request for a waiver or reduction may be in writing.  If the City Manager or his designee 

agrees to said waiver or reduction, he/she may inform the City Council of the request and 

his/her decision in writing, except in minor matters. 

The City of Springfield has three types of fees and charges, with different methodologies for 

changing them: 

 Master Schedule of Fees and Charges Established by the Municipal Code 

The Municipal Code provides the right for the City to establish a fee or charge against 

the cost of providing a particular service.  If the specific amount of the fee itself is 

contained in the municipal code, it takes the passage of an ordinance by the Council to 

change the actual fee.  Examples of fees that are included in this category are business 

license, sanitary and stormwater rates, technology fees, and SaniPac franchise fees. 

 Master Schedule of Miscellaneous Fees and Charges Authorized within the Municipal 
Code, Development Code, or Fire Code 

The Municipal, Development, and Fire Codes provide the right for the City to establish a 

fee or charge against the cost of providing a particular service.  In these cases, the 

respective codes do not contain the specific amount of the fee, only the authorization to 

levy the fee.  It then takes the passage of a resolution by the Council to change the 

actual fee.  Examples of major fees included in this category are the City’s planning fees, 

ambulance transport fees, system development charges, and hazardous material 

inspection and storage fees.   

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 1 of 80



 Master Schedule of Fees and Charges Established by the Building Code 

The Building Code provides the right for the City to establish a fee or charge against the 

cost of providing a particular service.  In the Building Code, the specific amount of the 

fee is contained within the Code.  In these cases, it takes the passage of an ordinance by 

the Council to change the actual fee.  Prior to the passage by Council, any building fees 

that are regulated by the State Building Code must first be presented to the State and 

follow a specific public hearing notice schedule.  Examples of major fees that are 

included in this category are the City’s building permits, plumbing inspection fees, and 

electrical inspection fees. 

  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 2 of 80



Table of Contents 

Definitions & Acronyms ................................................................................................................... iv 

Section 1:  General .......................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety ........................................................................................................ 9 

Section 3:  Library Services ............................................................................................................ 13 

Section 4:  Municipal Court ........................................................................................................... 14 

Section 5:  Police............................................................................................................................ 17 

Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees .............................................................................................. 20 

Section 7:  Engineering .................................................................................................................. 28 

Section 8:  Planning Services ......................................................................................................... 36 

Section 9:  Utilities ......................................................................................................................... 48 

Section 10:  System Development Charges ................................................................................... 66 

Exhibits .......................................................................................................................................... 69 

 

  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 3 of 80



Definitions & Acronyms 

ORS:  Oregon Revised Statutes, effective as of 2013 

SMC: Springfield Municipal Code, current through Ordinance 6340 and the September 2015 

code supplement 

  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 4 of 80



  Section 1:  General Fees 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 1 

Section 1:  General 
The following fees shall be charged for the general activities of the City: 

(ORS 192.440 (4)) 
The Oregon Revised Statutes authorize the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated to 
reimburse it for its actual costs in making public records available, including costs for summarizing, 
compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request. 

 

Business License 
(SMC 7.000) Only specific businesses are required to obtain a business license (see below). All business 
license applications shall be made to the City manager. If a proposed business requires a business license, 
the application and approval of the license shall occur prior to operation of any business requiring a 
business license. Each licensee shall meet the standards as described in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 
See SMC 7.000 for conditions of a license 

 
Applicable to Licenses 
(SMC 7.005) Delinquent License Fees. A penalty of $10.00 or ten percent of the license fee, whichever is 
greater, shall accrue for each month a business has operated without obtaining a business license. 

 
 Late Fee/Penalty Fee 10% or $10.00 per month whichever is greater 
 Duplicate License (per duplicate copy) $5.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Alarm System (Business) License 

(SMC 7.012, 7.024) No person shall establish, maintain or operate an alarm system, alarm business or 
alarm agent within the City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every alarm system, 
alarm business or alarm agent, whether for hire or not, shall be subject to the provisions of this chapter. 
Fire alarms are exempt from licensing requirements.  

 Alarm System Initial fee $56.00 
 Alarm System Renewal fee, per year $20.00 
 Alarm Agent Per two-year cycle $38.00 
 Alarm Business Per year $89.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Antique/Secondhand Dealer License 
(SMC 7.100, 7.102) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a used merchandise dealer business 
within the City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a used 
merchandise dealer carries on, shall be deemed a used merchandise dealer subject to the provisions of 
sections 7.100 to 7.112. 

  Per year  $146.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Auctioneer License 
(SMC 7.122, 7.126) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as an auctioneer within the City unless 
a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where an auctioneer is engaged in 
auctioneering, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed an auctioneer subject to sections 7.120 to 7.126.  

 Per year  $167.00 
  Per day  $66.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 5 of 80



Section 1:  General Fees   

Page 2   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Auto-Wrecker License 
(SMC 7.132, 7.134) No person shall establish, maintain or operate an auto wrecking business within the 
City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where auto wrecking is 
carried on, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed an auto wrecker subject to the provisions of sections 
7.130 to 7.134. 

  Per year  $66.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Carnival/Circus License 
(SMC 7.140, 7.146) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a carnival or circus within the City 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a carnival or circus is 
offered, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a carnival or circus subject to the provisions of sections 
7.140 to 7.146. 

 Per day $347.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Christmas Tree Sales Lot/Firework Sales Lot 
(SMC 7.152, 7.156) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a fireworks sales lot or a Christmas tree 
sales lot within the City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every fireworks sales lot 
and Christmas tree sales lot, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a fireworks sales lot or Christmas 
tree sales lot subject to the provisions of sections 7.150 to 7.156. 

   Per year  $46.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Dance Hall License 
(SMC 7.162, 7.168) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a dance hall within the City unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a dance hall is carried on, 
whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a dance hall subject to the provisions of sections 7.160 to 7.168. 

 Initial  $167.00 
 Renewal  $85.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Detective Agency License 
(SMC 7.172, 7.180) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a detective within the City unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the City. Every private detective, whether for hire or not, is 
considered a private detective subject to the provisions of sections 7.170 to 7.180. 

 3 or more employees  per year $335.00 
 Less than 3 employees  per year $236.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Door-to-Door Solicitor License 
(SMC 7.202, 7.216) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a door-to-door solicitor within the 
City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every door-to-door solicitor, whether for hire 
or not, shall be deemed a door-to-door solicitor subject to the provisions of sections 7.200 to 7.216. 

  Per year  $48.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 6 of 80



  Section 1:  General Fees 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 3 

Electrical Products License 
(SMC 7.222, 7.226) No person shall offer for sale electrical products within the City unless a license for 
that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where electrical products are for sale shall be 
subject to the provisions of sections 7.220 to 7.226.   
  Per year  $35.50 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
First-Aid Operator License 
(SMC 7.242, 7.258) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a first-aid vehicle business within the 
City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every first-aid vehicle business, whether for 
hire or not, is considered a first-aid vehicle business subject to the provisions of sections 7.240 to 7.258. 

  Per year $223.00 
  And per vehicle  $56.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Garage Sales License 
(SMC 7.262, 7.268) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a garage sale within the City unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a garage sale is held shall be 
considered a garage sale subject to the provisions of sections 7.260 to 7.268.  
   No Charge 
 
Liquor License 
(SMC 7.300, 7.304) The Oregon Liquor Control Commission requires every applicant for a license to sell 
spirits, wines, beers, and other alcoholic liquors to obtain a recommendation in writing from the City 
Council. 

 Initial  $102.00 
 Change  $77.00 
 Renewal $35.50 
 Special Liquor $25.50/daily 
 
Sale and Distribution of Tobacco and Tobacco Products to Minors-License Fees 
(SMC 5.300(2)) No tobacco retailer’s license shall be issued or continue to be valid unless the holder has 
paid the fees as required by this section. 

 First License and/or change of ownership $86.00 
 Annual Renewal $56.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Manufactured Dwelling Park License 
(SMC 7.312, 7.314) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a manufactured dwelling park within 
the City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a 
manufactured dwelling park is offered, whether for hire or not, shall be considered a manufactured 
dwelling park subject to the provisions of sections 7.310 to 7.314. 

 Up to 25 spaces per year $29.00 
 26-50 spaces per year $56.00 
 51-75 spaces per year $81.00 
 76-100 spaces per year $104.00 
 Over 100 spaces per year $1.20 per space 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 7 of 80



Section 1:  General Fees   

Page 4   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Medical Marijuana Dispensaries 
(SMC 7.602) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a dispensary within the City unless a license 
for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a dispensary is carried on, whether 
for profit or not, shall be deemed a dispensary subject to the provisions of sections 7.600 to 7.603.  

  Initial $1,040.00 
  Renewal $1,040.00 
  Change of Ownership $1,040.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Pool/Billiard Room License 
(SMC 7.322, 7.326) No person shall establish, maintain or operate pool rooms and billiard rooms within 
the City unless a license for that use obtained from the City. Every place or building where pool rooms and 
billiard rooms are offered, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a pool room or billiard room subject 
to the provisions of sections 7.320 to 7.326. 

 Base fee per year $56.00 
 Plus: First table  per year $25.50 
 Second table  per year $22.50 
 Third table  per year $17.50 
 Fourth table  per year $12.20 
 Each table thereafter per year $6.10 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Public Passenger License (Issued by City of Eugene) 
(SMC 7.332) No person or business may operate a public passenger vehicle company without a public 
passenger vehicle company license; however, an unlicensed public passenger vehicle operating outside 
the jurisdictional limits of Eugene and Springfield may deliver a fare from outside those limits to a location 
within the limits, if the vehicle waits for the person and retrieves the person for the return trip back 
outside the jurisdictional limits. No unlicensed public passenger vehicle company may solicit or accept any 
passenger within the City limits except as provided in this subsection. 

 
Rentals License 
(SMC 7.342, 7.344) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a rental property within the City unless 
a license for that use is obtained. Every place or building where rentals are offered, whether for hire or 
not, shall be deemed a rental property subject to the provisions of sections 7.340 to 7.346. 

 Starts at four-plex and above per unit $17.50 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Shooting Area License 
(SMC 7.352, 7.358) An applicant for a shooting area business license shall apply to the Development and 
Public Works Department prior to opening a shooting area facility. See sections 7.350 to 7.358 for 
conditions of operation. 

 Per year $135.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sidewalk Café Permit 
(Resolution 05‐13, SMC 7.900‐7.908) In the downtown district only, the City Manager, or the City 
Manager’s designee, may issue a revocable permit for an outdoor café allowing for the service of food 
and beverages at facilities placed on sidewalks within the public right-of-way abutting an existing eating 
establishment.  See sections 7.900 to 7.908 for conditions of operation. 

  Per Permit $27.50 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 8 of 80



  Section 1:  General Fees 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 5 

Social Games 
(SMC 5.254) (1) Social Games Prohibited/Exception. “Social games,” as defined in ORS 167.117 are 
prohibited within the corporate limits of the City of Springfield, except: 
  (a) Social games between players in private homes or social games conducted by charitable, 
fraternal, religious or non-profit organizations where no house player, house bank or house odds exist and 
there is no house income; and 
  (b) Pursuant to SMC section 5.258, The Springfield Social Gaming Code/Texas Holdem Poker 
Card Tournament. 
 (2) “Non-Profit Organization” Defined. For the purpose of this section, “non-profit organization” 
means any person organized and existing for charitable, benevolent, eleemosynary, humane, 
philanthropic, educational, civic or other non-profit purposes. The fact that an organization does qualify 
for charitable deduction for tax purposes or that organization is otherwise exempted from payment of 
federal income taxes pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended, constitutes prima facie 
evidence that the organization is a non-profit organization. 
 (3) “House” Defined. Includes owner of business, private club, or place of public accommodation, 
and owner’s spouse, children of owner or spouse, owner’s brothers, sisters, or parents, or a business in 
which one of the foregoing named individual is associated. A license for the house is required by section 
5.258(3) of this code. 
 (4) “Tournament Organizer” Defined. A person other than the house who organizes the tournament, 
including but not limited to provision of poker chips and playing cards. A license for the tournament 
organizer is required by section 5.258(3) of this code. 
 (5) The offenses specified in subsections (1), (2), (3) and (4) are punishable as violations and may 
include a fine not exceeding $720.00 pursuant to SMC section 1.205. 

 Per year $111.00 
 Renewal $111.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sound Truck/Car License 
(SMC 7.362, 7.364) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a sound truck or car within the City 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every vehicle used as a sound truck or car, whether 
for hire or not, is considered a sound truck or car subject to the provisions of sections 7.360 to 7.364. 

 Per year $56.00 
 Per day $7.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Special Event License 
(SMC 7.402, 7.404) (1) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a special event within the City unless 
a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a special event is held, 
whether for hire or not, is considered a special event subject to the provisions of sections 7.400 to 7.422. 
 (2) If the special event is to include a parade, as that term is defined in section 6.505, then a parade 
permit shall also be obtained from the Springfield Police Department. The City may require other licenses 
or permits if the special event will include other activities requiring permits or licenses under the 
applicable sections of the Springfield code. The need for other permits shall be determined by the City 
during the departmental review process under section 7.406. 
 (3) The granting of a special event license shall not relieve any person of the responsibility to satisfy 
all code requirements respecting the manner in which the special event is conducted. 

  Per application $143.00 
 Event with liquor $143.00 (plus tech fee) + $25.00 (no tech fee) 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected, but does not apply to 
the liquor fee. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 9 of 80



Section 1:  General Fees   

Page 6   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Tobacco Vending License 
(SMC 7.452, 7.454) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a tobacco vending machine within the 
City unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every place or building where a tobacco 
vending machine is offered, whether for hire or not, is considered a tobacco vending machine subject to 
the provisions of sections 7.450 to 7.454. 

 Per year $34.50 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Transient Merchant License 
(SMC 7.472, 7.476) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a transient merchant within the City 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the City. Every transient merchant, whether for hire or not, 
is considered a transient merchant subject to the provisions of sections 7.470 to 7.476. 

 Per day $17.50 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Transient Merchant Food Cart License 
(SMC 7.474, 7.810) Transient merchants operating food carts, also known as “mobile units” as defined by 
ORS 624.310(8), may be allowed only on property that is zoned CC – Community Commercial, MRC – 
Major Retail Commercial, MUC – Mixed Used Commercial, MUE - Mixed Use Employment, HI - Heavy 
Industrial, LMI - Light/Medium Industrial, CI – Campus Industrial and PLO – Public Land and Open Space.  

 Per year  $36.50 
*Fees for the Downtown Food Court Program shall be as set by the City Manager or his/her designee in 
accordance with SMC 7.810. [Section 7.810 amended by Ordinance No. 6298, enacted July 22, 2013.]  

 
Vending on City Streets  
(SMC 7.802, 7.808) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a vendor within the City unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the City. Every person operating as a vendor shall be deemed a 
vendor on City streets subject to the provisions of sections 7.800 to 7.808. 

 No Charge 
 

Other General Fees 
GIS Rates (Standard) 
(Intergovernmental Agreement with Lane Council of Governments per ORS 190.050 providing 
authorization to impose and collect reasonable fees based on market prices or competitive bids for 
geographic data that have commercial value and are an entire formula, pattern, compilation, program, 
device, method, technique, process, database or system developed with a significant expenditure of public 
funds.) 

 
Planimetrics Hourly rate (1 hour minimum) $73.00 
 Up to 50 acres $101.00 
 Charge per additional acre above 50 $2.04 
 Charge per map sheet (approx. 138 acres) $307.00 
 Charge per square mile (640 acres) $1,424.00 
 Plus time in excess of 1 hour  $66.00/per hour 
Half foot Orthophotography  Hourly rate $73.00 
  One image $45.00 
  Charge per additional image $45.00 
  Plus hourly rate  $66.00 
Plot Requests  Standard City Maps (without Orthos) $55.00 
  Standard City Maps (with Orthos) $61.00 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 10 of 80



  Section 1:  General Fees 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 7 

 Custom Plot Request: Plot Compilation and Plotting Charge/per hour $73.00 
 Custom Plot Request: Copy of a Completed Plot/per linear foot $7.10 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Technology Fee 
(Resolution 11‐24) The Technology Fee is applied to the specific charges and fees identified in the above-
named fee schedules when collected or imposed. 

Five percent of specific development-related charges and fees in the Building Safety Code Fee 
Schedule, the Master Schedule of Rates, Permits, Licenses and Other Fees and Charges in the 
Municipal Code, and the Master Schedule of Miscellaneous Fees and Charges, Rates and 
Licenses. 
 
City Hall Meeting Room Rates (Standard) 
The City of Springfield City Hall public meeting rooms (City Hall Lobby, Library Meeting Room, Jesse Maine 

Room and Meeting Room 3) are available for the community to use. However, to ensure availability of the 

rooms for City business, room usage shall be prioritized as follows: 

1. City Council meeting or functions 
2. Other City departments, including City Council advisory committees 
3. Other public agencies 
4. Other community organizations and groups 
5. Special events 

All meetings conducted in the meeting rooms must be open to the public. Priority categories 1, 2 and 3 

may be subject to the requirements of the Oregon Public Meeting Law, ORS 192.610 - 192.690 and may 

bump lower category events. All priority categories are available without regard to any distinction, 

discrimination, or restriction on account of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, marital 

status, disability, or national origin. No fees, dues or donations may be charged or solicited for any 

program or meeting held at City Hall. Rooms may be scheduled by the public if not in use for one of these 

other priority functions. 

Springfield’s Administrative Regulation #2 - City Hall Building Policy requires: “A fee for City Hall security 

shall be charged for the time a meeting or event extends beyond normally scheduled business hours 

(prior approval is required).” This fee covers staffing expenses related to keeping the building open and 

secure outside of normal operating hours. 

 Room usage during operating hours  Per hour $0.00 

 Room usage outside of operating hours Per hour $45.00 

 
Downtown Parking Program 
(Resolution 2015‐13) 
 

Lot Name ASSET TYPE MONTHLY PER UNIT RATE/FEE 

City Hall North Premium Permit Parking Lot $30.00 

City Hall South Premium Permit Parking Lot $30.00 

Main Street Premium Permit Parking Lot $30.00 

7th Street Pocket Non-Premium Permit Parking Lot $15.00 

Justice Non-Premium Permit Parking Lot $15.00 

Pioneer East Non-Premium Permit Parking Lot $15.00 

Zone B On-Street On-Street Permit Zone $10.00 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 11 of 80



Section 1:  General Fees   

Page 8   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Lot Name ASSET TYPE ANNUALLY PER UNIT RATE/FEE 

Residential Permit Residential Permit Zone, Zone A & B $20.00 

Violation of Posted Parking Restrictions  

Per Citation $ 16.00 

 

Public Records Fees 
(ORS 192.440(4))  
Oregon Revised Statutes authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated to reimburse it 
for its actual costs in making public records available, including costs for summarizing, compiling or 
tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request. 

 
Photocopy Charge Citywide  
(noted exceptions are Development and Public Works, Fire and Life Safety, Library, Police reports.) 

No charge for first 5 pages or first half-hour of research time. 
 Thereafter $0.15/page 

 Plus actual cost of City staff time and materials required to 
complete the request. 

 
 
  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 12 of 80



  Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 9 

Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety 
The following fees shall be charged for the Fire & Life Safety activities of the City: 

Ambulance & Emergency Services User Fees  
(Fire Code and City of Springfield resolutions) 

 
Emergency and Non-Emergency Transport Rates 

 Base Rate  $1,770.00 
 Base Rate (non-resident)* $1,980.00 
*Live outside the Springfield Fire & Life Safety first-in response area 
 Mileage Rate (per patient mile)** $22.03 
**Pro-rated for multiple patients transported in same medic unit 
 

Sit-Up Patients 

 Base Rate $885.00 

 Base Rate (non-resident) $990.00 

 Mileage Rate (per patient mile) $22.03 
 

Aid Call 

 Base Rate $885.00 

 Base Rate (non-resident) $990.00 
 

Helicopter Calls 
Helicopter Transport    Actual Vendor Charge 

In addition to helicopter and pilot direct vendor charges, base rate and mileage charges will 
apply if transported by paramedic ambulance to helicopter location for further transport. 
 

Other EMS Fees 

 Waiting Time (first ½ hour) No Charge 

 Waiting Time (per ½ hour, after first ½ hour) $65.00 

 Extra Attendant $80.00 

 Ambulance Stand-by (per hour; 2 hour minimum) $160.00 

 Stand-by On Scene Coordinator (per hour) $65.00 

 

FireMed Memberships 

 Regular membership, per household, per year $65.00 

 Job Care membership, per household, per year $60.00 

 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 13 of 80



Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety  

Page 10   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Fire Marshal’s Office Fees 

(Springfield Fire Code) 

Commercial Plan Check Fee  

Fire Code plan review associated with Building and Mechanical permits fee. 

  15% of Building permit fees 

 If no building permit 15% of Mechanical permit fees 

 

Fire Protection and Life Safety System Construction Permits  

 Permit Fee  $125.00 minimum 

Permit cost is 3% of valuation of work to be performed for the system, up to a system’s contract 

value of $50,000; then $3.00 for each additional valuation of $1,000 or portion thereof. 

This formula will be applied to calculate fees for permits adopted in the City of Springfield Fire 

Code: 

105.7.1  Automatic fire extinguishing systems and appurtenances 

105.7.1.1  Fire Suppression Sprinkler systems 

105.7.1.2  Commercial kitchen hood suppression systems 

105.7.2  Battery Systems 

105.7.3  Compressed gases 

105.7.3.1  Detection systems, liquid and gas leak systems. 

105.7.4  Fire alarm and detection systems and related equipment. 

105.7.5  Fire pumps and related equipment.  

105.7.6  Flammable and combustible liquids.  

105.7.7  Hazardous materials.  

105.7.9  Private water mains and hydrant systems. 

105.7.10  Private fire hydrants 

105.7.11  Spraying or dipping. 

105.7.12.1 Standpipe systems. 
 

 Additional Staff Time (in excess of 2 hours) $16.50 per 15 minutes 

Fees will be collected by the Development and Public Works Department at issuance of the 

building permit as an additional fee. 

 

Fire Department New Construction Square Footage Fees  

  Residential Square Footage $0.06/per sq. ft. 

  Commercial Square Footage $0.11/per sq. ft. 

Applies to each square foot created requiring a building permit. Example: 1,550 sq. ft. 

house x $0.06 = $93.00.  

Fees will be collected by the Development and Public Works department at issuance of the 

building permit as an additional fee. 

 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 14 of 80



  Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 11 

Fire Safety Inspections (non-construction) 

 Initial inspection No Charge 

 1st re-inspection No Charge 

 2nd re-inspection $27.50 

 

Operational Permit Fees 
Fee for occupancies requiring: 
 Operational Permits (annual) $419.00 per permit 

 Operational Permits (other than annual) $419.00 per permit 

The following exceptions shall apply: 

105.6.9 Covered and Open Mall Buildings $187.00 per permit 

105.6.26 Liquid or Gas-Fueled Vehicles or Equipment 

 in Assembly Buildings  $187.00 per permit 

105.6.3 Places of Temporary Assembly $187.00 per permit 

105.6.43 Temporary Membrane Structures and Tents $187.00 per permit 

105.6.48 Performances with Fire $187.00 per permit 

Operational permits may require additional processing and inspection time. An hourly rate of 

$99.00 per hour will be assessed if additional time is necessary to achieve compliance with 

permit requirements. 

 

Licensed Facility Inspection Fees 

Fire Code compliance inspections are required as a condition of State licensing for various types of 

licensed facilities. Fees will be charged based on occupancy type as follows: 

Flat Rate 

Occupancy Type Inspection Per hour after 2 hrs 1
st

 Re-inspection 2
nd

 Re-inspection OT Rate per hour 

B, E $187 $99 Included $99 $115 

I $398 $99 Included $99 $115 

SR $398 $99 Included $99 $115 

 

General Fees 

First Response Fees 

Fee applies when a fire engine company responds to a motor vehicle accident involving medical or rescue 

response. Only applies to residents outside the Springfield Fire & Life Safety First-In Response Area. 

FireMed eligible. 

 Fire engine company response to motor-vehicle accident $479.00 

 

Classes 

 CPR Training (non-FireMed member) $28.00 

 CPR Training (FireMed member) $12.00 

 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 15 of 80



Section 2:  Fire and Life Safety  

Page 12   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Photocopy Charges 

(ORS 192.563) Oregon Revised Statutes authorize a healthcare provider that receives authorization to 

disclose protected health information (PHI) to be reimbursed according to the statute’s fee schedule. 

Therefore, the following photocopy charges apply: 

 Up to 10 pages  $12.25 

 Pages 11-50 $0.50 per page 

 Each page over 50 pages $0.25 per page 

 Postage costs to mail PHI Actual cost 

 Preparation of summary of PHI (requested by individual) Actual cost 

 

(ORS 192.440(4)) Oregon Revised Statutes authorize the public body to establish fees reasonably 

calculated to reimburse it for its actual costs in making such records available, including costs for 

summarizing, compiling or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s 

request. The following charges apply: 

 Fire Reports $10.00 per report 

 Other Reports or Documents No charge for first 5 pages 

 Thereafter $0.15 per page 
Plus actual cost of City staff time and materials required to complete the request. 

  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 16 of 80



  Section 3: Library 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 13 

Section 3:  Library Services 
The following fees shall be charged for the Library services of the City. 

General Fees  
(ORS 357.490 & 192.440) 
(SMC 2.462) Any and all fines and penalties received by the library in pursuance of the rules and 
regulations to be reviewed and recommended by the library board shall be collected by the library 
director and delivered to the City finance director at reasonable intervals. 

 
Non-Resident Fee for Library Card  $85.00 per year 

  $50.00 per six months 
  $25.00 per three months 

 
Replacement Library Card  $2.00 
 
Overdue Item Fee 
 DVDs   $0.50 per day per item, 
   maximum of $5.00 per item 
 
 All other items  $0.25 per day per item, 
   maximum of $5.00 per item 
 
   
  
Replacement Fee Replacement of lost or damaged item – list price of item 
 
Processing Fee   May be charged $5 processing fee for lost or damaged items 
 
Interlibrary Loans  $3.00 per item 
 
Re-Shelving Fee 
 Unclaimed Hold $1.00 each 
 Unclaimed Interlibrary Loan $1.00 each 
 
Photocopy Charge $0.15 per copy (coin operated) 
 
Printing Fee $0.15 per page from public computers 
  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 17 of 80



Section 4:  Municipal Court 

Page 14   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Section 4:  Municipal Court 
The following fees shall be charged for the Municipal Court activities of the City. 

General Fees 

Copy Fee 
 Case File (current) $5.00 
 Case File (archived) $10.00 
 Miscellaneous: $0.15/page 
 
Certified Copies 
ORS 192.440(4) authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated to reimburse it for its 
actual costs in making public records available, including costs for summarizing, compiling, or tailoring 
such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request.  ORS 194.400 establishes the 
authority to charge notary fees. 

 Case file $16.00 
 Miscellaneous - first 4 pages  $16.00 
  Each page thereafter $1.00 

 

Collection Fees 
ORS 137.118 provides the authority to charge and stipulates the maximum fee allowed to be 25% but not 
to exceed $250.00.  A municipal, justice, district, circuit court may recoup the cost of collection action 
made necessary by the failure of judgment debtors in criminal actions to pay timely deferred payment 
agreements. Fee is to be assessed when payment is delinquent.  Fee assessment is not dependent upon 
assignment to a collection agency. 

 25% but not to exceed  $250.00 
 

Conviction Fee 
City Council Resolution.  Whenever the court forfeits money or imposes a sentence of a fine, including a 
sentence imposed and thereafter suspended, excluding parking violations, a fee in addition to such 
sentence shall be collected.  The fee is not part of the penalty or in lieu of any part thereof but is included 
in the monetary judgment. The court is not required to impose the fee if it finds that the defendant is 
indigent or that imposition of the assessment would constitute an undue hardship.  Payment to the court 
shall not be credited to the fee pursuant to ORS 137.295 until after crediting payments to statutorily 
mandated fees. 

 Fee per case  $26.00 
 
Court Appointed Attorney Fee 
ORS 151.505 and ORS 161.665 provide the authority to collect fees covering the cost of appointing, 
financial processing, and actual attorney cost. 

 Fee per case  $95.00 
 
Deferred Prosecution Diversion Fee (non-DUII) 
ORS 135.881 and ORS 161.665.  Determined by the Judge and/or City Prosecutor on a case by case basis, 
but generally: 

 Fee per misdemeanor case $256.00 
 Fee per violation case $61.00 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 18 of 80



  Section 4:  Municipal Court 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 15 

DUII Diversion Agreement Administrative Fee 
ORS 813.240 (b) provides the authority to collect and pay. 
 Fee per Case: $200.00 
 
Inmate Housing Fee 
(Determined by sentencing judge, Resolution 09‐15, ORS 169.151, ORS 137 540(1)) 

  Per Case, Per Day Up to $60.00 
 
Non-Sufficient Funds Fee   
  Fee per case/check $26.00 
 
Payment Agreement Fee 
(ORS 1.202) Authorizes fee for establishing and administering account for judgment that includes 
monetary obligation; fee for judgment.   
 For revision to existing violation or misdemeanor 

payment agreement  $26.00 
   
 Each payment agreement re-issued as a result 

of delinquent action of any kind  $55.00 

 
Phone Notification Fee  
Cost recovery fee for automated phone notification; generally on case(s) to warn of pending formal non-
compliance court action. 
  Fee per automated call launched $3.00 
 
Probation Court Supervision 
(ORS 137.540) The court may sentence the defendant to probation, which shall be subject to the following 
general conditions unless specifically deleted by the court. The probationer shall pay supervision fees, 
fines, restitution or other fees ordered by the court. Does not apply to DUII or Deferred Prosecution 
Diversion cases. 

  Fee per case $100.00 
 
Probation Violation Fee 
(ORS 137.540)  The court may sentence the defendant to probation, which shall be subject to the 
following general conditions unless specifically deleted by the court. The probationer shall:  (a) pay 
supervision fees, fines, restitution or other fees ordered by the court. Fee will apply on any DUII Diversion 
or Deferred Prosecution Diversion cases.  Fee may be waived at the discretion of the Judge. 

 Show Cause: one issue only or first proceedings $25.00 
Show Cause; multiple issues or prior probation violation proceeding 
 Per Order $50.00 

 
Re-Open Fee 
Fee to reopen a case; to include costs to retrieve case, process documents for DMV to recall abstracts or 
retrieve disposition sheets. 

  Fee per case $32.00 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 19 of 80



Section 4:  Municipal Court 

Page 16   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Security Releases 
(ORS 135.265) Oregon Revised Statute sets the fee at 15% of security release amount. 

  Of fee 15% 
  But not less than  $5.00 
  Or more than  $200.00 
 
Special Computer Reports 
(ORS 192.440) Oregon Revised Statute authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated 
to reimburse it for its actual costs in making public records available including costs for summarizing, 
compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request.  

 Fee per hour general reports (with minimum of $30.00)  $31.00 
 Special programming or customized reports  $31.00 
 
Suspension Fee 
(ORS 809.267) Fee for any case where the Court gives notice to DOT of the suspension or restriction of a 
defendant’s driving privileges. 

  Fee per case $15.00 
 
Warrant Fee 
(ORS 161.665) Fee for costs specially incurred in prosecuting a defendant for whom the Court enters a 

judgment of conviction. 

  Fee per case $57.00 

 
 

  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 20 of 80



  Section 5:  Police 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 17 

Section 5:  Police  
The following fees shall be charged for the Police activities of the City: 

Police Reports 
Photocopies 
  First 4 pages $10.00 
  Each page thereafter $1.00 
 
CAD Reports Each report $5.00 
 
Certified Copies 
  First 4 pages $15.00 
  Each page thereafter $1.00 
 
Criminal History Requests 
  One original $10.00 
  For first 4 $5.00 
  Plus each additional $0.75 
  Notarized original $15.00 
  Each additional original $1.00 
 
False Alarm Fee 
(SMC 7.026) Three or more false alarms, within a 365-day period, whether the result of equipment 

malfunction or user error, shall constitute an infraction in the municipal court. If convicted by a 

preponderance of the evidence, the court may impose a fine not to exceed $500. 

 Per third false alarm  $500.00 

 Per alarm after within 365 days $500.00 

 
Military Police Record Checks 
   No Charge 
 
Microfilm Reports 
  First 4 pages  $15.00 
  Each page thereafter $1.00 
 
Non-Sufficient Funds Fee  $26.00 
 
Photographs  Actual cost with $5.00 minimum 
 
Special Computer Reports  
  Per hour  $30.00, with $20.00 minimum 
 
Video/Telephone/Radio Tapes    $25.00 per hour with $25.00 minimum 
 
Misc. Photocopies  
  First 5 pages  No Charge 
  6 pages and more, plus research time $0.15 per page 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 21 of 80



Section 5:  Police 

Page 18   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

 
Vehicle Impound Recovery  $127.00 
 

Warrant Fee 
(Criminal Code 161.665)  $50.00 
 
Dog Licenses  
(SMC 5.426 (3)) Fees. Dog license fees are due and payable upon the issuance of licenses. Fees shall be 
determined by Council resolution. The types of licenses/fees required to be paid under the provisions of 
this code shall be as follows: 

 (a) Dog License Fee—General. 
 (b) Dog License Fee—Neutered. Dog keepers applying for this reduced fee must present a 

certificate from a licensed veterinarian stating that the dog to be licensed has been neutered. 
 (c) Dog License Fee—Keepers, 60 Years of Age or Older. Dog owners applying for this reduced fee 

must present proper proof of age as well as proof of rabies vaccination for the dog to be 
licensed. 

 (d) Duplicate License. 
 (e) Commercial Kennel. 
 (f) Impoundment. 
 (g) Daily Care. 
 (h) Watchdog. 
 (i) Permits.  

    

1 yr 2yr 3yr 

Unaltered Dog $36 $56 $71 

Neutered Dog $15 $26 $36 

Sr. Citizen(60+) Unaltered Dog $36 $56 $71 

Sr. Citizen Neutered Dog $10 $17 $26 

Non-Commercial Kennel $255 

Watchdog $26 + above license fee 

 
 

Continued on Next Page  
  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 22 of 80



  Section 5:  Police 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 19 

License Vietnamese Pig 
(SMC 5.426 (6))  
(a) Every keeper of a Vietnamese Pig as set forth in section 5.416 shall obtain a license for the pig. In 

order to obtain the license, the owner or keeper shall submit to the City the veterinarian’s certificate 
specified in section 5.416(2)(b). The license fee shall be the same as a license fee for a dog as 
specified in subsection (3). 

(b) Licenses shall be valid for one year from the date of issuance or until the sale or gift of the pig, 
whichever first occurs. 

(c) Pig keepers shall renew the pig license before it becomes delinquent for as long as they keep or 
harbor the pig. 

(d) A license tag issued to a pig keeper shall be attached securely to a collar or harness of the pig for 
which it was issued. In addition to a collar or license, a microchip identification shall be utilized. If a 
license tag is lost, the keeper may obtain a duplicate license tag upon satisfactory proof of loss and 
payment of the required fee. 

(e) Failure to comply with any term or requirement of section 5.416 or this section by a pig keeper is 
punishable as a violation and may include a fine not exceeding $720.00 pursuant to SMC section 
1.205. 

(f) In the event that the keeper or the individual designated in section 5.416(2)(e) is unavailable and 
short term housing for the pig is required, the keeper shall be responsible for such short term housing 
and food costs and shall reimburse the City or City’s designee for all costs expended. [Section 5.426 
amended by Ordinance No. 5902, enacted December 7, 1998; further amended by Ordinance No. 
6169, enacted May 15, 2006; further amended by Ordinance No. 6271, enacted July 18, 2011.] 

 

  1 yr 2yr 3yr 

Unaltered $36 $56 $71 

Neutered $15 $26 $36 

Sr. Citizen(62+) Unaltered  $36 $56 $71 

Sr. Citizen Neutered $10 $17 $26 

  

  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 23 of 80



Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 

Page 20   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 
The following fees shall be charged for the Building and Safety activities of the City: 
 
Technology Fee: All applications/permits/fees will be assessed a 5% technology fee. 

 
Site Plan Review 
Reduction in fee, Resolution 10‐51 
To the following fees, please add a $2.50 Continuing Education Fee. 
 

Building Permits 
(ORS 455.447) 

 
Structural, Commercial, Mechanical and Plumbing Permit Fees (where applicable) 
Table No. 3-A 

 
TOTAL VALUE  Fee 
$1.00 - $2,000  $89.00 
$2,001 - $25,000 for the first $2,000 in value $89.00 
 plus for each additional $1000 or fraction thereof. $11.30 
$25,001 - $50,000 for the first $25,000 in value  $350.00 
 plus for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof $8.60 
$50,001 - $100,000 for the first $50,000 in value  $566.00 
 plus  for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof $5.50 
$100,001 and Up for the first $100,000 in value  $843.00 
 plus for each additional $1,000 or portion thereof $5.00 

 
In addition to the Building Permit Fee, the Plan Check Fee shall be 65% of the Building Permit 
fee. 
 
For the purpose of defraying the cost of applying regulations as provided in ORS 455.447, a 
surcharge of 1% to the total fees collected for essential, hazardous, major and special occupancy 
structures shall be collected. 

 
To the above fees, please add 12% State Surcharge and a $2.50 Continuing Education Fee. 

 

Electrical Permits 
Table No. 3-B 

 

Description  Fee 
Residence wiring less than 1,000 square feet $163.00 
Each additional 500 sq.ft. or portion thereof $31.00 
Manufactured Home or Modular Dwelling (Service or Feeder)  $77.00 
Temporary Power – 200 amps or less $77.00 
Temporary Power – 201 to 400 amps $106.00 
Temporary Power – 401 to 600 amps $154.00 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 200 amps or less $98.00 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 201 to 400 amps $114.00 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 24 of 80



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 21 

Permanent Service or Feeder – 401 to 600 amps $193.00 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 601 to 999 amps $249.00 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 1000 amps or volts $570.00 
Electrical Service Reconnection with no changes to existing service size $77.00 
One new/alteration/extension of circuit $77.00 
Each Additional Circuit $7.00 
Each Irrigation Pump $77.00 
Each Electrical Sign or Outline Lighting $77.00 
Each Signal Panel $77.00 
Limited Energy – Residential $39.00 
Limited Energy – Commercial/Multi-Family $89.00 
Inspections not covered by this schedule minimum 1 hour $89.00 
Re-inspection Fee $89.00 
Partial Inspection $89.00 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours $105.00 
Minimum Permit Fee $89.00 
Investigation Fee $89.00 
Inspections For Which No Fee is Specifically Indicated $89.00 
Electrical Quick Permits (sold in 10 only) No longer in Use $-0 
Building Without Permit Penalty $ Permit Fee 
Electrical Plan Review 25% of Permit Fee 
Solar Permits 
 Installations in compliance with section 305.4 of the Oregon Solar Installation 

Specialty Code $160.00 
 All other installations based on valuation of the structural elements for the solar 

panels, including racking, mounting elements, rails, and the cost of labor to install 
use Table 3-A 

Renewable Energy Systems 
 5 KVA or Less $115.00 
 5.01 to 15 KVA $150.00 
 15.01 to 25 KVA $190.00 
 Over 25 KVA: 
 Solar Generation Systems $190.00 + $10 for each additional KVA 
  Not to exceed $940.00 
 Wind Generation Systems:  
 25.01 to 50 KVA  $240.00 
  50.01 to 100 KVA $480.00 
  Over 100 KVA Calculated based on Service or 

Feeder sizes and Branch Circuits 
 
To the above fees, please add 12% State Surcharge and a $2.50 Continuing Education Fee. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 25 of 80



Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 

Page 22   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Mechanical Permits (Residential) 
Mechanical Permit Fees 
Table No. 3-D 

 
Description Fee 
First Appliance $89.00 
HVAC 

Up to 100,000 BTU $20.00 
More than 100,000 BTU $23.00 
Unit Heater $20.00 

Boiler/Compressor 
Up to 100,000 BTU $20.00 
3-15 Horsepower or 100,001 – 500,000 BTU $36.00 
Over 15 to 30 Horsepower or  500,001 – 999,000 BTU $53.00 
Over 30 to 50 Horsepower or 1,000,000 – 1,750,000 BTU $69.00 
Over 50 Horsepower or over 1,750,001 BTU $115.00 

Air Handling Unit 
Up to 10,000 CFM $13.00 
10,001 CFM and over $23.00 
Evaporative Cooler/Fan $16.00 

Vents 
Hood and Exhaust $16.00 
Vent Fan to One Duct $11.00 
Appliance Vent $11.00 

Gas Piping 
Each Piping System 1-4 Outlets $8.00 
Each Outlet over 4 $5.00 

LP Gas Tank and Piping $20.00 
Miscellaneous 

Domestic Incinerator $23.00 
Commercial Incinerator $91.00 
Wood/Pellet Stove $47.00 
Heat Pump $20.00 

Preliminary Inspection $89.00 
Each Appliance Not Listed on this Schedule $16.00 
Inspections Not Covered by this Schedule $89.00 
Re-inspection Fee $89.00 
Supplemental Mechanical Fee *Not In Use* $-0- 
Minimum Permit Fee $89.00 
Partial Inspection $89.00 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours $105.00 
Investigation Fee $89.00 
Building Without Permit Penalty $ Permit Fee 
Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Tables $89.00 
Mechanical Plan Review Fee 25% of Permit Fee 
Commercial/Industrial/Public Mechanical System including installation costs Value based 
 

To the above fees, please add 12% State Surcharge and a $2.50 Continuing Education Fee. 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 26 of 80



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 23 

 
For the purpose of defraying the cost of applying regulations as provided in ORS 455.447, a 
surcharge of 1% to the total fees collected for essential, hazardous, major and special occupancy 
structures shall be collected. 

 
Plumbing Permits 
Plumbing Permit Fees 
Table No. 3-C 

 
Fees for the construction, alteration, or repair of plumbing on one- and two-family dwellings 
shall be calculated as described below. Fees include drain, waste and vent installation, water 
distribution piping, and the first 100 feet of water service. 

One- or two-family with one bath $290.00 
One- or two-family with two bath $454.00 
One- or two-family with three bath $534.00 
Each Additional Bath $115.00 
Each Additional Kitchen $115.00 
Single Plumbing Fixture $22.00 
Sanitary Sewer: 

For the first 100 feet of line $92.00 
Each additional 100 feet of line or portion $22.00 

Water Service: 
First 100 feet of line $92.00 
Each additional 100 feet of line or portion $22.00 

Storm and Rain Drain: 
First 100 feet of line $92.00 
Each additional 100 feet of line or portion  $22.00 

Sewage Ejector Pump $22.00 
Special Waste Connection $22.00 
Manufactured Home hook up on improved lot $89.00 
Backflow Prevention Device $22.00 
Relocated Structure $89.00 
Sanitary or Storm Sewer Cap $89.00 
Any trap or waste not connected to a fixture $22.00 
Any plumbing installation not listed in this schedule with 

sanitary waste or portable water supply $22.00 
Minimum Plumbing Permit Fee $89.00 
Partial Inspection fee  $89.00 
Re-inspection Fee $89.00 
Inspections Not Covered By Schedule $89.00 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours $105.00 
Investigation Fee $89.00 
Building without Permit Penalty $ Permit Fee 
Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Table $89.00 
Medical Gas 

Permit fee based on the valuation of installation costs 
and the system equipment:  Use Table 3-A  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 27 of 80



Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 

Page 24   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Plan Review Fee for Med Gas 30% of Permit Fee 
When plans are incomplete or substantially changed so 
as to require additional plan review, additional hourly 
plan review fees may be charged based on the 
additional time required. 

Plumbing Plan Review Fee 30% of Permit Fee 
Residential Fire Sprinklers 

1 – 2,000 sq. ft. $89.00 
2,001 – 3,600 sq. ft. $142.00 
3,601 – 7,200 sq. ft. $212.00 
7,201 sq. ft. and greater $283.00 

To the above fees, please add 12% State Surcharge and a $2.50 Continuing Education Fee. 
 

Additional Miscellaneous Fees 
Miscellaneous Building Fees 
Table No. 3-F 
 
Please add 12% State Surcharge (Where Applicable) 
 

Description Fee 
Master Permit Program $100.00 
Investigative Fee $89.00 
Inspection for Which No Fee is Specifically Indicated $89.00 
Moving a Building or Structure $354.00 
Demolition of a Building or Structure $89.00 
Mobile Home Accessory Structure Value 
Prefabricated Structures Value 
Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Table $89.00 
Address Assignment, each new or change unless requested by city staff $47.00 
Temporary Occupancy Permit Approval Shall Not Exceed 30 Days Without Renewal.  
Renewal Fee is the Same Fee As Original Temporary Occupancy Permit Fee: 

1 & 2 Family Dwellings $154.00 
Triplex & 4-Plex $302.00 
Apartment Buildings $302.00 + $37/unit 
Remodels Commercial/Industrial Buildings & Tenant Infill $154.00 
Commercial/Industrial Buildings $454.00+10% of Bldg Permit Fee 

Same As Plan Review Submittal $304.00 
Building Without Permit Penalty Fee Cost of Bldg Permit 
Manufactured Home Placement $483.00 
Fire & Life Safety Plan Review When Required 40% of Building Permit Fee 
Additional Plan Review Due To Changes In Plans $89.00/hr  
Hazardous Technical Report with No Plan Review $89.00/hr 
Site Investigation and Posting of NSF Check $89.00 
Administrative Fee for Non-Sufficient Funds Check $154.00 
Administrative Fee – Non Specialty Code Permits 10% 
Administrative Fee for Cash Deposits 10% 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours – 1 hour minimum $105.00 
Re-inspection Fee $89.00 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 28 of 80



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 25 

Quick Start $231.00 
Phased Permits $290.00 + 10% of the total building permit fee 

for each phase of work not to exceed $1,500 for 
each phase. 

Deferred Permits 65% of Bldg Permit Fee calculated using the 
valuation of the deferred portion of the project, 
with a minimum fee of $95.00 

Research Requests 
Technical (15-30 minutes) $31.00 
Technical (31-60 minutes) $61.00 
Non-Technical (15-30 minutes) $20.00 
Non-Technical (31-60 minutes) $38.00 
Any copy fee is in addition to research fees.  30 Minutes is minimum fee 

Posting Substandard Structures $89.00 
Monthly Reports – Yearly “Mailing” List $78.00/mailed 

 $46.00/faxed 
Weekly Issued Reports – Yearly “Mailing” List $336.00/mailed 

 $186.00/faxed 
Addressing Information –Non-Agency-Government Yearly “Mailing” List  
  $78.00/mailed 
  $46.00/faxed 
Fire Department Process/Application Fee 10% of Fire fee 

 
Copying Costs 

 First 5 copies up to 11” x 17” size are free. 
 All additional copies  $.50 each 
 Large print copies -  $4.00 each 
 
 All special ordered maps are charged from the GIS price sheet. 
 
 Copying Fee: Staff charge rate  ½ hr. minimum 
 Technical Research Fee:  $87.00/hr. 
 

Signs 
Sign Code Plan Review 
(SMC 8.218(1)) 
Permit Applications. Two complete sets of plans, engineering calculations, diagrams and other data shall 
be submitted with each application for a permit. The building official may require plans, computations 
and specifications to be prepared and designed by an engineer or architect. 
 (a) A scaled plot plan with building dimensions, setback and location of proposed signs shall be 
submitted with the sign permit application. A photograph of each facade of the building shall be 
submitted. 
 (b) A scaled elevation drawing shall be submitted in addition to the above requirements if a wall 
mounted sign will be erected. 
 (c) A description of materials, anchors, footings and attachment systems shall be provided. 
 (d) For all freestanding, pole or projecting signs over 20 feet in height, plans shall be submitted, 
drawn by a registered engineer. 
 (e) Each application shall include photographs of existing signage on the property associated with 
the business. 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 29 of 80



Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 

Page 26   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

 (f) If the application is for a billboard, the application must include an approved permit from the 
state of Oregon under the Oregon Motorists Information Act of 1971 (ORS 377.700 et seq.) prior to the 
erection of the billboard. 

 Per Sign $42.00 
 
Sign Permit Fees 
(SMC 8.218(2)) (2)  
Permit-Fees. Sign permit fees for permanent and temporary signs, excluding electrical, shall be set by 
resolution of the Council. Only one face of a double-faced sign will be used for calculation purposes. Each 
sign shall be considered separately when calculating plan review and sign permit charges. 

 0-35 square feet $80.00 
 36-to 60 square feet $110.00 
 61 to 100 square feet $140.00 
 101 to 150 square feet $160.00 
 151 to 200 square feet $200.00 
 201 to 300 square feet $250.00 
 301 to 400 square feet $300.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
10% Administrative Fee will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Temporary Sign Permit Fee 
(SMC 8.218 (4)(3))  
Temporary Sign Permit Fees. Four permits for each approved development area shall be permitted per 
calendar year. The fee for each permit shall be set by resolution by the Council. No temporary sign(s) shall 
be larger than 60 square feet and be erected for a maximum of 30 consecutive days per each permit. The 
temporary sign(s) shall be located completely on private property and shall be in compliance with the 
required setbacks as identified in Springfield Municipal Code. A security deposit is required when this 
permit is issued. If the applicant fails to remove the temporary sign(s) by the date specified on the permit, 
the deposit shall be forfeited and the City may remove the temporary sign(s). If any temporary signs are 
erected without first obtaining a permit, the permit fee shall be doubled. Temporary signs erected by or 
for the City for City-sponsored events, authorized by the City, or for the park district, utility company, or 
hospital for community events are exempt. 

 Per permit $100.00 
 Plus security deposit $100.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
10% Administrative Fee will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Modification Fee 
(SMC 8.238(2)) 
A modification is defined as a request for a sign that complies with the provisions of this sign code in all 
respects except size or height and the proposed request is not more than 15 percent greater than 
otherwise allowed. If the applicant chooses to apply for a modification to the sign code, they may apply 
through the development services department for a cost set by resolution of the council. This 
modification request will be reviewed, and a decision reached by the Development and Public Works 
Director within 30 days of the application, providing the application is complete. 
The following criteria must be met in order for a modification to be approved: 
 (a) Locational and/or dimensional problems have been identified; and 
 (b) The proposed adjustment will not cause any of the following adverse effects on neighboring 

properties: 
  (i) Creates a vision clearance hazard for pedestrians, motor vehicles or bicyclists; or 
  (ii) Creates a hazard for fire prevention or fire suppression; or 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 30 of 80



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 27 

  (iii) Public safety is compromised; and 
 (c) The hardship is not self-imposed. 

 Per application $200.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Appeal Fee (Building Board of Appeals) 
(SMC 8.238(5)) An applicant who is denied a modification request may appeal the decision of the 
Development and Public Works Department to the Building Board of Appeals for a cost set by resolution 
of the Council. The request will be reviewed by the Board and a decision reached within 30 days of the 
application date. 

 Per Application $150.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Appeal Fee (City Council Appeal) 
(SMC 8.238(6)) An applicant may appeal the decision of the Board of Appeals regarding an appeal of a 
modification or a variance to the City Council for a cost set by resolution of the Council. The City Council’s 
decision is final except that or a writ of review to Circuit Court is available to appeal the City Council’s 
decision pursuant to Oregon law. [Section 8.238 amended by Ordinance No. 6008, enacted March 18, 
2002.] 

 Per application $100.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Variance Fee  
(SMC 2.568(5)) Hear appeals from the sign code as provided in chapter 8, section 8.238 of the Springfield 
Municipal Code. 
 Per Application $300.00 

 

  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 31 of 80



Section 7:  Engineering 

Page 28   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Section 7:  Engineering  
The following fees shall be charged for the Engineering activities of the City: 

 
Land Drainage Alteration Permit  
(Resolution 11‐23, SMC 8.332(1), 8.332(2)) 

 
Plan Checking Fee 
For excavation and fill on the same site, the fee shall be based on the volume of the excavation or fill, 
whichever is greater. Before accepting a set of plans and specifications for checking, the Development and 
Public Works Director shall collect a plan-checking fee. Where not covered by the approved improvement 
plans for the development, separate permits and fees may apply to retaining walls or major drainage 
structures in accordance with the State Building Code. There shall be no separate charge for standard 
terrace drains and similar facilities. The amount of the plan checking fee for grading plans shall be based 
on the average actual costs as set forth by resolution of the City Council. The rates and charges herein 
provided are for incurred costs based upon the use or availability for use of the public right-of-way and/or 
the storm sewer system, as well as for meeting the routine obligations of ownership, which is necessary 
for the regulation of and provision for public health, safety, and welfare. The charge is controlled by the 
user’s or potential user’s request and choice of the kind, nature and quantity of use. The plan-checking 
fee, for a grading permit authorizing additional work to a valid permit, shall be the difference between 
such fee paid for the original permit and the fee shown for the entire project. 

 
Grading Permit Fees 
A fee for each grading permit shall be paid to the Development and Public Works Director based on the 
average actual costs as set forth by resolution of the City Council. The rates and charges herein provided 
are for incurred costs based upon the use or availability for use of the public right-of-way and/or the 
storm sewer system, as well as for meeting the routine obligations of ownership, which is necessary for 
the regulation of and provision for public health, safety, and welfare. The charge is controlled by the 
user’s or potential user’s request and choice of the kind, nature, and quantity of use. The fee for grading 
permit authorizing additional work to that under a valid permit shall be the difference between the fee 
paid for the original permit and the fee shown for the entire project. 

 
Single Family/Duplex Residential 
“Short Form” fee (non-sensitive areas: i.e. lot slope less than 15%; no work in or near a 
drainageway or swale; no wetlands on site; not in a flood plain) 
 Flat fee $485.00 
“LDAP” fee (work within sensitive areas: i.e. any of the following: lot slope equal to or greater 
than 15%; work in or near a drainageway or swale; wetlands on site; site in flood plain)  
 Flat fee $968.00 
 
Commercial/Industrial/Multifamily/Other 
 1) Plan Check Fee $485.00 
 2) Plus: Volume Fee Up to 100 cubic yards $242.00 
  
 101 to 1,000 cubic yards $242.00 
 Plus: Per 100 cubic yards over 100 $47.00 
  
 1,001 to 25,000 cubic yards $678.00 
 Plus: Per 1,000 cubic yards over 1,000 $81.00 
  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 32 of 80



  Section 7:  Engineering 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 29 

  Greater than 25,000 cubic yards: 
Actual recorded staff costs, overhead 

and project expenses 
 $2,743 minimum 

Plus: $4,500 deposit and additional 
deposits as required 

 
Plus Permit Administration/Inspection Fee 
 Up to 100 cubic yards $242.00 
 
 101 to 1,000 cubic yards $242.00 
 Plus: Per 100 cubic yards over 100 $81.00 
 
 1,001 to 25,000 cubic yards $968.00 
 Plus: Per 1,000 cubic yards over 1,000 $161.00 
 
 Greater than 25,000 cubic yards 

Actual recorded staff costs, overhead 
and project expenses 

$4,841 minimum 
Plus $4,500 deposit and additional 

deposits as required 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Corrective LDAP 
Any LDAP processed after work is conducted without required City approvals is considered a 

corrective LDAP.  In addition to the normal LDAP fees, calculated based on an estimate of the 

work performed at the time of the corrective LDAP, the corrective LDAP shall also pay for actual 

recorded staff costs, overhead, and project expenses in the administration of the corrective 

LDAP.  The initial deposits for the corrective LDAP, in addition to the standard LDAP fees, shall 

be $3,000 for parcels less than one acre and $3,000 + $1,500 per acre for parcels more than one 

acre.  If the deposit is insufficient to cover City expenses for the project, additional deposits will 

be required.  

 

Re-Inspection Fee $98.00 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Asphalt Damage Deposit  
(SMC 3.210(1)(a), 3.212(3)) Before the issuance of any permit under this article, the Development and 
Public Works Director shall require the applicant to deposit such reasonable security as the Director 
requires to comply with the provisions of this article and with the City’s specifications pertaining to the 
conduct of work. 

    $926.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 33 of 80



Section 7:  Engineering 

Page 30   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Comprehensive Fee for Use of Public Ways (Non-Utility) 
(SMC 3.224) No structure or device shall be placed in, upon, over or under the public way unless the 
owner of such structure or device shall have received a placement permit authorizing the placement of 
such structure or device. Any violation of this provision shall be an infraction within the meaning of 
Chapter 5 of this code. 
 Per foot-annual rental of City conduit $2.00 
 Per foot-annual placement fee for conduit four inches or less in diameter  $5.00 
 And for each inch of diameter in excess of four inches. $1.00 per foot 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Encroachment Permit 
(SMC 3.212(1)) Applications for the encroachment permit shall be on the form prescribed by the 
Development and Public Works Director, and accompanied by the fee therefore, in an amount fixed by 
the Council by resolution. 

    $301.00 
   Re-inspection Fee $103.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Permit Fee: Signs in the Public Right-of-Way (Banners) 
(SMC 3.223(1),(7)) Banner. Any non-rigid material such as canvas, vinyl or cloth, with no enclosing 
framework, which contains advertising copy. 

 
Over the Street Banner 
(SMC 3.223(1),(7)) Over the Street Banner. A banner that hangs between two poles that straddle the 
City street at locations designated by the City. 

 Per permit $150.00 
Open Banner 
(SMC 3.223(1),(7)) Open Banner. A double sided, embroidered banner displayed in the Downtown or 
Mohawk area that is attached to a pole, purchased and installed by the City, and advertises a 
business or organization. 

 Downtown Business District $110-150 
 Mohawk Business District $110-150 

Light Pole Banner 
(SMC 3.223 (1),(7)) Pole Banner.  A banner attached to City utility poles or traffic signal poles at 
designated areas throughout the City. 

 Per permit $100.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Comprehensive Telecommunication Placement Plan Review Fee 
(SMC 3.226(6)) At the election of the applicant, the applicant may file a comprehensive 
telecommunications placement plan which describes all facilities it presently intends to install. Such plan 
is subject to approval of the Development and Public Works Director and may be modified from time to 
time by the applicant with the approval of the Development and Public Works Director. The fee for review 
of such plan shall be fixed by the Council by resolution. 

    $757.00 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 34 of 80



  Section 7:  Engineering 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 31 

Curb Cut Fee 
(SMC 3.254, 3.256) In case the permit shall be granted, it shall be the duty of the applicant to pay a fee 
based on the average actual costs as set forth by resolution of the Council. The same fee shall be charged 
for new construction or repair. The rates and charges herein provided are incurred costs based upon the 
use or availability for use of the public right-of-way, the availability of which is necessary for the 
regulation of, and provision for, the public health, safety and welfare. The charge is controlled by the 
user’s (or potential user’s) request and choice of the kind, nature and quantity of use. 

   First curb cut $109.00 
   Second curb cut $58.00 
 Re-inspection fee Per re-inspection $103.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Curb Cut Fee and Sidewalk Construction Permit: Multiple Permit Discount 
(SMC 3.250, 3.256, 3.300(1)) Before any sidewalk in a public right of way is started, a permit shall be 
obtained from the building official. At the time the permit is issued, the applicant shall pay a fee based on 
the average actual costs for permit administration and sidewalk inspection as set forth by resolution of 
the Council for the sidewalk, for either new construction or repair. These requirements do not apply, 
however, when such work is done under contract with the City or covered by a subdivision agreement 
with the City. The rates and charges herein provided are incurred costs based upon the use or availability 
for use of the public right-of-way, the availability of which is necessary for the regulation of, and provision 
for, the public health, safety and welfare. The charge is controlled by the user’s (or potential user’s) 
request and choice of the kind, nature and quantity of use. 

Discount when applicant obtains up to three Curb Cut or Sidewalk Construction Permits in same 
location.     $37.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Placement Permit for Standard Mailbox - No Sidewalk Construction 
(SMC 3.226)     No Fee 

 

Placement Permit 
(SMC 3.226 (2)) Prior to placing a structure or device in the right-of-way, the owner of such structure or 
device shall secure a placement permit, which permit shall also serve as an encroachment permit. 

    $301.00 
  Per re-Inspection  $107.00 
  Plus an Asphalt Damage Deposit (SMC 3.214(2)(b)) $926.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sidewalk Construction Permit 
(SMC 3.300, 3.310(1)) Before any sidewalk in a public right-of-way is started, a permit shall be obtained 
from the building official. At the time the permit is issued, the applicant shall pay a fee based on the 
average actual costs for permit administration and sidewalk inspection as set forth by resolution of the 
Council for the sidewalk, for either new construction or repair. 

   For the first 90 feet of sidewalk $109.00 
   Per square foot after $0.09 
   Re-inspection fee $103.00 
   Sidewalk Repair Permit $20.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 35 of 80



Section 7:  Engineering 

Page 32   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Sewer Connection Fee-Unassessed (Sewer In-Lieu-of-Assessment Fee) 
(SMC 3.356(3)) Upon making an application as herein provided, such person shall pay to the City an 
amount based upon the City’s established rate per square foot of benefited property. This rate is based on 
the average actual sewer construction costs per square foot of benefited property, as set by resolution of 
the Council. Any rate adjustment shall be determined by the previous year’s sewer construction costs and 
projected inflation to the next construction season. The depth of the benefited property shall not exceed 
150 feet from the street or 150 feet from the sanitary sewer line if the sewer line is not within the street 
right-of-way, except by special authorization by the Development and Public Works Director and based 
upon reasonable judgment, such as 
  a. The location of the building in relation to the referenced 150 foot line; 

b. The possibility of future development for the building sites beyond the 150 foot depth. 

Except as provided by (a) and (b) immediately preceding, a reduced charge will be charged for that area 
beyond the 150 foot line. The sum so paid may be deposited against any future sanitary sewer 
assessment which may be made against said property. In the event the sum paid exceeds the assessment 
any excess will be refunded to the property owner. 

 Per square foot for first 150 feet of depth $0.68 
 And per square foot thereafter $0.34 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected 

 

Unassessed Property along McVay Highway, Franklin Boulevard to Nugget Way 

(SMC 3.356(3)(c)) The City Council has determined that a special rate is appropriate for properties directly 

benefitted by the Franklin/McVay Sanitary Sewer Extension, City Project #21080, to provide a reasonable 

and just fee based upon the size and configuration of the benefitted properties. 

 Per square foot  $0.19 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 

 

Sewer Construction Permit  

(SMC 3.358(4)) An application for a permit to construct a sanitary sewer shall be accompanied by a fee set 
by resolution of the Council. If more than 50 percent of an existing sewer line is to be reconstructed, then 
it shall be classed as new construction. 

    No Charge 

 

Sewer Reconstruction Permit 
(SMC 3.358(5)) An application for a permit to reconstruct any sanitary sewer shall be accompanied by a 
fee set by resolution of the Council. If less than 50 percent of an existing sewer line is to be reconstructed, 
then it shall be classed as repairs. 

    No Charge 
 
Temporary Storage Fee 
(SMC 3.214(2)(b)) Fee for the temporary storage of articles in the public right-of-way during construction 
as provided for in section 5.052(2)(a), if applicable: 

  Per square foot with a $275.00 minimum charge  $2.00 
  plus and Asphalt Damage Deposit (SMC 3.214(2)(b) $926.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 36 of 80



  Section 7:  Engineering 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 33 

General Engineering Fees 

Public Improvement Permit (PIP): Plan Approval and Deposits 
Schedule of deposits pertaining to PIP plan approval and permit 

(SMC 3.018 (1)) From time to time the Council shall, on recommendation of the City Engineer, by 

resolution, adopt a schedule of deposit amounts that shall categorize projects and the required deposit. In 

determining the recommended amount of a deposit, the City Engineer shall consider the actual costs of 

performing review for approval and preliminary testing, and the costs of inspection, testing, and other 

services provided to projects of similar cost of construction in the immediately preceding fiscal year, 

adjusted by the change in the Construction Cost Index during the past twelve months. 

(2) Such actual costs shall include the employee’s base salary; other direct project expenses, such as 

copies, project documentation, the use of consultants, the cost of materials testing and an allowance for 

indirect costs based on percentages determined by the Finance Director. Deposits shall be in accordance 

with such schedule except where the City Engineer determines, in writing, that unusual circumstances 

associated with the project require a deposit of a greater or lesser amount. 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Post-Monumentation Deposit for Subdivision and Partition 
(ORS 92.065(1)) Base deposit $2,800.00 
 Plus monument (each) $130.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Project Bid Books and Project Draft Plans 
(ORS 192.440(4)) Oregon Revised Statutes authorize the public body to establish fees reasonably 
calculated to reimburse it for its actual costs in making such records available including costs for 
summarizing, compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s 
request.  

 Minimum, varies by project $28.00 
 Bid books on Compact disc $28.00/per disc 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Real Property Compensation Application Fee 
(SMC 2.930(11)) A demand shall include payment of a fee in the amount established by separate 
resolution of the City Council to at least partially cover the City’s cost of processing the demand. The City 
manager may waive the fee if the owner is unable to pay the fee or for other purpose necessary for the 
public health, safety and welfare; 
 (b) The City Manager shall maintain a record of the City’s actual cost of processing the demand, 
including the cost of obtaining any information required by section 2.930 that the owner does not provide 
to the City; 
 (c) In the event the fee is not sufficient to cover all of the City’s costs, or in the event the owner fails 
to pay any fees not waived, the owner shall pay the fee or balance owed, if any, upon receipt of an 
appropriate billing statement from the City; 
 (d) If the fee paid is more than the amount of the City’s actual costs in processing the demand, then 
the excess shall be returned to the owner; 
 (e) In the event that the fee is not paid in full within 30 calendar days after receipt of billing, the City 
may take any enforcement actions provided by law to collect such fee, including but not limited to filing a 
lien on the property. 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 37 of 80



Section 7:  Engineering 

Page 34   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

 (f) If a demand is determined to be a valid demand the City shall reimburse the owner for any fee 
paid.  

 Per Application $538.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Re-Apportionment Fee 
(SMC 3.154) Apportionment or reapportionment shall only be made upon the written request of the 
record owner of the tract or parcel of property involved directed to the finance director. The request shall 
be accompanied by a survey map of the parcels to receive the assessment liens as reapportioned, 
together with a legal description thereof. Apportionment or reapportionment shall only be made upon 
the written request of the record owner of the tract or parcel of property involved directed to the finance 
director. The request shall be accompanied by a survey map of the parcels to receive the assessment liens 
as reapportioned, together with a legal description thereof. 

  First two lots $28.00 
  Extra per lot $10.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Standard Construction Specification or Engineering Design Standards and Procedures Books  
(ORS 192.440(4)) Oregon Revised Statutes authorize the public body to establish fees reasonably 
calculated to reimburse it for its actual costs in making such records available including costs for 
summarizing, compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s 
request.  

   $43.00/each 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Other Engineering Fees 

Asphaltic Job Mix Testing Fee  
 Each Public Improvement Project using asphaltic paving $414.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Local Improvement District Assessment Service Fee 
(SMC 3.072) An assessment service fee of 6.2 percent of the cost of direct construction, advertising, 
testing and engineering of local public improvement projects shall be added and included in the 
assessment made to each benefiting property owner in order to cover the origination, billing and 
collection cost on assessment. 

  Per Assessment 6.2% of Assessment 
 
Reimbursement District Application Fee 
(SMC 3.610 (1)) A person who is required to or chooses to finance some or all of the cost of an 
infrastructure improvement that will be available to provide service to property, other than property 
owned by the person, may, by written application filed with the Development and Public Works Director, 
request that the City establish a reimbursement district. The infrastructure improvements must be in 
addition to or in a size greater than those that would otherwise ordinarily be required in connection with 
the application for permit approval and must be available to provide service to property other than 
property owned by the applicant. Examples include, but shall not be limited to, intersections, full-street 
rather than half-street improvements, traffic signals, off-site sidewalks, connection of street sections for 
continuity, extension of water lines, and extension of sewer lines. The City may also initiate formation of a 
reimbursement district. The application shall be accompanied by a fee, as established by resolution, 
sufficient to cover the cost of administrative review and notice pursuant to this section. 

  Per Benefitted Parcel $500.00 Each 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 38 of 80



  Section 7:  Engineering 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges  Page 35 

Reimbursement District Administration Fee 
(SMC 316(2)) The City may charge a fee for administration of the agreement. The administration fee shall 
be fixed by the Council in the resolution approving and forming the reimbursement district. The 
administration fee is due and payable to the City at the time the agreement is signed (or, if specified as a 
percentage, shall be paid quarterly based upon the reimbursement fees paid during that quarter). 

For Reimbursement Districts with 10 or fewer Benefitted Parcels  
 $500.00 each 
For Reimbursement Districts with more than 10 Benefitted Parcels 

6.2% of the Reimbursement Fees 
collected from a District each quarter 

 
  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 39 of 80



Section 8:  Planning Services 

Page 36   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Section 8:  Planning Services 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Planning activities of the City: 

 
Development Code Application Fees 
(Resolution 10‐51, Springfield Development Code 5.4‐100) 

Any applications being processed before the Hearings Official (except an appeal) shall pay an 
additional deposit of $5,000 for the cost of the Hearings Official. Any amount not expended by 
the Hearings Official shall be returned to the applicant. Charges in excess of this additional fee 
shall be assessed to the applicant.  
Note: Low‐Income Fee Reduction: any application fee related to the development of low‐income 
housing or facilities may be reduced pursuant to the criteria of Section 1.070(4)of the Springfield 
Development Code. 
 
General Notes 
Expedited Processing Fee: Any request to prioritize and expedite the review of a particular 
application out of the order in which applications are received, shall be approved at the 
discretion of the Director and shall be charged a non-refundable fee of $11,000 or 3 times the 
application fee, whichever is greater; where the development area is greater than 10 acres an 
additional $550 per acre will be charged. 
 
Technology Fee: All applications will be assessed a 5% technology fee with the exception of Pre-
Submittal Meeting, Development Issues Meeting, Pre-Application Report, Appeal of Type II 
Director’s Decision, Appeal of Expedited Land Division, and certain required fees (ex: Postage/ 
Notification Fees). 

 
Copying Costs 
 Copying Fee: Staff Charge out rate ½ hour minimum  
 Plus: First 5 copies up to 11” x 17” No Charge 
 All additional copies  $0.50 each 
 Large print copies  $4.00 each 
All special ordered maps are charged from the GIS price sheet. 

 
General Applications 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 
(SDC 5.5‐100) 
 Type I City and Urban Growth Boundary:  $772.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Amendment of Development Code Text 
(SDC 5.6‐100) Ballot Measure 56 permits charging staff time for mailing, plus materials and postage. 
 Mailing & Postage Staff Time $75.00 
  Plus:  Materials and Postage 
 Type IV City $7,873.00 
  UGB $11,878.00 
  Plus: Postage $565.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 40 of 80



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 37 

Annexation 
(SDC 5.7‐100) 
Annexation to the City of Springfield, UGB Only 

Type IV Single family dwellings on LDR property of less than 10,000 
square feet  $1,022.00 

  <1 acre   $2,278.00 
  1 acre > 5 acres   $2,913.00 
  5 acres > 10 acres  $3,888.00 
  10 acres> 25 acres  $4,906.00 
  25 acres > 50 acres  $6,089.00 
  50 acres > 100 acres  $7,009.00 
  100 acres or more $9,660.00 
  Postage Fee for all Type IV $565.00 
   Annexation Special District Boundary Adjustments/Withdrawals 

10% of the paid annexation fee 
(exclusive of postage). 

 UGB Only Comprehensive Planning Fee per acre $1,998.00/acre 
  Concurrent Special District Boundary Adjustments and/or 

Withdrawals, including but not limited to: Park and Recreation 
Districts; Water Districts; Fire Districts; Library Districts, etc  

10% of applicable annexation fee  
(regardless of the number of Districts) 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Appeals 
(SDC 5.3‐100) 
 Type III*  Appeal of Expedited Land Division $334.00 
  Appeal of Type II Director's Decision (ORS 227.175) $255.00 
 Type IV Appeal of Type III Decision to City Council 
   City $2,468.00 
   UGB $3,724.00 
*This fee is established by ORS 227.175. Council acknowledges Neighborhood Associations shall be 
charged a fee for an appeal. 
 
Note for all local appeals: If an appellant prevails at the hearing or subsequent hearing, the filing fee for 
the initial fee shall be refunded. This applies to local appeals only. The appellant prevails if the hearings 
body sustains one or more of the applicants allegations and amends, remands or reverses the land use 
decision. 

 
Conceptual Development Plan 
(SDC 3.4‐315) 
  Type III City $14,450.00 
   UGB $21,933.00 
   Plus: Postage $401.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 41 of 80



Section 8:  Planning Services 

Page 38   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Conceptual Development Plan Amendments 
(SDC 3.4‐315) 
  Type III City $5,632.00 
   UGB $8,497.00 
   Plus: Postage $401.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Department of Motor Vehicle Licensing 
(Permit) 
  New City $748.00 
   UGB $898.00 
  Renewal City $299.00 
   UGB $361.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Determination of Non-Conforming Use Status 
(SDC 5.8‐100) 
  Type I City  $113.00 
   UGB $170.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Development Issues Meeting 
(SDC 5.1‐100(a)) 
  City & UGB  $554.00 
 
Discretionary Use 
(SDC 5.9‐100) 
  Type III City $4,070.00 
   UGB $6,139.00 
   Plus: Postage $401.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Drinking Water Protection Overlay District 
(SDC 3.3‐200) 
  Type I City & UGB $1,084.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Expedited Land Division 
(SDC 5.1‐145) 
Type II: The fee for an Expedited Land Division (ELD) shall be twice the fee calculated for a regular land 
division plus an appeal fee established in ORS 197.380 to defray costs in the event the decision is 
appealed. If the decision is not appealed, the appeal fee for ELD shall be refunded. A separate postage fee 
is required for an ELD. 
 

Final Site Plan Inspection for Occupancy/LUC/Change of Use 
(Permit) 
   City & UGB $299.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 42 of 80



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 39 

Floodplain Development Base Fee 
(SDC 3.3‐400)* 
 Type I Floodplain Base Fees 
   City $1,175.00 
   UGB $1,773.00 
  Plus: 
   Subdivision  $212.00 per lot  
   Partitions and site plans  $425.00 per acre  
 For all development areas >5 acres $14,514.00 deposit is required** 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
*A Floodplain permit processed after land use activity is conducted without required City approvals shall 
be charged an additional fee of $500 per acre in addition to the regular application fee.  The City 
establishes these fees based on the average cost of providing programmatic service for activities 
conducted without permits. 
**The >5 acre deposit shall be refunded upon completion, inspection and final approval of work under 
the flood plain permit and associated applications. 
 
Formal Interpretation 
(SDC 5.11‐100) 
  Type II City $1,881.00 
   UGB $2,445.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
 
Type IV * Ballot Measure 56 permits charging staff time for mailing and postage, plus materials and 

postage. 

 Mailing & Postage Staff Time $75.00 
  Plus:  Materials and Postage 
 
 Formal Interpretation Involving Policy 
   City $5,042.00 
   UGB $7,606.00 
   Plus: Postage $565.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Hillside Overlay District (HD) 
(SDC 3.3‐500) 
  Type II City & UGB $973.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Historic 
(SDC 3.3‐900) 
 Type III Demolition of Historic Landmark 
   City $3,691.00 
   UGB $5,570.00 
  Establishment of Historic Landmark Inventory 
   City & UGB $2,043.00 
   Plus: Postage $401.00 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 43 of 80



Section 8:  Planning Services 

Page 40   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

 Type I Historic Commission Review under Type I 
   City $63.00 
   UGB $166.00 
 Type II Historic Commission Review Under Type II 
   City $188.00 
   UGB $497.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Hospital Support Overlay District (HS) 
(SDC 3.3‐1100) 
  Type II City Only $3,104.00 
   Plus $622.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Land Use Compatibility Statement/Zoning Verification Letter 
(SDC 3.1‐100) 
  Permit City $299.00 
   UGB $323.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Manufactured Dwelling Park 
(SDC 3.2‐235) 
  Type II City $10,492.00 
   UGB $15,826.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Manufactured Dwelling Park Space Line Adjustment 
(SDC 3.2‐235) 
  Type I City $399.00 
   UGB $1,057.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Master Plan 
(SDC 5.13‐100) 
Master Plan Approval Preliminary 
  Type II City $14,450.00 
    Plus $674.00/acre 
   UGB $21,933.00 
    Plus $674.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 44 of 80



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 41 

  Type III City $20,005.00 
    Plus $674.00/acre 
   UGB $30,115.00 
    Plus $674.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $401.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Final Master Plan Approval 

Final Master Plan Approval fee is 10% of the paid master plan approval fee  
(exclusive of postage). 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Master Plan Modification 
  Type I City $2,798.00 
   UGB $4,194.400 
  Type II City $5,632.00 
   UGB $8,497.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
  Type III City $10,285.00 
   UGB $15,036.00 
   Plus: Postage $401.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Metro Plan Amendment 
(SDC 5.14‐100) Acre fee for diagram amendment 
  Type I, special instruction Type IV 
   City $23,131.00 
    Plus $674.00/acre 
   UGB $34,892.00 
    Plus $674.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $565.00 
  Type II, special instruction Type IV 
   City $11,217.00 
    Plus $674.00/acre 
   UGB $14,388.00 
    Plus $674.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $565.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Minimum Development Standards 
 Type I Minor City Only $772.00  
  Major City Only $1,063.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 45 of 80



Section 8:  Planning Services 

Page 42   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Non-Conforming Use Expansion/Modification 
  Type II City $4,070.00 
   UGB $6,139.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Partitions 
(SDC 5.12‐100) 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Tentative 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Plat 
Required prior to submittal of Partition - Tentative Plan and Partition – Plat applications. 

   City $368.00 
   UGB $553.00 
 
Partition Tentative Plan 
  Type II* City $5,180.00 
  UGB $9,479.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
 
Partition Plat 
A reconfiguration of lots or a decrease in the number of lots in a platted partition or subdivision shall be 
charged the tentative replat/replat plat fee for either subdivision or partition as appropriate.  An Increase 
in the number of lots in a platted partition or subdivision shall be charged either the partition tentative 
plan/partition plat or subdivision tentative/ subdivision plat. 

  Type I* City & UGB $2,847.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Plan Review 
(SDC 2.1‐115) 
  Minor City $123.00 
   UGB $298.00 
  Major City $219.00 
   UGB $298.00 
 
Pre-Application Report 
(SMC 5.1‐100) 

   City & UGB $3,778.00 
 
Pre-Submittal Meeting 
(SMC 5.1‐100) 

   City $368.00 
   UGB $553.00 
 
Property Line Adjustment 
(SMC 5.16‐100) 

  Type I City $663.00 
   UGB $999.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 46 of 80



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 43 

Property Line Adjustment-Serial 
  Type II City $1,323.96 
   UGB $1,995.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
 

Replat 
(SDC 5.12‐100) 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Tentative 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Plat 
Required prior to submittal of Major Replat Tentative Plan and Major Replat Plat applications. 

   City $368.00 
 
Minor Replat Tentative Plan 
  Type II City $3,315.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Minor Replat Plat 
  Type I City $1949.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Major Replat Tentative Plan 
  Type II City $5,387.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Major Replat Plat 
  Type I City $1,951.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Refinement Plan Amendment 
(SDC 5.6‐100) Acre fee for diagram amendment 

  Type IV City $11,217.00 
    Plus $674.00/acre 
   UGB $17,259.00 
    Plus $674.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $565.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Site Plan Review 
(SDC 5.17‐100) 
Pre-Submittal Meeting 
Required prior to submittal of Site Plan Review and Site Plan Review Modification – Major applications. 

   City $368.22 
   UGB $553.00 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 47 of 80



Section 8:  Planning Services 

Page 44   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Site Plan Review 
 Type II <10,000 sq. ft. impervious surface 
   City & UGB $4,489.00 
  10,000 sq. ft. or greater impervious surface 
   City & UGB $4,489.00 
   Plus $53.00/1,000 sq. ft. 
  Plus: Postage  $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Site Plan Review Modification-Major 
  Type II City & UGB $4,331.94 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Site Plan Review Modification-Minor 
  Type I City $1,319.00 
   UGB $1,991.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Final Site Plan Equivalent 
  Type I City & UGB $3,999.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Final Site Plan Review/Development Agreement 
(SMC 5.17‐100) 

Type I - Final site plan and development agreement fee is 10% of the paid site plan fee 
(exclusive of postage). 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Solar Access Guarantee 
(SMC 5.18‐100) 

  Type II City $830.00 
   UGB $1,005.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Street Name Change 
   City Only $5,042.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Subdivisions 
(SDC 5.12‐100) 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Tentative 
Pre-Submittal Meeting-Plat 
Required prior to submittal of Subdivision – Tentative Plan and Subdivision – Plat Applications. 

   City Only $368.00 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 48 of 80



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 45 

Subdivision-LDR-Tentative Plan 
  Type II <2 acres $5,867.04 
    Plus $252.00/lot 
   2 acres to 5 acres $8,305.00 
    Plus $415.00/lot 
   5 acres to 10 acres $10,985.40 
    Plus $660.00/lot 
   10 acres to 20 acres $11,589.24 
    Plus $672.00/lot 
   Greater than 20 acres $12,192.00 
    Plus $732.00/lot 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Subdivision-LDR-Plat 
   Type I $811.00 
   Plus $506.00/lot 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Subdivision-Non-LDR-Tentative Plan 
   Type II $10,358.00 
   Plus $622.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Subdivision-Non-LDR-Plat 
   Type I $4,151.00 
   Plus $674.00acre 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Temporary Use 
(SMC 5.10‐100) Fee Waiver: The Director may reduce or waive the fee for Temporary Use-Emergency 
Medical Hardship upon verification of low-income status of the owner occupant. 

  Type II-Emergency Medical Hardship 
   City & UGB $294.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
  Type I-Manufactured Dwelling-After a Disaster  
   City & UGB $395.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Time Extension for Certain Improvements 
   City $342.00 
   UGB $1,110.00 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 49 of 80



Section 8:  Planning Services 

Page 46   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Tree Felling Permit 
(SDC 5.19‐100) Any Tree Felling processed after land use activity is conducted without required City 
approvals shall be charged an additional fee of $200 per tree in addition to the regular application fee.  
The City establishes these fees based on the average cost of providing programmatic service for activities 
conducted without permits. 

  Type II – City & UGB 
   Base Fee $1,048 
   Less than five (5) trees No Charge 
   6-10 Trees Base Fee Plus $53.00/tree 
   >10 Trees Base Fee Plus $531.00/acre 
   Filbert Orchards Base Fee Only 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Vacation 
(SDC 5.20‐100) 
Public Easement- Type II City $1,318.86 
   UGB $1,991.00 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
ROW, Subdivision Plat and other public property- 
  Type IV City  $5,042.00 
   UGB $7,606.00 
   Plus: Postage $565.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Variance 
(SDC 5.21‐100) 
  Type II-Minor Variance (up to 30%) 
   City & UGB $2,587.74 
   Plus: Postage $166.00 
  Type III-Major Variance 
   City $6,751.00 
   UGB $10,184.00 
   Plus: Postage $401.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Willamette Greenway 
(SMC 3.3‐300) 

 Type III Greenway Setback Line Establishment without Development 
   City/UGB  $3,071.00 
   Plus: Postage $401.00  
 Type III-Greenway Setback Line already established 
   City $3,071.00 
   UGB $6,501.00 
   Plus: Postage $401.00 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 50 of 80



  Section 8:  Planning Services 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 47 

 Type III-Greenway Setback Line not already established 
   City $6,137.00 
    Plus $622.00/acre 
   UGB $8,779.00 
    Plus $622.00/acre 
   Plus: Postage $401.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Zoning Map Amendment 
(SDC 5.22‐100) The Development will process citizens-initiated zoning map amendments, for properties 
where the zoning and plan designation are in conflict, three times a year beginning in January.  There will 
be no application fee for applicants who choose to utilize this program, however a Type III notification fee 
will be required for each application. 

  Type III City $5,506.00 
   UGB $10,797.00 
   Plus: Postage $401.00 
 

For a copy of the City Council Ordinances please contact the Current Development Division at (541)726-3753. 

  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 51 of 80



Section 9:  Utilities 

Page 48   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Section 9:  Utilities 
The following fees shall be charged for the Utilities activities of the City: 
 

User Fees 
 
Wastewater and Regional Wastewater (Sewer) Rates  
Resolution 2015‐12 

Beginning with bills rendered on or after July 1, 2015 wastewater (sewer) charges shall be as 
follows:  

2.5% Local Wastewater Rate Increase 
2.0% Regional Wastewater Rate Increase 

 

 
Stormwater (Drainage) Rates  
Resolutions 2015‐12 

Beginning with bills rendered on or after July 1, 2015 stormwater (drainage) charges shall be as 
follows: 

3.7% Local Stormwater Rate Increase 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 52 of 80



  Section 9:  Utilities 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 49 

 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 53 of 80



Section 9:  Utilities 

Page 50   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Industrial Pretreatment  
(SMC 4.020) (1)  
Purpose. It is the purpose of this section to reduce the City’s cost of implementation of the pretreatment 
program through a system of equitable charges or fees to be paid by the industrial users of the City 
sewerage system who are subject to this section for certain service. The applicable charges or fees shall 
be set forth on a schedule of fees adopted by resolution of the Council. 
 (2) Adoption. 
  (a) Setting up and operating the pretreatment program. 
  (b) Sampling, monitoring, inspections, and surveillance procedures. 
  (c) Reviewing accidental discharge procedures and construction. 
  (d) Reviewing and acting upon permit applications. 
  (e) Other services as the City manager may deem necessary to carry out the requirements 

contained herein. 
 
(SMC 4.008, 4.070) No industrial user shall discharge wastewater containing restricted substances into the 
City sewerage system, in excess of limitations specified by conditions of its discharge permit or published 
by the City manager. The City manager shall publish and revise from time to time rules which designate 
and establish limits for restricted substances. At all times, these rules shall cover and be at least as strict 
as those for pollutants as defined in state or federal regulations. Discharge limits or rules in effect and 
incorporated into any discharge permit shall remain in effect for that permit until it expires, except as 
modified pursuant to section 4.024. The City manager is authorized and directed to promulgate such rules 
and regulations as may be deemed necessary or proper to carry out the purposes or provisions of sections 
4.002 to 4.094. Nothing in these sections shall prevent the City manager from seeking judicial or 
governmental agency assistance to implement the purposes and provisions of this code. 
 

Annual Permit Fee 
Administrative Rule 4.0503 R4.0503‐C (1) A nonrefundable annual permit fee in the amount listed in the 
most recent amendment of the Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 340-045-0075:  Permit Fee Schedule 
Table 70E (Annual Pretreatment Fees-Significant Industrial User) shall be paid to the City by each 
permitted Significant Industrial User(SIO).  The fee shall be due annually on August 1 and will be applied 
to each SIU specified in the City’s annual DEQ Pretreatment Report for the previous calendar year. 

 
OAR 340-045-0075 Permit Fee Schedule 
Table 70E Annual Pretreatment Fee 
   Significant Industrial User $ 637 per industry 

 

Administrative Rule 4.0503, Appendix B 

Resample and Analytical Cost 
 Barometer Sample Type Cost 
 Metals1 (except Mercury) - Composite $118.00 
 Metals1  (except Mercury) - Grab $152.00 
 Mercury2 Composite $122.00 
 Mercury2 Grab $182.00 
 Silica Gel Treated Hexane Ext. Material - Grab $274.00 
 Cyanide Composite $148.00 

                                                           
1
 The above cost for metals includes the cost of analysis for one metal; each additional metal analysis 

would cost $14. 
2
 Cost for mercury includes sampling.  If mercury is included with sampling for other metals, additional 

cost for mercury is $18. 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 54 of 80



  Section 9:  Utilities 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 51 

 Cyanide Grab $182.00 
 pH Grab $149.00 
 Phenols Composite $146.00 
 Phenols Grab $181.00 
 Volatile Organics (EPA 624) - Grab $283.00 
 Semi-volatile Organics (EPA 625) - Grab $433.00 
 BTEX Grab $163.00 

The costs in the above table will be reviewed annually, and adjusted when necessary 

Administrative Rule 4.0503, Appendix A 
Enforcement Response Guide - Effluent Limitations or General Discharge Prohibitions (See Notes 2, 3, 4, 5, 
6. 7. 8. 11. 12) 
Nature of Violation 
 First month with violation(s) in a 12-month period 
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Second month with violation(s) in a 12-month period  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $100 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Third month with a violation(s) in a 12-month period 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $200 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Fourth month with violation(s) in a 12-month period 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $300 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Fifth month with violation(s) in a 12-month period 
  Response    Notice of Violation Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty   $500 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Sixth to twelfth month with violation(s) in a 12-month period 
  Response  Notice of Violation (Administrative Compliance Order remains in effect) 

  Penalty   $500 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any series of violations of effluent limitations which meet the definition of Significant 

Noncompliance  
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty   See Note 5 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any exceedance of effluent limitations which causes danger, interference, pass-through, 

or sludge contamination 
 Response  Administrative Compliance Order or civil 

litigation or terminate service 
  Penalty   $2,500 per pollutant per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 55 of 80



Section 9:  Utilities 

Page 52   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Failure to Report Noncompliance 
(See Note 12) 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to immediately report any slug load, spill or discharge that could cause 

interference or pass-through, (no harm)  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to immediately report any spill, slug load, or discharge causing interference or 

pass-through, or other harm  
 Response   Administrative Compliance Order 

  Penalty   $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to report a violation of a permit effluent limitation within 24 hours  
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to report a violation of a permit effluent limitation within 3 days  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to provide a certified laboratory report and written report within 5 days of a 

permit effluent limitation violation 
  Response   Notice of Violation  
  Penalty   $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to provide a written report of an effluent limitation violation as required by a 

Notice of Violation  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $300 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any noncompliance report late by more than 30 days (SNC) 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty   $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 

Failure to Submit Other Required Reports 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to notify the City of a substantial change in volume or character of pollutants in 

discharge 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to notify the City of a batch discharge  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 56 of 80



  Section 9:  Utilities 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 53 

 Failure to report a slug discharge within 24 hours  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to notify the City of the disposal of over 500 gallons of wastewater to any other 

person in a period of 12 consecutive months 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to obtain prior written permission for discharge of any hazardous waste, subject 

to exemptions in City Code 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $1,000 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to report the discharge of any hazardous waste within 180 days, subject to 

exemptions in City Code  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Two or more failures to submit required reports or notifications in a 12-month period 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order (See Note 2) 
  Penalty  $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to report all monitoring data  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
General Reporting Requirements 
Nature of Violation 
 Any report (other than a noncompliance report) late by more than 5 days but less than 

15 days  
  Response   Telephone Call 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any report (other than a noncompliance report) late by 15 to 30 days 
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any report (other than a noncompliance report) late by more than 30 days (SNC)  
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Any incomplete or inaccurate report, or any report improperly signed or certified 
  Response   Telephone Call 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 57 of 80



Section 9:  Utilities 

Page 54   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

 Any incomplete or inaccurate report, or any report improperly signed or certified after 
telephone notice by City 

  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $100 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Pollution Management Practices 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to implement required pollution management practices (first notice) 
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to implement required pollution management practices (second notice) 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 per month 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Record Keeping 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to maintain required records for three years 

Response  Notice of Violation 
  Penalty $200 
  Personnel  City Manager 
 
Monitoring 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to conduct self-monitoring as required in permit 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 per sample day and conduct monitoring 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Improper sampling or analytical procedures used, no intent 
  Response    Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Improper sampling or analytical procedures used, intent 
  Response  Administrative Compliance Order (See Note 10, Page 12) 
  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to install required monitoring equipment or facilities, delay less than 30 days  
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to install required monitoring equipment or facilities, delay more than 30 days 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 58 of 80



  Section 9:  Utilities 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 55 

 Failure to install required monitoring equipment or facilities, delay more than 90 days  
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Falsification 
Nature of Violation 
 Making any false statement, representation, or certification in any application, record, 

report, plan or other document; or falsifying, tampering with or rendering inaccurate 
any monitoring device 

  Response   Notice of Violation (See Note 9) 
  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Unpermitted Discharge 
Nature of Violation 
 Industrial User unaware of requirement; no harm   
  Response   Telephone call. Permit application sent 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Industrial User unaware of requirement; results in harm 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to apply for permit within 30 days after notice from City 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to apply for permit within 30 days after Notice of Violation 
  Response   Terminate Service 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Industrial User aware of requirement; no harm 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $300 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Industrial User aware of requirement, results in harm 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Permit Reissuance 
Nature of Violation 
 Application for permit reissuance late by more than 15 days (due 90 days prior to 

expiration date) 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $100 
  Personnel   City Manager 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 59 of 80



Section 9:  Utilities 

Page 56   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Dilution 
Nature of Violation 
 Waste stream diluted in lieu of treatment; initial violation 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $300 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Waste stream diluted in lieu of treatment; recurring 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Entry Denial 
Nature of Violation 
 Entry to premises or access to sampling location denied 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel  City Manager 
 
Compliance Schedules 
Nature of Violation 
 Compliance date missed by less than 30 days  
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Compliance date missed by more than 30 days 
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $200 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Compliance date missed by more than 90 days (SNC) 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order 
  Penalty  $500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to meet a compliance date listed in an Administrative Compliance Order 
  Response   Administrative Compliance Order in effect 
  Penalty  $500 per day 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 
Mobile Waste Hauler 
(See Note 10) 
Nature of Violation 
 Discharge of wastes at unpermitted discharge point (first violation)  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $1,000 
  Personnel   City Manager 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 60 of 80



  Section 9:  Utilities 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 57 

 Discharge of wastes at unpermitted discharge point (second violation)  
  Response  Notice of Violation, Permit revoked; unauthorized 

   to discharge at WPCF; letter of notification to 
hauler; copy of letter to DEQ 

  Penalty  $2,500 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Discharge of wastes at unpermitted time (first violation in 12 months) 
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Discharge of wastes at unpermitted time (second and subsequent violations in 12 
months)  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to submit or properly complete manifest at time of disposal 
  Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
  Penalty   None 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to submit or properly complete manifest within 10 days of Notice of 
Noncompliance  
  Response   Notice of Violation 
  Penalty  $50 per manifest 
  Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to submit or properly complete manifest at time of disposal two or more times in 

one calendar month 
Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty  $200 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Discharge of other than domestic or septage wastes without prior approval 
Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty  $500 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Failure to supply copies of required documents to City by due date 
Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty  $200 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Failure to clean up spilled material at disposal site 
Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty   Twice cost to City of labor and materials to clean up site 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Mobile Waste Hauler discharging without a permit  
Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty   $1,000 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Failure to pay waste disposal charges within 30 days of mailing date 
Response   Letter regarding delinquent account with copy of billing 
Penalty  $5.00 or 5% of past due amount, whichever is greater 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 61 of 80



Section 9:  Utilities 

Page 58   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Personnel   City Manager 
 Failure to pay waste disposal charges within 60 days of mailing date  

Response  Certified letter, demanding payment within 10 days; cash, 
money order, cashier’s check only 

Penalty  $5.00 or 5% of past due amount, whichever is greater 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Failure to pay waste disposal charges within 10 days of mailing date of above certified 
demand letter 

Response Permit revoked, unauthorized to discharge at 
WPCF; letter of notification to hauler; copy of 
letter to DEQ 

Penalty  Unauthorized to discharge at WPCF (See Note 10) 
Personnel   City Manager 

 
Other Violations 
Nature of Violation 
 Failure to comply with any other condition or requirement of a Wastewater Discharge 

Permit or Mobile Waste Hauler Permit not included above (no intent) 
Response   Notice of Noncompliance 
Penalty   None 
Personnel   City Manager 

 Failure to comply with any other condition or requirement of a Wastewater Discharge 
Permit or Mobile Waste Hauler Permit (intent) 

Response   Notice of Violation 
Penalty  $200 
Personnel   City Manager 

 
NOTES:  Definitions (for other definitions see Springfield City Code 4.004), City Manager: City of Springfield 
City Manager, SNC: Significant Noncompliance (Springfield City Code 4.068), WPCF: Eugene/Springfield 
Water Pollution Control Facility, DEQ: Oregon Department of Environmental Quality, POTW: Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works 
 

Other Rates 
Solid Waste 
(SMC 4.408, Resolution 2014‐)(1) Charges for the collection of garbage and refuse as established herein 
shall be payable monthly in advance. In the event that any person fails to pay the collector of garbage and 
refuse for the services rendered by the collector for a period of 45 days, then the collector may prepare a 
statement to that effect, and to the effect that he is terminating the service to such person and shall 
deliver a copy thereof to the City manager. The City shall thereupon have the burden of seeing to it that 
such person for whom the service is terminated disposes of his garbage in accordance with the terms of 
sections 4.400 to 4.430. The collector shall have no duty to commence serving such person again until the 
collector shall have been reimbursed for the delinquent payments. 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 62 of 80



  Section 9:  Utilities 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 59 

 
 

(11/01/2014)

PICKUPS PER WEEK

Number of Cans 1 2 3 4 5 6

1 Mini-Can (21-Gallon) 9.51 1 Mini-Can EOW (21-Gallon) 7.68

County User Fee 2.09 County User Fee 1.57
Total 11.60 Total 9.25

1 Can EOW (35-Gallon) 8.61

County User Fee 2.89

11.50

1 Can/Cart (35-Gallon) 12.71 25.42 38.13 50.84 63.55 76.26

County User Fee 3.84 7.68 11.52 15.36 19.20 23.04
Total 16.55 33.10 49.65 66.20 82.75 99.30

2 Cans 25.42 50.84 76.26 101.68 127.10 152.52

County User Fee 7.68 15.36 23.04 30.72 38.40 46.08
Total 33.10 66.20 99.30 132.40 165.50 198.60

3 Cans 38.13 76.26 114.39 152.52 190.65 228.78

County User Fee 11.52 23.04 34.56 46.08 57.60 69.12
Total 49.65 99.30 148.95 198.60 248.25 297.90

4 Cans 50.84 101.68 152.52 203.36 254.20 305.04

County User Fee 15.36 30.72 46.08 61.44 76.80 92.16
Total 66.20 132.40 198.60 264.80 331.00 397.20

5 Cans 63.55 127.10 190.65 254.20 317.75 381.30

County User Fee 19.20 38.40 57.60 76.80 96.00 115.20
Total 82.75 165.50 248.25 331.00 413.75 496.50

6 Cans 76.26 152.52 228.78 305.04 381.30 457.56

County User Fee 23.04 46.08 69.12 92.16 115.20 138.24
Total 99.30 198.60 297.90 397.20 496.50 595.80

65-Gallon Cart 17.54 35.08 52.62 70.16 87.70 105.24

County User Fee 6.56 13.12 19.68 26.24 32.80 39.36
Total 24.10 48.25 72.35 96.45 120.55 144.70

95-Gallon Cart 21.24 42.48 63.72 84.96 106.20 127.44

County User Fee 9.51 19.02 28.53 38.04 47.55 57.06
Total 30.75 61.50 92.25 123.05 153.80 184.55

1 Can/Cart - Premium 15.25 65-Premium 26.00 95-Premium 40.90

County User Fee 4.10 CUF 7.25 CUF 8.95
Total 19.35 Total 33.25 Total 49.85

Condo/MHP 35G 10.86 65-Condo 15.64 95-Condo 19.19

County User Fee 3.84 CUF 6.56 CUF 9.51
Total 14.70 Total 22.20 Total 28.70

SPRINGFIELD CAN/CART RATES

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 63 of 80



Section 9:  Utilities 

Page 60   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

 
  

(11/01/2014)          Pickups Per Week
Container Size 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

1.0 Yard 69.53$       135.71$     201.64$        265.27$      331.55$      394.53$      461.26$       

County User Fee 22.42$       44.84$      67.26$          89.68$        112.10$      134.52$      156.94$       

Total 91.95$       180.55$     268.90$        354.95$      443.65$      529.05$      618.20$       

Each Additional 83.40$       150.75$     223.10$        296.40$      368.50$      440.35$      513.15$       

E.O.W. 26.75$       + 20.40$      = 47.15$          

1.5 Yard 100.39$     191.23$     282.57$        373.71$      464.80$      555.74$      639.43$       

County User Fee 33.66$       67.32$      100.98$        134.64$      168.30$      201.96$      235.62$       

Total 134.05$     258.55$     383.55$        508.35$      633.10$      757.70$      875.05$       

Each Additional 121.45$     235.45$     361.95$        461.15$      577.40$      690.55$      844.95$       

E.O.W. 38.50$       + 30.20$      = 68.70$          

2.0 Yard 129.00$     246.45$     363.60$        480.95$      598.20$      715.50$      823.20$       

County User Fee 44.90$       89.75$      134.65$        179.50$      224.40$      269.30$      314.15$       

Total 173.90$     336.20$     498.25$        660.45$      822.60$      984.80$      1,137.35$    

Each Additional 157.95$     306.40$     462.55$        602.95$      751.30$      899.45$      1,045.95$    

E.O.W. 43.55$       + 40.00$      = 83.55$          

3.0 Yard 180.58$     345.36$     504.59$        674.22$      838.85$      1,003.23$    1,153.16$    

County User Fee 67.32$       134.64$     201.96$        269.23$      336.55$      403.87$      471.19$       

Total 247.90$     480.00$     706.55$        943.45$      1,175.40$    1,407.10$    1,624.35$    

Each Additional 226.10$     435.15$     645.65$        859.00$      1,077.95$    1,290.75$    1,500.05$    

E.O.W. 67.15$       + 59.65$      = 126.80$        

4.0 Yard 224.80$     431.20$     636.95$        842.80$      1,048.55$    1,254.40$    1,445.10$    

County User Fee 89.75$       179.50$     269.30$        359.05$      448.80$      538.55$      628.30$       

Total 314.55$     610.70$     906.25$        1,201.85$    1,497.35$    1,792.95$    2,073.40$    

Each Additional 288.15$     561.35$     833.80$        1,106.10$    1,387.95$    1,651.45$    1,921.00$    

E.O.W. 81.90$       + 79.00$      = 160.90$        

5.0 Yard 263.08$     505.61$     747.34$        967.92$      1,230.65$    1,472.48$    1,697.36$    

County User Fee 112.17$     224.39$     336.56$        448.78$      560.95$      673.17$      785.34$       

Total 375.25$     730.00$     1,083.90$     1,416.70$    1,791.60$    2,145.65$    2,482.70$    

Each Additional 241.50$     666.45$     990.80$        1,315.25$    1,639.50$    1,963.90$    2,287.25$    

E.O.W. 93.85$       + 98.05$      = 191.90$        

6.0 Yard 296.35$     570.15$     843.35$        1,116.45$    1,389.80$    1,662.95$    1,917.90$    

County User Fee 134.65$     269.30$     403.90$        538.55$      673.20$      807.85$      942.55$       

Total 431.00$     839.45$     1,247.25$     1,655.00$    2,063.00$    2,470.80$    2,860.45$    

Each Additional 414.70$     778.15$     1,133.05$     1,538.55$    1,915.45$    2,294.70$    2,670.35$    

E.O.W. 103.45$     + 116.90$     = 220.35$        

SPRINGFIELD CONTAINER RATES

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 64 of 80



  Section 9:  Utilities 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 61 

 

 

(11/01/2014)
Compactor Size 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

2.0 Yard 247.80$     495.60$        743.35$        991.15$        1,238.95$     1,486.75$     1,734.50$     

County User Fee 103.05$     206.10$        309.15$        412.20$        515.25$        618.30$        721.35$        

Total 350.85$     701.70$        1,052.50$     1,403.35$     1,754.20$     2,105.05$     2,455.85$     

E.O.W. 86.05$       + 93.10$          = 179.15$        

On-Call 41.85$       + 47.85$          = 89.70$          

3.0 Yard 387.76$     775.52$        1,080.06$     1,439.41$     1,800.07$     2,160.12$     2,520.12$     

County User Fee 181.19$     362.38$        626.79$        836.39$        1,044.63$     1,253.58$     1,462.53$     

Total 568.95$     1,137.90$     1,706.85$     2,275.80$     2,844.70$     3,413.70$     3,982.65$     

E.O.W. 118.44$     + 151.66$        = 270.10$        

On-Call 62.84$       + 71.91$          = 134.75$        

4.0 Yard 518.21$     962.45$        1,443.65$     1,924.90$     2,406.10$     2,887.30$     3,368.55$     

County User Fee 241.59$     557.15$        835.75$        1,114.30$     1,392.90$     1,671.45$     1,950.05$     

Total 759.80$     1,519.60$     2,279.40$     3,039.20$     3,799.00$     4,558.75$     5,318.60$     

E.O.W. 158.80$     + 202.20$        = 361.00$        

On-Call 83.97$       + 95.88$          = 179.85$        

Pickups Per Week

SPRINGFIELD COMPACTING CONTAINER RATES

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 65 of 80



Section 9:  Utilities 

Page 62   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

 

(11/01/2014)

Extra or

Basic User Overflow On-Call

Container Size Charge Fee Charge Charge

1.0 Yard 12.62 9.98 22.60 22.60

1.5 Yard 18.10 14.85 32.95 32.95

2.0 Yard 20.45 19.60 40.05 40.05

3.0 Yard 31.55 29.20 60.75 60.75

4.0 Yard 38.33 38.72 77.05 77.05

5.0 Yard 43.76 48.04 91.80 91.80

6.0 Yard 48.09 57.26 105.35 105.35

Can Charges

1 Can 2.77 1.08 3.85

2 Cans 5.48 2.22 7.70

3 Cans 8.24 3.31 11.55

4 Cans 11.01 4.39 15.40

5 Cans 13.72 5.53 19.25

Major Appliances Stove - Refrigerator - Washer - Dryer - Hot Water Heater

Curbside 28.40 23.60 52.00

Backyard 38.40 23.60 62.00

Furniture Sofas - Chairs 

Curbside 15.40 10.60 26.00

Backyard 25.40 10.60 36.00

Mattress & Box Spring (regardless of size)

Each piece 10.00 15.00 25.00

Brush, Boxes, Demolition

Will be charged by volume and time.  Volume equated to 32 gallon cans

and time spent in loading.

SPRINGFIELD EXTRA CHARGE RATES

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 66 of 80



  Section 9:  Utilities 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 63 

 

(11/01/2014)

Drop Box Size & Description Basic Charge User Fee

20 YD 124.00 75.55 per ton

30 YD 186.00 75.55 per ton

40 YD 248.00 75.55 per ton

Stationary Compactor

Charge Per Cubic Yard 6.19 75.55 per ton

Box Delivery Fee (Any Size) 24.30

Spotting Fee & Relocate Box 24.30

Demurrage Charge (Box Rental)

  Beginning after the seventh day 6.20 per day

  Excluding Sunday and Holidays

SPRINGFIELD DROP BOX CHARGES

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 67 of 80



Section 9:  Utilities 

Page 64   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Fuel Tax 
Motor Vehicle Fuel Dealer’s Business License 
(SMC 7.504(b)) No dealer shall sell, use or distribute any motor vehicle fuel until he/she has secured a 
dealer’s license as required herein. [Section 7.506 added by Ordinance 6042, enacted March 10, 2003.] 

 Per gallon of such motor vehicle sold, used or distributed $0.03 
 
Failure to Secure (Motor Fuel Dealer’s Business) License 
(SMC 7.510(b))  If a dealer sells, distributes or uses any motor vehicle fuel without first filing the 
certificate and obtaining the license required by section 7.506 

   Amount of tax determined to be due plus a penalty of 100% of the tax. 
 
Payment of (Motor Fuel Dealer’s) Tax and Delinquency 
(SMC 7.518(2), 7.518 (3))  Except as provided in subsections (3) and (4) of this section, if payment of the 
license tax is not paid as required by subsection (1) of this section, a penalty of 1 percent of such license 
tax shall be assessed and be immediately due and payable. Except as provided in subsection (4) of this 
section, if the payment of the tax and penalty, if any, is not made on or before the 1st day of the next 
month following that month in which payment is due, a further penalty of 10 percent of the tax shall be 
assessed. Said penalty shall be in addition to the penalty provided for in subsection (2) of this section and 
shall be immediately due and payable. 

 
Failure to File (Motor Fuel Dealer’s) Monthly Statement 
(SMC 7.522) If a dealer fails to file any statement required by section 7.520, the tax administrator shall 
proceed forthwith to determine from as many available sources as the tax administrator determines 
reasonable the amount of motor vehicle fuel sold distributed or used by such dealer for the period 
unreported, and such determination shall in any proceeding be prima facie evidence of the amount of fuel 
sold, distributed or used. The tax administrator shall immediately assess the dealer for the license tax 
upon the amount determined, adding thereto a penalty of 10 percent of the tax. The penalty shall be 
cumulative to other penalties provided in this code 

 

Telecommunication Business License Tax, Fees, and Utility License 

Comprehensive Telecommunication Placement Plan Review Fees 
(SMC 3.266 (5)) At the election of the applicant, the applicant may file a comprehensive 
telecommunications placement plan which describes all facilities it presently intends to install. Such plan 
is subject to approval of the Public Works director and may be modified from time to time by the 
applicant with the approval of the Public Works director.  

 $704.00 
Telecommunication Business License Tax  
(SMC  4.707 (1) and (3) added by Ordinance No. 6323, enacted July 21, 2014 .  See also SMC 4.602 Utility 
License Required.)  
(1) All persons providing utility services in the City shall pay to the City of Springfield a utility tax in the 
amount of five percent of gross revenues, as herein defined, subject to limitations in other state or federal 
laws. 

  Gross revenue 5% 

(3) All utilities owned and operated by the City of Springfield, except a municipal utility as defined in ORS 
757.005(1), shall pay to the City of Springfield a utility tax fixed by resolution of the Council. (Fee set by 
Resolution 11‐23, June 20, 2011, Resolution 1, Ordinance 4. April 1, 2013, Resolution 2013‐15, November 
1, 2013). 

City of Springfield utilities   Gross Revenue 3% 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 68 of 80



  Section 9:  Utilities 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 65 

Compensation Fee for Use of Public Ways  
(SMC  4.706 (1) added by Ordinance No. 6311, enacted March 3, 2014; amended by Ordinance No. 6323, 

enacted July 21, 2014.See also SMC 4.602 Utility License Required.)  Fee set by Resolution 11‐23, June 20, 

2011. 

All persons not parties to a franchise or public way use agreement, and occupying the public ways for 

placement of utility facilities but not providing utility service within the City shall pay a fee, in an amount 

fixed by resolution of the Council for each foot or portion thereof occupied, subject to limitations in other 

state or federal laws. 

 Per foot $4.00 

Telecommunication License Application Fee 

(SMC 4.702, Ordinance No. 5891, enacted May 18, 1998; amended by Ordinance No. 6203, enacted July 
16, 2007) 
Any applicant for a license, including a renewal or amendment of an existing license. An applicant whose 
license or franchise application has been withdrawn, abandoned or denied within 60 days of its 
application and review fee written request, shall be refunded the balance of its deposit under this section, 
less: 

  New and including renewal of existing License(s) $50.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Compensation for City Property 
(SMC 4.710 Ordinance No. 5891, enacted May 18, 1998; amended by Ordinance No. 6203, enacted July 16, 
2007) If the right is granted, by lease, license, franchise or other manner, to use and occupy City property 
other than the public ways for the installation of facilities. 

  Fee assessed per property 
  

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 69 of 80



Section 10:  System Development Charges 

Page 66   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Section 10:  System Development Charges 
The System Development Charges are annually increased by an inflationary rate on July 1 of each 
year.  
The following fees shall be charged for the development activities of the City: 
 
Calculating the SDC 
The SDC charges for each development is calculated using the worksheet shown as Exhibit 2. 
 
The Storm Sewer SDC is based on square feet of impervious surface area. The Sanitary Sewer SDC is based 
on drainage fixture units as defined by the April 2000 Oregon Amendments to the 1997 Uniform Plumbing 
Code. The Transportation SDC is based on average weekday trip generation rates as published in the 
latest edition of the Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual. More detailed information on 
calculating the fees for each system is shown below: 

 
Storm Drainage 
The storm drainage SDC is paid by all new residential, commercial, and industrial development.  he charge 
is based on the square footage of the impervious surface area of the development. Impervious surfaces 
typically consist of concrete, asphalt, and roofing. The cost per square foot of impervious surface area is 
$0.633. In applying the SDC, the cost per square foot is applied to the amount of impervious surface area 
measured at the time the building permit is issued. 

 
FORMULA: STORM DRAINAGE SDC = IMPERVIOUS SQUARE FEET x $0.633/SQUARE FOOT 

 
A 50% credit will be given for the portion of impervious area served by a drywell sized and 
constructed to City of Springfield Standard Construction Specifications. A SDC credit will also be 
given for peak ten-year runoff reduction based on documentation provided by the developer 
and approved by the City.  
 
Sanitary Sewer-City 
The charge is paid by all new commercial, industrial, and residential development. To calculate the impact 
of new development on the sanitary sewer system, the City uses the number of drainage fixture units 
(DFU) as the basis of the charge. 

 
Residential rate increases to $218.05 per DFU. 

FORMULA: Residential City sanitary sewer SDC = number of DFU x $218.05 
 

Commercial/Industrial is $218.05 per DFU. 
FORMULA: Commercial/industrial City sanitary sewer SDC = number of DFU x $218.05 

 
Drainage fixture unit (DFU) calculation table 

 Fixture type  Unit Equivalent 
 Bathtub  3 
 Drinking Fountain 1 
 Floor Drain, Floor Sink 3 
 Interceptors for Grease/Oil/Solids/etc. 3 
 Interceptors for Sand/Auto Wash/etc. 6 
 Laundry Tub 2 
 Clothes washer/Mop Sink 3 
 Clothes washer- 3 or more (each) 6 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 70 of 80



  Section 10:  System Development Charges 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 67 

 Mobile Home Park trap (1 per trailer) 12 
 Receptor for Refrigerator 1 
 Receptor for Commercial sink/dishwasher/etc. 3 

 Shower, Single stall 2 
 Shower, Gang (number of heads) 2 
 Sink:  Commercial, Residential Kitchen 3 
 Sink: Commercial bar 2 
 Sink: Wash basin/Double lavatory 2 
 Sink: Single lavatory/Residential bar 1 
 Urinal, Stall/Wall 5 
 Toilet, Public installation 6 
 Toilet, Private installation 3 

 
Transportation  
This SDC is charged on new commercial, industrial, professional, and residential development or change 
of use. It helps support expansion of arterial and collector roads, traffic signals, and street lighting. The 
SDC is based on the trip rate of the specific type of development and the cost per trip.  The cost per trip is 
$340.38 for all use types. A new trip factor is applied to omit short pass-by trips, diverted trips, and other 
linked trips. Trip rates for developments are based on the current Institute for Transportation Engineers' 
(ITE's) Trip Generation Manual, or the developer can submit a trip generation study outlined and 
approved by the City of Springfield. A partial list of trip rates is in the Transportation Fee Schedule, Exhibit 
3. 
 

FORMULA: Number of Trips X Unit X $340.38 X New Trip Factor 
 
Sanitary Sewer (MWMC) 
The Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) Facility Equalization Charge is a 
reimbursement fee for the reserve capacity that was constructed to serve new growth. This fee is 
designed to reimburse the community for its equity in the treatment plant's reserve capacity.  Newly 
developed properties, change of use, or other properties that are connecting to the wastewater 
treatment system for the first time will pay the equalization charge. New development receives credit for 
past bond payments on existing debt and for contributions to qualified offsite public improvements. See 
Exhibit 4, Attachments C. The Flow Estimation Units (FEU) is used for the MWMC Facility Equalization 
Charge. 
 

Formula: NUMBER OF FEU x COST PER FEU + $10 ADMIN. FEE 
 
Administrative Cost 
The SDC legislation allows the City to recover its costs for complying with the required changes.  A five 
percent (5%) administrative fee will be added to cover the cost of developing the SDC, establishing 
accounting mechanisms and administering the ongoing program. 
 
Residential SDC Payment Deferral Program 
(SMC 3.412)(4) The purchaser of a home or multifamily dwelling may elect to finance system 
development charges over a period of 10 years, billed in equal semiannual installments, plus interest and 
fees. 
  Interest Rate –Unbonded Average City Earnings Rate plus 2% 
 Interest Rate – Bonded Bond Rate plus 1.5% 
 Deferral Administrative Fee $50.00 
 Installment Late Payment Fee 10% of Overdue Installment 

 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 71 of 80



Section 10:  System Development Charges 

Page 68   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Short-Term SDC Payment Deferral Program 
(City Policy) Whenever the total SDC due for a Building Permit exceeds $10,000, the applicant may elect to 
enter into a short-term SDC Deferral Agreement.  The Agreement is in the form of a potential lien and 
must be signed prior to Building Permit issuance.  The SDC Deferral Agreement allows the applicant to pay 
a minimum of $10,000 toward the total SDC due prior to the City issuing the Building Permit.  The balance 
of the SDC due must be paid in full prior to the City issuing a Certificate of Occupancy for the building. 

  Initial SDC Payment $10,000.00 at Building Permit Issuance 
  Final SDC PaymentBalance of SDC Due prior to Certificate of Occupancy 
 
SDC Credit Certificate Administration Fees 
(SMC 3.417) (1)In the event a credit authorized under section 3.416(2) is greater than the amount of 
the charge due, the City shall upon request of the developer, issue to the developer a certificate, 
documenting the amount of the credit in excess of the charge. 
 (2) Such certificate may be redeemed by the developer and applied to future charges for 
that type of capital improvement, provided such redemption shall occur not later than 10 years after the 
date of issuance of the certificate. 
 (3) Any developer issued a certificate shall pay to the City, at the time of issuance, and 
annually thereafter until such certificate is redeemed, an administrative fee fixed by resolution of the 
Council. Failure to timely pay such annual fee shall not invalidate a certificate, but no certificate shall be 
transferred or redeemed until all annual fees shall have been paid. 
 (4) The certificate may be redeemed in whole or in parts. If the certificate is redeemed in 
part, the City shall, upon delivery of the certificate, issue a new certificate documenting the remaining 
credit available. Such reissued certificate shall expire 10 years after the date of the original certificate, and 
shall be considered a new certificate for purposes of the administrative fee. 
 (5) Such certificate may be transferred, in whole or in part, to another person, provided, 
however, that no such transfer shall be effective until the holder of the certificate shall surrender the 
same and a new certificate or certificates issued. 

  Initial SDC Credit Certificate Fee $250.00 
  Annual Certificate Maintenance Fee $250.00 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 72 of 80



Exhibits 

Page 69   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Exhibits 
Exhibit 1 page 1

 

JOURNAL OR JOB NUMBER

NAME OR COMPANY:

MAP & TAX LOT NUMBER:

DEVELOPMENT TYPE:  

NEW DEVELOPED AREA (S.F.): MWMC: 630 ITE: 630

EXISTING DEVELOPED AREA (S.F.): MWMC: 630 ITE: 630

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS SURFACE (S.F.): LOT SIZE (S.F.):  

1. STORM DRAINAGE

NEW IMPERVIOUS SQ. FT. 

A.  REIMBURSEMENT COST:

IMPERVIOUS SQ. FT. x 0.258$   PER SF $0.00

B.  IMPROVEMENT COST:

IMPERVIOUS SQ. FT. x 0.375$   PER SF $0.00

Cost per SF= 0.633$   TOTAL STORM DRAINAGE SDC: $0.00 1178

2. SANITARY SEWER-CITY (see reverse side)

A.  REIMBURSEMENT COST:

NUMBER OF DFU's x 146.53$     PER DFU $0.00 1183

B.  IMPROVEMENT COST:

NUMBER OF DFU's x 71.52$       PER DFU $0.00 1184

218.05$     

TOTAL LOCAL WASTEWATER SDC: -$                     $0.00

3. TRANSPORTATION

BLDG AREA TGSF x TRIP RATE x COST PER ADT x NEW TRIP FACTOR

NEW:

A.  REIMBURSEMENT COST:

0.00 x 31.45 x 16.14$   PER TRIP x 0.95 NTF $0.00

B.  IMPROVEMENT COST:

0.00 x 31.45 x 324.24$ PER TRIP x 0.95 NTF $0.00

EXISTING:

A.  REIMBURSEMENT COST:

0.00 x 31.45 x 16.14$   PER TRIP x 0.95 NTF $0.00

B.  IMPROVEMENT COST:

0.00 x 31.45 x 324.24$ PER TRIP x 0.95 NTF $0.00

340.38$ TOTAL TRANSPORTATION REIMBURSEMENT SDC: $0.00 1173

TOTAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT SDC: $0.00 1094

TOTAL TRANSPORTATION SDC: -$                     $0.00

4. SANITARY SEWER - MWMC
NEW:

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $100.49 PER FEU $0.00

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $1,263.95 PER FEU $0.00

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $19.35 PER FEU $0.00

EXISTING:

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $100.49 PER FEU $0.00

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $1,263.95 PER FEU $0.00

NUMBER OF FEU's 0.00 x $19.35 PER FEU $0.00

MWMC CREDIT IF APPLICABLE (SEE REVERSE) $0.00 1054

TOTAL MWMC REIMBURSEMENT FEE: $0.00 1186

TOTAL MWMC IMPROVEMENT FEE: $0.00 1187

TOTAL MWMC COMPLIANCE FEE: $0.00

MWMC ADMINISTRATIVE FEE: $0.00 1189

TOTAL MWMC SDC: -$                     $0.00

SUBTOTAL (ADD ITEMS 1, 2, 3, & 4) -$                     

5. ADMINISTRATIVE FEES:

BASE CHARGE (SUBTOTAL ABOVE) x 5% = $0.00

 STORM DRAINAGE ADMINISTRATION FEE: 0.00

 SEWER ADMINISTRATION FEE: 0.00 1079

 TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION FEE: 0.00 1078

LOCAL MWMC ADMINISTRATION FEE: 0.00  

TOTAL SDC CHARGES

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD SYSTEMS DEVELOPMENT CHARGE WORKSHEET

1/1/2015

A. REIMBURSEMENT COST:

LOCATION:

R
eg

is
te

r 

C
od

es

B. IMPROVEMENT COST:

-$                             

A. REIMBURSEMENT COST:

-                           

O
ff

ic
e 

U
se

 

O
nl

y 
Fe

e 

En
try

0

-                         

-                       

-                           

-                       

-                           

C. COMPLIANCE COST:

0

B. IMPROVEMENT COST:

-$                         

C. COMPLIANCE COST:

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 73 of 80



Exhibits 

Page 70   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Exhibit 1 page 2

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 74 of 80



  Exhibits 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 71 

Exhibit 2 

 

PROJECT NUMBER AND TITLE

TYPE OF IMPROVEMENT

DEVELOPER'S NAME

DEVELOPER'S ADDRESS

*

* A copy of the Engineer's project cost estimate must accompany project submission.

$3,000

Sub-total City Plan Examination Deposit

TECHNOLOGY FEE

Total City Plan Examination Deposits

SOIL BEARING TESTS 1/500 L.F. AT $350

SOIL DENSITIES 1/250 L.F. AT $350

CURB ROCK DENSITIES 1/150 L.F. AT $350

BASE ROCK DENSITIES 1/150 L.F. AT $350

CONCRETE CLY. AND SLUMP 1/100 C.Y. AT $250

A.C. EXTRACTIONS PER CLASS 1/500 TON AT $300

ASPHALTIC CONCRETE DENSITIES** 1/150 L.F. AT $300

**   EACH LIFT

Sub-total City Engineering, Inspection and Job Control Testing Fee/Deposit

Sub-total City Engineering, Inspection and Job Control Testing Fee/Deposit w/ Tech Fee

Combined Total Both Sections 1 and 2 - Total Deposit Due

ASPHALTIC JOB MIX TESTING FEE - $414 per project AT $414

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE

TOTAL DUE

PREVIOUS RECEIVED

Project Engineer Signature Date BALANCE DUE

AMOUNT RECEIVED

REMAINING BALANCE

Plans Submitted by:  Signature Date

Effective 04/01/16

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD - DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WORKS

CONSTRUCTION PERMIT DEPOSIT FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

CONTRACTOR

TOTAL COST OF PROJECT TOTAL STREET LENGTH

Section 1: CITY PLAN EXAMINATION DEPOSIT

ESTIMATED COST

$0 TO $100,000

$0 TO $100,000 $4,000

$100,001 AND OVER $3,000 + 1% OF PROJECT OVER $100,000

5% of Sub-total City Plan Examination Deposit

Section 2: CITY ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION DEPOSIT

ESTIMATED COST

$100,001 AND OVER $4,000 + 3% OF PROJECT OVER $100,000

JOB CONTROL TESTING FEES AND DEPOSITS

TESTS PER UNIT NUMBER TESTS

TECHNOLOGY FEE - 5% of Asphaltic Job Mix Testing Fee

TECHNOLOGY FEE - 5% of Sub-total City Engineering, Inspection and Job Control Testing

<                             >

WHEN ASPHALTIC PAVING IS USED THE JOB MIX TESTING FEE AND TECH FEE ARE NON-REFUNDABLE

This form must be signed and dated by both parties below.

<                             >

FEES ARE A DEPOSIT AGAINST ACTUAL PROJECT COSTS AND ARE ONLY AN ESTIMATE.   ALL DIRECT CHARGES WILL BE PAID BY THE DEV ELOPER.
EXCESS DEPOSITS WILL BE REFUNDED, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE ASPHALTIC JOB MIX TESTING FEE AND ITS ASSOCIATED TECH FEE WHICH 

ARE NON-REFUNDABLE.   PAYMENT OF OV ERRUNS ARE DUE IMMEDIATELY UPON REQUEST OF THE CITY AND PRIOR TO PIP APPROV AL. 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 75 of 80



Exhibits 

Page 72   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Code Land Use 
Trip        

Rate Unit
New Trip 

Factor (NTF)

0 0 0

30 TRUCK TERMINAL 81.90 ACRE 1

90 BUS PARK & RIDE 4.50 PARKING SPACE 1

110 GENERAL LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 6.97 TGSF 0.95

120 GENERAL HEAVY INDUSTRIAL 1.50 TGSF 1

130 INDUSTRIAL PARK 6.96 TGSF 1

140 MANUFACTURING 3.82 TGSF 0.95

150 WAREHOUSING 3.56 TGSF 0.95

151 MINI-WAREHOUSE 2.50 TGSF 0.95

170 UTILITIES BUILDING 2.50 TGSF 0.95

210 SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING / DUPLEX 9.57 DU 1

220 GROUND FLOOR APARTMENT 6.65 DU 1

221 LOW-RISE APARTMENT (2 FLOORS) 6.59 DU 1

222 HIGH-RISE APARTMENT (10 OR MORE FL) 4.20 DU 1

230 RES. CONDOMINIUM/TOWNHOUSE 5.81 DU 1

240 MOBILE HOME PARK 4.99 DU 1

251 ELDERLY HOUSING - DETACHED 3.71 DU 1

252 ELDERLY HOUSING - ATTACHED 3.48 DU 1

253 CONGREGATE ELDERLY CARE FACILITY 2.02 DU 1

254 ASSISTED LIVING 2.74 BEDS 1

310 HOTEL 8.17 ROOM 0.85

320 MOTEL 9.11 ROOM 1

411 CITY PARK 1.59 ACRE 1

412 COUNTY PARK 2.28 ACRE 1

430 GOLF COURSE 5.04 ACRE 1

435 MULTIPURPOSE RECREATION FACILITY 90.38 ACRE 1

437 BOWLING ALLEY 33.33 TGSF 1

440 ADULT CABARET * TGSF 1

441 LIVE THEATER * TGSF 1

443 MOVIE THEATER W/O MATINEE * SEAT 1

444 MOVIE THEATER W/MATINEE * MOVIE SCREEN 1

445 MULTIPLEX MOVIE THEATER * MOVIE SCREEN 1

488 SOCCER COMPLEX 71.33 FIELD 1

490 TENNIS COURT 31.04 COURT 0.85

Transportation Fee Schedule

Exhibit 3 

 
 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 76 of 80



  Exhibits 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 73 

 

Code Land Use 
Trip        

Rate Unit
New Trip 

Factor (NTF)

491 RACQUET CLUB 38.70 COURT 0.85

492 HEALTH/FITNESS CLUB 32.93 TGSF 0.85

495 RECREATIONAL COMMUNITY CENTER 22.88 TGSF 0.85

520 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1.29 STUDENT 0.85

522 MIDDLE SCHOOL 1.62 STUDENT 0.85

530 HIGH SCHOOL 1.71 STUDENT *

540 JUNIOR/COMM. COLLEGE 1.20 STUDENT *

560 CHURCH/SYNAGOGUE/MOSQUE 9.11 TGSF 1

565 DAY CARE FACILITY 79.26 TGSF 0.7

590 LIBRARY 56.24 TGSF 0.5

591 LODGE/FRATERNAL ORGANIZATION 46.90 TGSF 0.85

610 HOSPITAL 16.50 TGSF 0.85

620 NURSING HOME 2.37 BED 0.95

630 MED/DENTAL CLINIC 31.45 TGSF 0.95

710 GENERAL OFFICE BUILDING 11.01 TGSF 0.9

714 CORPERATE HEADQUARTERS BLDG 7.98 TGSF 0.9

715 SINGLE TENANT OFFICE BLDG 11.57 TGSF 0.9

720 MEDICAL/DENTAL, VET. OFFICE 36.13 TGSF 0.85

730 GOVERNMENT OFFICE BUILDING 68.93 TGSF 0.9

732 US POST OFFICE 108.19 TGSF 0.75

733 GOVERNMENT OFFICE COMPLEX 27.92 TGSF 0.9

750 OFFICE PARK 11.42 TGSF 0.9

770 BUSINESS PARK 12.76 TGSF 0.9

812 BLDG. MATERIALS & LUMBER 45.16 TGSF 0.75

813 DISCOUNT SUPERSTORE 53.13 TGSF 0.72

814 SPECIALTY RETAIL CENTER 44.32 TSFGLA 0.75

815 FREE STANDING DISCOUNT STORE 57.24 TGSF 0.65

816 HARDWARE/PAINT STORE 51.29 TGSF 0.65

817 NURSERY (GARDEN CENTER) 36.08 TGSF 0.75

818 NURSERY (WHOLESALE) 39.00 TGSF 0.75

820 SHOPPING CENTER <10TGSF 152.00 TGFGLA 0.35

821 SHOP.CNTR.<50TGSF 86.51 TSFGLA 0.35

822 SHOP.CNTR.<100TGSF 67.91 TSFGLA 0.45

823 SHOP.CNTR.<200TGSF 53.28 TSFGLA 0.5

824 SHOP.CNTR.<300TGSF 46.23 TSFGLA 0.55

825 SHOP.CNTR.<400TGSF 41.80 TSFGLA 0.6

826 SHOP.CNTR.<500TGSF 38.66 TSFGLA 0.6

827 SHOP.CNTR.<600TGSF 36.27 TSFGLA 0.65

828 SHOP.CNTR.<800TGSF 32.80 TSFGLA 0.65

829 SHOP.CNTR.<1.0MTGSF 30.33 TSFGLA 0.65

841 NEW CAR SALES 33.34 TGSF 0.85

843 AUTO PARTS SALES 61.91 TGSF 0.9

848 TIRE STORE 24.87 TGSF 0.5

850 SUPERMARKET 102.24 TGSF 0.48

Transportation Fee Schedule

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 77 of 80



Exhibits 

Page 74   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

 

  

Code Land Use 
Trip        

Rate Unit
New Trip 

Factor (NTF)

851 CONVENIENCE MARKET(Open 24 hours) 737.99 TGSF 0.3

852 CONVENIENCE MARKET(15-16 hours) * TGSF 0.38

853 CONVENIENCE MARKET with Gas pumps 542.60 VFP 0.38

870 APPAREL STORE 66.40 TGSF 0.55

880 PHARMACY W/O DRIVE-THRU 90.06 TGSF 0.75

881 PHARMACY W/ DRIVE-THRU 88.16 TGSF 0.75

890 FURNITURE STORE 5.06 TGSF 0.65

895 VIDEO ARCADE 106.40 TGSF 0.9

896 VIDEO RENTAL STORE 136.00 TGSF 0.85

897 ADULT VIDEO RENTAL 50.00 TGSF 0.85

911 WALK-IN BANK 156.48 TGSF 0.75

912 DRIVE-IN BANK 148.15 TGSF 0.55

931 QUALITY RESTAURANT 89.95 TGSF 0.8

932 HIGH TURNOVER (SITDOWN) REST 127.15 TGSF 0.8

933 FAST FOOD RESTAURANT- no drivethru 151.20 TGSF 0.5

934 FAST FOOD Rest. (or coffee cart)- with drivethru 496.12 TGSF 0.5

935 FAST FOOD with drivethru-no indoor seating 1400.00 TGSF 0.4

936 DRINKING PLACE 113.40 TGSF 0.5

941 QUICK LUBE SHOP 40.00 SVC POSIT 0.85

942 AUTO SERVICE 41.90 TGSF 0.9

944 SERVICE STATION 168.56 VFP 0.5

945 SERVICE STATION W/MARKET 162.78 VFP 0.5

946 SERV.STA.W/MARKET & CAR WASH 152.84 VFP 0.5

947 SELF SERVICE CAR WASH 108.00 STALL 0.65

*  Require Study from Applicant

DU Dwelling Unit VFP

TGSF Thousand Gross Square Footage SVC POSIT Service Position

TSFGLA Thousand Square Footage Gross Leasable Area 

ABBREVIATIONS                             

Vehicle Fueling Positions

Transportation Fee Schedule

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 78 of 80



  Exhibits 

City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges   Page 75 

Exhibit 4 page 1 

 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 79 of 80



Exhibits 

Page 76   City of Springfield, Master Fees and Charges 

Exhibit 4 page 2 

 

Attachment 3, Exhibit A - Page 80 of 80



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Chief Tim Doney/Mary 

Bridget Smith, CAO 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3729 
 Estimated Time: 15 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Enhance Public Safety 

 
ITEM TITLE: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 6, VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, 

ADDING SECTION 6.112 TO THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE, 
UNLAWFUL TRANSFER ON VEHICULAR PORTION OF THE RIGHT-OF-
WAY 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Conduct a first reading on the following ordinance:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 6, VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, 
ADDING SECTION 6.112 TO THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE, 
UNLAWFUL TRANSFER ON VEHICULAR PORTION OF THE RIGHT-
OFWAY (FIRST READING)  
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Shall the City develop and implement an Ordinance prohibiting vehicle drivers and 
passengers from transferring money or other property to pedestrians upon the public 
roadway? 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1 – Council Briefing Memo 
Attachment 2 – Proposed Ordinance  
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The proposed ordinance would prohibit motor vehicles from stopping in the 
roadway for the purpose of transferring property to pedestrians and does not exempt 
situations where drivers or passengers donate to persons asking for charitable 
contributions under a pedestrian activity permit.   
 
 
 

 



M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield 3/17/2016Page 1 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: March 15, 2016  
COUNCIL 
BRIEFING 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Gino Grimaldi 

From: Mary Bridget Smith, City Attorney 
Tim Doney, Police Chief 

Subject: Follow-up on Proposed Unlawful Transfer 
Ordinance 

ISSUE AND BACKGROUND:  
At a recent Council meeting, the City Council asked the City Attorney’s Office and the Police 
Department to follow-up on some questions regarding the proposed Unlawful Transfer 
Ordiance. Those questions were to determine whether any similar Ordinances had faced legal 
challenges, if the state vehicle code violation for impeding traffic could serve the same purpose 
as the proposed Unlawful Transfer Ordinance, and what data the City had to support the 
Ordinance. 
 
Legal Challenges: The proposed Unlawful Transfer Ordinance that is being considered by the 
City Council prohibits vehicle drivers and passengers from transferring property to a pedestrian 
in the right-of-way unless they are legally parked. The version included in this AIS packet does 
not exempt drivers or passengers when they transfer property to persons soliciting for 
contributions under a pedestrian activity permit for fundraisers like “Fill the Boot” and “Curbing 
for Cancer”. 
 
Outright restrictions to panhandling or solicitation are generally considered to be 
unconstitutional under the First Amendment and the Oregon Constitution due to their limitation 
on free speech. Comite de Jornaleros v. City of Redondo Beach, 657 F. 3rd 936 (9th Cir. 2011).  
Most of the litigation involving this area of law involves panhandling statutes that focus on the 
behavior of the person that is soliciting contributions or charity from other people.  The focus of 
the proposed Unlawful Transfer Ordinance, on the other hand, is on the driver and its purpose 
make traffic flow more safe and efficient.  People may still make contributions to persons who 
are soliciting, but they must legally park their vehicle before doing so.  I could find no pending 
litigation involving this type of Unlawful Transfer Ordinance.  
 
When drafting the proposed Unlawful Transfer Ordinance, staff consulted with and reviewed 
similar ordinances from other jurisdictions.  Staff learned that none of these other jurisdictions 
faced a legal challenge.  Those jurisdictions generally found that the effectiveness of the kind of 
ordinance was found in public education and posting signs instead of aggressive enforcement.  
Moreover, the proposed Springfield ordinance is less restrictive because it only addresses the 
behavior of the driver and passenger(s).    
 
There has been, and continues to be, litigation that focuses laws that try and put limitations on 
persons soliciting contributions.  For example, in December of 2015, the City of Grand Junction, 
Colorado lost a federal lawsuit with the ACLU involving a “aggressive panhandling statute”. 
That statute was not like the proposed Springfield Ordinance. Rather, it restricted the time and 
place that individuals could ask for contributions. For example, it made it a crime to ask for 
charity after sunset or within 20 feet of an ATM or bus stop. It also prohibited asking for 
donations from people standing in line or seated in an outdoor café.  In terms of vehicle traffic, 
the restrictions were put on the pedestrian asking for contibutions, not the driver or passenger(s). 
As a result, the risk for this type of litigation for the proposed Unlawful Transfer Ordinance is 

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 2 
 



 3/17/2016 Page 2 

less because it focuses on the driver and traffic safety and does not try and restrict individual’s 
free speech rights to express themselves. 
 
Impeding Traffic, ORS 811.130: The statute for impeding traffic states that: “A person commits 
the offense of impeding traffic if the person drives a motor vehicle or a combination of motor 
vehicles in a manner that impedes or blocks the normal and reasonable movement of traffic.” 
This violation can be distinguished from the proposed Unlawful Transfer Ordinance in several 
ways. First, it is Class D violation with a fine of $110 as opposed to the proposed $50 fine in the 
Unlawful Transfer Ordinance. It also is less specific than the proposed Unlawful Transfer 
Ordinance. For example, the impeding traffic violation invites argument as to whether a 
momentary stopping to hand something to a pedestrian unreasonably interfers with traffic. The 
driver is expected to evaluate the consequences of momentarily stopping in real time in order to 
avoid impeding traffic which could be a dangerous distraction in and of itself. The Unlawful 
Transfer Ordinance, on the other hand, does not leave it up to the driver to try and figure out 
what the likely effect of their actions will be and so eliminates both the risk imposed by 
impeding traffic and the danger of a distracted driver as they try and figure out whether they can 
give something to a pedestrian before a light changes or the car in front of them travels. 
 
Police Department Data:   
 
The follow is a summary of citations issued in the past year for drivers impeding the roadway 
and pedestrians improperly positioning themselves on a road and the number of accidents 
involving pedestrians and vehicles. 
Citations: 
ORS 811.130 – Impeding Traffic  January 2015 – Present = 9 citations 
This is a class D traffic infraction, minimum fine $60, presumptive fine $110, Maximum fine 
$250 
814.070 – Improper position upon or improperly proceeding along a highway   January 
2015- Present = 19 citations 
This is a class D traffic infraction, minimum fine  $60, presumptive fine $110, Maximum fine 
$250 
Accidents Involving Autos and Pedestrians throuout the City of Springfield: 
January 2015-Present = 49 auto vs. pedestrian crashes with 8 fatalities 
Determining crashes with a pedestrian soliciting from motorists as a contributing factor will be 
extremely labor intensive.  The traffic/motor team officers don’t recall a recent crash with this as 
a factor noted but indicate that pedestrian’s soliciting in traffic does impede the flow of traffic 
and create unsafe situations. 
 

COUNCIL GOALS/MANDATE: 
Enhance Public Safety 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Provide direction on the proposed Ordinance and if the Council decides to adopt this Ordinance, 
hold a first reading. 

N:\OneDrive for Business\City\ORDINANC\2015\Vehicle and Traffic Ordinance 6.112 CBM.doc 

Attachment 1, Page 2 of 2 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _____ (General) 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 6, VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, ADDING 
SECTION 6.112 TO THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE, UNLAWFUL 

TRANSFER ON VEHICULAR PORTION OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY 
 

The City Council of the City of Springfield finds as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, conducting transactions in the street from or within a right-of-way creates 
safety risks for pedestrians and motorists; 
 
WHEREAS, conducting transactions in the street from or within a right-of-way slows and 
impedes the safe and efficient flow of vehicular traffic;  
 
WHEREAS, it is in the public interest that public streets and roadways operate safely; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the City of Springfield to add Section 6.112, 
Unlawful Transfer on Vehicular Portion of the Right-of-Way, to the Springfield Municipal 
Code. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, based upon the foregoing findings, the City Council of the City of 
Springfield ordains as follows: 
 
Section 1. The following section shall be added to Chapter 6, Vehicles and Traffic, index 
page: 
 

A6.112   Unlawful Transfer on Vehicular Portion of the Right-of-Way.@ 
 
Section 2.  The following language shall be added as Section 6.112, Unlawful Transfer 
on Vehicular Portion of the Right-of-Way: 
 

A6.112   Unlawful Transfer on Vehicular Portion of the Right-of-Way.   
 
(1) A person commits the offense of unlawful transfer on a vehicular portion 
of the right-of-way if the person while a driver or passenger in a vehicle on a 
highway, road or street within the boundaries of the city of Springfield, gives or 
relinquishes possession or control of, or allows another person in the vehicle to 
give or relinquish possession or control of any item of property to a pedestrian. 
 
(2) This section does not apply if the vehicle is legally parked. 
 
(3) An offense of this section is punishable as a violation and may include a 
fine of $50.00. 

 
Attachment 2, Page 1 of 2 



 
Section 3.  Severability.  If any phrase, clause, or other part or parts of this Article is 
found to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining phrases, clauses 
and other part or parts shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Springfield this ____ day of ______________, 
2016 by a vote of _____ in favor _____ against. 
 
Approved by the Mayor of the City of Springfield this ____ day of _______________, 
2016. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Christine Lundberg, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Amy Sowa, City Recorder 

 
Attachment 2, Page 2 of 2 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
Staff Contact/Dept.: Paula Davis 
Staff Phone No: 726-3698 
Estimated Time: 5 Minutes 

S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 

ITEM TITLE: BUDGET COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Ratify the appointment of Nathan Mischel to serve a 1-year term on the Budget 
Committee for Ward 3 with a term to expire December 31, 2016. 

Ratify the appointment of Victoria Doyle to serve a 3-year term on the Budget 
Committee for Ward 5 with a term to expire December 31, 2018. 

Ratify the appointment of Diana Alldredge to serve a 3-year term on the 
Budget Committee for Ward 6 with a term to expire December 31, 2018. 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The Budget Committee currently has 3 vacancies, Wards 3, 5 and 6, due to term 
expirations.  The City advertised for potential candidates and the Council 
interviewed on March 14 Nathan Mischel for Ward 3, Victoria Doyle for Ward 5 
and Diana Alldredge for Ward 6.  The Council is being asked to appoint one 
applicant to each of the three positions.  The appointee for Ward 3 will serve a one 
year term that will expire on December 31, 2016.  The appointee for Ward 5 and 6 
will serve a three year term that will expire on December 31, 2018. 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1: Application of Nathan Mischel 
Attachment 2: Application of Victoria Doyle 
Attachment 3: Application of Diana Alldredge 
Attachment 4: Budget Committee Charge 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

Three vacancies have occurred on the City’s Budget Committee due to the term 
expirations of members from the Ward 3, Ward 5 and Ward 6 positions.  Each full 
term of the Budget Committee is for a 3-year period, with the positions staggered to 
have two vacancies occur every December.  

After interviews on March 17th, Council members directed staff to prepare as AIS 
for the appointment of Nathan Mischel for Ward 3, Victoria Doyle for Ward 5 and 
Diana Alldredge for Ward 6.   

The City’s charge for the Budget Committee (Attachment 4) states as a qualifier 6 
members from the Council and 6 citizens by Ward (Citizen members may not be 
officers, agents or employees of the City, per ORS 294.336(4).  



Attachment 1, Page 1 of 3



Attachment 1, Page 2 of 3



Attachment 1, Page 3 of 3



SPRINGFIELD 
I Application for a City of Springfiel~ECf/Vfo Ft:o 1 

2 
Citizen Advisory Board/Commission/Committee l0/6 

~ 
City Manager's Office• 225 Fifth Street• Springfield, OR 97477 

PLEASE NOTE: 
• When possible, council will not appoint people currently serving on another governing body to the Planning Commission or Budget 

Committee. 
• When appointing people to any of the other city boards, commissions or committees, the Council shall take into account whether 

that person is being reappointed for a subsequent term, is currently serving on another governing body or currently appointed to 
another city board, commission or committee. 

• When possible, the Council will appoint people to serve on one City board, commission or committee only. 

Board I Commission I Committee applying for: 

Budget Committee 

(A separate application must be completed for each board I commission I committee) 

Name: Victoria M Doyle 

First Middle Initial Last 

Home address: _7_8_7_S_4_8t_h_S_t __________ S._pr_in_,g._fi_1e_ld _________ 9_7_47_8 ________ _ 

Street City Zip 

Mailing address: _S_a_m_e ________________________________ _ 

Street City Zip 

Day Phone: 541-682-4805 Evening phone: _5_4_1_-9_6_8_-4_9_3_0 __________ _ 

Email Address: vmdoyle@msn.com 

Preferred Form of Contact: _Email 

Do you live within the Springfield city limits? 0 Yes 

D No 

Ward number (City residents only): 5 

Are you a Springfield property owner? 

Are you a Springfield business owner? 
Are you a registered voter? ~

Yes 

Yes 
Yes §No 

No 
No 

If yes, how long? 8/2015 

Ifno, do you live inside Springfield ' s 

Urban Growth Boundary? 

D Yes(2]No 

Occupation: Senior Admin Specialist Place of employment/School: City of Eugene Public Works Maintena 

City of Eugene Public Works Maintenance/Parks and Open Space 

Business address: 1820 Roosevelt Blvd Eugene 97402 

Education: AS Computer Science/ BS Studies Accounting 

Are you currently serving on any other board, committee, or commission? If so, please list them here: 

No 

How did you hear about the above vacancy? 

D Newspaper ad D Newspaper article D Radio/TV 

D Word of mouth D Board/Commission/Committee member 

For more information please call the City Manager' s Office 541 .726.3700 

D Mail notice 

l/'I Internet 

Return this application to the City Manager' s Office, 225 Fifth Street, Springfield Oregon 97477 

(Over, please) 

Printed on Recycled Paper Attachment 2 Page 1 of 4



Application for a City of Springfield 
Citizen Advisory Board/Commission/Committee 

Please print or type: 
1. What experiences I training I qualifications do you have for this particular board I commission I committee? 

My family owned a business for 18 years in Lane County and I was actively involved in the budget process for that. I was 
on the Budget committee for the City of Cottage Grove 20I0-2014 and - spent 4 years on the city council (stark differences 
between public and private sector budgets!) In my current position with the city I am involved with budget line items and 
budget journal entries as well as providing updated reporting to managers regarding their orgs, departments and funds. 

2. What specific contribution do you hope to make? 

I was born at McKenzie Willamette and attended Thurston High School. We moved to Cottage Grove for over IO years and 
I spent 5 of those in local government. I believe as a community member we have an obligation to serve and be involved 
and I hope to understand the process Spfd uses to make the money spending decisions. I am invested in Springfield and 
choose to be a part of its future and growth any way I can! 

3. Briefly describe your involvement in relevant community groups and activities. (Lack of previous involvement will not 
necessarily disqualify you from consideration.) 

I served on the LCOG budget committee with Mayor Lundberg and numerous committees throughout Lane County
allowing me to cross paths with several sitting councilors. I am a volunteer for Northwest Boxer Rescue and Oregon Saint 
Bernard Rescue. I am currently on a study group working with city management and union AFSCME reps to gain a clear 
understanding of the budgeting process as it relates to the bargaining table. 

4. What community topics concern you that relate to this board I commission I committee? Why do you want to become a member? 

I do not have concerns; rather I am impressed with the good work the city of Springfield has done to revitalize the 
downtown and draw business to the area. When we were moving from CG, I specifically chose Springfield because as a 
Eugene City employee, I knew I could not participate in the political process or serve in the way I like to. This is my first 
step in learning about the community I love- Springfield. 

5. Most boards I commissions I committees meet monthly. Subcommittees may meet more frequently. Meetings generally last one 
and one-half hours. It is highly recommended you attend a meeting before submitting the application. Please read the news 
release for this position which contains the normal dates and times for these meetings and can be found at 
www.ci.springfield.or.us/CMO/newsrel.htm. Are you available to attend meetings on the dates listed for this committee? 

® YesQ No 

Comments :. ___ ...:.T..o.h=a=n=k_,y""'o""u""s""'o'-m~u""'c"""h_fi'""o_r...:.th_e'-"o"'p"'p""ortu'-'-"=n=ityJ..."'-t-'-o...:.s-'-er'-v""e"'". _1'-'-'lo""'o_k_fi"""o_rwc.;..:;a;;:_rd;;:_..o..to~m"""e""'e""t=in""g._w~it=h'-y"""o""'u'-=in'-p"'"e.:.:r:.::s..::.o=n...:.to-'--"d""is.:.:c:..:;u:.::s=-s ·:...__ 

I certify the information in this application and attachments are true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I understand that false or misleading 
statements or missing information is cause for rejection of application, removal of name from eligible list, or dismissal from the position. I hereby waive my 
rights to claims or damages against any employer and the City of Springfield, its officers, agents, and employees, in regard to this exchange of information. I 
hereby authorize to permit the City of Springfield and/or the Springfield Police Department to review my background information and if required my DMV 
records. I have reviewed the Advisory and meet the minimum requirements to serve/volunteer in the desired position. I also authorize to permit any materials 
listed above to be copied and retained by the City of Springfield. I authorize the use of my photograph. 

I will defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Springfield, its officers, employees, and agents from and against all liability or loss and against any and 
all claims, actions, causes of actions, proceedings or appeals based upon or arising out of or arising from or in connection with my conduct or performance as 
a volunteer with the City of Springfield including but not limited damage or injury to persons or property and including without limitation attorney fees and 
expenses; except for losses, claims or actions resulting from the sole negligence of the City of Springfield. 

' Digitally signed by Victoria M Doyle 

Vl.CtOrl·a M Doyle· DN : .cn=victoriaMDoy1e,o,ou. 
• • ema1l;::vmdoyle@msn.com, c=US 

Applicant Signature: Date: 2016.02.10 os:46:54 .as·oo· Date: 2/10/16 
For more information please call the City Manager's Office 541.726.3700 
Return this application to the City Manager's Office, 225 Fifth Street, Springfield Oregon 97477 

Printed on Recycled Paper Attachment 2 Page 2 of 4



Questions for the Budget Committee Applicant 

(If you need more space please attach additional pages) 

1. Please discuss why you are interested in serving on the City's Budget 

Committee. 

I have been interested and involved in local politics for many years. I learned and understand that I cannot make 

a lot of changes on the federal level. Likewise, even on the state level it is challenging to see affects of 
involvement while also raising a family, working full time, etc. As a citizen, I believe we have an obligation to be 

involved in local government because we CAN make a difference. Since it is tax dollars that are used to run the 

government, it is important to understand and have a voice in how those dollars are spent. By being on the 

budget committee, an average person in the community can understand the reasons why money is spent a 

certain way; realizing the constraints and requirements of a local governing body. I also feel strongly in being 

informed and having a relationship with councilors and the mayor so I can feel confident the representatives we 
elect are doing what is best for the people they serve. 

2. Do you have any experience related to municipal finance or other public 

sector budgeting? Please discuss 

City of Cottage Grove Budget Committee- 2010-2014 

LCOG Budget Committee Board member 2013-2014 

City of Cottage Grove Councilor At Large 2011-2014 

City of Eugene FY15 and FY16 Contract Administrator- working to obtain contracts for Capital and Operating 
budget dollars as well as Federal Grants (ODOT as an example) 

Attachment 2 Page 3 of 4



3. The Budget Committee meets on Tuesdays in April and May, generally for a 

total of four or five meetings. The meetings start at 5:30 or 6:00 and 

usually last three hours. There is occasionally a mid-year meeting in 

December or January. What are your time constraints and availability, 

which may affect service on the Budget Committee? 

I work 7:30-4pm Monday through Friday. I have no children so I have no time issues. 

4. Please list current and past community groups you have been a member of. 

Treasurer- Emerald Valley Investment Club 1998-2001 

Team Oregon Motorcycle Safety Instructor 2001-2015 

Secretary, board member - Saving Grace Pet Adoption Center, Roseburg, Oregon 2006-2009 
Oregon Saint Bernard Rescue Foundation 2005-Present 
Secretary, Lane County Republicans 2009-2011 

Secretary and member, Republican Women of Central Lane 2010-2012Northwest Boxer Rescue 2011-Present 

Attachment 2 Page 4 of 4



Attachment 3, Page 1 of 4

davi1275
Typewritten Text

davi1275
Typewritten Text
6



Attachment 3, Page 2 of 4



Attachment 3, Page 3 of 4



Attachment 3, Page 4 of 4



Attachment 4  Page 1 of 1 

March 24, 2015       Budget Committee 
 
 

CHARGE 
 
The Budget Committee is provided for in State Law.  It is responsible for reviewing the 
financial plans and policies of the City, including the review of the Annual Budget and 
the recommendation of the Annual Budgets to the City Council. 
 
Source of Existence:  State/Council 
 Bylaws:  YES 
 Code:   No 
 
Sunset Date:   Mandatory 
 
Membership 
 Number:  12 
 In City:  12 
 Out of City:  None 
 
Terms (2 max):  3-Years staggered terms 
 
 Ward:   Yes (not required by State Law) 
 Qualifier:  6 members from the Council and 6 citizens by Ward 
     (Citizen members may not be officers, agents or  
                                                employees of the City, per ORS 294.336(4).  
 
Appointed By:   Council application and interview 
 
Meeting Time:   Varies through Budget Season 
 
Funding Source:  General Fund 
 
Staff Liaison:   Bob Duey, Finance Director, 726-3740 
    Paula Davis, Budget Officer, 726-3698 
 
Council Liaison:  All Council 
    (Note: the Mayor may participate with the approval 
    of the Budget Committee as an ex-officio, non-voting 
    member.) 
 
 
 
 
cmo/common/bcc/budget 
Last Revised:  3/24/2015 
 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 

 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Mark McCaffery/DPW 

 Staff Phone No: 541-736-1003 

 Estimated Time: 05 Minutes 

S P R I N G F I E L D 

C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Encourage Economic 

Development and 

Revitalization through 

Community Partnerships 
 

ITEM TITLE: HISTORIC COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 

 

ACTION 

REQUESTED: 

Appoint/not appoint Kristina Koenig to the Historic Commission to serve the 

unexpired portion of Commissioner Vincent Martorello’s term, which expires 

February 2, 2018.  Appoint/not appoint Mackenzie Karp and Jonathan Siegle to the 

Historic Commission to each serve four-year terms expiring on March 20, 2020.   

 

ISSUE 

STATEMENT: 

The Springfield Historic Commission has four vacancies; two term expirations and 

two resignations.  The two vacant positions created by term expiration will be filled 

with four-year terms.  The two vacant positions created by resignations will be 

filled for the unexpired portion of each term.  The appointment schedule is designed 

to maintain expertise and institutional knowledge by overlapping appointments.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1 – Candidate Applications 

Attachment 2 – Current Historic Commissioner Profiles 

 

DISCUSSION/ 

FINANCIAL 

IMPACT: 

The Historic Commission is authorized and guided by provisions contained in 

Chapter 2 of the City’s Municipal Code. The Code authorizes the Mayor and City 

Council to fill unexpired portions of commissioner terms upon resignation and 

appoint new members using staggered term membership.  The Code also requires 

the Council to solicit recommendations from the Willamalane Park and Recreation 

District and Lane County School District #19 (Springfield schools). The City 

received three applications for the four vacancies duly noticed.  The Council 

interviewed Ms. Koenig and Ms. Karp at the February 22, 2016 Work Session and 

interviewed Mr. Siegle at the March 14, 2016 Work Session.   Ms. Koenig is a 

Willamalane employee who was recommended by Willamalane to succeed Vincent 

Martorello’s term as a commissioner.  The appointment of Ms. Koenig to fill the 

unexpired portion of Commissioner Vincent Martorello’s term and appointment of 

Ms. Karp and Mr. Siegle to fill the four-year term vacancies would be consistent 

with the Council’s post-interview assessment of each candidate.      

 

Appointments to the Historic Commission must be confirmed during a Regular 

Session by motion and a vote of the City Council.  

 

 



Attachment 1, Page 1 of 15



Attachment 1, Page 2 of 15



Mackenzie Karp, Supplemental Questions, Springfield Historic Commission application 

1. Yes; 1751 Lawrence Alley, Eugene, OR 97401 

2. Architectural Historian 

3. As the City of Springfield grows, Historic Preservation is of the utmost importance to ensure that new 
development does not mean the destruction of historic assets and the erasure of valuable history and 
identity. The more that historic resources are understood, documented, and contextualized, the more 
the public will consider them to be assets in the community. The use of historic structures will 
necessarily change change over time and adaptive reuse is a valuable way to bring historic structures 
into our modern way of life, while keeping their historic character and acknowledging past uses. 

4. The purpose of the Historic Commission is to serve as stewards of Springfield’s historic resources by 
contextualizing, documenting, and interpreting historic assets and by educating the public to raise 
awareness and support for the protection of historic sites and structures in Springfield. 

5. Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act allows for comment on alteration and 
renovation plans affecting historic properties. If a citizen brought plans to the commission which were in 
conflict with the City’s historic preservation policies and regulations, I would encourage her/him to 
reconsider based on the importance of maintaining the historic character of the property and its value 
to the community. I would be sure that the citizen was aware of the incentives offered to historic 
property owners who choose to maintain, preserve and/or restore historic structures and original 
features, including tax credits and federal grants where applicable.  

6. The Historic Commission can raise awareness of Historic Preservation in the Springfield community by 
placing plaques describing historic sites and buildings, holding exhibitions about historic Springfield in 
public spaces, and also by encouraging community involvement in Historic Commission meetings. By 
making Springfield’s historic assets more visible to the public through exhibits, placards, etc., people will 
become more aware of the value of the sites and buildings around them and give more thought to 
historic structures, their lasting presence over time, and their function in modern life. 

7. Yes; I attended a meeting in the fall of 2014 when I was enrolled in Introduction to Historic 
Preservation at UO. At this meeting a person interested in purchasing a historic property presented 
changes she hoped to make to the home. The remainder of the meeting consisted of subcommittee 
reports, including presenting survey results to residents in the Washburne to educate them on 
contributing and non-contributing properties in the district. 

Attachment 1, Page 3 of 15



Attachment 1, Page 4 of 15



Attachment 1, Page 5 of 15



Attachment 1, Page 6 of 15



Attachment 1, Page 7 of 15



Attachment 1, Page 8 of 15



FEB 
Application for a City of Springfield -. 8 

REC'fJ(i> I t:11al'rt. 
Citizen Advisory Board/Commission/Committee ¢b2.. 

City Manager's Office• 225 Fifth Street• Springfield, OR 97477 

PLEASE NOTE: 
• When possible, council will not appoint people currently serving on another governing body to the Planning Commission or Budget 

Committee. 
• When appointing people to any of the other city boards, commissions or committees, the Council shall take into account whether 

that person is being reappointed for a subsequent term, is currently serving on another governing body or currently appointed to 
another city board, commission or committee. 

• When possible, the Council will appoint people to serve on one City board, commission or committee only. 

Board I Commission I Committee applying for: 

Jfi.sifr, <- Com 1v, s s ~'(Jn_ 
(A separate application must be completed for each board I commission I committee) 

Home~dreu:~~~~O~F-i~=s~~~~~~-1_·~~~~~i~~LkL~u
1

~
1

1°~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~7~~~7~7~~~~-Street ~ Zip 

Mailing address: _______ -__ :.9 __ ~_7_~-------------------------
Street 

Day Phone:S¥/. ;;...d's-'· og/~ 

Email Address: j Is /~e.J le. e 5· C..t)n-t..... 

Preferred Form of Contact:_ Ct.I/ fj i>U ~ ~ f 

Do you live within the Springfield city limits? ~Yes 
D No 

City Zip 

Evening phone: 5Zt/. 7t/7. Otf 2? {4()>...c.) 

Ward number (City residents only): __ d-_______ _ 

If yes, how long? 3S y~ S 
Ifno, do you live inside Springfield' s 
Urban Growth Boundary? 

D YesONo 

Are you a Springfield property owner? ~· .. · Yes ~ ... ·.··· .. : ~o~ 
Are you a Springfield business owner? ·.. es 
Are you a registered voter? · Yes 

Occupation: Vle--b'rc.L -;-;; PL-/ Place of employment/School: _____________ _ 

Business address: __________________________________ _ 

Ed,oation Bll-1 h/1_1 ~osf-yad WtJ/i. ft,.,,,,_,,e d,~fe.<z ~ - &-/mtL1 1tf4r--
Are yoMently serving on any other board, committee, or commission? If so, please list them here: 

How did you hear about the above vacancy? 

D Newspaper ad D Newspaper article D Radio/TV 

~rd of mouth D Board/Commission/Committee member 

For more information please call the City Manager' s Office 541.726.3700 

D Mail notice 

D Internet 
(Over, please) 

Return this application to the City Manager' s Office, 225 Fifth Street, Springfield Oregon 97477 
Printed on Recycled Paper 

Attachment 1, Page 9 of 15



Application for a City of Springfield 
Citizen Advisory Board/Commission/Committee 

3. Briefly describe your involvement in relevant community groups and activities. (Lack of previous involvement will not 

necessarily disqualify you from consideration.) ~ 

~c!.G<J Ck P~1vn?,,'f(~7-7/7/;<;.s.,~,..J;~ ~ trn /W~ a ~h-
p,.c/ pf, L~;,z, ;'f~c.J-,Ac~t(. /v,/dut_ fi~ cb>n:', :-04-~ 
th cl -d-, ~ /j . "'1d c;,, 'twn;,, I _t. .,. t,, ed---,t.. £ t%'e % '~f7(.. .ti c.i{""-/ · 

4. What community topics concern you that relate to this board I commission I committee? Why do you want to become a member? 

fJ kuftL. ,u,)t6tJ.!/~ fe~; K~ ~UJIU.f '3cc vp~c y. ·-;k AA:/n,b.e-r i 
j ()n~_s 7L ffeJ, ->; F ,,,-.k 4 ,3 ,,... c ~1U-."?? d IX ;),-t;or' ~ 1 ~ d,f/,,-,,( 

5. Most boards I commissions I committees meet monthly. Subcommittees may meet more frequently. Meetings generally last one 
and one-half hours. It is highly recommended you attend a meeting before submitting the application. Please read the news 
release for this position which contains the normal dates and times for these meetings and can be found at 
www.ci.springfield.or.us/CMO/newsrel.htm. Are you available to attend meetings on the dates listed for this committee? 

}\)( YesQ No fo ~~ / 0'} /I . 
ot:m'""' 72.- u,x -Ip -,Sa'. a .al();?+ I ff~ . /M' /!!i!'tf::. ~ 
LJ,,,n,,~s;..,,,_, ~-h bt' A',,n,.//1. 

I certify the information in this application and attachments are true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I understand that false or misleading 
statements or missing information is cause for rejection of application, removal of name from eligible list, or dismissal from the position. I hereby waive my 
rights to claims or damages against any employer and the City of Springfield, its officers, agents, and employees, in regard to this exchange of information. I 
hereby authorize to permit the City of Springfield and/or the Springfield Police Department to review my background information and if required my DMV 
records. I have reviewed the Advisory and meet the minimum requirements to serve/volunteer in the desired position. I also authorize to permit any materials 
listed above to be copied and retained by the City of Springfield. I authorize the use of my photograph. 

I wiU defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Springfield, its officers, employees, and agents from and against all liability or loss and against any and 
all claims, actions, causes of actions, proceedings or appeals based upon or arising out of or arising from or in connection with my conduct or performance as 
a volunteer with the City of S · 1el 1 uding but not limited da · jury to persons or property and including without limitation attorney fees and 
expenses; except for losses, aims or a ·on resulting from the e negligen of the City of Springfield. 

Applicant Signature :_~-----~--"'<;:::---:;;;;>"'-''--;f"'--t---------·Dato # 
For more information please call the City Manager' s 0 
Return this application to the City Manager' s Office, 2--......=c...>~·· 

Printed on Recycled Paper Attachment 1, Page 10 of 15



Historic Commission 

Supplemental Questions 

Jonathan Siegle 

2. As a young teacher I directed first a regional then a statewide oral history project 
in New York. I have always been interested in architecture, folklore and history. As a 
journalist I have written a variety of features including articles about unusual or 
unique people and places. Finally, I have lived in the historic district for 35 years. In 
the mid-'80 I filed the zone change request that helped created the Washburne 
District, then served two terms on the planning commission where we finalized the 
rules for the historic overlay district. 

3. When we created the Washburne Historic District it was unique among West 
Coast districts. While cities like Albany and Eureka preserved the homes of the rich, 
Springfield preserved a working class district in a mill town. While there are a few 
fine examples of bungalows and four squares, most of the architecture is American 
vernacular. Many of the houses were built with mill scrap. My own house, built in 
the 1930s, was either homemade or framed in and finished by the owner. There are 
many odd and unusual features to this house. The second floor, for example, is 
walled in mismatched tongue and groove pieces of varying widths and lengths. All 
the floors are fir except the living room, which is red oak. Such unique and unusual 
qualities represent the history of ordinary people. My house began as a 900+ square 
foot one-bedroom house with an unfinished cellar and attic. Today it's a much 
bigger five-bedroom house with two baths. The evolution of this house mirrors the 
growth of Springfield, from the Depression to the booming industrial '50s. Historic 
preservation is an economic advantage, showing the world our city cares about 
where we've been and where we're going. 

4. The role of the historic commission is to assist city planners and property owners 
in how to best manage the resource we have both in the district and in buildings 
outside the district. 

5. This question raises the common conundrum ofland use planning. We must 
remember that we don't own property; we rent it from our children. Owning an 
historic building is a public trust, a privilege owners must respect. In parts of the 
world with much more history than ours one can't sink a shovel without hitting an 
archeological site. Those sites represent a treasure that improves the quality of life 
and brings others to experience. While our history is modest, without preservation 
it is lost. As a planning commissioner I presided over a number of hearings where 
people wanted to use their property for businesses that greatly impacted their 
neighbors. One homeowner, for example, worked on large motor homes in his 
driveway! Recognizing a civic responsibility to one's neighbors is a fact of property 
ownership, a fundamental principle of Oregon land use law. 

Attachment 1, Page 11 of 15



6. For many years the Washnurne district held an annual walking tour, complete 
with carriage rides featuring docents pointing out interesting features. Homeowners 
with an historic tax freeze opened their houses on the same day. Music and 
refreshments were offered. That celebration has ended; it should be resurrected. 
Information on local history should be readily available in the schools, and area 
businesses should be encouraged to promote the city's historical resources. Mostly, 
though, the community itself needs to be engaged. Many of the homes have turned 
over in recent years and the new owners know little about the district The library 
can promote oral history. The senior center is also a valuable resource. 

7. I have attended meetings of the historic commission in the past. They seemed 
friendly and helpful. 

Attachment 1, Page 12 of 15



Archaeologist 
(a) Prehistoric Archaeology - Graduate degree in Anthropology or Prehistoric Archaeology, plus 2.5 years full-time professional 
experience; or (b) Historic Archaeology - Graduate degree in Anthropology or Historic Archaeology, plus 2.5 years full-time 
professional experience. 

Architect, Historic 
(a) State Government-recognized license to practice Architecture plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) a Masters 
of Architecture degree with course work in Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time professional 
experience; or ( c) a Bachelor's of Architecture with one year of graduate study in Historic Preservation or a closely related field 
plus 2 years full-time professional experience. 

~rchitectural Historian 
(a) Graduate degree in Architectural History or a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an 
undergraduate degree in Architectural History or a closely related field, plus 4 years full-time professional experience. 

Conservationist 
(a) Graduate degree in Conservation or a closely related field, plus 3 years full-time professional experience; or (b)an 
undergraduate degree in Conservation or a closely related field, plus 3 years full-time apprenticeship in the field. 

/cultural Anthropologist 
(a) Graduate degree in Anthropology with specialization in Applied Cultural Anthropology, plus 2 years full-time professional 
experience; or (b) an undergraduate degree in anthropology with specialization in applied cultural anthropology, plus 4 years full
time professional experience. 

Curator 
(a) Graduate degree in Museum Studies or a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an 
undergraduate degree in Museum Studies or a closely related field, plus 4 years full-time professional experience. 

Engineer 
(a) State Government-recognized license to practice Civil or Structural Engineering plus 2 years full-time professional 
experience; or (b) a Masters of Civil Engineering degree with course work in Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 
2 years full-time professional experience; or ( c) a Bachelor's of Civil Engineering degree with one year of graduate study in 
Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience. 

Folklorist 
(a) Graduate degree in Folklore or a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an undergraduate 
degree in Folklore or a closely related field, plus 4 years full-time professional experience. 

Historic Preservation Planner 
(a) State Government-recognized certification or license in Land-Use Planning, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or 
(b) a graduate degree in Planning with course work in Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time 
professional experience; or (c) an undergraduate degree in Planning with course work in Historic Preservation or a closely related 
field, plus 4 years full-time professional experience. 

Historic Preservationist 
(a) Graduate degree in Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an 
undergraduate degree in Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 4 years full-time professional experience. 

Historian 
(a) Graduate degree in History or a closely related field, plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) an undergraduate 
degree in History or a closely related field, plus 4 years full-time professional experience. 

Landscape Architect, Historic 
(a) State Government-recognized license to practice Landscape Architecture plus 2 years full-time professional experience; or (b) 
a Masters degree in Landscape Architecture with course work in Historic Preservation or a closely related field, plus 2 years full
time professional experience; or (c) a four or five year Bachelor's degree in Landscape Architecture plus 3 years full-time 
professional experience. 

Attachment 1, Page 13 of 15



Supplemental Commission Application Questions 
HISTORIC COMMISSION 

 
1. If you do not live within the Springfield city limits, do you live within the Eugene/Springfield 

Metropolitan Area General Plan boundaries?  

N/A 

2. Please refer to the attached list of professional qualifications. Which category best describes you, if 
applicable? (Not having the qualifications associated with a field related to historic preservation will 
not necessarily disqualify you from consideration.)  

Landscape Architect, though not Historic 

3. Why do you think historic preservation is important for a city like Springfield?  

Historic preservation contributes towards developing an identity for the community, thereby making 
Springfield a more desirable place to live. By preserving and celebrating this history we can learn 
from our past and, to an extent, deepen residents’ connection to Springfield.   

4. What do you think the purpose of the Historic Commission is in Springfield?  

 To assist the City with providing oversight on the historic sites and structures currently 
documented within Springfield. 

 To encourage further preservation of undocumented/unrecognized historical sites via 
outreach, funding, or other means. 

 To raise awareness and provide information on local historic preservation efforts within the 
community. 

 To assist the City with prioritization of historic preservation needs within the community. 

5. How would you address a situation in which a citizen’s development or restoration plans are in 
conflict with the City’s historic preservation policies and regulations?  

The City’s preservation policies/regulations are intended to serve the best interests of the 
community as a whole and should be enforced.  If there are conflicts the Commission should identify 
how they can best assist the citizen resolve such conflicts. 

6. How can the Historic Commission foster citizen awareness of historic preservation?  

 Providing funding for preservation/interpretation efforts 

 Organize/coordinate volunteer efforts 

 Actively publicize historic preservation efforts 

Attachment 1, Page 14 of 15



 Network with broad range of community partners to inform them of preservation efforts 

 

7. Interested applicants are encouraged to attend a Springfield Historic Commission meeting. Did you attend 
a meeting and if so, what were your impressions of the meeting?  
 

I attended a sub-committee meeting for the CLG grant.  I was encouraged that there is funding available to 

help the committee act on some of their goals.   

Attachment 1, Page 15 of 15



Profiles of Current Historic Commissioners 
 
Bruce Berg 
Bruce is a Springfield resident and business owner in the Washburne Historic District.  He previously 
served on the Springfield Planning Commission and Springfield City Council.  Bruce is currently serving 
his first full term on the Historic Commission, which expires on June 14, 2019. 
 
Tim Hilton – Chair 
Tim is a Springfield resident who lives just outside the Washburne Historic District.  He has a Bachelor’s 
and a Master’s degree in Architecture.  Tim has worked as a professional architect since the 1980s and 
served as an adjunct professor at the University of Oregon in 2005.  Tim is currently serving his second 
term on the Commission, which expires on June 14, 2019. 
 

Terra Wheeler 
Terra is a Eugene resident.  She has a Bachelor’s degree in Environmental Studies and is in the process of 
pursuing her Master’s degree in Historic Preservation.  She volunteered with the Architectural Heritage 
Center in Portland for six years and is currently co-editor of the Associated Students of Historic 
Preservation Journal at the University of Oregon.  Terra is currently filling the unexpired term of a 
previous commissioner, which expires on October 19, 2018.   
 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 1



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/21/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Randall B. Groves/Fire 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-2292 
 Estimated Time: 05 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Strengthen Public Safety 
by Leveraging 
Partnerships and 
Resources 

 
ITEM TITLE: APPROVAL TO LEASE/PURCHASE ONE (1) FIRE PUMPER 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

By Motion: 
• Authorize the City Manager to sign a contract to lease purchase one (1) 

fire pumper from Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. for an amount not to 
exceed $593,108.00. 

• Authorize the City Manager to enter into a 5-year, tax exempt, lease 
purchase agreement with PNC Equipment Finance to finance the 
pumper.  

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Fire & Life Safety (FLS) is seeking approval to lease purchase one (1) fire pumper 
for front-line service. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Contract with Pierce Manufacturing, Inc.  
DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The current 75’ ladder truck is a 2001 E-One that has exceeded its’ reliable lifespan 
and is in need of replacement. This apparatus has operated as a first-out engine at 
fire station #14 (4765 Main Street station), in east Springfield for the past 15 years. 
This is the second aerial apparatus in the Springfield fleet. 
 
This request is to replace the existing 75’ ladder with a pumper. This will reduce 
purchase costs, and save on maintenance costs long term. Eugene has an aerial 
apparatus in reserve that is already being used by Springfield when needed as per 
IGA. 
 
The E-One apparatus currently has approximately 108,000 miles. Increasing 
maintenance costs and general wear and tear on this apparatus make replacement of 
it a high priority. This is the last of the five (5) first out apparatus to be replaced.  
Three (3) pumpers were replaced in 2010 and the 100’ Pierce aerial platform in 
2013.  
 
Cooperative purchasing language in an existing Fire-Rescue Group Purchasing 
Contract with Pierce Manufacturing was available to procure this new Pierce 
Velocity Pumper. The City is using a five year lease purchase option, based on the 
significant cost of the apparatus. The first two payments on the lease could come 
from the Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Fund (Fund 713). In years 3-5 funds 
currently dedicated to fire engine/pumper leases could be used to make the 
$127,628 per year payments. 
 
This is an identical pumper to the most recent City of Eugene pumper purchases 
and represents the joint equipment standard for Eugene Springfield Fire. 
Additionally, efficiencies are gained by having all of the equipment and supplies in 
the exact same place when providing emergency response services – seconds count.  
Pierce’s price represents a good value for the investment, and will maintain 
interoperability with Eugene Fire’s current/future apparatus plans.  

 



 
      
 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Contract # 1628 
 
 
Dated:  March 21, 2016 
 
Parties: City of Springfield                                “CITY” 

A Municipal Corporation of the State of Oregon  
225 5th Street 
Springfield, OR 97477                

         and 
   

Pierce Manufacturing  “Seller” 
  

Additional Contractor Information: 
 

a) Type of Entity:    Sole Proprietorship   Partnership 
 Limited Liability Comp         Corporation 

b) Address:         P.O. BOX 2017, Appleton, Wisconsin, 54912 
c) Telephone:      920-832-3000 
d) Fax No:             920-832-3208 
    
In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties agree to the following terms, 
provisions and conditions: 

 
1. Personal Property to be Delivered.  Seller will build, customize and deliver FOB City of Springfield, 

one (1) Pierce Velocity Custom Pumper, as described in Attachment 1 attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference on or before March 1, 2017.   

 
2. Payment by CITY.  CITY will pay in accordance with PNC Equipment Finance Tax Exempt Lease 

Purchase agreement #1636 dated March, 2016. 
 

3. Invoice.  Invoice to be sent to: Accounts Payable - City of Springfield, 225 5th Street, Springfield, OR 
97477 or email to ap@springfield-or.gov.  The invoice must reference this contract #1628. 
 

4. Purchase Price.  Price for one (1) Pierce Velocity Custom Pumper shall not exceed the total of 
$593,108. 

 
5. Warranty.  Seller shall warrant one (1) Pierce Velocity Custom Pumper described Attachment 1 

“Warranties”. 
 

6. Sourcing. Permissive Cooperative Procurement in accordance with ORS 279A.215.  Purchased 
under Public Procurement Authority (PPA) Master Pricing Agreement with Pierce Manufacturing 
signed August 13, 2015. Seller is the exclusive authorized Pierce Manufacturing dealer for the State 
of Oregon.  Any conflicting terms and conditions the Master Pricing Agreement dated August 13, 
2016 take’s precedence. 

 
7. First Point of Contact.    

  Seller:  Nick Hendricks, nhendricks@hughesfire.com, 541.747.0072 
CITY:    Jana Sorenson, jsorenson@springfield-or.gov, 541.744.4150 

 

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 1 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 1 of 220

DRAFT

mailto:ap@springfield-or.gov
mailto:nhendricks@hughesfire.com
mailto:jsorenson@springfield-or.gov


 
      
 

8. Work Performed.  The work to be performed by Seller includes services generally performed by 
Seller in his/her/its usual line of business. 

 
9. Tax duties and Liabilities.  Seller shall be responsible for all federal, state and local taxes, if any, 

applicable to any payments received pursuant to this Agreement, including but not limited to income 
tax, payroll tax, social security and self-employment tax. CITY shall not withhold, pay, or in any other 
manner be responsible for payment of any taxes on behalf of Seller. 

 
10. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  Seller shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless City from 

and against all liability or loss and against all claims or actions based upon or arising out of damage 
or injury to persons or property caused by or sustained in connection with the performance of this 
Contract by Contractor except, pursuant to ORS 30.140, for losses, claims, or actions resulting from 
the sole negligence of City. 

 
The Seller shall assume all responsibilities for the work, and bear all losses and damages directly or 
indirectly resulting to the Seller, the City, or to others on account of the character or performance of 
the work, unforeseen difficulties, accidents, or any other cause whatsoever. The Seller shall assume 
defense of, indemnify and save harmless the City, its officials, agents, and employees from all 
claims, liability, loss, damage and injury of every kind, nature and description, directly or indirectly 
resulting from activities in the performance of the Contract, the ownership, maintenance or use of 
motor vehicles in connection therewith, or the acts, omissions, operations, or conduct of the Seller or 
any Subcontractor under the Contract or any way arising out of the Contract, irrespective of whether 
any act, omission or conduct of the City connected with the Contract is a condition or contributory 
cause of the claim, liability loss, damage or injury and irrespective or whether act, omission, or 
conduct of the Seller or Subcontractor is merely a condition rather than a cause of a claim, liability, 
loss damage or injury. The Seller shall not be liable for nor be required to defend or indemnify, the 
City relative to claims for damage or damages resulting solely from acts or omissions of the City, its 
officials, agents or employees. The absence of or inadequacy of the liability insurance required in 
section 12 shall not negate Seller’s obligations in this paragraph. 

 
11. Insurance.  

a. General Insurance.  The Seller shall maintain in force for the duration of this agreement a 
Commercial General Liability insurance policy written on an occurrence basis with limits not 
less than $2,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate for bodily injury or 
property damage. Automobile Liability (owned, non-owned and hired) insurance with limits 
not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained. The City, its employees, 
officials and agents will be named as an Additional Insured where operations are being 
conducted related to this contract, on the General Liability policy as respects to work or 
services performed under this agreement to the extent that the death or bodily injury to 
persons or damage to property arises out of the fault of the Seller or the fault of the Seller’s 
agents, representatives or subcontractors. This insurance will be primary over any insurance 
the City may carry on its own. If the City requires Professional Liability coverage, the City’s 
Risk Manager must approve the terms, conditions and limits. Seller understands that CITY is 
a public entity subject to the requirements of the Oregon Governmental Tort Claims Act, 
ORS 30.260 et seq.  In the event that CITY’S financial obligations or liabilities are modified 
by any amendment to the liability limits imposed by the Oregon Governmental Tort Claims 
Act, Seller agrees that the limits regarding liability insurance set forth in this Section 10 will 
be modified to conform to such limits.  Independent contractor and CITY shall sign an 
amendment to this Agreement incorporating such modification. 
 

b. Workers’ Compensation.  Seller shall provide and maintain workers’ compensation 
coverage for its employees, officers, agents, or partners, as required by applicable workers’ 
compensation laws.  If contractor is exempt from coverage, a written statement signed by 
Contractor so stating the reason for exemption shall be provided to the City. 

 
c. Evidence of Insurance Coverage.  Evidence of the required insurance coverages issued 

by an insurance company satisfactory to the City shall be provided to the City by way of a 
City approved certificate of insurance before any work or services commence. 

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 2 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 2 of 220

DRAFT



 
      
 

 
d. Notice of Cancellation or Material Change in Coverage.  All policies shall provide a 30 day 

notice of cancellation to the named insured. The Certificate of Insurance shall provide the following 
cancellation clause: Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration 
date thereof, notice will be delivered in accordance with the policy provisions.  

 
e. Equipment and Material. The Seller shall be responsible for any loss, damage, or 

destruction of its own property, equipment, and materials used in conjunction with the work. 
 

f. Subcontractors.  The Seller shall require all subcontractors to provide and maintain general 
liability, auto liability, professional liability (as applicable), and workers’ compensation 
insurance with coverage’s equivalent to those required of the general contractor in this 
contract. The Seller shall require certificates of insurance from all subcontractors as 
evidence of coverage.  

 
g. Exception or Waivers.   Any exception or waiver of these requirements shall be subject to 

review and approval from the City’s Risk Manager. 
 

12. Bonds. Delivery of all required bond(s) shall be a condition to the City’s obligation to make any 
payment under this Purchase Agreement. Each bond shall be issued solely for the protection of the 
City and executed solely by a surety company or companies holding a certificate of authority to 
transact surety business in Oregon. All bond(s) or other forms of surety shall be in a form approved 
by the City’s purchasing officer. This Price Agreement requires Seller to provide the Supply Bond 
described below: 
 

a. Supply Bond. A surety bond that guarantees Seller’s obligation to deliver a pumper that 
conforms to all applicable mechanical and performance specifications (“Supply Bond”) shall 
be issued for the pumper purchased under this Purchase Agreement. The Supply Bond for 
the pumper must be delivered to City within fifteen (15) calendar days after City’s execution 
of this Agreement and shall be maintained in full force and effect until the date of 
Acceptance of the pumper. The amount of the Supply Bond shall be for in the full amount 
contract to supply the pumper set forth in this Purchase Agreement. 

b. Nothing herein shall affect or limit the Manufactures warranty set forth in 5. Warranty. 
  

13. Access to Records.  CITY and its duly authorized representatives shall have access to books, 
documents, papers and records of Seller which are directly pertinent to this Agreement for the 
purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. 
 

14. Waiver.  Failure of CITY to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver or 
relinquishment by CITY of the right to such performance in the future nor of the right to enforce any 
other provision of this Agreement. 

 
15. Amendments.  The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or 

amended in any manner whatsoever, without prior written approval of CITY.  No modification of this 
Agreement shall bind either party unless reduced to writing and subscribed by both parties, or 
ordered by a Court. 

 
16. Nondiscrimination.  Seller shall comply with all applicable requirements of Federal and State civil 

rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations. 
 

17. Termination. The performance of work under this Agreement may be terminated by CITY, in whole 
or in part, whenever for any reason CITY shall determine that such termination is in the best interest 
of CITY.  Any such termination shall be effected by delivery to the Seller of a Notice of Termination 
specifying the extent to which performance of the work under the Agreement is terminated and the 
date on which such termination is effective.  Upon delivery to the Seller of a Notice of Termination 
under this paragraph, the Seller and CITY shall, by agreement, make an appropriate written 
modification to this Agreement governing completion of portions of the Seller’s work and payment 
therefore by CITY. 

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 3 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 3 of 220

DRAFT



 
      
 

 
18. Assignment/Subcontract.  Seller shall not assign, sell, transfer, subcontract or sublet rights, or 

delegate responsibilities under this agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written approval 
of CITY.  No such written approval shall relieve Seller of any obligations of this Agreement, and any 
transferee or subcontractor shall be considered the agent of Seller.  Seller shall remain liable as 
between the original parties to this Agreement as if no such assignment had occurred. 

 
19. Successors in Interest.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to 

the benefit of the parties to this Agreement and their respective successors and assigns.   
 

20. Compliance with All Government Regulations.  Seller shall comply with all Federal, State and 
local laws, codes, regulations and ordinances applicable to the work performed under this 
Agreement.  Failure to comply with such requirements shall constitute a breach of contract and shall 
be grounds for termination of this Agreement.  Damages or costs resulting from noncompliance shall 
be the sole responsibility of Seller. 

 
21. Attorney Fees.  In the event a lawsuit of any kind is instituted on behalf of CITY to enforce any 

provision of this Agreement, Seller shall pay such additional sums as the Court may adjudge 
reasonable for attorney fees plus all costs and disbursements at trial and on any appeal. 

 
22. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Agreement shall be held responsible for delay or default 

caused by fire, riot, acts of God and/or war which is beyond that party’s reasonable control.  CITY 
may terminate this Agreement upon written notice after determining such delay or default will 
unreasonably prevent successful performance of the Agreement.   

 
23. Conditions, Benefits:  Other contracting agencies may use this competitive process and contract, 

with no material change in the Original Contract requirements, terms, conditions or prices as a basis 
for executing a separate agreement in their own name with the Seller.  Any Amendments must be 
generally stated, in Writing, in the Solicitation Document and the Original Contract pursuant to OAR 
1425-247-0805 and OAR 137-047-0800.  Any material, goods or services sold by Seller to such 
other agencies shall be ordered by, delivered to, and paid by that agency.  By acting to contract with 
another contracting agency under this provision, Seller agrees to indemnify and hold the City of 
Springfield, its Councilors, officers, employees and agents harmless from any claim arising out of: 
the appropriateness of another contracting agency’s decision to use Springfield’s competitive 
process and the material contract terms in this Contract; procedural obligations such other 
contracting agency may have had under ORS 279A.215, ORS 279A.220 and ORS 279A.225 in 
order to use the City of Springfield’s process and contract terms; Seller’s and such other agency’s 
adoption of different contract terms; and, their performance or failure to perform the contractual 
obligations of their separate agreement.   

 
24. Remedies, Choice of Law, Forum, Construction of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be governed 

and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon, apart from choice of law 
provisions.  The parties agree that the Circuit Court for the County of Lane, State of Oregon, or the 
Federal District Court of the State of Oregon (Eugene) is the sole and proper forum for resolving any 
disputes involving this Agreement, any breach of this Agreement, or relating to its subject matter.  The 
Parties agree to submit themselves to the jurisdiction of such courts without challenge to the jurisdiction 
of these courts. This Agreement shall not be construed more favorably to Licensee due to the 
preparation of this Agreement by Licensor.  The headings and subheadings in this Agreement are 
for convenience, do not form a part of this Agreement, and shall not be used in construing this 
Agreement. 

25. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement signed by both parties is the parties’ final and entire Agreement 
and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous oral or written communications between the parties, 
their agents and representatives.  There are no representations, promises, terms, conditions or 
obligations other than those contained herein. 
 

 
 

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 4 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 4 of 220

DRAFT



 
      
 

 
 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD:  SELLER:     
   
By:   By:  
Name:   Name:  
Title:   Title:  
Date:   Date:  
     
 

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 5 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 5 of 220

DRAFT



ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 6 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 6 of 220

DRAFT



P i e r c e  M a n u f a c t u r i n g  I n c .  
 
AN OSHKOSH CORPORATION COMPANY   ISO 9001:2000  CERTIFIED  
 

2600 AMERICAN DRIVE 

POST OFFICE BOX 2017 

APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54912-2017 

920-832-3000  FAX 920-832-3208 

www.piercemfg.com 

 

March 1, 2016 
 

City of Springfield  
225 Fifth Street  
Springfield, Oregon 97477 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. and Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc. are pleased to offer for your consideration 
the enclosed proposal for One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603 per your request for proposal. 

 
The price for this Velocity Pumper is $631,617.00 F.O.B. Springfield, OR. The unit would be ready for pick 
up from the factory within 9.5 to 12 calendar months after execution of the contract. * Final payment is due 30 
days after the unit leaves the factory for delivery. 

 
*Please note: The delivery time referenced above indicates when the unit will be ready for delivery from 
the factory. This does not include the time it will take to transport the unit to the local dealer, complete the pre-
delivery inspection and other items to satisfy contract requirements, and transported to the customer location. 
Delivery time is subject to change prior to contract execution. 

 

Price Recap 
Description Dollar Amount 
Price of Velocity Chassis – includes the following: $344,523.00 
     Engine $86,670.00  
     Transmission $29,276.00  
     Paint/Graphics Options $5,462.00  
Price of Velocity Body – includes the following: 285,393.00 

 
 

      Fire Suppression System $91,644.00  
    Audible Warning Systems $6,008.00  
    Visual Warning Systems $16,464.00  
   Fixed Scene Lighting $13,310.00  
Supply Bond      1,701.00 

 Sub-Total for One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603 631,617.00 
  Less Discount for Chassis Progress Payment in the amount of $344,523.00  -10,336.00 

 Less Payment at time of Completion at the Factory Discount    -6,924.00 
 Less 100% Pre-Payment Discount  -15,048.00 

 Total Unit Price Including all Available Discounts          $593,108.00 
 
Terms: 
 
Chassis Progress Payment – If elected, payment will be due three (3) months prior to the ready for pick up from 
the factory date.  
 
Payment upon Completion of the Unit at the Factory – If elected, final payment will be due prior to the unit leaving 
the factory for delivery.  
 
100% Pre-Payment Discount – If elected, payment for the entire contract amount will be due within thirty (30) days 
of contract execution. This deduction is in addition to all other discounts listed above. If this option is elected, final 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 7 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 7 of 220

DRAFT



payment for any changes processed during manufacturing will be due prior to the unit leaving the factory for 
delivery.  
 
Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc., located in Springfield, Oregon, is the Pierce dealer for your territory and can be 
reached by calling 800-747-6510. 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc., a subsidiary of Oshkosh Corporation, has been in the manufacturing business since 
1913 in Appleton, Wisconsin, and also has facilities located in Weyauwega, Wisconsin and Bradenton, Florida. 
 
This proposal is subject to the terms and conditions of the Public Procurement Authority Master Price 
Agreement, between Public Procurement Authority and Pierce Manufacturing, which was signed on August 
13, 2015. 
 
We would like to thank you for inviting us to submit a proposal for this equipment. If we can be of further 
assistance, please feel free to contact us. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

   
Rex Hughes Nick Hendricks 
Sales Representative Sales Representative 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
NH/st 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 8 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 8 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603 Page 1 of 119 

GENERAL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION .................................................................................................. 10 
QUALITY AND WORKMANSHIP ..................................................................................................................... 10 
DELIVERY ............................................................................................................................................................ 11 
MANUAL AND SERVICE INFORMATION ...................................................................................................... 11 
SAFETY VIDEO ................................................................................................................................................... 11 
PERFORMANCE TESTS ................................................................................................................................... 11 
SERVICE AND WARRANTY SUPPORT......................................................................................................... 12 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE .................................................................................... 12 
SINGLE SOURCE MANUFACTURER ............................................................................................................ 12 
NFPA 2016 STANDARDS ................................................................................................................................. 13 
NFPA COMPLIANCY .......................................................................................................................................... 13 
VEHICLE INSPECTION PROGRAM CERTIFICATION ................................................................................ 13 
PUMP TEST ......................................................................................................................................................... 13 
GENERATOR TEST ............................................................................................................................................ 13 
BREATHING AIR TEST ..................................................................................................................................... 13 
R & D FACILITY .................................................................................................................................................. 14 
WEB EX CONFERENCE .................................................................................................................................... 14 
THIRD-PARTY WEEKLY CONSTRUCTION PHOTO REPORTS ............................................................... 14 
BID BOND NOT REQUESTED ......................................................................................................................... 14 
PERFORMANCE BOND, 1 YEAR .................................................................................................................... 15 
APPROVAL DRAWING ...................................................................................................................................... 15 
DRAWING, PRELIMINARY LAYOUT, PUMP OPERATOR'S PANEL ...................................................... 15 
DIAGRAM, ELECTRICAL DC CIRCUITS ....................................................................................................... 15 
ELECTRICAL WIRING DIAGRAMS ................................................................................................................ 15 
VELOCITY CHASSIS .......................................................................................................................................... 16 
WHEELBASE ....................................................................................................................................................... 16 
GVW RATING ...................................................................................................................................................... 16 
FRAME .................................................................................................................................................................. 16 
FRONT NON DRIVE AXLE ................................................................................................................................ 16 
FRONT SUSPENSION ....................................................................................................................................... 17 
FRONT SHOCK ABSORBERS ......................................................................................................................... 17 
FRONT OIL SEALS ............................................................................................................................................ 17 
FRONT TIRES ...................................................................................................................................................... 17 
REAR AXLE ......................................................................................................................................................... 17 
TOP SPEED OF VEHICLE ................................................................................................................................. 18 
REAR SUSPENSION .......................................................................................................................................... 18 
REAR OIL SEALS ............................................................................................................................................... 18 
REAR TIRES ........................................................................................................................................................ 18 
TIRE BALANCE ................................................................................................................................................... 18 
TIRE PRESSURE MANAGEMENT .................................................................................................................. 18 
FRONT HUB COVERS ....................................................................................................................................... 18 
REAR HUB COVERS ......................................................................................................................................... 18 
AUTOMATIC TIRE CHAINS .............................................................................................................................. 19 
CHROME LUG NUT COVERS .......................................................................................................................... 19 
MUD FLAPS ......................................................................................................................................................... 19 
WHEEL CHOCKS PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT ............................................................................ 19 
WHEEL CHOCK BRACKETS, PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT ....................................................... 19 
ELECTRONIC STABILITY CONTROL ............................................................................................................ 19 
ANTI-LOCK BRAKE SYSTEM .......................................................................................................................... 19 
AUTOMATIC TRACTION CONTROL .............................................................................................................. 20 
BRAKES ............................................................................................................................................................... 20 
AIR COMPRESSOR, BRAKE SYSTEM .......................................................................................................... 20 
BRAKE SYSTEM ................................................................................................................................................. 20 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 9 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 9 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603 Page 2 of 119 

BRAKE SYSTEM AIR DRYER .......................................................................................................................... 21 
BRAKE LINES ..................................................................................................................................................... 21 
AIR INLET WITH AUTOMATIC EJECT ........................................................................................................... 21 
AIR OUTLET ........................................................................................................................................................ 21 
COVER OVER AIR INLET ................................................................................................................................. 21 
AIR TANK, ADDITIONAL ................................................................................................................................... 21 
ALL WHEEL LOCK-UP ...................................................................................................................................... 21 
AUTOMATIC MOISTURE EJECTOR(S) ......................................................................................................... 22 
ENGINE .................................................................................................................................................................  22 
HIGH IDLE ............................................................................................................................................................ 22 
ENGINE BRAKE .................................................................................................................................................. 22 
CLUTCH FAN ....................................................................................................................................................... 23 
ENGINE HEATER ................................................................................................................................................ 23 
ENGINE AIR INTAKE ......................................................................................................................................... 23 
EXHAUST SYSTEM ............................................................................................................................................ 23 
RADIATOR ........................................................................................................................................................... 23 
COOLANT LINES ................................................................................................................................................ 24 
FUEL TANK .......................................................................................................................................................... 24 
DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID TANK ..................................................................................................................... 25 
AUXILIARY FUEL PUMP ................................................................................................................................... 25 
FUEL COOLER .................................................................................................................................................... 25 
LABEL, FUEL DOOR ......................................................................................................................................... 25 
TRANSMISSION .................................................................................................................................................. 25 
TRANSMISSION SHIFTER ................................................................................................................................ 25 
TRANSMISSION COOLER ................................................................................................................................ 25 
DRIVELINE ........................................................................................................................................................... 26 
STEERING ............................................................................................................................................................ 26 
STEERING WHEEL ............................................................................................................................................ 26 
LOGO AND CUSTOMER DESIGNATION ON HORN BUTTON ................................................................. 26 
BUMPER ............................................................................................................................................................... 27 
CENTER HOSE TRAY ........................................................................................................................................ 27 
CENTER HOSE TRAY COVER ........................................................................................................................ 27 
LIFT AND TOW MOUNTS ................................................................................................................................. 27 
TOW EYES ........................................................................................................................................................... 28 
CAB ........................................................................................................................................................................ 28 
INTERIOR CAB INSULATION .......................................................................................................................... 29 
FENDER LINERS ................................................................................................................................................ 29 
PANORAMIC WINDSHIELD ............................................................................................................................. 29 
WINDSHIELD WIPERS ...................................................................................................................................... 29 
FAST SERVICE ACCESS FRONT TILT HOOD ............................................................................................ 30 
ENGINE TUNNEL ................................................................................................................................................ 30 
CAB REAR WALL EXTERIOR COVERING ................................................................................................... 30 
CAB LIFT .............................................................................................................................................................. 30 
GRILLE .................................................................................................................................................................. 31 
DOOR JAMB SCUFFPLATES .......................................................................................................................... 31 
SCUFFPLATE ...................................................................................................................................................... 31 
FRONT CAB TRIM .............................................................................................................................................. 31 
MIRRORS ............................................................................................................................................................. 31 
CAB DOORS ........................................................................................................................................................ 32 
RECESSED POCKET WITH ELASTIC COVER ............................................................................................ 33 
ELECTRIC WINDOW CONTROLS .................................................................................................................. 33 
ELECTRIC CAB DOOR LOCKS ....................................................................................................................... 33 
CAB STEPS ......................................................................................................................................................... 33 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 10 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 10 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603 Page 3 of 119 

STEP LIGHTS ...................................................................................................................................................... 33 
FENDER CROWNS ............................................................................................................................................. 34 
INTERIOR CREW CAB DOOR HANDRAIL ................................................................................................... 34 
HANDRAILS (ADDITIONAL) ............................................................................................................................. 34 
FRONT WINDOWS FOR RAISED ROOF ....................................................................................................... 34 
WINDOWS, REAR ............................................................................................................................................... 34 
WINDOW INTERIOR TRIM ................................................................................................................................ 34 
MOUNTING PLATE ON ENGINE TUNNEL .................................................................................................... 34 
CAB INTERIOR.................................................................................................................................................... 35 
CAB INTERIOR UPHOLSTERY ....................................................................................................................... 35 
CAB INTERIOR PAINT....................................................................................................................................... 35 
CAB FLOOR ......................................................................................................................................................... 36 
CAB DEFROSTER .............................................................................................................................................. 36 
CAB/CREW CAB HEATER ............................................................................................................................... 36 
AIR CONDITIONING ........................................................................................................................................... 36 
INTERIOR CAB INSULATION .......................................................................................................................... 37 
SUN VISORS ........................................................................................................................................................ 37 
GRAB HANDLE ................................................................................................................................................... 38 
ENGINE COMPARTMENT LIGHT .................................................................................................................... 38 
ACCESS TO ENGINE DIPSTICKS .................................................................................................................. 38 
MAP BOX .............................................................................................................................................................. 38 
SEATING CAPACITY ......................................................................................................................................... 38 
DRIVER SEAT ..................................................................................................................................................... 38 
OFFICER SEAT ................................................................................................................................................... 39 
REAR FACING DRIVER SIDE EMS COMPARTMENT ................................................................................ 39 
EMS COMPARTMENT ....................................................................................................................................... 39 
FORWARD FACING CENTER SEATS ........................................................................................................... 40 
FORWARD FACING PASSENGER SIDE OUTBOARD SEAT ................................................................... 40 
DOOR PAN SCUFFPLATE ............................................................................................................................... 40 
MATTING IN EMS COMPARTMENT ............................................................................................................... 40 
SEAT UPHOLSTERY ......................................................................................................................................... 41 
AIR BOTTLE HOLDERS .................................................................................................................................... 41 
SEAT BELTS ....................................................................................................................................................... 41 
SHOULDER HARNESS HEIGHT ADJUSTMENT ......................................................................................... 41 
HELMET STORAGE PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT ........................................................................ 41 
CAB DOME LIGHTS ........................................................................................................................................... 41 
OVERHEAD MAP LIGHTS ................................................................................................................................ 42 
MAP LIGHT .......................................................................................................................................................... 42 
HAND HELD LIGHT ............................................................................................................................................ 42 
HAND HELD LIGHT ............................................................................................................................................ 42 
CAB INSTRUMENTATION ................................................................................................................................ 42 
GAUGES ............................................................................................................................................................... 43 
INDICATOR LAMPS ........................................................................................................................................... 44 
ALARMS ............................................................................................................................................................... 45 
INDICATOR LAMP AND ALARM PROVE-OUT ............................................................................................ 46 
CONTROL SWITCHES ....................................................................................................................................... 46 
CUSTOM SWITCH PANELS ............................................................................................................................. 47 
DIAGNOSTIC PANEL ......................................................................................................................................... 47 
CAB LCD DISPLAY ............................................................................................................................................ 48 
AIR RESTRICTION INDICATOR ...................................................................................................................... 48 
"DO NOT MOVE APPARATUS" INDICATOR ............................................................................................... 48 
DO NOT MOVE TRUCK MESSAGES ............................................................................................................. 49 
SWITCH PANELS ............................................................................................................................................... 49 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 11 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 11 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 4 of 119 

WIPER CONTROL .............................................................................................................................................. 50 
SPARE CIRCUIT ................................................................................................................................................. 50 
SPARE CIRCUIT ................................................................................................................................................. 50 
SPARE CIRCUIT ................................................................................................................................................. 51 
RECESS, DASH PANEL .................................................................................................................................... 51 
INFORMATION CENTER ................................................................................................................................... 51 
VEHICLE DATA RECORDER ........................................................................................................................... 54 
RADIO ANTENNA MOUNT ............................................................................................................................... 55 
VEHICLE CAMERA SYSTEM ........................................................................................................................... 56 
ELECTRICAL POWER CONTROL SYSTEM ................................................................................................. 56 
SOLID-STATE CONTROL SYSTEM ................................................................................................................ 56 
CIRCUIT PROTECTION AND CONTROL DIAGRAM .................................................................................. 57 
ON-BOARD ADVANCED/VISUAL ELECTRICAL SYSTEM DIAGNOSTICS ........................................... 57 
TECH MODULE WITH WIFI .............................................................................................................................. 58 
PROGNOSTICS ................................................................................................................................................... 58 
INDICATOR LIGHT AND ALARM PROVE-OUT SYSTEM .......................................................................... 59 
VOLTAGE MONITOR SYSTEM ........................................................................................................................ 59 
DEDICATED RADIO EQUIPMENT CONNECTION POINTS ....................................................................... 59 
ENHANCED SOFTWARE .................................................................................................................................. 59 
EMI/RFI PROTECTION....................................................................................................................................... 60 
ELECTRICAL ....................................................................................................................................................... 60 
BATTERY SYSTEM ............................................................................................................................................ 61 
BATTERY SYSTEM ............................................................................................................................................ 61 
MASTER BATTERY SWITCH ........................................................................................................................... 61 
BATTERY COMPARTMENTS .......................................................................................................................... 62 
JUMPER STUDS ................................................................................................................................................. 62 
BATTERY CHARGER ........................................................................................................................................ 62 
AUTO EJECT FOR SHORELINE ..................................................................................................................... 62 
ALTERNATOR ..................................................................................................................................................... 63 
DUAL USB SOCKET .......................................................................................................................................... 63 
ELECTRONIC LOAD MANAGER .................................................................................................................... 63 
SEQUENCER ....................................................................................................................................................... 64 
DIRECTIONAL LIGHTS ..................................................................................................................................... 64 
ADDITIONAL DIRECTIONAL LIGHT .............................................................................................................. 65 
CAB CLEARANCE/MARKER/ID LIGHTS ...................................................................................................... 65 
REAR CLEARANCE/MARKER/ID LIGHTING ............................................................................................... 65 
REAR FMVSS LIGHTING .................................................................................................................................. 66 
LICENSE PLATE BRACKET ............................................................................................................................ 66 
LIGHTING BEZEL ............................................................................................................................................... 66 
ADDITIONAL BRAKE/TAIL LIGHT .................................................................................................................. 66 
BACK-UP ALARM .............................................................................................................................................. 66 
SWITCH, BACK-UP ALARM OVERRIDE ....................................................................................................... 67 
MARKER LIGHTS ............................................................................................................................................... 67 
CAB PERIMETER SCENE LIGHTS ................................................................................................................. 67 
PUMP HOUSE PERIMETER LIGHTS .............................................................................................................. 67 
BODY PERIMETER SCENE LIGHTS .............................................................................................................. 67 
STEP LIGHTS ...................................................................................................................................................... 67 
12 VOLT LIGHT BRACKET ............................................................................................................................... 68 
12 VOLT LIGHTING ............................................................................................................................................ 68 
12 VOLT LIGHTING ............................................................................................................................................ 68 
12 VOLT LIGHTING ............................................................................................................................................ 68 
12 VOLT LIGHTING ............................................................................................................................................ 69 
12 VOLT LIGHTING ............................................................................................................................................ 69 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 12 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 12 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 5 of 119 

12 VOLT LIGHTING ............................................................................................................................................ 69 
HOSE BED LIGHTS ............................................................................................................................................ 70 
MASTER SWITCH FOR CLEAR/WHITE WARNING LIGHTS .................................................................... 70 
WATER TANK...................................................................................................................................................... 70 
HOSE BED ........................................................................................................................................................... 71 
HOSE BED DIVIDER .......................................................................................................................................... 71 
BACKBOARD STORAGE COMPARTMENT ................................................................................................. 72 
HOSE BUNDLE STORAGE COMPARTMENT .............................................................................................. 72 
HOSE BED COVER ............................................................................................................................................ 72 
RUNNING BOARDS ........................................................................................................................................... 73 
TAILBOARD ......................................................................................................................................................... 73 
REAR WALL, SMOOTH ALUMINUM/BODY MATERIAL ............................................................................ 73 
TOW BARS ........................................................................................................................................................... 73 
HITCH RECEIVER ............................................................................................................................................... 73 
COMPARTMENTATION ..................................................................................................................................... 74 
UNDERBODY SUPPORT SYSTEM ................................................................................................................. 74 
AGGRESSIVE WALKING SURFACE .............................................................................................................. 75 
LOUVERS ............................................................................................................................................................. 75 
TESTING OF BODY DESIGN ........................................................................................................................... 75 
COMPARTMENTATION, DRIVER'S SIDE ..................................................................................................... 75 
COMPARTMENTATION, PASSENGER'S SIDE ........................................................................................... 76 
DOORS, SIDE COMPARTMENT ...................................................................................................................... 77 
COMPARTMENTATION, REAR ....................................................................................................................... 77 
ROLLUP DOOR, REAR COMPARTMENT ..................................................................................................... 78 
REVERSE HINGED DOOR ................................................................................................................................ 78 
DOOR FRAME SCUFFPLATE .......................................................................................................................... 78 
SCUFFPLATE ON INTERIOR OF COMPARTMENT DOOR(S).................................................................. 78 
COMPARTMENT LIGHTING ............................................................................................................................. 78 
MOUNTING TRACKS ......................................................................................................................................... 79 
ADJUSTABLE SHELVES .................................................................................................................................. 79 
SLIDE-OUT FLOOR MOUNTED TRAY ........................................................................................................... 79 
MATTING, COMPARTMENT SHELVING ....................................................................................................... 80 
MATTING, COMPARTMENT FLOOR .............................................................................................................. 80 
PARTITION, TRANSVERSE REAR COMPARTMENT ................................................................................. 80 
MOUNTING TRACKS ......................................................................................................................................... 80 
RUB RAIL ............................................................................................................................................................. 80 
BODY FENDER CROWNS ................................................................................................................................ 80 
HARD SUCTION HOSE ..................................................................................................................................... 80 
HOSE TROUGHS ................................................................................................................................................ 80 
HANDRAILS ......................................................................................................................................................... 81 
HANDRAILS ......................................................................................................................................................... 81 
AIR BOTTLE STORAGE (DOUBLE) ............................................................................................................... 81 
AIR BOTTLE STORAGE (SINGLE) ................................................................................................................. 81 
EXTENSION LADDER ........................................................................................................................................ 81 
ROOF LADDER ................................................................................................................................................... 82 
HYDRAULIC LADDER RACK ........................................................................................................................... 82 
LADDER RACK INTERLOCK AND NOT STOWED INDICATOR LIGHT ................................................. 82 
LIGHTS, FLASHING, HYDRAULIC LADDER RACK ................................................................................... 83 
FOLDING LADDER ............................................................................................................................................. 83 
ADDITIONAL FOLDING LADDER ................................................................................................................... 83 
PIKE POLE, 4' ...................................................................................................................................................... 83 
8' PIKE POLE ....................................................................................................................................................... 83 
PIKE POLE, 8' ...................................................................................................................................................... 83 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 13 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 13 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 6 of 119 

PIKE POLE, 6' ...................................................................................................................................................... 83 
PIKE POLE STORAGE ...................................................................................................................................... 83 
PIKE POLE STORAGE ...................................................................................................................................... 84 
BELL ...................................................................................................................................................................... 84 
STEPS ................................................................................................................................................................... 84 
REAR FOLDING STEPS .................................................................................................................................... 84 
PUMP ..................................................................................................................................................................... 84 
PUMP TRANSMISSION ..................................................................................................................................... 85 
AIR PUMP SHIFT ................................................................................................................................................ 86 
TRANSMISSION LOCK-UP ............................................................................................................................... 86 
AUXILIARY COOLING SYSTEM ...................................................................................................................... 86 
TRANSFER VALVE ............................................................................................................................................ 86 
INTAKE RELIEF VALVE .................................................................................................................................... 87 
PRESSURE CONTROLLER .............................................................................................................................. 87 
PRIMING PUMP ................................................................................................................................................... 87 
RECIRCULATING LINE WITH CHECK VALVE ............................................................................................ 87 
PUMP MANUALS ................................................................................................................................................ 88 
PLUMBING, STAINLESS STEEL AND HOSE ............................................................................................... 88 
MAIN PUMP INLETS .......................................................................................................................................... 88 
MAIN PUMP INLET CAP ................................................................................................................................... 88 
SHORT SUCTION TUBE ................................................................................................................................... 88 
VALVES ................................................................................................................................................................ 88 
LEFT SIDE INLET ............................................................................................................................................... 89 
RIGHT SIDE INLET ............................................................................................................................................. 89 
ANODE, INLET .................................................................................................................................................... 89 
INLET CONTROL ................................................................................................................................................ 89 
INLET BLEEDER VALVE .................................................................................................................................. 89 
TANK TO PUMP .................................................................................................................................................. 89 
TANK REFILL ...................................................................................................................................................... 89 
LEFT SIDE DISCHARGE OUTLETS ............................................................................................................... 90 
RIGHT SIDE DISCHARGE OUTLETS ............................................................................................................. 90 
LARGE DIAMETER DISCHARGE OUTLET ................................................................................................... 90 
FRONT DISCHARGE OUTLET ......................................................................................................................... 90 
FRONT OF HOSE BED DISCHARGE OUTLET ............................................................................................ 90 
DISCHARGE CAPS ............................................................................................................................................ 90 
OUTLET BLEEDERS .......................................................................................................................................... 90 
LEFT SIDE OUTLET ELBOWS ........................................................................................................................ 91 
RIGHT SIDE OUTLET ELBOWS ...................................................................................................................... 91 
LARGE DIAMETER OUTLET ELBOWS ......................................................................................................... 91 
DISCHARGE OUTLET CONTROLS ................................................................................................................ 91 
DELUGE RISER .................................................................................................................................................. 91 
TELESCOPIC PIPING ........................................................................................................................................ 91 
CROSSLAY HOSE BEDS .................................................................................................................................. 92 
CROSSLAY/DEADLAY HOSE RESTRAINT .................................................................................................. 92 
CROSSLAY/DEADLAY HOSE RESTRAINT .................................................................................................. 92 
BOOSTER HOSE REEL..................................................................................................................................... 92 
FOAM PROPORTIONER ................................................................................................................................... 93 
SYSTEM CAPACITY .......................................................................................................................................... 93 
CONTROL SYSTEM ........................................................................................................................................... 93 
LOW LEVEL, FOAM TANK ............................................................................................................................... 94 
HYDRAULIC DRIVE SYSTEM .......................................................................................................................... 94 
FOAM CONCENTRATE PUMP ........................................................................................................................ 94 
EXTERNAL FOAM CONCENTRATE CONNECTION ................................................................................... 95 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 14 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 14 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 7 of 119 

PANEL MOUNTED STRAINER/EXTERNAL PICK-UP CONNECTION..................................................... 95 
PICK-UP HOSE .................................................................................................................................................... 95 
DISCHARGES ...................................................................................................................................................... 95 
SYSTEM ELECTRICAL LOAD ......................................................................................................................... 95 
FOAM SUPPLY VALVE ..................................................................................................................................... 95 
MAINTENANCE MESSAGE .............................................................................................................................. 95 
FLUSH SYSTEM .................................................................................................................................................. 95 
REFILL, FOAM TANKS ...................................................................................................................................... 96 
FOAM TANK ........................................................................................................................................................ 96 
FOAM TANK DRAIN ........................................................................................................................................... 96 
FOAM CELL ......................................................................................................................................................... 96 
FOAM TANK DRAIN ........................................................................................................................................... 97 
PUMP COMPARTMENT .................................................................................................................................... 97 
PUMP MOUNTING .............................................................................................................................................. 97 
LEFT SIDE PUMP CONTROL PANELS ......................................................................................................... 97 
IDENTIFICATION TAGS .................................................................................................................................... 98 
PUMP PANEL CONFIGURATION .................................................................................................................... 98 
PUMP AND GAUGE PANEL ............................................................................................................................. 98 
PUMP COMPARTMENT LIGHT ....................................................................................................................... 98 
AIR HORN SWITCH ............................................................................................................................................ 99 
VACUUM AND PRESSURE GAUGES ............................................................................................................ 99 
PRESSURE GAUGES ........................................................................................................................................ 99 
WATER LEVEL GAUGE .................................................................................................................................... 99 
WATER LEVEL GAUGE .................................................................................................................................. 100 
FOAM LEVEL GAUGE ..................................................................................................................................... 100 
STEP/LIGHT SHIELD ....................................................................................................................................... 101 
ADDITIONAL STEP/LIGHT SHIELD .............................................................................................................. 101 
AIR HORN SYSTEM ......................................................................................................................................... 102 
AIR HORN CONTROL ...................................................................................................................................... 102 
PASSENGER SIDE AIR HORN FOOTSWITCH CONTROL ...................................................................... 102 
ELECTRONIC SIREN ....................................................................................................................................... 102 
SIREN CONTROL ............................................................................................................................................. 102 
SPEAKER ........................................................................................................................................................... 102 
AUXILIARY MECHANICAL SIREN ................................................................................................................ 102 
FRONT ZONE UPPER WARNING LIGHTS ................................................................................................. 103 
CAB FACE WARNING LIGHTS ...................................................................................................................... 103 
DAYTIME RUNNING LIGHTS (HEADLIGHTS)............................................................................................ 104 
HEADLIGHT FLASHER ................................................................................................................................... 104 
SIDE ZONE LOWER LIGHTING ..................................................................................................................... 104 
INTERIOR CAB DOOR WARNING LIGHTS ................................................................................................ 105 
SIDE WARNING LIGHTS ................................................................................................................................. 105 
SIDE WARNING LIGHTS ................................................................................................................................. 105 
SIDE WARNING LIGHTS ................................................................................................................................. 105 
REAR ZONE LOWER LIGHTING ................................................................................................................... 106 
REAR WARNING LIGHTS ............................................................................................................................... 106 
MOUNTING, RECESS LIGHT ......................................................................................................................... 106 
REAR UPPER ZONE WARNING LIGHTS .................................................................................................... 106 
TRAFFIC DIRECTING LIGHT ......................................................................................................................... 106 
LIGHT TOWER .................................................................................................................................................. 107 
AIRPORT LIGHT ............................................................................................................................................... 107 
120 VOLT RECEPTACLE ................................................................................................................................ 107 
LADDER HOOK EXTENSION ......................................................................................................................... 108 
NFPA REQUIRED LOOSE EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT .................................. 108 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 15 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 15 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 8 of 119 

SOFT SUCTION HOSE .................................................................................................................................... 109 
STRAINER PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT ....................................................................................... 109 
AXE MOUNTING ............................................................................................................................................... 109 
DRY CHEMICAL EXTINGUISHER PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT .............................................. 109 
WATER EXTINGUISHER PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT .............................................................. 109 
PAINT - BODY PAINTED TO MATCH CAB ................................................................................................. 110 
PAINT CHASSIS FRAME ASSEMBLY ......................................................................................................... 112 
COMPARTMENT INTERIOR PAINT .............................................................................................................. 112 
REFLECTIVE BAND ......................................................................................................................................... 112 
REAR CHEVRON STRIPING .......................................................................................................................... 112 
DIAMOND GRADE CHEVRON STRIPE ON HYDRAULIC LADDER RACK .......................................... 113 
INVERTED "V" CHEVRON STRIPING ON CAB AND CREW CAB DOORS ......................................... 113 
CAB STRIPE ...................................................................................................................................................... 113 
LETTERING ........................................................................................................................................................ 113 
LETTERING ........................................................................................................................................................ 113 
LETTERING ........................................................................................................................................................ 113 
LETTERING ........................................................................................................................................................ 113 
LETTERING ........................................................................................................................................................ 113 
LETTERING ........................................................................................................................................................ 113 
PAINTED PLATE(S) FOR LETTERING/NUMERALS ................................................................................. 113 
EMBLEM ............................................................................................................................................................. 114 
MALTESE CROSS INSTALLATION .............................................................................................................. 114 
EMBLEM ............................................................................................................................................................. 114 
FIRE APPARATUS PARTS CD MANUAL .................................................................................................... 114 
CHASSIS SERVICE CD MANUALS .............................................................................................................. 114 
CHASSIS OPERATION CD MANUALS ........................................................................................................ 115 
ONE (1) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP .................................................................................... 115 
THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP ............................................................................... 115 
ENGINE WARRANTY ....................................................................................................................................... 115 
STEERING GEAR WARRANTY ..................................................................................................................... 115 
FIFTY (50) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY ............................................................................................ 115 
FRONT AXLE THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY ............................. 115 
REAR AXLE TWO (2) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY ................................... 115 
ABS BRAKE SYSTEM THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY ............. 115 
TEN (10) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY ............................................................................................... 115 
TEN (10) YEAR PRO-RATED PAINT AND CORROSION ......................................................................... 116 
FIVE (5) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP .................................................................................... 116 
CAMERA SYSTEM WARRANTY ................................................................................................................... 116 
TRANSMISSION WARRANTY ........................................................................................................................ 116 
TRANSMISSION COOLER WARRANTY ..................................................................................................... 116 
WATER TANK WARRANTY ........................................................................................................................... 116 
TEN (10) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY ............................................................................................... 116 
ROLL UP DOOR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY ........................................................ 116 
PUMP WARRANTY .......................................................................................................................................... 116 
TEN (10) YEAR PUMP PLUMBING WARRANTY ....................................................................................... 116 
FOAM SYSTEM WARRANTY ......................................................................................................................... 116 
TEN (10) YEAR PRO-RATED PAINT AND CORROSION ......................................................................... 117 
THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP ............................................................................... 117 
VEHICLE STABILITY CERTIFICATION ........................................................................................................ 117 
ENGINE INSTALLATION CERTIFICATION ................................................................................................. 117 
POWER STEERING CERTIFICATION .......................................................................................................... 117 
CAB INTEGRITY CERTIFICATION ................................................................................................................ 117 
CAB DOOR DURABILITY CERTIFICATION ................................................................................................ 118 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 16 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 16 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 9 of 119 

WINDSHIELD WIPER DURABILITY CERTIFICATION .............................................................................. 118 
ELECTRIC WINDOW DURABILITY CERTIFICATION ............................................................................... 118 
SEAT BELT ANCHOR STRENGTH ............................................................................................................... 118 
SEAT MOUNTING STRENGTH ...................................................................................................................... 118 
CAB DEFROSTER CERTIFICATION ............................................................................................................ 118 
CAB HEATER CERTIFICATION .................................................................................................................... 119 
CAB AIR CONDITIONING PERFORMANCE CERTIFICATION ............................................................... 119 
AMP DRAW REPORT ...................................................................................................................................... 119 

 

  

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 17 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 17 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 10 of 119 

Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc. is pleased to submit a proposal to City of Springfield Fire 
Department for a Pierce® triple combination pumper per your request for quotation.  The 
following paragraphs will describe in detail the apparatus, construction methods, and equipment 
proposed.  This proposal will indicate size, type, model and make of components parts and 
equipment, providing proof of compliance with each and every item (except where noted) in the 
departments advertised specifications. 

PIERCE MANUFACTURING was founded in 1913.  Since then we have been building bodies 
with one philosophy, "BUILD THE FINEST".  Our skilled craftsmen take pride in their work, 
which is reflected, in the final product.  We have been building fire apparatus since the early 
"forties" giving Pierce Manufacturing over 60 years of experience in the fire apparatus market.  
Pierce Manufacturing has built and put into service more than 51,000 apparatus, including more 
than 27,000 on Pierce custom chassis designed and built specifically for fire and emergency 
applications.  Our Appleton, Wisconsin facility has over 757,000 total square feet of floor space 
situated on approximately 97 acres of land.  Our Bradenton, Florida facility has 300,000 square 
feet of floor space situated on approximately 38 acres of land. 

Our beliefs in high ethical standards are carried through in all of our commitments and to 
everyone with whom we do business.  Honesty, Integrity, Accountability and Citizenship are 
global tenets by which we all live and work.  Consequently, we neither engage in, nor have we 
ever been convicted of price fixing, bid rigging, or collusion in any domestic or international fire 
apparatus market. 

Pierce has only one brand of fire apparatus "Pierce", ensuring you are receiving top of the line 
product that meets your specification. 

In accordance with the current edition of NFPA 1901 standards, this proposal will specify 
whether the fire department, manufacturer, or apparatus dealership will provide required loose 
equipment. 

Images and illustrative material in this proposal are as accurate as known at the time of 
publication, but are subject to change without notice.  Images and illustrative material is for 
reference only, and may include optional equipment and accessories and may not include all 
standard equipment. 

GENERAL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION 
To control quality, ensure compatibility, and provide a single source for service and warranty, 
the custom cab, chassis, pump module and body will be entirely designed, assembled/welded 
and painted in Pierce owned manufacturing facilities.  This includes, but not limited to the cab 
weldment, the pumphouse module assembly, the chassis assembly, the body and the electrical 
system. 

QUALITY AND WORKMANSHIP 
Pierce has set the pace for quality and workmanship in the fire apparatus field.  Our tradition of 
building the highest quality units with craftsmen second to none has been the rule right from the 
beginning and we demonstrate that ongoing commitment by: Ensuring all steel welding follows 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 18 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 18 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 11 of 119 

American Welding Society D1.1-2004 recommendations for structural steel welding.  All 
aluminum welding follows American Welding society and ANSI D1.2-2003 requirements for 
structural welding of aluminum.  All sheet metal welding follows American Welding Society B2.1-
2000 requirements for structural welding of sheet metal.  Our flux core arc welding uses alloy 
rods, type 7000 and is performed to American Welding Society standards A5.20-E70T1.  
Furthermore, all employees classified as welders are tested and certified to meet the American 
Welding Society codes upon hire and every three (3) years thereafter.  Pierce also employs and 
American Welding Society certified welding inspector in plant during working hours to monitor 
weld quality. 

Pierce Manufacturing operates a Quality Management System under the requirements of ISO 
9001.  These standards sponsored by the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) 
specify the quality systems that are established by the manufacturer for design, manufacture, 
installation and service.  A copy of the certificate of compliance is included with this proposal. 

In addition to the Quality Management system, we also employ a Quality Achievement Supplier 
program to insure the vendors and suppliers that we utilize meet the high standards we 
demand.  That is just part of our overall "Quality at the Source" program at Pierce. 

DELIVERY 
The apparatus will be delivered under its own power to insure proper break-in of all components 
while the apparatus is still under warranty.  A DVD that is unique to the delivered apparatus will 
be provided with delivery of the truck, to instruct personnel in the proper operation, care and 
maintenance of the apparatus. 

MANUAL AND SERVICE INFORMATION 
At time of delivery, complete operation and maintenance manuals covering the apparatus will be 
provided.  A permanent plate will be mounted in the driver's compartment specifying the 
quantity and type of fluids required including engine oil, engine coolant, transmission, pump 
transmission lubrication, pump primer and drive axle. 

SAFETY VIDEO 
At the time of delivery Pierce will also provide one (1) 39-minute, professionally produced 
apparatus safety video, in DVD format.  This video will address key safety considerations for 
personnel to follow when they are driving, operating, and maintaining the apparatus, including 
the following:  vehicle pre-trip inspection, chassis operation, pump operation, aerial operation, 
and safety during maintenance. 

PERFORMANCE TESTS 
A road test will be conducted with the apparatus fully loaded and a continuous run of no less 
than ten (10) miles.  During that time the apparatus will show no loss of power nor will it 
overheat.  The transmission drive shaft or shafts and the axles will run quietly and be free of 
abnormal vibration or noise.  The apparatus when fully loaded will not have less than 25 percent 
nor more than 50 percent on the front axle, and not less than 50 percent nor more than 75 
percent on the rear axle.  The apparatus will meet NFPA 1901 acceleration and braking 
requirements. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 19 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 19 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 12 of 119 

SERVICE AND WARRANTY SUPPORT 
Pierce dealership support will be provided by Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc. by operating a Pierce 
authorized service center.  The service center will have factory-trained mechanics on staff 
versed in Pierce fire apparatus.  The service facility will be located within twenty-five (25) miles 
of the fire department. 

In addition to the dealership, Pierce has service facilities located in both, Weyauwega, 
Wisconsin and Bradenton, Florida.  Pierce also maintains a dedicated parts facility of over 
100,000 square feet in Appleton, Wisconsin.  The parts facility stocks in excess of $5,000,000 in 
parts dedicated to service and replacement parts.  The parts facility employs a staff dedicated 
solely for the distribution and shipment of service and replacement parts. 

Service parts for the apparatus being proposed can be found via Pierceparts.com which, is an 
interactive online tool that delivers information regarding your specific apparatus as well as the 
opportunity to register for training classes. 

As a Pierce customer you have the ability to view the complete bill of materials for your specific 
apparatus, including assembly drawings, piece part drawings, and beneficial parts notations.  
You will also have the ability to search the complete Pierce item master through a parts search 
function which offers all Pierce SKU's and descriptions offered on all Pierce apparatus.  
Published component catalogs, which include proprietary systems along with an extensive 
operator’s manual library is available for easy reference. 

Pierce Manufacturing maintains a dedicated service and warranty staff of over 35 personnel, 
dedicated to customer support, which also maintains a 24 hour 7 day a week toll free hot line, 
four (4) on staff EVTs, and offers hands-on repair and maintenance training classes multiple 
times a year. 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 
Certification of insurance coverage will be enclosed. 

SINGLE SOURCE MANUFACTURER 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. provides an integrated approach to the design and manufacture of 
our products that delivers superior apparatus and a dedicated support team.  From our facilities, 
the chassis, cab weldment, cab, pumphouse (including the sheet metal enclosure, valve 
controls, piping and operators panel) and body will be entirely designed, tested, and hand 
assembled to the customer's exact specifications.  The electrical system either hardwired or 
multiplexed, will be both designed and integrated by Pierce Manufacturing.  The warranties 
relative to these major components (excluding component warranties such as engine, 
transmission, axles, pump, etc.) will be provided by Pierce as a single source manufacturer.  
Pierce's single source solution adds value by providing a fully engineered product that offers 
durability, reliability, maintainability, performance, and a high level of quality. 

Your apparatus will be manufactured in Appleton, Wisconsin. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 20 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 20 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 13 of 119 

NFPA 2016 STANDARDS 
This unit will comply with the NFPA standards effective January 1, 2016, except for fire 
department directed exceptions.  These exceptions will be set forth in the Statement of 
Exceptions. 

Certification of slip resistance of all stepping, standing and walking surfaces will be supplied with 
delivery of the apparatus. 

A plate that is highly visible to the driver while seated will be provided.  This plate will show the 
overall height, length, and gross vehicle weight rating. 

The manufacturer will have programs in place for training, proficiency testing and performance 
for any staff involved with certifications. 

An official of the company will designate, in writing, who is qualified to witness and certify test 
results. 

NFPA COMPLIANCY 
Apparatus proposed by the bidder will meet the applicable requirements of the National Fire 
Protection Association (NFPA) as stated in current edition at time of contract execution.  Fire 
department's specifications that differ from NFPA specifications will be indicated in the proposal 
as "non-NFPA". 

VEHICLE INSPECTION PROGRAM CERTIFICATION 
To assure the vehicle is built to current NFPA standards, the apparatus, in its entirety, will be 
third-party, audit-certified through Underwriters Laboratory (UL) that it is built and complies to all 
applicable standards in the current edition of NFPA 1901.  The certification will include: all 
design, production, operational, and performance testing of not only the apparatus, but those 
components that are installed on the apparatus. 

A placard will be affixed in the driver's side area stating the third party agency, the date, the 
standard and the certificate number of the whole vehicle audit. 

PUMP TEST 
Underwriters Laboratory (UL) will test, approved, and certify the pump.  The test results and the 
pump manufacturer's certification of hydrostatic test; the engine manufacturer's certified brake 
horsepower curve; and the pump manufacturer's record of pump construction details will be 
forwarded to the Fire Department. 

GENERATOR TEST 
If the unit has a generator, Underwriters Laboratory (UL) will test, approved, and certify the 
generator.  The test results will be provided to the Fire Department at the time of delivery. 

BREATHING AIR TEST 
If the unit has breathing air, Pierce Manufacturing will draw an air sample from the air system 
and have the sample certified that the air quality meets the requirements of NFPA 1989, 
Standard on Breathing Air Quality for Fire and Emergency Services Respiratory Protection. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 21 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 21 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 14 of 119 

R & D FACILITY 
The apparatus manufacturer will be required to show proof of a Research & Development 
facility utilized to do design testing and new product development testing.  The R & D facility will 
utilize modern testing equipment with qualified engineers and manufacturing personnel. 

WEB EX CONFERENCE 
The successful bidder will provide a Web Ex pre-construction conference.  In an effort to reduce 
apparatus cost, reduce department/district labor costs, and allow input from a larger group of 
users a video/teleconference between the dealership, fire department, and engineering staff at 
the factory will be provided to determine the final design of the vehicle in lieu of the traditional 
preconstruction trip to the manufacturing plant. This conference will take place after the initial 
engineering and drawing is complete and before the final sheet metal design is started. The 
conference will incorporate the use of a computer at each location to display engineering 
drawings and other necessary information to ensure proper communication between all parties. 
An audio and visual record of this conference will be provided to document the event. 

THIRD-PARTY WEEKLY CONSTRUCTION PHOTO REPORTS 
The successful bidder will provide weekly construction photo reports by an independent third 
party. Reports will include a brief summary of work completed and the next steps in construction 
as well as detailed pictures of the apparatus during the build cycle. All reports will be e-mailed to 
the e-mail addresses provided. This service will include weekly photo reports beginning with cab 
fabrication and continuing during the manufacturing process. 

BID BOND NOT REQUESTED 
A bid bond will not be included.  If requested, the following will apply: 

All bidders will provide a bid bond as security for the bid in the form of a 5% bid bond to 
accompany their bid.  This bid bond will be issued by a Surety Company who is listed on the 
U.S. Treasury Departments list of acceptable sureties as published in Department Circular 570.  
The bid bond will be issued by an authorized representative of the Surety Company and will be 
accompanied by a certified power of attorney dated on or before the date of bid.  The bid bond 
will include language, which assures that the bidder/principal will give a bond or bonds as may 
be specified in the bidding or contract documents, with good and sufficient surety for the faithful 
performance of the contract, including the Basic One (1) Year Limited Warranty, and for the 
prompt payment of labor and material furnished in the prosecution of the contract. 

Notwithstanding any document or assertion to the contrary, any surety bond related to the sale 
of a vehicle will apply only to the Basic One (1) Year Limited Warranty for such vehicle.  Any 
surety bond related to the sale of a vehicle will not apply to any other warranties that are 
included within this bid (OEM or otherwise) or to the warranties (if any) of any third party of any 
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.  In 
the event of any contradiction or inconsistency between this provision and any other document 
or assertion, this provision will prevail. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 22 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 22 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 15 of 119 

PERFORMANCE BOND, 1 YEAR 
The successful bidder will furnish a Performance and Payment bond (Bond) equal to 100 
percent of the total contract amount within 30 days of the notice of award.  Such Bond will be in 
a form acceptable to the Owner and issued by a surety company included within the 
Department of Treasury's Listing of Approved Sureties (Department Circular 570) with a 
minimum A.M. Best Financial Strength Rating of A and Size Category of XV.  In the event of a 
bond issued by a surety of a lesser Size Category, a minimum Financial Strength rating of A+ is 
required. 

Bidder and Bidder's surety agree that the Bond issued hereunder, whether expressly stated or 
not, also includes the surety's guarantee of the vehicle manufacturer's Basic One (1) Year 
Limited Warranty period included within this proposal.  Owner agrees that the penal amount of 
this bond will be simultaneously amended to 25 percent of the total contract amount upon 
satisfactory acceptance and delivery of the vehicle(s) included herein.  Notwithstanding anything 
contained within this contract to the contrary, the surety's liability for any warranties of any type 
will not exceed one (1) year from the date of such satisfactory acceptance and delivery, or the 
actual Basic One (1) Year Limited Warranty period, whichever is shorter. 

APPROVAL DRAWING 
A drawing of the proposed apparatus will be prepared and provided to the purchaser for 
approval before construction begins.  The Pierce sales representative will also be provided with 
a copy of the same drawing.  The finalized and approved drawing will become part of the 
contract documents.  This drawing will indicate the chassis make and model, location of the 
lights, siren, horns, compartments, major components, etc. 

A "revised" approval drawing of the apparatus will be prepared and submitted by Pierce to the 
purchaser showing any changes made to the approval drawing. 

DRAWING, PRELIMINARY LAYOUT, PUMP OPERATOR'S PANEL 
A detailed drawing, to scale, of the pump operator's panel will be provided for the purpose of 
illustrating the drawing of configuration that was done previously. However, some variation may 
be necessary due to changes in our manufacturing processes or our product offerings.  
Revisions to NFPA guidelines and/or regulations may also affect our ability to match the 
previous unit. 

The pump panel drawing provided will match the old configuration job 26218 as closely as 
possible. 

DIAGRAM, ELECTRICAL DC CIRCUITS 
Three (3) sets of diagrams of the body and chassis DC electrical system will be provided with 
the completed apparatus. 

ELECTRICAL WIRING DIAGRAMS 
Two (2) electrical wiring diagrams, prepared for the model of chassis and body, will be provided. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 23 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 23 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 16 of 119 

VELOCITY CHASSIS 
The Pierce Velocity® is the custom chassis developed exclusively for the fire service.  Chassis 
provided will be a new, tilt-type custom fire apparatus.  The chassis will be manufactured in the 
apparatus body builder's facility eliminating any split responsibility.  The chassis will be 
designed and manufactured for heavy-duty service, with adequate strength and capacity for the 
intended load to be sustained and the type of service required.  The chassis will be the 
manufacturer's first line tilt cab. 

WHEELBASE 
The wheelbase of the vehicle will be 184.50". 

GVW RATING 
The gross vehicle weight rating will be 49,800#. 

FRAME 
The chassis frame will be built with two (2) steel channels bolted to five (5) cross members or 
more, depending on other options of the apparatus.  The side rails will have a 13.38" tall web 
over the front and mid sections of the chassis, with a continuous smooth taper to 10.75" over 
the rear axle.  Each rail will have a section modulus of 25.992 cubic inches and a resisting 
bending moment (rbm) of 3,119,040 in-lb. over the critical regions of the frame assembly, with a 
section modulus of 18.96 cubic inches with an rbm of 2,275,200 in-lb. over the rear axle.  The 
frame rails will be constructed of 120,000 psi yield strength heat-treated 0.38" thick steel with 
3.50" wide flanges. 

FRONT NON DRIVE AXLE 
The Oshkosh TAK-4® front axle will be of the independent suspension design with a ground 
rating of 22,800 lb. 

Upper and lower control arms will be used on each side of the axle.  Upper control arm castings 
will be made of 100,000-psi yield strength 8630 steel and the lower control arm casting will be 
made of 55,000-psi yield ductile iron. 

The center cross members and side plates will be constructed out of 80,000-psi yield strength 
steel. 

Each control arm will be mounted to the center section using elastomer bushings.  These rubber 
bushings will rotate on low friction plain bearings and be lubricated for life.  Each bushing will 
also have a flange end to absorb longitudinal impact loads, reducing noise and vibrations. 

There will be nine (9) grease fittings supplied, one (1) on each control arm pivot and one (1) on 
the steering gear extension. 

The upper control arm will be shorter than the lower arm so that wheel end geometry provides 
positive camber when deflected below rated load and negative camber above rated load. 

Camber at load will be 0 degrees for optimum tire life. 

The ball joint bearing will be of low friction design and be maintenance free. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 24 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 24 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 17 of 119 

Toe links that are adjustable for alignment of the wheel to the center of the chassis will be 
provided. 

The wheel ends will have little to no bump steer when the chassis encounters a hole or 
obstacle. 

The steering linkage will provide proper steering angles for the inside and outside wheel, based 
on the vehicle wheelbase. 

The axle will have a third party certified turning angle of 45 degrees.  Front discharge, front 
suction, or aluminum wheels will not infringe on this cramp angle. 

FRONT SUSPENSION 
Front Oshkosh TAK-4™ independent suspension will be provided with a minimum ground rating 
of 22,800 lb. 

The independent suspension system will be designed to provide maximum ride comfort.  The 
design will allow the vehicle to travel at highway speeds over improved road surfaces and at 
moderate speeds over rough terrain with minimal transfer of road shock and vibration to the 
vehicle's crew compartment. 

Each wheel will have torsion bar type spring.  In addition, each front wheel end will also have 
energy absorbing jounce bumpers to prevent bottoming of the suspension. 

The suspension design will be such that there is at least 10.00" of total wheel travel and a 
minimum of 3.75" before suspension bottoms. 

The torsion bar anchor lock system allows for simple lean adjustments, without the use of 
shims.  One can adjust for a lean within 15 minutes per side.  Anchor adjustment design is such 
that it allows for ride height adjustment on each side. 

The independent suspension was put through a durability test that simulated 140,000 miles of 
inner city driving. 

FRONT SHOCK ABSORBERS 
KONI heavy-duty telescoping shock absorbers will be provided on the front suspension. 

FRONT OIL SEALS 
Oil seals with viewing window will be provided on the front axle. 

FRONT TIRES 
Front tires will be Goodyear® 425/65R22.50 radials, 20 ply G296 MSA tread, rated for 22,800 
lb. maximum axle load and 68 mph maximum speed. 

The tires will be mounted on Alcoa 22.50" x 13.00" polished aluminum disc type wheels with a 
ten (10) stud, 11.25" bolt circle. 

REAR AXLE 
The rear axle will be a Meritor™, Model RS-26-185, with a capacity of 27,000 lb. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 25 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 25 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 18 of 119 

TOP SPEED OF VEHICLE 
A rear axle ratio will be furnished to allow the vehicle to reach a top speed of 67 MPH. 

REAR SUSPENSION 
The rear suspension will be Standens, semi-elliptical, 3.00" wide x 53.00" long, 12-leaf pack 
with a ground rating of 27,000 lb.  The spring hangers will be castings. 

The two (2) top leaves will wrap the forward spring hanger pin, and the rear of the spring will be 
a slipper style end that will ride in a rear slipper hanger.  To reduce bending stress due to 
acceleration and braking, the front eye will be a berlin eye that will place the front spring pin in 
the horizontal plane within the main leaf. 

A steel encased rubber bushing will be used in the spring eye.  The steel encased rubber 
bushing will be maintenance free and require no lubrication. 

REAR OIL SEALS 
Oil seals will be provided on the rear axle(s). 

REAR TIRES 
The rear tires will be four (4) Goodyear 12R22.50 radials, load range H, all position, G751 MSA 
tread, rated for 27,120 lb. maximum axle load and 68 mph maximum speed. 

The tires will be mounted on Alcoa 22.50" x 8.25" polished aluminum disc wheels with a ten (10) 
stud 11.25" bolt circle. 

TIRE BALANCE 
All tires will be balanced with Counteract balancing beads.  The beads will be inserted into the 
tire and eliminate the need for wheel weights. 

TIRE PRESSURE MANAGEMENT 
There will be a VECSAFE LED tire alert pressure management system provided that will 
monitor each tire's pressure.  A chrome plated brass sensor will be provided on the valve stem 
of each tire for a total of six (6) tires. 

The sensor will calibrate to the tire pressure when installed on the valve stem for pressures 
between 20 and 120 psi.  The sensor will activate an integral battery operated LED when the 
pressure of that tire drops 8 psi. 

Removing the cap from the sensor will indicate the functionality of the sensor and battery.  If the 
sensor and battery are in working condition, the LED will immediately start blinking. 

FRONT HUB COVERS 
Stainless steel hub covers will be provided on the front axle.  An oil level viewing window will be 
provided. 

REAR HUB COVERS 
A pair of stainless steel high hat hub covers will be provided on rear axle hubs. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 26 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 26 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 19 of 119 

AUTOMATIC TIRE CHAINS 
One (1) pair of ONSPOT automatic tire chains will be provided at the rear.  System will be 
electric over air operated with switch on cab instrument panel.  System may be engaged at 
speeds up to 25 mph and operated at speeds up to 35 mph. 

CHROME LUG NUT COVERS 
Chrome lug nut covers will be supplied on front and rear wheels. 

MUD FLAPS 
Mud flaps with a Pierce logo will be installed behind the front and rear wheels. 

WHEEL CHOCKS PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, section 5.9.4 requires two (2) or more wheel chocks mounted in 
readily accessible locations, that together will hold the apparatus, when loaded to its GVWR or 
GCWR, on a hard surface with a 20 percent grade with the transmission in neutral and the 
parking brake released. 

The wheel chocks are not on the apparatus as manufactured.  The fire department will provide 
and install these wheel chocks. 

WHEEL CHOCK BRACKETS, PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
The wheel chock brackets are not on the apparatus as manufactured.  The fire department will 
provide and install the wheel chock brackets. 

ELECTRONIC STABILITY CONTROL 
A vehicle control system will be provided as an integral part of the ABS brake system from 
Meritor Wabco. 

The system will monitor and update the lateral acceleration of the vehicle and compare it to a 
critical threshold where a side roll event may occur.  If the critical threshold is met, the vehicle 
control system will automatically reduce engine RPM, engage the engine retarder (if equipped), 
and selectively apply brakes to the individual wheel ends of the front and rear axles to reduce 
the possibility of a side roll event. 

The system will monitor directional stability through a lateral accelerometer, steer angle sensor 
and yaw rate sensor.  If spinout or drift out is detected, the vehicle control system will selectively 
apply brakes to the individual wheel ends of the front and rear axles to bring the vehicle back to 
its intended direction. 

ANTI-LOCK BRAKE SYSTEM 
The vehicle will be equipped with a Wabco 4S4M, anti-lock braking system.  The ABS will 
provide a four (4) channel anti-lock braking control on both the front and rear wheels.  A digitally 
controlled system that utilizes microprocessor technology will control the anti-lock braking 
system.  Each wheel will be monitored by the system.  When any wheel begins to lockup, a 
signal will be sent to the control unit.  This control unit will then reduce the braking of that wheel 
for a fraction of a second and then reapply the brake.  This anti-lock brake system will eliminate 
the lockup of any wheel thus helping to prevent the apparatus from skidding out of control. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 27 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 27 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 20 of 119 

AUTOMATIC TRACTION CONTROL 
An anti-slip feature will be included with the ABS.  The Automatic Traction Control will be used 
for traction in poor road and weather conditions.  The Automatic Traction Control will act as an 
electronic differential lock that will not allow a driving wheel to spin, thereby supplying traction at 
all times.  The ABS electronic control unit (ECU) will work with the engine ECU, sharing 
information concerning wheel slip.  Engine ECU will use information to control engine speed, 
allowing only as much throttle application as required for the available traction, regardless of 
how much the driver is asking for.  A "mud/snow" switch will be provided on the instrument 
panel.  Activation of the switch will allow additional tire slip to let the truck climb out and get on 
top of deep snow or mud. 

BRAKES 
The service brake system will be full air type. 

The front brakes will be Knorr/Bendix disc type with a 17.00" ventilated rotor for improved 
stopping distance. 

The brake system will be certified, third party inspected, for improved stopping distance. 

The rear brakes will be Meritor™, Disc Plus, Model EX225, disc operated with automatic slack 
adjusters and a 17.00" ventilated rotor for improved stopping distance. 

AIR COMPRESSOR, BRAKE SYSTEM 
The air compressor will be a Bendix®, Model BA-921, with 15.80 cubic feet per minute output at 
1,250 rpm. 

BRAKE SYSTEM 
The brake system will include: 

• Bendix® dual brake treadle valve with vinyl covered foot surface 
• Heated automatic moisture ejector on air dryer 
• Total air system capacity of 4,362 cubic inches 
• Two (2) air pressure gauges with a red warning light and an audible alarm, that activates 

when air pressure falls below 60 psi 
• Spring set parking brake system 
• Parking brake operated by a push-pull style control valve 
• A parking "brake on" indicator light on instrument panel 
• Park brake relay/inversion and anti-compounding valve, in conjunction with a double 

check valve system, with an automatic spring brake application at 40 psi 
• A pressure protection valve to prevent all air operated accessories from drawing air from 

the air system when the system pressure drops below 80 psi (550 kPa) 

The air tank will be primed and painted to meet a minimum 750 hour salt spray test. 

To reduce the effects of corrosion, the air tank will be mounted with stainless steel brackets. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 28 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 28 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 21 of 119 

BRAKE SYSTEM AIR DRYER 
The air dryer will be WABCO System Saver 1200 with spin-on coalescing filter cartridge and 
100 watt heater. 

BRAKE LINES 
Color-coded nylon brake lines will be provided.  The lines will be wrapped in a heat protective 
loom in the chassis areas that are subject to excessive heat. 

AIR INLET WITH AUTOMATIC EJECT 
One (1) air inlet with Kussmaul Air Eject will be provided.  It will allow station air to be supplied 
to the apparatus brake system through a shoreline hose.  The inlet will automatically disconnect 
the air line when the truck is started.  It will be equipped with a male coupling and be located in 
the driver's side exterior rear wall of the cab.  A check valve will be provided to prevent reverse 
flow of air.  The inlet will discharge into the "wet" tank of the brake system.  A mating female 
coupling will also be provided with the loose equipment. 

AIR OUTLET 
One (1) air outlet will be installed with a female coupling and shut off valve, located on the driver 
side pump panel.  This system will tie into the "wet" tank of the brake system and include an 85-
psi pressure protection valve in the outlet line to prevent the brake system from losing all air. 

Female coupling and male fitting will be .25" thread. 

A mating male fitting will be provided with the loose equipment. 

COVER OVER AIR INLET 
A Kussmaul, Model 091-28-AK, weatherproof red cover will be provided over the recessed 
automatic air line disconnect. 

AIR TANK, ADDITIONAL 
An additional air tank with 1454 cubic inch displacement will be provided to increase the 
capacity of the main air brake system.  This tank will be plumbed into the rear half of the brake 
system. 

The air tank will be primed and painted to meet a minimum 750 hour spray test.  To reduce the 
effects of corrosion, the air tank will be mounted with stainless steel brackets. 

The output flow of the engine air compressor will vary with engine rpm.  Full compressor output 
will only be achieved at governed engine speed.  Engine speed will be limited by generators, 
pumps and other PTO driven options. 

ALL WHEEL LOCK-UP 
An all-wheel lock-up system will be installed which will apply air to the front brakes and use the 
spring brake at the rear.  A control switch will be provided for the driver on the instrument panel. 

The all wheel lock-up system will be operational only when the parking brake is applied, the 
truck transmission is in neutral and engine is running. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 29 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 29 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 22 of 119 

AUTOMATIC MOISTURE EJECTOR(S) 
Four (4) automatic moisture ejectors, Bendix®, Model DV-2, will be installed in the brake 
system. 

Each moisture ejector will be equipped with a 12-volt heater, controlled by thermostat and 
ignition switch. 

The moisture ejector(s) will be provided on the wet tank, primary and secondary tank and 
additional tank reservoirs(s). 

ENGINE 
The chassis will be powered by an electronically controlled engine as described below: 

Make: Detroit™ 
Model: DD13® 
Power: 505 hp at 1625 rpm 
Torque: 1750 lb-ft at 1075 rpm 
Governed Speed: 2200 rpm 
Emissions 
Certification: 

EPA 2016 (GHG17) 

Fuel: Diesel 
Cylinders: Six (6) 
Displacement: 781 cubic inches (12.8L) 
Starter: Delco Remy 39MT™ 
Fuel Filters: Dual cartridge style with check valve, water separator, and water in 

fuel sensor 
 
The engine will include On-board diagnostics (OBD), which provides self-diagnostic and 
reporting.  The system will give the owner or repair technician access to state of health 
information for various vehicle sub systems.  The system will monitor vehicle systems, engine 
and after treatment.  The system will illuminate a malfunction indicator light on the dash console 
if a problem is detected. 

HIGH IDLE 
A high idle switch will be provided, inside the cab, on the instrument panel, that will 
automatically maintain a preset engine rpm.  A switch will be installed, at the cab instrument 
panel, for activation/deactivation. 

The high idle will be operational only when the parking brake is on and the truck transmission is 
in neutral.  A green indicator light will be provided, adjacent to the switch.  The light will 
illuminate when the above conditions are met.  The light will be labeled "OK to Engage High 
Idle." 

ENGINE BRAKE 
A Jacobs® engine brake is to be installed with the controls located on the instrument panel 
within easy reach of the driver. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 30 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 30 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 23 of 119 

The driver will be able to turn the engine brake system on/off and have a high, medium and low 
setting. 

The engine brake will be installed in such a manner that when the engine brake is slowing the 
vehicle the brake lights are activated. 

The ABS system will automatically disengage the auxiliary braking device when required. 

CLUTCH FAN 
A Horton® fan clutch will be provided.  The fan clutch will be automatic when the pump 
transmission is in "Road" position, and fully engaged in "Pump" position. 

ENGINE HEATER 
A 1,500 watt, 120 volt, immersion type engine heater will be installed. The AC power inlet will be 
connected to the shoreline.  The heater is thermostatically controlled. 

ENGINE AIR INTAKE 
An air intake with an ember separator (to prevent road dirt, burning embers, and recirculating 
hot air from entering the engine) will be mounted at the front of the apparatus, on the passenger 
side of the engine.  The ember separator will be mounted in the air intake with flame retardant, 
roto-molded polyethylene housing.  It will be easily accessible by the hinged access panel at the 
front of the vehicle. 

EXHAUST SYSTEM 
The exhaust system will include a diesel particulate filter (DPF) and a selective catalytic 
reduction (SCR) device to meet current EPA standards.  The exhaust system will be stainless 
steel from the turbo to the inlet of the SCR device and will be 5.00" in diameter. An insulation 
wrap will be provided on all exhaust pipes between the turbo and SCR to minimize the transfer 
of heat to the cab.  The exhaust will terminate horizontally ahead of the passenger side rear 
wheels.  A tailpipe diffuser will be provided to reduce the temperature of the exhaust as it exits.  
Heat deflector shields will be provided to isolate chassis and body components from the heat of 
the tailpipe diffuser. 

RADIATOR 
The radiator and the complete cooling system will meet or exceed NFPA and engine 
manufacturer cooling system standards. 

For maximum corrosion resistance and cooling performance, the entire radiator core will be 
constructed using long life aluminum alloy.  The core will be made of aluminum fins, having a 
serpentine design, brazed to aluminum tubes.  The tubes will be brazed to aluminum headers.  
No solder joints or leaded material of any kind will be acceptable in the core assembly.  The 
radiator core will have a minimum frontal area of 1434 square inches.  Supply and return tanks 
made of glass-reinforced nylon will be crimped on to the core assembly using header tabs and a 
compression gasket to complete the radiator core assembly.  The radiator will be compatible 
with commercial antifreeze solutions. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 31 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 31 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 24 of 119 

There will be a full steel frame around the entire radiator core assembly.  The radiator core 
assembly will be isolated within the steel frame by rubber inserts to enhance cooling system 
durability and reliability.  The radiator will be mounted in such a manner as to prevent the 
development of leaks caused by twisting or straining when the apparatus operates over uneven 
ground.  The radiator assembly will be isolated from the chassis frame rails with rubber 
isolators. 

The radiator assembly will include an integral deaeration tank permanently mounted to the top 
of the radiator framework, with a readily accessible remote-mounted overflow tank.  For visual 
coolant level inspection, the radiator will have a built-in sight glass.  The radiator will be 
equipped with a 15 psi pressure relief cap. 

A drain port will be located at the lowest point of the cooling system and/or the bottom of the 
radiator to permit complete flushing of the coolant from the system. 

A heavy-duty fan will draw in fresh, cool air through the radiator.  Shields or baffles will be 
provided to prevent recirculation of hot air to the inlet side of the radiator. 

COOLANT LINES 
Gates® silicone hoses will be used for all engine/heater coolant lines installed by the chassis 
manufacturer. 

The chassis manufacturer will also use Gates brand hose on other heater, defroster and 
auxiliary coolant circuits.  There will be some areas in which an appropriate Gates product is not 
available.  In those instances, a comparable silicone hose from another manufacturer will be 
used. 

Hose clamps will be stainless steel "constant torque type" to prevent coolant leakage.  They will 
react to temperature changes in the cooling system and expand or contract accordingly while 
maintaining a constant clamping pressure on the hose. 

FUEL TANK 
A 65 gallon fuel tank will be provided and mounted at the rear of the chassis.  The tank will be 
constructed of 12-gauge, hot rolled steel.  It will be equipped with swash partitions and a vent.  
To eliminate the effects of corrosion, the fuel tank will be mounted with stainless steel straps. 

A 0.75" drain plug will be located in a low point of the tank for drainage. 

A fill inlet will be located on the left hand side of the body and is covered with a hinged, spring 
loaded, stainless steel door that is marked "Ultra Low Sulfur - Diesel Fuel Only." 

A 0.50" diameter vent will be installed from tank top to just below fuel fill inlet. 

The fuel tank will meet all FHWA 393.67 requirements including a fill capacity of 95 percent of 
tank volume. 

All fuel lines will be provided as recommended by the engine manufacturer. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 32 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 32 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 25 of 119 

DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID TANK 
A 4.5 gallon diesel exhaust fluid (DEF) tank will be provided and mounted in the driver's side 
body forward of the rear axle. 

A 0.50" drain plug will be provided in a low point of the tank for drainage. 

A fill inlet will be located on the driver's side of the body and be covered with a hinged, spring 
loaded, polished stainless steel door that is marked "Diesel Exhaust Fluid Only". 

The tank will meet the engine manufacturers requirement for 10 percent expansion space in the 
event of tank freezing. 

The tank will include an integrated heater unit that utilizes engine coolant to thaw the DEF in the 
event of freezing. 

AUXILIARY FUEL PUMP 
An auxiliary electric fuel pump will be added to the fuel line for priming the engine.  A switch 
located on the cab instrument panel will be provided to operate the pump. 

FUEL COOLER 
An air to fuel cooler will be installed in the engine fuel return line. 

LABEL, FUEL DOOR 
A metal label will be provided on the outside of the fuel fill door to read "Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel 
Fuel Only". 

TRANSMISSION 
An Allison 5th generation, Model EVS 4500P, electronic, torque converting, automatic 
transmission will be provided. 

The transmission will be equipped with prognostics to monitor oil life, filter life, and transmission 
health.  A wrench icon on the shift selector's digital display will indicate when service is due. 

Two (2) PTO openings will be located on left side and top of converter housing (positions 8 
o'clock and 1 o'clock). 

A transmission temperature gauge with red light and buzzer will be installed on the cab 
instrument panel. 

TRANSMISSION SHIFTER 
A six (6)-speed push button shift module will be mounted to right of driver on console.  Shift 
position indicator will be indirectly lit for after dark operation. 

The transmission ratio will be: 1st - 4.70 to 1.00, 2nd - 2.21 to 1.00, 3rd - 1.53 to 1.00, 4th - 1.00 
to 1.00, 5th - 0.76 to 1.00, 6th - 0.67 to 1.00, R - 5.55 to 1.00. 

TRANSMISSION COOLER 
A Modine plate and fin transmission oil cooler will be provided using engine coolant to control 
the transmission oil temperature. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 33 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 33 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 26 of 119 

DRIVELINE 
Drivelines will be a heavy-duty metal tube and be equipped with Spicer® 1810 universal joints. 

The shafts will be dynamically balanced before installation. 

A splined slip joint will be provided in each driveshaft.  The slip joint will be coated with 
Glidecoat® or equivalent. 

STEERING 
Dual Sheppard, Model M110, steering gears, with integral heavy-duty power steering, will be 
provided.  For reduced system temperatures, the power steering will incorporate an air to oil 
cooler and an Eaton, Model VN20, hydraulic pump with integral pressure and flow control.  All 
power steering lines will have wire braded lines with crimped fittings. 

A tilt and telescopic steering column will be provided to improve fit for a broader range of driver 
configurations. 

STEERING WHEEL 
The steering wheel will be 18.00" in diameter, have tilting and telescoping capabilities, and a 
four (4)-spoke design. 

There will be a switch pod provided on each side of the steering wheel between the spokes.  
The switch pods will be an integral part of the steering wheel.  Each switch pod will contain four 
(4) switches.  The following switches will be provided: 

Air horn 

Emergency lighting 

Area lighting 

Front dome light 

Rear dome light 

Q2B siren activate 

Q2B siren brake 

Wiper mist 

Full floating horn pad 

LOGO AND CUSTOMER DESIGNATION ON HORN BUTTON 
The steering wheel will have an emblem containing the Pierce logo and customer name.  The 
emblem will have three (3) rows of text for the customer's department name.  There will be a 
maximum of eight (8) characters in the first row, 11 characters in the second row and 11 
characters in the third row. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 34 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 34 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 27 of 119 

The first row of text will be:  CITY 

The second row of text will be:  OF 

The third row of text will be:  SPRINGFIELD 

BUMPER 
A one (1) piece, ten (1) gauge, 304-2B type polished stainless steel bumper, a minimum of 
10.00" high, will be attached to a bolted modular extension frame constructed of 50,000 psi 
tensile steel "C" channel mounted directly behind it to provide adequate support strength. 

The bumper will be extended 19.00" from front face of cab. 

Documentation will be provided, upon request to show that the options selected have been 
engineered for fit-up and approval for this modular bumper extension.  A chart will be provided 
to indicate the option locations and will include, but not be limited to the following options: air 
horns, mechanical sirens, speakers, hose trays (with hose capacities), winches, lights, 
discharge, and suction connections. 

GRAVEL PAN 
A gravel pan, constructed of bright aluminum treadplate, will be furnished between the bumper 
and cab face.  The gravel pan will be properly supported from the underside to prevent flexing 
and vibration of the aluminum treadplate. 

CENTER HOSE TRAY 
A hose tray, constructed of aluminum, will be placed in the center of the bumper extension. 

The tray will have a capacity of 100' of 1.75" double jacket cotton-polyester hose. 

Black rubber grating will be provided at the bottom of the tray.  Drain holes are also provided. 

CENTER HOSE TRAY COVER 
A bright aluminum treadplate cover will be provided over the center hose tray. 

The cover will be "notched" allowing the hose to be pre connected to hose connection. 

The cover will be attached with a stainless steel hinge. 

A D-ring latch will secure the cover in the closed position and a pneumatic stay arm will hold the 
cover in the open position. 

LIFT AND TOW MOUNTS 
Mounted to the frame extension will be lift and tow mounts.  The lift and tow mounts will be 
designed and positioned to adapt to certain tow truck lift systems. 

The lift and tow mounts with eyes will be painted the same color as the frame. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 35 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 35 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 28 of 119 

TOW EYES 
Two (2) Chicago style tow eyes will be mounted through the top of the bumper extension.  The 
tow eyes will be designed and positioned to allow up to a 6,000 lb. straight horizontal pull in line 
with the centerline of the vehicle.  The tow eyes will not be used for lifting of the apparatus. 

The inner and outer edges of the tow eyes will have a .25" radius. 

The tow eyes will be chrome plated. 

CAB 
The Velocity cab will be designed specifically for the fire service and will be manufactured by 
Pierce Manufacturing. 

To provide quality at the source and single source customer support, the cab will be built by the 
apparatus manufacturer in a facility located on the manufacturer's premises. 

For reasons of structural integrity and enhanced occupant protection, the cab will be of heavy 
duty design, constructed to the following minimal standards. 

The cab will have 12 main vertical structural members located in the A-pillar (front cab corner 
posts), B-pillar (side center posts), C-pillar (rear corner posts) and rear wall areas.  The A-pillar 
will be constructed of 0.25" heavy wall extrusions joined by a solid A356-T6 aluminum joint 
casting.  The B-pillar and C-pillar will also be constructed from 0.25" heavy wall extrusions.  The 
rear wall will be constructed of two (2) 4.00" x 2.00" outer aluminum extrusions and two (2) 3.00" 
x 2.00" inner aluminum extrusions.  All main vertical structural members will run from the floor to 
7.50" x 3.50" x 0.125" thick roof extrusions to provide a cage-like structure with the A-pillar and 
roof extrusions being welded into a 0.75" thick corner casting at each of the front corners of the 
roof assembly. 

The front of the cab will be constructed of a 0.25" thick firewall, covered with a 0.125" front skin 
(for a total thickness of 0.38"), and reinforced with 24.50" wide x 10.00" deep x 0.50" thick 
supports on each side of the engine tunnel.  The cross-cab support will be welded to the A-
pillar, 0.25" firewall, and engine tunnel, on the left and right sides. 

The cab floors will be constructed of 0.1875" thick aluminum plate and reinforced at the firewall 
with an additional 0.25" thick cross-floor support providing a total thickness of 0.44" of structural 
material at the front floor area.  The front floor area will also be supported with three (3) 0.50" 
plates bolted together that also provides the mounting point for the cab lift.  This tubing will run 
from the front of the cab to the 0.1875" thick engine tunnel, creating the structure to support the 
forces created when lifting the cab. 

The cab will be a full-tilt style.  A 3-point cab mount system with rubber isolators will improve 
ride quality by isolating chassis vibrations from the cab. 

The crew cab will be a totally enclosed design with the interior area completely open to improve 
visibility and verbal communication between the occupants. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 36 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 36 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 29 of 119 

The forward cab section will have an overall height (from the cab roof to the ground) of 
approximately 102.00".  The crew cab section will have a 10.00" raised roof, with an overall cab 
height of approximately 112.00".  The raised portion will start at the most forward point of the B-
pillar and continue rearward to the back of the cab.  The overall height listed will be calculated 
based on a truck configuration with the lowest suspension weight ratings, the smallest diameter 
tires for the suspension, no water weight, no loose equipment weight, and no personnel weight.  
Larger tires, wheels, and suspension will increase the overall height listed. 

The cab will have an interior width of not less than 93.50".  The driver and passenger seating 
positions will have a minimum 24.00" clear width at knee level. 

To reduce injuries to occupants in the seated positions, proper head clearance will be provided.  
The floor-to-ceiling height inside the forward cab will be no less than 60.25".  The floor-to-ceiling 
height inside the crew cab will be no less than 62.95" in the center position and 68.75" in the 
outboard positions. 

The crew cab will measure a minimum of 57.50" from the rear wall to the backside of the engine 
tunnel (knee level) for optimal occupant legroom. 

INTERIOR CAB INSULATION 
The cab walls, ceiling and engine tunnel will be insulated in all strategic locations to maximize 
acoustic absorption and thermal insulation.  The cab will be insulated with 2.00" insulation in the 
rear wall, 3.00" insulation in the side walls, and 1.50" insulation in the ceiling. 

FENDER LINERS 
Full-circular, aluminum, inner fender liners in the wheel wells will be provided. 

PANORAMIC WINDSHIELD 
A one (1)-piece, safety glass windshield with more than 2,802 square inches of clear viewing 
area will be provided.  The windshield will be full width and will provide the occupants with a 
panoramic view.  The windshield will consist of three (3) layers:  the outer light, the middle 
safety laminate, and the inner light.  The 0.114" thick outer light layer will provide superior chip 
resistance.  The middle safety laminate layer will prevent the windshield glass pieces from 
detaching in the event of breakage.  The inner light will provide yet another chip resistant layer.  
The cab windshield will be bonded to the aluminum windshield frame using a urethane 
adhesive.  A custom frit pattern will be applied on the outside perimeter of the windshield for a 
finished automotive appearance. 

WINDSHIELD WIPERS 
Three (3) electric windshield wipers with a washer, in conformance with FMVSS and SAE 
requirements, will be provided.  The wiper blades will be 21.65" long and together will clear a 
minimum of 1,783 square inches of the windshield for maximum visibility in inclement weather. 

The windshield washer fluid reservoir will be located at the front of the vehicle and be accessible 
through the access hood for simple maintenance. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 37 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 37 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 30 of 119 

FAST SERVICE ACCESS FRONT TILT HOOD 
A full-width access hood will be provided for convenient access to engine coolant, steering fluid, 
wiper fluid, cab lift controls, headlight power modules, and ember separator.  The hood will also 
provide complete access to the windshield wiper motor and components.  The hood will be 
contoured to provide a sleek, automotive appearance.  The hood will be constructed of two (2) 
fiberglass panels bonded together and will include reinforcing ribs for structural integrity.  The 
hood will include air cylinders to hold the hood in open and closed positions, and a heavy duty 
latch system that will meet FMVSS 113 (Hood Latch System).  The spring-loaded hood latch will 
be located at the center of the hood with a double-action release lever located behind the Pierce 
logo.  The two (2)-step release requires the lever first be pulled to the driver side until the hood 
releases from the first latch (primary latch) then to the passenger side to fully release the hood 
(secondary latch). 

ENGINE TUNNEL 
To provide structural strength, the engine tunnel sidewalls will be constructed of 0.50" aluminum 
plate that is welded to both the 0.25" firewall and 0.38" heavy wall extrusion under the crew cab 
floor.  To maximize occupant space, the top edges will be tapered. 

The back of the engine tunnel will be no higher than 16.25" off the crew cab floor. 

The engine tunnel will be insulated on both sides for thermal and acoustic absorption.  The 
underside of the tunnel will be covered with 1.00" thick polyether foam that is reinforced with an 
aluminized face.  Thermal rating for this insulation will be -40 degrees Fahrenheit to 300 
degrees Fahrenheit.  The insulation will keep noise (dBA) levels at or lower than the 
specifications in the current edition of the NFPA 1901 standards. 

CAB REAR WALL EXTERIOR COVERING 
The exterior surface of the rear wall of the cab will be overlaid with bright aluminum treadplate 
except for areas that are not typically visible when the cab is lowered. 

CAB LIFT 
A hydraulic cab lift system will be provided, consisting of an electric-powered hydraulic pump, 
fluid reservoir, dual lift cylinders, remote cab lift controls and all necessary hoses and valves.  
The hydraulic pump will have a backup manual override, for use in the event of an electrical 
failure. 

The cab lift controls will be located at the driver side front of the cab, easily accessible under the 
full width front access hood.  The controls will include a permanently mounted raise/lower 
switch.  For enhanced visibility during cab tilt operations, a remote control tether with on/off 
switch will be supplied on a coiled cord that will extend from 2.00' (coiled) to 6.00' (extended). 

The cab will be capable of tilting 42 degrees and 80 degrees with crane assist to accommodate 
engine maintenance and removal.  The cab pivots will be located 46.00" apart to provide 
stability while tilting the cab. 

The rear of the cab will be locked down by a two (2)-point, automatic, hydraulic, double hook 
mechanism that fully engages after the cab has been lowered (self-locking).  The dual 2.25" 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 38 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 38 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 31 of 119 

diameter hydraulic cylinders will be equipped with a velocity fuse that protects the cab from 
accidentally descending when the cab is in the tilt position. 

For increased safety, a redundant mechanical stay arm will be provided that must be manually 
put in place on the driver side between the chassis and cab frame when cab is in the raised 
position.  This device will be manually stowed to its original position before the cab can be 
lowered. 

Cab Lift Interlock 
The cab lift safety system will be interlocked to the parking brake.  The cab tilt mechanism will 
be active only when the parking brake is set and the ignition switch is in the on position.  If the 
parking brake is released, the cab tilt mechanism will be disabled. 

GRILLE 
A bright finished aluminum mesh grille screen, inserted behind a formed bright finished grille 
surround, will be provided on the front center of the cab, and will serve as an air intake to the 
radiator. 

DOOR JAMB SCUFFPLATES 
All cab door jambs will be furnished with a polished stainless steel scuffplate, mounted on the 
striker side of the jamb. 

SCUFFPLATE 
A treadplate scuffplate will be installed on the top edge of both rear facing seat risers.  The 
scuffplate will be flanged to the front to protect the painted edge of the seat riser. 

FRONT CAB TRIM 
Bright finished wrap-around housings will be provided on each side of the front cab face for 
mounting of the headlights and front directional lights.  The housings will mate up to the side 
edge of the forward grille, and then extend around the front corners of the cab rearward, 
providing for a streamlined automotive appearance. 

MIRRORS 
For enhanced visibility, safety and overall aesthetics, a forward positioned One-Eleven custom 
mirror will be mounted on each side of the front cab roof corner.  Both front cab roof corners will 
be reinforced with an aluminum casting at the mounting location, providing maximum stability for 
the mirror arm and head assembly.  The mirror arm substructure will extend forward and 
outward of the cab, and be constructed out of 4.00" diameter 0.25" wall aluminum tubing.  For 
reduced service costs, the mirror will include a dual breakaway design, controlled by a rotational 
detent mechanism.  In the event of an impact, the mirror arm will breakaway to either the 
inboard or the outboard position.  The One-Eleven mirror head, and injection molded arm cover, 
will offer a sleek aerodynamic styling with overall width of 115.80" (reduces vehicle width by 
7.00" when compared to door mount bus style mirrors).  The arm cover finish will be chrome.  
The mirror head finish will be chrome.  The mirror head and arm will provide a seamless 
appearance, and include a black painted metal cover plate on the underside of the arm to 
reduce glare.  For maximum visibility and safety, a flat mirror section will be provided that 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 39 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 39 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 32 of 119 

measures 83 square inches in reflective area.  There will also be an integral convex mirror 
section that will measure 27 square inches in reflective area.  The flat glass and convex section 
in each mirror will be heated and adjustable with remote controls that are convenient to the 
driver. 

A turn signal indicator will be provided in each One-Eleven mirror.  The turn signal indicators will 
consist of five (5) LED lights in the shape of an arrow.  The LED lights will be mounted with the 
lights directed to the side of the vehicle, to direct light intensity at traffic behind, and along side 
the vehicle. The light will be activated with the directional or the hazard lights. 

CAB DOORS 
To enhance entry and egress to the cab, the forward cab doors will be a minimum of 43.59" 
wide x 76.46" high.  The crew cab doors will be located on the sides of the cab and will be 
constructed in the same manner as the forward cab doors.  The crew cab doors will measure a 
minimum of 37.87" wide x 85.50" high. 

The forward cab and crew cab doors will be constructed of extruded aluminum with a nominal 
material thickness of 0.125".  The exterior door skins will be constructed from 0.090" aluminum. 

The forward cab door windows will include a 7.50" high x 10.00" wide drop area at the front to 
enhance visibility. 

A customized, vertical, pull-down type door handle will be provided on the exterior of each cab 
door.  The exterior handle will be designed specifically for the fire service to prevent accidental 
activation, and will provide 4.00" wide x 2.00" deep hand clearance for ease of use with heavy 
gloved hands.  Each door will also be provided with an interior flush, open style paddle handle 
that will be readily operable from fore and aft positions, and be designed to prevent accidental 
activation.  The interior handles will provide 4.00" wide x 1.25" deep hand clearance for ease of 
use with heavy gloved hands. 

The cab doors will be provided with both interior (rotary knob) and exterior (keyed) locks 
exceeding FMVSS standards.  The locks will be capable of activating when the doors are open 
or closed.  The doors will remain locked if locks are activated when the doors are opened, then 
closed. 

A heavy duty, stainless steel, piano-type hinge with a 0.38" pin and 11 gauge leaf will be 
provided on all cab doors.  There will be double automotive-type rubber seals around the 
perimeter of the door framing and door edges to ensure a weather-tight fit. 

A chrome grab handle will be provided on the inside of each cab and crew cab door. 

The cab steps at each cab door location will be located inside the cab doors to protect the steps 
from weather elements. 

CAB DOOR PANELS 
The inner cab door panels will be constructed out of brushed stainless steel.  The cab door 
panels will be removable without disconnecting door and window mechanisms. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 40 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 40 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 33 of 119 

RECESSED POCKET WITH ELASTIC COVER 
To provide organized storage (clutter control) in the cab for miscellaneous equipment, the cab 
interior will be provided with recessed storage pockets.  The pockets will be 5.63" wide x 2.00" 
high x 4.00" deep.  The pockets will be provided with a perforated elastic material cover to 
secure the equipment in the pocket.  The pockets will be installed in all available mounting 
locations of the overhead console. 

ELECTRIC WINDOW CONTROLS 
Each cab entry door will be equipped with an electrically operated tempered glass window.  A 
window control panel will be located on the door panel within easy reach of the respective 
occupant.  Each switch will allow intermittent or auto down operation for ease of use.  Auto 
down operation will be actuated by holding the window down switch for approximately 1/2 
second.  The driver control panel will contain a control switch for each cab door's window.  All 
other door control panels will contain a single switch to operate the window within that door. 

The window switches will be connected directly to the battery power.  This allows the windows 
to be raised and lowered when the battery switch is in the off position. 

ELECTRIC CAB DOOR LOCKS 
The front driver and passenger doors will have a door lock master switch (custom designed 
rotary lock knob) built into the interior door latch that will control all front and rear side exit door 
locks.  Each rear cab door will have its own lock control.  Each door will have a keyed exterior 
lock mechanism built into the door handle assembly. 

There will be one (1) concealed switch on the exterior of the cab, located under the front full 
width service access panel, that operates the cab door locks. 

The lock system will include two (2) key FOBs that allow for keyless entry into the vehicle.  The 
key FOB system will use code hopping technology for high security and be FCC part 15 
compliant. 

CAB STEPS 
The forward cab and crew cab access steps will be a full size two (2) step design to provide 
largest possible stepping surfaces for safe ingress and egress.  The bottom steps will be 
designed with a grip pattern punched into bright aluminum treadplate material to provide 
support, slip resistance, and drainage.  The bottom steps will be a bolt-in design to minimize 
repair costs should they need to be replaced.  The forward cab steps will be a minimum 31.00" 
wide, and the crew cab steps will be 24.25" wide with an 8.00" minimum depth.  The inside cab 
steps will not exceed 18.00" in height and be limited to two (2) steps.  Three (3) step entrance 
designs will not be acceptable due to safety concerns.  A slip-resistant handrail will be provided 
adjacent to each cab door opening to assist during cab ingress and egress. 

STEP LIGHTS 
For reduced overall maintenance costs compared to incandescent lighting, there will be four (4) 
white LED step lights provided.  The lights will be installed at each cab and crew cab door, one 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 41 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 41 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 34 of 119 

(1) per step.  The lights will be located in the driver side front doorstep, driver side crew cab 
doorstep, passenger side front doorstep and passenger side crew cab doorstep. 

In order to ensure exceptional illumination, each light will provide a minimum of 25 foot-candles 
(fc) covering an entire 15.00" x 15.00" square placed 10.00" below the light and a minimum of 
1.5 fc covering an entire 30.00" x 30.00" square at the same 10.00" distance below the light. 

The lights will be activated when the adjacent door is opened. 

FENDER CROWNS 
Stainless steel fender crowns will be installed at the cab wheel openings. 

INTERIOR CREW CAB DOOR HANDRAIL 
A handrail will be provided on each interior crew cab door pan.  The handrails will be mounted 
at a 45 degree angle.  These are in addition to the standard crew cab door handle. 

HANDRAILS (ADDITIONAL) 
There will be two (2) handrail(s) provided one on each side on the rear trailing edge of the crew 
cab vertically mounted to the outside edge.  The handrail will be an anodized aluminum 
extrusion with a ribbed design to provide a positive gripping surface. 

FRONT WINDOWS FOR RAISED ROOF 
To enhance both visibility out of and light penetration into the crew cab, two (2) bonded windows 
will be provided in the front slanted portion of the raised roof.  Each window will be 
approximately 15.00" wide x 7.00" high.  The profile of the glass will match the painted metal 
side sheet opening, creating a uniform threshold appearance.  The windows will be bonded to 
the vehicle using urethane adhesive. 

WINDOWS, REAR 
The rear wall of the crew cab will have two (2) windows, each being 8.00" wide x 14.00" high. 

WINDOW INTERIOR TRIM 
For improved aesthetics, the cab rear wall windows will include a vacuum formed ABS interior 
trim panel. 

MOUNTING PLATE ON ENGINE TUNNEL 
Equipment installation provisions will be installed on the engine tunnel. 

A .25" smooth aluminum plate will be bolted to the top surface of the engine tunnel.  The plate 
will be located to the left of the officer and on the rear of the tunnel.  It will follow the contour of 
the engine tunnel and will run the entire length of the engine tunnel.  The plate will be spaced off 
the engine tunnel .75" to allow for wire routing below the plate.  An additional trim piece will be 
provided to protect the vinyl surface on the radius edge of the engine tunnel. 

The mounting surface will be painted to match the cab interior. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 42 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 42 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 35 of 119 

CAB INTERIOR 
With safety as the primary objective, the wrap-around style cab instrument panel will be 
designed with unobstructed visibility to instrumentation.  The dash layout will provide the driver 
with a quick reference to gauges that allows more time to focus on the road. 

The center console will be a high impact ABS polymer and will be easily removable for access 
to the defroster.  The center console will include louvers strategically located for optimal air flow 
and defrost capability to the windshield. 

The passenger side dashboard will be constructed of painted aluminum for durability and low 
maintenance.  For enhanced versatility, the passenger side dash will include a flat working 
surface. 

To provide optional (service friendly) control panels, switches and storage modules, a painted 
aluminum overhead console will also be provided. 

To complete the cab front interior design, painted aluminum modesty panels will be provided 
under the dash on both sides of the cab.  The driver side modesty panel will provide mounting 
for the battery switch and diagnostic connectors, while the passenger side modesty panel 
provides a glove box, and ground access to the main electrical distribution panel via quick 
quarter turn fasteners. 

To provide a deluxe automotive interior, the engine tunnel, side walls and rear wall will be 
covered by Turnout Tuff fabric. 

The headliner will be installed in both forward and rear cab sections.  The headliner panel will 
be a composition of an aluminum panel covered with a sound barrier and upholstery. 

The cab structure will include designated raceways for electrical harness routing from the front 
of the cab to the rear upper portion of the cab.  Raceways will be extruded in the forward door 
frame, floor, walls and overhead in the area where the walls meet the ceiling.  The raceways 
located in the floor will be covered by aluminum extrusion, while the vertical and overhead 
raceways will be covered by painted aluminum covers.  The raceways will improve harness 
integrity by providing a continuous harness path that eliminates wire chafing and abrasion 
associated with exposed wiring or routing through drilled metal holes.  Harnesses will be laid in 
place. 

CAB INTERIOR UPHOLSTERY 
The cab interior upholstery will be black.  All cab interior materials will meet FMVSS 302 
(flammability of interior materials). 

CAB INTERIOR PAINT 
A rich looking interior will be provided by painting all the metal surfaces inside the cab gray, 
vinyl texture paint. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 43 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 43 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 36 of 119 

CAB FLOOR 
The cab and crew cab floor areas will be covered with Polydamp™ acoustical floor mat 
consisting of a black pyramid rubber facing and closed cell foam decoupler. 

The top surface of the material has a series of raised pyramid shapes evenly spaced, which 
offer a superior grip surface.  Additionally, the material has a 0.25" thick closed cell foam (no 
water absorption) which offers a sound dampening material for reducing sound levels. 

CAB DEFROSTER 
To provide maximum defrost and heating performance, a 54,961 BTU heater-defroster unit with 
558 SCFM of air flow will be provided inside the cab.  The defroster unit will be strategically 
located under the center forward portion of the instrument panel.  For easy access, a removable 
metal cover will be installed over the defroster unit.  The defroster will include an integral 
aluminum frame air filter, high performance dual scroll blowers, and ducts designed to provide 
maximum defrosting capabilities for the 1-piece windshield.  The defroster ventilation will be 
built into the design of the cab dash instrument panel and will be easily removable for 
maintenance.  The defroster will be capable of clearing 98 percent of the windshield and side 
glass when tested under conditions where the cab has been cold soaked at 0 degrees 
Fahrenheit for 10 hours, and a 2 ounce per square inch layer of frost/ice has been able to build 
up on the exterior windshield.  The defroster system will meet or exceed SAE J382 
requirements. 

CAB/CREW CAB HEATER 
Two (2) 36,702 BTU auxiliary heaters with 276 SCFM (each unit) of air flow will be provided 
inside the crew cab, one (1) in each outboard rear facing seat riser.  The heaters will include 
high performance dual scroll blowers, one (1) for each unit.  Outlets for the heaters will be 
located below each rear facing seat riser and below the fronts of the driver and passenger 
seats, for efficient airflow.  An extruded aluminum plenum will be incorporated in the cab 
structure that will transfer heat to the forward cab seating positions. 

The heater/defroster and crew cab heaters will be controlled by an integral electronic control 
panel.  The heater control panel will allow the driver to control heat flow to the front and rear 
independently.  The control panel will include variable adjustment for temperature and fan 
control, and be conveniently located on the dash in clear view of the driver.  The control panel 
will include highly visible, progressive LED indicators for both fan speed and temperature. 

AIR CONDITIONING 
Due to the large space inside the cab, a high-performance, customized air conditioning system 
will be furnished.  A 19.10 cubic inch compressor will be installed on the engine. 

The air conditioning system will be capable of cooling the average cab temperature from 100 
degrees Fahrenheit to 64 degrees Fahrenheit in the forward section of the cab, and 69 degrees 
Fahrenheit in the rear section of the cab, at 50 percent relative humidity within 30 minutes.  The 
cooling performance test will be run only after the cab has been heat soaked at 100 degrees 
Fahrenheit for a minimum of 4 hours. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 44 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 44 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 37 of 119 

A roof-mounted condenser with a 63,000 BTU output that meets and exceeds the performance 
specification will be installed on the cab roof.  Mounting the condenser below the cab or body 
would reduce the performance of the system and will not be acceptable. 

The evaporator unit will be installed in the rear portion of the cab ceiling over the engine tunnel.  
The evaporator will include two (2) high performance cores and plenums with multiple outlets, 
one (1) plenum directed to the front and one (1) plenum directed to the rear of the cab. 

There will be a hinge on the forward edge of the filter cover and three (3) thumb screw fasteners 
on the rear edge to allow easy access. 

The evaporator unit will have a 49,000 BTU (4.08 tons) rating that meets and exceeds the 
performance specifications. 

Adjustable air outlets will be strategically located on the evaporator cover per the following: 

• Four (4) will be directed towards the driver’s location 
• Four (4) will be directed towards the officer’s location 
• Nine (9) will be directed towards crew cab area 

The air conditioner refrigerant will be R-134A and will be installed by a certified technician. 

The air conditioner will be controlled by dual zone integral electronic control panels for the 
heater, defroster and air conditioner.  The cab control panel will be located in the center 
console.  For ease of operation, the control panels will include variable adjustment for 
temperature and fan control. 

INTERIOR CAB INSULATION 
The cab walls, ceiling and engine tunnel will be insulated in all strategic locations to maximize 
acoustic absorption and thermal insulation.  The cab will be insulated with 2.00" insulation in the 
rear wall, 3.00" insulation in the side walls, and 1.50" insulation in the ceiling.  Headliners will be 
constructed from a 0.20" high density polyethylene corrugated material.  Each headliner will be 
wrapped with a 0.25" thick foil faced poly damp low emissivity foam insulation barrier for 
acoustic and thermal control. 

Designed for maximum sound absorption and thermal insulation, the rear cab wall will be 
insulated with a 1.50" thick open cell acoustical foam.  The thermal protection of the foam will 
provide and R-value of four (4) per 1.00" thickness. 

SUN VISORS 
Two (2) smoked Lexan™ sun visors provided.  The sun visors will be located above the 
windshield with one (1) mounted on each side of the cab. 

There will be no retention bracket provided to help secure each sun visor in the stowed position. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 45 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 45 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 38 of 119 

GRAB HANDLE 
A black rubber covered grab handle will be mounted on the door post of the driver side and 
passenger side cab door to assist in entering the cab.  The grab handle will be securely 
mounted to the post area between the door and windshield. 

ENGINE COMPARTMENT LIGHT 
An engine compartment light will be installed under the engine hood, of which the switch is an 
integral part.  Light will have a .125" diameter hole in its lens to prevent moisture retention. 

ACCESS TO ENGINE DIPSTICKS 
For access to the engine oil and transmission fluid dipsticks, there will be a door on the engine 
tunnel, inside the crew cab.  The door will be on the rear wall of the engine tunnel, on the 
vertical surface.  The door will be 17.75" wide x 12.75" high and be flush with the wall of the 
engine tunnel. 

The engine oil dipstick will allow for checking only.  The transmission dipstick will allow for both 
checking and filling.  An additional port will be provided for filling the engine oil. 

The door will have a rubber seal for thermal and acoustic insulation.  One (1) flush latch will be 
provided on the access door. 

MAP BOX 
A map box with five (5) bins, open at top, will be installed mount to the engine cover mounting 
surface to match job 27546. The map box will be divided into five (5) bins, each bin will slant 30 
degrees from horizontal, towards the rear. There will be a row of three (3) slots on the driver 
side and two (2) slots on the passenger side. Each slot will measure 12.00" long x 3.00" wide. 
There will be no bin at the front of the map box on the passenger side. A vertical surface will be 
installed in front of the bin. The map box will be constructed of .125" aluminum and will be 
painted to match the cab interior. 

SEATING CAPACITY 
The seating capacity in the cab will be five (5). 

DRIVER SEAT 
A Pierce PS6® seat will be provided in the cab for the driver.  The seat design will be a cam 
action type, with air suspension.  For increased convenience, the seat will include electric 
controls to adjust the rake (15 degrees), height (1.12" travel) and horizontal (7.75" travel) 
position.  Electric controls will be located below the forward part of the seat cushion.  To provide 
flexibility for multiple driver configurations, the seat will have a reclining back, adjustable from 20 
degrees back to 45 degrees forward.  The seat back will be a high back style with manual 
lumbar adjustment lever, for lower back support, and will include minimum 7.50" deep side 
bolster pads for maximum support.  For optimal comfort, the seat will be provided with 17.00" 
deep dual density foam cushions designed with EVC (elastomeric vibration control). 

The seat will be furnished with a 3-point, shoulder type seat belt.  The seat belt will be furnished 
with dual automatic retractors that will provide ease of operation in the normal seating position. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 46 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 46 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 39 of 119 

OFFICER SEAT 
A Pierce PS6® seat will be provided in the cab for the officer.  The seat will be a cam action 
type with air suspension.  For increased convenience, the seat will include a manual control to 
adjust the horizontal position (6.00" travel).  The manual horizontal control will be a towel-bar 
style located below the forward part of the seat cushion.  To provide flexibility for multiple 
passenger configurations, the seat will have a reclining back adjustable from 20 degrees back to 
0 degrees forward.  The seat back will be a high back style with manual lumbar adjustment lever 
and will include minimum 7.50" deep side bolster pads for maximum support.  For optimal 
comfort, the seat will be provided with 17.00" deep dual density foam cushions designed with 
EVC (elastomeric vibration control).  To ensure safe operation, the seat will be equipped with 
seat belt sensors in the seat cushion and belt receptacle that will activate an alarm indicating a 
seat is occupied but not buckled. 

The seat will be furnished with a 3-point, shoulder type seat belt.  The seat belt will be furnished 
with dual automatic retractors that will provide ease of operation in the normal seating position. 

REAR FACING DRIVER SIDE EMS COMPARTMENT 
A rear facing EMS compartment will be provided in the crew cab at the driver side outboard 
position. The compartment will be mounted 6.50" off the edge of the seat riser. 

The compartment will be 26.75" wide x 30.00" high x 25.50" deep. 

The compartment will provide access from the exterior of the cab with a double pan, reverse 
hinged style door having a minimum clear door opening of approximately 18.25" wide x 27.75" 
high.  The door will include a D-ring latch and will be located on the side of the cab over the 
wheelwell.  A gas strut will be provided to hold the door at 90 degrees. 

The compartment will be constructed of smooth aluminum, and painted to match the cab 
interior. 

Compartment Light 
There will be one (1) white LED strip light installed on the right side of the compartment 
opening.  The lights will be controlled by an automatic door switch. 

EMS COMPARTMENT 
A rear facing EMS compartment will be provided in the crew cab at the passenger side outboard 
position. The compartment will be mounted 6.50" off the edge of the seat riser. 

The compartment will be 24.50" wide x 30.00" high x 25.50" deep with access from outside the 
cab only.  A double pan reversed hinge style door having a minimum clear door opening of 
approximately 18.25" wide x 27.75" high.  The door will include a D-ring latch and will be located 
on the side of the cab over the wheelwell.  A gas strut will be provided to hold the door at 90 
degrees. 

The compartment will be constructed of smooth aluminum, and painted to match the cab 
interior. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 47 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 47 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 40 of 119 

COMPARTMENT LIGHT 
There will be one (1) white LED strip light installed on the left side of the compartment opening.  
The lights will be controlled by an automatic door switch. 

FORWARD FACING CENTER SEATS 
There will be two (2) forward facing, Pierce PS6® seats provided at the center position in the 
crew cab.  For optimal comfort, the seats will be provided with 17.00" deep dual density foam 
cushions designed with EVC (elastomeric vibration control).  To ensure safe operation, the 
seats will be equipped with seat belt sensors in the seat cushion and belt receptacle that will 
activate an alarm indicating a seat is occupied but not buckled. 

The seat backs will be an SCBA back style with 7.5 degree fixed recline angle, and will include 
minimum 4.50" wide x 7.50" deep side bolster pads for maximum support.  The SCBA cavity will 
be adjustable from front to rear in 1.00" increments, to accommodate different sized SCBA 
cylinders.  Moving the SCBA cavity will be accomplished by unbolting, relocating, and re-bolting 
it in the desired location. 

The seats will be furnished with 3-point, shoulder type seat belts.  The seat belts will be 
furnished with dual automatic retractors that will provide ease of operation in the normal seating 
position. 

FORWARD FACING PASSENGER SIDE OUTBOARD SEAT 
There will be one (1) forward facing, Pierce PS6® foldup seat provided at the passenger side 
outboard position in the crew cab.  To provide improved ride comfort, and maximize accessibility 
to the crew cab, the seat will be a minimum of 17.00" from the front of the cushion to the face of 
the seat back and the seat back will be provided with 9 degree fixed recline angle.  To ensure 
safe operation, the seat will be equipped with seat belt sensors in the seat cushion and belt 
receptacle, that will activate an alarm indicating a seat is occupied but not buckled. 

The seat back will be high back style. 

The seat will be furnished with a 3-point, shoulder type seat belt.  The seat belt will be furnished 
with dual automatic retractors that will provide ease of operation in the normal seating position. 

DOOR PAN SCUFFPLATE 
There will be a brushed stainless steel scuffplate on the interior door pan of two (2) 
compartment door(s) located on the exterior cabinet access doors aft of the cab doors on each 
side of the body. 

MATTING IN EMS COMPARTMENT 
Vinyl grating will be provided in two (2) EMS compartments, each rear facing EMS cabinet.  Tile 
color will be black. 

The vinyl grating will be 0.50" thick and be cross bonded by 0.25" diameter ribbed sections 
spaced for aeration.  The trim edge will not be installed at the edge of the tile. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 48 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 48 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 41 of 119 

SEAT UPHOLSTERY 
All seat upholstery will be black Turnout Tuff material. 

AIR BOTTLE HOLDERS 
All SCBA type seats in the cab will have a "Hands-Free" auto clamp style bracket in its backrest.  
For efficiency and convenience, the bracket will include an automatic spring clamp that allows 
the occupant to store the SCBA bottle by simply pushing it into the seat back.  For protection of 
all occupants in the cab, in the event of an accident, the inertial components within the clamp 
will constrain the SCBA bottle in the seat and will exceed the NFPA standard of 9G.  Bracket 
designs with manual restraints (belts, straps, buckles) that could be inadvertently left unlocked 
and allow the SCBA to move freely within the cab during an accident, will not be acceptable. 

There will be a quantity of two (2) SCBA brackets. 

SEAT BELTS 
All seating positions in the cab and crew cab will have red seat belts. 

To provide quick, easy use for occupants wearing bunker gear, the female buckle and seat belt 
webbing length will meet or exceed the current edition of NFPA 1901 and CAN/ULC - S515 
standards. 

The belts will also include the ReadyReach D-loop assembly to the shoulder belt system.  The 
ReadyReach feature adds an extender arm to the D-loop location placing the D-loop in a closer, 
easier to reach location. 

SHOULDER HARNESS HEIGHT ADJUSTMENT 
All seating positions furnished with 3-point shoulder type seat belts will include a height 
adjustment.  This adjustment will optimize the belts effectiveness and comfort for the seated 
firefighter. 

A total of five (5) seating positions will have the adjustable shoulder harness. 

HELMET STORAGE PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, section 14.1.7.4.1 requires a location for helmet storage be provided. 

There is no helmet storage on the apparatus as manufactured.  The fire department will provide 
a location for storage of helmets. 

CAB DOME LIGHTS 
There will be four (4) dual LED dome lights with grey bezels provided.  Two (2) lights will be 
mounted above the inside shoulder of the driver and officer and two (2) lights will be installed 
and located, one (1) on each side of the crew cab. 

The color of the LED's will be red and white. 

The white LED's will be controlled by the door switches and the lens switch. 

The color LED's will be controlled by the lens switch. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 49 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 49 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 42 of 119 

In order to ensure exceptional illumination, each white LED dome light will provide a minimum of 
10.1 foot-candles (fc) covering an entire 20.00" x 20.00" square seating position when mounted 
40.00" above the seat. 

OVERHEAD MAP LIGHTS 
There will be two (2) white halogen, round adjustable map lights installed in the cab: 

• One (1) overhead in front of the driving position.  
• One (1) overhead in front of the passenger's position. 

Each light will include a switch on the light housing. 

The light switches will be connected directly to the battery switched power. 

MAP LIGHT 
There will be one (1) Sunnex®, Model HS741-20-IP65, halogen map light(s) provided in the cab 
and located on the right side of the cab dash near the A pillar.  Each map light will have a 
square base with an on/off switch.  The map light(s) will have a 20.00" long flexible neck that 
exits the top of the chassis mount. 

Each light will be provided with a red lens that easily slides over the clear lamp for night vision. 

The light switch(es) will be connected directly to the battery switched power. 

HAND HELD LIGHT 
There will be two (2) 12v Streamlight, Fire Vulcan, Model #44451, lights mounted one each side 
of the cab under the forward facing outboard seats to match previous job 26218. 

Each light housing will be orange in color and be provided with a C4 LED and two (2) "ultra 
bright blue tail light LEDs” The tail light LEDs will have a dual mode of blinking or steady. 

Vehicle mount with 12VDC direct wire charging rack. 

Quick release buckle strap will be included. 

HAND HELD LIGHT 
There will be two (2) lights Streamlight E-Flood LiteBox, Model 45805, LED hand lights with the 
orange thermoplastic body and dual rear LEDs provided.  These will be mounted one each side 
of the cab under the forward facing outboard seats to match previous job 26218. 

The light will be provided with a 12 volt charger. 

CAB INSTRUMENTATION 
The cab instrument panel will consist of gauges, an LCD display, telltale indicator lights, alarms, 
control switches, and a diagnostic panel.  The function of instrument panel controls and 
switches will be identified by a label adjacent to each item.  Actuation of the headlight switch will 
illuminate the labels in low light conditions.  Telltale indicator lamps will not be illuminated unless 
necessary.  The cab instruments and controls will be conveniently located within the forward 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 50 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 50 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 43 of 119 

cab section directly forward of the driver.  Gauge and switch panels will be designed to be 
removable for ease of service and low cost of ownership. 

GAUGES 
The gauge panel will include the following ten (10) ivory gauges with chrome bezels to monitor 
vehicle performance:  

- Voltmeter gauge (Volts) 

Low volts (11.8 VDC) 

Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

High volts (15 VDC) 

Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

Very low volts (11.3 VDC) 

Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

Very high volts (16 VDC) 

Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

- Tachometer (RPM) 

- Speedometer (Primary (outside) MPH, Secondary (inside) Km/H) 

- Fuel level gauge (Empty - Full in fractions) 

Low fuel (1/8 full) 

Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

Very low fuel (1/32) fuel 

Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

- Engine oil pressure gauge (PSI) 

Low oil pressure to activate engine warning lights and alarms 

Red indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

- Front air pressure gauge (PSI) 

Low air pressure to activate warning lights and alarm 

Red indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

- Rear air pressure gauge (PSI) 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 51 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 51 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 44 of 119 

Low air pressure to activate warning lights and alarm 

Red indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

- Transmission oil temperature gauge (Fahrenheit) 

High transmission oil temperature activates warning lights and alarm 

Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

- Engine coolant temperature gauge (Fahrenheit) 

High engine temperature activates an engine warning light and alarm 

Red indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

- Diesel Exhaust Fluid Level Gauge (Empty - Full in fractions) 

Low fluid (1/8 full) 

Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm 

All gauges and gauge indicators will perform prove out at initial power-up to ensure proper 
performance. 

INDICATOR LAMPS 
To promote safety, the following telltale indicator lamps will be integral to the gauge assembly 
and are located above and below the center gauges.  The indicator lamps will be "dead-front" 
design that is only visible when active.  The colored indicator lights will have descriptive text or 
symbols. 

The following amber telltale lamps will be present: 

- Low coolant 

- Trac cntl (traction control) (where applicable) 

- Check engine 

- Check trans (check transmission) 

- Aux brake overheat (Auxiliary brake overheat) 

- Air rest (air restriction) 

- Caution (triangle symbol) 

- Water in fuel 

- DPF (engine diesel particulate filter regeneration) 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 52 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 52 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 45 of 119 

- Trailer ABS (where applicable) 

- Wait to start (where applicable) 

- HET (engine high exhaust temperature) (where applicable) 

- ABS (antilock brake system) 

- MIL (engine emissions system malfunction indicator lamp) (where applicable) 

- SRS (supplemental restraint system) fault (where applicable) 

- DEF (low diesel exhaust fluid level) 

The following red telltale lamps will be present: 

- Warning (stop sign symbol) 

- Seat belt 

- Parking brake 

- Stop engine 

- Rack down 

The following green telltale lamps will be provided: 

- Left turn 

- Right turn 

- Battery on 

The following blue telltale lamp will be provided: 

- High beam 

ALARMS 
Audible steady tone warning alarm:  A steady audible tone alarm will be provided whenever a 
warning message is present. 

Audible pulsing tone caution alarm:  A pulsing audible tone alarm (chime/chirp) will be provided 
whenever a caution message is present without a warning message being present. 

Alarm silence:  Any active audible alarm will be able to be silenced by holding the ignition switch 
at the top position for three (3) to five (5) seconds.  For improved safety, silenced audible alarms 
will intermittently chirp every 30 seconds until the alarm condition no longer exists.  The 
intermittent chirp will act as a reminder to the operator that a caution or warning condition still 
exists.  Any new warning or caution condition will enable the steady or pulsing tones 
respectively.  

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 53 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 53 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 46 of 119 

INDICATOR LAMP AND ALARM PROVE-OUT 
Telltale indicators and alarms will perform prove-out at initial power-up to ensure proper 
performance.  

CONTROL SWITCHES 
For ease of use, the following controls will be provided immediately adjacent to the cab 
instrument panel within easy reach of the driver. 

Emergency master switch:  A molded plastic push button switch with integral indicator lamp will 
be provided.  Pressing the switch will activate emergency response lights and siren control.  A 
green lamp on the switch provides indication that the emergency master mode is active.  
Pressing the switch again disables the emergency master mode. 

Headlight / Parking light switch:  A three (3)-position maintained rocker switch will be provided.  
The first switch position will deactivate all parking lights and the headlights.  The second switch 
position will activate the parking lights.  The third switch position will activate the headlights. 

Panel backlighting intensity control switch:  A three (3)-position momentary rocker switch will be 
provided.  The first switch position decreases the panel backlighting intensity to a minimum level 
as the switch is held.  The second switch position is the default position that does not affect the 
backlighting intensity.  The third switch position increases the panel backlighting intensity to a 
maximum level as the switch is held. 

The following standard controls will be integral to the gauge assembly and are located below the 
right hand gauges.  All switches have backlit labels for low light applications. 

High idle engagement switch:  A two (2)-position momentary rocker switch with integral indicator 
lamp will be provided.  The first switch position is the default switch position.  The second switch 
position will activate and deactivate the high idle function when pressed and released.  The "Ok 
To Engage High Idle" indicator lamp must be active for the high idle function to engage.  A 
green indicator lamp integral to the high idle engagement switch will indicate when the high idle 
function is engaged. 

"Ok To Engage High Idle" indicator lamp:  A green indicator light will be provided next to the 
high idle activation switch to indicate that the interlocks have been met to allow high idle 
engagement. 

The following standard controls will be provided adjacent to the cab gauge assembly within easy 
reach of the driver.  All switches will have backlit labels for low light applications. 

Ignition switch:  A three (3)-position maintained/momentary rocker switch will be provided.  The 
first switch position will deactivate vehicle ignition.  The second switch position will activate 
vehicle ignition.  The third momentary position will disable the Command Zone audible alarm if 
held for three (3) to five (5) seconds.  A green indicator lamp will be activated with vehicle 
ignition. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 54 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 54 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 47 of 119 

Engine start switch:  A two (2)-position momentary rocker switch will be provided.  The first 
switch position is the default switch position.  The second switch position will activate the 
vehicle's engine.  The switch actuator is designed to prevent accidental activation. 

4-way hazard switch:  A two (2)-position maintained rocker switch will be provided.  The first 
switch position will deactivate the 4-way hazard switch function.  The second switch position will 
activate the 4-way hazard function.  The switch actuator will be red and includes the 
international 4-way hazard symbol. 

Heater, defroster, and optional air conditioning control panel:  A control panel with membrane 
switches will be provided to control heater/defroster temperature and heater, defroster, and air 
conditioning fan speeds.  A green LED status bar will indicate the relative temperature and fan 
speed settings. 

Turn signal arm:  A self-canceling turn signal with high beam headlight and windshield 
wiper/washer controls will be provided.  The windshield wiper control will have high, low, and 
intermittent modes. 

Parking brake control:  An air actuated push/pull park brake control valve will be provided. 

Chassis horn control:  Activation of the chassis horn control will be provided through the center 
of the steering wheel. 

CUSTOM SWITCH PANELS 
The design of cab instrumentation will allow for emergency lighting and other switches to be 
placed within easy reach of the operator thus improving safety.  There will be positions for up to 
four (4) switch panels in the overhead console on the driver's side, up to four (4) switch panels 
in the engine tunnel console facing the driver, up to four (4) switch panels in the overhead 
console on the officer's side and up to two (2) switch panels in the engine tunnel console facing 
the officer.  All switches will have backlit labels for low light applications. 

DIAGNOSTIC PANEL 
A diagnostic panel will be accessible while standing on the ground and located inside the 
driver's side door left of the steering column.  The diagnostic panel will allow diagnostic tools 
such as computers to connect to various vehicle systems for improved troubleshooting providing 
a lower cost of ownership.  Diagnostic switches will allow engine and ABS systems to provide 
blink codes should a problem exist. 

The diagnostic panel will include the following: 

- Engine diagnostic port 

- Transmission diagnostic port 

- ABS diagnostic port 

- SRS diagnostic port (where applicable) 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 55 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 55 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 48 of 119 

- Command Zone USB diagnostic port 

- Engine diagnostic switch (blink codes flashed on check engine telltale indicator) 

- ABS diagnostic switch (blink codes flashed on ABS telltale indicator) 

- Diesel particulate filter regeneration switch (where applicable) 

- Diesel particulate filter regeneration inhibit switch (where applicable) 

CAB LCD DISPLAY 
A digital four (4)-row by 20-character dot matrix display will be integral to the gauge panel.  The 
display will be capable of showing simple graphical images as well as text.  The display will be 
split into three (3) sections.  Each section will have a dedicated function.  The upper left section 
will display the outside ambient temperature. 

The upper right section will display, along with other configuration specific information: 

- Odometer 

- Trip mileage 

- PTO hours 

- Fuel consumption 

- Engine hours 

The bottom section will display INFO, CAUTION, and WARNING messages.  Text messages 
will automatically activate to describe the cause of an audible caution or warning alarm.  The 
LCD will be capable of displaying multiple text messages should more than one caution or 
warning condition exist. 

AIR RESTRICTION INDICATOR 
A high air restriction warning indicator light LCD message with amber warning indicator and 
audible alarm will be provided. 

- Ammeter. 

"DO NOT MOVE APPARATUS" INDICATOR 
A flashing red indicator light, located in the driving compartment, will be illuminated 
automatically per the current NFPA requirements.  The light will be labeled "Do Not Move 
Apparatus If Light Is On." 

The same circuit that activates the Do Not Move Apparatus indicator will activate a Jameco, 
Model 207993 audio alarm when the parking brake is released.  The audio alarm will be located 
inside the center overhead A/C housing cover so that the sound will be directed through the A/C 
housing louvers. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 56 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 56 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 49 of 119 

DO NOT MOVE TRUCK MESSAGES 
Messages will be displayed on the Command Zone™, color display located within sight of the 
driver whenever the Do Not Move Truck light is active.  The messages will designate the item or 
items not in the stowed for vehicle travel position (parking brake disengaged). 

The following messages will be displayed (where applicable): 

• Do Not Move Truck 
• DS Cab Door Open (Driver Side Cab Door Open) 
• PS Cab Door Open (Passenger's Side Cab Door Open) 
• DS Crew Cab Door Open (Driver Side Crew Cab Door Open) 
• PS Crew Cab Door Open (Passenger's Side Crew Cab Door Open) 
• DS Body Door Open (Driver Side Body Door Open) 
• PS Body Door Open (Passenger's Side Body Door Open) 
• Rear Body Door Open 
• DS Ladder Rack Down (Driver Side Ladder Rack Down) 
• PS Ladder Rack Down (Passenger Side Ladder Rack Down) 
• Deck Gun Not Stowed 
• Lt Tower Not Stowed (Light Tower Not Stowed) 
• Hatch Door Open 
• Fold Tank Not Stowed (Fold-A-Tank Not Stowed) 
• Aerial Not Stowed (Aerial Device Not Stowed) 
• Stabilizer Not Stowed 
• Steps Not Stowed 
• Handrail Not Stowed 

Any other device that is opened, extended, or deployed that creates a hazard or is likely to 
cause major damage to the apparatus if the apparatus is moved will be displayed as a caution 
message after the parking brake is disengaged. 

SWITCH PANELS 
The emergency light switch panel will have a master switch for ease of use plus individual 
switches for selective control.  Each switch panel will contain eight (8) membrane-type switches 
each rated for one million (1,000,000) cycles.  Panels containing less than eight (8) switch 
assignments will include non-functioning black appliqués.  Documentation will be provided by 
the manufacturer indicating the rated cycle life of the switches.  The switch panel(s) will be 
located in the overhead position above the windshield on the driver side overhead to allow for 
easy access. 

Additional switch panel(s) will be located in the overhead position(s) above the windshield or in 
designated locations on the lower instrument panel layout. 

The switches will be membrane-type and also act as an integral indicator light.  For quick, visual 
indication the entire surface of the switch will be illuminated white whenever back lighting is 
activated and illuminated green whenever the switch is active.  An active illuminated switch will 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 57 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 57 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 50 of 119 

flash when interlock requirements are not met or device is actively being load managed.  For 
ease of use, a two (2)-ply, scratch resistant laser engraved Gravoply label indicating the use of 
each switch will be placed in the center of the switch.  The label will allow light to pass through 
the letters for ease of use in low light conditions. 

WIPER CONTROL 
For simple operation and easy reach, the windshield wiper control will be an integral part of the 
directional light lever located on the steering column.  The wiper control will include high and low 
wiper speed settings, a one (1)-speed intermittent wiper control and windshield washer switch.  
The control will have a "return to park" provision, which allows the wipers to return to the stored 
position when the wipers are not in use. 

SPARE CIRCUIT 
There will be one (1) pair of wires, including a positive and a negative, installed on the 
apparatus. 

The above wires will have the following features: 

• The positive wire will be connected directly to the battery power. 
• The negative wire will be connected to ground.   
• Wires will be protected to 7.5 amps at 12 volts DC.   
• The 7.5 amp breaker will be located on the bracket with the power point plug.   
• Power and ground will terminate on the upper inboard shelf track on the aft wall of the 

P1 compartment.   
• Termination will be a power point plug.   
• The wire used for this installation will be 10 gauge. 

This circuit(s) may be load managed when the parking brake is set. 

There will be a bracket included to hold the wire termination and circuit breaker with the shelf 
track.  This is to allow the wire termination to be moved as the customer needs. 

SPARE CIRCUIT 
There will be One (1) pair of wires, including a positive and a negative, installed on the 
apparatus. 

The above wires will have the following features: 

• The positive wire will be connected directly to the battery power. 
• The negative wire will be connected to ground.  
• Wires will be protected to 7.5 amps at 12 volts DC.  
• The 7.5 amp breaker will be located on the bracket with the power point plug.  
• Power and ground will terminate mid-height on the inboard shelf track on the forward 

wall of the P1 compartment.  
• Termination will be a power point plug.  
• The wire used for this installation will be 10 gauge. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 58 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 58 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 51 of 119 

This circuit(s) may be load managed when the parking brake is set. 

There will be a bracket included to hold the wire termination and circuit breaker with the shelf 
track.  This is to allow the wire termination to be moved as the customer needs. 

SPARE CIRCUIT 
There will be two (2) pair of wires, including a positive and a negative, installed on the 
apparatus. 

The above wires will have the following features: 

• The positive wire will be connected directly to the battery power 
• The negative wire will be connected to ground 
• Wires will be protected to 15 amps at 12 volts DC 
• Power and ground will terminate two forward of switch panel 9 
• Termination will be with 15 amp, power point plug with rubber cover 
• Wires will be sized to 125 percent of the protection 

The circuit(s) may be load managed when the parking brake is set. 

RECESS, DASH PANEL 
The dash panel across from the officer will be recessed to accommodate the mounting of 
miscellaneous items.  The recess will be 8.25" down x 7.81" back and 20.88" wide. 

INFORMATION CENTER 
An information center employing a 7.00" diagonal touch screen color LCD display will be 
encased in an ABS plastic housing. 

The information center will have the following specifications: 

• Operate in temperatures from -40 to 185 degrees Fahrenheit  
• An Optical Gel will be placed between the LCD and protective lens  
• Five weather resistant user interface switches  
• Grey with black accents   
• Sunlight Readable  
• Linux operating system  
• Minimum of 1000nits rated display  
• Display can be changed to an available foreign language 
• A LCD display integral to the cab gauge panel will be included as outlined in the cab 

instrumentation area.  
• Programmed to read US Customary 

GENERAL SCREEN DESIGN 
Where possible, background colors will be used to provide "At a Glance" vehicle information.  If 
information provided on a screen is within acceptable limits, a green background will be used. 

If a caution or warning situation arises the following will occur: 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 59 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 59 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 52 of 119 

• An amber background/text color will indicate a caution condition  
• A red background/text color will indicate a warning condition  
• The information center will utilize an "Alert Center" to display text messages for audible 

alarm tones.  The text messages will be written to identify the item(s) causing the audible 
alarm to sound.  If more than one (1) text message occurs, the messages will cycle 
every second until the problem(s) have been resolved.  The background color for the 
"Alert Center" will change to indicate the severity of the "warning" message.  If a warning 
and a caution condition occur simultaneously, the red background color will be shown for 
all alert center messages.  

• A label for each button will exist.  The label will indicate the function for each active 
button for each screen.  Buttons that are not utilized on specific screens will have a 
button label with no text or symbol. 

HOME/TRANSIT SCREEN 
This screen will display the following: 

• Vehicle Mitigation (if equipped)  
• Water Level (if equipped)  
• Foam Level (if equipped)  
• Seat Belt Monitoring Screen  
• Tire Pressure Monitoring (if equipped)  
• Digital Speedometer  
• Active Alarms 

ON SCENE SCREEN 
This screen will display the following and will be auto activated with pump engaged (if 
equipped): 

• Battery Voltage  
• Fuel  
• Oil Pressure  
• Coolant Temperature  
• RPM  
• Water Level (if equipped)  
• Foam Level (if equipped)  
• Foam Concentration (if equipped)  
• Water Flow Rate (if equipped)  
• Water Used (if equipped)  
• Active Alarms 

VIRTUAL BUTTONS 
There will be four (4) virtual switch panel screens that match the overhead and lower lighting 
and HVAC switch panels. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 60 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 60 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 53 of 119 

PAGE SCREEN 
The page screen will display the following and allow the user to progress into other screens for 
further functionality: 

• Diagnostics 
o Faults 

 Listed by order of occurrence  
 Allows to sort by system 

o Interlock 
 Throttle Interlocks  
 Pump Interlocks (if equipped)  
 Aerial Interlocks (if equipped)  
 PTO Interlocks (if equipped) 

o Load Manager 
 A list of items to be load managed will be provided.  The list will provide a 

description of the load.  
 The lower the priority numbers the earlier the device will be shed should a 

low voltage condition occur.  
 The screen will indicate if a load has been shed (disabled) or not shed.  
 "At a glance" color features are utilized on this screen. 

o Systems 
 Command Zone 

• Module type and ID number  
• Module Version  
• Input or output number  
• Circuit number connected to that input or output  
• Status of the input or output  
• Power and Constant Current module diagnostic information 

 Foam (if equipped)  
 Pressure Controller (if equipped)  
 Generator Frequency (if equipped) 

o Live Data 
 General Truck Data 

• Maintenance 
o Engine oil and filter  
o Transmission oil and filter  
o Pump oil (if equipped)  
o Foam (if equipped)  
o Aerial (if equipped) 

• Setup 
o Clock Setup  
o Date & Time 

 12 or 24 hour format  
 Set time and date 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 61 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 61 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 54 of 119 

o Backlight 
 Daytime  
 Night time  
 Sensitivity 

o Unit Selection  
o Home Screen  
o Virtual Button Setup  
o On Scene Screen Setup  
o Configure Video Mode 

 Set Video Contrast  
 Set Video Color  
 Set Video Tint 

• Do Not Move 
o The screen will indicate the approximate location and type of item that is open or 

is not stowed for travel. The actual status of the following devices will be 
indicated: 
 Driver Side Cab Door  
 Passenger's Side Cab Door  
 Driver Side Crew Cab Door  
 Passenger's Side Crew Cab Door  
 Driver Side Body Doors  
 Passenger's Side Body Doors  
 Rear Body Door(s)  
 Ladder Rack (if applicable)  
 Deck Gun (if applicable)  
 Light Tower (if applicable)  
 Hatch Door (if applicable)  
 Stabilizers (if applicable)  
 Steps (if applicable) 

• Notifications 
o View Active Alarms 

 Shows a list of all active alarms including date and time of the occurrence 
is shown with each alarm  

 Silence Alarms - All alarms are silenced 
• Timer Screen  
• HVAC (if equipped)  
• Tire Information (if equipped)  

Button functions and button labels may change with each screen. 

VEHICLE DATA RECORDER 
There will be a vehicle data recorder (VDR) capable of reading and storing vehicle information 
provided. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 62 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 62 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 55 of 119 

The information stored on the VDR can be downloaded through a USB port mounted in a 
convenient location determined by cab model. A USB cable can be used to connect the VDR to 
a laptop to retrieve required information.  The program to download the information from the 
VDR will be available to download on-line. 

The vehicle data recorder will be capable of recording the following data via hardwired and/or 
CAN inputs: 

• Vehicle Speed - MPH  
• Acceleration - MPH/sec  
• Deceleration - MPH/sec  
• Engine Speed - RPM  
• Engine Throttle Position - % of Full Throttle  
• ABS Event - On/Off  
• Seat Occupied Status - Yes/No by Position  
• Seat Belt Buckled Status - Yes/No by Position  
• Master Optical Warning Device Switch - On/Off  
• Time - 24 Hour Time  
• Date - Year/Month/Day 

Seat Belt Monitoring System 
A seat belt monitoring system (SBMS) will be provided on the Command Zone™ color display 
and in the center overhead of the cab instrument panel.  The SBMS will be capable of 
monitoring up to 10 seating positions indicating the status of each seat position per the 
following: 

• Seat Occupied & Buckled = Green LED indicator illuminated  
• Seat Occupied & Unbuckled = Red LED indicator with audible alarm  
• No Occupant & Buckled = Red LED indicator with audible alarm  
• No Occupant & Unbuckled = No indicator and no alarm 

The seat belt monitoring screen will become active on the Command Zone color display when: 

• The home screen is active: 
o and there is any occupant seated but not buckled or any belt buckled with an 

occupant.  
o and there are no other Do Not Move Apparatus conditions present.  As soon as 

all Do Not Move Apparatus conditions are cleared, the SBMS will be activated. 

The SBMS will include an audible alarm that will warn that an unbuckled occupant condition 
exists and the parking brake is released, or the transmission is not in park. 

RADIO ANTENNA MOUNT 
There will be one (1) standard 1.125", 18 thread antenna-mounting base(s) installed centered 
behind the light bar on the cab roof with high efficiency, low loss, coaxial cable(s) routed to the 
instrument panel area.  A weatherproof cap will be installed on the mount. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 63 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 63 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 56 of 119 

VEHICLE CAMERA SYSTEM 
There will be a color vehicle camera system provided with the following: 

• One (1) camera located at the rear of the apparatus, pointing rearward, displayed 
automatically with the vehicle in reverse 

The camera images will be displayed on the driver's Command Zone™, color display.  Audio 
from the microphone on the active camera will be not provided. 

The following components will be included: 

• One (1) SV-CW134639CAI, camera 
• One (1) amplified speaker (if applicable) 
• All necessary cables 

VEHICLE CAMERA GUARD 
There will be one (1) aluminum treadplate guard(s) fastened over the vehicle camera(s) located 
match previous job 26218. 

ELECTRICAL POWER CONTROL SYSTEM 
The primary power distribution will be located forward of the officer's seating position and be 
easily accessible while standing on the ground for simplified maintenance and troubleshooting.  
Additional electrical distribution centers will be provided throughout the vehicle to house the 
vehicle's electrical power, circuit protection, and control components.  The electrical distribution 
centers will be located strategically throughout the vehicle to minimize wire length.  For ease of 
maintenance, all electrical distribution centers will be easily accessible. All distribution centers 
containing fuses, circuit breakers and/or relays will be easily accessible. 

Distribution centers located throughout the vehicle will contain battery powered studs for 
supplying customer installed equipment thus providing a lower cost of ownership. 

Circuit protection devices, which conform to SAE standards, will be utilized to protect electrical 
circuits.  All circuit protection devices will be rated per NFPA requirements to prevent wire and 
component damage when subjected to extreme current overload.  General protection circuit 
breakers will be Type-I automatic reset (continuously resetting).  When required, automotive 
type fuses will be utilized to protect electronic equipment.  Control relays and solenoid will have 
a direct current rating of 125 percent of the maximum current for which the circuit is protected 
per NFPA. 

SOLID-STATE CONTROL SYSTEM 
A solid-state electronics based control system will be utilized to achieve advanced operation 
and control of the vehicle components.  A fully computerized vehicle network will consist of 
electronic modules located near their point of use to reduce harness lengths and improve 
reliability.  The control system will comply with SAE J1939-11 recommended practices. 

The control system will operate as a master-slave system whereas the main control module 
instructs all other system components.  The system will contain patented Mission Critical 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 64 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 64 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 57 of 119 

software that maintains critical vehicle operations in the unlikely event of a main controller error.  
The system will utilize a Real Time Operating System (RTOS) fully compliant with OSEK/VDX™ 
specifications providing a lower cost of ownership. 

For increased reliability and simplified use, the control system modules will include the following 
attributes: 

• Green LED indicator light for module power   
• Red LED indicator light for network communication stability status   
• Control system self-test at activation and continually throughout vehicle operation   
• No moving parts due to transistor logic   
• Software logic control for NFPA mandated safety interlocks and indicators   
• Integrated electrical system load management without additional components   
• Integrated electrical load sequencing system without additional components   
• Customized control software to the vehicle's configuration   
• Factory and field re programmable to accommodate changes to the vehicle's operating 

parameters   
• Complete operating and troubleshooting manuals   
• USB connection to the main control module for advanced troubleshooting 

To assure long life and operation in a broad range of environmental conditions, the solid-state 
control system modules will meet the following specifications: 

• Module circuit board will meet SAE J771 specifications   
• Operating temperature from -40C to +70C   
• Storage temperature from -40C to +70C   
• Vibration to 50g 

IP67 rated enclosure (Totally protected against dust and also protected against the effect of 
temporary immersion between 15 centimeters and one (1) meter) 

Operating voltage from eight (8) volts to 16 volts DC 

The main controller will activate status indicators and audible alarms designed to provide 
warning of problems before they become critical. 

CIRCUIT PROTECTION AND CONTROL DIAGRAM 
Copies of all job-specific, computer network input and output (I/O) connections will be provided 
with each chassis.  The sheets will indicate the function of each module connection point, circuit 
protection information (where applicable), wire numbers, wire colors and load management 
information. 

ON-BOARD ADVANCED/VISUAL ELECTRICAL SYSTEM DIAGNOSTICS 
The on-board information center will include the following diagnostic information: 

• Text description of active warning or caution alarms   

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 65 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 65 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 58 of 119 

• Simplified warning indicators   
• Amber caution indication with intermittent alarm   
• Red warning indication with steady tone alarm 

All control system modules, with the exception of the main control module, will contain on-board 
visual diagnostic LEDs that assist in troubleshooting.  The LEDs will be enclosed within the 
sealed, transparent module housing near the face of the module.  One LED for each input or 
output will be provided and will illuminate whenever the respective input or output is active.  
Color-coded labels within the modules will encompass the LEDs for ease of identification.  The 
LED indicator lights will provide point of use information for reduced troubleshooting time 
without the need for an additional computer. 

TECH MODULE WITH WIFI 
An in cab module will provide Wifi wireless interface and data logging capability. The Wifi 
interface will comply with IEEE 802.11 b/g/n capabilities while communicating at 2.4 Gigahertz.  
The module will provide an external antenna connection allowing a line of site communication 
range of up to 300 feet with a roof mounted antenna. 

The module will transmit a password protected web page to a Wifi enabled device (i.e. most 
smart phones, tablets or laptops) allowing two levels of user interaction.  The firefighter level will 
allow vehicle monitoring of the vehicle and firefighting systems on the apparatus.  The 
technician level will allow diagnostic access to inputs and outputs installed on the Command 
Zone™, control and information system. 

The data logging capability will record faults from the engine, transmission, ABS and Command 
Zone™, control and information systems as they occur.  No other data will be recorded at the 
time the fault occurs.  The data logger will provide up to 2 Gigabytes of data storage. 

A USB connection will be provided on the Tech Module.  It will provide a means to download 
data logger information and update software in the device. 

PROGNOSTICS 
A software based vehicle tool will be provided to predict remaining life of the vehicles critical 
fluid and events. 

The system will send automatic indications to the Command Zone, color display and/or wireless 
enabled device to proactively alert of upcoming service intervals. 

Prognostics will include: 

• Engine oil and filter   
• Transmission oil and filter   
• Pump oil (if equipped)   
• Foam oil (if equipped)   
• Aerial oil and filter (if equipped) 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 66 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 66 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 59 of 119 

ADVANCED DIAGNOSTICS 
An advanced, Windows-based, diagnostic software program will be provided for this control 
system.  The software will provide troubleshooting tools to service technicians equipped with a 
Windows-based computer or wireless enabled device. Diagnostic software is for the command 
zone only. 

The service and maintenance software will be easy to understand and use and have the ability 
to view system input/output (I/O) information. 

INDICATOR LIGHT AND ALARM PROVE-OUT SYSTEM 
A system will be provided which automatically tests basic indicator lights and alarms located on 
the cab instrument panel. 

VOLTAGE MONITOR SYSTEM 
A voltage monitoring system will be provided to indicate the status of the battery system 
connected to the vehicle's electrical load.  The system will provide visual and audible warning 
when the system voltage is below or above optimum levels. 

The alarm will activate if the system falls below 11.8 volts DC for more than two (2) minutes. 

DEDICATED RADIO EQUIPMENT CONNECTION POINTS 
There will be three (3) studs provided in the primary power distribution center located in front of 
the officer for two-way radio equipment. 

• The studs will consist of the following:   
• 12-volt 40-amp battery switched power   
• 12-volt 60-amp ignition switched power   
• 12-volt 60-amp direct battery power 

There will also be a 12-volt 100-amp ground stud located in or adjacent to the power distribution 
center. 

ENHANCED SOFTWARE 
The solid-state control system will include the following software enhancements: 

All perimeter lights and scene lights (where applicable) will be deactivated when the parking 
brake is released. 

Cab and crew cab dome lights will remain on for ten (10) seconds for improved visibility after the 
doors close.  The dome lights will dim after ten (10) seconds or immediately if the vehicle is put 
into gear. 

Cab and crew cab perimeter lights will remain on for ten (10) seconds for improved visibility 
after the doors close.  The dome lights will dim after ten (10) seconds or immediately if the 
vehicle is put into gear. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 67 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 67 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 60 of 119 

EMI/RFI PROTECTION 
To prevent erroneous signals from crosstalk contamination and interference, the electrical 
system will meet, at a minimum, SAE J551/2, thus reducing undesired electromagnetic and 
radio frequency emissions.  An advanced electrical system will be used to ensure radiated and 
conducted electromagnetic interference (EMI) or radio frequency interference (RFI) emissions 
are suppressed at their source. 

The apparatus will have the ability to operate in the electromagnetic environment typically found 
in fire ground operations to ensure clean operations.  The electrical system will meet, without 
exceptions, electromagnetic susceptibility conforming to SAE J1113/25 Region 1, Class C EMR 
for 10KHz-1GHz to 100 Volts/Meter.  The vehicle OEM, upon request, will provide EMC testing 
reports from testing conducted on an entire apparatus and will certify that the vehicle meets 
SAE J551/2 and SAE J1113/25 Region 1, Class C EMR for 10KHz-1GHz to 100 Volts/Meter 
requirements.  Component and partial (incomplete) vehicle testing is not adequate as overall 
vehicle design can impact test results and thus is not acceptable by itself. 

EMI/RFI susceptibility will be controlled by applying appropriate circuit designs and shielding.  
The electrical system will be designed for full compatibility with low-level control signals and 
high-powered two-way radio communication systems.  Harness and cable routing will be given 
careful attention to minimize the potential for conducting and radiated EMI/RFI susceptibility. 

ELECTRICAL 
All 12-volt electrical equipment installed by the apparatus manufacturer will conform to modern 
automotive practices.  All wiring will be high temperature crosslink type.  Wiring will be run, in 
loom or conduit, where exposed and have grommets where wire passes through sheet metal. 
Automatic reset circuit breakers will be provided which conform to SAE Standards.  Wiring will 
be color, function and number coded.  Function and number codes will be continuously 
imprinted on all wiring harness conductors at 2.00" intervals.  Exterior exposed wire connectors 
will be positive locking, and environmentally sealed to withstand elements such as temperature 
extremes, moisture and automotive fluids. 

Electrical wiring and equipment will be installed utilizing the following guidelines: 

1. All holes made in the roof will be caulked with silicon, rope caulk is not acceptable.  
Large fender washers, liberally caulked, will be used when fastening equipment to the 
underside of the cab roof.   

2. Any electrical component that is installed in an exposed area will be mounted in a 
manner that will not allow moisture to accumulate in it.  Exposed area will be defined as 
any location outside of the cab or body.   

3. Electrical components designed to be removed for maintenance will not be fastened with 
nuts and bolts.  Metal screws will be used in mounting these devices.  Also a coil of wire 
will be provided behind the appliance to allow them to be pulled away from mounting 
area for inspection and service work.   

4. Corrosion preventative compound will be applied to all terminal plugs located outside of 
the cab or body.  All non-waterproof connections will require this compound in the plug 
to prevent corrosion and for easy separation (of the plug).   

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 68 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 68 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 61 of 119 

5. All lights that have their sockets in a weather exposed area will have corrosion 
preventative compound added to the socket terminal area.   

6. All electrical terminals in exposed areas will have silicon (1890) applied completely over 
the metal portion of the terminal. 

All lights and reflectors, required to comply with Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standard #108, 
will be furnished. Rear identification lights will be recessed mounted for protection.  Lights and 
wiring mounted in the rear bulkheads will be protected from damage by installing a false 
bulkhead inside the rear compartments. 

An operational test will be conducted to ensure that any equipment that is permanently attached 
to the electrical system is properly connected and in working order. 

The results of the tests will be recorded and provided to the purchaser at time of delivery. 

BATTERY SYSTEM 
There will be six (6) 12 volt Exide®, Model 31S950X3W, batteries that include the following 
features will be provided: 

• 950 CCA, cold cranking amps 
• 190 amp reserve capacity 
• High cycle 
• Group 31 
• Rating of 5700 CCA at 0 degrees Fahrenheit 
• -140 minutes of reserve capacity 
• Threaded stainless steel studs 

Each battery case will be a black polypropylene material with a vertically ribbed container for 
increased vibration resistance.  The cover will be manifold vented with a central venting location 
to allow a 45 degree tilt capacity. 

The inside of each battery will consist of a "maintenance free" grid construction with poly 
wrapped separators and a flooded epoxy bottom anchoring for maximum vibration resistance. 

BATTERY SYSTEM 
There will be a single starting system with an ignition switch and starter button provided and 
located on the cab instrument panel. 

MASTER BATTERY SWITCH 
There will be a master battery switch provided within the cab within easy reach of the driver to 
activate the battery system. 

An indicator light will be provided on the instrument panel to notify the driver of the status of the 
battery system. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 69 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 69 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 62 of 119 

BATTERY COMPARTMENTS 
The batteries will be stored in well-ventilated compartments that are located under the cab and 
bolted directly to the chassis frame.  The battery compartments will be constructed of 3/16" steel 
plate and be designed to accommodate a maximum of three (3) group 31 batteries in each 
compartment.  The compartments will include formed fit heavy-duty roto-molded polyethylene 
battery tray inserts with drains on each side of the frame rails.  The batteries will be mounted 
inside of the roto-molded trays. 

JUMPER STUDS 
One (1) set of battery jumper studs with plastic color-coded covers will be installed on the 
battery box on the driver's side.  This will allow enough room for easy jumper cable access. 

BATTERY CHARGER 
There will be a Kussmaul™ 1200, Model 091-187-12-Remote, battery charger provided.  A bar 
graph display indicating the state of charge will be provided. 

The charger will have a maximum output of 40 amps and a fully automatic regulation. 

The battery charger will be wired to the AC shoreline inlet through an AC receptacle adjacent to 
the battery charger. 

Battery charger will be located in the cab behind the driver seat, on the vertical wall of the EMS 
compartment. 

The battery charger indicator will be located near the driver's seat riser with special bracketry. 

AUTO EJECT FOR SHORELINE 
There will be one (1) Kussmaul™, Model 091-55-20-120, 20 amp 120 volt AC shoreline inlet(s) 
provided to operate the dedicated 120 volt AC circuits on the apparatus. 

The shoreline inlet(s) will include red weatherproof flip up cover(s). 

There will be a release solenoid wired to the vehicle's starter to eject the AC connector when 
the engine is starting. 

The shoreline(s) will be connected to the 120 volt outlets in the cab, battery charger and engine 
heater. 

There will be a mating connector body supplied with the loose equipment. 

There will be a label installed near the inlet(s) that state the following: 

• Line Voltage  
• Current Ratting (amps)  
• Phase  
• Frequency 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 70 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 70 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 63 of 119 

The shoreline receptacle will be located on the driver's side exterior back wall of the cab to 
match previous jobs. 

ALTERNATOR 
A C.E. Niehoff, model C680-1, alternator will be provided.  It will have a rated output current of 
430 amp as measured by SAE method J56.  It will also have a custom three (3)-set point 
voltage regulator, manufactured by C. E. Niehoff.  The alternator will be connected to the power 
and ground distribution system with heavy-duty cables sized to carry the full rated alternator 
output. 

DUAL USB SOCKET 
There will be one (1) Blue Sea, Model 1016, dual USB type A charger sockets installed in the 
lower center console on switch panel #9.  The socket will be powered directly to the battery 
power. 

ELECTRONIC LOAD MANAGER 
An electronic load management (ELM) system will be provided that monitors the vehicles 12-
volt electrical system, automatically reducing the electrical load in the event of a low voltage 
condition, and automatically restoring the shed electrical loads when a low voltage condition 
expires.  This ensures the integrity of the electrical system. 

For improved reliability and ease of use, the load manager system will be an integral part of the 
vehicle's solid state control system requiring no additional components to perform load 
management tasks.  Load management systems which require additional components will not 
be allowed. 

The system will include the following features: 

• System voltage monitoring. 
• A shed load will remain inactive for a minimum of five minutes to prevent the load from 

cycling on and off. 
• Sixteen available electronic load shedding levels. 
• Priority levels can be set for individual outputs. 
• High Idle to not be controlled by the load manager. 

o If enabled: 
 "Load Man Hi-Idle On" will display on the information center. 
 Hi-Idle will not activate until 30 seconds after engine start up. 

• Individual switch "on" indicator to flash when the particular load has been shed. 
• The information center indicates system voltage. 

The information center, where applicable, includes a "Load Manager" screen indicating the 
following: 

• Load managed items list, with priority levels and item condition. 
• Individual load managed item condition: 

o ON = not shed 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 71 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 71 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 64 of 119 

o SHED = shed 

SEQUENCER 
A sequencer will be provided that automatically activates and deactivates vehicle loads in a 
preset sequence thereby protecting the alternator from power surges.  This sequencer operation 
will allow a gradual increase or decrease in alternator output, rather than loading or dumping the 
entire 12 volt load to prolong the life of the alternator. 

For improved reliability and ease of use, the load sequencing system will be an integral part of 
the vehicle's solid state control system requiring no additional components to perform load 
sequencing tasks.  Load sequencing systems which require additional components will not be 
allowed. 

Emergency light sequencing will operate in conjunction with the emergency master light switch.  
When the emergency master switch is activated, the emergency lights will be activated one by 
one at half-second intervals.  Sequenced emergency light switch indicators will flash while 
waiting for activation. 

When the emergency master switch is deactivated, the sequencer will deactivate the warning 
light loads in the reverse order. 

Sequencing of the following items will also occur, in conjunction with the ignition switch, at half-
second intervals: 

• Cab Heater and Air Conditioning 
• Crew Cab Heater (if applicable) 
• Crew Cab Air Conditioning (if applicable) 
• Exhaust Fans (if applicable) 
• Third Evaporator (if applicable) 

HEADLIGHTS 
There will be four (4) JW Speaker Evolution, Model 8630, 5.60" round LED lights with 
polycarbonate lenses mounted in the front chrome trim housing on each side of the cab grille: 

• One (1) part number 0549911, low and high beam installed in the outside position on the 
driver's side.   

• One (1) part number 0549911, low and high beam installed in the inside position on the 
driver's side.   

• One (1) part number 0549211, low and high beam installed in the inside position on the 
passenger's side.   

• One (1) part number 0549211, low and high beam installed in the outside position on the 
passenger's side. 

   

DIRECTIONAL LIGHTS 
There will be two (2) Whelen 600® series, LED combination directional/marker lights provided.  
The lights will be located on the outside cab corners, next to the headlights. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 72 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 72 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 65 of 119 

The color of the lenses will be the same color as the LED's. 

ADDITIONAL DIRECTIONAL LIGHT 
There will be two (2) Whelen, Model M6T, amber LED arrow directional lights provided one 
each side on the back of the cab. 

Each light will be surface mounted in a 15 degree angle bracket. 

CAB CLEARANCE/MARKER/ID LIGHTS 
There will be seven (7) amber LED lights provided to indicate the presence and overall width of 
the vehicle in the following locations: 

• Three (3) amber LED identification lights will be installed in the center of the cab above 
the windshield.  

• Two (2) amber LED clearance lights will be installed, one (1) on each outboard side of 
the cab above the windshield.  

• Two (2) amber LED marker lights will be installed, one (1) on each side above the cab 
doors. 

INTERMEDIATE LIGHT 
There will be two (2) Weldon, Model 9186-8580-29, amber LED turn signal marker lights 
furnished, one (1) each side, in the rear fender panel.  The light will double as a turn signal and 
marker light. 

REAR CLEARANCE/MARKER/ID LIGHTING 
There will be a three (3) LED light bar used as identification lights located at the rear of the 
apparatus per the following: 

• As close as practical to the vertical centerline  
• Centers spaced not less than 6.00" or more than 12.00" apart  
• Red in color  
• All at the same height 

There will be two (2) LED lights installed at the rear of the apparatus used as clearance lights 
located at the rear of the apparatus per the following: 

• To indicate the overall width of the vehicle  
• One (1) each side of the vertical centerline  
• As near the top as practical  
• Red in color  
• To be visible from the rear 
• All at the same height 

There will be two (2) LED lights installed on the side of the apparatus used as marker lights as 
close to the rear as practical per the following: 

• To indicate the overall length of the vehicle 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 73 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 73 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 66 of 119 

• One (1) each side of the vertical centerline 
• As near the top as practical  
• Red in color  
• To be visible from the side 
• All at the same height 

There will be two (2) red reflectors located on the rear of the truck facing to the rear.  One (1) 
each side, as far to the outside as practical, at a minimum of 15.00", but no more than 60.00", 
above the ground. 

There will be two (2) red reflectors located on the side of the truck facing to the side.  One (1) 
each side, as far to the rear as practical, at a minimum of 15.00", but no more than 60.00", 
above the ground. 

Per FMVSS 108 and CMVSS 108 requirements. 

REAR FMVSS LIGHTING 
The rear stop/tail and directional LED lighting will consist of the following: 

• Two (2) Whelen®, Model M6BTT, red LED stop/tail lights  
• Two (2) Whelen, Model M6T, amber LED arrow turn lights 

The lights will be provided with clear lenses. 

The lights will be mounted in a polished combination housing. 

There will be two (2) Whelen Model M6BUW, LED backup lights provided in the tail light 
housing. 

LICENSE PLATE BRACKET 
There will be one (1) Weldon, Model 0J10-0393-00, license plate bracket mounted on the rear 
of the body. 

A Weldon, Model 9186-23882-30, incandescent step light will illuminate the license plate. 

LIGHTING BEZEL 
There will be two (2) Whelen, Model M6FCV4P, four (4) place chromed ABS housings with 
Pierce logos provided for the rear M6 series stop/tail, directional, back up, scene lights or 
warning lights. 

ADDITIONAL BRAKE/TAIL LIGHT 
There will be one (1) Whelen, Model 70BTT*, red LED brake/tail light(s) with color lenses 
mounted with Whelen, Model 7EFLANGE, chrome flange(s) provided at the rear of the body, 
Center on the rear of the unit above the rear traffic directing light. 

BACK-UP ALARM 
A PRECO, Model 1040, solid-state electronic audible back-up alarm that actuates when the 
truck is shifted into reverse will be provided.  The device will sound at 60 pulses per minute and 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 74 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 74 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 67 of 119 

automatically adjust its volume to maintain a minimum ten (10) dBA above surrounding 
environmental noise levels. 

SWITCH, BACK-UP ALARM OVERRIDE 
There will be a momentary switch provided in the cab for the back-up alarm.  The switch will be 
within reach of the driver.  The switch will cancel the back-up alarm when the switch is pushed 
and automatically reset when the apparatus is shifted out of reverse. 

MARKER LIGHTS 
There will be one (1) pair of amber and red, Britax, Model L427.203.L12, LED marker lights with 
rubber arm, located lower rear corners of the body match previous job #26218.  The amber lens 
will face the front and the red lens will face the rear of the truck and be the most rearward 
marker light. 

These lights will be activated with the running lights of the vehicle. 

CAB PERIMETER SCENE LIGHTS 
There will be four (4) Truck-lite, Model 6060C, white LED lights with grommets provided, one (1) 
for each cab and crew cab door. 

These lights will be activated automatically when the battery switch is on and the exit doors are 
opened or by the same means as the body perimeter scene lights. 

PUMP HOUSE PERIMETER LIGHTS 
There will be two (2) Truck-Lite, Model 6060C, 6.00" oval LED 12 volt DC weatherproof lights 
with grommets provided under the pump panel running boards, one (1) each side. 

The lights will be controlled by the same means as the body perimeter lights. 

BODY PERIMETER SCENE LIGHTS 
There will be two (2) Truck-Lite, Model 6060C, 6.00" x 2.00" oval LED lights with Model 60700, 
grommets provided under at the rear step area of the body, one (1) each side shining to the 
rear. 

The perimeter scene lights will be activated when a switch within reach of the driver is activated 
and the parking brake is applied. 

STEP LIGHTS 
Four (4) white LED step lights will be provided.  One (1) step light will be provided on each side, 
on the front compartment face and two (2) step lights at the rear to illuminate the tailboard. 

In order to ensure exceptional illumination, each light will provide a minimum of 25 foot-candles 
(fc) covering an entire 15.00" x 15.00" square placed 10.00" below the light and a minimum of 
1.5 fc covering an entire 30.00" x 30.00" square at the same 10.00" distance below the light. 

These step lights will be actuated with the pump panel light switch. 

All other steps on the apparatus will be illuminated per the current edition of NFPA 1901. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 75 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 75 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 68 of 119 

12 VOLT LIGHT BRACKET 
There will be four (4) aluminum treadplate bracket(s) installed two on each side of the body on 
top of the catwalks at the outer edge to match previous job 28201 for the recessed flood light.  
The bracket(s) will have all wiring totally enclosed. 

12 VOLT LIGHTING 
There will be one (1) Fire Research Spectra, Model SPA570-Q20*, 12 volt LED floodlight(s) with 
a fixed top mount pedestal provided and located on the cab roof over the passenger, match 
location of similar lights as provided on previous units 26218. 

The painted parts of this light assembly to be black with a chrome bezel. 

The light(s) will be controlled in the following way: 

• a switch at the driver's side switch panel 
• a switch at the passenger's side switch panel 
• no additional switch location 
• no additional switch location 

These lights may be load managed when the parking brake is applied. 

12 VOLT LIGHTING 
There will be one (1) Fire Research Spectra, Model SPA570-Q20*, 12 volt LED floodlight(s) with 
a fixed top mount pedestal provided and located on the driver's side top of the hose bed side 
sheet, in the same location as a similar light on their previous job 28201. 

The painted parts of this light assembly to be black with a black bezel. 

The light(s) will be controlled in the following way: 

• a switch at the driver's side switch panel 
• a switch at the passenger's side switch panel 
• a switch at the rear of apparatus on the driver's side 
• no additional switch location 

These lights may be load managed when the parking brake is applied. 

12 VOLT LIGHTING 
There will be two (2) Whelen Model PFP1, 12 volt LED floodlight(s) installed in semi-recessed 
housing(s) Model PBA103 located PS Body, Forward, 1lt and PS Body, Rearward, 1lt.  Match 
previous job 28201. 

The painted parts of this light assembly to be black. 

The light(s) selected above will be controlled by the following: 

• a switch at the driver's side switch panel 
• a switch at the passenger's side switch panel 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 76 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 76 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 69 of 119 

• no additional switch location 
• no additional switch location 

These light(s) may be load managed when the parking brake is set 

12 VOLT LIGHTING 
There will be two (2) Whelen® Pioneer™ Series, Model PFP1*, 12 volt LED floodlight(s) 
installed in semi-recessed housing(s) Model PBA103, located one (1) high and forward on 
driver's side body and one (1) high and rearward on driver's side body. 

The painted parts of this light assembly to be black. 

The light(s) selected above will be controlled by the following: 

• a switch at the driver's side switch panel 
• a switch at the passenger's side switch panel 
• no additional switch location 
• no additional switch location 

These light(s) may be load managed when the parking brake is applied. 

12 VOLT LIGHTING 
There will be one (1) Fire Research Spectra, Model SPA570-Q20*, 12 volt LED floodlight(s) with 
a fixed top mount pedestal provided and located on the cab roof over the driver, match location 
of similar lights as provided on previous units 28201. 

The painted parts of this light assembly to be black with a chrome bezel. 

The light(s) will be controlled in the following way: 

• a switch at the driver's side switch panel 
• a switch at the passenger's side switch panel 
• no additional switch location 
• no additional switch location 

These lights may be load managed when the parking brake is applied. 

12 VOLT LIGHTING 
There will be one (1) Fire Research, Model SPA851-Q20-*, 12 volt LED floodlight(s) provided on 
the front visor, centered. 

The painted parts of this light assembly to be black with a chrome bezel. 

The light(s) will be controlled in the following way: 

• a switch at the driver's side switch panel 
• a switch at the passenger's side switch panel 
• no additional switch location 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 77 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 77 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 70 of 119 

• no additional switch location 

These lights may be load managed when the parking brake is applied. 

HOSE BED LIGHTS 
There will be Amdor LumaBar H2O, Model AY-9750-20, 20.00" white 12 volt DC LED light strips 
provided to illuminate the hose bed area. 

• Two (2) LED light strips will be installed on the driver's side hose bed cover 30.00" from 
the front and rear of the hose bed, as close to the hinge as practical.  

• Two (2) LED light strips will be installed on the passenger's side hose bed cover 30.00" 
from the front and rear of the hose bed, as close to the hinge as practical. 

The lights will be activated when the hosebed cover is raised. 

MASTER SWITCH FOR CLEAR/WHITE WARNING LIGHTS 
A master on/off switch will be provided for the clear/white, forward facing, warning lights.  The 
switch will be in addition to the standard emergency master switch.  Switch will be located in the 
cab instrument panel. 

WATER TANK 
Booster tank will have a capacity of 500 gallons and be constructed of polypropylene plastic by 
United Plastic Fabricating, Incorporated. 

Tank joints and seams will be nitrogen welded inside and out. 

Tank will be baffled in accordance with NFPA Bulletin 1901 requirements. 

Baffles will have vent openings at both the top and bottom to permit movement of air and water 
between compartments. 

Longitudinal partitions will be constructed of .38" polypropylene plastic and will extend from the 
bottom of the tank through the top cover to allow for positive welding. 

Transverse partitions will extend from 4.00" off the bottom of the tank to the underside of the top 
cover. 

All partitions will interlock and will be welded to the tank bottom and sides. 

Tank top will be constructed of .50" polypropylene.  It will be recessed .38" and will be welded to 
the tank sides and the longitudinal partitions. 

Tank top will be sufficiently supported to keep it rigid during fast filling conditions. 

Construction will include 2.00" polypropylene dowels spaced no more than 30.00" apart and 
welded to the transverse partitions.  Two (2) of the dowels will be drilled and tapped (.50" 
diameter, 13.00" deep) to accommodate lifting eyes. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 78 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 78 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 71 of 119 

A sump that is 8.00" long x 8.00" wide x 6.00" deep will be provided at the bottom of the water 
tank. 

Sump will include a drain plug and the tank outlet. 

Tank will be installed in a fabricated cradle assembly constructed of structural steel. 

Sufficient crossmembers will be provided to properly support bottom of tank.  Crossmembers 
will be constructed of steel bar channel or rectangular tubing. 

Tank will "float" in cradle to avoid torsional stress caused by chassis frame flexing.  Rubber 
cushions, .50" thick x 3.00" wide, will be placed on all horizontal surfaces that the tank rests on. 

Stops or other provision will be provided to prevent an empty tank from bouncing excessively 
while moving vehicle. 

Mounting system will be approved by the tank manufacturer. 

Fill tower will be constructed of .50" polypropylene and will be a minimum of 8.00" wide x 14.00" 
long. 

Fill tower will be furnished with a .25" thick polypropylene screen and a hinged cover. 

An overflow pipe, constructed of 4.00" schedule 40 polypropylene, will be installed 
approximately halfway down the fill tower and extend through the water tank and exit to the rear 
of the rear axle. 

HOSE BED 
The hose bed will be fabricated of .125"-5052 aluminum with a nominal 38,000 psi tensile 
strength. 

Standard hose bed width will be 68.00" inside. 

Upper and rear edges of side panels will have a double break for rigidity, a split tube finish will 
not be acceptable. 

The upper inside area of the beavertails will be covered with brushed stainless steel to prevent 
damage to painted surface when hose is removed. 

Flooring of the hose bed will be removable aluminum grating with the top surface corrugated to 
aid in hose aeration.  The grating slats will be a minimum of 0.50" x 4.50" with spacing between 
slats for hose ventilation. 

Hose bed will accommodate driver side 300' of 2.5" preconnect, 800 feet of 5.0" hose and 800 
feet of 3.00" hose, passenger side 300' of 2.5" preconnect. 

HOSE BED DIVIDER 
Three (3) adjustable hosebed dividers will be furnished for separating hose. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 79 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 79 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 72 of 119 

Each divider will be constructed of a .125" brushed aluminum sheet fitted and fastened into a 
slotted, 1.50" diameter radiused extrusion along the top, bottom, and rear edge. 

Divider will be fully adjustable by sliding in tracks, located at the front and rear of the hose bed. 

Divider will be held in place by tightening bolts, at each end. 

Acorn nuts will be installed on all bolts in the hose bed which have exposed threads. 

BACKBOARD STORAGE COMPARTMENT 
A storage compartment, for one (1) backboard, will be located on the on the passenger's side of 
the hose bed attached to the side sheet.  The backboard compartment will be made of 
aluminum treadplate with a velcro strap at the rear.  The backboard will be stored vertically.  
The compartment will be sized to contain a backboard 74" long x 18" wide x 3.0" thick in size 
and angled at the front to help hose deploy. 

HOSE BUNDLE STORAGE COMPARTMENT 
Two (2) storage compartment, will be located one each side of the body.  This compartment will 
be enclosed with a polished stainless steel door at the rear.  The compartment is to be located 
on the outboard side of the rear compartment below the tank tee. One (1) removable poly tray 
will be provided in each storage compartment. 

The compartment will be constructed of aluminum with a stainless steel door at the rear with lift-
and-turn latch.  The dimensions of the enclosed compartment will be approximately 14.00" tall x 
12.00" wide x 72.00" long. 

A cross-divider will be provided just behind the fill tower.  The divider will be bolted to the side 
sheet. 

HOSE BED COVER 
A two (2) section hose bed cover, constructed of .125" bright aluminum treadplate will be 
furnished.  The cover will be hinged with full length stainless steel piano hinge.  The sides will 
be slanted down. 

The cover will be reinforced so that it can support the weight of a man walking on the cover. 

The cover is designed with the left cover opening first. 

If access to the water tank fill tower is blocked by the hose bed cover, then a hinged door will be 
provided in it so that the tank may be filled without raising cover doors. 

Chrome grab handles and four (4) gas filled cylinders will be provided to assist in opening and 
closing the cover.  A handrail is to be provided at the rear, in the center of the support, to assist 
in opening the cover. 

A black vinyl flap will be installed on the rear of the bright aluminum treadplate hose bed cover, 
with a chain weight and paddle seat belt buckles will be provided at the rear of the cover. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 80 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 80 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 73 of 119 

RUNNING BOARDS 
Running boards will be fabricated of .125" bright aluminum treadplate. 

Each running board will be supported by a welded 2.00" square tubing and channel assembly, 
which will be bolted to the pump compartment substructure. 

Running boards will be 12.75" deep and spaced .50" away from the pump panel. 

A splash guard will be provided above the running board treadplate. 

TAILBOARD 
The tailboard will also be constructed of .125" bright aluminum treadplate and spaced .50" from 
the body, as well as supported by a structural steel assembly. 

The tailboard area will be 24.00" deep in the center area and 8.00" deep to the rear of the side 
compartments.  The tailboard will be T-shaped. 

The exterior side will be flanged down and in for increased rigidity of tailboard structure. 

REAR WALL, SMOOTH ALUMINUM/BODY MATERIAL 
The rear facing surfaces of the center rear wall will be smooth aluminum. 

The bulkheads, the surface to the rear of the side body compartments, will be smooth and the 
same material as the body. 

Any inboard facing surfaces below the height of the hosebed will be aluminum diamondplate. 

TOW BARS 
Two (2) tow bars will be installed under the tailboard. 

Tow bars will be fabricated of 1.00" CRS bar rolled into a 3.00" radius. 

Tow bar assemblies will be constructed of .38" structural angle.  When force is applied to the 
bar, it will be transmitted to the frame rail. 

Tow bar assemblies will be designed and positioned to allow up to a 30 degree upward angled 
pull of 17,000 lb., or a 20,000 lb. straight horizontal pull in line with the centerline of the vehicle. 

Tow bar design will have been fully tested and evaluated using strain gauge testing and finite 
element analysis techniques. 

HITCH RECEIVER 
A hitch receiver will be installed at the rear of the apparatus. 

The hitch will be constructed of heavy steel tubing and reinforced to the truck framework, for the 
receiving portion.  This will be a Class III/IV trailer hitch.  A class IV rating will be obtained only 
when a weight distributing hitch is used. 

Slide-in portion will be held in place by one (1) safety pin with clip. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 81 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 81 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 74 of 119 

The trailer electrical connection will be a seven (7)-way flat blade recreational vehicle connector 
for trailer wiring compatible with electric brake systems, and a second connector with inverted 
ground meeting SAE J560 standards providing an auxiliary connection for warning devices. 

COMPARTMENTATION 
Body and compartments will be fabricated of .125", 5052-H32 aluminum. 

Side compartments will be an integral assembly with the rear fenders. 

Circular fender liners will be provided for prevention of rust pockets and ease of maintenance. 

Compartment flooring will be of the sweep out design with the floor higher than the compartment 
door lip. 

The compartment door opening will be framed by flanging the edges in 1.75" and bending out 
again .75" to form an angle. 

Drip protection will be provided above the doors by means of bright aluminum extrusion, formed 
bright aluminum treadplate or polished stainless steel. 

The top of the compartment will be covered with bright aluminum treadplate rolled over the 
edges on the front, rear and outward side.  These covers will have the corners welded. 

Side compartment covers will be separate from the compartment tops. 

Front facing compartment walls will be covered with bright aluminum treadplate. 

All screws and bolts which protrude into a compartment will have acorn nuts on the ends to 
prevent injury. 

UNDERBODY SUPPORT SYSTEM 
Due to the severe loading requirements of this pumper a method of body and compartment 
support suitable for the intended load will be provided. 

The backbone of the support system will be the chassis frame rails which is the strongest 
component of the chassis and is designed for sustaining maximum loads. 

The support system will include .375" thick steel vertical angle supports bolted to the chassis 
frame rails with .625" diameter bolts. 

Attached to the bottom of the steel vertical angles will be horizontal angles, with gussets welded 
to the vertical members, which extend to the outside edge of the body. 

A steel frame will be mounted on the top of these supports to create a floating substructure 
which will result in a 500 lb. equipment support rating per lower compartment. 

The floating substructure will be separated from the horizontal members with neoprene 
elastomer isolators.  These isolators will reduce the natural flex stress of the chassis from being 
transmitted to the body. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 82 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 82 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 75 of 119 

Isolators will have a broad load range, proven viability in vehicular applications, be of a failsafe 
design and allow for all necessary movement in three (3) transitional and rotational modes. 

The neoprene isolators will be installed in a modified V three (3)-point mounting pattern to 
reduce the natural flex of the chassis being transmitted to the body. 

AGGRESSIVE WALKING SURFACE 
All exterior surfaces designated as stepping, standing, and walking areas will comply with the 
required average slip resistance of the current NFPA standards. 

LOUVERS 
Louvers will be stamped into compartment walls to provide the proper airflow inside the body 
compartments and to prevent water from dripping into the compartment.  Where these louvers 
are provided, they will be formed into the metal and not added to the compartment as a 
separate plate. 

TESTING OF BODY DESIGN  
Body structural analysis has been fully tested.  Proven engineering and test techniques such as 
finite element analysis, stress coating and strain gauging have been performed with special 
attention given to fatigue, life and structural integrity of the cab, body and substructure. 

Body will be tested while loaded to its greatest in-service weight. 

The criteria used during the testing procedure will include: 

• Raising opposite corners of the vehicle tires 9.00" to simulate the twisting a truck may 
experience when driving over a curb. 

• Making a 90 degree turn, while driving at 20 mph to simulate aggressive driving 
conditions. 

• Driving the vehicle at 35 mph on a washboard road. 
• Driving the vehicle at 55 mph on a smooth road. 
• Accelerating the vehicle fully, until reaching the approximate speed of 45 mph on rough 

pavement. 

Evidence of actual testing techniques will be made available upon request. 

COMPARTMENTATION, DRIVER'S SIDE 
A full height, vertically hinged, single door compartment ahead of the rear wheels will be 
provided.  The interior dimensions of this compartment will be 34.50" wide x 66.63" high x 
25.88" deep in the lower 25.00" of the compartment and 12.00" deep in the remaining upper 
portion.  The depth of the compartment will be calculated with the compartment door closed.  
The compartment interior will be fully open from the compartment ceiling to the compartment 
floor and designed so that no permanent dividers are required between the upper and lower 
sections.  The clear door opening of this compartment will be 30.00" wide x 62.00" high. 

A positive door holder will be furnished with this compartment. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 83 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 83 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 76 of 119 

A horizontally hinged, single lift-up door compartment over the rear wheels will be provided.  
The interior dimensions of this compartment will be 66.50" wide x 32.88" high x 12.00" deep.  
The depth of the compartment will be calculated with the compartment door closed.  The clear 
door opening of this compartment will be 59.50" wide x 28.25" high. 

The lift-up door will be furnished with two (2) gas-charged cylinders to assist in the opening of 
the door and to maintain the door in an open position.  There will be a field adjustable, three-
position bracket mounted on the vertical side door opening that will allow the door to be held 
open at 87°, 90°, or 93°. 

Closing of the door will not require releasing, unlocking, or unlatching any mechanism. 

A full height, vertically hinged, double door compartment behind the rear wheels will be 
provided. The interior dimensions of this compartment will be 47.50" wide x 67.63" high x 25.88" 
deep in the lower 26.00" of the compartment and 12.00" deep in the remaining upper portion.  
The depth of the compartment will be calculated with the compartment door closed.  The 
compartment interior will be fully open from the compartment ceiling to the compartment floor 
and designed so that no permanent dividers are required between the upper and lower sections.  
The clear door opening of this compartment will be 46.00" wide x 63.00" high. 

Positive door holders will be furnished with this compartment. 

COMPARTMENTATION, PASSENGER'S SIDE 
A full height, vertically hinged, single door compartment ahead of the rear wheels will be 
provided. The interior dimensions of this compartment will be 34.50" wide x 67.63" high x 25.88" 
deep in the lower 26.00" of the compartment and 12.00" deep in the remaining upper portion.  
The depth of the compartment will be calculated with the compartment door closed.  The 
compartment interior will be fully open from the compartment ceiling to the compartment floor 
and designed so that no permanent dividers are required between the upper and lower sections.  
The clear door opening of this compartment will be 30.00" wide x 63.00" high. 

A positive door holder will be furnished with this compartment. 

A horizontally hinged, single lift-up door compartment over the rear wheels will be provided.  
The interior dimensions of this compartment will be 66.50" wide x 32.88" high x 12.00" deep.  
The depth of the compartment will be calculated with the compartment door closed.  The clear 
door opening of this compartment will be 59.50" wide x 28.25" high. 

The lift-up door will be furnished with two (2) gas-charged cylinders to assist in the opening of 
the door and to maintain the door in an open position.  There will be a field adjustable, three-
position bracket mounted on the vertical side door opening that will allow the door to be held 
open at 87°, 90°, or 93°.  Closing of the door will not require releasing, unlocking, or unlatching 
any mechanism. 

A full height, vertically hinged, double door compartment behind the rear wheels will be 
provided.  The interior dimensions of this compartment will be 47.50" wide x 67.63" high x 
12.00" deep.  A section of this compartment will be 25.88" deep x 47.50"wide x 26.00" high 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 84 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 84 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 77 of 119 

directly behind the rear wheels.  The depth of the compartment will be calculated with the 
compartment door closed.  The compartment interior will be fully open from the compartment 
ceiling to the compartment floor and designed so that no permanent dividers are required 
between the upper and lower sections.  The clear door opening of this compartment will be 
46.00" wide x 63.00" high. 

A positive door holder will be furnished with this compartment. 

DOORS, SIDE COMPARTMENT 
All hinged compartment doors will be lap style with double panel construction and will be a 
minimum of 1.50" thick.  To provide additional door strength a "C" section reinforcement will be 
installed between the outer and interior panels. 

Doors will be provided with a closed cell rubber gasket around the surface that laps onto the 
body.  A second heavy-duty automotive rubber molding with a hollow core will be installed on 
the door framing that seals onto the interior panel, to ensure a weather resisting compartment. 

All compartment doors will have polished stainless steel continuous hinge with a pin diameter of 
.25" that is bolted or screwed on with stainless steel fasteners. 

All door locking mechanisms will be fully enclosed within the door panels to prevent fouling of 
the lock in the event equipment inside shifts into the lock area. 

Doors will be latched with recessed, polished stainless steel "D" ring handles and FMVSS 
approved door locking mechanisms. 

To prevent corrosion caused by dissimilar metals, compartment door handles will not be 
attached to outer door panel with screws.  A rubber gasket will be provided between the "D" ring 
handle and the door. 

COMPARTMENTATION, REAR 
A rollup door compartment above the rear tailboard will be provided. 

The interior dimensions of this compartment will be 40.00" wide x 40.63" high x 25.88" deep in 
the lower 32.38" of height and 15.75" deep in the remaining upper portion.  The depth of the 
compartment will be calculated with the compartment door closed. 

For a chassis with a rear mounted fuel tank, a louvered removable access panel will be 
furnished on the back wall of the compartment. 

The rear compartment will be open into the rear side compartments. 

The clear door opening of this compartment will be 33.25" wide x 32.38" high. 

Closing of the door will not require releasing, unlocking, or unlatching any mechanism and will 
easily be accomplished with one hand. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 85 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 85 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 78 of 119 

ROLLUP DOOR, REAR COMPARTMENT 
There will be a rear rollup door.  The door will be double faced aluminum construction, an 
anodized satin finish and manufactured by A&A Manufacturing (Gortite). 

Lath sections will be an interlocking rib design and will be individually replaceable without 
complete disassembly of door. 

Between each slat at the pivoting joint will be a PVC inner seal to prevent metal to metal contact 
and prevent dirt or moisture from entering the compartments.  Seals will allow door to operate in 
extreme temperatures ranging from plus 180 to minus 40 degrees Fahrenheit.  Side, top and 
bottom seals will be provided to resist ingress of dirt and weather and be made of Santoprene. 

All hinges, barrel clips and end pieces will be nylon 66.  All nylon components will withstand 
temperatures from plus 300 to minus 40 degrees Fahrenheit. 

A polished stainless steel lift bar to be provided for each roll-up door.  Lift bar will be located at 
the bottom of door and have latches on the outer extrusion of the doors frame.  A ledge will be 
supplied over lift bar for additional area to aid in closing the door. 

Door will be constructed from an aluminum box section.  The exterior surface of each slat will be 
flat.  The interior surface will be concave to provide strength and prevent loose equipment from 
jamming the door from inside. 

To conserve space in the compartments, the spring roller assembly will not exceed 3.00" in 
diameter. 

The header for the rollup door assembly will not exceed 4.00". 

A heavy-duty magnetic switch will be used for control of open compartment door warning lights. 

REVERSE HINGED DOOR 
The one (1) compartment door, located driver side forward compartment door, will have the 
hinge at the rear of the door. 

DOOR FRAME SCUFFPLATE 
Six (6) scuffplates will be provided for the lower door frame of P1, P2, P3, D1, D2 & D3.  Each 
scuffplate will be polished stainless steel with a .38" lip down. 

SCUFFPLATE ON INTERIOR OF COMPARTMENT DOOR(S) 
The six (6) compartment doors will include a polished stainless steel scuffplate to cover the 
entire width and height on the inside panel of each door pan. 

Scuffplate will be located P1, P3, D1 & D3. 

COMPARTMENT LIGHTING 
There will be seven (7) compartments with Amdor, Model AY-9220, white 12 volt DC LED 
compartment light strips.  The lights will be mounted with mechanical fasteners. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 86 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 86 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 79 of 119 

There will be two (2) strip lights installed vertically in each compartment opening per the latest 
NFPA requirements. 

The lights will be activated when the battery switch is on and the respective compartment door 
is opened. 

MOUNTING TRACKS 
There will be five (5) sets of tracks for mounting shelf(s) in floor to ceiling in the following 
compartments; R1, D1, D3, P1 and P3.  These tracks will be installed vertically to support the 
adjustable shelf(s), and will be full height of the compartment.  The tracks will be painted to 
match the compartment interior. 

ADJUSTABLE SHELVES 
There will be 12 shelves with a capacity of 500 lb. provided.  The shelf construction will consist 
of .188" aluminum with 2.00" sides.  Each shelf will be painted to match the compartment 
interior.  Each shelf will be infinitely adjustable by means of a threaded fastener, which slides in 
a track. 

The shelves will be held in place by .12" thick stamped plated brackets and bolts. 

The location will be (1) D3 lower, (2) D3 Upper one at the depth change and the other as high 
as poss., (1) D2, (2) D1 Upper, (2) P3 Upper - one on the ladder rack cover, (1) P3 Lower 
notched around the ladder rack cover, (2) P1 Upper - one on the ladder rack cover, (1) R. 

SLIDE-OUT FLOOR MOUNTED TRAY 
There will be one (1) floor mounted slide-out tray(s) with 2.00" sides provided in the D1 
compartment.  Each tray will be rated for up to 500lb in the extended position.  The tray(s) will 
be constructed of a minimum .13" aluminum with welded corners.  The finish will be painted to 
match compartment interior. 

The trays will be designed for maximum compartment width and depth. 

There will be two undermount-roller bearing type slides rated at 250lb each provided.  The pair 
of slides will have a safety factor rating of 2. 

To ensure years of dependable service, the slides will be coated with a finish that is tested to 
withstand a minimum of 1,000 hours of salt spray per ASTM B117. 

To ensure years of easy operation, the slides will require no more than a 50lb force for push-in 
or pull-out movement when fully loaded after having been subjected to a 40 hour vibration 
(shaker) test under full load.  The vibration drive file will have been generated from 
accelerometer data collected from a heavy truck chassis driven over rough gravel roads in an 
unloaded condition.  Proof of compliance will be provided upon request. 

Automatic locks will be provided for both the "in" and "out" positions.  The trip mechanism for 
the locks will be located at the front of the tray for ease of use with a gloved hand. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 87 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 87 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 80 of 119 

MATTING, COMPARTMENT SHELVING 
Dri-Deck rubber compartment matting will be provided in 13 shelves.  The locations are, all 
shelves and trays. 

The Dri-Deck will be black and .562" thick with holes in the decking to allow air to flow. 

MATTING, COMPARTMENT FLOOR 
Dri-Deck rubber compartment matting will be provided in six (6) compartments on the 
compartment floor.  The locations are, any compartment that does not have a floor mounted 
slide out tray. 

The Dri-Deck will be black and .562" thick with holes in the decking to allow air to flow.  The 
leading edge of the matting will include the beveled edge. 

PARTITION, TRANSVERSE REAR COMPARTMENT 
Two (2) partitions will be bolted in place to separate driver and passenger side rear 
compartments from the rear tailboard compartment. 

MOUNTING TRACKS 
There will be two (2) sets of tracks for mounting equipment.  These tracks will be installed 
horizontally on the back wall of the compartment(s). 

The compartment(s) with mounting tracks will be in the D2 and P2 over wheel compartments. 

RUB RAIL 
Bottom edge of the side compartments will be trimmed with a bright aluminum extruded rub rail. 

Trim will be 2.12" high with 1.38" flanges turned outward for rigidity. 

The rub rails will not be an integral part of the body construction, which allows replacement in 
the event of damage. 

BODY FENDER CROWNS 
Stainless steel fender crowns will be provided around the rear wheel openings. 

A rubber welting will be installed between the body and the crown to seal the seam and restrict 
moisture from entering. 

A dielectric barrier will be provided between the fender crown fasteners (screws) and the fender 
sheet metal to prevent corrosion. 

HARD SUCTION HOSE 
Two (2) lengths of 6.00" clear corrugated PVC hard suction hose, 10' in length, will be provided.  
The hose will be equipped with a long handle female coupling on one (1) end and a rocker lug 
male coupling on the other end.  Couplings will be hard coated aluminum. 

HOSE TROUGHS 
Hard suction hose will be carried above the left compartment in V-shaped troughs and held in 
place by chrome plated, quarter turn, spring loaded clamps. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 88 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 88 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 81 of 119 

Troughs will be constructed of steel and painted job color. 

The size and length of the hard suction hose that will be carried is 6" x 10' install the hose 
troughs between the PFP1 light mounting housings. If need be make the and the hose a true 10' 
length not the 10' 6" with couplings (match previous job 26218). 

HANDRAILS 
The handrails will be 1.25" diameter anodized aluminum extrusion, with a ribbed design, to 
provide a positive gripping surface. 

Chrome plated end stanchions will support the handrail.  Plastic gaskets will be used between 
end stanchions and any painted surfaces. 

Drain holes will be provided in the bottom of all vertically mounted handrails. 

Handrails will be provided to meet NFPA 1901 section 15.8 requirements.  The handrails will be 
installed as noted on the sales drawing. 

HANDRAILS 
One (1) vertical handrail, not less than 29.00" long, will be located on each rear beavertail. 

• One (1) full width horizontal handrail will be provided below the hose bed at the rear of 
the apparatus. 

- One (1) handrail, 7.00" long, will be provided mounted install on top of the treadplate light box 
at the front of the driver’s side catwalk to meet NFPA for climbing up the front of the truck. 

AIR BOTTLE STORAGE (DOUBLE) 
A quantity of two (2) air bottle compartments, 15.25" wide x 7.75" tall x 26.00" deep, will be 
provided on the driver side forward of the rear wheels and on the passenger side forward of the 
rear wheels.  A polished stainless steel door with a chrome plated flush lift & turn latch will be 
provided to contain the air bottle.  A dielectric barrier will be provided between the door hinge, 
hinge fasteners and the body sheet metal. 

Inside the compartment, black rubber matting will be provided. 

AIR BOTTLE STORAGE (SINGLE) 
A quantity of two (2) air bottle compartments, 7.75" in diameter x 26.00" deep, will be provided 
on the driver side rearward of the rear wheels and on the passenger side rearward of the rear 
wheels.  A polished stainless steel door with a chrome plated flush lift & turn latch will be 
provided to contain the air bottle.  A dielectric barrier will be provided between the door hinge, 
hinge fasteners and the body sheet metal. 

Inside the compartment, black rubber matting will be provided. 

EXTENSION LADDER 
There will be a 24' two-section aluminum Duo-Safety Series 900-A extension ladder provided. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 89 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 89 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 82 of 119 

ROOF LADDER 
There will be a 14' aluminum Duo-Safety Series 775-A roof ladder provided. 

HYDRAULIC LADDER RACK 
Ground ladders will be mounted above the right side of the hose body in a specially designed 
swing-down cradle.  This cradle will be electric/hydraulic operated. The system design will have 
been life cycle tested for at least 14 years of dependable service. 

An independent hydraulic pump powered by a 12-volt electric motor will operate the hydraulics.  
Operation of the hydraulic system for the ladder rack by an engine-powered pump will be totally 
unacceptable.  The hydraulic pump and reservoir will be accessible from the ground through a 
stainless steel inspection door. 

The ladder rack will incorporate two hydraulic rotary actuators, one each located inside the front 
compartment and the rear compartment.  The actuators will be completely enclosed within each 
compartment to eliminate any pinch points while operating the ladder rack.  Lifting arms will be 
attached outside the compartment body to the front and rear actuator.  A center-lifting arm built 
into the compartment space is unnecessary and is unacceptable. 

A manual override will be provided in the unlikely event of a power failure of the truck's electrical 
system.  The manual override will consist of a hydraulic pump and a pump handle.  The manual 
override will be located on the right side pump panel behind a stainless steel access door. 

The rack can be designed in certain situations to provide lifting capabilities up to 500lbs. 

The maximum height of the rack from the ground in the lowered position will be no more than 
47.00". 

The electric control panel will have a master switch on/off switch, an actuation switch, an 
operation indicator light and operation instructions.  The electric controls will be located in such 
a manner to allow the operator full view of the area into which the ladders will be lowered. 

Two (2) air operated safety locks will be furnished to securely maintain the ladder bracket 
assembly in the travel position.  These air operated safety locks will be controlled from the 
ladder rack control panel. 

An enclosure is not required here, as an enclosure is provided in the "Bracket, Rear Warning, 
Hose Bed Lts Location Category" for the mounting of the rear warning lights. 

Ladders will be secured to the cradle with a quadruple locking system.  Two (2) locks will secure 
the first ladder which in turn assists in securing the second and third ladders.  The third 
independent lock will secure the second roof ladder during the installation/removal of the first 
ladder.  The fourth independent lock will secure the extension ladder during the 
installation/removal of the second ladder. 

LADDER RACK INTERLOCK AND NOT STOWED INDICATOR LIGHT 
An interlock will be provided to prevent operation of the ladder rack unless the apparatus 
parking brake has been activated. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 90 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 90 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 83 of 119 

A steady red indicator light will be located on the cab instrument panel and illuminated when the 
hydraulic ladder rack is not in the stowed position.  The light will be labeled "Ladder Rack".  In 
addition, the "Do Not Move Apparatus" light located in the cab will be activated when the 
hydraulic ladder rack is not in the stowed position. 

LIGHTS, FLASHING, HYDRAULIC LADDER RACK 
Flashing amber lights facing the front and rear will be provided on the ladder rack and activated 
whenever the rack is in the down position. 

FOLDING LADDER 
One (1) 10.00' aluminum, Series 585-A, Duo-Safety folding ladder will be installed on the 
hydraulic ladder rack. 

ADDITIONAL FOLDING LADDER 
One (1) Revolution XE Model 12017 Little Giant folding ladder will be provided.  The stored 
dimensions will be 55.50" high x 23.75" wide x 9.25" deep.  The weight will be 31.50lb. 

The ladder will be located on the hydraulic ladder rack. 

PIKE POLE, 4' 
Two (2) pike poles 4' long with a fiberglass "D" handle, Nupla brand, will be provided and 
located shipped loose. 

8' PIKE POLE 
There will be 8' Nupla RH-8DA aluminum pike pole(s) provided with D-grip handles and 
roof/vent rubbish hooks.  One (1) pike pole will be provided.  The pike pole(s) will be located 
ladder rack to match previous job 26218. 

PIKE POLE, 8' 
One (1) pike pole, 8' long Nupla with a fiberglass I-beam handle, will be provided and located in 
the passenger side compartment under the tank "T" punch a hole through the front of the 
compartment to allow the pike pole to be slid 30" forward. Seal the pole and the tube. 

PIKE POLE, 6' 
There will be one (1) Fire Hooks Unlimited #APH-6, 6 foot pike pole(s) with fiberglass handles 
provided and located in the driver's side compartment under the tank "T" move the tube in 5" 
and punch a hole through the front of the compartment 6" to allow the head to be slid fully into 
the compartment. 

PIKE POLE STORAGE 
Aluminum tubing will be used for the storage of two (2) pike poles and will be located one in 
each storage compartment under the tank "T" (match job 28201.  If the head of a pike pole can 
come in contact with a painted surface, a stainless steel scuffplate will be provided. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 91 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 91 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 84 of 119 

PIKE POLE STORAGE 
Chrome plated tulip clips will be used for pike pole storage and will be on the ladder rack for the 
D-ring vent hook (match 26218).  If the head of a pike pole can come in contact with a painted 
surface, a stainless steel scuffplate will be provided. 

BELL 
A chrome plated, 12.00" bronze cast bell, complete with an eagle, will be mounted on the 
passenger's side of the front bumper extension.  A rope pull, for the bell, will be installed inside 
the cab. 

STEPS 
A folding step will be provided on the front of each fender compartment.  The step will be bright 
finished, non-skid with a luminescent coating that is rechargeable from any light source and can 
hold a charge for up to 24 hours.  Each step will incorporate an LED light to illuminate the 
stepping surface.  The step can be used as a hand hold with two openings wide enough for a 
gloved hand. 

REAR FOLDING STEPS 
Bright finished, non-skid folding steps with a luminescent coating that is rechargeable from any 
light source and can hold a charge for up to 24 hours will be provided at the rear.  Each step will 
incorporate an LED light to illuminate the stepping surface.  The steps can be used as a hand 
hold with two openings wide enough for a gloved hand. 

Two (2) additional folding steps will be located (1) on the driver's side front bulk head and (1) on 
the passenger side rear of body.  The step(s) will be bright finished, non-skid, with a 
luminescent coating.  The luminescent coating is rechargeable from any light source and can 
hold a charge for up to 24 hours.  Each step will incorporate an LED light to illuminate the 
stepping surface.  The step(s) can be used as a hand hold with two openings wide enough for a 
gloved hand. 

Two (2) additional folding steps will be located on the driver's side exterior back wall of crew 
cab.  The step(s) will be bright finished, non-skid with a luminescent coating that is rechargeable 
from any light source and can hold a charge for up to 24 hours.  Each step will incorporate an 
LED light to illuminate the stepping surface.  The step(s) can be used as a hand hold with two 
openings wide enough for a gloved hand. 

Two (2) additional folding steps will be located on the passenger side, exterior back wall of crew 
cab.  The step(s) will be bright finished, non-skid with a luminescent coating that is rechargeable 
from any light source and can hold a charge for up to 24 hours.  Each step will incorporate an 
LED light to illuminate the stepping surface.  The step(s) can be used as a hand hold with two 
openings wide enough for a gloved hand. 

PUMP 
Pump will be a Waterous CMU 2000 gpm two (2) stage midship mounted centrifugal type. 

Pump will be the class "A" type. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 92 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 92 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 85 of 119 

Pump will deliver the percentage of rated discharge at pressures indicated below: 

- 100% of rated capacity at 150 psi net pump pressure. 

-70% of rated capacity at 200 psi net pump pressure. 

-50% of rated capacity at 250 psi net pump pressure. 

Pump body will be close-grained gray iron, bronze fitted, and horizontally split in two (2) 
sections for easy removal of the entire impeller shaft assembly (including wear rings). 

Pump will be designed for complete servicing from the bottom of the truck, without disturbing the 
pump setting or apparatus piping. 

Pump case halves will be bolted together on a single horizontal face to minimize a chance of 
leakage and facilitate ease of reassembly.  No end flanges will be used. 

Discharge manifold of the pump will be cast as an integral part of the pump body assembly and 
will provide a minimum of three (3) 3.50" openings for flexibility in providing various discharge 
outlets for maximum efficiency. 

The three (3) 3.5" openings will be located as follows:  one (1) outlet to the right of the pump, 
one (1) outlet to the left of the pump, and one (1) outlet directly on top of the discharge manifold. 

Impeller shaft will be stainless steel, accurately ground to size.  It will be supported at each end 
by sealed, anti-friction ball bearings for rigid precise support.  Impeller will have flame plated 
hubs assuring maximum pump life and efficiency despite any presence of abrasive matter in the 
water supply. 

Bearings will be protected from water and sediment by suitable stuffing boxes, flinger rings, and 
oil seals.  No special or sleeve type bearings will be used. 

Pump will be equipped with a self-adjusting, maintenance-free, mechanical shaft seal. 

The mechanical seal will consist of a flat, highly polished, spring fed carbon ring that rotates with 
the impeller shaft.  The carbon ring will press against a highly polished stainless steel stationary 
ring that is sealed within the pump body. 

In addition, a throttling ring will be pressed into the steel chamber cover, providing a very small 
clearance around the rotating shaft in the event of a mechanical seal failure.  The pump 
performance will not deteriorate, nor will the pump lose prime, while drafting if the seal fails 
during pump operation. 

Wear rings will be bronze and easily replaceable to restore original pump efficiency and 
eliminate the need to replace the entire pump casing due to wear. 

PUMP TRANSMISSION 
The pump transmission will be made of a three (3) piece, aluminum, horizontally split casing.  
Power transfer to pump will be through a high strength Morse HY-VO silent drive chain.  By the 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 93 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 93 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 86 of 119 

use of a chain rather than gears, 50% of the sprocket will be accepting or transmitting torque, 
compared to two (2) or three (3) teeth doing all the work. 

Drive shafts will be 2.35" diameter hardened and ground alloy steel and supported by ball 
bearings.  The case will be designed to eliminate the need for water cooling. 

An interlock system will be provided to ensure that the PTO pump drive system components are 
properly engaged so that the apparatus can be safely operated.  Interlock system will be 
designed to allow the truck to be in motion while pumping. 

AIR PUMP SHIFT 
Pump shift engagement will be made by a two (2) position sliding collar, actuated pneumatically 
(by air pressure), with a three (3) position air control switch located in the cab.  A manual back-
up shift control will also be located on the left side pump panel. 

Two (2) indicator lights will be provided adjacent to the pump shift inside the cab.  One (1) green 
light will indicate the pump shift has been completed and be labeled "pump engaged".  The 
second green light will indicate when the pump has been engaged, and that the chassis 
transmission is in pump gear.  This indicator light will be labeled "OK to pump". 

Another green indicator light will be installed adjacent to the hand throttle on the pump panel 
and indicate either the pump is engaged and the road transmission is in pump gear, or the road 
transmission is in neutral and the pump is not engaged.  This indicator light will be labeled 
"Warning:  Do not open throttle unless light is on". 

The pump shift will be interlocked to prevent the pump from being shifted out of gear when the 
chassis transmission is in gear to meet NFPA requirements. 

The pump shift control in the cab will be illuminated to meet NFPA requirements. 

TRANSMISSION LOCK-UP 
The direct gear transmission lock-up for the fire pump operation will engage automatically when 
the pump shift control in the cab is activated. 

AUXILIARY COOLING SYSTEM 
A supplementary heat exchange cooling system will be provided to allow the use of water from 
the discharge side of the pump for cooling the engine water.  The heat exchanger will be 
cylindrical type and will be a separate unit.  The heat exchanger will be installed in the pump or 
engine compartment with the control located on the pump operator's control panel.  Exchanger 
will be plumbed to the master drain valve. 

TRANSFER VALVE 
Transfer valve design will be of the latest ball type, of all bronze construction and incorporate a 
hydraulically balanced seal assembly, minimizing leakage around the ball and assuring 
maximum pump efficiency. 

Transfer valve will operate smoothly and without sticking, even when exposed to sandy or dirty 
water. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 94 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 94 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 87 of 119 

Transfer valve will be operated electrically with a control switch mounted on the pump operator's 
control panel, with two (2) indicator lights which will indicate "pressure" or "volume". 

Transfer valve will have the ability to change from series (pressure) operation to parallel 
(volume) operation without reducing the operating speed of the engine regardless of the 
operating pressure of the pump, thus maintaining an effective fire stream at the nozzle at all 
times. 

A manual override will be provided in the event of electrical malfunction.  The manual override 
system operates with the use of a removable hand crank located at the left (driver's) side pump 
panel. 

INTAKE RELIEF VALVE 
A Trident Air Max intake relief valve will be installed on the suction side of the pump preset at 
125 psig. 

Relief valve will have a working range of 50 psig to 350 psig. 

Outlet will terminate below the frame rails with a 2.50" National Standard hose thread adapter 
and will have a "do not cap" warning tag. 

An adjustable air regulator and pressure indicating gauge will be located behind the right 
(passenger's) side pump panel. 

PRESSURE CONTROLLER 
A Fire Research, INCONTROL Model TGA400 pressure governor will be provided. 

A pressure transducer will be installed in the water discharge manifold on the pump. 

The display panel will be located at the pump operator's panel. 

PRIMING PUMP 
The priming pump will be a Trident Emergency Products compressed air powered, high 
efficiency, multistage venturi based AirPrime System, conforming to standards outlined in the 
current edition of NFPA 1901. 

All wetted metallic parts of the priming system are to be of brass and stainless steel 
construction. 

One (1) priming control will open the priming valve and start the pump primer. 

RECIRCULATING LINE WITH CHECK VALVE 
A 0.50" diameter recirculating line, from the pump to the water tank, will be furnished with a 
control installed at the pump operator's control panel.  A check valve will be provided in this line 
to prevent the back flow of water from the tank to the pump if the valve is left in the open 
position. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 95 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 95 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 88 of 119 

PUMP MANUALS 
There will be a total of two (2) pump manuals provided by the pump manufacturer and furnished 
with the apparatus.  The manuals will be provided by the pump manufacturer in the form of two 
(2) CDs.  Each manual will cover pump operation, maintenance, and parts. 

PLUMBING, STAINLESS STEEL AND HOSE 
All inlet and outlet lines will be plumbed with either stainless steel pipe, hydraulic type hose or 
synthetic rubber hose reinforced with hi-tensile polyester braid.  All hose's will be equipped with 
brass or stainless steel couplings.  All stainless steel hard plumbing will be a minimum of a 
schedule 10 wall thickness. 

Where vibration or chassis flexing may damage or loosen piping or where a coupling is required 
for servicing, the piping will be equipped with victaulic or rubber couplings. 

Plumbing manifold bodies will be ductile cast iron or stainless steel. 

All piping lines are to be drained through a master drain valve or will be equipped with individual 
drain valves.  All drain lines will be extended with a hose to drain below the chassis frame. 

All water carrying gauge lines will be hydraulic type hose. 

All piping, hose and fittings will have a minimum of a 700 PSI hydrodynamic pressure rating. 

All foam piping that is in contact with the foam concentrate or foam/water solution will be 
stainless steel. 

MAIN PUMP INLETS 
A 6.00" pump manifold inlet will be provided on each side of the vehicle.  The suction inlets will 
include removable die cast zinc screens that are designed to provide cathodic protection for the 
pump, thus reducing corrosion in the pump. 

MAIN PUMP INLET CAP 
The main pump inlets will have National Standard Threads with a long handle chrome cap. 

The cap will be the Pierce VLH, which incorporates an exclusive thread design to automatically 
relieve stored pressure in the line when disconnected. 

SHORT SUCTION TUBE 
The suction tubes on the mid-ship pump will have short suction tubes to allow for installation of 
adapters without excessive overhang. 

VALVES 
All ball valves will be Akron® Brass.  The Akron valves will be the 8000 series heavy-duty style 
with a stainless steel ball and a simple two-seat design.  No lubrication or regular maintenance 
is required on the valve. 

Valves will have a ten (10) year warranty. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 96 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 96 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 89 of 119 

LEFT SIDE INLET  
There will be one (1) auxiliary inlet with a 2.50" valve at the left side pump panel, terminating 
with a 2.50" (F) National Standard hose thread adapter. 

The auxiliary inlet will be provided with a strainer, chrome swivel and plug. 

RIGHT SIDE INLET 
There will be one (1) auxiliary inlet with a 2.50" valve at the right side pump panel, terminating 
with a 2.50" (F) National Standard hose thread adapter. 

The auxiliary inlet will be provided with a strainer, chrome swivel and plug. 

The location of the valve for the two (2) inlets will be recessed behind the pump panel. 

ANODE, INLET 
A pair of sacrificial zinc anodes will be provided in the water pump inlets to protect the pump 
from corrosion. 

INLET CONTROL 
The side auxiliary inlet(s) will incorporate a quarter-turn ball valve with the control located at the 
inlet valve.  The valve operating mechanism will indicate the position of the valve. 

INLET BLEEDER VALVE 
A 0.75" bleeder valve will be provided for each side gated inlet.  The valves will be located 
behind the panel with a swing style handle control extended to the outside of the panel.  The 
handles will be chrome plated and provide a visual indication of valve position.  The swing 
handle will provide an ergonomic position for operating the valve without twisting the wrist and 
provides excellent leverage.  The water discharged by the bleeders will be routed below the 
chassis frame rails. 

TANK TO PUMP 
The booster tank will be connected to the intake side of the pump with 3.00" piping and a 
quarter turn 3.50" Waterous valve with the control remotely located at the operator's panel.  
Tank to pump line to run straight (no elbows) from the pump into the front face of the water tank 
and angle down into the tank sump.  A rubber coupling will be included in this line to prevent 
damage from vibration or chassis flexing. 

The control on the pump panel will be "in" when the valve is open and "out" when the valve is 
closed. 

A check valve will be provided in the tank to pump supply line to prevent the possibility of "back 
filling" the water tank. 

TANK REFILL 
A 2.00" combination tank refill and pump re-circulation line will be provided, using a quarter-turn 
full flow ball valve controlled from the pump operator's panel. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 97 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 97 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 90 of 119 

LEFT SIDE DISCHARGE OUTLETS 
There will be two (2) discharge outlets with a 2.50" valve on the left side of the apparatus, 
terminating with 2.50" (M) National Standard hose thread adapter. 

RIGHT SIDE DISCHARGE OUTLETS 
There will be two (2) discharge outlets with a 2.50" valve on the right side of the apparatus, 
terminating with a 2.50" (M) National Standard hose thread adapter. 

LARGE DIAMETER DISCHARGE OUTLET 
There will be a 4.00" discharge outlet with a 4.00" Akron valve installed on the right side of the 
apparatus, terminating with a 4.00" (M) National Standard hose thread adapter.  This discharge 
outlet will be actuated with a handwheel control at the pump operator's control panel. 

An indicator will be provided to show when the valve is in the closed position. 

FRONT DISCHARGE OUTLET 
There will be one (1) 1.50" discharge outlet piped to the front of the apparatus and located on 
the top of the right side of the front bumper. 

Plumbing will consist of 2.00" piping and flexible hose with a 2.00" ball valve with control at the 
pump operator's panel.  A fabricated weldment made of stainless steel pipe will be used in the 
plumbing where appropriate.  The piping will terminate with a 1.50" NST with 90 degree 
stainless steel swivel. 

There will be Class 1 automatic drains provided at all low points of the piping. 

FRONT OF HOSE BED DISCHARGE OUTLET 
There will be two (2) discharge outlets discharge(s) piped to the front of the hose bed and 
located driver and passenger sides.  Plumbing will consist of 2.50" piping with a 2.50" full-flow 
ball valve controlled at the pump operator's panel.  The discharge(s) will terminate with a 2.50" 
(M) National Standard hose thread adapter. 

DISCHARGE CAPS 
Chrome plated, rocker lug, caps with chains will be furnished for all side discharge outlets. 

The caps will be the Pierce VLH, which incorporates an exclusive thread design to automatically 
relieve stored pressure in the line when disconnected. 

OUTLET BLEEDERS 
A 0.75" bleeder valve will be provided for each outlet 1.50" or larger.  Automatic drain valves are 
acceptable with some outlets if deemed appropriate with the application. 

The valves will be located behind the panel with a swing style handle control extended to the 
outside of the side pump panel.  The handles will be chrome plated and provide a visual 
indication of valve position.  The swing handle will provide an ergonomic position for operating 
the valve without twisting the wrist and provides excellent leverage.  Bleeders will be located at 
the bottom of the pump panel.  They will be properly labeled identifying the discharge they are 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 98 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 98 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 91 of 119 

plumbed in to.  The water discharged by the bleeders will be routed below the chassis frame 
rails. 

LEFT SIDE OUTLET ELBOWS 
The 2.50" discharge outlets located on the left side pump panel will be furnished with a 2.50" (F) 
National Standard hose thread x 2.50" (M) National Standard hose thread, chrome plated, 45 
degree elbow. 

The elbow will be Pierce VLH, which incorporates an exclusive thread design to automatically 
relieve stored pressure in the line when disconnected. 

RIGHT SIDE OUTLET ELBOWS 
The 2.50" discharge outlets located on the right side pump panel will be furnished with a 2.50" 
(F) National Standard hose thread x 2.50" (M) National Standard hose thread, chrome plated, 
45 degree elbow. 

The elbow will be Pierce VLH, which incorporates an exclusive thread design to automatically 
relieve stored pressure in the line when disconnected. 

LARGE DIAMETER OUTLET ELBOWS 
The 4.00" outlet will be furnished with a 4.00" (F) National Standard hose thread x 5.00" Storz 
elbow.  A 5.00" Storz x 2.5" (M)NST rigid adapter with cap and chain will be provided with the 
elbow. 

DISCHARGE OUTLET CONTROLS 
The discharge outlets will incorporate a quarter-turn ball valve with the control located at the 
pump operator's panel.  The valve operating mechanism will indicate the position of the valve. 

If a handwheel control valve is used, the control will be a minimum of a 3.9" diameter stainless 
steel handwheel with a dial position indicator built in to the center of the handwheel. 

DELUGE RISER 
A 3.00" deluge riser will be installed above the pump in such a manner that a monitor can be 
mounted and used effectively.  Piping will be rigidly braced and installed securely so no 
movement develops when the line is charged.  The riser will be gated and controlled at the 
pump operator's panel with a handwheel control. 

TELESCOPIC PIPING 
The deluge riser piping will include an 18.00" Task Force Model XG18 Extend-A-Gun extension. 

This extension will be telescopic to allow the deluge gun to be raised 18.00" increasing the 
range of operation. 

A position sensor will be provided on the telescopic piping that will activate the "do not move 
vehicle" light inside the cab when the monitor is in the raised position. 

The deluge riser Extend-a-Gun will have provisions for direct mounting a Task Force Tips 
CrossFire monitor. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 99 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 99 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 92 of 119 

CROSSLAY HOSE BEDS 
Two (2) crosslays with 1.50" outlets will be provided.  Each bed to be capable of carrying 200' of 
1.75" double jacketed hose and will be plumbed with 2.00" i.d. pipe and gated with a 2.00" 
quarter turn ball valve. 

Outlets to be equipped with a 1.50" National Standard hose thread 90 degree swivel located in 
the hose bed so that hose may be removed from either side of apparatus. 

The crosslay controls will be at the pump operator's panel. 

The center crosslay dividers will be fabricated of 0.25" aluminum and will provide adjustment 
from side to side.  The divider will be unpainted with a brushed finish. 

Vertical scuffplates constructed of stainless steel will be provided at the front and rear ends of 
the bed on each side of vehicle. 

Crosslay bed flooring will consist of removable perforated brushed aluminum. 

CROSSLAY/DEADLAY HOSE RESTRAINT 
A black 1.00" nylon webbing design with 2.00" box pattern will be provided across each end of 
two (2) crosslay/deadlay(s) to secure the hose during travel.  The webbing will be permanently 
attached at the top of the crosslay/deadlay opening(s).  1.00" web straps will loop through 
footman loops located at the opposite end of the permanently attached webbing.  The straps will 
attach with a pair of spring clip and hook fasteners. 

CROSSLAY/DEADLAY HOSE RESTRAINT 
An aluminum treadplate cover, hinged at the front will be installed over the top of the 
crosslay/deadlay(s).  It will include a latch at each end of the cover to hold it securely in place, a 
chrome grab handle at each end for opening and closing the cover and a foam rubber gasket 
where the cover comes into contact to a painted surface.  The cover will be provided with rubber 
latch hold open device. 

BOOSTER HOSE REEL 
A Hannay electric rewind booster hose reel will be installed over the pump in a recessed open 
compartment on the left side of the apparatus. 

A polished stainless steel roller and guide assembly will be mounted on the reel side of the 
apparatus. 

Discharge control will be provided at the pump operator's panel.  Plumbing to the reel will 
consist of 1.50" Aeroquip hose and a 1.50" valve 

The exterior finish of the reel will be painted job color matching the body exterior. 

Reel motor will be protected from overload with a circuit breaker rated to match the motor. 

Electric rewind controls will be a rubber covered button.  Locate one adjacent to the reel, and 
one on each pump panel. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 100 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 100 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 93 of 119 

Booster hose, 1.00" diameter and 150 feet, with chrome plated Barway, or equal couplings will 
be provided. 

Working pressure of the booster hose will be a minimum of 800 psi. 

Capacity of the hose reel will be 150 feet of 1.00" booster hose. 

There will be one (1) additional polished stainless steel roller and guide assembly mounted on 
the passenger's side. 

FOAM PROPORTIONER 
A foam proportioning system will be provided that is an on demand, automatic proportioning, 
single point, direct injection system suitable for all types of Class A and B foam concentrates, 
including the high viscosity (6000 cps), alcohol resistant Class B foams.  Operation will be 
based on direct measurement of water flow, and remain consistent within the specified flows 
and pressures.  The system will automatically balance and proportion foam solution at rates 
from .1 percent to 9.9 percent regardless of variations in water pressure and flow, up to the 
maximum rated capacity of the foam concentrate pump. 

The design of the system will allow operation from draft, hydrant, or relay operation.  This will 
provide a versatile system to meet the demands at a fire scene. 

SYSTEM CAPACITY 
The system will have the ability to deliver the following minimum foam solution flow rates that 
meet or exceed NFPA requirements at a pump rating of 250 psi. 

200 gpm @ 6 percent 

400 gpm @ 3 percent 

1200 gpm @ 1 percent 

The foam concentrate setting may be adjusted in .1 percent increments from .1 percent to 9.9 
percent. Typical settings are .3 percent, .5 percent and 1.0 percent (The maximum capacity will 
be limited to the plumbing and water pump capacity). 

CONTROL SYSTEM 
The system will be equipped with a digital electronic control display located on the pump 
operator's panel.  Push button controls will be integrated into the panel to turn the system on/off, 
control the foam percentage, direct which foam to use on a multi-tank system, and to set the 
operation modes (automatic, manual, draft, calibration, or flush). 

The percent of injection will have presets for Class A and Class B foam.  These presets can be 
changed at the fire department as desired.  The percent of injection will be able to be easily 
changed at the scene to adjust to changing demands. 

In order to minimize the use of abbreviations and interpretations, system information will be 
displayed on the panel by way of .50 tall LEDs that total 14 characters (two (2) lines of seven (7) 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 101 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 101 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 94 of 119 

each).  System on and foam pump on indicator lights will also be included.  Information 
displayed will include mode of operation (automatic, manual, draft, calibration, or flush), foam 
supply selected (Class A or Class B), water total, foam total, foam percentage, remaining 
gallons, and time remaining. 

The control display will direct a microprocessor, which receives input from the systems water 
flow meter while also monitoring the position of the foam concentrate pump.  The 
microprocessor will compare the values of the water flow versus the position/rate of the foam 
pump, to ensure the proportion rate is accurate.  One (1) check valve will be installed in the 
plumbing to prevent foam from contaminating the water pump. 

LOW LEVEL, FOAM TANK 
The control head will display a warning message when the foam tank in use is below a quarter 
tank. 

HYDRAULIC DRIVE SYSTEM 
The foam concentrate pump will be powered by a hydraulic drive system, which is automatically 
activated, whenever the vehicle water pump is engaged.  A system that drives the foam pump 
via an electric motor will not be acceptable.  A large parasitic electric load used to power the 
foam pump can cause an overload of the chassis electrical system. 

Hydraulic oil cooler will be provided to automatically prevent overheating of the hydraulic oil, 
which is detrimental to system components.  The oil/water cooler will be designed to allow 
continuous system operation without allowing hydraulic oil temperature to exceed the oil 
specifications. 

The hydraulic oil reservoir will be of four (4) gallons minimum capacity and will also be of 
sufficient size to minimize foaming and be located to facilitate checking oil level or adding oil 
without spillage or the need to remove access panels. 

FOAM CONCENTRATE PUMP 
The foam concentrate pump will be of positive displacement, self-priming; linear actuated 
design, driven by the hydraulic motor.  The pump will be constructed of brass body; chrome 
plated stainless steel shaft, with a stainless steel piston.  In order to increase longevity of the 
pump, no aluminum will be present in its construction. 

A relief system will be provided which is designed to protect the drive system components and 
prevent over pressuring the foam concentrate pump 

The foam concentrate pump will have minimum capacity for 12 gpm with all types of foam 
concentrates with a viscosity at or below 6000 cps including protein, fluoroprotein, AFFF, FFFP, 
or AR-AFFF.  The system will deliver only the amount of foam concentrate flow required, without 
recirculating foam back to the storage tank.  Recirculating foam concentrate back to the storage 
tank can cause agitation and premature foaming of the concentrate, which can result in system 
failure.  The foam concentrate pump will be self-priming and have the ability to draw foam 
concentrate from external supplies such as drums or pails. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 102 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 102 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 95 of 119 

EXTERNAL FOAM CONCENTRATE CONNECTION 
An external foam pick-up will be provided to enable use of a foam agent that is not stored on the 
vehicle.  The external foam pick-up will be designed to allow continued operation after the on-
board foam tank is empty.  The external foam pick-up will be designed to allow use with training 
foam or colored water for training purposes. 

PANEL MOUNTED STRAINER/EXTERNAL PICK-UP CONNECTION 
A bronze body strainer/connector unit will be provided.  The unit will be mounted to the pump 
panel.  The external foam pick-up will be one (1) 1.00" male connection with chrome-plated cap 
integrated to a 2.00" strainer cleanout cap.  A check valve will be installed in the pick-up portion 
of the cleanout cap.  A basket style stainless steel screen will be installed in the body of the 
strainer/connector unit.  Removal of the 2.00" cleanout cap will be all that is required to gain 
access to and remove the stainless steel basket screen.  The strainer/connector unit will be 
ahead of the foam concentrate pump inlet port to insure that all agent reaching the foam pump 
has been strained. 

PICK-UP HOSE 
A 1.00" flexible hose with an end for insertion into foam containers will be provided.  The hose 
will be supplied with a 1.00" female swivel NST thread swivel connector.  The hose will be 
shipped loose. 

DISCHARGES 
The foam system will be plumbed to six (6) discharges.  The discharges capable of dispensing 
foam will be booster reel, front bumper discharge, both crosslays, and the 2.5" discharges in the 
hose bed. 

SYSTEM ELECTRICAL LOAD 
The foam proportioning will not impose an electrical load on the vehicle electrical system any 
greater than five (5) amps at 12VDC. 

FOAM SUPPLY VALVE 
Electric valves will be used for the foam supply.  The foam supply valves will be controlled at the 
foam system control head for ease of operation.  The supply valves will be electric, remote 
controlled, to eliminate air pockets in the foam tank supply hose. 

MAINTENANCE MESSAGE 
A message will be displayed on the control head to advise when system maintenance needs to 
be performed.  The message will display interval for cleaning the foam strainer, cleaning for the 
water strainers, and changing the hydraulic oil. 

FLUSH SYSTEM 
The system will be designed such that a flush mode will be provided to allow the system to flush 
all foam concentrate with clear water.  The flush circuit control logic will ensure the foam tank 
supply valve is closed prior to opening the flush valve.  The flush valve will be operated at the 
foam system control head for ease of operation.  The valve will be electrically controlled and 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 103 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 103 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 96 of 119 

located as close to the foam tank supply valve as possible.  A manual flush drain valve will be 
labeled and located under the driver's side running board. 

REFILL, FOAM TANKS 
The foam system's proportioning pump will be used to fill the Class A foam tank.  This will allow 
use of the auxiliary foam pick-up to pump the foam from pails or a drum on the ground into the 
foam tank.  A foam shut-off switch will be installed in the fill dome of the tank to shut the system 
down when the tank is full.  The fill operation will be controlled by a mode in the foam system 
controller stating TANK A FILL.  While the proportioner pump is filling the tank, the controller will 
display FILL TANK A.  When the tank is full, as determined by the float switch in the tank dome, 
the pump will stop and the controller will display TANK A FULL. 

A separate air operated fill pump, controlled by the foam system controller, will be provided for 
filling the Class B foam tank.  A separate inlet connection, mounted on the pump panel will be 
provided for this fill system.  A foam shut-off switch will be installed in the fill dome of the tank to 
shut the system down when the tank is full.  The connection will be the same as the foam intake 
connection, in order to allow the use of the foam pick-up hose as the fill hose.  The fill operation 
will be controlled by a mode in the foam system controller stating TANK B FILL.  To fill the tank, 
the controller will start and run the air operated pump.  While the pump runs, the controller will 
display FILL TANK B.  When the tank is full, as determined by the float switch in the tank dome, 
the pump will stop and the controller will display TANK B FULL. 

FOAM TANK 
The foam tank will be an integral portion of the polypropylene water tank.  The cell will have a 
capacity of 20 gallons of foam with the intended use of Class A foam.  The foam cell will not 
reduce the capacity of the water tank.  The foam cell will have a screen in the fill dome and a 
breather in the lid. 

FOAM TANK DRAIN 
A system of 1.00" foam tank drains will be provided, integrated into the foam systems strainer 
and tank to foam pump valve management system. The tank to pump hoses running from the 
tank(s) to the panel mounted strainer will 1.00" diameter. The foam system controller will have a 
mode that allows for a given foam valve to be opened at will.  Flow of foam from the tank valve 
to the strainer will be usable as a tank drain mode. 

An adaptor will be supplied, that allows the 1.00" foam intake screen to assembly to be used as 
a drain outlet.  The standard supplied 1.00" foam pick up hose will be attached to the screen 
assembly by way of the adapter.  The drain mode will allow the operator to open and close the 
tank valve as required from the control head, to drain foam and re-fill foam containers through 
the connected hose, without foam spillage beneath the vehicle. 

FOAM CELL 
The cell will be an integral portion of the polypropylene water tank.  The cell will have a capacity 
of 20 gallons of foam with the intended use of Class B foam.  The brand of foam stored in this 
cell will be Ansul AFFF 1%.  The foam cell will not reduce the capacity of the water tank.  The 
foam cell will have a screen in the fill dome and a breather in the lid. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 104 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 104 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 97 of 119 

FOAM TANK DRAIN 
A system of 1.00" foam tank drains will be provided, integrated into the foam systems strainer 
and tank to foam pump valve management system. The tank to pump hoses running from the 
tank(s) to the panel mounted strainer will 1.00" diameter. The foam system controller will have a 
mode that allows for a given foam valve to be opened at will.  Flow of foam from the tank valve 
to the strainer will be usable as a tank drain mode. 

An adaptor will be supplied, that allows the 1.00" foam intake screen to assembly to be used as 
a drain outlet.  The standard supplied, 1.00" foam pick up hose will be attached to the screen 
assembly by way of the adapter.  The drain mode will allow the operator to open and close the 
tank valve as required from the control head, to drain foam and re-fill foam containers through 
the connected hose, without foam spillage beneath the vehicle. 

PUMP COMPARTMENT 
The pump compartment will be separate from the hose body and compartments so that each 
may flex independently of the other.  It will be a fabricated assembly of steel tubing, angles and 
channels which supports both the fire pump and the side running boards. 

The pump compartment will be mounted on the chassis frame rails with rubber biscuits in a four 
point pattern to allow for chassis frame twist. 

Pump compartment, pump, plumbing and gauge panels will be removable from the chassis in a 
single assembly. 

PUMP MOUNTING 
Pump will be mounted to a substructure which will be mounted to the chassis frame rail using 
rubber isolators.  The mounting will allow chassis frame rails to flex independently without 
damage to the fire pump. 

LEFT SIDE PUMP CONTROL PANELS 
All pump controls and gauges will be located at the left (driver's) side of the apparatus and 
properly identified. 

Layout of the pump control panel will be ergonomically efficient and systematically organized. 

The pump operator's control panel will be removable in two (2) main sections for ease of 
maintenance: 

The upper section will contain sub panels for the mounting of the pump pressure control device, 
engine monitoring gauges, electrical switches, and foam controls (if applicable).  Sub panels will 
be removable from the face of the pump panel for ease of maintenance.  Below the sub panels 
will be located all valve controls and line pressure gauges. 

The lower section of the panel will contain all inlets, outlets, and drains. 

All push/pull valve controls will have 1/4 turn locking control rods with polished chrome plated 
zinc tee handles.  Guides for the push/pull control rods will be chrome plated zinc castings 
securely mounted to the pump panel.  Push/pull valve controls will be capable of locking in any 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 105 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 105 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 98 of 119 

position.  The control rods will pull straight out of the panel and will be equipped with universal 
joints to eliminate binding. 

IDENTIFICATION TAGS 
The identification tag for each valve control will be recessed in the face of the tee handle. 

All discharge outlets will have color coded identification tags, with each discharge having its own 
unique color.  Color coding will include the labeling of the outlet and the drain for each 
corresponding discharge. 

All line pressure gauges will be mounted directly above the corresponding discharge control tee 
handles and recessed within the same chrome plated casting as the rod guide for quick 
identification.  The gauge and rod guide casting will be removable from the face of the pump 
panel for ease of maintenance.  The casting will be color coded to correspond with the 
discharge identification tag. 

All remaining identification tags will be mounted on the pump panel in chrome plated bezels. 

The pump panel on the right (passenger's) side will be removable with lift and turn type 
fasteners. 

Trim rings will be installed around all inlets and outlets. 

The trim rings for the side discharge outlets will be color coded and labeled to correspond with 
the discharge identification tag. 

PUMP PANEL CONFIGURATION 
The pump panel configuration will be arranged and installed in an organized manner that will 
provide user-friendly operation. 

PUMP AND GAUGE PANEL 
The pump and gauge panels will be constructed of aluminum with a black vinyl finish.  A 
polished aluminum trim molding will be provided around each panel. 

The passenger's side pump panel will be removable and fastened with swell type fasteners. 

PUMP COMPARTMENT LIGHT 
A pump compartment light will be provided inside the right side pump enclosure and accessible 
through a door on the pump panel. 

A .125" weep hole will be provided in each light lens, preventing moisture retention. 

Engine monitoring graduated LED indicators will be incorporated with the pressure controller. 

Also provided at the pump panel will be the following: 

- Master Pump Drain Control 

- High Engine Temperature/Low Coolant Indicator Light and LCD message 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 106 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 106 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 99 of 119 

- Stop Engine Warning Indicator Light and LCD message 

- Check Engine Warning Indicator Light and LCD message 

AIR HORN SWITCH 
An air horn control switch will be provided at the pump operator's control panel.  This switch will 
be red and properly labeled.  The button will be located within easy reach of the operator in the 
electrical switch panel. 

VACUUM AND PRESSURE GAUGES 
The pump vacuum and pressure gauges will be liquid filled and manufactured by Class 1 
Incorporated ©. 

The gauges will be a minimum of 4.50" in diameter and will have white faces with black lettering, 
with a pressure range of 30.00"-0-600#. 

The pump pressure and vacuum gauges will be installed adjacent to each other at the pump 
operator's control panel. 

Test port connections will be provided at the pump operator's panel.  One will be connected to 
the intake side of the pump, and the other to the discharge manifold of the pump.  They will 
have 0.25 in. standard pipe thread connections and polished stainless steel plugs.  They will be 
marked with a label. 

PRESSURE GAUGES 
The individual "line" pressure gauges for the discharges will be Class 1© interlube filled. 

They will be 2.50" in diameter and have white faces with black lettering. 

Gauges will have a pressure range of 0-400#. 

The individual pressure gauge will be installed as close to the outlet control as practical. 

WATER LEVEL GAUGE 
There will be an electronic water level gauge provided on the operator's panel that registers 
water level by means of five (5) colored LED lights.  The lights will be durable, ultra-bright five 
(5) LED design viewable through 180 degrees.  The water level indicators will be as follows: 

• 100 percent = Green   
• 75 percent = Yellow   
• 50 percent = Yellow   
• 25 percent = Yellow   
• Refill = Red 

The light will flash when the level drops below the given level indicator to provide an eighth of a 
tank indication.  To further alert the pump operator, the lights will flash sequentially when the 
water tank is empty. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 107 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 107 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 100 of 119 

The level measurement will be based on the sensing of head pressure of the fluid in the tank. 

The display will be constructed of a solid plastic material with a chrome plated die cast bezel to 
reduce vibrations that can cause broken wires and loose electronic components.  The 
encapsulated design will provide complete protection from water and environmental elements.  
An industrial pressure transducer will be mounted to the outside of the tank.  The field 
calibratable display measures head pressure to accurately show the tank level. 

WATER LEVEL GAUGE 
There will be two (2) additional water level indicator, Whelen®, Model PSTANK, LED module 
installed one (1) each side rearward of crew cab doors. 

This light module will include four (4) colored levels, and function similar to the water level 
indicator located at the operator’s panel: 

• First green module indicates a full water level 
• Second blue module indicates a water level above 3/4 full 
• Third amber module indicates a water level above 1/2 full 
• Last red module indicates a water level above 1/4 full and empty 

o Above 1/4 this light will be steady burning 
o At empty this light will be flashing 

This module will be activated when the pump is in gear. 

FOAM LEVEL GAUGE 
An electronic foam level gauge will be provided on the operator's panel for each foam tank, that 
registers foam level by means of five colored LED lights.  The lights will be durable, ultra-bright 
five LED design viewable through 180 degrees.  The foam level indicators will be as follows: 

- 100% = Green 

- 75% = Yellow 

- 50% = Yellow 

- 25% = Yellow 

- Refill = Red 

The light will flash when the level drops below the given level indicator to provide an eighth of a 
tank indication.  To further alert the pump operator, the lights will flash sequentially when the 
foam tank is empty. 

The level measurement will be based on the sensing of head pressure of the fluid in the tank. 

The display will be constructed of a solid plastic material with a chrome plated die cast bezel to 
reduce vibrations that can cause broken wires and loose electronic components.  The 
encapsulated design will provide complete protection from foam and environmental elements.  

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 108 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 108 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 101 of 119 

An industrial pressure transducer will be mounted to the outside of the tank.  The field 
calibratable display measures head pressure to accurately show the tank level. 

STEP/LIGHT SHIELD 
There will be a polished, 16 gauge stainless steel light shield installed under the crosslays.  This 
shield will be properly reinforced to support the crosslay hose weight. 

• There will be 12 volt DC white LED light(s) installed under the stainless steel light shield.   
• These lights will be activated when the battery switch is on and the pump panel light 

switch is on. 

There will be an aluminum treadplate stepping surface no less than 8.00" deep and properly 
reinforced to support a man's weight, installed over the pump operators main panel. 

• There will be 12 volt DC white LED lights installed under the step to illuminate the 
controls, switches, essential instructions, gauges, and instruments necessary for the 
operation of the apparatus.  These lights will be activated by the pump panel light switch.  
Additional lights will be included every 18.00" depending on the size of the pump house.   

• One (1) pump panel light will come on when the pump is in ok to pump mode. 

There will be a light activated above the pump panel light switch when the parking brake is set.  
This is to afford the operator some illumination when first approaching the control panel. 

There will be a green pump engaged indicator light activated on at the operator's panel when 
the pump is shifted into gear from inside the cab. 

There will be one (1) white LED, step light provided above this step.  In order to ensure 
exceptional illumination, each step light will provide a minimum of 25 foot-candles (fc) covering 
an entire 15" x 15" square placed ten (10) inches below the light and a minimum of 1.5 fc 
covering an entire 30" x 30" square at the same ten (10) inch distance below the light.  The step 
light will be activated by the pump panel light switch. 

ADDITIONAL STEP/LIGHT SHIELD 
There will be an additional aluminum treadplate stepping surface no less than 8.00" deep and 
properly reinforced to support a man's weight, installed over the passenger's side pump panel. 

• There will be 12 volt DC white LED lights installed under the step to illuminate the 
controls, switches, essential instructions, gauges, and instruments necessary for the 
operation of the apparatus.  These lights will be activated by the pump panel light switch.  
Additional lights will be included every 18.00" depending on the size of the pump house.  

There will be one (1) white LED, step light provided above the step.  In order to ensure 
exceptional illumination, each step light will provide a minimum of 25 foot-candles (fc) covering 
an entire 15.00" x 15.00" square placed 10.00" below the light and a minimum of 1.5 fc covering 
an entire 30.00" x 30.00" square at the same 10.00" distance below the light.  The step light will 
be activated by the pump panel light switch. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 109 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 109 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 102 of 119 

AIR HORN SYSTEM 
Two (2) Hadley round air horns with 6.00" bell will be recessed in the front bumper.  The horn 
system will be piped to the air brake system wet tank utilizing 0.38" tubing.  A pressure 
protection valve will be installed in-line to prevent loss of air in the air brake system. 

Air Horn Location 
The air horns will be located on each side of the bumper, towards the outside. 

AIR HORN CONTROL 
The air horns will be actuated by two (2) foot switches, one (1) located on the officer's side and 
one (1) on the driver's side. 

PASSENGER SIDE AIR HORN FOOTSWITCH CONTROL 
The passenger side air horn footswitch control will be controlled by the "Emergency Master" 
switch. 

ELECTRONIC SIREN 
A Code 3®, Model 3692, electronic siren with noise canceling microphone will be provided. 

This siren to be active when the battery switch is on and the emergency master switch is on. 

Electronic siren head will be recessed in the overhead console above the engine tunnel on the 
driver side. 

SIREN CONTROL 
The electronic siren will be controllable on the siren head and horn ring only.  No foot switches 
will be required. 

The driver will have the option to control the siren or the chassis horns from the horn button by 
means of a selector switch located on the instrument panel. 

SPEAKER 
There will be two (2) speakers, Code 3®, Model PB100C, with chrome finish provided.  
Connection will be connected to the siren amplifier. 

There will be one (1) speaker recessed in the passenger's side and one (1) speaker recessed in 
the driver's side of the front bumper. 

AUXILIARY MECHANICAL SIREN 
A Federal Q2B® siren will be furnished.  A siren brake button will be installed on the switch 
panel. 

The control solenoid will be powered up after the emergency master switch is activated. 

The mechanical siren will be mounted on the bumper deck plate.  It will be mounted on the left 
side.  A reinforcement plate will be furnished to support the siren. 

The mechanical siren will be actuated by two (2) foot switches, one (1) located on the officer's 
side and one (1) on the driver's side. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 110 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 110 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 103 of 119 

FRONT ZONE UPPER WARNING LIGHTS 
There will be a 92.00" Whelen Freedom IV LED lightbar mounted on the cab roof. 

The lightbar will include the following: 

• One (1) red flashing LED module in the driver's side end position.   
• One (1) red flashing LED module in the driver's side front corner position.   
• Open in the driver's side first front position.   
• Open in the driver's side second front position.   
• One (1) red flashing LED module in the driver's side third front position.   
• One (1) white flashing LED module in the driver's side fourth front position.   
• One (1) blue flashing LED module in the driver's side fifth front position.   
• One (1) red flashing LED module in the driver's side sixth front position.   
• Open in the driver's side seventh position.   
• One (1) 795 LED traffic light controller sent to national standard high priority in the center 

positions.   
• Open in the passenger's side seventh front position.   
• One (1) red flashing LED module in the passenger's side sixth front position.   
• One (1) blue flashing LED module in the passenger's side fifth front position.   
• One (1) white flashing LED module in the passenger's side fourth front position.   
• One (1) red flashing LED module in the passenger's side third front position.   
• Open in the passenger's side second front position.   
• Open in the passenger's side first front position.   
• One (1) red flashing LED module in the passenger's side front corner position.   
• One (1) red flashing LED module in the passenger's side end position.  

There will be clear lenses. 

The following switches may be installed in the cab on the switch panel to control the lightbar: 

• a switch to control the flashing LED modules   
• the traffic light controller will be with the emergency master switch only 
• there will be no momentary switch to activate the traffic light controller 

The white flashing LED's and the traffic light controller will be disabled when the parking brake 
is applied. 

The four (4) red and two (2) blue flashing LED modules in the front positions may be load 
managed when the parking brake is applied. 

CAB FACE WARNING LIGHTS 
There will be four (4) Whelen, Model M6*C, LED flashing warning lights installed on the cab 
face, above the headlights with a flange. 

• The driver's side front outside warning light to be red.  
• The driver's side front inside warning light to be blue.  

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 111 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 111 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 104 of 119 

• The passenger's side front inside warning light to be blue.  
• The passenger's side front outside warning light to be red. 

All four (4) lights will include a clear lens. 

There will be a switch located in the cab, on the switch panel, to control the four (4) lights. 

The inside lights may be load managed if colored or disabled if white, when the parking brake is 
set. 

DAYTIME RUNNING LIGHTS (HEADLIGHTS) 
The low-beam headlights used as daytime running lights will be activated with the following 
measures: 

• Ignition switch is turned on. 
• Parking brake is released. 

These lights will be deactivated with any one of the following measures: 

• Headlight switch is turned on. 
• High-beam flash is turned on. 
• Parking brake is set.   

HEADLIGHT FLASHER 
The high beam headlights will flash alternately between the left and right side. 

There will be a switch installed in the cab on the switch panel to control the high beam flash.  
This switch will be live when the battery switch and the emergency master switches are on. 

The flashing will automatically cancel when the hi-beam headlight switch is activated or when 
the parking brake is set. 

SIDE ZONE LOWER LIGHTING 
There will be six (6) Whelen®, Model M6*C, LED flashing warning lights with Model 
6EFLANGE, chrome flanges located in the following positions: 

• Two (2) lights, one (1) each side on the bumper extension 
o The side front lights to be red 

• Two (2) lights, one (1) each side of cab rearward of crew cab doors 
o The side middle lights to be amber 

• Two (2) lights, one (1) each side above rear wheels 
o The side rear lights to be red 

All six (6) lights will include a clear lens. 

There will be a switch located in the cab on the switch panel to control the lights. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 112 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 112 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 105 of 119 

INTERIOR CAB DOOR WARNING LIGHTS 
There will be four (4) Whelen, Model 50*00F*R, flashing LED lights with chrome trim provided. 

The lights will be installed per the following: 

• One (1) light will be installed on the driver's side cab door   
• One (1) light will be installed on the passenger's side cab door   
• One (1) light will be installed on the passenger's side crew cab door   
• One (1) light will be installed on the driver's side crew cab door 

The color of the lights will be red. 

Each light will be activated when the battery switch is on and the associated door is open. 

SIDE WARNING LIGHTS 
There will be two (2) Whelen, Model M6*C, LED flashing warning light(s) with chrome bezel(s) 
provided each side of the cab high on the cab side aft of the cab doors (aft of the other pair of 
M6 lights). 

The color of the lights will be amber. 

All of these lights will include a clear lens. 

These lights will be activated with the Side Zone Lower warning lights. 

Any white light will be deactivated and any amber light activated when the parking brake is 
applied. 

SIDE WARNING LIGHTS 
There will be two (2) Whelen, Model M6*C LED flashing warning light(s) with bezel(s) provided 
each side of the cab high on the cab side aft of the cab doors (forward of the other pair of M6 
lights). 

The color of the lights will be blue. 

All of these lights will include a clear lens. 

These lights will be activated with the Side Zone Lower warning lights. 

SIDE WARNING LIGHTS 
There will be two (2) Whelen, Model M6*C LED flashing warning light(s) with bezel(s) provided 
in the upper rear corners of the crew cab. 

The color of the lights will be red. 

All of these lights will include a clear lens. 

These lights will be activated with the Side Zone Lower warning lights. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 113 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 113 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 106 of 119 

REAR ZONE LOWER LIGHTING 
There will be two (2) Whelen®, Model M6*C, LED flashing warning lights located at the rear of 
the apparatus. 

• The driver's side rear light to be red 
• The passenger's side rear light to be red 

Both lights will include a lens that is clear. 

There will be a switch located in the cab on the switch panel to control the lights. 

REAR WARNING LIGHTS 
There will be two (2) Whelen®, Model M6*C, LED flashing warning light(s) with bezel(s) 
provided each side high on rear compartment bulkheads. 

The color of these light(s) will be blue. 

These light(s) will be controlled with the rear upper warning switch. 

These light(s) will include a lens that is clear. 

MOUNTING, RECESS LIGHT 
There will be one (1) pair of upper rear warning lights, on the rear bulkheads, recessed into the 
body.  The lights will be flush to the compartment sheet and will be installed high in the rear 
bulkhead. 

REAR UPPER ZONE WARNING LIGHTS 
There will be two (2) Whelen, Model MCFLED2* LED warning beacons provided at the rear of 
the truck, one (1) each side. 

The color of the lights will be: 

• The rear upper light(s) on the driver's side to be red. 
• The rear upper light(s) on the passenger's side to be red. 

All lenses will be clear. 

There will be a switch located in the cab on the switch panel to control the beacons. 

The rear warning lights will be mounted on stainless steel brackets with all wiring totally 
enclosed.  These brackets will also support the clearance/marker lights. 

TRAFFIC DIRECTING LIGHT 
There will be one (1) Whelen model TAL85 46.81" long x 2.84" high x 2.24" deep, amber LED 
traffic directing light installed at the rear of the apparatus. 

The Whelen model TACTLD1 control head will be included with this installation. 

The auxiliary warning mode will be activated with the emergency master switch. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 114 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 114 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 107 of 119 

This traffic directing light will be recessed with a stainless steel trim plate at the rear of the 
apparatus as high as practical. 

The traffic directing light control head will be located in the driver side overhead switch panel in 
the right panel position. 

LIGHT TOWER 
There will be one (1) Will-Burt, Model NS2.3-600 WHL light tower provided. 

There will be four (4) Whelen Model PCP2, 150 watt 12 volt DC light heads included on this 
tower. 

This tower will be connected to the Do Not Move Truck Indicator in the cab. 

The lights on this tower may be load managed when the parking brake is applied. 

This light tower will be raised using the chassis air in place of an air compressor included in the 
base of the tower. 

LIGHT TOWER LOCATION 
The light tower will be installed on the crew cab roof. 

LIGHT TOWER CONTROLLER 
There will be one (1) handheld wired controller included. 

LOCATION FOR THE LIGHT TOWER CONTROLLER 
The light tower controller will be installed in the driver's side front body compartment. 

AIRPORT LIGHT 
There will be one (1) Whelen, Model L41AP, beacon(s) with amber LEDs and amber lens.  The 
light(s) will be installed on the forward portion of the raised crew cab roof centered side to side. 

The light(s) will be used for FAA amber requirement for airport operation, and may not be 
operated off airport grounds. 

The light(s) will be activated by a separate switch labeled "AIRPORT LIGHT". 

120 VOLT RECEPTACLE 
There will be two (2), 20 amp 120 volt AC three (3) wire straight blade duplex GFCI 
receptacle(s) with interior plate(s) installed behind officer seat in cab and one mid height of the 
aft wall (inboard of the ladder rack actuator box) in the P1 compartment.  The NEMA 
configuration for the receptacles will be 5-20R. 

The receptacle(s) will be powered from the shoreline inlet. 

There will be a label installed near the receptacle(s) that state the following: 

• Line Voltage   
• Current Ratting (amps)   

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 115 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 115 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 108 of 119 

• Phase   
• Frequency   
• Power Source 

LOOSE EQUIPMENT 
The following equipment will be furnished with the completed unit: 

- One (1) bag of chrome, stainless steel, or cadmium plated screws, nuts, bolts and washers, as 
used in the construction of the unit. 

LADDER HOOK EXTENSION 
There will be four (4) Yates Model 324C ladder hook extension strap with aluminum ends 
provided in loose equipment. 

NFPA REQUIRED LOOSE EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
The following loose equipment as outlined in NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, section 5.9.3 and 5.9.4 
will be provided by, and installed by the fire department. 

• 800 ft. (60 m) of 2.50" (65 mm) or larger fire hose.   
• 400 ft. (120 m) of 1.50" (38 mm), 1.75" (45 mm), or 2.00" (52 mm) fire hose.   
• One (1) handline nozzle, 200 gpm (750 L/min) minimum.   
• Two (2) handline nozzles, 95 gpm (360 L/min) minimum.   
• One (1) smoothbore of combination nozzle with 2.50" shutoff that flows a minimum of 

250 gpm.   
• One (1) SCBA complying with NFPA 1981 for each assigned seating position, but not 

fewer than four (4), mounted in brackets fastened to the apparatus or stored in 
containers supplied by the SCBA manufacturer.   

• One (1) spare SCBA cylinder for each SCBA carried, each mounted in a bracket 
fastened to the apparatus or stored in a specially designed storage space(s).   

• One (1) first aid kit.   
• Four (4) combination spanner wrenches.   
• Two (2) hydrant wrenches.   
• One (1) double female 2.50" (65 mm) adapter with National Hose threads.   
• One (1) double male 2.50" (65 mm) adapter with National Hose threads.   
• One (1) rubber mallet, for use on suction hose connections.   
• Two (2) salvage covers each a minimum size of 12 ft. x 14 ft. (3.7 m x 4.3 m).   
• One (1) traffic vest for each seating position, each vest to comply with ANSI/ISEA 207, 

Standard for High Visibility Public Safety Vests, and have a five-point breakaway feature 
that includes two (2) at the shoulders, two (2) at the sides, and one (1) at the front.   

• Five (5) fluorescent orange traffic cones not less than 28.00" (711 mm) in height, each 
equipped with a 6.00" (152 mm) retro-reflective white band no more than 4.00" (152 mm) 
from the top of the cone, and an additional 4.00" (102 mm) retro-reflective white band 
2.00" (51 mm) below the 6.00" (152 mm) band.   

• Five (5) illuminated warning devices such as highway flares, unless the five (5) 
fluorescent orange traffic cones have illuminating capabilities.   

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 116 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 116 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 109 of 119 

• One (1) automatic external defibrillator (AED).  
• Four (4) ladder belts meeting the requirements of NFPA 1983, Standard on Fire Service 

Life Safety Rope and System Components (if equipped with an aerial device). 
• If the supply hose carried does not use sexless couplings, an additional double female 

adapter and double male adapter, sized to fit the supply hose carried, will be carried 
mounted in brackets fastened to the apparatus.   

• If none of the pump intakes are valved, a hose appliance that is equipped with one or 
more gated intakes with female swivel connection(s) compatible with the supply hose 
used on one side and a swivel connection with pump intake threads on the other side 
will be carried.  Any intake connection larger than 3.00" (75 mm) will include a pressure 
relief device that meets the requirements of 16.6.6.   

• If the apparatus does not have a 2.50" National Hose (NH) intake, an adapter from 2.50" 
NH female to a pump intake will be carried, mounted in a bracket fastened to the 
apparatus if not already mounted directly to the intake.   

• If the supply hose carried has other than 2.50" National Hose (NH) threads, adapters will 
be carried to allow feeding the supply hose from a 2.50" NH thread male discharge and 
to allow the hose to connect to a 2.50" NH female intake, mounted in brackets fastened 
to the apparatus if not already mounted directly to the discharge or intake.   

SOFT SUCTION HOSE 
There will be no soft suction hose provided. 

STRAINER PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, section 5.8.2.1.1 requires a suction strainer when suction hose is 
provided. 

The strainer is not on the apparatus as manufactured.  The fire department will provide the 
suction strainer. 

AXE MOUNTING 
There will be four (4) axes mounted by the apparatus manufacturer and installed shipped with 
the loose equipment. 

DRY CHEMICAL EXTINGUISHER PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, section 5.9.4 requires one (1) approved dry chemical portable fire 
extinguisher with a minimum 80-B:C rating mounted in a bracket fastened to the apparatus. 

The extinguisher is not on the apparatus as manufactured.  The fire department will provide and 
mount the extinguisher. 

WATER EXTINGUISHER PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, section 5.9.4 requires one (1) 2.5 gallon or larger water extinguisher 
mounted in a bracket fastened to the apparatus. 

The extinguisher is not on the apparatus as manufactured.  The fire department will provide and 
mount the extinguisher. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 117 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 117 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 110 of 119 

- Two (2) axes Nupla Flathead Axes Model FP-C-6-E:  Fiberglass handles and blade shields 

- Two (2) axes: Nupla Model 31686, fire axe(s) will be provided. 

PAINT - BODY PAINTED TO MATCH CAB 
The exterior custom cab and body painting procedure will consist of a seven (7) step finishing 
process as follows: 

1. Manual Surface Preparation - All exposed metal surfaces on the custom cab and body 
will be thoroughly cleaned and prepared for painting.  Imperfections on the exterior 
surfaces will be removed and sanded to a smooth finish.  Exterior seams will be sealed 
before painting.  Exterior surfaces that will not be painted include; chrome plating, 
polished stainless steel, anodized aluminum and bright aluminum treadplate.   

2. Chemical Cleaning and Pretreatment - All surfaces will be chemically cleaned to remove 
dirt, oil, grease, and metal oxides to ensure the subsequent coatings bond well.  The 
aluminum surfaces will be properly cleaned and treated using a high pressure, high 
temperature 4 step Acid Etch process.  The steel and stainless surfaces will be properly 
cleaned and treated using a high temperature 3 step process specifically designed for 
steel or stainless.  The chemical treatment converts the metal surface to a passive 
condition to help prevent corrosion.  A final pure water rinse will be applied to all metal 
surfaces.   

3. Surfacer Primer - The Surfacer Primer will be applied to a chemically treated metal 
surface to provide a strong corrosion protective basecoat.  A minimum thickness of 2 
mils of Surfacer Primer is applied to surfaces that require a Critical aesthetic finish.  The 
Surfacer Primer is a two-component high solids urethane that has excellent sanding 
properties and an extra smooth finish when sanded.   

4. Finish Sanding - The Surfacer Primer will be sanded with a fine grit abrasive to achieve 
an ultra-smooth finish.  This sanding process is critical to produce the smooth mirror like 
finish in the topcoat.   

5. Sealer Primer - The Sealer Primer is applied prior to the Basecoat in all areas that have 
not been previously primed with the Surfacer Primer.  The Sealer Primer is a two-
component high solids urethane that goes on smooth and provides excellent gloss hold 
out when topcoated.   

6. Basecoat Paint - Two coats of a high performance, two component high solids 
polyurethane basecoat will be applied.  The Basecoat will be applied to a thickness that 
will achieve the proper color match.  The Basecoat will be used in conjunction with a 
urethane clear coat to provide protection from the environment.   

7. Clear Coat - Two (2) coats of Clear Coat will be applied over the Basecoat color.  The 
Clear Coat is a two-component high solids urethane that provides superior gloss and 
durability to the exterior surfaces.  Lap style and roll-up doors will be Clear Coated to 
match the body.  Paint warranty for the roll-up doors will be provided by the roll-up door 
manufacture. 

 
Each batch of basecoat color is checked for a proper match before painting of the cab and the 
body.  After the cab and body are painted, the color is verified again to make sure that it 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 118 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 118 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 111 of 119 

matches the color standard.  Electronic color measuring equipment is used to compare the color 
sample to the color standard entered into the computer.  Color specifications are used to 
determine the color match.  A Delta E reading is used to determine a good color match within 
each family color. 

All removable items such as brackets, compartment doors, door hinges, and trim will be 
removed and separately if required, to ensure paint behind all mounted items.  Body assemblies 
that cannot be finish painted after assembly will be finish painted before assembly. 

Pierce Manufacturing paint finish quality levels for critical areas of the apparatus (cab front and 
sides, body sides and doors, and boom lettering panels) meet or exceed the Cadillac/General 
Motors GMW15777 global paint requirements.  Orange peel levels meet or exceed the #6 
A.C.T. standard in critical areas.  These requirements are met in order for the exterior paint 
finish to be considered acceptable. The Pierce Manufacturing written paint standards will be 
available upon request. 

The cab will be two-tone, with the upper section and a high shield design on the cab face 
painted # 101 Black Upper match high shield on previous job #26218.  The remaining lower 
section of the cab and body will be painted #106 Red Lower. 

PAINT - ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
Contractor will meet or exceed all current State regulations concerning paint operations.  
Pollution control will include measures to protect the atmosphere, water and soil.  Controls will 
include the following conditions: 

• Topcoats and primers will be chrome and lead free.  
• Metal treatment chemicals will be chrome free.  The wastewater generated in the metal 

treatment process will be treated on-site to remove any other heavy metals.  
• Particulate emission collection from sanding operations will have a 99.99% efficiency 

factor.  
• Particulate emissions from painting operations will be collected by a dry filter or water 

wash process.  If the dry filter is used, it will have an efficiency rating of 98.00%.  Water 
wash systems will be 99.97% efficient  

• Water from water wash booths will be reused.  Solids will be removed on a continual 
basis to keep the water clean.  

• Paint wastes are disposed of in an environmentally safe manner.  
• Empty metal paint containers will be to recover the metal.  
• Solvents used in clean-up operations will be recycled on-site or sent off-site for 

distillation and returned for reuse. 

Additionally, the finished apparatus will not be manufactured with or contain products that have 
ozone depleting substances.  Contractor will, upon demand, present evidence that the 
manufacturing facility meets the above conditions and that it is in compliance with his State EPA 
rules and regulations. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 119 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 119 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 112 of 119 

PAINT CHASSIS FRAME ASSEMBLY 
The chassis frame assembly will be painted black before the installation of the cab and body, 
and before installation of the engine and transmission assembly, air brake lines, electrical wire 
harnesses, etc. 

Components that are included with the chassis frame assembly that will be painted not e-coated 
are: 

• Frame rails  
• Cross members  
• Axles  
• Suspensions  
• Steering gear  
• Battery boxes  
• Bumper extension weldment  
• Frame extensions  
• Body mounting angles  
• Rear Body support substructure (front and rear)  
• Pump house substructure  
• Air tanks  
• Fuel tank  
• Castings  
• Individual piece parts used in chassis and body assembly 

Components treated with epoxy E-coat protection prior to paint: 

• Two (2) C-channel frame rails  

The E-coat process will meet the technical properties shown. 

COMPARTMENT INTERIOR PAINT 
The compartment interior will be painted with a gray spatter finish for ease of cleaning and to 
make it easier to touch up scratches and nicks. 

REFLECTIVE BAND 
A 10.00" black reflective band will be provided across the front of the vehicle and along the 
sides of the body. 

The reflective band provided on the cab face will be below the headlights on the fiberglass. 

REAR CHEVRON STRIPING 
There will be alternating chevron striping located on the rear-facing vertical surface of the 
apparatus.  The rear surface, excluding the rear compartment door, will be covered. 

The colors will be red and fluorescent yellow green diamond grade. 

Each stripe will be 6.00" in width. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 120 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 120 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 113 of 119 

This will meet the requirements of the current edition of NFPA 1901, which states that 50% of 
the rear surface will be covered with chevron striping. 

DIAMOND GRADE CHEVRON STRIPE ON HYDRAULIC LADDER RACK 
Diamond grade reflective striping will be applied to the rear facing hydraulic ladder rack pivot 
arm to increase visibility, and to match the rear of the unit. 

INVERTED "V" CHEVRON STRIPING ON CAB AND CREW CAB DOORS 
There will be alternating chevron striping located on the inside of each cab and crew cab door. 

The striping will consist of the following colors: 

The first color will be fluorescent yellow green diamond grade 

The second color will be red diamond grade 

The size of the striping will be 4.00". 

CAB STRIPE 
There will be a printed effect gold leaf stripe provided on both sides of the cab in place of the 
chrome molding and on the cab face with shield. 

LETTERING 
The lettering will be totally encapsulated between two (2) layers of clear vinyl. 

LETTERING 
Forty-one (41) to sixty (60) printed effect gold leaf lettering, 3.00" high, with outline and shade 
will be provided. 

LETTERING 
There will be reflective lettering, 12.00" high, with outline and shade provided.  There will be 
three (3) letters provided. 

LETTERING 
There will be reflective lettering, 2.00" high, with no outline or shade provided.  There will be 15 
letters provided. 

LETTERING 
There will be reflective lettering, 6.00" high, with outline provided.  There will be four (4) letters 
provided. 

LETTERING 
There will be reflective lettering, 24.00" high, with no outline or shade provided.  There will be 
one (1) letter provided. 

PAINTED PLATE(S) FOR LETTERING/NUMERALS 
There will be one (1) painted aluminum plate(s) provided for department lettering.  They will be 
mounted on the license plate bracket and will be match previous job 26218 in size. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 121 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 121 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 114 of 119 

EMBLEM 
There will be one (1) emblem/s showing a "Star of Life" and installed 9", on the P1 compartment 
to match previous job on the vehicle.  The emblem/s will be made with light blue reflective 
material.  The size will be approximately 8.00" high x 8.00" wide. 

MALTESE CROSS INSTALLATION 
There will be one (1) pair of Maltese crosses, comprised of printed effect gold leaf material, 
provided and installed Located on the crew cab doors, match previous job 26218. 

EMBLEM 
There will be two (2) reflective emblem(s), approximately 10.00" - 12.00" in size, installed 
Located on D1/P1.  the emblem will be modeled after the department submitted information (art, 
patch, etc.). 

FIRE APPARATUS PARTS CD MANUAL 
There will be two (2) custom parts manuals for the complete fire apparatus provided in CD 
format with the completed unit. 

The manuals will contain the following: 

• Job number 
• Part numbers with full descriptions 
• Table of contents 
• Parts section sorted in functional groups reflecting a major system, component, or 

assembly 
• Parts section sorted in alphabetical order 
• Instructions on how to locate parts 

The manuals will be specifically written for the chassis and body model being purchased.  It will 
not be a generic manual for a multitude of different chassis and bodies. 

SERVICE PARTS INTERNET SITE 
The service parts information included in these manuals are also available on the factory 
website.  The website offers additional functions and features not contained in this manual, such 
as digital photographs and line drawings of select items. The website also features electronic 
search tools to assist in locating parts quickly. 

CHASSIS SERVICE CD MANUALS 
There will be two (2) CD format chassis service manuals containing parts and service 
information on major components provided with the completed unit. 

The manual will contain the following sections: 

• Job number 
• Table of contents 
• Troubleshooting 
• Front Axle/Suspension 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 122 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 122 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 115 of 119 

• Brakes 
• EngineTires 
• Wheels 
• Cab 
• Electrical, DC 
• Air Systems 
• Plumbing 
• Appendix 

The manual will be specifically written for the chassis model being purchased.  It will not be a 
generic manual for a multitude of different chassis and bodies. 

CHASSIS OPERATION CD MANUALS 
There will be two (2) CD format chassis operation manuals provided. 

ONE (1) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP 
A Pierce basic apparatus limited warranty certificate, WA0008, is included with this proposal. 

THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP 
The Pierce custom chassis limited warranty certificate, WA0284, is included with this proposal. 

ENGINE WARRANTY 
A Detroit Diesel five (5) year limited engine warranty will be provided.  A limited warranty 
certificate, WA0180, is included with this proposal. 

STEERING GEAR WARRANTY 
A Sheppard three (3) year limited steering gear warranty will be provided.  A copy of the 
warranty certificate will be submitted with the bid package. 

FIFTY (50) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY 
The Pierce custom chassis frame and crossmembers limited warranty certificate, WA0038, is 
included with this proposal. 

FRONT AXLE THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY 
The Pierce TAK-4 suspension limited warranty certificate, WA0050, is included with this 
proposal. 

REAR AXLE TWO (2) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY 
A Meritor axle limited warranty certificate, WA0046, is included with this proposal. 

ABS BRAKE SYSTEM THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY 
A Meritor Wabco™ABS brake system limited warranty certificate, WA0232, is included with this 
proposal. 

TEN (10) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY 
The Pierce custom cab limited warranty certificate, WA0012, is included with this proposal. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 123 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 123 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 116 of 119 

TEN (10) YEAR PRO-RATED PAINT AND CORROSION 
A Pierce cab limited pro-rated paint warranty certificate, WA0055, is included with this proposal. 

FIVE (5) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP 
The Pierce Command Zone electronics limited warranty certificate, WA0014, is included with 
this proposal. 

CAMERA SYSTEM WARRANTY 
A Pierce fifty four (54) month warranty will be provided for the camera system. 

TRANSMISSION WARRANTY 
The transmission will have a five (5) year/unlimited mileage warranty covering 100 percent 
parts and labor.  The warranty will be provided by Allison Transmission. 

Note:  The transmission cooler is not covered under any extended warranty you may be getting 
on your Allison Transmission.  Please review your Allison Transmission warranty for coverage 
limitations. 

TRANSMISSION COOLER WARRANTY 
The transmission cooler will carry a five (5) year parts and labor warranty (exclusive to the 
transmission cooler).  In addition, a collateral damage warranty will also be in effect for the first 
three (3) years of the warranty coverage and will not exceed $10,000 per occurrence.  A copy of 
the warranty certificate will be submitted with the bid package. 

WATER TANK WARRANTY 
A UPF poly water tank limited warranty certificate, WA0195, is included with this proposal. 

TEN (10) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY 
The Pierce apparatus body limited warranty certificate, WA0009, is included with this proposal. 

ROLL UP DOOR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY 
A Gortite roll-up door limited warranty will be provided.  The mechanical components of the roll-
up door will be warranted against defects in material and workmanship for the lifetime of the 
vehicle.  A six (6) year limited warranty will be provided on painted and satin roll up doors. 

The limited warranty certificate, WA0190, is included with this proposal. 

PUMP WARRANTY 
A Waterous pump limited warranty certificate, WA0225, is included with this proposal. 

TEN (10) YEAR PUMP PLUMBING WARRANTY 
The Pierce apparatus plumbing limited warranty certificate, WA0035, is included with this 
proposal. 

FOAM SYSTEM WARRANTY 
The Husky 12 foam system limited warranty certificate, WA0231, is included with this proposal. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 124 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 124 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 117 of 119 

TEN (10) YEAR PRO-RATED PAINT AND CORROSION 
A Pierce body limited pro-rated paint warranty certificate, WA0057, is included with this 
proposal. 

THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP 
The Pierce Goldstar gold leaf lamination limited warranty limited warranty certificate, WA0018, 
is included with this proposal. 

VEHICLE STABILITY CERTIFICATION 
The fire apparatus manufacturer will provide a certification stating the apparatus complies with 
NFPA 1901, current edition, section 4.13, Vehicle Stability.  The certification will be provided at 
the time of bid. 

ENGINE INSTALLATION CERTIFICATION 
The fire apparatus manufacturer will provide a certification, along with a letter from the engine 
manufacturer stating they approve of the engine installation in the bidder's chassis.  The 
certification will be provided at the time of bid. 

POWER STEERING CERTIFICATION 
The fire apparatus manufacturer will provide a certification stating the power steering system as 
installed meets the requirements of the component supplier.  The certification will be provided at 
the time of bid. 

CAB INTEGRITY CERTIFICATION 
The fire apparatus manufacturer will provide a cab integrity certification with this proposal.  The 
certification will state that the cab has been tested and certified by an independent third-party 
test facility.  Testing events will be documented with photographs, real-time and high-speed 
video, vehicle accelerometers, cart accelerometers, and a laser speed trap.  The fire apparatus 
manufacturer will provide a state-licensed professional engineer to witness and certify all testing 
events.  Testing will meet or exceed the requirements below: 

• European Occupant Protection Standard ECE Regulation No.29. 
• SAE J2422 Cab Roof Strength Evaluation - Quasi-Static Loading Heavy Trucks. 
• SAE J2420 COE Frontal Strength Evaluation - Dynamic Loading Heavy Trucks. 

Roof Crush 
The cab will be subjected to a roof crush force of 22,050 lb.  This value meets the ECE 29 
criteria and is equivalent to the front axle rating up to a maximum of 10 metric tons. 

Additional Roof Crush 
The same cab will be subjected to a roof crush force of 100,000 lbs.  This value exceeds the 
ECE 29 criteria by nearly 4.5 times. 

Side Impact 
The same cab will be subjected to dynamic preload where a 13,275 lb. moving barrier slams 
into the side of the cab at 5.5 mph at a force of 13,000 ft.-lbs.  This test is part of the SAE J2422 
test procedure and more closely represents the forces a cab will see in a rollover incident. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 125 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 125 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 118 of 119 

Frontal Impact 
The same cab will withstand a frontal impact of 32,600 ft-lbs of force using a moving barrier in 
accordance with SAE J2420. 

Additional Frontal Impact 
The same cab will withstand a frontal impact of 65,200 ft-lbs of force using a moving barrier, 
(twice the force required by SAE J2420). 

The same cab will withstand all tests without any measurable intrusion into the survival space of 
the occupant area. 

CAB DOOR DURABILITY CERTIFICATION 
Robust cab doors help protect occupants.  Cab doors will survive a 200,000 cycle door slam 
test where the slamming force exceeds 20 G's of deceleration.  The bidder will certify that the 
sample doors similar to those provided on the apparatus have been tested and have met these 
criteria without structural damage, latch malfunction, or significant component wear. 

WINDSHIELD WIPER DURABILITY CERTIFICATION 
Visibility during inclement weather is essential to safe apparatus performance.  Windshield 
wipers will survive a 3 million cycle durability test in accordance with section 6.2 of SAE J198 
Windshield Wiper Systems - Trucks, Buses and Multipurpose Vehicles.  The bidder will certify 
that the wiper system design has been tested and that the wiper system has met these criteria. 

ELECTRIC WINDOW DURABILITY CERTIFICATION 
Cab window roll-up systems can cause maintenance problems if not designed for long service 
life.  The window regulator design will complete 30,000 complete up-down cycles and still 
function normally when finished.  The bidder will certify that sample doors and windows similar 
to those provided on the apparatus have been tested and have met these criteria without 
malfunction or significant component wear. 

SEAT BELT ANCHOR STRENGTH 
Seat belt attachment strength is regulated by Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards and 
should be validated through testing.  Each seat belt anchor design will withstand 3000 lb. of pull 
on both the lap and shoulder belt in accordance with FMVSS 571.210 Seat Belt Assembly 
Anchorages.  The bidder will certify that each anchor design was pull tested to the required 
force and met the appropriate criteria. 

SEAT MOUNTING STRENGTH 
Seat attachment strength is regulated by Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards and should be 
validated through testing.  Each seat mounting design will be tested to withstand 20 G's of force 
in accordance with FMVSS 571.207 Seating Systems.  The bidder will certify that each seat 
mount and cab structure design was pull tested to the required force and met the appropriate 
criteria. 

CAB DEFROSTER CERTIFICATION 
Visibility during inclement weather is essential to safe apparatus performance.  The defroster 
system will clear the required windshield zones in accordance with SAE J381 Windshield 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 126 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 126 of 220

DRAFT



Springfield, OR - Pierce Proposal 

One (1) Velocity Pumper NH603  Page 119 of 119 

Defrosting Systems Test Procedure And Performance Requirements - Trucks, Buses, And 
Multipurpose Vehicles.  The bidder will certify that the defrost system design has been tested in 
a cold chamber and passes the SAE J381 criteria. 

CAB HEATER CERTIFICATION 
Good cab heat performance and regulation provides a more effective working environment for 
personnel, whether in-transit, or at a scene.  The cab heaters will warm the cab 75 F from a 
cold-soak, within 30 minutes when tested using the coolant supply methods found in SAE J381.  
The bidder will certify that a substantially similar cab has been tested and has met these criteria. 

CAB AIR CONDITIONING PERFORMANCE CERTIFICATION 
Good cab air conditioning temperature and air flow performance keeps occupants comfortable, 
reduces humidity, and provides a climate for recuperation while at the scene.  The cab air 
conditioning system will cool the cab from a heat-soaked condition at 100 degrees Fahrenheit to 
an average of 67 degrees Fahrenheit in 30 minutes.  The bidder will certify that a substantially 
similar air conditioning system has been tested and has met these criteria.  The certification will 
be available at the time of delivery. 

AMP DRAW REPORT 
The bidder will provide, at the time of bid and delivery, an itemized print out of the expected amp 
draw of the entire vehicle's electrical system. 

The manufacturer of the apparatus will provide the following: 

• Documentation of the electrical system performance tests. 
• A written load analysis, which will include the following: 

o The nameplate rating of the alternator. 
o The alternator rating under the conditions specified per: 

 Applicable NFPA 1901 or 1906 (Current Edition). 
o The minimum continuous load of each component that is specified per: 

 Applicable NFPA 1901 or 1906 (Current Edition). 
o Additional loads that, when added to the minimum continuous load, determine 

the total connected load. 
o Each individual intermittent load. 

All of the above listed items will be provided by the bidder per the applicable NFPA 1901 or 
1906 (Current Edition). 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 127 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 127 of 220

DRAFT



Proposal Option List

Line Option Type Option Description Qty

1 0671399 Boiler Plates, Pumper 1
          Fire Department/Customer - City of Eugene Fire Department
          Operating/In conjunction W-Service Center - Operating
          Miles - 25 Miles
          Number of Fire Dept/Municipalities - 25
          Bidder/Sales Organization - Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc.
          Delivery - A DVD that is unigue to the delivered apparatus shall be 
provided with delivery of the truck to instruct personnel in the proper operation, 
care and maintenance of the apparatus.
          Dealership/Sales Organization, Service - Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc.

2 0661794 Single Source Compliance 1
3 0584456 Manufacture Location:  Appleton, Wisconsin 1
4 0584452 RFP Location:  Appleton, Wisconsin 1
5 0588609 Vehicle Destination, US 1
6 0610784 Comply NFPA 1901 Changes Effective Jan 1, 2016, With Exceptions 1
7 0533347 Pumper/Pumper with Aerial Device Fire Apparatus 1
8 0588611 Vehicle Certification, Pumper 1
9 0661778 Agency, Apparatus Certification, Pumper/Tanker, U.L. 1

10 0008036 Career/Paid Department 1
11 0000000 STF R & D FACILITY 1
11 0000000 STF WEBEX PRECONSTRUCTION 1
11 0000000 STF WEEKLY CONSTRUCTION PHOTOS 1
12 0537375 Unit of Measure, US Gallons 1
13 0030006 Bid Bond Not Requested 1
14 0582800 Performance Bond, 100 Percent w/25 Percent Warranty Bond, 1 Yr, and Payment 

Bond
1

15 0000007 Approval Drawing 1
16 0020039 Diagram, Three Sets of Std. Electrical Drawings 1
17 0667955 Drawing, Pump Operator's Panel, Match Previous Unit, Reference Only 1

          Fill in Blank - job 26218
18 0002928 Electrical Diagrams 1
19 0564202 Velocity Chassis (Big Block), 2010 1
20 0000110 Wheelbase 1

          Wheelbase - 184.50"
21 0000070 GVW Rating 1

          GVW rating - 49,800#
22 0000203 Frame Rails, 13.38 x 3.50 x .375, Qtm/AXT/Imp/Vel/DCF 1
23 0020018 Frame Liner Not Req'd 1
24 0508849 Axle, Front, Oshkosh TAK-4, Non Drive, 22,800 lb, Imp/Vel 1
25 0010427 Suspension, Front TAK-4, 22,800 lb, Qtm/AXT/Imp/Vel/DCF/Enf 1
26 0087572 Shock Absorbers, KONI, TAK-4, Qtm/AXT/Imp/Vel/DCF/Enf 1
27 0000322 Oil Seals, Front Axle 1
28 0594821 Tires, Front, Goodyear, G296 MSA, 425/65R22.50, 20 ply 1
29 0019618 Wheels, Front, Alcoa, 22.50" x 13.00", Aluminum, Hub Pilot 1
30 0530466 Axle, Rear, Meritor RS26-185, 27,000 lb, Imp/Vel/Dash CF 1
31 0544252 Top Speed of Vehicle, 67 MPH 1
32 0122075 Suspen, Rear, Standens, Spring, 27,000 lb, Imp/Vel/Dash CF 1
33 0000485 Oil Seals, Rear Axle 1
34 0627626 Tires, Rear, Goodyear, G751 MSA, 12R22.50, LRH, Single 1
35 0019625 Wheels, Rear, Alcoa, 22.50" x 8.25", Aluminum, Hub Pilot, Single 1
36 0568081 Tire Balancing, Counteract Beads 1

Customer: Springfield, Oregon Bid Number: 603
Representative Hendricks, Nick Job Number: 
Organization: Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc                        Number of Units: 1
Requirements Manager: Bid Date: 06-09-2016
Description: Pumper, Springfield, 2016 Stock Number: 
Body: Pumper, Med, Alum, 2nd Gen Price Level: 35 (Current: 35)
Chassis: Velocity Chassis (Big Block), 2010

2/11/2016

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page1603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 128 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 128 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

37 0545391 Tire Pressure Monitoring Valve Cap 1
          Qty, Tire Pressure Ind - 6

38 0003245 Axle Hub Covers w/center hole, S/S, Front Axle 1
39 0001960 Axle Hub Covers, Rear, S/S, High Hat (Pair) 1
40 0002000 Chains, Automatic Tire, ONSPOT, Custom 1
41 0057936 Covers, Lug Nut, Chrome 1
42 0002045 Mud Flaps, w/logo front & rear 1
43 0602478 Chocks, Wheel, Pumper, NFPA, Provided by Fire Department, NFPA 2016 1
44 0544690 Mounting Brackets, Chocks, Provided by Fire Department 1
45 0593760 ESC/ABS/ATC Wabco Brake System, Single Rear Axle, 2010 1
46 0030185 Brakes, Knorr/Bendix 17", Disc, Front, TAK-4 1
47 0509206 Brakes, Meritor, EX225, Disc Plus, Rear, Single Axle 1
48 0058463 Air Compressor, Brake, Bendix 15.8 CFM 1
49 0000785 Brake Reservoirs, Three 1
50 0568012 Air Dryer, Wabco System Saver 1200, Heater, 2010 1
51 0000790 Brake Lines, Nylon 1
52 0089419 Air Inlet, with Kussmaul Air Eject (Fill-In Blank Location) 1

          Location - in the driver's side exterior rear wall of the cab
          Qty, Air Coupling (s) - 1

53 0000860 Outlet, Air, with shut off valve 1
          Location, Air Coupling(s) - h) DS Pump Panel
          Qty, Air Coupling (s) - 1

54 0060852 Cover, Weatherproof, for Recessed Kussmaul Air Inlet 1
          Color, Kussmaul Cover - b) red

55 0000845 Air Tank, Additional for Extra Capacity 1
56 0000810 All Wheel Lock-up 1
57 0000820 Moisture Ejector, Automatic, w/Heat 4

          Qty, Auto. Moisture Eject - 4
          Location, Moisture Ejector - Wet Tank, Primary and Secondary and 
Additional Tank

58 0610849 Engine, DDC DD13, 505 hp, 1750 lb-ft, W/OBD, EPA 2016, Velocity 1
59 0001244 High Idle w/Electronic Engine, Custom 1
60 0590300 Engine Brake, Jacobs Compression Brake, DD13 1

          Switch, Engine Brake - f) DD13
61 0552334 Clutch, Fan, Air Actuated, Horton Drive Master 1
62 0515263 SP Engine Speed Limiter, 6-Speed Transmission Shifter 1
63 0657451 Heater, 1500 Watt Immersion, Thermostatically Controlled, Shoreline 1
64 0123135 Air Intake, w/Ember separator, Imp/Vel 1
65 0565965 Exhaust System, 5", 2010 DD13, ISX engine, Horizontal, Officer Side 1
66 0557543 Radiator, Impel/Velocity 1
67 0616439 Cooling Hoses, Gates Silicone 1
68 0001125 Fuel Tank, 65 Gallon, Left Side Fill 1
69 0001129 Lines, Fuel 1
70 0595087 DEF Tank, 4.5 Gallon, DS Fill, Forward of Rear Axle 1

          Door, Material & Finish, DEF Tank - Polished Stainless
71 0552777 Fuel Pump for Repriming 1
72 0552712 Not Required, Shutoff Valve, Fuel Line 1
73 0553019 Cooler, Engine Fuel, Imp/Vel, AXT/Qtm/Sab/DCF/SFR/Enf 1
74 0686758 Label, "Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel Fuel Only", Mounted On Outside Of Door 1
75 0690880 No Selection Required From This Category 1
76 0642533 Trans, Allison 5th Gen, 4500 EVS P, w/Prognostics, Imp/Vel/DCF/Enf 1
77 0512762 Transmission, Shifter, 6-Spd, Push Button, 4500, Imp/Vel/Qtm/DCF/Enf 1

          Trans, ratio - 4500 EVS, 6Spd
78 0684459 Transmission Oil Cooler, Modine, External 1
79 0001375 Driveline, Spicer 1810 1
80 0669988 Steering, Sheppard M110 w/Tilt, TAK-4, Eaton Pump, w/Cooler 1
81 0001544 Not Required, Steering Assist Cylinder on Front Axle 1
82 0509231 Steering Wheel, 4 Spoke with Controls 1
83 0550144 Logo/Emblem, on Horn Button 1

          Text, Row (1) One - CITY
          Text, Row (2) Two - OF

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page2603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 129 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 129 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

83           Text, Row (3) Three - EUGENE
84 0123625 Bumper, 19" Extended, Imp/Vel 1
85 0616492 Tray, Hose, Center, 19" Bumper, Outside Air Horns, Imp/Vel 1

          Grating, Bumper extension - Grating, Rubber
          Capacity, Bumper Tray - 19) 100' of 1.75"

86 0630809 Cover, Aluminum Treadplate, One (1) D-Ring Latch, Hose Tray, Notched 1
          Stay arm, Tray Cover - b) Pneumatic Stay Arm

87 0510226 Lift & Tow Package, Imp/Vel, AXT, Dash CF 1
88 0005739 Tow Eyes, Chrome, Chicago Style, Top of Deck 1
89 0668315 Cab, Velocity FR, 7010 Raised Roof 1
90 0668309 Engine Tunnel, ISL and DD13, Impel/Velocity FR 1
91 0677478 Rear Wall, Exterior, Cab, Aluminum Treadplate 1
92 0122466 Cab Lift, Elec/Hyd, w/Manual Override, Imp/Vel 1
93 0123176 Grille, Bright Finished, Front of Cab, Impel/Velocity 1
94 0002224 Scuffplates, S/S At Cab Door Jambs, 4-Door Cab 1

          Material Trim/Scuffplate - c) S/S, Polished
95 0511402 Scuffplate, Aluminum Treadplate, Top and Edge of Rear Facing Seat Risers 1
96 0509756 Bright Finished Housing, Headlights & Front Directional, Velocity 1
97 0015440 No Chrome Molding, On side of cab 1
98 0559132 Mirrors, Forward Mtd, Htd/Rmt, Pierce One-Eleven, LED Turn Signal 1

          Finish, Arm Cover - Chrome
          Finish, Mirror Head - Chrome

99 0667937 Door, Full Height, Velocity FR 4-Door Cab, Raised Roof 1
100 0655511 Door Panel, Brushed Stainless Steel, Impel/Velocity 4-Door Cab 1
101 0667905 Storage Pockets w/ Elastic Cover, Recessed, Impel/Velocity FR 1
102 0667902 Controls, Electric Windows, All Cab Doors, Impel/Velocity FR 1
103 0512419 Electric Door Locks, Cab Doors, Imp/Vel 1
104 0555485 Steps, 4-Door Full Tilt Cab, Std, Imp/Vel 1
105 0509649 Lights, Cab and Crew Cab Access Steps, P25, LED w/Bezel, 1 Light Per Step 1
106 0002140 Fenders, S/S on Cab 1
107 0586968 Handrail, Interior, Crew Cab Doors, Angled 1
108 0697329 Handrail, Extra - 21-30" Long 2

          Location - one each side on the rear trailing edge of the crew cab vertically 
mount to the outside edge.
          Qty, - 02

109 0592071 No Windows, Side of Crew Cab, Vel/Imp 1
110 0568605 Not Required, Interior Trim, No Cab Side Windows 1
111 0667980 Windows, (2), Front of Crew Cab, 10" Raised Roof, Impel/Velocity FR 1
112 0509287 Windows, Rear CC, (2)  8" x 14", Velocity 1
113 0553196 Trim, Cab Rear Windows, Velocity 1
114 0663375 Mounting Provisions, 1/4" Alum, Full Engine Tunnel, Vel/Imp 1

          Mounting Provision Spacing - .75"
          Material Finish, Cab Interior - Painted

115 0647586 Cab Interior, Turnout Tuff, Impel/Velocity FR 1
          Color, Cab Interior Vinyl/Fabric - c) Black

116 0667943 Cab Interior, Paint Color, Impel/Velocity FR 1
          Color, Cab Interior Paint - a) gray

117 0509532 Floor, Rubber Padded Cab & Crew Cab, Imp/Vel, Dash CF 1
118 0667936 Heater/defroster, Dual Zone Control, Impel/Velocity FR 1
119 0640885 Air Conditioning, Impel/Velocity FR, Dual Zone Control, Center Mt, Hinge Acc Pnl 1
120 0639675 Sun Visor, Smoked Lexan, AXT, Dash CF, Imp/Vel, Saber FR/Enforcer 1

          Sun Visor Retention - No Retention
121 0548173 Grab Handles, Driver and Passenger Door Post, Imp/Vel 1
122 0002526 Light, Engine Compt, All Custom Chassis 1
123 0122516 Fluid Check Access, Imp/Vel 1
124 0633918 SP Map Box, 5 Bin/30 Deg Slant, 3.00"W bins, PS Flat Front 1

          Location - mount to the engine cover mounting surface to match job 27546
125 0583039 Not Required, Side Roll and Frontal Impact Protection 1
126 0622618 Seating Capacity, 5 Seats 1
127 0697007 Seat, Driver, Pierce PS6, Premium, Air Ride, High Back 1
128 0696997 Seat, Officer, Pierce, PS6, Premium, Air Ride, High Back 1

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page3603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 130 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 130 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

129 0002517 Not Required, Radio Compartment 1
130 0624409 SP Cabinet, EMS, Rr Fcng, DS, 26.75W x 30H x 25.50D, Ext Acc Only, Rev Hng, Sp Mtg 1

          Light, Short EMS Compt - Pierce, Right Side
131 0102783 Not Required, Seat, Rr Facing C/C, Center 1
132 0624402 SP Cabinet, EMS, Rr Fcng, PS, 24.50W x 30H x 25.50D, Ext Acc Only, Rev Hng, Sp Mtg 1

          Light, Short EMS Compt - Pierce, Left Side
133 0108189 Not Required, Seat, Forward Facing C/C, DS Outboard 1
134 0123167 Seat, Forward Facing C/C, Center, (2) Pierce PS6, Premium, SCBA 1
135 0660820 Seat, Forward Facing C/C, PS Outboard, Pierce PS6, Base, 17"Btm, Hi-Back, Foldup 1
136 0651182 Scuffplate, Cabinet, Interior Door Pan, Cab 2

          Location - on the exterior cabinet access doors aft of the cab doors on 
each side of the body 
          Qty, - 02
          Material Trim/Scuffplate - b) S/S, Brushed

137 0617401 Matting, Turtle Tile, No Trim, EMS Compt 2
          Location - each rear facing EMS cabinet
          Qty, - 02
          Color - 1) black

138 0566653 Upholstery, Seats In Cab, Turnout Tuff 1
          Color, Cab Interior Vinyl/Fabric - c) Black

139 0543991 Bracket, Air Bottle, Hands-Free II, Cab Seats 2
          Qty, - 02

140 0603867 Seat Belt, ReadyReach 1
          Seat Belt Color - Red

141 0553393 Seat Belt Height Adjustment, Imp/Vel, Dash CF 5
          Qty, - 05

142 0602464 Helmet Storage, Provided by Fire Department, NFPA 2016 1
143 0647647 Lights, Dome, FRP Dual LED 4 Lts 1

          Color, Dome Lt - Red & White
          Color, Dome Lt Bzl - Grey
          Control, Dome Lt White - Door Switches and Lens Switch
          Control, Dome Lt Color - Lens Switch

144 0631779 Light, Map, Overhead, Round Halogen, AXT/Imp/Vel/Dash CF, Hawk EX 1
          12vdc power from - Battery switched

145 0647447 Light, Map, Sunnex HS741-20-RL-IP65 Series, Halogen, Gooseneck, Red Lens 1
          Location - on the right side of the cab dash near the A pillar
          Qty, - 01
          12vdc power from - Battery switched
          Control, Map Light - On/Off
          Gooseneck Exit, Map Light - Top

146 0555812 Handlights, (2) Streamlight, Fire Vulcan, 44451 C4 LED, Tail lights, 12v, Orange 1
          Location, lights - one each side of the cab under the forward facing 
outboard seats to match previous job 26218

147 0681751 SP Handlight, Streamlight, E- Flood LiteBox, 45805 LED, 12v Charger, Orange 2
          Qty, Lights - 02
          Location, lights - one each side of the cab under the forward facing 
outboard seats to match previous job 26218

148 0568369 Cab Instruments, Ivory Gauges, Chrome Bezels, Impel/Velocity 2010, Dash CF 1
149 0509511 Air Restriction Indicator, Imp/Vel, AXT, Dash CF, Enf MUX 1
150 0002600 Ammeter, Cab Instrument Panel 1
151 0681899 SP Light, Do Not Move Apparatus, Jameco 207993 Audo Buzzer, Location 1

          Alarm, Do Not Move Truck - Pulsing Alarm
          location - inside the center overhead A/C housing cover so that the sound 
will be directed throuugh the A/C housing louvers

152 0509042 Messages, Open Door/Do Not Move Truck, MUX w/Color Display 1
153 0611681 Switching, Cab, Membrane, Impel/Velocity/Quantum, Dash CF, AXT WiFi MUX 1

          Location, Emerg Sw Pnls - Driver's Side Overhead
154 0555915 Wiper Control, 2-Speed with Intermittent, MUX, Impel/Velocity 1
155 0665786 SP Wiring, Spare, 7.5A 12V DC, Bkr Near Termination, Shelf Track Brkt 2nd 1

          Location - on the upper inboard shelf track on the aft wall of the P1 
compartment

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page4603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 131 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 131 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

156 0665787 SP Wiring, Spare, 7.5A 12V DC, Bkr Near Termination, Shelf Track Brkt 1st 1
          Location - mid-height on the inboard shelf track on the forward wall of the 
P1 compartment

157 0548004 Wiring, Spare, 15 A 12V DC 1st 2
          Qty, - 02
          12vdc power from - Battery direct
          Wire termination - 15 amp power point plug
          Location, Spare Wiring - two forward of switch panel 9

158 0566101 Recess, Dash Panel, Officer Side, Vel/Imp 1
159 0615386 Vehicle Information Center, 7" Color Display, Touchscreen, MUX 1

          System Of Measurement - US Customary
160 0606249 Vehicle Data Recorder w/CZ and Overhead Display Seat Belt Monitor 1
161 0696439 Antenna Mount, Custom Chassis, Cable Routed to Instrument Panel Area 1

          Qty, - 01
          Location, Antenna Mount - centered behind the light bar

162 0653526 Camera, Pierce, Driver Mux, Rear Camera Only 1
          Camera System Audio - Not Provided

163 0511071 Guard, 4-Way, Rear Vision Camera 1
          Qty, - 01
          Location - match previous job 26218

164 0615100 Pierce Command Zone, Advanced Electronics & Control System, Diag LEDs, Vel, 
WiFi

1

165 0624254 Electrical System, Velocity 1
166 0079211 Batteries, (6) Exide Grp 31, 950 CCA each, Threaded Stud 1
167 0008621 Battery System, Single Start, All Custom Chassis 1
168 0123174 Battery Compartment, Imp/Vel 1
169 0579436 Charger, Sngl Sys, Kussmaul, 1200, 091-187-12-Remote, 40 Amp 1
170 0688318 Location, Charger, Behind Driver Seat, On the EMS Compt Vertical Wall 1
171 0531403 Location, Battery Charger Indicator, Driver's Seat with Bracket 1
172 0016857 Shoreline, 20A 120V, Kussmaul Auto Eject, 091-55-20-120, Super 1

          Qty, - 01
          Color, Kussmaul Cover - b) red
          Shoreline Connection - the 120 volt outlets in the cab, battery charger and 
engine heater

173 0582180 SP Shoreline Location 1
          Location 1 - on the driver's side exterior back wall of the cab to match 
previous jobs

174 0566294 Alternator, 430 amp, Niehoff C680-1 1
175 0645619 Charger Socket, Blue Sea 1016 Dual USB Type A 1

          Location - in the lower center console on switch panel #9
          Qty, - 1
          12vdc power from - Battery direct

176 0092582 Load Manager/Sequencer, MUX 1
          Enable/Disable Hi-Idle - d)High Idle disable

177 0613546 Headlights, Round LED, JW Speaker, 8630 Evolution, Polycarbonate Lens, Vel/Imp 1
178 0648425 Light, Directional, Whelen 600 LED Combination, Cab Corners, 

Imp/Vel/AXT/Qtm/DCF
1

          Color, Lens, LED's - m)match LED's
179 0648258 Light, Directional, Whelen M6T LED Arrow, 15 Degree Angle Bracket, Additional 2

          Location, lights - one each side on the back of the cab.
          Qty, - 02

180 0648074 Lights, Clearance/Marker/ID, Front, P25 LED 7 Lts 1
181 0620054 Light, Directional/Marker, Intermediate, Weldon 9186-8580-29 LED 2lts 1
182 0627282 Lights, Clearance/Marker/ID, Rear, FRP LED Bar & P25 LED 4Lts 1
183 0564683 Lights, Tail, Whelen M6BTT* Red LED Stop/Tail & M6T* Amber LED Dir Arw For Hsg 1

          Color, Lens - Clear
184 0561471 Lights, Backup, Whelen M6BUW, LED, For Tail Lt Housing 1
185 0664469 Bracket, License Plate & Light, Weldon 9186-23882-30 Incandescent 1
186 0556842 Bezels, Whelen, (2) M6 Chrome Pierce, For mtg (4) Whelen M6 lights 1
187 0650661 Light, Brake/Tail, Whelen 70BTT* LED Stop/Tail w/Flange 1

          Location - Center on the rear of the unit above the rear traffic directing light
          Qty, - 01
          Color, Lens - Colored

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page5603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 132 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 132 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

188 0589905 Alarm, Back-up Warning, PRECO 1040 1
189 0065911 Switch, Back-Up Alarm Override 1
190 0564535 Light, Marker, Britax Rubber Arm, Model L427.203.L12 LED, Red/Amb, Qty, Loc 1

          Location, lights - lower rear corners of the body match previous job #26218
          Qty, Lights (pair) - 1

191 0687604 Lights, Perimeter Cab, Truck-Lite 6060C LED 4Dr, Grommet Mt 1
192 0617866 Lights, Perimeter Pump House, Truck-Lite 6060C LED 2lts 1
193 0683575 Lights, Perimeter Body, Truck-Lite 6060C LED 2ts, Rear Step 1

          Control, Perimeter Lts - DS Switch Panel and Parking Brake Applied
          Control, Perimeter Lts - DS Switch Panel and Parking Brake Applied

194 0556360 Lights, Step, P25 LED 4lts, Pump Pnl Sw 1
195 0586888 Bracket, Alum. Trdplate, 12V Recessed Flood Lights, Compt Top, Each 4

          Location - two on each side of the body on top of the catwalks at the outer
edge to match previous job 28201
          Qty, - 04

196 0681919 SP Light, FRC, 12V SPA570-Q20* LED, Fixed Top Mount 3rd 1
          Location, lights - on the driver's side top of the hose bed side sheet, in the
same location as a similar light on their previous job 28201
          Qty, - 01
          Switch, Lt Control 1 DC,1 - a) DS Switch Panel
          Switch, Lt Control 2 DC,2 - g) PS Switch Panel
          Switch, Lt Control 3 DC,3 - c) DS Rear of Apparatus
          Switch, Lt Control 4 DC,4 - d) No Control
          Color, FRC/Rom Lt Housing - FRC, Black

197 0589768 Light, Whelen, 12V PFP1* Pioneer LED Floodlt, PBA103 Recessed 15 Deg 1st 2
          Qty, - 02
          Switch, Lt Control 1 DC,1 - a) DS Switch Panel
          Switch, Lt Control 2 DC,2 - g) PS Switch Panel
          Switch, Lt Control 3 DC,3 - d) No Control
          Switch, Lt Control 4 DC,4 - d) No Control
          Color, Wln Lt Housing - Black Paint
          Location, 12/24 Volt Lights - DS Body, Forward, 1lt and DS Body, 
Rearward, 1lt

198 0589761 Light, Whelen, 12V PFP1 Pioneer LED Floodlt, PBA103 Recessed 15 Deg 2nd 2
          Location, lights - PS Body, Forward, 1lt and PS Body, Rearward, 1lt.  
Match previous job 28201
          Qty, - 02
          Switch, Lt Control 1 DC,1 - a) DS Switch Panel
          Switch, Lt Control 2 DC,2 - g) PS Switch Panel
          Switch, Lt Control 3 DC,3 - d) No Control
          Switch, Lt Control 4 DC,4 - d) No Control
          Color, Wln Lt Housing - Black Paint

199 0689056 Light, FRC, 12V SPA570-Q20* LED, Fixed Top Mount 1st 1
          Location, lights - on the cab roof over the driver, match location of similar
lights as provided on previous units 28201
          Qty, - 01
          Switch, Lt Control 1 DC,1 - a) DS Switch Panel
          Switch, Lt Control 2 DC,2 - g) PS Switch Panel
          Switch, Lt Control 3 DC,3 - d) No Control
          Switch, Lt Control 4 DC,4 - d) No Control
          Color, FRC/Rom Lt Housing - FRC, Black Chrome Face

200 0686510 Light, FRC, 12V SPA570-Q20* LED, Fixed Top Mount 2nd 1
          Location, lights - on the cab roof over the passenger, match location of
similar lights as provided on previous units 26218
          Qty, - 01
          Switch, Lt Control 1 DC,1 - a) DS Switch Panel
          Switch, Lt Control 2 DC,2 - g) PS Switch Panel
          Switch, Lt Control 3 DC,3 - d) No Control
          Switch, Lt Control 4 DC,4 - d) No Control
          Color, FRC/Rom Lt Housing - FRC, Black Chrome Face

201 0618310 Light, Visor, FRC, 12V SPA851-Q20-*, LED 1st 1
          Qty, - 01
          Location, driver's/passenger's/center - centered
          Switch, Lt Control 1 DC,1 - a) DS Switch Panel

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page6603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 133 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 133 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

201           Switch, Lt Control 2 DC,2 - g) PS Switch Panel
          Switch, Lt Control 3 DC,3 - d) No Control
          Switch, Lt Control 4 DC,4 - d) No Control
          Color, FRC/Rom Lt Housing - FRC, Black Chrome Face

202 0532358 Not Required, Deck Lights, Other Hose Bed & Rear Lighting 1
203 0645878 Lights, Hose Bed, Cover, Dual Amdor AY-9750-20 LED Light Strips 4lts, Low 1

          Control, Hose Bed Lts - Auto Cover Sw
204 0645677 Lights, Not Required, Rear Work, Alt. 12 Volt Lights At Rear Body 1
205 0008322 Switch, Master, Clear or White Warning Lights, Forward Facing 1
206 0060115 Pumper, Med, Alum, 2nd Gen 1
207 0554271 Body Skirt Height, 20" 1
208 0028244 Tank, Water, 500 Gallon, Poly, Med 1
209 0003405 Overflow, 4" Water Tank, Poly 1
210 0028104 Foam Cell Required 1
211 0066438 Modified Poly Tank, Ea. Side, Hard Suction Hose 1
212 0553729 Not Required, Restraint, Water Tank, Heavy Duty 1
213 0003429 Not Required, Direct Tank Fill 1
214 0003424 (No Dump Valve required) 1
215 0048710 Jet Assist Not Req'd 1
216 0030007 (No Dump Chute Required) 1
217 0514778 Not Required, Switch, Tank Dump Master 1
218 0126633 Hose Bed, Aluminum, Pumper 1
219 0003482 Hose Bed Capacity, Additional 1

          Capacity, Hosebed - driver side side 300' of 2.5" preconnect, 800 feet of 
5.0" hose and 800 feet of 3.00" hose, passenger side 300' of 2.5" preconnect

220 0003488 Divider, Hose Bed, Unpainted 3
          Qty, Hosebed Dividers - 3

221 0624370 SP Compt, (1) Backboard, Vertical, Hose Bed, Side Sheet Mount, Treadplate, Angled 1
          Location, Backboard Comp - Passenger's Side
          Size, Backboard - 74" long x 18" wide x 3.0" thick

222 0515238 SP Storage Compt. Rear, Hose Bundle, Spec, 14Hx12Wx72L, w/ Removable Poly Tray 2
          Location - one each side of the body
          Qty, - 02

223 0010133 Cross-Divider, Hose Bed 1
224 0530804 Cover, Hose Bed, Alum Treadplate 1
225 0538045 Flap, Rear of Alum Hose Bed Cover, Vinyl, Paddle Seat Belt Buckles 1

          Color, Vinyl Cover - c) black
226 0013512 Running Boards, 12.75" Deep 1
227 0689615 Tailboard, T-Shaped, 24" & 8" Deep 1
228 0690037 Wall, Rear, Smooth Aluminum/Body Material 1

          Material, Rear Wall Inboard Facing Surfaces - Aluminum Diamondplate
229 0003547 Tow Bars, (2) w/Hitch Receiver 1

          Connection, Trailer - Trailer Electric Brakes
230 0003561 Construction, Compt, Alum, Pumper 1
231 0063610 DS 152" Lap, Full Height Front & Rear, FDLER 1
232 0063624 PS 152" Lap, Full Height Front & Rear, FDLER 1
233 0063911 Doors, Lap w/ "D" Handles - Side Compartments 1
234 0083700 Rear, Rollup, 37.75" FF 1
235 0692746 Doors, Gortite, Rollup, Rear Compartment 1

          Color,Gortite,Roll-upDoor - Satin finish
          Latch, Gortite, Roll-up - Non-locking Liftbar

236 0554995 No Body Modification Required 1
237 0003919 Reverse Hinge Compartment Door 1

          Qty, Door Accessory - 01
          Location, Door Accessory - driver side forward compartment door

238 0004010 Scuffplate, Polished S/S Bottom of Door Frame 6
          Location, Door Accessory - P1,P2, P3, D1, D2 & D3.
          Qty, Scuffplates - 06

239 0004012 Scuffplate, S/S, Inside Each Compt Door 6
          Qty, Door Accessory - 06
          Location, Door Accessory - P1, P3, D1 & D3

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page7603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 134 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 134 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

240 0659353 Lights, Compt, Amdor AY-9220 LED, Dual Light Strip 7
          Qty, - 07

241 0660886 SP Shelf Tracks, Painted  Full Height of the Compartment 5
          Qty, Shelf Track - 05
          location - floor to ceiling in the following compartments; R1, D1, D3, P1 
and P3

242 0687112 Shelves, Adjustable, 500 lb Capacity, Full Width/Depth, Painted 12
          Qty, Shelf - 12
          Location, Shelf - (1) D3 lower, (2) D3 Upper one at the depth change and 
the other as high as poss., (1) D2, (2) D1 Upper, (2) P3 Upper - one on the 
ladder rack cover, (1) P3 Lower notched around the ladder rack cover, (2) P1 
Upper - one on the ladder rack cover, (1) R

243 0647045 Tray, Floor Mounted, Slide-Out, Full Width/Full Depth, 500lb, 2.00" Sides, 2G 1
          Qty, - 01
          location - in the D1 compartment
          Material - paint to match compt interior

244 0006118 Matting, Dri-Deck w/Bevel, Compt Floor only 6
          Location - any compartment that does not have a floor mounted slide out 
tray
          Qty, Comp. Accessory - 06
          Color - 1) black

245 0028022 Matting, Dri-Deck Shelving Only 13
          Location - all shelves and trays
          Qty, Shelf - 13
          Color - 1) black

246 0003908 Partition, Trans Rear Compt 2
          Qty, Partition - 02
          Location, Partition - c) both sides

247 0027090 Tracks, Equipment Mounting, Horizontal 2
          Location - in the D2 and P2 over wheel compartments
          Qty, Shelf Track - 02

248 0004016 Rub Rail, Aluminum Extruded, Side of Body 1
249 0004024 Fender Crowns, Rear, S/S 1
250 0004069 Hose, Hard Suction, 6.00", 10.00', Clear Corrugated PVC 2

          Qty, Hard Suction Hose - 2
251 0004090 Troughs, (2), H.S.H., DS High Side 1

          Fill in Blank - 6" x 10' install the hose troughts between the PFP1 light 
mounting housings. If need be make the and the hose a true 10' length not the 
10' 6" with couplings (match previous job 26218)

252 0626229 Handrails, Side Pump Panels, Per Print 1
253 0004126 Handrails, Beavertail, Standard 1
254 0004146 Handrail, Rear, Below Hose Bed, Full Width 1
255 0681828 Handrail, Extra - 7" Long 1

          Location, Handrails - install on top of the treadplate light box at the front of 
the drivers side catwalk to meet NFPA for climbing up the front of the truck.
          Qty, Handrails - 01

256 0657651 Compt, Air Bottle, Double, Full Width Door, Fender Panel 2
          Qty, Air Bottle Comp - 2
          Door Finish, Fender Compt - Polished
          Location, Fender Compt - Double - DS Fwd and Double - PS Fwd
          Latch, Air Bottle Compt - Flush Lift & Turn
          Insert, Air Bottle Compt - Rubber Matting

257 0657524 Compt, Air Bottle, Single, Round, Fender Panel 2
          Qty, Air Bottle Comp - 2
          Door Finish, Fender Compt - Polished
          Location, Fender Compt - Single - DS Rear and Single - PS Rear
          Latch, Air Bottle Compt - Flush Lift & Turn
          Insert, Air Bottle Compt - Rubber Matting

258 0004225 Ladder, 24' Duo-Safety 900A 2-Section 1
259 0004230 Ladder, 14' Duo-Safety 775A Roof 1
260 0686437 SP Rack, Ladder, Hydraulic, Right Side, (3) Ladders, Air Clamps, Manual Override 1

          Ladder Rack Lock Enclosure/Light Mounting Bracket - Not Required
261 0014245 Ladder, Folding, 10' 585A, Duo-Safety, w/Mounting 1

          Location, Folding Ladder - b) Hyd Rack

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page8603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 135 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 135 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

262 0653608 Ladder, Little Giant, Revolution XE 12017 - Model 17 1
          Location - on the hydraulic ladder rack

263 0054356 SP Pole, Pike 4' Nupla, Fiberglass, I Beam, w/D Handle 2
          Location - shipped loose
          Qty, Pike Poles - 2

264 0069338 Pike Pole, 8' Nupla, Vent Hook, RH-8DA, w/D Handle 1
          Location - ladder rack to match previous job 26218
          Qty, Pike Poles - 1

265 0548193 Pike Pole, 8' Nupla, Fiberglass, I Beam, SPD-8 1
          Qty, Pike Poles - 1
          Location - in the passenger side compartment under the tank "T" punch a 
hole through the front of the compartment to allow the pike pole to be slid 30" 
forward. Seal the pole and the tube.

266 0551173 Pike Pole, 6' Fire Hooks Unlimited, Fiberglass, APH-6' 1
          Qty, - 1
          Location - in the driver's side compartment under the tank "T" move the 
tube in 5" and punch a hole through the front of the compartment 6" to allow the 
head to be slid fully into the compartment.

267 0591519 SP Tubes, Alum, Pike Pole Storage 2
          Location - one in each storage compartment under the tank "T" (match job 
28201
          Qty, Pike Pole Tubes - 02

268 0004360 Tulip Clip Holders For Pike Poles, Pierce Furnished Pike Poles 1
          Location - on the ladder rack for the D-ring vent hook (match 26218)

269 0004375 Bell, 12" Chrome w/Eagle 1
          Location, Acc. Misc. - b) passenger's side

270 0593072 Steps, Folding, Front of Body, w/LED, Trident 1
          Coating, Step - luminescent

271 0592994 Steps, Folding, Rear of Body, w/LED, Trident 1
          Coating, Step - luminescent

272 0592990 Step, Folding - Extra, Body Only, Luminescent w/LED, Trident 2
          Qty, Folding Step - 02
          Location, Additional Step - (1) on the driver's side front bulk head and (1) 
on the passenger side rear of body

273 0592989 Step, Folding, Driver's side back of cab, w/LED, Trident 2
          Qty, Folding Step - 02
          Coating, Step - luminescent

274 0592988 Step, Folding, Passenger side back of cab, w/LED, Trident 2
          Qty, Folding Step - 02
          Coating, Step - luminescent

275 0004470 Pump, Waterous, CMU, 2000 GPM, Two Stage 1
276 0004482 Seal, Mechanical, Waterous 1
277 0559769 Transmission, Pump, Waterous C20 Series 1
278 0669703 Pumping Mode, Not Required 1
279 0605126 Pump Shift, Air w/Manual Override, Split Shaft, Interlocked, Waterous 1
280 0003148 Transmission Lock-up, EVS 1
281 0004547 Auxiliary Cooling System 1
282 0004485 Transfer Valve, Electric, Waterous 1
283 0675496 Valve, Relief Intake, Trident Air Max, Set @ 125 PSI, Control Behind Pump Panel 1
284 0527225 Controller, Pressure, FRC, INCONTROL, TGA400, Control Knob 1
285 0072153 Primer, Trident, Air Prime, Air Operated 1
286 0044552 Line, .50"  Recirculating w/Check Valve 1
287 0058516 Manuals, Pump (2), CD 1
288 0602509 Plumbing, Stainless Steel and Hose, Two Stage Pump, Control Zone 1
289 0091470 Plumbing, Foam System w/Control Zone Pump House 1
290 0004645 Inlets, 6.00" - 1250 GPM or Larger Pump 1
291 0004646 Cap, Main Pump Inlet, Long Handle, NST, VLH 1
292 0014650 Short Suction Tube, Both Sides 1
293 0084610 Valves,  Akron 8000 series- All 1
294 0004660 Inlet, Left Side, 2.50" 1
295 0004680 Inlet, Right Side, 2.50" 1
296 0016158 Valve, Inlet(s) Recessed, Side Cntrl, "Control Zone" 2

          Qty, Inlets - 2
2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page9603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 136 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 136 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

297 0034720 Anode, Zinc, Pair, Pump Inlets 1
298 0004700 Control, Inlet, at Valve 1
299 0092569 No Rear Inlet (Large Dia) Requested 1
300 0092696 Not Required, Cap, Rear Inlet 1
301 0064116 No Rear Inlet Actuation Required 1
302 0009648 No Rear Intake Relief Valve Required on Rear Inlet 1
303 0092568 No Rear Auxiliary Inlet Requested 1
304 0563738 Valve, .75" Bleeder, Aux. Side Inlet, Swing Handle 1
305 0011555 SP Line, (1) 3.00" Waterous, Tank to Pump, w/Reverse Linkage 1
306 0004910 Outlet, 2.00" Tank Fill 1
307 0004940 Outlet, Left Side, 2.50" 2

          Qty, Discharges - 02
308 0092570 Not Required, Outlets, Left Side Additional 1
309 0004945 Outlet, Right Side, 2.50" 2

          Qty, Discharges - 02
310 0092571 Not Required, Outlets, Right Side Additional 1
311 0005047 Outlet, 4.00" w/4.00" Right, Handwheel 1

          Valve, Brand - Akron
312 0649939 Outlet, Front, 1.50" w/2.00" Plumbing 1

          Fitting, Outlet - 1.50" NST with 90 degree swivel
          Drain, Front Outlet - Class 1 Automatic
          Location, Front, Single - top of right bumper

313 0092575 Not Required, Outlet, Rear 1
314 0092574 Not Required, Outlet, Rear, Additional 1
315 0004990 Outlet, Front HB, 2.50" w/2.50" Plumbing 2

          Location - driver and passenger sides
          Qty, Discharges - 02

316 0085076 Caps for 1.50" to 3.00" Discharge, VLH 1
317 0563739 Valve, 0.75" Bleeder, Discharges, Swing Handle 1
318 0005091 Elbow, Left Side Outlets, 45 Degree, 2.50" FNST x 2.50" MNST, VLH 1
319 0035094 Not Required, Elbow, Left Side Outlets, Additional 1
320 0025091 Elbow, Right Side Outlets, 45 Degree, 2.50" FNST x 2.50" MNST, VLH 1
321 0089584 Not Required, Elbow, Right Side Outlets, Additional 1
322 0045099 Not Required, Elbow, Rear Outlets 1
323 0085695 Not Required, Elbow, Rear Outlets, Large, Additional 1
324 0028964 Elbow, Large Dia Outlet, 30 Deg, 4" FNST x 5" Storz w/5" Storz x 2.50" MNST 1
325 0062133 Control, Outlets, Manual, Pierce HW if applicable 1
326 0091106 Outlet, 3.00" Deluge w/TFT Extend-a-Gun XG18, Handwheel 1
327 0029302 No Monitor Requested 1
328 0029304 No Nozzle Req'd 1
329 0046857 Deluge Mount, For TFT Crossfire Monitor, TFT Manual Extend-A-Gun Only 1
330 0029167 Crosslays Sngl Sheet Unpainted, (2+) 1.50", Std. Cap 2

          Qty, Crosslays - 2
331 0029196 Not Required, 2.50" Crosslay 1
332 0029260 Not Required, Speedlays 1
333 0590942 Hose Restraint, Crosslay/Deadlay, 1" Heavy Nylon Web, Strap Fasteners, Each Side 2

          Qty, - 02
          Type of fastener - spring clip and hook
          Nylon Web Color - Black
          Restraint Location - Top (towards roof of truck)

334 0590877 Hose Restraint, Crosslay/Deadlay, Aluminum Treadplate, Top Only 1
          Stay arm, Tray Cover - f) Rubber Latch
          Restraint Location - Front (towards front of truck)

335 0005215 Reel, Booster, Over Pump, Driver's Side, Steel 1
          Finish, Reel - Painted Job Color

336 0005284 Switch, Reel Rewind - One at Reel, One Ea. Side 1
337 0005300 Hose, Booster - 150' of 1.00"/800 PSI 1
338 0017858 Capacity, Hose Reel 150' of 1" 1
339 0007428 Nozzle for Booster Reel Not Req'd 1
340 0622237 Roller Assembly, Additional 1

          Location - on the passenger's side

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page10603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 137 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 137 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

340           Qty, - 1
341 0095353 Foam Sys, Husky 12, Dual Agent 1

          Discharge - booster reel, front bumper discharge, both crosslays, and the 
2.5" discharges in the hose bed
          Amount of Disc. W/Foam - 6

342 0012126 Not Required, CAF Compressor 1
343 0552484 Refill, Foam Tank, Dual Tank, Husky 12 1
344 0031896 Demonstration, Foam System, Dealer Provided 1
345 0005446 Foam Cell, 20 Gallon, Not Reduce Water 1

          Type of Foam - Class "A"
346 0505016 Drain, 1.00", Foam Tank #1, Husky 12 Foam System 1
347 0091082 Foam Cell #2, 20 Gallon, Not Reduce 1

          Type of Foam - Class "B"
          Foam, Brand Name - Ansul AFFF 1%

348 0505017 Drain, 1.00", Foam Tank #2, Husky 12 Foam System 1
349 0007545 Pump House, Side Control, 45", Control Zone 1
350 0032479 Pump Panel Configuration, Control Zone 1
351 0629252 Material, Pump Panels, Side Control Black Vinyl 1

          Material Finish, Pump Panel, Side Control - Black Vinyl
          Material, Pump Panel, Side Control - Aluminum

352 0005578 Panel, Pump Access - Pass Side Only 1
353 0035501 Pump House Structure, Std Height 1
354 0005945 Light, Pump Compt 1
355 0586382 Engine Indicators, Included With Pressure Controller 1
356 0005601 Throttle Included w/ Pressure Controller 1
357 0015629 Indicator Lights @ Pump Panel, DLX/QX 1
358 0553643 Control, Air Horn at Pump Panel w/Red Switch 1
359 0005689 Gauges, 4.50" Master, Class 1, 30"-0-600psi 1
360 0005714 Gauge, 2.50" Pressure, Class 1, 0-400psi 1
361 0062586 Gauge, Water Level, Class 1, Pierce Std 1
362 0060753 Water Level Gauge, Whelen PSTANK, LED 1-Light, 4-Level 2

          Qty, - 02
          Activation, Water Level G - pg) pump in gear
          Location, Water Level Gauge - Each Side Custom Cab

363 0062988 Gauge, Foam Level, (2) Tanks, Class 1 1
364 0656224 Light Shield/Step 8", S/S Undr Crs,  LED w/P25 LED Step Light 1
365 0682498 Light Shield/Step 8", PS LED, P25 LED Stp Lt 1
366 0606694 Air Horns, (2) Hadley, 6" Round, In Bumper 1
367 0606835 Location, Air Horns, Bumper, Each Side, Outside Frame, Outboard (Pos #1 & #7) 1
368 0006064 Control, Air Horn, DS & PS Foot Sw 1
369 0005362 SP Switch, Air Horns, PS Footswitch Controlled, Emerg Master 1
370 0006133 Siren, Code 3 3692 100W or 200W 1
371 0510206 Location, Elect Siren, Recessed Overhead In Console 1

          Location, Elec Siren - Overhead, Above Eng Tunnel DS
372 0076157 Control, Elec Siren, Horn Ring 1
373 0550213 Speaker, Code 3 PB100C, Chrome 2

          Qty, Speakers - 2
          Connection, Speaker - siren head

374 0548457 Location, Recessed in the Front Bumper, Driver and Passenger Side 1
375 0016080 Siren, Federal Q2B 1
376 0006095 Siren, Mechanical, Mounted Above Deckplate 1

          Location, Siren, Mech - a) Left
377 0026163 Control, Mech Siren, DS & PS Foot Sw 1
378 0602190 SP Lightbar, Whelen, Freedom IV-Q, 92", RR__RWBR_Opt_RBWR__RR 1

          Opticom Priority - b) High
          Opticom Activation - E-Master
          Momentary Opticom Activation - No Activation
          Filter, Whl Freedom Ltbrs - No Filters

379 0549166 Light, Front Zone, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens, 4 Lts 1
          Flange Kit - w)with flange
          Color, Lt DS Frnt Outside - DS Front Outside Red
          Color, Lt PS Frnt Outside - PS Front Outside Red

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page11603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 138 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 138 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

379           Color, Lt DS Front Inside - b) DS Front Inside Blue
          Color, Lt PS Front Inside - b) PS Front Inside Blue

380 0558676 Daytime Running Lights, Headlights, Qtm, Vel/Imp, Enf/AXT-MUX, DCF (Low Beam) 1
381 0653937 Flasher, Headlight Alternating 1

          Headlt flash deactivation - a)w/high beam
382 0540692 Lights, Side Zone Lower, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens, 3pr, Ovr 25 1

          Location, Lights Frt Side - b)each side bumper
          Color, Lt Side Front - Red
          Color, Lt Side Middle - Amber
          Color, Lt Side Rear - Red
          Location, Lights Mid Side - Rearward of Crew Cab Doors
          Location, Lights Rear Side - Over Rear Wheels

383 0536680 Lights, Door Interior Flash, 4 Dr Cab, Whelen 50*00F*R LED, Switched Battery 1
          Color, Lights, Warning - gla) red
          Color, Lens, LED's - c)clear

384 0679341 Lights, Side, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens 2
          Location, lights - each side of the cab high on the cab side aft of the cab 
doors (forward of the other pair of M6 lights)
          Qty, - 02
          Color, Lights, Warning - d) blue

385 0599570 Lights, Side, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens, 2nd 2
          Location, lights - each side of the cab high on the cab side aft of the cab 
doors (aft of the other pair of M6 lights)
          Qty, - 02
          Color, Lights, Warning - c) amber

386 0540769 Lights, Side, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens, 1st 2
          Location, lights - in the upper rear corners of the crew cab
          Qty, - 02
          Color, Lights, Warning - gla) red

387 0564655 Lights, Rear Zone Lower, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens, For Tail Lt Housing 1
          Color, Lt DS Rear - r) DS Rear Lt Red
          Color, Lt PS Rear - r) PS Rear Lt Red

388 0540804 Lights, Rear, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens 2
          Color, Light - f) blue
          Location, Rear Lights - Rear compt bulkheads
          Qty, - 02
          Control, light - a) rear upper warning

389 0006700 Mounting, Lights, Recess In Rear Bulkhead (pair) 1
          Location - high in the rear bulkhead
          Qty, Lights, Pair - 1

390 0686562 Light, Rear Zone Upper, Whelen MCFLED2* LED 1
          Color, Lens, LED's - c)clear
          Color, Lt, Rer Up DS - r) DS Rear Upper Red
          Color, Lt, Rer Up PS - r) PS Upper Rear Red

391 0006551 Not Required, Lights, Rear Upper Zone Blocking 1
392 0016610 Mtg, Rear Warn Lts, Std Mount, S/S Brkts 1
393 0529685 Light, Traffic Directing, Whelen TAL85, 46.81" Long LED 1

          Activation, Traffic Dir L - Emergency Master
394 0551728 Location, Traf Dir Lt, Recessed with S/S Trim 1
395 0530282 Location, Traf Dir Lt Controller, Overhead Switch Panel DS Right End 1
396 0623519 SP Light Twr, W-B Chf NS2.3-600 WHL, 4-PCP2 12VDC Lts Cld 7.5', Chassis Air 1
397 0664472 Location, Light Tower, Crew Cab Roof 1
398 0617750 Controller, Light Tower, W-B, Wired Handheld, E-STOP Chf, Chf Pr, Pow Pr 1
399 0664791 Location, Light Tower Controller, Driver's Side Front Body Compartment 1
400 0609524 Light, Airport, Whelen L41AP LED, Amber Beacon 1

          Location - installed on the forward portion of the raised crew cab roof 
centered side to side
          Location, lights - installed on the forward portion of the raised crew cab 
roof centered side to side
          Qty, - 01

401 0036623 Receptacle, 20A 120V 3-Pr 3-Wr SB Dup, GFI, Interior, shoreline 2
          Location, Receptacles - behind officer seat in cab and one mid height of 
the aft wall (inboard of the ladder rack actuator box) in the P1 compartment
          Qty, - 02

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page12603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 139 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 139 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

402 0519934 Not Required, Brand, Hydraulic Tool System 1
403 0649753 Not Required, PTO Driven Hydraulic Tool System 1
404 0649736 Not Required, Hydraulic Tools 1
405 0007150 Bag of Nuts and Bolts 1

          Qty, Bag Nuts and Bolts - 1
406 0507144 SP Ladder Hook Extension Strap, Yates Model 324C with Aluminum Ends 4

          Qty, - 04
407 0602516 NFPA Required Loose Equipment, Pumper, NFPA 2016, Provided by Fire 

Department
1

408 0519913 Not Required, Soft Suction Hose 1
409 0602390 Strainer, Provided by Fire Department, Pumper NFPA 2016 Classification 1
410 0017150 Mounting, Axe 4

          Location, Axes - shipped with the loose equipment
          Qty, Axe,Mounted - 4

411 0602538 Extinguisher, Dry Chemical, Pumper NFPA 2016 Class, Provided by Fire Department 1
412 0602360 Extinguisher, 2.5 Gal. Pressurized Water, Pumper NFPA 2016,Provided by Fire Dept 1
413 0681779 SP Axe, Flathead w/FG Handle, Nupla Model FP-C-6-E 2

          Qty,  Axes - 02
414 0681794 SP Axes, Pick Head, Nupla, Model 31686 2

          Qty,  Axes - 02
415 0659957 Paint, Two Tone, Cab, w/ High Shield, Custom Cab, Vel/Imp 1

          Paint, Color - #106 Red Lower
          Paint Color, Upper Area - # 101 Black Upper match high shield on 
previous job #26218.

416 0646897 Paint Chassis Frame Assy, E-Coat, Standard 1
          Paint Color, Frame Assembly, Predefined - Black

417 0693797 No Paint Required, Aluminum Front Wheels 1
418 0693792 No Paint Required, Aluminum Rear Wheels 1
419 0007230 Compartment, Painted, Spatter Gray 1
420 0544111 Reflective Band, 10" 1

          Color, Reflect Band - A - e) black
421 0510041 Reflective across Cab Face, Imp/Vel 1
422 0536954 Stripe, Chevron, Rear, Diamond Grade, Pumper 1

          Color, Rear Chevron DG - fluorescent yellow green
423 0667281 Stripe, Reflective, Chevron, Hydraulic Ladder Rack Arm, Rear Only, Diamond Grade 1
424 0552453 Stripe, Reflective, Chevron, Cab and Crew Cab Doors Interior, Diamond Grade 1

          Color, Reflect Band - A - r) red diamond grade
          Size, Chevron Striping - 04
          Color, Reflect Chev - A - t) fluorescent yellow green diamond grade

425 0679810 Stripe, Printed Effect Gold Leaf, Two-Tone Paint Break with Shield, IPO Chrome 1
426 0027372 Lettering Specifications, (GOLD STAR Process) 1
427 0685690 Lettering, Printed Effect Gold Leaf, 3.00", (41-60) 1

          Outline, Lettering - Outline and Shade
428 0685058 Lettering, Reflective, 24.00", Each 1

          Qty, Lettering - 01
          Outline, Lettering - No Outline or Shade

429 0685985 Lettering, Reflective, 12.00", Each 3
          Qty, Lettering - 03
          Outline, Lettering - Outline and Shade

430 0686042 Lettering, Reflective, 2.00", Each 15
          Qty, Lettering - 15
          Outline, Lettering - No Outline or Shade

431 0686013 Lettering, Reflective, 6.00", Each 4
          Qty, Lettering - 04
          Outline, Lettering - Outline

432 0645076 Plate, Painted Alum. for Lettering/Numerals 1
          Location - on the license plate bracket
          Qty, - 1
          Size - match previous job 26218

433 0004986 Emblem, "Star of Life", 8", Reflective, Single 1
          Qty, - 1
          Location, Emblem - 9", on the P1 compartment to match previous job

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page13603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 140 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 140 of 220

DRAFT



Line Option Type Option Description Qty

433           Color, Reflective - k) light blue
434 0684220 Emblem, Maltese Cross, Printed Effect Gold Leaf, 15"-17", Pair 1

          Qty, - 01
          Location, Emblem - Located on the crew cab doors, match previous job 
26218

435 0695610 Emblem, Reflective, Per Dept. Submittal, Each 2
          Qty, - 02
          Location, Emblem - Located on D1/P1
          Size, Dept Seal, Reflect - 10" - 12"

436 0529225 Manuals, Two (2) CD, Fire Apparatus Parts, Custom Chassis 1
437 0531636 Manual, Two (2) CD, Chassis Service, Custom 1
438 0531638 Manual, Two (2) CD, Chassis Operation, Custom 1
439 0030008 Warranty, Basic, 1 Year, Apparatus, WA0008 1
440 0611136 Warranty, Chassis, 3 Year, Velocity/Impel, WA0284 1
441 0696696 Warranty, Engine, Detroit DD13, 5 Year, WA0180 1
442 0684953 Warranty, Steering Gear, Sheppard M110, 3 Year WA0201 1
443 0595767 Warranty, Frame, 50 Year, Velocity/Impel, Dash CF, WA0038 1
444 0595698 Warranty, Axle, 3 Year, TAK-4, WA0050 1
445 0530524 Warranty, Axle, 2 Year, Meritor, General Service, WA0046 1
446 0652758 Warranty, ABS Brake System, 3 Year, Meritor Wabco, WA0232 1
447 0019914 Warranty, Structure, 10 Year, Custom Cab, WA0012 1
448 0595813 Warranty, Paint, 10 Year, Cab, Pro-Rate, WA0055 1
449 0524627 Warranty, Electronics, 5 Year, MUX, WA0014 1
450 0695416 Warranty, Pierce Camera System, WA0188 1
451 0046369 Warranty, 5-year EVS Transmission, Standard Custom, WA0187 1
452 0685945 Warranty, Transmission Cooler, WA0216 1
453 0688798 Warranty, Water Tank, Lifetime, UPF, Poly Tank, WA0195 1
454 0596025 Warranty, Structure, 10 Year, Body, WA0009 1
455 0693127 Warranty, Gortite, Roll-up Door, 6 Year, WA0190 1
456 0063510 Warranty, Pump, Waterous, 5 Year Parts, WA0225 1
457 0648675 Warranty, 10 Year S/S Pumbing, WA0035 1
458 0657846 Warranty, Foam System, Husky 12, WA0231 1
459 0595820 Warranty, Paint, 10 Year, Body, Pro-Rate, WA0057 1
460 0595421 Warranty, Goldstar, 3 Year, Apparatus, WA0018 1
461 0683627 Certification, Vehicle Stability, CD0089 1
462 0647165 Certification, Engine Installation, Velocity, Detroit DD13, 2013, CD0115 1
463 0686786 Certification, Power Steering, CD0098 1
464 0667417 Certification, Cab Integrity, Velocity FR, CD0009 1
465 0548950 Certification, Cab Door Durability, Velocity/Impel, CD0001 1
466 0548967 Certification, Windshield Wiper Durability, Impel/Velocity, CD0005 1
467 0667411 Certification, Electric Window Durability, Velocity/Impel FR, CD0004 1
468 0549273 Certification, Seat Belt Anchors and Mounting, Imp/Vel/Vel SLT, CD0018 1
469 0667416 Certification, Cab Heater and Defroster, Velocity/Impel FR, CD0015 1
470 0667415 Certification, Cab Air Conditioning Performance, Velocity/Impel FR, CD0016 1
471 0545073 Amp Draw Report, NFPA Current Edition 1
472 0002758 Amp Draw, NFPA/ULC Radio Allowance 1
473 0000018 PUMPER, 2ND GEN 1
474 0000012 PIERCE CHASSIS 1
475 0562778 DD13 ENGINE 1
476 0046396 EVS 4000 Series TRANSMISSION 1
477 0020011 WATEROUS PUMP 1
478 0020009 POLY TANK 1
479 0028048 FOAM SYSTEM 1
480 0020006 SIDE CONTROL 1
481 0020007 AKRON VALVES 1
482 0020015 ABS SYSTEM 1
483 0658751 Manufacturing Attribute 1

2/11/2016 4:55 PM Page14603Bid #:

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 141 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 141 of 220

DRAFT



Option Description Type* Minimum 
Load

Intermittent 
Load

Total 
Connected

0000820 Moisture Ejector, Automatic, w/Heat                                             0.00 0.00 18.80
0001244 High Idle w/Electronic Engine, Custom                                           0.00 1.20 0.00
0002000 Chains, Automatic Tire, ONSPOT, Custom                                          0.00 1.50 0.00
0002526 Light, Engine Compt, All Custom Chassis                                         0.00 1.60 0.00
0002600 Ammeter, Cab Instrument Panel 0.00 0.00 0.16
0004485 Transfer Valve, Electric, Waterous                                              0.00 0.00 0.20
0005215 Reel, Booster, Over Pump, Driver's Side, Steel 0.00 36.00 0.00
0005945 Light, Pump Compt                                                               0.00 1.80 0.00
0006064 Control, Air Horn, DS & PS Foot Sw                                              0.00 0.83 0.00
0015629 Indicator Lights @ Pump Panel, DLX/QX 0.00 0.35 0.00
0016080 Siren, Federal Q2B                                                              0.00 100.00 0.00
0060753 Water Level Gauge, Whelen PSTANK, LED 1-Light, 4-Level                  

        
0.00 0.00 1.00

0062988 Gauge, Foam Level, (2) Tanks, Class 1 0.00 0.00 1.00
0072153 Primer, Trident, Air Prime, Air Operated                                        0.00 0.01 0.00
0079211 Batteries, (6) Exide Grp 31, 950 CCA each, Threaded Stud 0.00 3.00 0.00
0095353 Foam Sys, Husky 12, Dual Agent                                                  0.00 5.00 0.00
0122466 Cab Lift, Elec/Hyd, w/Manual Override, Imp/Vel                                  0.00 180.00 0.00
0540769 Lights, Side, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens, 1st                                  0.00 2.70 1.80
0540804 Lights, Rear, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens                                       0.00 1.35 0.90
0548004 Wiring, Spare, 15 A 12V DC 1st                                                  0.00 0.00 30.00
0552777 Fuel Pump for Repriming 0.00 6.00 0.00
0553643 Control, Air Horn at Pump Panel w/Red Switch                                    0.00 0.16 0.00
0555812 Handlights, (2) Streamlight, Fire Vulcan, 44451 C4 LED, Tail lights, 

12v, Orange
0.00 0.50 0.00

0559132 Mirrors, Forward Mtd, Htd/Rmt, Pierce One-Eleven, LED Turn Signal    
           

0.00 0.00 5.60
0561471 Lights, Backup, Whelen M6BUW, LED, For Tail Lt Housing                    

      
0.00 3.20 0.00

0564535 Light, Marker, Britax Rubber Arm, Model L427.203.L12 LED, 
Red/Amb, Qty, Loc     

0.00 0.00 2.00
0589761 Light, Whelen, 12V PFP1 Pioneer LED Floodlt, PBA103 Recessed 15 

Deg 2nd         
0.00 0.00 12.00

0589768 Light, Whelen, 12V PFP1* Pioneer LED Floodlt, PBA103 Recessed 15 
Deg 1st        

0.00 0.00 12.00
0589905 Alarm, Back-up Warning, PRECO 1040                                              0.00 0.50 0.00
0590300 Engine Brake, Jacobs Compression Brake, DD13                                   

 
0.00 0.42 0.00

0593760 ESC/ABS/ATC Wabco Brake System, Single Rear Axle, 2010               
           

0.00 6.00 0.00
0599570 Lights, Side, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens, 2nd                                  0.00 2.70 1.80
0618310 Light, Visor, FRC, 12V SPA851-Q20-*, LED 1st                                    0.00 0.00 18.00
0623519 Light Twr, W-B Chf NS2.3-600 WHL, 4-PCP2 12VDC Lts Cld 7.5', 

Chassis Air        
0.00 0.00 48.00

0631779 Light, Map, Overhead, Round Halogen, AXT/Imp/Vel/Dash CF, Hawk 
EX               

0.00 0.74 0.00
0645619 Charger Socket, Blue Sea 1016 Dual USB Type A                                  

 
0.00 0.00 3.00

0647447 Light, Map, Sunnex HS741-20-RL-IP65 Series, Halogen, Gooseneck, 
Red Lens        

0.00 0.00 1.57
0650661 Light, Brake/Tail, Whelen 70BTT* LED Stop/Tail w/Flange                     

    
0.00 0.85 0.00

0653526 Camera, Pierce, Driver Mux, Rear Camera Only                                    0.00 1.20 0.00
0653937 Flasher, Headlight Alternating                                                  0.00 0.00 0.08
0667902 Controls, Electric Windows, All Cab Doors, Impel/Velocity FR                

    
0.00 26.00 0.00

0679341 Lights, Side, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens                                       0.00 2.70 1.80
0681751 Handlight, Streamlight, E- Flood LiteBox, 45805 LED, 12v Charger, 

Orange        
0.00 1.00 0.00

0681899 Light, Do Not Move Apparatus, Jameco 207993 Audo Buzzer, 
Location               

0.00 2.00 0.00
0681919 Light, FRC, 12V SPA570-Q20* LED, Fixed Top Mount 3rd                     

       
0.00 0.00 18.00

0686510 Light, FRC, 12V SPA570-Q20* LED, Fixed Top Mount 2nd                    
        

0.00 0.00 18.00
0689056 Light, FRC, 12V SPA570-Q20* LED, Fixed Top Mount 1st                     

       
0.00 0.00 18.00

0640885 Air Conditioning, Impel/Velocity FR, Dual Zone Control, Center Mt, 
Hinge Acc Pnl

LM 0.00 0.00 96.50
0665786 Wiring, Spare, 7.5A 12V DC, Bkr Near Termination, Shelf Track Brkt 

2nd          
LM 0.00 0.00 7.50

0665787 Wiring, Spare, 7.5A 12V DC, Bkr Near Termination, Shelf Track Brkt 
1st          

LM 0.00 0.00 7.50

* UDMC = User Defined Mission Critical, LM = User Defined Load Managed, S = Electrical Amperage Supply

1

Electrical Analysis 2/11/2016

Bid #: 603

Pumper, Springfield, 2016 Sales Rep:

Organization:

Hendricks, Nick

Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc

Desc:

Job #:

Customer: Springfield, Oregon

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 142 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 142 of 220

DRAFT



Option Description Type* Minimum 
Load

Intermittent 
Load

Total 
Connected

0667936 Heater/defroster, Dual Zone Control, Impel/Velocity FR                          LM 0.00 0.00 12.10
0002758 Amp Draw, NFPA/ULC Radio Allowance                                              NFPA 5.00 0.00 0.00
0003547 Tow Bars, (2) w/Hitch Receiver                                                  NFPA 45.00 0.00 0.00
0006133 Siren, Code 3 3692 100W or 200W                                                 NFPA 1.40 12.60 0.00
0062586 Gauge, Water Level, Class 1, Pierce Std                                         NFPA 1.23 0.00 0.00
0063610 DS 152" Lap, Full Height Front & Rear, FDLER                                    NFPA 4.50 0.00 4.50
0063624 PS 152" Lap, Full Height Front & Rear, FDLER                                    NFPA 4.50 0.00 4.50
0083700 Rear, Rollup, 37.75" FF                                                         NFPA 0.90 0.00 0.90
0092582 Load Manager/Sequencer, MUX                                                     NFPA 0.56 0.56 0.00
0509649 Lights, Cab and Crew Cab Access Steps, P25, LED w/Bezel, 1 Light 

Per Step       
NFPA 1.00 0.00 0.00

0527225 Controller, Pressure, FRC, INCONTROL, TGA400, Control Knob           
           

NFPA 1.80 0.00 0.00
0529685 Light, Traffic Directing, Whelen TAL85, 46.81" Long LED                       

  
NFPA 2.08 0.00 0.00

0536680 Lights, Door Interior Flash, 4 Dr Cab, Whelen 50*00F*R LED, 
Switched Battery    

NFPA 1.60 2.40 0.00
0540692 Lights, Side Zone Lower, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens, 3pr, Ovr 25   

            
NFPA 3.60 5.40 0.00

0549166 Light, Front Zone, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens, 4 Lts                        
   

NFPA 1.80 5.40 1.80
0555915 Wiper Control, 2-Speed with Intermittent, MUX, Impel/Velocity               

    
NFPA 2.10 8.40 0.00

0556360 Lights, Step, P25 LED 4lts, Pump Pnl Sw                                         NFPA 1.00 0.00 0.00
0564655 Lights, Rear Zone Lower, Whelen M6*C LED, Clear Lens, For Tail Lt 

Housing       
NFPA 1.80 2.70 0.00

0564683 Lights, Tail, Whelen M6BTT* Red LED Stop/Tail & M6T* Amber LED 
Dir Arw For Hsg  

NFPA 0.83 2.49 0.00
0568012 Air Dryer, Wabco System Saver 1200, Heater, 2010                               

 
NFPA 7.81 0.00 0.00

0568369 Cab Instruments, Ivory Gauges, Chrome Bezels, Impel/Velocity 2010, 
Dash CF      

NFPA 1.26 0.00 0.00
0586382 Engine Indicators, Included With Pressure Controller                            NFPA 0.30 0.00 0.00
0595087 DEF Tank, 4.5 Gallon, DS Fill, Forward of Rear Axle                             NFPA 0.60 11.40 0.00
0602190 Lightbar, Whelen, Freedom IV-Q, 92", RR__RWBR_Opt_RBWR__RR  

                    
NFPA 6.48 2.68 7.44

0605126 Pump Shift, Air w/Manual Override, Split Shaft, Interlocked, Waterous   
        

NFPA 1.00 0.00 0.00
0609524 Light, Airport, Whelen L41AP LED, Amber Beacon                                 

 
NFPA 1.50 0.00 0.00

0610849 Engine, DDC DD13, 505 hp, 1750 lb-ft, W/OBD, EPA 2016, Velocity     
            

NFPA 6.00 0.00 0.00
0613546 Headlights, Round LED, JW Speaker, 8630 Evolution, Polycarbonate 

Lens, Vel/Imp  
NFPA 4.00 4.00 0.00

0615386 Vehicle Information Center, 7" Color Display, Touchscreen, MUX          
        

NFPA 1.20 0.00 0.00
0617866 Lights, Perimeter Pump House, Truck-Lite 6060C LED 2lts                    

     
NFPA 0.50 0.00 0.00

0620054 Light, Directional/Marker, Intermediate, Weldon 9186-8580-29 LED 
2lts           

NFPA 0.10 0.90 0.00
0624402 Cabinet, EMS, Rr Fcng, PS, 24.50W x 30H x 25.50D, Ext Acc Only, 

Rev Hng, Sp Mtg 
NFPA 1.50 0.00 1.50

0624409 Cabinet, EMS, Rr Fcng, DS, 26.75W x 30H x 25.50D, Ext Acc Only, 
Rev Hng, Sp Mtg 

NFPA 1.50 0.00 1.50
0627282 Lights, Clearance/Marker/ID, Rear, FRP LED Bar & P25 LED 4Lts        

           
NFPA 1.75 0.00 0.00

0642533 Trans, Allison 5th Gen, 4500 EVS P, w/Prognostics, Imp/Vel/DCF/Enf   
           

NFPA 2.00 2.00 0.00
0645878 Lights, Hose Bed, Cover, Dual Amdor AY-9750-20 LED Light Strips 

4lts, Low       
NFPA 3.40 0.00 0.00

0647647 Lights, Dome, FRP Dual LED 4 Lts                                                NFPA 0.80 0.80 0.00
0648074 Lights, Clearance/Marker/ID, Front, P25 LED 7 Lts                               NFPA 0.49 0.00 0.00
0648258 Light, Directional, Whelen M6T LED Arrow, 15 Degree Angle Bracket, 

Additional   
NFPA 3.60 5.40 0.00

0648425 Light, Directional, Whelen 600 LED Combination, Cab Corners, 
Imp/Vel/AXT/Qtm/DCF

NFPA 0.70 0.70 0.00
0656224 Light Shield/Step 8", S/S Undr Crs,  LED w/P25 LED Step Light             

      
NFPA 5.00 0.00 0.00

0664469 Bracket, License Plate & Light, Weldon 9186-23882-30 Incandescent   
            

NFPA 0.69 0.00 0.00
0668315 Cab, Velocity FR, 7010 Raised Roof                                              NFPA 6.80 10.20 0.00
0682498 Light Shield/Step 8", PS LED, P25 LED Stp Lt                                    NFPA 3.85 0.00 0.00
0683575 Lights, Perimeter Body, Truck-Lite 6060C LED 2ts, Rear Step               

      
NFPA 0.50 0.00 0.00

0686562 Light, Rear Zone Upper, Whelen MCFLED2* LED                                  
   

NFPA 3.00 0.00 0.00
0687604 Lights, Perimeter Cab, Truck-Lite 6060C LED 4Dr, Grommet Mt            

         
NFPA 2.00 0.00 0.00

0566294 Alternator, 430 amp, Niehoff C680-1                                             S 0.00 0.00 0.00
Load Totals: 149.03 467.34 359.45

* UDMC = User Defined Mission Critical, LM = User Defined Load Managed, S = Electrical Amperage Supply

2

Electrical Analysis 2/11/2016

Bid #: 603

Pumper, Springfield, 2016 Sales Rep:

Organization:

Hendricks, Nick

Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc

Desc:

Job #:

Customer: Springfield, Oregon

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 143 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 143 of 220

DRAFT



Minimum Continuous Load

Supply: 300.00

Demand: 149.03

Variance: 150.97

Total Connected Load

Supply: 401.00

Demand: 384.88

Variance: 16.12

Note: Minimum Continous Load is in "Blocking Right of Way" mode.(Reference current edition of NFPA 1901)
Note: Intermittent Load items are not factored in on any alternator load comparisons. These items are included on the report for reference 
only and should be looked at as amp draw exclusion items. (Reference current edition of NFPA 1901)
Note: Total Connected Load "Demand" represents Total Connected Load minus any Load Managed items

300.00 401.00Alternator Output at Idle: Alternator Output at Governed Speed:

* UDMC = User Defined Mission Critical, LM = User Defined Load Managed, S = Electrical Amperage Supply

3

Electrical Analysis 2/11/2016

Bid #: 603

Pumper, Springfield, 2016 Sales Rep:

Organization:

Hendricks, Nick

Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc

Desc:

Job #:

Customer: Springfield, Oregon

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 144 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 144 of 220

DRAFT



Turning Performance Analysis

Bid Number: 603 Chassis: Velocity Chassis (Big Block), 2010
Department: Springfield, Oregon Body: Pumper, Med, Alum, 2nd Gen

Parameters:

Inside Cramp Angle: 45°
Axle Track: 82.92 in.
Wheel Offset: 5.3 in.
Tread Width: 17.4 in.
Chassis Overhang: 78 in.
Additional Bumper Depth: 19 in.
Front Overhang: 97 in.
Wheelbase: 184.5 in.

Calculated Turning Radii:
Inside Turn: 14 ft. 3 in.
Curb to curb: 28 ft. 3 in.
Wall to wall: 33 ft. 2 in.

Comments:

Category Description: OptionID: Option Description:

Axle, Front, Custom 0508849 Axle, Front, Oshkosh TAK-4, Non Drive, 22,800 lb, Imp/Vel

Wheels, Front 0019618 Wheels, Front, Alcoa, 22.50" x 13.00", Aluminum, Hub Pilot

Tires, Front 0594821 Tires, Front, Goodyear, G296 MSA, 425/65R22.50, 20 ply

Bumpers 0123625 Bumper, 19" Extended, Imp/Vel

Notes:

Actual Inside cramp angle may be less due to highly specialized options.

Curb to Curb turning radius calculated for 9.00 inch curb.

02/11/2016ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 145 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 145 of 220

DRAFT



Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any) 
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part, 
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.

2/8/2010 WA0008

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL 
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

No specific exclusions apply

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

Limited Warranty
Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

One (1) Year Material and Workmanship
Basic Apparatus

Twelve (12) months.Warranty Period 
Ends After:

The date the apparatus is placed in service, or 60 days from 
the original buyer invoice date, whichever comes first.Warranty Begins: 

Portions of the apparatus manufactured by Pierce shall be 
free from defects in material and workmanship

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY 
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce 
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties, 
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated 
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other 
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 146 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 146 of 220

DRAFT



Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any) 
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part, 
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.

2/8/2010 WA0009

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL 
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This warranty applies only to the body tubular support and 
mounting structures and other structural components of the 
body of the vehicle model, as identified in the Pierce 
specifications for the Fire and Rescue Apparatus.

This warranty does not apply to damage caused by corrosion.

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

Limited Warranty
Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

Ten (10) Year Structural Integrity
Apparatus Body

Ten (10) Years
- or -
100,000 Miles

Warranty Period 
Ends After:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the 
product ships from the factory).Warranty Begins: 

The apparatus body shall be free from structural failures 
caused by defects in material and workmanship

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY 
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce 
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties, 
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated 
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other 
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 147 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 147 of 220

DRAFT



Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any) 
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part, 
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.

2/8/2010 WA0012

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL 
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This warranty applies only to the cab tubular support and 
mounting structures and other structural components of the 
cab of the vehicle model, as identified in the Pierce 
specifications for the Fire and Rescue Apparatus.

This warranty does not apply to damage caused by corrosion.

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

Limited Warranty
Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

Ten (10) Year Structural Integrity
Custom Cab

Ten (10) Years
- or -
100,000 Miles

Warranty Period 
Ends After:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the 
product ships from the factory).Warranty Begins: 

The Pierce Custom Cab shall be free from structural failures 
caused by defects in material and workmanship

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY 
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce 
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties, 
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated 
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other 
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 148 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 148 of 220

DRAFT



Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any) 
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part, 
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.

2/8/2010 WA0014

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL 
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This limited warranty applies to all of the control modules for 
the Command Zone system, including the full color graphic 
displays.  Related wire harnesses, cables and connectors are 
not covered under this limited warranty and are instead 
covered under the Pierce One Year Basic Apparatus Limited 
Warranty. 

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

Limited Warranty
Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

Five (5) Year Material and Workmanship
Command Zone Electronics

Five (5) YearsWarranty Period 
Ends After:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the 
product ships from the factory).Warranty Begins: 

Command Zone control modules shall be free from failures 
caused by defects in material and workmanship

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY 
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce 
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties, 
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated 
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other 
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 149 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 149 of 220

DRAFT



Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any) 
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part, 
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.

2/22/2010 WA0018

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL 
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This warranty does not cover damage from lack of 
maintenance and cleaning  (proper cleaning and maintenance 
procedures are detailed in the Pierce operation and 
maintenance manual).

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

Limited Warranty

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

Three (3) Year Material and Workmanship
Goldstar® Gold Leaf Lamination

Three (3) YearsWarranty Period 
Ends After:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the 
product ships from the factory).Warranty Begins: 

Each Goldstar® gold leaf lamination shall be free from 
defects in material and workmanship.

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY 
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce 
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties, 
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated 
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other 
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 150 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 150 of 220

DRAFT



Warranty Begins: 

Stainless steel piping shall be free from structural failures 
caused by defects in material and workmanship, or 
perforation caused by corrosion.

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

Ten (10) Years
- or -
100,000 Miles

Warranty Period 
Ends After:

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

Ten (10) Year Material and Workmanship
Stainless Steel Piping

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 

Limited Warranty
Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the 
product ships from the factory).

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

Pierce’s obligation under this warranty is limited to repairing 
or replacing without charge, as Pierce may elect, the 
stainless steel piping or components which Pierce 
determines to have failed due to defective material and 
workmanship, or perforation caused by corrosion.

This warranty does not cover the use of fluoroprotein (FP) 
type foam.  The sodium chloride within FP foam can cause 
long-term damage to system components if not thoroughly 
flushed immediately after use. 

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, Pierce specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury 
damages, penalties, damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or 
any associated equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay 
damages, any other types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any 
such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if 
any) or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any 
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the 
vehicle.3/22/2012 WA0035

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES 
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 151 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 151 of 220

DRAFT



4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY 
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce 
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties, 
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated 
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other 
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

Lifetime Fifty (50) Year Structural Integrity
Chassis Frame & Crossmembers

Fifty (50) Years
(Expected Life of Apparatus)

Warranty Period 
Ends After:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the 
product ships from the factory).Warranty Begins: 

Custom chassis frame rail and cross members manufactured 
by Pierce shall be free from defects in material and 
workmanship

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

Limited Warranty

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any) 
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part, 
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.

2/16/2010 WA0038

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL 
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This warranty does not apply to damage caused by corrosion.

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 152 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 152 of 220

DRAFT



This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This limited warranty excludes brake pads, brake rotors, seal 
boots and shock absorbers.

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, Pierce specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury 
damages, penalties, damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or 
any associated equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay 
damages, any other types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any 
such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

Three (3) Years
-or-
30,000 Miles

Warranty Period 
Ends After:

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if 
any) or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any 
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the 
vehicle.12/16/2013 WA0050

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES 
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus        

Coverage:

Three (3) Year Material and Workmanship

TAK-4 Independent Front Suspension

Limited WarrantyLimited WarrantyLimited WarrantyLimited Warranty
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

The TAK-4 Front Independent Suspension and Steering 
Gears shall be free from defects in material and 
workmanship.

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the 
product ships from the factory).

Warranty Begins: 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 153 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 153 of 220

DRAFT



4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY 
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce 
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties, 
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated 
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other 
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

Ten (10) Year Pro-Rated Paint and Corrosion
Cab

Ten (10) YearsWarranty Period 
Ends After:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the 
product ships from the factory).Warranty Begins: 

Exterior surfaces of the cab painted by Pierce shall be free 
from blistering, peeling, corrosion or any other adhesion 
defect caused by defective manufacturing methods or paint 
material selection.

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

Limited Warranty

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any) 
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part, 
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.

2/8/2010 WA0055

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL 
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This limited warranty is applicable to the vehicle in the 
following percentage costs of warranty repair, if any:

Topcoat Durability & Appearance: Gloss, Color Retention & 
Cracking
0-72 months  100%
73-96 months  50%
97-120 months  25%

Integrity of Coating System: Adhesion, Blistering/Bubbling
0-36 months  100%
37-84 months  50%
85-120 months  25%

Corrosion: Dissimilar Metal and Crevice
0-36 months  100%
37-48 months 50%
49-72 months 25%
73-120 months 10%

Corrosion Perforation
0-120 months  100%

This limited warranty applies only to exterior paint. Paint on 
the vehicle's interior is warranted only under the Pierce Basic 
One Year Limited Warranty.

Items not covered by this warranty include:
(a) Damage from lack of maintenance and cleaning  (proper 
cleaning and maintenance procedures are detailed in the 
Pierce operation and maintenance manual).
(b) UV paint fade.
(c) Any cab not manufactured by Pierce.

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 154 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 154 of 220

DRAFT



Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any) 
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part, 
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.

2/8/2010 WA0057

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL 
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This limited warranty is applicable to the vehicle in the 
following percentage costs of warranty repair, if any:

Topcoat Durability & Appearance: Gloss, Color Retention & 
Cracking
0-72 months  100%
73-96 months  50%
97-120 months  25%

Integrity of Coating System: Adhesion, Blistering/Bubbling
0-36 months  100%
37-84 months  50%
85-120 months  25%

Corrosion: Dissimilar Metal and Crevice
0-36 months  100%
37-48 months 50%
49-72 months 25%
73-120 months 10%

Corrosion Perforation
0-120 months  100%

This limited warranty applies only to exterior paint. Paint on 
the vehicle's interior is warranted only under the Pierce Basic 
One Year Limited Warranty.

Items not covered by this warranty include:
(a) Damage from lack of maintenance and cleaning  (proper 
cleaning and maintenance procedures are detailed in the 
Pierce operation and maintenance manual).
(b) UV paint fade.
(c) Any cab not manufactured by Pierce.

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

Limited Warranty
Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

Ten (10) Year Pro-Rated Paint and Corrosion
Custom Body

Ten (10) YearsWarranty Period 
Ends After:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the 
product ships from the factory).Warranty Begins: 

Exterior surfaces of the body shall be free from blistering, 
peeling, corrosion or any other adhesion defect caused by 
defective manufacturing methods or paint material selection.

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY 
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce 
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties, 
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated 
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other 
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 155 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 155 of 220

DRAFT



Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any) 
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part, 
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.

1/11/2011 WA0188

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL 
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This limited warranty does not apply to related wire 
harnesses, cables, and connectors, which are covered by the 
Pierce one (1) year basic apparatus limited warranty.

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

Limited Warranty
Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

54 Months Material and Workmanship
Camera System

Fifty - Four (54) monthsWarranty Period 
Ends After:

The date of delivery.Warranty Begins: 

This limited warranty covers repairs to correct any defect 
related to materials or workmanship of the Sharpvision 
camera system installed on the apparatus occuring during the
warranty period.

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY 
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce 
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties, 
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated 
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other 
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 156 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 156 of 220

DRAFT



Warranty Begins: 

The transmission cooler shall be free from component or 
structural failures caused by defects in material and/or 
workmanship.  Collateral damage up to $10,000 per 
occurrence is available for the first three (3) years.  

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

Five (5) Years on Oil Cooler and three (3) years on collateral 
damage coverage

Warranty Period 
Ends After:

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

Five (5) Year Material and Workmanship - Transmission Oil Cooler
Three (3) Year Collateral Damage Coverage

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 

Limited Warranty
Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

The date of delivery to the first retail purchaser.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This warranty does not cover repair due to accidents, 
misuse, and excessive vibration, flying debris, storage 
damage (freezing), negligence or modification.  This warranty 
is void if any modification or repairs are performed without 
authorization.  This also voids any future warranty.

This warranty does not cover cost of maintenance or repairs 
due to lack of required maintenance services as 
recommended.  Performance of the required maintenance 
and use of proper fluids are the responsibility of the owner.

Towing is covered to the nearest distributor or authorized 
dealer only when necessary to prevent further damage to 
your transmission.  

Labor costs for the removal and reinstallation of goods may 
be covered when necessary to make repairs.  Please contact 
your OEM for authorization.  

Replacement of cooler during the warranty period is limited 
to 100% of reasonable labor costs up to a maximum of $700 
to remove, replace, or repair the oil cooler.

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, Pierce specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury 
damages, penalties, damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or 
any associated equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay 
damages, any other types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any 
such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if 
any) or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any 
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the 
vehicle.2/22/2012 WA0216

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES 
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 157 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 157 of 220

DRAFT



This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This warranty does not cover repair due to accidents, 
misuse, and excessive vibration, flying debris, storage 
damage (freezing), negligence or modification.  This warranty 
is void if any modification or repairs are performed without 
authorization.  This also voids any future warranty.

This warranty does not cover cost of maintenance or repairs 
due to lack of required maintenance services as 
recommended.  Performance of the required maintenance 
and use of proper fluids are the responsibility of the owner.

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, Pierce specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury 
damages, penalties, damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or 
any associated equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay 
damages, any other types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any 
such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

One (1) Year & Five (5) YearWarranty Period 
Ends After:

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if 
any) or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any 
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the 
vehicle.1/30/2013 WA0231

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES 
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus     

Coverage:

One (1) Year Material and Workmanship Foam System & Five (5) 
Year Material and Workmanship Control Head

Limited Warranty
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

Limited warranty 1 year parts and labor for for the foam 
system and 5 years parts and labor for the control head.

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the 
product ships from the factory).Warranty Begins: 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 158 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 158 of 220

DRAFT



                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus        

Coverage:

Three (3) Year Material and Workmanship

Meritor Wabco ABS Brake System

Limited Warranty
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

The Meritor Wabco ABS brake system shall be covered by 
Meritor Wabco as indicated in the attached Meritor Wabco 
warranty coverage description

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the 
product ships from the factory).

Warranty Begins: 

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

Three (3) Year
Warranty Period 
Ends After:

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

The exclusions listed in the attached Meritor Wabco warranty 
description shall apply.

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, Pierce specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury 
damages, penalties, damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or 
any associated equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay 
damages, any other types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any 
such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if 
any) or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any 
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the 
vehicle.2/25/2013 WA0232

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES 
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 159 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 159 of 220

DRAFT



WARRANTY / MODEL 

YEAR 2013 VEHICLES

MERITOR
®

 COMMERCIAL  VEH ICLE  SYSTEMS

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 160 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 160 of 220

DRAFT



WARRANTY INFORMATION CONTENTS

3

Linehaul ............................................................................................................. 4-5

General Service ................................................................................................... 6-7

Heavy Service ..................................................................................................... 8-9

Off-Highway Service ............................................................................................. 10

Terms and Conditions ........................................................................................... 11

How to Read Warranty Coverage

Number of Years  Mileage (in thousands) 
Unl=Unlimited 

P=Parts Only  
P&L=Parts & Labor

Models or components that are approved for use by Meritor’s vocational guidelines contained in Meritor Publication TP-9441 for axles, 
SP-8320 for trailer axles, which are not specifically listed, are warranted for one year, unlimited miles, parts only (1/Unl/P).

Effective Model Year 2013 Vehicles

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 161 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 161 of 220

DRAFT



HEAVY SERVICE WARRANTY INFORMATION

 Airport Rescue Fire (ARF)

 Airport Shuttle

 Asphalt Truck 

 Block Truck

  Bottom Dump Trailer  

Combination

 Cementing Vehicle

 City Bus

 Commercial Pick-Up

 Concrete Pumper

 Construction Material Hauler

 Crash Fire Rescue (CFR)

 Mixer

 Demolition

 Drill Rig

 Dump

 Emergency Service

 Equipment Hauling

 Flatbed Trailer Hauler

 Flatbed Truck

 Fracturing Truck 

 Front Loader

 Geophysical Exploration 

 Hopper Trailer Combinations 

 Landscaping Truck

 Liquid Waste Hauler

 Log Hauling 

 Lowboy

  Michigan Special Gravel Trains

 Michigan Special Log Hauler

  Michigan Special Steel Hauler

  Michigan Special Waste Vehicle

 Municipal Dump

  Rapid Intervention Vehicle (RIV)

 Rear Loader

 Recycling Truck

 Residential Pick-Up

 Rigging Truck 

 Roll-Off

 Scrap Truck

 Semi-End Dump

 Sewer/Septic Vacuum 

 Shuttle Bus

 Side Loader

 Snowplow/Snowblower 

 Steel Hauling

 Tanker

 Tank Truck

 Tractors with Pole Trailers

 Tractor/Trailer with Jeeps

 Transfer Dump

 Transfer Vehicle

 Transit Bus

 Trolley

 Utility Truck

 Winch Truck

HEAVY SERVICE VEHICLES

 Moderate mileage operation (less than 60,000 miles per year)

 On/Off road vocations (10% or more off-road)

 Moderate to frequent stops/starts (up to 10 stops per mile)

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty requires that the application of 
products be properly approved pursuant to OEM, Meritor, Meritor 
WABCO, and ZF engineering approvals. Refer to TP-9441 for axles, 
SP-8320 for trailer axles, and/or contact Meritor regarding specific 
application approval questions on any product line.

HEAVY SERVICE TYPICALLY IS

FD-965

FF-941

FF-942

FF-943

FF-944

FF-946

FF-961

FF-966

FF-967

FG-941

FG-943

FH-941

FH-945

FH-946

FL-941

FL-943

MFS-6-151A-N

MFS-6-153B

MFS-6-162B

MFS-6-162C

MFS-7-113C-N

MFS-7-153C-N

MFS-7-163C-N

MFS-8-113B-N

MFS-8-153B-N

MFS-8-163B-N

MFS-10-122A

MFS-10-143A-N

MFS-10-144A-N

MFS-12-143A-N

MFS-12-144A-N

MFS-12-155 

MFS-13-143A-N

MFS-13-144A-N

MFS-13-155 

MFS-14-143A-N

MFS-16-122A-N

MFS-16-143A-N

RF-16-145

MFS-18-133A-N

MFS-20-133A-N

RF-21-160

MX-10-120

MX-12-120

MX-14-120

MX-16-120

MX-17-140

MX-19-140

MX-21-140

MX-21-160

MX-23-160

MX-23-810

MS-10-113

RS-13-120

RS-15-120

MS-17-14X

RS-17-144/145/A

MS-19-14X

RS-19-144

MS-21-114

MS-21-14X

RS-21-145

RS-21-145/A

RS-21-160

RC-22-145

RC-23-160

RH-23-160

RS-23-160

RS-23-160

RC-23-161

RH-23-161

RS-23-161

RS-23-186/380

RC-23-162

RC-23-165

RS-24-160

RS-25-160

RH-26-185

MS-26-616

RS-26-185/380

MS-30-616

RH-30-185

RS-30-185/380

MS-35-380

RS-38-380

RC-25-160

RC-26-633

MT-58-616

71162

71163

FRONT DRIVE/NON-DRIVE STEER AXLES – 2/UNL/P&L

REAR DRIVE SINGLE AXLES – 2/UNL/P&L

15.5” HD Clutch1 1/100/P&L

15.5” TwinXTend 1/100/P&L

17” FreedomLine Clutch 1/100/P&L
1  Products with an in-service date prior to 11/01/02 warranted by Meritor Clutch 

Company.

RPL 92N RN MXL

CLUTCHES

DRIVELINES – 1/UNL/P&L

8

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 162 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 162 of 220

DRAFT



OFF-HIGHWAY SERVICE WARRANTY INFORMATION

 Load-On/Load-Off

 Port Tractor

 Rail Yard Spotter 

 Roll-On/Roll-Off

 Stevedoring Tractor

 Trailer Spotter 

 Yard Jockey 

 All-Terrain Crane

 Rough Terrain Crane

 Forestry

 Material Handling

 Specialized Heavy Haul

 Specialized Mining

 Excavator

 Compactor

 Fertilizer Spreader

 Snow Blower

 Mining

 Rail Car Mover

 Loader

 Tow Tractor

 Pushback Tractor

 Low mileage operation

 Low speed vehicle speed restriction

 Vehicles are not typically licensed for highway use

 Six (6) starts/stops per mile (typical)

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty requires that the application of products 
be properly approved pursuant to OEM, Meritor, Meritor WABCO, and ZF 
engineering approvals. Refer to TP-9441 for axles and/or contact Meritor 
regarding specific application approval questions on any product line.

MOR MOX MOC RPL RN MXL

MOR MOX MOC MOT

Cam P 3/Unl/P

Cam Q Plus™ 3/Unl/P&L

ASA 3/Unl/P

Hubs/Cast Drums and Other Wheel-end Components 1/Unl/P

Hydraulic Disc Brakes 1/Unl/P

All Other Brakes 1/Unl/P

LX500 Feature1 1/Unl/P
1 Includes: bushing, seal, cam and ASA.
2 Based on stamped wear diameter max.

ABS (Anti-Lock Braking System) Air/Hydraulic 3/300/P&L

Air Dryers (ALL) 1/100/P&L

Leveling Valves 1/Unl/P&L

Air Brake Valves 1/100/P

Clutch Controls 2/200/P&L

Air Compressors2 1/100/P&L

Actuator 1/100/P&L
1 Warranted by Meritor WABCO Vehicle Control Systems.
2  WABCO compressors installed on Cummins, Mercedes, and DDC engines are not 

warranted or serviced by Meritor WABCO. Please contact your respective dealer/
distributor of those engines for warranty and servicing.

FF - 941

FF - 943

FF - 961

FF - 966

FG - 941

FG - 943

FL - 941

FL - 943

MFS-12-143A-N

MFS-12-144A-N

MFS-13-143A-N

MFS-13-144A-N

MFS-14-143A-N

MFS-16-122A-N

MFS-16-143A-N

MFS-18-133A-N

MFS-20-133A-N

MON-Z0 FAMILY

MT-44-14X/P

MT-52-616

MT-58-616

MT-70-380

RT-44-145/P

RT-46-160/P

RT-46-164EH/P

RT-50-160/P

RS-23-186

RS-23-380

RS-24-160

MS-30-616

RS-30-185

RS-30-380

MS-35-380

INDUSTRIAL AND OFF-HIGHWAY SERVICE VEHICLES

INDUSTRIAL AND OFF-HIGHWAY SERVICE TYPICALLY IS

DRIVE STEER AXLES – 1/UNL/P DRIVELINES – 1/UNL/P

PLANETARY AXLES – 1/UNL/P

BRAKE COMPONENTS

MERITOR WABCO COMPONENTS1

FRONT NON-DRIVE STEER AXLES – 1/UNL/P REAR DRIVE TANDEM AXLES – 1/UNL/P

REAR DRIVE SINGLE AXLES – 1/UNL/P

10

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 163 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 163 of 220

DRAFT



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

COVERAGE EXCLUSIONS: 

Product Description

All 
The cost of any repairs, replacements or adjustments to a covered 
component (1) associated with noise; (2) resulting from the use  
or installation of non-genuine Meritor components or materials; 
(3) due to vibration associated with improper operation or  
misapplication of drivetrain components; and (4) damage resulting 
from corrosion.

Front Axles 
King Pin Bushings.

Rear Axles 
Self-contained traction equalizers and oil filters. The use of 
NoSPIN differentials will result in the exclusion of axle shafts from 
warranty considerations. NoSPIN is a product of Eaton.

Clutch 
Friction face and mating surface of center and pressure plate,  
wear pads and clutch brake.

ASA 
Boot and bushing. Bent, broken, over-torqued, missing or  
otherwise damaged pawl assemblies.

ABS, Electronic Stability Control (ESC), Roll Stability 
Control (RSC) and OnGuard 
Cut, broken, chaffed or otherwise damaged cable wires. Damaged 
sensors from removal when seized in block, or sensor adjust-
ments/alignments. Valve failures due to contamination in air 
system. E.C.U. failures due to excessive over-voltage conditions.

Air Dryers 
Mounting brackets (see vehicle OEM). Desiccant cartridge  
housing only.

Air System Components 
Gladhand seals, dash valve knobs, valve actuation handles, 
treadles, pedals. Water and other contamination damage that is due 
to the use of a non-genuine air dryer cartridge will not be covered.

Cam Brake 
Brake lining wear and brake shoe “rust-jacking.”

Disc Brake 
Pad wear, rotor wear.

COVERAGE LIMITATIONS: 

Product Description

All 
Any claim beyond 60 days from date of repair will not be accepted 
or honored under this warranty program.

Front Axles 
Tie rod and tie rod ends limited to 3-year/300,000-mile or pub-
lished vocational coverage, whichever is less. Wheel seals, gaskets 
and wheel bearings are covered for 1 year/unlimited miles if the 
wheel end equipment is supplied and assembled by Meritor.

Rear Axles 
Pinion and through shaft seals limited to 3-year/300,000-mile 
or published vocational coverage, whichever is less, if yoke is 
installed by Meritor. If yoke is not installed by Meritor, then  
Meritor does not warrant pinion seals. Wheel seals, gaskets and 
wheel bearings are covered for 1 year/unlimited miles if the  
wheel end equipment is supplied and assembled by Meritor.

Rear Axles 
The Meritor® breather part number A-2297-C-8765 with  
A-3196-J-1336 hose must be used for eligibility of any potential  
warranty consideration relating to contamination and/or loss  
of lube in axles.

Cam Brake 
Limited to bracket, brake spider and camshaft structural integrity.

X30 
Wearable life is up to the discard diameter of the drum.

Disc Brake 
Warranty coverage for boots, seals, bushings and pins is 2/200/P. 
Warranty coverage for pads is 1/100/P.

Warranty coverage on vehicles with 1,850 lb-ft engine torque and 
over may be reduced on individual drivetrain components. Contact 
your Meritor representative for specific details.

11

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 164 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 164 of 220

DRAFT



Meritor Heavy Vehicle Systems, LLC
2135 West Maple Road

Troy, Michigan 48084 USA

For more information:

866-OnTrac1 (866-668-7221)

meritor.com

Vehicle models, brands and names depicted herein are the property of their respective owners, and are not in any way associated with Meritor, Inc., or its affiliates.

Litho in USA

©2012 Meritor, Inc.

SP-95155 Revised 06-12 (47865/11900)

TERMS AND CONDIT IONS

(1)  What is Covered by this Commercial Warranty?  
Meritor Inc. warrants to the owner (“Owner”) that the components 
listed in this publication, which have been installed by an Original 
Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) as original equipment in vehicles 
licensed for on-highway use, will be free from defects in material and 
workmanship. This warranty coverage begins only after the expiration 
of the OEM’s vehicle warranty for the applicable covered components. 
Warranty coverage ends at the expiration of the applicable time period 
from the date of vehicle purchase by the first Owner, or, the applicable 
mileage limitation, whichever occurs first. Duration of coverage  
varies by component and vocation as detailed elsewhere in this  
warranty statement.

  Some components are warranted for parts only and the Owner must 
pay any labor costs associated with the repair or replacement of the 
component. Other components are warranted for both parts and  
reasonable labor to repair or replace the subject component.  
Components (whether new, used or remanufactured) installed as 
replacements under this warranty are warranted only for the remainder 
of the original period of time or mileage under the original warranty.

  For certain components, coverage requires the use of specific  
extended drain interval or synthetic lubricants. For further information 
about lubrication and maintenance, see Meritor publication  
Maintenance Manual Number l and the applicable Meritor  
maintenance manual for the product in question. Other conditions  
and limitations applicable to this warranty are detailed below.

(2)  Designation of Vocational Use Required.  
To obtain warranty coverage, each Owner must notify Meritor through 
the OEM new truck and/or trailer dealer of the intended vocational  
use of the vehicle into which the Meritor components have been  
incorporated prior to the vehicle in-service date. This notification  
may be accomplished by registering the vehicle through your OEM 
new truck and/or trailer dealer or with Meritor directly. Failure to  
notify Meritor of (I) the intended vocational use of the vehicle or (II)  
a change in vocational use from that which was originally designated, 
will result in the application of a one year, unlimited mileage, parts 
only warranty (1/Unl/P) from the initial in-service date. 

  A second Owner and each subsequent Owner must also notify Meritor 
as to the intended vocational use of the vehicle. This notification can 
be sent directly to Meritor or through the OEM new truck and/or trailer 
dealer. The duration and mileage coverage of this warranty cannot 
exceed the coverage extended to the first Owner after his or her initial 
designation of vocational use.

   Coverage under Meritor’s warranty requires that the application of 
products be properly approved pursuant to OEM, Meritor, Meritor-
WABCO, and ZF engineering approvals. Refer to TP-9441 for axles, 
SP-8320 for trailer axles, and/or contact Meritor regarding specific 
application approval questions on any product line.

(3)  What is the Cost of this Warranty?  
There is no charge to the Owner for this warranty.

(4)  What is not Covered by this Warranty?  
This warranty does not cover normal wear and tear; nor does it cover 
a component that fails, malfunctions or is damaged as a result of (I) 
improper installation, adjustment, repair or modification (including 
the use of unauthorized attachments or changes or modification in 
the vehicle’s configuration, usage, or vocation from that which was 
originally approved by Meritor), (II) accident, natural disaster, abuse, 
or improper use (including loading beyond the specified maximum  
vehicle weight or altering engine power settings to exceed the  
transmission, axle, driveline, and/or clutch torque capacity), or 
(III) improper or insufficient maintenance (including deviation from 
approved lubricants, change intervals, or lube levels). This warranty 
does not cover any component or part that is not sold by Meritor.  
For vehicles that operate full or part time outside of the United States 
and Canada, a one year, unlimited mileage, parts only warranty  
(1/Unl/P) will apply. 

(5)  Remedy.  
The exclusive remedy under this warranty shall be the repair or 
replacement of the defective component at Meritor’s option. Meritor 
reserves the right to require that all applicable failed materials are 
available and/or returned to Meritor for review and evaluation.

(6) Disclaimer of Warranty. 
  THIS WARRANTY IS EXPRESSLY IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER  

WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESSED, IMPLIED OR  
STATUTORY INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF  
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

(7)  Limitation of Remedies.  
In no event shall Meritor be liable for special, incidental, indirect, or 
consequential damages of any kind or under any legal theory,  
including, but not limited to, towing, downtime, lost productivity, 
cargo damage, taxes, or any other losses or costs resulting from a 
defective covered component. 

(8)  To Obtain Service.  
If the Owner discovers within the applicable coverage period a defect 
in material or workmanship, the Owner must promptly give notice to 
either Meritor or the dealer from which the vehicle was purchased. To 
obtain service, the vehicle must be taken to any participating OEM new 
truck and/or trailer dealer or authorized Meritor service location. The 
dealer will inspect the vehicle and contact Meritor for an evaluation of 
the claim. When authorized by Meritor, the dealer will repair or replace 
during the term of this warranty any defective Meritor component 
covered by this warranty.

(9)  Entire Agreement.  
This is the entire agreement between Meritor and the Owner about 
warranty and no Meritor employee or dealer is authorized to make any 
additional warranty on behalf of Meritor. This agreement allocates the 
responsibilities for component failure between Meritor and the Owner.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 165 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 165 of 220

DRAFT



                      Fire and Rescue Apparatus        

Coverage:

Three (3) Year Material and Workmanship

Velocity and Impel Custom Chassis

Limited WarrantyLimited WarrantyLimited WarrantyLimited Warranty
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever 
as to:

Portions of the apparatus manufactured by Pierce shall be 
free from defects in material and workmanship

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by 
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic 
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural 
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides 
the following warranty to the Buyer:

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been 
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce 
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or 
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product 
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions, 
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts, 
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable 
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

The date the apparatus is placed in service, or 60 days from 
the original buyer invoice date, whichever comes first.

Warranty Begins: 

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance 
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is 
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the 
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer 
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days 
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period. 
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER 
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

This limited warranty applies, where applicable, to Goldstar 
lamination, defroster heater coil and motor blower assembly 
(excluding the FET PWM module), heater, air conditioning 
condenser coil and fan/motor assembly, air conditioning 
evaporator coil and motor blower assembly (excluding the 
drain pan pump and thermostat), under seat heaters coil and 
motor blower assembly (excluding the FET PWM module), 
HVAC electronic switches, HVAC hoses and hard lines, 
heater water valve, Pierce PS6 seat frames and hardware, 
Pierce One-Eleven mirrors, Pierce hands-free scba holder, 
cracking or color loss of roto-molded components, Meritor 
rear axle, Wabco ABS system, cab door handles, Standen 
spring suspension components, and the gauge instrument 
cluster. 

Conditions and 
Exclusions:

See Also
Paragraphs
2 thru 4

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and 
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW 
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY 
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS 
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, Pierce specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury 
damages, penalties, damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or 
any associated equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay 
damages, any other types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any 
such damages.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty 
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper 
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1, 
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At 
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by 
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such 
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation. 
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense) 
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a 
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE 
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced 
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light 
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies 
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

Three (3) Years, or
30,000 Miles, or
5000 Engine Hours

Warranty Period 
Ends After:

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited 
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for 
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if 
any) or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any 
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the 
vehicle.7/2/2015 WA0284

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES 
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES 
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is 
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service 
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical 
capability.  Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after 
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 166 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 166 of 220

DRAFT



2 6 0 0  A M E R I C A N  D R I V E  •  A P P L E T O N ,  W I   5 4 9 1 2 - 2 0 1 7  •  9 2 0 - 8 3 2 - 3 0 0 0  

 

P I E R C E  M A N U F A C T U R I N G  I N C .  

B U L L E T I N 
 
 
TO:  All Dealer Service Representatives 
 
From:  Kevin Hanegraaf  
   
DATE: January 4, 2010 
 

RE:  UPF Tank Warranty Policy – Truck in Accident 
 
   Service Topic #292 
 
 
To keep the UPF tank warranty valid on trucks that have been involved in a vehicular 
accident, it is UPF’s policy that the customer must remove the tank from the truck and 
send it back to one of UPF’s facilities for inspection.  In the event that this does not take 
place, the warranty will be considered null and void.   
 
The customer must remove and send the tank back to UPF for inspection in order to 
maintain the original warranty coverage, at which time it will be: 
  - Filled with water 
  - Visually inspected 
  - Ultraviolet spark tested on articulating test stand in the dark 
  - Recommendation for repairs if necessary provided by UPF 
  - Fully evaluated and repaired by UPF 
 
If your customer chooses to leave the tank on the truck and wants a technician to 
inspect and/or repair the tank in the field, then the warranty is no longer in effect.  
This direction is upheld by UPF because the technician cannot inspect the entire tank 
when it is still installed on the truck. 
 
 
  Note:  This memo is intended to relay the information Pierce has received 

on UPF’s tank warranty for trucks that are in a vehicular accident.  In the  
event of an actual claim, we direct you to consult with UPF’s  service  
Manager Maura Watts (800-638-8265 x253) 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 167 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 167 of 220

DRAFT



Limited Warranty on New Detroit Diesel
DD13 Engines

Used In Fire Truck or Crash Vehicle Applications

Terms of Coverage:
Uses
This warranty applies to the first retail purchaser and subsequent own-
ers during the WARRANTY PERIOD of new DD13 Engines (referred
to as Engine) manufactured by Detroit Diesel and/or supplied by
Detroit Diesel or Detroit Diesel of Canada Limited (which are collec-
tively referred to as Detroit Diesel) for use in fire truck or crash vehicle
applications.

Defects
This warranty covers Engine REPAIRS to correct any malfunction
occurring during the WARRANTY PERIOD resulting from defects in
material or workmanship.

Repairs
To obtain warranty repairs, you must request the needed repairs with-
in the WARRANTY PERIOD from an authorized Detroit Diesel service
outlet. Only new genuine parts, remanufactured parts or components
supplied or approved by Detroit Diesel will be used. Detroit Diesel may,
at its discretion, replace rather than repair components. A reasonable
time must be allowed to perform the warranty repair after taking the
engine to the authorized service outlet. Repairs will be performed dur-
ing normal business hours.
Warranty Period
The WARRANTY PERIOD begins on the date the Engine is delivered
to the first retail purchaser or put in use prior to sale at retail, whichev-
er date occurs first, and ends at the time or mileage/kilometer limits
shown below:

This Warranty Does Not Cover:
Repairs Due To Accidents, Misuse, Alteration, Storage
Damage, Negligence Or Certain Modifications
Repairs due to an accident, misuse, alteration, misapplication,
storage damage, negligence or modification exceeding Detroit Diesel
specifications, are not covered by this warranty.

Maintenance
Detroit Diesel is not responsible for the cost of maintenance or repairs
due to lack of performance of required maintenance services or the
failure to use fuel, oil, lubricants and coolant meeting Detroit Diesel-
recommended specifications. Performance of the required mainte-
nance and use of proper fuel, oil, lubricants and coolant are the
responsibility of the owner. See the Engine Operator’s Guide for full
details.

Incidental or Consequential Damages
Detroit Diesel is not responsible for incidental or consequential costs
or expenses which the owner may incur as a result of a malfunction
or failure covered by this warranty, such as communication expenses,
meals, lodging, overtime, loss of use of the Engine or vehicle (“down-
time”), loss of time, inconvenience, cargo loss or damage, and other
similar costs and expenses.

Other Limitations
The performance of REPAIRS is the exclusive Owner’s remedy under
this warranty. Detroit Diesel does not authorize any person to assume
or create for it any other obligation or liability in connection with the
Engine or the Accessories.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY AND THE EMISSIONS CONTROL WAR-
RANTY ARE THE ONLY WARRANTIES APPLICABLE TO THE
ENGINE AND ACCESSORIES AS USED IN FIRE TRUCK OR
CRASH VEHICLE APPLICATIONS. DETROIT DIESEL MAKES NO
OTHER WARRANTIES EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY
IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE. DETROIT DIESEL SHALL NOT BE
LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES
AS DESCRIBED ABOVE.
Some states do not allow the limitation of how long this warranty may
last or the limitation or exclusion of incidental or consequential dam-
ages, so the above may not apply to you. This warranty gives you spe-
cific legal rights, and you may also have other rights which may vary
from state to state.

Service Supplies
The cost of service supplies such as coolant, oil and filters which are
not reusable due to needed repairs is covered by this warranty.

Like Replacement Engine
Engine(s) supplied by Detroit Diesel as a replacement for an Engine
still under warranty will assume the identity of the Engine being
replaced and be entitled to the remaining warranty coverage.

Engine Removal and Reinstallation
Reasonable labor costs for engine removal and reinstallation, when
necessary to make a warranty repair, are covered by this warranty.

Towing
During the base warranty period reasonable towing costs to the near-
est authorized service outlet are covered by the warranty when due to
warrantable failure and the engine is either inoperable, cannot be
safely operated or continued operation would cause further damage
to the Product.

13400 Outer Drive, West / Detroit, Michigan 48239-4001
Telephone: 313-592-5000
www.detroitdiesel.com

DDC-WAR-PAR-0019-0609 Specifications are subject to change without notice. Detroit Diesel Corporation is registered to ISO9001:2001.
Copyright© 2008, Detroit Diesel Corporation. All rights reserved. Detroit Diesel Corporation is a Daimler company.

WARRANTY PERIOD

Item
Warranty Limitations

(Whichever Occurs First)
Repair Charge To Be

Paid By Owner

MONTHS MILES/KM PARTS LABOR

Engine 0-60 0-100,000 mi
0-160,000 km No Charge No Charge

Accessories* 0-24 0-100,000 mi
0-160,000 km No Charge No Charge

* Fire Commander warranty is two year/unlimited mileage.

DD13  Engines in Fire Trucks:DD66492_17SE200  6/24/2009  8:07 AM  Page 1

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 168 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 168 of 220

DRAFT



MERITOR® COMMERCIAL  
VEHICLE SYSTEMS 
WARRANTY/MODEL YEAR  2014 VEHICLES

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 169 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 169 of 220

DRAFT



Advantage Program

Purchasing additional coverage on select components will continue to safeguard your investment against major repair costs after the initial  
base coverage expires. You can find out more about the Advantage Program by visiting www.meritor.com or by contacting Meritor at  
866-OnTrac1 (866-668-7221).

SIMPLER IS BETTER

Warranty coverage is essential to protecting your investment. But understanding the  
full details of your coverage can be challenging. This straightforward approach allows 
you, our valued customer, to better understand how your specific vehicle applications 
will be covered.

2

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 170 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 170 of 220

DRAFT



3

Linehaul ............................................................................................................. 4-5

General Service ................................................................................................... 6-7

Heavy Service ...................................................................................................... 8-9

Off-Highway Service .............................................................................................. 10

Terms and Conditions ............................................................................................ 11

How to Read Warranty Coverage

Number of Years  Mileage (in thousands) 
Unl=Unlimited 

P=Parts Only  
P&L=Parts & Labor

Notice:

Models or components that are approved for use by Meritor’s vocational guidelines contained in Meritor Publication TP-9441 for axles, 
SP-8320 for trailer axles, TP-12126 for drivelines, which are not specifically listed, are warranted for one year, unlimited miles, parts 
only (1/Unl/P).

Products purchased on an incomplete vehicle (glider) are limited to one year, unlimited miles parts only (1/Unl/P).

Effective Model Year 2014 Vehicles

WARRANTY INFORMATION CONTENTS

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 171 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 171 of 220

DRAFT



n  Auto Hauler
n  Bulk Hauler
n  Chip Hauler (Truck)*
n  Doubles

n  Flatbed
n  General Freight
n  Grain Hauler
 

n  Livestock Hauler
n  Moving Van
n  Pipe Hauler
 

n  Refrigerated Freight
n  Tanker
n  Triples

FD-965
FF-941
FF-942
FF-943

FF-944
FF-961
FF-966
FF-967

FG-941
FG-943
MFS-10-122A
MFS-10-143A-N

MFS-10-144A-N
MFS-12-143A-N
MFS-12-144A-N
MFS-125-143A-N 

MFS-13-143A-N
MFS-13-144A-N
MFS-14-143A-N

n  High mileage operation (over 60,000 miles/year)
n  Well maintained major highways of concrete or  

asphalt construction
n  Greater than 30 miles between starting and stopping

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty requires that the application of products be  
properly approved pursuant to OEM and Meritor approvals. Refer to TP-9441 for 
axles, SP-8320 for trailer axles, TP-12126 for drivelines, and/or contact Meritor 
regarding specific application approval questions on any product line.

*  Chip Hauler vehicles require specific axle models listed below and Linehaul condition to be eligible for Linehaul warranty consideration.

Linehaul Vehicles

Front Non-Drive Steer Axles – 5/750/P&L

Linehaul Typically Is

RPL 4/400/P, 1/Unl/P&L
MXL 3/350/P, 1/Unl/P&L
155N 1/Unl/P
92N 1/Unl/P

Drivelines

RS-19-144/145/A
MS-19-14X
MS-21-144MA-N
RS-21-145

RS-21-160
RH-23-160 
RS-23-160
RH-23-161

RS-23-161
RS-23-186

Rear Drive Single Axles – 5/750/P&L

1  These models required for Chip Hauler and Linehaul warranty consideration.
2  Each vehicle must have a Request for Application Recommendation (RAR)  

approved by Meritor prior to vehicle build. All RARs must identify the chassis 
number or VIN. Refer to Product Information Letter #303 and #396 for  
further details.

RT-34-144/P/A
RT-40-145/P/A
RT-40-160/P1,2

RT-46-160/P1,2

RT-46-164EH/P1,2

RT-50-160/P1,2

MA-40-165 
MT-34-14X/P
MT-40-14X/P
MT-40-14X/P
MT-40-143
MT-40-144/P

MT-40-943
RZ-1662

RZ-188

Rear Drive Tandem/Tridem Axles – 5/750/P&L

4

LINEHAUL WARRANTY INFORMATION

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 172 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 172 of 220

DRAFT



Cam Q Series Trailer Brakes 5/500/P, 1/100/L
LX500 Feature1  5/750/P&L
Cam Q Plus™ 5/500/P, 1/Unl/P&L
ASA 5/500/P, 1/Unl/P&L
Hubs/Cast Drums and Other Wheel-end Components 1/Unl/P
Hydraulic Disc Brakes 1/Unl/P
All Other Brakes 1/Unl/P
X30™ Drums2 12-Years or Wearable Life/P
EX Air Disc Brake 5/500/P, 1/Unl/L
1  Includes: bushing, seal, cam, ASA lubrication and wear coverage of 

3/500/P&L.
2 Based on stamped wear diameter max.

MPA38/40 (Tandem Axle Parallelogram)1 
 Major Structural Components 5/500/P, 1/100/L
 Height Control Valve 1/100/P&L
 Shock Absorbers 2/200/P&L
 Air Springs 2/200/P, 1/100/L
 Bushings 7/Unl/P, 5/Unl/L
 PinLoc Air Controls 1/100/P&L
 PinLoc Actuator 3/300/P&L
MPA20 (Single Axle Parallelogram)
 Major Structural Components 5/500/P, 1/100/L
 Height Control Valve 1/100/P&L
 Shock Absorbers 2/200/P&L
 Air Springs 2/200/P, 1/100/L
 Bushings 7/Unl/P, 5/Unl/L
MTA (Trailing Arm)
 Major Structural Components 5/500/P, 1/100/L
 Height Control Valve 1/100/P&L
 Shock Absorbers 2/200/P&L
 Air Springs & Rebound Straps 2/200/P, 1/100/L
 Bushings 5/500/P, 3/300/L
1 Fastener torque coverage is limited to 2/Unl P&L when torqued by Meritor
(For axle and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate product warranties.)

TQ, TQD, TR, TRD Beam and Brackets 5/750/P&L 
1 For brake components and ABS Coverage, refer to appropriate product warranties.

MTIS Components 3/500/P&L

Beam and Brackets 5/500/P, 1/100/L
Wheel End Systems1 
    Standard System2 1/100/P&L
    PreSet by Meritor3 5/500/P&L
    AxlePak44 4P/3L
        Beam and Brackets 5/500/P, 1/100/L
    AxlePak65 6P/5L
        Beam and Brackets 6/600/P, 1/100/L
1  Includes hub, wheel seals and wheel bearings—all systems require annual 

inspections and proper documentation to ensure full coverage.
2 When installed by Meritor.
3  Requires approved hubcap stating PreSet by Meritor on hubcap face.
4  Applies to STEMCO Guardian HP Seal, STEMCO Pro-Torq nut, STEMCO  

Integrated Sentinel Hub Cap, and Meritor bearings.
5  Applies to STEMCO Guardian HP Seal, STEMCO Pro-Torq nut, STEMCO  

Integrated Sentinel Hub Cap, and STEMCO matched bearing sets.
(For brake components and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate  
product warranties.)

Brake Components Trailer Air Suspension Systems

TAG/Pusher Axles1

Meritor Tire Inflation System by PSI

Trailer Axles

5

LINEHAUL WARRANTY INFORMATION

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 173 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 173 of 220

DRAFT



n Aerial Ladder Truck
n Aerial Platform
n Ambulance 
n Auto Hauler 
n Beverage Truck
n Chip Hauler 
n Cross Country Coach 
n Flatbed

n  Front Engine Commercial Chassis
n Front Engine Integral Coach
n General Freight 
n Intercity Coach
n Intermodal Chassis 
n Livestock Hauler 
n Meat Packer
n Moving Van

n Municipal Truck
n Newspaper Delivery
n Pick-Up and Delivery
n Pipe Hauler
n Platform Auto Hauler 
n Pumper
n Rear Engine Integral Coach
n Recreational Vehicles 

n Refrigerated Freight
n School Bus 
n Stake Truck 
n Tanker 
n Tanker Truck
n Tour Bus 
n Wrecker

FD-965
FF-941
FF-942
FF-943
FF-944
FF-946
FF-961
FF-966

FF-967
FG-941
FH-941
FH-9461

FL-941
FL-943
MFS-6-151A-N
MFS-6-153B-N

MFS-6-162B-N
MFS-6-153C-N
MFS-6-162C-N
MFS-7-113C-N
MFS-7-153C-N
MFS-7-163C-N
MFS-8-113B-N
MFS-8-143A-N 

MFS-8-153B-N
MFS-8-163B-N
MFS-10-122A
MFS-10-143A-N 
MFS-10-144A-N
MFS-12-143A-N
MFS-12-144A-N
MFS-125-143A-N 

MFS-13-122A-N
MFS-13-143A-N
MFS-13-144A-N
MFS-14-143A-N
MFS-16-122A-N
MFS-16-143A-N
MFS-18-133A-N
MFS-20-133A-N

n Lower mileage operations (less than 60,000 miles/year)
n Generally, on-road service (less than 10% off-road)
n An average of three (3) miles between starting and stopping

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty requires that the application of products be 
properly approved pursuant to OEM and Meritor approvals. Refer to TP-9441 for 
axles, SP-8320 for trailer axles, TP-12126 for drivelines, and/or contact Meritor 
regarding specific application approval questions on any product line.

RT-40-160/P
RT-46-160/P

RT-46-164EH/P
RT-50-160/P

General Service Vehicles

Front Drive/Non-Drive Steer Axles – 2/Unl/P&L

General Service Typically Is

Rear Drive Tandem – 3/Unl/P&L

RPL 4/400/P, 1/Unl/P&L
MXL 3/350/P, 1/Unl/P&L
155N 1/Unl/P
92N 1/Unl/P

Drivelines

MS-10-113
MS-11-113
MS-12-113
MS-17-14X
MS-19-14X
RS-13-120
RS-15-120
RS-17-144/145/A

RS-19-144/145/A
MS-21-14X
MS-21-144MA-N
RS-21-145
RS-21-145/A 
RS-21-160
RC-22-145
RC-22-145/A

RC-23-160
RC-23-161
RC-23-1621

RC-23-1651

RH-23-160
RH-23-161
RS-23-160
RS-23-160

RS-23-161
RS-23-161
RS-23-186
RS-24-160
RC-25-160
RS-25-160
RS-26-185
MS-26-616

RS-30-185
MS-30-616
RS-35-380
71162
71163
79163

Rear Drive Single Axles – 2/Unl/P&L

1 3/Unl/P&L if PreSet by Meritor.

MT-34-14X/P
RT-34-144/P/A
MT-40-14X/P
MT-40-143DA-N
MT-40-143MA-N1

MT-40-144/P
RT-40-145/P/A
MT-44-14X/P
RT-44-145/P
RT-46-169

MT-52-616
RT-52-1852

MT-58-616
RT-58-1852

MT-70-380

RZ-166
RZ-188

Rear Drive Tandem/Tridem Axles – 2/Unl/P&L

1  Axle model designated will vary according to options and variations specified on these axles. Contact Meritor Axle Applications Engineering for details.
2  Each vehicle must have a Request for Application Recommendation (RAR) approved by Meritor prior to vehicle build. All RARs must identify the chassis number or VIN. 

Refer to Product Information Letter #303 and #396 for further details.

6

GENERAL SERVICE WARRANTY INFORMATION

1 Can also be used with reduced steer angles in tag position in Coach Applications.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 174 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 174 of 220

DRAFT



Cam Q Series Trailer Brakes 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
LX500 Feature1 3/Unl/P&L
Cam P3 2/200/P
Cam 3/Unl/P
Cam Q Plus™ 3/Unl/P&L
Cam Q Plus ™3 2/200/P&L
ASA 3/Unl/P
ASA3 2/200/P
Hubs/Cast Drums and Other Wheel-end Components 1/Unl/P
Hydraulic Disc Brakes 1/Unl/P
All Other Brakes 1/Unl/P
X30™ Drums2 12-Years or Wearable Life/P
EX Air Disc Brake 2/Unl/P&L
1 Includes: bushing, seal, cam, ASA lubrication and wear coverage of 1/Unl/P.
2 Based on stamped wear diameter max.
3 Applies to Tour Bus and Cross Country Coach only.

Beam and Brackets1 5/500/P, 1/100/L
Wheel End Systems2 
    Standard System3 1/Unl/P&L
    AxlePak44 4P/3L
        Beam and Brackets 5/500/P, 1/100/L
    AxlePak65 6P/5L
        Beam and Brackets 6/600/P, 1/100/L
1 9000 Series is 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
2  Includes hub, wheel seals and wheel bearings—all systems require annual  

inspections and proper documentation to ensure full coverage.
3 When installed by Meritor
4  Applies to STEMCO Guardian HP Seal, STEMCO Pro-Torq nut, STEMCO  

Integrated Sentinel Hub Cap, and Meritor bearings.
5  Applies to STEMCO Guardian HP Seal, STEMCO Pro-Torq nut, STEMCO  

Integrated Sentinel Hub Cap, and STEMCO matched bearing sets.
(For brake components and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate 
product warranties.)

Beam & Brackets 6/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
Wheel End Systems1

    Standard System 1/Unl/P&L
    AxlePak42 4P/3L
        Beam and Brackets 7P/1L
    AxlePak63 6P/5L
        Beam and Brackets 7P/1L
1  Includes hub, wheel seals and wheel bearings—all systems require annual  

inspections and proper documentation to ensure full coverage.
2  Applies to STEMCO Guardian HP Seal, STEMCO Pro-Torq nut, STEMCO  

Integrated Sentinel Hub Cap, and Meritor bearings.
3  Applies to STEMCO Guardian HP Seal, STEMCO Pro-Torq nut, STEMCO  

Integrated Sentinel Hub Cap, and STEMCO matched bearing sets.

MPA38/40 (Tandem Axle Parallelogram)1

 Major Structural Components 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
 Height Control Valve 1/Unl/P&L
 Shock Absorbers 2/Unl/P&L
 Air Springs 2/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
 Bushings 7/Unl/P, 5/Unl/L
 Air Controls 1/100/P&L
 Air Actuator 3/300/P&L
MPA20 (Single Axle Parallelogram)
 Major Structural Components 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
 Height Control Valve 1/Unl/P&L
 Shock Absorbers 2/Unl/P&L
 Air Springs 2/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
 Bushings 7/Unl/P, 5/Unl/L
MTA (Trailing Arm)
 Major Structural Components 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
 Height Control Valve 1/Unl/P&L
 Shock Absorbers 2/Unl/P&L
 Air Springs and Rebound Straps 2/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
 Bushings2 5/Unl/P, 3/Unl/L
(For axle and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate product warranties.)
1  Fastener torque coverage is limited to 2/Unl P&L when torqued by Meritor
2 Raw wood applications 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L

MTIS Components 3/500/P&L

TQ, TQD, TR, TRD  Beam and Brackets1 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
MC12002, MC14002, MC16003, FH946 2/Unl/P&L
(For brake components and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate 
product warranties.)
1 3/UNL/P&L if sold with PreSet by Meritor.

Brake Components

Trailer Axles

Chassis Axles (2000 Series/ChassiPak)

Trailer Air Suspension Systems

Meritor® Tire Inflation System by PSI

TAG/Pusher Axles

7

GENERAL SERVICE WARRANTY INFORMATION

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 175 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 175 of 220

DRAFT



Heavy Service Vehicles
n Airport Rescue Fire (ARF)
n Airport Shuttle
n Asphalt Truck 
n Block Truck
n  Bottom Dump Trailer  

Combination
n Cementing Vehicle
n City Bus
n Commercial Pick-Up
n Concrete Pumper
n Construction Material Hauler
n Crash Fire Rescue (CFR)
n Mixer
n Demolition

n Drill Rig
n Dump
n Emergency Service
n Equipment Hauling
n Flatbed Trailer Hauler
n Flatbed Truck
n Fracturing Truck 
n Front Loader
n Geophysical Exploration 
n Hopper Trailer Combinations 
n Landscaping Truck
n Liquid Waste Hauler
n Log Hauling 
n Lowboy

n  Michigan Special Gravel Trains
n Michigan Special Log Hauler
n  Michigan Special Steel Hauler
n  Michigan Special Waste Vehicle
n Municipal Dump
n  Rapid Intervention Vehicle (RIV)
n Rear Loader
n Recycling Truck
n Residential Pick-Up
n Rigging Truck 
n Roll-Off
n Scrap Truck
n Semi-End Dump
n Sewer/Septic Vacuum 

n Shuttle Bus
n Side Loader
n Snowplow/Snowblower 
n Steel Hauling
n Tanker
n Tank Truck
n Tractors with Pole Trailers
n Tractor/Trailer with Jeeps
n Transfer Dump
n Transfer Vehicle
n Transit Bus
n Trolley
n Utility Truck
n Winch Truck

n Moderate mileage operation (less than 60,000 miles per year)
n On/Off road vocations (10% or more off-road)
n Moderate to frequent stops/starts (up to 10 stops per mile)

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty requires that the application of prod-
ucts be properly approved pursuant to OEM and Meritor approvals. Refer to 
TP-9441 for axles, SP-8320 for trailer axles, TP-12126 for drivelines, and/
or contact Meritor regarding specific application approval questions on any 
product line.

Heavy Service Typically Is

FD-965
FF-941
FF-942
FF-943
FF-944
FF-946
FF-961
FF-966
FF-967

FG-941
FG-943
FH-941
FH-946
FL-941
FL-943
MFS-6-151A-N
MFS-6-153B
MFS-6-162B

MFS-6-162C
MFS-7-113C-N
MFS-7-153C-N
MFS-7-163C-N
MFS-8-113B-N
MFS-8-153B-N
MFS-8-163B-N
MFS-10-122A
MFS-10-143A-N

MFS-10-144A-N
MFS-12-143A-N
MFS-12-144A-N
MFS-12-155 
MFS-13-143A-N
MFS-13-144A-N
MFS-13-155 
MFS-14-143A-N
MFS-16-122A-N

MFS-16-143A-N
MFS-18-133A-N
MFS-20-133A-N
RF-16-145
RF-21-160
MX-10-120
MX-12-120
MX-14-120
MX-16-120

MX-18-120
MX-17-140
MX-19-140
MX-21-140
MX-21-160
MX-23-160
MX-23-810

MS-10-113
RS-13-120
RS-15-120
MS-17-14X
RS-17-144/145/A
MS-19-14X
RS-19-144
MS-21-114
MS-21-14X
RS-21-145
RS-21-145/A
RS-21-160
RC-22-145

RC-23-160
RH-23-160
RS-23-160
RS-23-160
RC-23-161
RH-23-161
RS-23-161
RS-23-186/380
RC-23-162
RC-23-165
RS-24-160
RS-25-160
RH-26-185

MS-26-616
RS-26-185/380
MS-30-616
RH-30-185
RS-30-185/380
MS-35-380
RS-38-380
RC-25-160
RC-26-633
MT-58-616
71162
71163
79163

Front Drive/Non-Drive Steer Axles – 2/Unl/P&L

Rear Drive Single Axles – 2/Unl/P&L
RPL 92N RN MXL

Drivelines – 1/Unl/P&L

8

HEAVY SERVICE WARRANTY INFORMATION

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 176 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 176 of 220

DRAFT



MT-34-14X/P
RT-34-144/P/A
MT-40-14X/P
MT-40-143DA-N
MT-40-143MA-N1

MT-40-144
MT-40-144/P
RT-40-145/P/A
MT-44-14X/P
RT-44-145/P

RT-46-169
MT-52-616
RT-52-185/3802,3,4,5

MT-58-616
RT-58-185/3802,3,4,5

RT-70-3805

MT-70-3805

RZ-1665

RZ-1885

Cam P 3/Unl/P
Cam P3 2/100/P
Cam Cast Plus™ 2/100/P&L
Cam Q Plus™ 3/Unl/P&L
Cam Q Plus™2 2/100/P&L
ASA 3/Unl/P
ASA2 2/100/P
Hubs/Cast Drums and 
Other Wheel-end 
Components 1/Unl/P
Hydraulic Disc Brakes 1/Unl/P
All Other Brakes 1/Unl/P
X30™ Drums1 12-Years or 
 Wearable Life/P
EX Air Disc Brake 2/100/P&L
1 Based on stamped wear diameter max.
2  Applies to City Bus, Trolley, Shuttle Bus and Airport 

Shuttle only. 
3   Warranty for all non-Meritor ASAs supplied by  

Meritor for all Heavy Service vocations is 1/100/P.

RT-40-160/P/A3

RT-46-160/P/A1,3

RT-46-164EH/P/A2,3

RT-50-160/P/A3

1  U.S. only. Canadian warranty = 1/Unl/P for  
combination vehicles only.

2  Axle model designated will vary according to options 
and variations specified on these axles. Contact 
Meritor Axle Applications Engineering for details.

3  Each vehicle must have a Request for Application 
Recommendation (RAR) approved by Meritor prior 
to vehicle build. All RARs must identify the chassis 
number or VIN. Refer to Product Information Letter 
#303 and #396 for further details.

MTA (Trailing Arm)
 Major Structural Components1 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
 Height Control Valve 1/Unl/P&L
 Shock Absorbers 2/Unl/P&L
 Air Springs 2/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
 Bushings1 5/Unl/P, 3/Unl/L
1 Raw wood applications 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
(For axle and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate 
product warranties.)

MTC-4208
MTC-4210

MTC-4213
T-2111

T-2119
T-2120

MTIS Components 3/500/P&L

MC26000 
71063
79063

Beam and Brackets1 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
Wheel End Systems2 
    Standard System3 1/Unl/P&L
1 9000 Series is 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L.
2  Includes hub, wheel seals and wheel bearings—all 

systems require annual inspections and proper 
documentation to ensure full coverage.

3 When installed by Meritor.

(For brake components and ABS coverage, 
refer to appropriate product warranties.)

1  U.S. only. Canadian warranty = 1/Unl/P for combination vehicles only.
2  Axle model designated will vary according to options and variations specified on these axles. Contact Meritor Axle Applications Engineering for details.
3  Axle model designated will vary according to options and variations specified on these axles. Contact Meritor Axle Applications Engineering for details.
4  Each vehicle must have a Request for Application Recommendation (RAR) approved by Meritor prior to vehicle build. All RARs must identify the chassis number or VIN. 

Refer to Product Information Letter #303 and #396 for further details.
5  Warranty is 1/Unl/P&L when used with 2050 lb.ft. engines.Refer to Product Information Letter #293 for further details.

Rear Drive Tandem/Tridem Axles – 2/Unl/P&L

Brake Components Rear Drive Tandem – 3/Unl/P&L Trailer Air Suspension Systems

Transfer Cases – 1/Unl/P

Meritor Tire Inflation System 
by PSI

Center Non-drive Axles –  
2/Unl/P&L

Trailer Axles

9

HEAVY SERVICE WARRANTY INFORMATION

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 177 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 177 of 220

DRAFT



Industrial And Off-Highway Service Vehicles
n Load-On/Load-Off
n Port Tractor
n Rail Yard Spotter 
n Roll-On/Roll-Off
n Stevedoring Tractor
n Trailer Spotter 

n Yard Jockey 
n All-Terrain Crane
n Rough Terrain Crane
n Forestry
n Material Handling
n Specialized Heavy Haul

n Specialized Mining
n Excavator
n Compactor
n Fertilizer Spreader
n Snow Blower
n Mining

n Rail Car Mover
n Loader
n Tow Tractor
n Pushback Tractor

n Low mileage operation
n Low speed vehicle speed restriction
n Vehicles are not typically licensed for highway use
n Six (6) starts/stops per mile (typical)

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty requires that the application of products be  
properly approved pursuant to OEM and Meritor approvals. Refer to TP-9441 for 
axles, TP-12126 for drivelines, and/or contact Meritor regarding specific application 
approval questions on any product line.

MOR MOX MOC RPL RN MXL

MOR MOX MOC MOT

Cam P 3/Unl/P
Cam Q Plus™ 3/Unl/P&L
ASA 3/Unl/P
Hubs/Cast Drums and Other Wheel-end Components 1/Unl/P
Hydraulic Disc Brakes 1/Unl/P
All Other Brakes 1/Unl/P

FF - 941
FF - 943
FF - 961
FF - 966
FG - 941
FG - 943
FL - 941

FL - 943
MFS-12-143A-N
MFS-12-144A-N
MFS-13-143A-N
MFS-13-144A-N
MFS-14-143A-N
MFS-16-122A-N

MFS-16-143A-N
MFS-18-133A-N
MFS-20-133A-N
MON-Z0 FAMILY

MT-44-14X/P
MT-52-616
MT-58-616

MT-70-380
RT-44-145/P
RT-46-160/P

RT-46-164EH/P
RT-50-160/P
RZ-166

RS-23-186
RS-23-380
RS-24-160

MS-30-616
RS-30-185
RS-30-380

MS-35-380

Industrial And Off-Highway Service Typically Is

Drive Steer Axles – 1/Unl/P Drivelines – 1/Unl/P

Planetary Axles – 1/Unl/P

Brake Components

Front Non-Drive Steer Axles – 1/Unl/P Rear Drive Tandem Axles – 2/Unl/P

Rear Drive Single Axles – 1/Unl/P

10

OFF-HIGHWAY SERVICE WARRANTY 
INFORMATION

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 178 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 178 of 220

DRAFT



Coverage Exclusions

Product Description

All 
The cost of any repairs, replacements or adjustments to a covered 
component (1) associated with noise; (2) resulting from the use  
or installation of non-genuine Meritor components or materials; 
(3) due to vibration associated with improper operation or  
misapplication of drivetrain components; and (4) damage  
resulting from corrosion.

Front Axles 
King Pin Bushings.

Rear Axles 
Self-contained traction equalizers and oil filters. The use of  
NoSPIN differentials will result in the exclusion of axle shafts  
from warranty considerations. NoSPIN is a product of Eaton.

ASA 
Boot and bushing. Bent, broken, over-torqued, missing or  
otherwise damaged pawl assemblies.

Cam Brake 
Brake lining wear and brake shoe “rust-jacking.”

Disc Brake 
Pad wear, rotor wear.

Coverage Limitations

Product Description

All 
Any claim beyond 60 days from date of repair will not be accepted 
or honored under this warranty program. Products purchased on 
an incomplete vehicle (glider) are limited to one year, unlimited 
miles parts only (1/Unl/P).

Front Axles 
Tie rod and tie rod ends limited to 3-year/300,000-mile or 
published vocational coverage, whichever is less. Wheel seals, 
gaskets and wheel bearings are covered for 1 year/unlimited miles 
if the wheel end equipment is supplied and assembled by Meritor.

Rear Axles 
Pinion and through shaft seals limited to 3-year/300,000-mile 
or published vocational coverage, whichever is less, if yoke is 
installed by Meritor. If yoke is not installed by Meritor, then  
Meritor does not warrant pinion seals. Wheel seals, gaskets and 
wheel bearings are covered for 1 year/unlimited miles if the  
wheel end equipment is supplied and assembled by Meritor.

Rear Axles 
The Meritor® breather part number A-2297-C-8765 with  
A-3196-J-1336 hose must be used for eligibility of any potential  
warranty consideration relating to contamination and/or loss  
of lube in axles.

Cam Brake 
Limited to bracket, brake spider and camshaft structural integrity.

X30 
Wearable life is up to the discard diameter of the drum.

Disc Brake 
Warranty coverage for boots, seals, bushings and pins is 2/200/P. 
Warranty coverage for pads is 1/100/P.

Warranty coverage on vehicles with 1,850 lb-ft engine torque and 
over may be reduced on individual drivetrain components. Contact 
your Meritor representative for specific details.

11

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 179 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 179 of 220

DRAFT



For more information:
call Ontrac at 866-668-7221  
or visit meritor.com

©2013 Meritor, Inc.
Litho in USA, SP-95155
Revised 10-13 (47865/11900)

Meritor Heavy Vehicle Systems, LLC
2135 West Maple Road
Troy, Michigan 48084 USA

Vehicle models, brands and names depicted herein are the property of their respective owners, and are not in any way associated with Meritor, Inc., or its affiliates.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
(1)  What is Covered by this Commercial Warranty?  

Meritor Inc. warrants to the owner (“Owner”) that the components 
listed in this publication, which have been installed by an Original 
Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) as original equipment in vehicles 
licensed for on-highway use, will be free from defects in material and 
workmanship. This warranty coverage begins only after the expiration 
of the OEM’s vehicle warranty for the applicable covered components. 
Warranty coverage ends at the expiration of the applicable time  
period from the date of vehicle purchase by the first Owner, or, the 
applicable mileage limitation, whichever occurs first. Duration of  
coverage varies by component and vocation as detailed elsewhere in 
this warranty statement.

  Some components are warranted for parts only and the Owner must 
pay any labor costs associated with the repair or replacement of the 
component. Other components are warranted for both parts and  
reasonable labor to repair or replace the subject component.  
Components (whether new, used or remanufactured) installed as re-
placements under this warranty are warranted only for the remainder 
of the original period of time or mileage under the original warranty.

  For certain components, coverage requires the use of specific  
extended drain interval or synthetic lubricants. For further information 
about lubrication and maintenance, see Meritor publication  
Maintenance Manual Number l and the applicable Meritor  
maintenance manual for the product in question. Other conditions  
and limitations applicable to this warranty are detailed below.

(2)  Designation of Vocational Use Required.  
To obtain warranty coverage, each Owner must notify Meritor through 
the OEM new truck and/or trailer dealer of the intended vocational  
use of the vehicle into which the Meritor components have been  
incorporated prior to the vehicle in-service date. This notification  
may be accomplished by registering the vehicle through your OEM new 
truck and/or trailer dealer or with Meritor directly. Failure to  
notify Meritor of (I) the intended vocational use of the vehicle or (II)  
a change in vocational use from that which was originally designated, 
will result in the application of a one year, unlimited mileage, parts 
only warranty (1/Unl/P) from the initial in-service date. 

  A second Owner and each subsequent Owner must also notify Meritor 
as to the intended vocational use of the vehicle. This notification can 
be sent directly to Meritor or through the OEM new truck and/or trailer 
dealer. The duration and mileage coverage of this warranty cannot 
exceed the coverage extended to the first Owner after his or her initial 
designation of vocational use.

   Coverage under Meritor’s warranty requires that the application of 
products be properly approved pursuant to OEM and Meritor  
approvals. Refer to TP-9441 for axles, SP-8320 for trailer axles, 
TP-12126 for drivelines, and/or contact Meritor regarding specific 
application approval questions on any product line.

(3)  What is the Cost of this Warranty?  
There is no charge to the Owner for this warranty.

(4)  What is not Covered by this Warranty?  
This warranty does not cover normal wear and tear; nor does it cover 
a component that fails, malfunctions or is damaged as a result of (I) 
improper installation, adjustment, repair or modification (including 
the use of unauthorized attachments or changes or modification in 
the vehicle’s configuration, usage, or vocation from that which was 
originally approved by Meritor), (II) accident, natural disaster, abuse, 
or improper use (including loading beyond the specified maximum  
vehicle weight or altering engine power settings to exceed the  
axle and/or driveline capacity), or (III) improper or insufficient  
maintenance (including deviation from approved lubricants, change 
intervals, or lube levels). This warranty does not cover any component 
or part that is not sold by Meritor. For vehicles that operate full or part 
time outside of the United States and Canada, a one year, unlimited 
mileage, parts only warranty (1/Unl/P) will apply. 

(5)  Remedy.  
The exclusive remedy under this warranty shall be the repair or 
replacement of the defective component at Meritor’s option. Meritor 
reserves the right to require that all applicable failed materials are 
available and/or returned to Meritor for review and evaluation.

(6) Disclaimer of Warranty. 
  THIS WARRANTY IS EXPRESSLY IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES  

OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESSED, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY INCLUDING  
ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

(7)  Limitation of Remedies.  
In no event shall Meritor be liable for special, incidental, indirect,  
or consequential damages of any kind or under any legal theory,  
including, but not limited to, towing, downtime, lost productivity, 
cargo damage, taxes, or any other losses or costs resulting from a 
defective covered component. 

(8)  To Obtain Service.  
If the Owner discovers within the applicable coverage period a defect 
in material or workmanship, the Owner must promptly give notice to 
either Meritor or the dealer from which the vehicle was purchased. To 
obtain service, the vehicle must be taken to any participating OEM 
new truck and/or trailer dealer or authorized Meritor service location. 
The dealer will inspect the vehicle and contact Meritor for an evalu-
ation of the claim. When authorized by Meritor, the dealer will repair 
or replace during the term of this warranty any defective Meritor 
component covered by this warranty.

(9)  Entire Agreement.  
This is the entire agreement between Meritor and the Owner about 
warranty and no Meritor employee or dealer is authorized to make any 
additional warranty on behalf of Meritor. This agreement allocates the 
responsibilities for component failure between Meritor and the Owner.

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 180 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 180 of 220

DRAFT



NEW PRODUCT WARRANTY 
 

 

 PARTICIPATING OEM SALES 
DISTRIBUTOR SALES 

 

LIMITED WARRANTY ON NEW ALLISON AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSIONS 
USED IN EMERGENCY VEHICLE APPLICATIONS 

 
Allison Transmission will provide for repairs or replacement, at its option, during the warranty period of each new Allison transmission 
listed below that is installed in an Emergency Vehicle in accordance with the following terms, conditions, and limitations. 

WHAT IS COVERED 

 WARRANTY APPLIES — This warranty is for new Allison transmission models listed below installed in an Emergency Vehicle and 
is provided to the original and any subsequent owner(s) of the vehicle during the warranty period. 

 REPAIRS COVERED — The warranty covers repairs or replacement, at Allison Transmission’s option, to correct any transmission 
malfunction resulting from defects in material or workmanship occurring during the warranty period.  Needed repairs or replacements 
will be performed using the method Allison Transmission determines most appropriate under the circumstances. 

 TOWING — Towing is covered to the nearest Allison Transmission Distributor or authorized Dealer only when necessary to prevent 
further damage to your transmission. 

 PAYMENT TERMS — Warranty repairs, including parts and labor, will be covered per the schedule shown in the chart contained in 
section “APPLICABLE MODELS, WARRANTY LIMITATIONS, AND ADJUSTMENT SCHEDULE.” 

 OBTAINING REPAIRS — To obtain warranty repairs, take the vehicle to any Allison Transmission Distributor or authorized Dealer 
within a reasonable amount of time and request the needed repairs.  A reasonable amount of time must be allowed for the Distributor or 
Dealer to perform necessary repairs. 

 TRANSMISSION REMOVAL AND REINSTALLATION — Labor costs for the removal and re-installation of the transmission, 
when necessary to make a warranty repair, are covered by this warranty. 

 WARRANTY PERIOD — The warranty period for all coverages shall begin on the date the transmission is delivered to the first retail 
purchaser, with the following exception: 

Demonstration Service - A transmission in a new truck or bus may be demonstrated to a total of 5000 miles (8000 kilometers). 
If the vehicle is within this limit when sold to a retail purchaser, the warranty start date is the date of purchase.  Normal warranty 
services are applicable to the demonstrating Dealer.  Should the truck or bus be sold to a retail purchaser after these limits are 
reached, the warranty period will begin on the date the vehicle was first placed in demonstration service and the purchaser will be 
entitled to the remaining warranty. 

 
APPLICABLE MODELS, WARRANTY LIMITATIONS, AND ADJUSTMENT SCHEDULE 

WARRANTY LIMITATIONS 
(Whichever occurs first) 

ADJUSTMENT CHARGE TO BE
PAID BY THE CUSTOMER APPLICABLE 

MODELS 
Months 

Transmission Miles 
Or Kilometers Parts Labor 

MT, MD 
3000, 3200, 3500, 3700 0–24 No Limit No Charge No Charge 

HT with Hydraulic Controls 0–24 No Limit No Charge No Charge 

AT, 1000 Series, 2000 Series,  
2400 Series 0–36 No Limit No Charge No Charge 

HT with Electronic Controls 0–60 No Limit No Charge No Charge 

 HD 
1000 EVS, 2100 EVS, 2200 EVS 
2350 EVS, 2500 EVS, 2550 EVS,  

3000 EVS, 3500 EVS, 4000,  
4000 EVS, 4500, 4500 EVS, 4700, 

4700 EVS, 4800, 4800 EVS 

0–60 No Limit No Charge No Charge 

 
 

Page 1 of 2 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 181 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 181 of 220

DRAFT



WHAT IS NOT COVERED 
 DAMAGE DUE TO ACCIDENT, MISUSE, or ALTERATION — Defects and damage caused as the result of any of the following 

are not covered: 
 — Flood, collision, fire, theft, freezing, vandalism, riot, explosion, or objects striking the vehicle; 
 — Misuse of the vehicle; 
 — Installation into unapproved applications and installations; 
 — Alterations or modification of the transmission or the vehicle, and 
 — Damage resulting from improper storage (refer to long-term storage procedure outlined in the applicable Allison Service Manual) 
 — Anything other than defects in Allison Transmission material or workmanship  
 NOTE:  This warranty is void on transmissions used in vehicles currently or previously titled as salvaged, scrapped, junked, or totaled. 
 CHASSIS, BODY, and COMPONENTS — The chassis and body company (assemblers) and other component and equipment manufacturers 

are solely responsible for warranties on the chassis, body, component(s), and equipment they provide.  Any transmission repair caused by an 
alteration(s) made to the Allison transmission or the vehicle which allows the transmission to be installed or operated outside of the limits 
defined in the appropriate Allison Installation Guideline is solely the responsibility of the entity making the alteration(s). 

 DAMAGE CAUSED by LACK of MAINTENANCE or by the USE of TRANSMISSION FLUIDS NOT RECOMMENDED in 
the OPERATOR’S MANUAL — Defects and damage caused by any of the following are not covered: 

 — Failure to follow the recommendations of the maintenance schedule intervals applicable to the transmission; 
 — Failure to use transmission fluids or maintain transmission fluid levels recommended in the Operator’s Manual. 

 MAINTENANCE — Normal maintenance (such as replacement of filters, screens, and transmission fluid) is not covered and is the 
owner’s responsibility. 

 REPAIRS by UNAUTHORIZED DEALERS — Defects and damage caused by a service outlet that is not an authorized Allison 
Transmission Distributor or Dealer are not covered. 

 USE of OTHER THAN GENUINE ALLISON TRANSMISSION PARTS — Defects and damage caused by the use of parts that are 
not genuine Allison Transmission parts are not covered. 

 EXTRA EXPENSES — Economic loss and extra expenses are not covered.  Examples include but are not limited to:  loss of vehicle 
use; inconvenience; storage; payment for loss of time or pay; vehicle rental expense; lodging; meals; or other travel costs. 

 “DENIED PARTY” OWNERSHIP — Warranty repair parts and labor costs are not reimbursed to any participating or non-participating 
OEMs, dealers or distributors who perform warranty work for, or on behalf of, end users identified by the United States as being a “denied 
party” or who are citizens of sanctioned or embargoed countries as defined by the U.S. Department of Treasury Office of Foreign Assets 
Control.  Furthermore, warranty reimbursements are not guaranteed if the reimbursement would be contrary to any United States export control 
laws or regulations as defined by the U.S. Department of Commerce, the U.S. Department of State, or the U.S. Department of Treasury. 

OTHER TERMS APPLICABLE TO CONSUMERS AS DEFINED by the MAGNUSON-MOSS WARRANTY ACT 
This warranty gives you specific legal rights and you may also have other rights which vary from state to state. 
Allison Transmission does not authorize any person to create for it any other obligation or liability in connection with these transmissions.  
ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE APPLICABLE TO 
THESE TRANSMISSIONS IS LIMITED IN DURATION TO THE DURATION OF THIS WRITTEN WARRANTY.  
PERFORMANCE OF REPAIRS AND NEEDED ADJUSTMENTS IS THE EXCLUSIVE REMEDY UNDER THIS WRITTEN 
WARRANTY OR ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY.  ALLISON TRANSMISSION SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR INCIDENTAL OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOST WAGES OR VEHICLE RENTAL EXPENSES) 
RESULTING FROM BREACH OF THIS WRITTEN WARRANTY OR ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY.** 
** Some states do not allow limitations on how long an implied warranty will last or the exclusion or limitation of incidental or 
consequential damages, so the above limitations or exclusions may not apply to you. 

OTHER TERMS APPLICABLE TO OTHER END-USERS 
THIS WARRANTY IS THE ONLY WARRANTY APPLICABLE TO THE ALLISON TRANSMISSION MODELS LISTED 
ABOVE AND IS EXPRESSLY IN LIEU OF ANY OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY 
IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  ALLISON 
TRANSMISSION DOES NOT AUTHORIZE ANY PERSON TO CREATE FOR IT ANY OTHER OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY 
IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH TRANSMISSIONS.  ALLISON TRANSMISSION SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR INCIDENTAL 
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES RESULTING FROM BREACH OF THIS WARRANTY OR ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY. 

QUESTIONS 
If you have any questions regarding this warranty or the performance of warranty obligations, you may contact any Allison Transmission 
Distributor or Dealer or write to: 
 
Allison Transmission, Inc. 
P.O. Box 894 
Indianapolis, IN 46206-0894 
Attention:  Warranty Administration PF-9 
 

Form SE0616EN (201009) 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 182 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 182 of 220

DRAFT



     

 
A & A Manufacturing Co., Inc. 2300 S. Calhoun Road · New Berlin, WI 53151 · Phone (262) 786-1500 · Fax (262) 786-3280

Pierce Warranty Statement for Gortite Roll Up Doors Rev 2/24/2011 
 
All mechanical components of the door shall be warranted to be free from defects in materials and 
workmanship for the lifetime of the vehicle.  All parts covered under this warranty shall be to the original 
owner. 
 
A&A manufacturing warrants that painted doors shall be free of blistering, peeling, bubbling, or any other 
adhesion defect caused by defective manufacturing methods or paint material selection.  The time period for the 
coverage shall be 6 years from date of door shipment to Pierce.  Satin anodized finish doors shall be warranted 
for 6 years against corrosion defects from date of door shipment to Pierce. Replacement of decals/Scotchlite is 
not covered. 
 
 
The maximum amount A&A will reimburse for labor is $60.00 per hour and the maximum amount of time 
allowed for repair is as follows: 
 
 Door    1.0 Hr. 
 Slat Replacement  1.0 Hr. 
 Pennant Plate Replacement 1.0 Hr. 
 Roller Replacement    .5 Hr. 

Seal Replacement    .5 Hr. 
Switch/Magnet Replacement 1.0 Hr. 
Travel Time   4.0 Hr. 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 183 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 183 of 220

DRAFT



United Plastic Fabricating, Inc. (hereinafter called “UPF”) warrants each 
POLY-TANK®, Booster/Foam Tank POLYSIDE® Wetside Tank, Integrator 
Tank/Body, ELLIPSE™ Elliptical Tank, Ellip-T-Tank Tank and DEFENDER™ 
Skid Tank to be free from defects in material and workmanship for the service 
life of the original vehicle (vehicle must be actively used in an emergency re-
sponse for fire suppression). All UPF Tanks must be installed and operated in 
accordance with the UPF Installation and Operating Guidelines. Failure to do 
so can void the warranty. 

Every UPF Tank is inspected and tested before leaving our facility. Should 
your UPF Tank require service, please notify UPF via email, fax, in writing or 
by calling UPF at 1-978-975-4520. Please provide the serial number, a de-
scription of the service request, the location along with the phone number and 
name of the contact person. Our goal is to have scheduled work completed 
within a reasonable time period.

Under a valid warranty claim, UPF will cover the cost to repair the UPF Tank 
including the customary and reasonable costs to make the tank accessible 
such as the removal and reinstallation of the tank if authorized in advance 
(pre-approved) by UPF. The warranty will not cover tanks that have been im-
properly installed, operated, misused, abused, or modified from its intended 
or designed use. Serial number must not have been altered, defaced or re-
moved. Tanks that are not stored or installed properly which results in the tank 
suffering UV damage will not be covered by this agreement. 

Should UPF determine that the service claim is valid under this warranty for a 
tank located outside of the United States and Canada, UPF will assume the 
costs for labor and material for the warranty repair as described above plus 
all travel costs to the U.S. port of embarkation. Costs for airline travel outside 
of the U.S. and Canada will not be the responsibility of UPF.

In the event the tank shall become stationed in an area of the world that is 
considered to be a war zone or where unsafe conditions exist for the safe 
passage of United States Nationals, as reported by the United States Depart-
ment of State, (http://www.state.gov), and a request to perform service or 
warranty repairs, UPF reserves the right to refuse to honor such requests. It 
is the purchaser’s responsibility to relocate the tank to an area where such 
repairs can be performed without undue risk to UPF employees or their des-
ignee. UPF will make every reasonable effort to support our products though 
alternative means. 

For Ellipse™ elliptical tanks, a separate five year warranty provided by the 
subcontractor is applied to the sub-frames, chute linings (rubber isolation 
strips) and metal components. The stainless steel wrap provided by UPF 
shall be warranted by the subcontractor performing the wrap installation in 
accordance with their warranty in place at the time of the installation. UPF 
will not be liable for any warranty costs associated with the wrap, sub-frames, 
chute linings (rubber isolation strips) and metal components but will assist 
with all claims on behalf of its customer.

For PolySide® wetsided tanks and Integrator™ Tank/Body units, all polypro-
pylene components related to the tank shall carry the standard UPF lifetime FO

R
: P

O
LY

-T
A

N
K

®
, P

O
LY

S
ID

E
®

, I
N

T
E

G
R

A
TO

R
™

, E
LL

IP
S

E
™

, E
LL

IP
-T

-T
A

N
K

™
 &

 D
E

FE
N

D
E

R
™

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
Y

U
N

IT
ED

 P
LA

ST
IC

 F
A

BR
IC

AT
IN

G
, I

N
C.

        LIFETIME SERVICE WARRANTY

Continued on back

E f f e c t i v e  1  A u g u s t ,  2 0 0 9 ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 184 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 184 of 220

DRAFT



service warranty. Other polypropylene components, including but not limited 
to compartments, wheel wells, fenders and other body related components 
shall be warranted by UPF for a period of ten years. The warranty for the 
PolySide® and Integrator™ units excludes paint or hardware, which shall be 
covered by the manufacturer of the paint/hardware.

All UPF tanks 50 gallons or less utilized for non-fire applications and installed 
on specialty vehicles such as ATVs, trailers, boats, etc. are covered under a 
separate warranty policy available from UPF. Further, UPF Protector™ foam 
and water trailers are warranted under a separate warranty policy available 
from UPF.

This UPF warranty is transferable within the United States only with prior writ-
ten approval by UPF (except an original apparatus manufacturer may assign 
this warranty to the first titled owner/lessee of the apparatus)

UPF will NOT reimburse any unnecessary work and/or work that has 
not been pre-approved.  Any and all third party charges must be pre-
authorized and approved in writing by UPF prior to commencing the 
work.  Any unauthorized third party repairs, alterations, actions or modi-
fications will not be covered and can void the warranty. UPF will be the 
sole determining authority as to whether a service claim will be valid 
and covered under this warranty.  

In no event will UPF be liable for an amount in excess of the purchase price 
of the booster/foam tank at the time of manufacture or for any loss or dam-
age, whether direct,  indirect, incidental, consequential, or otherwise arising 
out of failure of its product. Loss of contents (water, foam, etc.) shall not be 
the responsibility of UPF. Further, UPF is not responsible for costs associated 
with service repairs to chassis, sub-frames, bodies, valves, dumps, hoses, 
pressure vacuum vents, and other components (i.e. liquid level transducers, 
etc.). Further, UPF will not cover the cost for travel of the vehicle to and from 
a repair facility. 

This warranty contains the entire warranty.  It is the sole warranty and price 
agreements or representation, whether oral or written, are either merged 
herein or expressly cancelled. UPF neither assumes, nor authorizes any per-
son supposing to act on its behalf to change, nor assume for it, any warranty 
or liability concerning its product.

This warranty gives you specific legal rights, and you may also have other 
rights which vary from state to state.  Some states do not allow exclusion or 
limitation or incidental or consequential damage, so the above limitation or 
exclusion may not apply to you.  Since some states do not allow limitations on 
the length of an implied warranty, the above limitation may not apply to you.

THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, WHICH EX-
TEND BEYOND THE DESCRIPTION OF THE FACE HEREOF.  THERE IS 
NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR A 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  ADDITION-
ALLY, THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER OBLIGATION OR 
LIABILITIES ON THE PART OF UPF.

FO
R

: P
O

LY
-T

A
N

K
®

, P
O

LY
S

ID
E

®
, I

N
T

E
G

R
A

TO
R

™
, E

LL
IP

S
E

™
, E

LL
IP

-T
-T

A
N

K
™

 &
 D

E
FE

N
D

E
R

™
W

A
R

R
A

N
T

Y
U

N
IT

ED
 P

LA
ST

IC
 F

A
BR

IC
AT

IN
G

, I
N

C.
        

POLY-TANK®,& POLYSIDE® are registered trademarks of UPF, Inc.  INTEGRATOR™, ELLIPSE™, 
ELLIP-T-TANK™ & DEFENDER™ are trademarks of UPF, Inc. © 08/01/09 UPF, Inc. Printed in the USA

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 185 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 185 of 220

DRAFT



ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 186 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 186 of 220

DRAFT



ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 187 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 187 of 220

DRAFT



ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 188 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 188 of 220

DRAFT



ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 189 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 189 of 220

DRAFT



 

Waterous Five-Year Limited Warranty 
 
WATEROUS warrants, to the original Buyer only, that products manufactured by WATEROUS will be free from defects in material and workmanship under normal use and 
service for a period of five (5) years from the date the product is first placed in service, or five and one-half (5-1/2) years from the date of shipment by WATEROUS, 
whichever period shall be the first to expire; provided the Buyer notifies WATEROUS, in writing, of the defect in said product within the warranty period, and said product is 
found by WATEROUS to be nonconforming with the aforesaid warranty. When required in writing by WATEROUS, defective products must be promptly returned by Buyer 
to WATEROUS at WATEROUS' plant at South St. Paul, Minnesota, or at such other place as may be specified by WATEROUS, with transportation and other charges 
prepaid. A Returned Material Authorization (RMA) is required for all products and parts and may be requested by phone, fax, email, or mail. The aforesaid warranty 
excludes any responsibility or liability of WATEROUS for: 

(a) damages or defects due to accident, abuse, misuse, abnormal operating conditions, negligence, accidental causes, use in non-firefighting applications, 
or improper maintenance, or attributable to written specifications or instructions furnished by Buyer; 

(b) defects in products manufactured by others and furnished by WATEROUS hereunder, it being understood and agreed by the parties that the only 
warranty provided for such products shall be the warranty provided by the manufacturer thereof which, if assignable, WATEROUS will assign to Buyer, 
if requested by Buyer; 

(c) any product or part, altered, modified, serviced or repaired other than by WATEROUS, without its prior written consent;  
(d) the cost of dismantling, removing, transporting, storing, or insuring the defective product or part and the cost of reinstallation; and 
(e) normal wear items (packing, strainers, filters, light bulbs, anodes, intake screens, mechanical seals, etc.). 
 

ALL OTHER WARRANTIES ARE EXCLUDED, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BY OPERATION OF LAW OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING ALL IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. IN NO EVENT, WHETHER AS A RESULT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, 
WARRANTY, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY, OR ANY OTHER CAUSE OF ACTION, SHALL WATEROUS BE LIABLE FOR ANY PUNITIVE, 
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, OR FOR PERSONAL INJURY OR PROPERTY DAMAGES. 

The exclusive remedy of Buyer and the sole liability of WATEROUS, whether based on contract, warranty, tort or any other basis of recovery whatsoever, is expressly 
limited at the election of WATEROUS to: 

(a) the replacement at the agreed point of delivery of any product or part, which upon inspection by WATEROUS or its duly authorized representative, is 
found not to conform to the limited warranty set forth above, or 

(b) the repair of such product or part, or 
(c) the refund or crediting to Buyer of the net sales price of the defective product or part. 
 

BUYER'S REMEDIES CONTAINED HEREIN ARE EXCLUSIVE OF ANY OTHER REMEDY OTHERWISE AVAILABLE TO BUYER. 

 
F‐2113 (07/17/12) 

Waterous Company 
125 Hardman Avenue South 
South St. Paul, MN  55075  USA 
www.waterousco.com 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 190 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 190 of 220

DRAFT



 

 

  
Warranty Policies and Procedures 

  
WARRANTIES 
All manufacturers’ warranties assume that the vehicle is properly 
maintained and used in service, which is normal to the particular vehicle. 
Normal service means service that does not subject the vehicle to 
stresses or impacts greater than normal results from the careful use of 
the vehicle or chassis. All warranties are provided by the vehicle or 
component manufacturer not Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc. 
 
Manufacturer’s warranties are subject to the terms at which the 
vehicle/component was delivered. For specifics, please refer to the 
Manufacturer Warranty included in the selling documents provided at the 
time of sale. 
 
Manufacturer’s Warranty* 
Pierce Manufacturing and Lifeline Emergency Vehicles, through Hughes 
Fire Equipment, provide Manufacturer’s warranties that warrants against 
defects in product and workmanship. This limited Manufacturer warranty 
shall apply only if the vehicle is properly maintained and used in service, 
which is normal to the particular vehicle. 
 
Component Warranty* 
Manufacturer warranties provided by individual manufactures other than 
Pierce or Lifeline may apply. 
 
MANUFACTURER WARRANTY START DATE 
New vehicle Manufacturer warranty start date is based on the delivery of 
the new apparatus.  
Vehicle Warranty start date begins: 
Upon leaving the factory for Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. and Life Line 
Emergency Vehicles. Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. however, may provide a 
60 day grace period after leaving the factory to put the unit in service.  
 
PRE-AUTHORIZATION 
Pre-authorization is required for all Manufacturer warranty repairs. If the 
unit is within the one year Manufacturer warranty and a warranty issue 
occurs which is a defect in product, workmanship, or design, we will file 
the repair under the provisions of the applicable warranty. 
 
In some cases, we may not be able to determine if a repair is warranted 
until a defective part is reviewed by the manufacturer to determine the 
cause of failure. Items may not be warranted until the cause has been 
determined. 
 
In cases of discovery within the Manufacturer warranty period, and risk of 
completion exists outside of the terms of the warranty period, Hughes 
Fire Equipment must be notified in writing of the failure date before the 
manufacturer warranty period expires. 
 
Hughes Fire Equipment’s Service Manager must be notified for pre-
authorization for all Manufacturer warranty repairs. In most cases, a 
Hughes Service Technician will be dispatched to provide any and all 
warranty work. This will be determined on a case by case basis by the 
Hughes Service Manager. Please contact the Hughes Service Manager if 
you have any questions about a current or pending warranty.  
 
In some cases, suppliers of components may offer warranties beyond the 
Pierce or Lifeline Warranty. When cases where a supplier offers a 
warranty longer than the Pierce or Lifeline stated warranty, we must 
contact the supplier directly for their support. The terms of the supplier 
warranty shall apply. Failure to follow supplier’s warranty procedures may 
nullify warranty coverage for that part or Service. Please contact our 
Service Manager for more information. Certain component warranties are 
to be handled directly with the component manufacturer such as engine, 
transmission, drive-train, commercial chassis, etc.  
 
 

TROUBLESHOOTING 
Reimbursement for troubleshooting by a manufacturer is governed by the 
manufacturer’s rules. It is suggested that Hughes Fire Equipment’s 
service manager be notified before two (2) hours of troubleshooting is 
expended on the diagnosis of a problem. Hughes Fire Equipment 
technicians are not authorized to make Manufacturer warranty decisions. 
Authorization may be given to continue troubleshooting or the trouble 
may be referred to the supplier for assistance. This will ensure timely 
repairs as well as keeping costs down.  
 
NOTE: Diagnosis in excess of 2 hours may be the responsibility of the 
customer. 
 
EXCESSIVE TIME TO REPAIR 
The Manufacturer reserves the right to dispute repair times that are 
beyond normal time allowances. 
 
RETURN OF DEFECTIVE PARTS 
If parts used in the repair of an apparatus are required to be returned by 
the Manufacturer and the customer provided necessary repairs for 
Hughes Fire Equipment, the customer will receive notification. Customers 
will be invoiced for all parts whether warranty or aftermarket. Customers 
have 30 days to return the defective component after the repair or the 
warranty claim may be rejected by the Manufacturer and no credit will be 
given for part(s). Labor may or may not be covered.  
 
If you work directly through a supplier and not Hughes Fire 
Equipment, you may be liable to cover the replacement costs. 
Hughes Fire Equipment is not liable for non-returned parts or labor if you 
choose to contact the supplier directly. 
 
When sending parts back, parts must be tagged with a job number along 
with a copy of the repairs stating the complaint, the cause and the 
correction. 
 
SUPPLIER REPAIRS 
Refer major component supplier warranty problems directly to the 
supplier to determine if it is a supplier problem. Major component 
supplier’s include, but are not limited to, axle, engine, transmission, and 
commercial chassis suppliers. Failure to follow the supplier’s guidelines 
may void warranty coverage. 
 
If it is a major component supplier-related problem, the supplier will repair 
the defective part and handle all necessary paperwork. 
Neither Hughes Fire Equipment nor Pierce should be invoiced for work 
performed when it is a major supplier’s failure. 
 
If it is a Pierce or Lifeline-related problem, the supplier may, with pre-
approval from Hughes Fire Equipment Service Manager and/or the 
Manufacturer, make the repairs and invoice Hughes Fire Equipment 
directly or refer the unit back to Hughes Fire Equipment for repair. If you 
do not get a timely response from a supplier, please contact Hughes Fire 
Equipment Service Manager immediately and we will assist in getting a 
resolution of the problem from the supplier for you. 
 
SUBLET LABOR 
Fire departments and municipalities that wish to perform their own minor 
warranty repairs may do so only with pre-approval from Hughes Fire 
Equipment. 
 
All approved sublet warranty work that is reimbursed by the manufacturer 
will be paid as a credit on their Hughes Fire Equipment’s customer 
account. The credit may be used against outstanding or future invoices.  
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 191 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 191 of 220

DRAFT



 

 

 
 
SUBLET LABOR (CONT.) 
Fire departments or municipalities that prefer to have a check issued for 
the reimbursed sublet warranty work will need to submit a request in 
writing via email, fax, or mail to Hughes Fire Equipment after they have 
received the credit memo. The request should state that a check is to be 
sent in lieu of the credit and contain the name of the person requesting 
the check. 
 
REJECTED WARRANTY ITEMS 
Some of the major reasons for claim and part rejection are listed below: 
• Additional service work requested by the owner over and above that 
necessary to satisfy the Manufacturer warranty obligation 
• Adjustments, routine maintenance and lubrication 
• Job time excessive or job overlapped 
• Labor or parts out of specified Manufacturer warranty period 
• Labor is not allowed for repairs on products that have been subject to 
misuse, accident, neglect or alteration  
• Labor for a modification that is not our standard, or proposed, in order to 
satisfy customer for acceptance 
• Commercial chassis or vendor warranty parts and labor 
• Additional testing or training not specified 
 
Other general reasons for a claim rejection are: 
• Out of Manufacturer warranty period 
• Not from model and/or serial number designated 
• Manufacturer warranty valid only to original owner 
• Insufficient information provided to substantiate failure or return 
• Damaged in shipment; submit claim to carrier 
• Lack of maintenance (this is the customer’s responsibility) 
• Damaged by insufficient lubrication 
• Damaged from improper operation or abuse 
• Damaged during removal or installation by sales 
representative/customer 
 
• Damage caused by lack of water 
• Damage from hitting solid objects 
• Damage caused by reversing battery leads 
• Damage caused by foreign material 
 
Pre-delivery and maintenance items not covered by Manufacturer 
warranty include cleaning, lubrication and adjustment of: 
• Transfer valve controls and switches 
• Relief valve micro switch 
• Door locks, ladder locks, mirrors, and equipment holding devices 
• Valve guides and controls 
• Primer and drain controls 
• Loose wiring, door switches or connectors 
• Loose screws, fittings, lights, etc 
• Belt tension 
• Gauge calibration 
• Relief or dump valve setting 
 
 
 
 
Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc.  
 
 
 
Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
Printed Name/Title 
 
 
 
Date 

 
 
Also not covered is replacing: 
• Lost tags and knobs 
• Light bulbs 
• Equipment lost or stolen 
• Broken lenses and windshields 
• Tire, road hazards 
• Wheels - due to loose lug nuts 
• Lubricant or anti-freeze 
• Service call or Hazmat disposal charges 
• Resetting of circuit breakers 
• Replacement of fuses 
 
Finally, damage resulting from lack of any of the following is also not 
covered under Manufacturer warranty: 
• Proper air pressure 
• Coolant 
• Lubricant 
• Maintenance 
 
TIMING FOR SUBMITTING A MANUFACTURER 
WARRANTY REIMBURSEMENT FORM 
The failure date must have occurred within the Manufacturer warranty 
period for the problem to be covered by warranty. 
Please refer to the specific Manufacturer warranty for your vehicle. 
 
Failure identification to completion of the work must be no more than 30 
days. Completion of work to submission of claim must also be no more 
than 30 days. 
 
In cases where the unit is not out of service, completion of the work may 
be more than 30 days but should be within a reasonable time frame. If the 
completion of the work will not occur within the Manufacturer warranty 
period, Hughes must be notified of the failure date and intended date for 
completion of the work before the Manufacturer warranty period expires. 
 
CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING TRUCKS AS “OUT OF SERVICE” 
Trucks that are unable to safely respond to a scene or perform required 
operation of the pump or aerial device due to a mechanical or electrical 
malfunction.  
 
Trucks NOT considered “out of service” (trucks experiencing non-critical 
issues that do not affect the ability to respond to a scene): 
- trucks taken out of service for scheduled maintenance or repairs 
- minor cab or body damage 
- missing compartment doors 
- broken window 
- air conditioning malfunction 
- paint, corrosion, or graphics (non-safety related) 
- cosmetic issues (missing wheel covers, etc) 
- non-safety related lighting 
- customer add-on equipment 
- minor oil leaks 
 
 
 
Customer  
 
 
 
Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
Printed Name/Title 
 
 
 
Date 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 192 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 192 of 220

DRAFT



 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0001 

Velocity® & Impel®
Cab Doors 

 
Pierce Manufacturing certifies the integrity of the Velocity® & Impel® cab doors. 
 
Specimens representing the substantial structural configuration of the Velocity and Impel cab 
front and crew doors have been successfully tested to meet the following objectives: 
 
OBJECTIVES: 

• Survive a 200,000-cycle door slam test with a slam acceleration up to 20 g’s on one 
representative 

• Validate the assembly concept of the main structure of the door by evaluating the 
durability of the bonding technique. 

• Evaluate components, structure, and mounting of the door during and the end of the 
test for fatigue and failure to ensure durability. 

• Verify that the door seals function properly at the end of the test. 
• Evaluate the new extrusions and castings of the cab doorframe during and at the end of 

the test for fatigue, failure, and deformation of seal flanges. 
• Evaluate various mounting options for the electronic control module for durability during 

portions of the slam test. 
 
CONCLUSIONS:  

• The door structure and doorframe successfully completed a 200,000-cycle door slam 
test with a door slam acceleration of 50 g’s.  

 
VALIDATION TEST: RD1239, RD1350 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Roger Lackore, PE 
March 16, 2008 

CD0001 Door Durability - Velocity 080315 1 7/8/2008 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 193 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 193 of 220

DRAFT



 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0004 

Velocity® & Impel®  
Window Regulators 

 
Pierce Manufacturing certifies the integrity of the Velocity® & Impel® window regulators. 
 
Specimens representing the substantial structural configuration of the Velocity® & Impel® 
window regulators have been successfully tested to meet the following objectives: 
 
OBJECTIVES: 

• Electric window regulators withstand 30,000 up-down cycles. 
 
CONCLUSIONS: 

• The electric window regulators withstood 30,000 cycles without failure. 
 
VALIDATION TEST: RD1350, RD1368 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Roger Lackore, PE 
March 16, 2008 

CD0004 Window Regulators - Velocity 080315 1 7/8/2008 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 194 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 194 of 220

DRAFT



 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0005 

Velocity® & Impel®  
Windshield Wiper System 

 
Pierce Manufacturing certifies the integrity of the Velocity® & Impel® Windshield Wiper System. 
 
Specimens representing the configuration of the Velocity® & Impel® windshield wipers have 
been successfully tested to meet the following objectives: 
 
OBJECTIVES: 

• Complete 3,000,000 cycles of windshield wiper operation per SAE J198 § 6.2 
• Inspect wiper motor, pivots, linkages, and mounts frequently to validate cumulative 

wiper system integrity. 
 
CONCLUSIONS: 

• The wiper linkage, pivots, and mounts successfully completed 4,254,000 cycles. 
• The low speed circuit on the wiper motor failed at 2,954,000 cycles but it continued to 

operate on high speed. The low speed failure was determined to be due to water 
intrusion.  The production wiper motors are coated in “EL-Cast Resin with a 641 
hardener additive” to seal them from water intrusion to prevent failure. 

 
VALIDATION TEST: RD1240 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Roger Lackore, PE 
March 16, 2008 

CD0005 Windshield Wipers - Velocity 080315 1 7/8/2008 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 195 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 195 of 220

DRAFT



CD0009 Cab Integrity Certification - Velocity 080123 1 7/8/2008 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH TRUCK CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0009 

Velocity® & Impel® 
Cab Integrity Certification 

 
Pierce Manufacturing certifies the integrity of the Velocity/Impel cab relative to occupant 
protection. 
 
A specimen representing the substantial structural configuration of the Velocity and Impel cab 
models has been successfully tested in accordance with the following standards. 

• SAE J2422 Cab Roof Strength Evaluation – Quasi-Static Loading Heavy Trucks. 
• European Occupant Protection Standard ECE Regulation No. 29. 
• SAE J2420 COE Frontal Strength Evaluation – Dynamic Loading Heavy Trucks. 

 
 
Side Impact: The test cab was subjected to dynamic preload 
where a 13,275 lb moving barrier was slammed into the side of 
the cab at 5.5 mph, striking with an impact of 13,000 ft-lbs of 
energy. This test is not required to meet the ECE 29 standard, 
but is part of the SAE J2422 test procedure and more closely 
represents the forces a cab will see in a roll-over incident. 
 
 
 
 
Roof Crush: This same test cab was then subjected to a roof 
crush force of 22,050 lbs. This value meets the ECE 29 criteria, 
which must be equivalent to the front axle rating up to a 
maximum of 10 metric tons. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Additional Roof Crush: The same cab was then loaded with 
58,000 lbs, 85,000 lbs, and finally 100,000 lbs on the roof, 
exceeding the ECE test by 4.5 times! 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 196 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 196 of 220

DRAFT



CD0009 Cab Integrity Certification - Velocity 080123 2 7/8/2008 

 
 
 
Frontal Impact: The test cab was struck by the 13,275 lb moving 
barrier at a speed sufficient to impart the required 32,600 ft-lbs of 
energy.  
 
The cab survived this second blow without compromising the 
survival space of any occupant area. 
 
 
Additional Frontal Impact: The same cab was then struck a 
third time at a higher speed to impart 65,200 ft-lbs of energy into 
the cab (twice the ECE 29 level of energy). 
 
The cab survived this third blow, again without compromising the 
survival space of any occupant area. 
 
 
Side Crush: As an additional test of the Velocity/Impel strength, 
the same test cab was set on its side and loaded to 100,000 lbs.  
The cab in this test withstood the load without any appreciable 
damage or occupant space intrusion. 
 
 
 
 
Pass-Fail criteria of the SAE tests and the ECE 29 test is a 
measure of whether the “survival space” inside the cab is compromised during any of the test 
loads. The Pierce cab withstood all integrity tests on the same cab without any measurable 
intrusion into the survival space of the occupant area. 
 
 
Witnessed and Certified by: 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Roger Lackore, PE 
January 24, 2008 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 197 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 197 of 220

DRAFT



 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0015 

Velocity® & Impel®
Cab Heater & Defrost 

 
Pierce Manufacturing certifies the performance of the Velocity® & Impel® cab heat and 
defroster systems. 
 
The Velocity® & Impel® Heater and Defroster System was tested successfully in an 
environmental chamber. 
 
Defrosting 
Defroster testing was performed in accordance with SAE J381 Windshield Defrosting Systems 
Test Procedure and Performance Requirements-Trucks, Buses, and Multipurpose Vehicles. 
 
This SAE Recommended Practice establishes uniform test procedures and performance 
requirements for the defrosting system of enclosed cab trucks, buses, and multipurpose 
vehicles. Current engineering practice prescribes that for laboratory evaluation of defroster 
systems, an ice coating of known thickness be applied to the windshield and left- and right-
hand side windows to provide more uniform and repeatable test results, even though under 
actual conditions such a coating would necessarily be scraped off before driving. The test 
condition, therefore, represents a more severe condition than the actual condition, where the 
defroster system must merely be capable of maintaining a cleared viewing area. 
 
During the test, the vehicle is cold-soaked to 0º F in a cold chamber.  A prescribed layer of ice 
is applied to the windshield.  The defroster is then run and the advancing melt boundary 
marked as the test proceeds. 
 
The SAE prescribed area of the windshield was 100% cleared within the specified 30 minute 
period.   

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Start of Test    10 Minutes   30 Minutes 

CD0015 Heat and Defrost - Velocity  080610 1 7/8/2008 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 198 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 198 of 220

DRAFT



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Defrost Results 
 
 
Heater: 
Heater testing was performed using the coolant supply procedures from SAE J381.  The 
average cab temperature increased 75º F from -10º F to 65º F within the prescribed 30 
minutes.  The cab was contained in a cold chamber at -10º F during the duration of the test. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
VALIDATION TEST: RD1416 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Roger Lackore, PE 
June 10, 2008 

CD0015 Heat and Defrost - Velocity  080610 2 7/8/2008 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 199 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 199 of 220

DRAFT



CD0016 Air Conditioning - Velocity  080712 1 9/19/2008 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0016 

Velocity® & Impel® 
Air Conditioning 

 
Pierce Manufacturing certifies the performance of the Velocity® & Impel® cab air conditioning system. 
 
The air conditioning system was tested successfully in an environmental chamber. 
 
Air conditioning performance testing was conducted at an ambient of 100°F and 50 percent relative humidity.  
Engine speed was maintained at high idle rpm with the controls set to maximum cooling. 
 
The vehicle was heat soaked in the environmental chamber for at least 4 hours. All temperature probes were 
monitored to confirm temperature stabilization.  The transient test began when all the vehicle doors were closed 
and the air conditioning was turned on. A series of 40 temperature and pressure transducers collected the data 
which was logged for each transducer at 15 second intervals. 
 
The average cab temperature dropped to 75º F within 11 minutes, and was at 67º F by the end of the 30 minute 
test. 

 
 
VALIDATION TEST: RD1416 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
James Roger Lackore, PE 
June 10, 2008 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 200 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 200 of 220

DRAFT



 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0018 

Velocity® & Impel®
Seats and Seat Belts 

 
Pierce Manufacturing certifies the conformance of the Velocity® & Impel® cab seats and seat 
belts to Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards.  Representative Velocity® & Impel® Seat and 
Seat Belt designs have been tested successfully in accordance with FMVSS 207. 
 
Physical testing was performed to qualify passenger seats to meet Federal Motor Vehicle 
Safety Standards (FMVSS) 207 and 210.  This requires that a minimum of 3,000 lbf be applied 
to both the lap and shoulder belts via appropriate body blocks.  A third force of twenty times 
the mass of the seat must be applied at the center-of-gravity (CG) of the seat.  All three forces 
are applied at the same time, reached within thirty seconds of the start of the test, and be held 
for a minimum of ten seconds. 
 
A force equal to twenty times the mass of the seat was 
applied to each seat in the direction opposite to the 
combination pull.  A moment of 275 lb-ft was applied to the 
seat with reference to the H-point. 
 
This testing ensures that the seat mounting and seat belt 
anchors are adequate to retain the seats and occupants in a 
crash.  The Federal requirements are based on the high 
deceleration rates of passenger vehicles, so the design 
requirements are significantly more conservative considering 
the slower crash speeds of heavy trucks. 
 
 
VALIDATION TESTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RD1274   
RD1335   
RD1352   
RD1405   
RD1437   
RD1446

James Roger Lackore, PE 
June 17, 2008 

CD0018 Seats and Belts - Velocity  080617 1 7/8/2008 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 201 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 201 of 220

DRAFT



CD0020 Slip Resistance 130801.doc 1 8/1/2013 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0020 

Stepping, S tanding & 
Walking Areas 

Slip Resistance Certification  
 
Pierce Manufacturing certifies that samples of the following interior and exterior stepping, standing and walking 
surfaces used in the manufacture of Pierce custom and commercial fire apparatus conform to the requirements of 
NFPA 1901, 2009 edition paragraphs 15.7.4.1 and 15.7.4.2 when tested using an English XL Variable Incidence 
Tribometer. 
 

 

 
Anti-Slip Adhesive Tape 

 

 

 
Bustin Firm-Grip 

 

 
Cast Pyramids 

 

 
Diamond Plate (Aluminum) 

 

 
Diamond Plate Edge Punch 

 

 
Duradek 

 

 

 
Eberhard Folding Step 

 

 
Freightliner Step 

 

 
Grip Strut (Aluminum .080) 

 

 
Grip Strut Aluminum 12 Ga 

 

 
Grip Strut (Steel 12 Ga) 

 

 

 
International Step 

 

 
Kenworth Step 

 

 
Morton Cass 

 

 
Octagonal Punch 

 

 
OverKrete Coating 

 

 

 
Rubber Mat 

 

 
Serration and Knurl 

 

 
Loncoin II 

 

 
Lonplate I 

 

 
Thermach                   

(Stainless Coating) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Trident Luminescent 
Folding Step 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Line-X 

(Spray-On Coating) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rhino Lining 
(Spray-On Coating) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Durabak SSV 170 
 

 

Interior Only Interior Only 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 202 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 202 of 220

DRAFT



CD0020 Slip Resistance 130801.doc 2 8/1/2013 

 

 
Turtle Tile w/Grit Surface 

 

 
Step Slot 

 

 

 
Gortite Stepping Surface 

  

 
VALIDATION TES TS: 
 
RD1008 Surfaces  1 – 18 
RD1153 Surfaces  19 – 20 
RD1195 Surface  21 
RD1219 Surface  22 
RD1232 Surface  23 
RD1227 Surface  24 
RD1633 Surface 25 
RD1942  Surface 26 
RD1948 Surface 27 
RD2027 Surface 28 
 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Roger Lackore, PE 
December 1, 2008 

27

 
26

 
28

 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 203 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 203 of 220

DRAFT



CD0049 NFPA 1901 Factory Inspection 121128.docx 1 11/28/2012 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0049 

NFPA 1901 UL Factory Inspection Process 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. contracts with Underwriter’s Laboratories to inspect Pierce 
apparatus for compliance to NFPA standards.  Every NFPA 1901 apparatus manufactured in 
the Appleton facility is reviewed by a UL certified inspector after it is completed. 
 
Each apparatus is subjected to a visual inspection of construction and installed components 
such as chassis, driving and crew compartments, body compartments, steps, warning lights, 
reflective trim, warning and instructional labels, etc. The inspection checklist, based on 
apparatus type, may have over 100 items to check. 
 
Any feature that does not 
comply with the NFPA 
standard is identified.  If the 
deviation is not indicated on 
the exceptions report, the UL 
inspector works with Pierce 
employees to correct the 
oversight before the 
apparatus is shipped. 
 
This “Vehicle Inspection 
Program” process ensures 
that Pierce apparatus comply 
fully with NFPA standards 
unless noted on the 
exceptions report. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 204 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 204 of 220

DRAFT



CD0053 Pierce ISO Cert Appleton 130522doc.doc 1 5/22/2013 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
 

Certification Document CD0053 
ISO Certification – Pierce Appleton 

 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. facilities in Appleton Wisconsin have received ISO 9001:2008 
Certification as shown below. 
 

 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 205 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 205 of 220

DRAFT



CD0061 Pierce Poly Tank Fab Capability 090405 1 4/5/2009 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
 

Certification Document CD0061 
Pierce Poly Tank Fabrication Capability 

 
 
United Plastic Fabricating, Inc. acknowledges that Pierce facilities are capable and certified to 
install poly water tanks. 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 206 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 206 of 220

DRAFT



CD0062 Pierce Weld Certification 110824.doc                                            1  8/24/2011 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0062 

Pierce Welder Certification 
 
Pierce Manufacturing Inc. (PMI) is certified to ISO Quality Standard 9001, which includes the 
oversight and quality assurance of all welding operations. 
 
PMI also adheres to the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 1901 which 
specifies the following welding codes: 
 

 AWS D1.1, Structural Welding Code – Steel 
 AWS D1.2, Structural Welding Code – Aluminum 
 AWS D1.3, Structural Welding Code - Sheet Steel. 

 
PMI ensures that all welders working on fire apparatus are properly qualified and trained, and 
that they maintain their qualification.  All welders are subject to: 
 

 Pre-Employment Weld Skill Evaluation 
 Initial Welder Training/Certification Program 
 Welder Re-certification Schedule. 

 
PMI’s welder qualification program is administered by weld educators and inspectors certified 
by the American Welding Society. 
 
 
The following individuals are located at the Appleton, Wisconsin facility. 
 
 

                                                                          

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 207 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 207 of 220

DRAFT



CD0062 Pierce Weld Certification 110824.doc                                            2  8/24/2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
The following individual is located at the Bradenton, Florida facility. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 208 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 208 of 220

DRAFT



CD0073 NFPA Lighting Certification 091022 1 10/22/2009 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0073 
NFPA Lighting Requirements 

 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. certifies that each apparatus lighting configuration is reviewed to 
ensure compliance with the requirements of NFPA 1901 and NFPA 1906 guidelines. 

 

 
 

The highly customized nature of fire apparatus is particularly exemplified in the selection of 
lighting packages.  Most fire departments have individual lighting desires based on 
performance and fleet commonality.  Each Pierce apparatus lighting configuration is therefore 
reviewed to ensure that the lights selected will conform to the lighting supplier’s guidelines for 
conformance to the NFPA standards.  Pierce ensures that the lighting system is installed within 
the geometric parameters specified by the manufacturer of the lighting products.  Optical 
source tests upon which these parameters are based are the responsibility of the lighting 
manufacturer. 
 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Roger Lackore, PE 
July 20, 2009 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 209 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 209 of 220

DRAFT



ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 210 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 210 of 220

DRAFT



CD0083 Water Tank Capacity 090825.doc 1 8/26/2009 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0083 

Water Tank Capacity 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. has received certification that UPF Tanks are certified to meet the 
nominal tank capacity. 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 211 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 211 of 220

DRAFT



CD0084 Pierce Engineering Methodology 091028 1 10/28/2009 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0084 

Pierce Engineering Methodology 
 
 
 
Every Pierce custom fire apparatus undergoes an extensive configuration and custom design 
process.  Engineers and designers from Pierce’s design staff review the specification, creating 
a master package of bills of material and engineering drawings before the manufacturing 
process is begun. 
 
Part drawings are created using computer-aided-design (CAD) software to ensure dimensional 
accuracy. 
 
Designs are created using best industry practices including Federal Motor Vehicle Safety 
Standards (FMVSS), National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) guidelines, and Society of 
Automotive Engineers (SAE) recommended practices. 
 
Design reviews on each truck include: 
• Weight Distribution 
• Axle Capacity 
• Driveline Analysis 
• Hose Capacity 
• Electrical Amperage Draw 
• Lighting and Conspicuity 
 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Roger Lackore, PE 
October 28, 2009 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 212 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 212 of 220

DRAFT



CD0089 Vehicle Stability 101118.doc 1 1/27/2011 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0089 

Statement of Compliance to NFPA 1901-2009 
Vehicle Stability 

 
Pierce fire apparatus comply with NFPA 1901 Section 4.13 Vehicle Stability using the tilt table method.  As prescribed by 
the standard, each apparatus is compared to a substantially similar apparatus that has been loaded as required and tested on a 
tilt table per the SAE J2180 test procedure.  If the apparatus configuration was not expected to meet the minimum tilt table 
criteria, then it will be equipped with the Electronic Stability Control option.  A listing of all tested apparatus is maintained 
by the Research and Development lab and is available for inspection at the Appleton factory. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
VALIDATION TEST: Multiple Tests 
  
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Roger Lackore, PE 
November 18, 2010 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 213 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 213 of 220

DRAFT



CD0098 Power Steering System 110628.doc                                     1       6/28/2011 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0098 

Power Steering System 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. certifies that the power steering system as installed in our custom 
chassis meets the requirements of the component supplier, the NFPA 1901 and NFPA 1906 
guidelines as applicable, and Pierce internal design standards. 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VALIDATION TEST: RD1987, RD2055 
RD2056, RD2057, RD2058, RD2059 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 

 
 
David W. Archer 
Director of Engineering 
June 03, 2011 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 214 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 214 of 220

DRAFT



CD0115 Engine - Velocity DD13 2013 130528.doc          1      5/29/2013 

 
PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.® 

 
AN OSHKOSH  CORPORATION® COMPANY         

 
Certification Document CD0115 

Engine Installation – Velocity 2013 DD13 Engine 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. certifies that the 2013 DD13 Engine as installed in a Velocity 
chassis meets the engine installation requirements of the engine manufacturer, the NFPA 
1901 and NFPA 1906 guidelines as applicable, and Pierce engine design standards. 
 
Validation testing was conducted in the Pierce wind tunnel chassis dynamometer and cooling 
test laboratory.  Test results have been reviewed and accepted by representatives of the 
engine supplier. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
VALIDATION TEST: RD2243 
 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 

 
 
David W. Archer 
Vice President of Engineering 
May 28, 2013 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 215 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 215 of 220

DRAFT



24/7
24/7 MOBILE ON-SITE, ON-CALL SERVICE

PROUDLY SERVING YOU,  WHILE YOU SERVE YOUR COMMUNITY

www.hughes�re.com / 1-800-747-6510 

   

O�ering comprehensive shop and mobile 
factory service fully customized to meet 
your needs.

Our ASE, EVT and Pierce® Master certi�ed 
technicians take great pride in providing 
all of the services you need to keep your 
�eet ready.  Whether it's warranty work, 
preventative maintenance, general repairs 
or inspections, our team is trained at the 
highest level to inspect, maintain and 
service all of your emergency vehicles 
including non-Pierce apparatus.  We are 
also pleased to o�er competitive pricing 
on parts and service. 

Serving Oregon, Washington, Idaho, Alaska, Montana, Arizona & Clark County Nevada

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce ManufacturingPage 216 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 216 of 220

DRAFT



COMPREHENSIVE MOBILE SERVICES
&TESTING  INSPECTIONS

Mobile Pump Testing

On-Site Pump Service

CZ (Command Zone) 
Inspection & Troubleshooting

SRP Diagnostics 
(Side Rollover Protection)

Tak-4 Inspection & Adjustment

Chassis Inspection/Repair

Ladder Testing Idle Reduction Technology 

Tower Upgrades/Installs

LED Lighting Upgrades

Generator & Light Equipment Installation

Lighting & Siren Installations

U
PG

RA
D

ES

MAINTENANCE

Warranty

Pump Service & Repairs

Suspension Repair

Transmission Service

Diesel Service

Brake Repair

24/7

M
O

BILE O
N

 SITE,  O
N

 CA
LL SERV

ICE

REPAIRS

1-800-747-6510
www.hughes�re.com 
Serving Oregon, Washington, Idaho, Alaska, 
Montana, Arizona & Clark County Nevada

On-site Oil & Fluid Changes

ALL Preventative Maintenance 
Needs & Inspections from 
Minor to Annual Services.

Maintenance Tracking

ALL Pump Service Needs
(Pierce® Ultimate Con�guration, Darley, 
Waterous)

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce ManufacturingPage 217 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 217 of 220

DRAFT



Pierce Authorized Service Centers 
 

After Hours Emergency Contact System Procedure 
- If you have a unit  “out of service” after normal business hours, dial 800-747-6510 
- Press “9” for the “emergency out of service” voicemail box 
- Once a voicemail message is left, the system begins calling technicians cell phones in 5 minute 

intervals until someone checks the message.  
- Make sure to leave the following information on your voicemail message: 

- Name 
- Department you are calling from 
- Apparatus brand/type, and/or Pierce job number 
- Cause of out of service condition 
- Contact information 

 
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. – 2600 American Drive, Appleton, WI 54914   
Manufacturing and Parts Distribution 
- Consistent parts stock level of $5 million 
- Customer accessible web site with access to vehicle number, sort able search for part 

numbers. Pictures of parts also included.  
- www.pierceparts.com (log in as guest) 
- Pierce’s “Out of Service” tracking system which requires all out of service vehicles be recorded, 

discussed addressed in the daily upper management meeting until the problem is resolved and 
the unit back into service. 

- Pierce refurbishment facilities in Weyauwega Wisconsin and Bradenton Florida 
 
Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc. – 910 Shelley Street, Springfield, OR 97477  
Corporate Sales and Service Headquarters – 800-747-6510  
- 7,500 sq. ft. shop space dedicated to emergency apparatus repair. 
- $225,000 parts inventory 
- 2 mobile service vehicles, plus 1 mobile service unit in Idaho. 
- 1 service writer, 1 technical advisor, and 8 full time factory trained fire mechanics (assorted 

levels of EVT and ASE certifications) 
- 3 full time Pierce certified service parts and warranty specialists  
- 24/7 emergency contact system in place.  Daily hours of operation 8 am to 5 pm. 
- Support staff includes sales management, finance and special event coordination. 
- Additional services include pump testing, ladder testing, welding, electrical testing and repair. 
- Regional service contractors 
 
Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc. – 5159 W. Roosevelt Street, Phoenix, AZ 85043 
Regional Service Facility – 800-747-6510 
- 15,000 sq. ft. shop space dedicated to emergency apparatus repair including 5 bays. 
- $175,000 parts inventory 
- Scheduling, troubleshooting, warranty, parts and administrative functions will be handled both 

through the main office in Springfield, Oregon and the office in Phoenix, AZ. 
- Service will be provided at the dedicated emergency apparatus repair facility at the address 

above.  
- Mobile service will be available through the Hughes location in Springfield, Oregon and the 

location in Phoenix, Arizona, with 2 mobile service units in Phoenix, and 1 in Clark County, NV. 
- 1 service manager and 5 technicians with various levels of EVT certifications are based out of 

the Phoenix service center location. 
- 2 full time Pierce certified parts specialist. 
- 24/7 emergency contact system in place.  Daily hours of operation 8 am to 5 pm. 
- Support staff includes sales management, finance and special event coordination. 
- Additional services include pump testing, ladder testing, welding, electrical testing and repair. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 218 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 218 of 220

DRAFT



Pierce Authorized Service Centers 
 
Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc. – 5011 Burlington Way, Suite A, Tacoma, WA 98409 
Regional Service Facility – 800-747-6510 
- 7,500 sq. ft. of shop space dedicated to emergency apparatus repair with 3 bays 
- $75,000 parts inventory 
- 3 mobile service vehicles 
- 1 full time shop manager, 2 full time fire service mechanics (assorted levels of EVT and ASE 

certifications)  
- 24/7 Emergency contact system in place. Daily hours of operation 8 am to 5 pm. 
- Additional services include pump testing, ladder testing, welding, electrical testing and repair. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 219 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 219 of 220

DRAFT



 

Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc. Contact Information 
 

For after hours emergency please call 541-747-0072. Press “9” and then leave your message. Your 
message will be sent to the person on call within 5 to 10 minutes. If you do not get a response in a 
reasonable time, please call one of the below numbers.  
 
For specific sales territory coverage, please see the Pierce or Life Line tabs on our website and click Sales 
Reps. www.hughesfire.com  
 
Service and Parts 
 
Alec Naslund: Shop Manager 
541-747-0072 ext 116 – 
Office 
541-505-2109 – Cell 
anaslund@hughesfire.com  
 
Mike Apodaca: Shop 
Manager AZ 
928-606-6823 
mapodaca@hughesfire.com 
 
Sonny Ovens: Technical 
Support 
541-747-0072 ext 109 – 
Office 
541-968-2107 – Cell 
sovens@hughesfire.com 
 
Scott Wessling: Shop 
Foreman, WA 
253-229-6611 – Cell 
swessling@hughesfire.com 
 
Duane Pedersen,  
Bob Preston,  
Jacob Cantwell: Parts 
Specialist 
541-747-0072 - Office 
parts@hughesfire.com 
 
 

Sales 
 
Rex Hughes: President 
541-747-0072 ext 103 – 
Office 
541-954-4207 – Cell 
rhughes@hughesfire.com  
 
Sheri Taylor: Sales Manager 
541-747-0072 ext 101 – 
Office 
staylor@hughesfire.com  
 
Nick Hendricks: Sales 
Representative 
503-961-4749 – Cell 
nhendricks@hughesfire.com 
 
Dennis Waters: Sales 
Representative 
509-521-1901 – Cell 
dwaters@hughesfire.com  
 
Gary Greenwell: Sales 
Representative 
208-859-0682 – Cell 
ggreenwell@hughesfire.com  
 
Andy Siebers: Sales 
Representative 
509-822-1703 – Cell  
asiebers@hughesfire.com  
 

Sales (Continued) 
 
Andy Klein: Sales 
Representative 
360-450-7264 – Cell 
aklein@hughesfire.com  
 
Dan Hays: Washington VP & 
Sales Representative 
206-910-4789 – Cell 
dhays@hughesfire.com  
 
Terry Hill: Sales 
Representative 
360-460-3676 – Cell 
thill@hughesfire.com  
 
Jamie Clifford: Arizona VP & 
Sales Representative 
602-770-6893 – Cell  
jclifford@hughesfire.com  
 
Ron Gilbert: Sales 
Representative 
602-717-9299 – Cell  
rgilbert@hughesfire.com  
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C1628rev1 Pierce Manufacturing Page 220 of 220

AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 220 of 220

DRAFT

http://www.hughesfire.com/
mailto:anaslund@hughesfire.com
mailto:sovens@hughesfire.com
mailto:rhughes@hughesfire.com
mailto:staylor@hughesfire.com
mailto:nhendricks@hughesfire.com
mailto:dwaters@hughesfire.com
mailto:ggreenwell@hughesfire.com
mailto:jkulbeck@hughesfire.com
mailto:aklein@hughesfire.com
mailto:dhays@hughesfire.com
mailto:thill@hughesfire.com
mailto:jclifford@hughesfire.com
mailto:rgilbert@hughesfire.com

	2016-03-21 Council Agenda
	WORK SESSION
	Item 1 NEDCO Update and Discover Downtown Springfield
	ATT1 - State of Neighborhood Economic Development Corporation
	ATT2 - NEDCO/City Partnership Funding Overview
	ATT3 - Springfield Mobile Food Vending Program Update

	REGULAR MEETING
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	Item 1 Claims
	1a. February 2016, Disbursements for Approval 
	ATT1 - February 2016 Disbursements for Approval


	Item 2 Minutes
	2a. February 8, 2016 - Work Session
	2b. February 16, 2016 - Work Session

	Item 4 Ordinances
	4a/b. Proposed Changes to Springfield Municipal Code 5.300 and 7.450-452 to Address Recent Changes in State Law Regarding E-Cigarettes
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memo
	ATT2 - Proposed Ordinance amending SMC 5.300
	ATT3 - Proposed Ordinance amending SMC 7.450-452

	4c. Update Springfield Municipal Code Section 5.104 "Misdemeanors and Violations - State Statutes Adopted"
	ATT1 - Ordinance

	4d. Amend Springfield Municipal Code 2.005 
	ATT1 - Proposed Ordinance


	Item 5 Other Routine Matters
	5a. Request for Springfield Utility Board (SUB) and Other Utility Companies, Along with their Contractors to work outside the hours of 7 am and 6 pm, for Construction Activities 
	ATT1 -  Noise Variance Request from Springfield Utility Board
	ATT2 -  Traffic Control and Work Area Plan

	5b. Approve Amendments to the Budget Committee Bylaws 
	ATT1 - Budget Committee Bylaws


	ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	Item 1 Amend the Springfield Development Code to Regulate the Time, Place and Manner by which Land and Buildings may be used to Produce, Process, Sell Wholesale and Sell Retail Recreational Marijuana and Recreational Marijuana Products 
	ATT1 -  Planning Commission Briefing Memorandum
	ATT2 -  Staff Report, Code Amendments, Maps and Criteria of Approval
	ATT3 -  Planning Commission Recommendation Memo
	ATT4 -  Public Comments Submitted Prior to Council Hearing
	ATT5 -  Ordinance

	Item 2 Business License Regulations for Recreational Marijuana Businesses
	ATT1 - Proposed Ordinance
	ATT2 - Attachment 1 to the Proposed Ordinance (proposed code language for SMC 7.1100-7.1104

	Item 3 Amendments to Medical Marijuana Business Regulations
	ATT1 - Proposed Ordinance

	Item 4 Master Fees and Charges Schedule - Spring 2016 Update
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memorandum
	ATT2 - Resolution
	ATT3 - Master Fees and Charges Schedule
	Exhibit A


	ORDINANCES
	Item 1 An Ordinance Amending Chapter 6, Vehicles and Traffic, Adding Section 6.112 to the Springfield Municipal Code, Unlawful Transfer on Vehicular Portion of the Right-of-Way
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memo
	ATT2 - Proposed Ordinance

	BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL
	Item 1 Committee Appointments
	1a. Budget Committee Appointments 
	ATT1 - Application of Nathan Mischel
	ATT2 - Application of Victoria Doyle
	ATT3 - Application of Diana Alldredge
	ATT4 - Budget Committee Charge

	1b. Historic Commission Appointments 
	ATT1 - Candidate Applications
	ATT2 - Current Historic Commissioner Profiles


	BUSINESS FROM CITY MANAGER
	Item 1 Approval to Lease/Purchase One (1) Fire Pumper 
	ATT1 - Contract with Pierce Manufacturing, Inc.




